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ROYAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY RESPECTING THE MOUNT KE4BLA 

COLLIERY DISASTER. 

ommtion, 

EDWARD THE SEVENTH, by the Grace of God, of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Ireland, 
and of the British Dominions beyond the Seas, King, Defender of the Faith, Emperor of India. 

To Our Trusty and Well-beloved— 

CHARLES EDWARD ROBERTSON MURRAY, Esquire, one of the Judges of the District Court 
appointed in and for the Metropolitan, Suburban, and Hunter District Court of Our 
State of New South Wales, President ; 

DARIEL ALEXANDER WILBERFORCE ROBEnTSON Esquire; and 
DAVID RITCHIE, Esquire,— 

Greeting 

1iNOw Ye, that We, reposing great trust and confidence in your ability, zeal, industry, 
discretion, and integrity, do, by these presents, authorise and appoint you, or any two of you, as herein-
after mentioned, to make a diligent and full inquiry into the causes of the explosion that recently 
occurred at the Mount Kembla Colliery, in the District of Illawarra, in Our State of New South Wales, 
whereby many valuable lives were sacrificed; and also to investigate all the surrounding circumstances, 
in order to ascertain whether blame attaches to any person or persons, and, if so, to report the person or 
persons to whom, in your opinion, the blame attaches; and, further, to make any recommendation 
affecting the general management, especially the ventilation, of collieries, and to offer any suggestions 
which you may deem advisable for the amendment of the law relating to the working of Coal Mines, 
especially with regard to the treatment of coal-dust, the prevention of the accumulation of dangerous 
gases, and the use of safety-lamps and explosives: And We do, by these presents, grant to you, or any 
two of you, at any meeting or meetings to which all of you shall have been duly summoned, full power 
and authority to call before you all such persons as you may judge necessary, by whom you may be 
better informed of the truth in the premises, and to require the production of all such books, papers, 
writings, and all other documents, as you may deem expedient, and to Visit and inspect the same at the 
offices or places where the same or any of them may be deposited, and to inquire of the premises by all 
lawful ways and means: And Our further will and pleasure is that you do, within one month after the 
date of this Our Commission, certify to Us, in the Office of Our Colonial Secretary, under your or any 
two of your hands and seals, what you shall find touching the premises: And We hereby command all 
Government Officers and other persons whomsoever within Our said State, that they be assistant to you 
and each of you in the execution of these presents: And We appoint you, the said Charles Edward 
Robertson Murray, to be President of this Our Commission, which said Commission We declare to be a 
Commission for all purposes of the Act No. 23, 1901, intituled "An Act to consolidate the law relating 
to the taking of Evidence by Commissioners under the Great Seal." 

In testimony whereof, We have caused these Our Letters to be made Patent, and the Public Seal 
of Our said State of New South Wales to be hereunto affixed. 

Witness Our Trusty and Well-beloved Sir HARRY HOLDSWORTH RAwsoN, Vice-Admiral 
in our Royal Navy, Knight Commander of Our Most Honorable Order of the 
Bath, Our Governor of Our said State of New South Wales and its Dependencies, 
in the Commonwealth of Australia, at Sydney, in New South Wales, aforesaid, 
this sixth day of November, in the second year of Our Reign, and in the year of 
Our Lord one thousand nine hundred and two. 

M. H. STEPHEN, 
By Deputation from His Excellency the Governor. 

By His Excellency's Command, 
(L.s.) .JOHN SEE. 

Entered on Record by me, in REGISTER OF P4TE11TTS, No. 24, page 201, this sixth day of November, 
one thousand nine hundred and two. 

For the Colonial Secretary and Registrar of Records, 

CRITCHETT WALKER, 
Principal Under Secretary. 
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ROYAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY RESPECTING THE MOUNT KEIVIBLA 
COLLIERY DISASTER. 

REPORT. 

To His Excellency Sin I-TARRY I-TOLDSWORTH BAWSON, Vice-Admiral in 

the Royal Navy, Knight Commander of the Most 1-lonorable Order 

of the Bath, Governor of the State of New South Wales and its 

Dependencies in the Commonwealth of Australia. 

MAY IT PLEASE Your. EXCELLENCY,- 

We, Charles Edward Robertson Murray, Daniel Alexander Wilberforce 
Robertson, and David Ritchie, Commissioners appointed on the 6th day of 
November, 1902, "to make a diligent and full inquiry into the causes of the 
explosion that recently occurred at tile Mount Kembla Colliery . whereby 
many valuable lives were sacrificed; and also to investigate all the surrounding 
circumstances, in order to ascertain whether blame attaches to any person or persons, 
and, if so, to report the person or persons to whom, in our opinion, the blame 
attaches ; and, further, to make any recommendations affecting the general 
management, especially the ventilation, of collieries, and to offer any suggestions 
which we may deem advisable for the amendment of the law relating to the working 
of Coal Mines, especially with regard to the treatment of coal-dust, the prevention 
of the accumulation of dangerous gases, and the use of safety lamps and explosives," 
have the honor to submit the following report :— 

Description and Short History of the Mine and 
its Development. 

The Mount Kembla Colliery, which is the property of the Mount Kembla 
Coal and Oil Company, Limited, is situated in a southern outlier of the Illawarra 
or Coast Range, which is here a long spur of the main plateau, approaching the 
coast in a north-easterly direction, and then running parallel to it to the northward. 
On the coast, off the point where, at Mount Keira, the range turns toward the north, 
lies the Port of Wollongong: about 7 miles by road, or 5 in a direct line, to the 
westward of the Port is the Mount Kembla Mine. Mount Kembla itself is a 
prominent dome-topped hill, 1,752 feet above high-water mark; the mine tunnel 
enters the mountain at a height of about 800 feet above sea level, under the saddle 
which joins time hill with the main range. Wollongong is connected with Sydney 
by the South Coast Railway ; the distance by rail from Sydney being 48 miles, the 
actual distance about el 0—southerly. Some 9 miles north-east of the Mount Kembla 
Mine, in the same range, and working the same seam, is the Buhli Colliery, where an 
explosion of fire-damp and coal-dust, which. caused the death of 81 persons, took 
place on the 21st of March, 1887. 

The first year in whieli the Mines Department have any record of coal 
being obtained from the mine was 1883, when the output was 21,522 tons : since 
then the m:ne has been constantly worked, the output for 1901 (the last year 
available l)Cinm') 261,350 tons, which gave cmnploynemt to E3 persons above-ground, 

and 
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and. 253 below. The workings at the time of the disaster extended over an area of 
about 769 acres, from some 270 acres of A01ich the coal had been entirely removed, 
either by the toiagwall, or by the 1i1lar-and-Bord, System. The former system of 
working was extensively adopted a few years ago, on the south-west side of the Main 
Tunnel; and, to a small extent, later; but the Longwall workings had been standing 
idle for some time when the disaster oceurreJ ; and at that time the Pillar-and-Bord 
System was the only one in use. 

The scam worked at Mount Kembla is the highest in the Coal Series of 
New South Wales it is known as the " Main or BLIIIi Seam," and is the only one 
extensively worked in the Southern District. At a depth .  of about 32 feet below 
this is what is called at Mount Kembla " the Four-foot Seam" : ii-hich has been 
iitilised, by driving, to carry off water from the workine's above. The thickness of 
the Main seam varies from 2 ft. 8 in. up to 8 ft. 6 in. 

The seain crops out on the Pacific slopes of the Illawarra Range ; thus 
rendering it possible to work Mount Kembla Colliery, as well as all the other mines 
in the Illawarra District (with the exception of the Metropolitan Colliery), by means 
of adits or tunnels driven into the scam from the outcrop. 

The dip of theseam is about 1 in 19, in the direction N. 47 W., for 31 
chains along the Main Tunnel, %vhich then crosses an 111)-throw fault of 10 feet: past 
this, in the next 41 chains (as far as the Down-throw Thrust Fault mentioned later 
on), the dip of the seam is about 5 feet ; while for some distance beyond the latter 
fault time seam is level. So far as the workings had penetrated in No. 1 Right 
District, where the disaster originated, time seam was found to be rising towards the 
north from a point near the 4th Right. 

There are at present four tunnels or adits through which it is possible for 
persons to travel to or from the workings of any part of the mine, and two others, 
which remain as intakes, but are otherwise disused, though only one of these (the 
Main Tunnel) is used for the conveyance of coal to the surface. The existence of 
these Adits or Daylight Openings as media for supplying fresh air to the workings, 
and as travelling roads to the surface for the workmen, had an important bearing in 
saving the lives of many of those who were in the colliery at the time of the disaster. 

There may be said to be two principal main haulage roads, though each of 
these gives off numerous branches : one is known as the iiain Tunnel, and bears, 
generally, north-west, passing near, and to the south-westward of, the Ventilating 
Shaft, into what is called the Shaft District. The adit of the Main Tunnel is on time 
outcrop of the 4-ft. seam; and the tunnel reaches the Etilli Seam by a cross-measure 
drift, practically on a level. The other main haulage road, known as No. 1 Right, 
branches off the former at a distance of 12 chains from the mouth, and hears north, 
ending, at the time of time disaster, in what are called the No. 1 Front and Back 
Headings, the latter being the northern end of the travelling road which runs, on its 
east side, parallel to the No. 1 Right haulage Road. On each side of these two 
main roads there branch off other subsidiary haulage roads, which are known by 
numbers : thus, those which branch off the Main Tunnel are the No. 1 Right, No. 1 
Left, No. 2 Right, No. 2 Left, No. 3 Right, No. 3 Left, No. 4 Right, No. 4 Left, 
No. 5 Right, No. 5 Left, No. 6 Right, No. 6 Left, No. 7 Right, and No. 7 Left; and 
those which branch off the No. 1 Right are called First Right, First Left, Second 
Right, Second Left, Third Right, Third Left, Fourth Right, Fourth Left, Fifth 
Bight, and Fifth Left (now being driven in the coal). It is arouud the No. 1 Right 
Main Level (the Eastern District of the Mine) that the interest of this Inquiry 
centres. On the right hand (eastern) side of this road, between the 3rd and 5th 
Bight Rope Roads, there is an area of 35 acres from which the coal has been 
extracted and where time roof has been allowed to fall, forming a goaf which is 
referred to in the evidence either as "the 35-acre Waste" or "the 4th Bight G-oaf." 
The last portion of this area to be worked was that near the end of the 4th Bight 
Rope Road; where, about a fortnight before time disaster, the last pillars of coal were 
extracted, and the props supporting the roof were withdrawn, ivith the object of 
letting it fall. A week before the accident there was a fall of 2Ij feet; but there 
til1 remained a space of more than 5 feet between the fallen mass and the roof above. 
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The haulage power is supplied by a steam engine installed at the mouth 
of the Main Tunnel. This engine drives a system of endless ropes at a speed of 
between 2 and 3 miles an hour. The SkipS, winch are connected to the endless rope 
by clips, are of the close-sided type, and do not permt, to any appreciable extent, 
the escape along the roadways of small coal or dust. Between the working face and 
tire haulage roads where the endless rope is laid the skips are hauled by horses. 
ilanlage of coal begins at 7 a.m. and ceases at 5 p.m. The mine working day is 
(lividedi into two shifts, the front and back shifts. The Front Shift of Miners enters 
the mine at 7 n.m. and leaves about 3 p.m. : the Back Shift enters at 9 n.m. and 
leaves about 5 p.m. 

When the mine was started, a furnace was erected near the outcrop of 
the upper seam above the Main Tunnel, and the air necessary to ventilate the 
workings was drawn through. the mine by the draught of this furnace. About four 
years later, a second furnace was built at a dayUght opening (adit) about 200 yards 
N. E. of the Main Tunnel. This second furnace provided the ventilating power for 
the mine until the year 189, when, the workings having bec ome very extensive, 
the present furnace was brought into use. This furnace is situated at the bottom of 
an upeast shaft neanly a n-rile from the suiface along the Main Tunnel. The upcast 
shaft is over 400 feet deep; and tire fire-grate area of the furnace is 09 square feet 
(11 x 0). After the construction of this third furnace, both of the others were 
dismantled, and what were then the return air-ways were converted into intakes and 
made into travelling roads for men and horses. The current of air induced by the 
present furnace varied, before the disaster, from 80,000 to 100,000 cubic feet per 
minute passing into and out of the mine. The Annual Return for 1902 gives the
quantity of air passing per minute at 80,000 cubic feet. The air enters tire mine by 
four tunnels, circulates through the workings, and then passes over the furnace to 
the upcast shaft, by means of which it reaches the surface. 

The Metropolitan Colliery being taken as an extreme example of a dry 
and dusty mine, Mount Kembla Colliery appears, by comparison, to be generally 
damp and free Ironi dust. But there are certain moderately dry areas, of varying 
extent, especially in the 5th Right and 4th Left, off the No. 1 Right; and various 
dry, alternating with wet, lengths of road; but even in these, where a layer of dust 
may be found on the roadways, and dust may also be observed hanging on to 
ril)s, timbers, roof, &c., it is of such a con n sistecy that, unless disturbed by some 
violent motion of the air, it does not rise, nor (lOCS it remain suspended long after it 
has risen. The clothes and skirt of a persoi passing through the mine at Mount 
Kembla are only blackened by contact with the actual floor, rib, or roof; while, in 
the ease of the Metropolitan, there is impalpable dust also suspended in the air-
currents, which leaves a coating that, while it is readily shaken from any dry 
garment, is very difficult to remove from the skin, and especially from the eyelids, 

The roof of the seam varies from a dark arenaceous shale to a grey 
argillaceous sandstone ; but., iii some places where the coal seam is thin, the roof 
consists of a conglomerate. 

Beneath the seam, for a depth of 5 feet, there is a floor varying, in 
places, from a dark to a sandy shale ; and, under that, sandstone. Where the seam 
is thinnest, in the workings to the South-west of the Main Tunnel, " Rolls " in the 
floor are rare or absent; but to the North-east of the Main Tunnel they are fairly 
numerous ; though, as they are not so high as at some of the other collieries in the 
district, these " Rolls " do not, in this Colliery, interfere with tine direction of the 
roads, or with the shape or size of the pillars. 

Apart from the "Rolls," and two Basalt Dykes near the outcrop, only 
two faults of any magnitude are crossed, viz., the Upthnrow Fault of 10 feet about 
37 chains down the Main Tunnel already  referred to (par. 0), which, towards tine 
North-east, decreases or is split up by a number of small displacements ; and a 
Thrust Fault about 82 chains from the Tunnel Mouth, which dhspiaces tine seam 7 
feet down, but reduces to the West and to the Fast, and in the latter direction has 
formed a fissure full of small coal, tire oppesmg  faces of which show " Sliekensides." 
A. water level driven for 25 chains, from theShaft District across the No, 1 Right 
District to daylight, in tire "Four-feet Seam" (32 feet below the Buili seam), 
shnowedi that it was destroyed, to a large extent, by interbedded basalt ; and a winze, 
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sunk to the Four-feet Seam at a point 700 yards south-west of the Main Tunnel, 
proved that its structure there also was destroyed by intrusive basalt : lmt the basalt 
did not, in either of these cases, show in the upper, or Bulli Seam ; though, at a 
distance of about a mile north-70°-west from the Tunnel Mouth, an area of several 
acres of coal has been found to be cindered. 

Short Account of the Disaster—List of the Victims. 

At about 2 p.m. on the 31st of July, 1002, while the Manager of the 
Mine, Mr. W. Rogers, was absent in. Wollongong, about 7 miles distant, attending 
at the Industrial Arbitration Court, which was sitting there hearing a dispute 
between the Miners and Colliery Proprietors of the Illawarra District, a large 
volume of flame and smoke was seen to burst from the Main Tunnel, accompanied 
by a terrific report. Smoke was also blown in dense clouds from the Main Travelling 
Road near by; and, as deposed to by an eye-witness, when the outward force had 
expended itself, some of the smoke was drawn back into the mine by the back-draught. 
The force of the blast from the Main Tunnel wrecked the engine-house, which was 
situated directly in line with, and a few yards from, the mouth of the Tunnel it 
also slightly displaced the weighing-office, which was a little further from the 
Tunnel Mouth, but not directly in line with it. It was at once apparent to those 
outside the mine that a serious accident had happened. 

At this time there were 261 persons in time mine, comprising the Under 
Manager, a Government Inspector, two Deputies, 208 Miners, 27 Wheelers, 15 
Shiftmen, &c., and 7 Clippers; but shortly after the flame and smoke had cleared 
away a number of these managed to find their way out, either singly or in parties, 
by the adit of the Main Travelling Road, or by other adits. The largest of these 
parties was led out by Deputy David Evans, by a circuitous route from near the 
Ventilating Shaft to the Adit near the Manager's house, round time faca of the old 
ILongwall w'orkings. Great credit is (Tue to Evans for his coolness and judgment in 
such alarming circumstances. The roof of the Main Tunnel had, collapsed near the 
Tunnel Mouth, so that escape by this road was cut off. 

A message was sent'by telephone from Mount Kembla to Mr. Rogers at 
Wollongong, informing him of the disaster, and was communicated by him to the 
Court of Arbitration, which at once adjourned. He hastened to the mine, and was 
accompanied and aided in rescue work by the Managers of most of the Illawarra 
Collieries, and by the Miners' representatives, who, like himself, were gathered at 
Wollongong to attend the Court. This party from the Arbitration Court was the 
first to render help to those in the mine, although not actually, the first in the mine. 
Rescue parties were at once organised among the Managers, Miners, and others, who 
came from all parts of the district to help. The various Physicians of the district, 
the Matron (Miss Woodward) and Nurses of the Wollongong hospital, and other 
willing helpers, were speedily on the scene to relieve the sufferings of the injured. 
It has been estimated that, at the beginning of the rescue operations, there were 
160 men still in the mine; and the operations for their relief or the recovery of 
their bodies were continued through several days. 

The work of rescue was rendered difficult by the great lengths of road to 
be traversed, by the many falls of roof that had occurred, but, most of all, by the 
deadly after-damp, which was found to be present almost all through the mine. 
The force of the explosion disarranged for the time being, of course, the ordinary 
ventilating currents of the mine. Fortunately, time ventilating furnace (which is 
situated in the Shaft District) was not in any way damaged (the origin of the force 
being in time No. 1 Right District) ; and, as soon as the blast had exhausted itself, 
which was the work of a few seconds, the ventilation-urrents returned, for the most 
part, to their usual channels. Thins, as each Adit or Daylight Opening was an 
intake airway, the after-damp, containing the poisonous gas, carbon-monoxide, 
which caused time death of almost all those lost through the disaster, was gradually 
carried in by the air-currents, round the workings, and ultimately to the furnace, to 
the upeast shaft, and thus to the surface. The fresh air followed, and thus enabled 
rescuers to get well into the mine within an hour after the accident; though they 
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Richards, Stanley Clipper. 
Peace, George ... Miner. 
Peace, Jonathan 
Walker, Georg...... . . . . 
Gillespie, Arthur .. . urface hand. 
Stone, Percy ... . . . . . . Clipper. 
Purcell, Patrick ... . . . Engine-driver 
Peace, isaac ... ... ... Miner. 

Western, George... 
Clarke, John 

J\lcDonald, George W. 
Braslier, .James 
Snmith, Thomas . . . 
Bates, Thomas Lionel 

Boiler fireman. 
in charge of tun-

nel mouth. 
Miner. 

inspector of Cob 
licries. 
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often ran great risks by ad vancing faster than the incoming aie, in their self-sacrificing 
eagerness to save life. Two of the rescuers, nlcice(l, Mr. 11. 0. MacCube and Mr. 
William McMui'rav, after they had assisted in saving the lives of several miners, 
were overcome by the aftee_dimp, and (lied before the he]1) which was speedily 
despatehied could reahi them. 

19. '1 he following is a list of the rsons killed or injured in the clisasfer :— 

IKILLEI) (95). 

Name. Occupation. Name. Occupation. 

Aiken, Henry, 23 ... ... Miner. 
.t\iken, John, 47 . 
Anneslev, James, 33 ... . 
Bellis, Ilicliard, 62 ... 
Best, Titonias Sylvester, 10 
Blackett, Albert William, 21 
Blaekett, Robert George, 23 
Tras1ier, \Vil1 ala, 56 
Bray, William Varcoe, 40 
Brenian, Michael, 22 ... . Whe&er. 
Bryso t, John, 53 . 

. N jeer. 
Cartei, Arthur, 28 .. 

Church, Charles, 68 ... 
Dixon, (ienre Henry, 22 I \Vliee!ci. 
I)oherty, William, 28 . . Miner. 
I)ungev, Frank, 16 ... ... Deputy. 
Dunning, Frederick Redmond, 19 Wheeler. 
Dunning, Joseph F,ancis, 24 . Miner. 
Dunrnng, 'ihoinas Reid, 16 . 
Egan, Edward, 19 . . 
Egan, Dennis, 20 
IFgau, II\licltael, 28 . 
Egan, 'ihomas, 32 
Filby, William, 4$ . 
Gallagher, Daniel, 50 . 
Gallagher, Edward, 38 . 
Gallpgher, Michael, 45 ... . 
Gill, Edward, 23 . . . . . 
Gleeson, Stephen, 33 ... 
Hartley, George Oliver, 22 
Head, James, $... 
Henley, Daniel, 31 . . . 
Hewlett, Alfred, 27 ... ... Shiftman. 
Hewlett., William, 21 ... ... Miner. 
Hitehins, Jehu, 62 . . . 
Howell, rfllornas 27 
Hughes, Tlionmas, 32 ... ... Fitter. 
Hume, Revnold, 26 ... . . . Miner. 
Hunt, Wnm. (known as Allen), 45 
Hunt, Percy Alexander, 42 
Hunt, Percy Spencer, 18 
James, Henry, 33 ... . 
James, John Henry, 33 ... . 
Jeffrey, John, 42... ... 
Jones, Robert, 21 
Kendriek, Thomas, 69 ... . 
Lane, Richard, 44 
Lane, Richard Charles, 17 

MacCabe, Henry Osborne, 45... I Mining Engineer. 
McCaiirm, Patrick, 33 ... . . . Miner. 
Mcliii), James, 47 ... ... 
Mctister, Hugh, 24 ... ... Wheeler. 
McLister, James, 22 . . . . . . Miner. 

Murray, William, 48 ... Deputy. 
Meuramit, Henry, 20 . . . . . . Miner. 
\ieuraiit, William, 22 

i\lorris, George, 34 •.. 
77 

Morris, Thomas, 25 ... . . . 
Morris, Walter, 49 ... . . .1 

iE
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errson, Alexander, 15 ... Clipper. 
Morraun, ifery, 17 ... . 
Muir. John, S... ... ... Miner. 
Mu m, Petr, 41 ... 
i\l urphy, John, 50 . . . 
Nees, John George, 34... 
Nelson, Jacob, 14 ... .. . Clipper. 
Nelson, William, 39 ... .. Under Manager. 
Nixon, William, 21 ... . . Wheeler. 
Peace, Matthew, 3$ ... ... Miner. 
Price, Wil lianJ., 26 . . . . . . Wheeler. 
Purcell, James, 38 . . . . . . Shiftman. 
Purcell, James, senior, 60 ... N met. 
Purcell, ,John, 33 . . . . . . 
Purcell, Thomas, 39 ... . 
Rich, Henry, 66 ... ... 
Rich, James Henry, 39 
J.lobson, Edward, 65 . . . . 
Russell, George, 20 
Ryan, John, 33... 
Scott, Daniel, 40 ... ... 
Silcoek, William, 14 ... ... Clipper. 
Skelling, Albert, 15 
Smith, Frederick, 15 
Stafford, Claude, 17 ... 
Stafford, Kemhla, 17 ... ... Wheeler. 
Stafford, William, 25 ... ... Miner. 
Stewart., Francis, 38 
Thomas, Richard, 26 ... . 
Tost, Thomas, $0 ... ... 
Walker, John, 16 . . . . 
Walker, Richard, 42 ... 
Walker, William, 18 ... ... Clipper. 
Wilkinson, Joseph, 26 ... ... Miner. 
Woodroof, Charles, 35... 
Youngman, George, 38... 

INJURED (14). 

Name. Occupation. Name. Occupation. 

29--() 
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The Coroner's Inquest and the Finding of the Coroner's 
Jury. 

20. On the 1st of August, 1902, the (itv after the disaster occurred, Mr. 
Charles Coffey Russell, solicitor, the Coroner at Wollongoug, Avith the assistance of 
a Jury of twelve, commenced a Coronial InqUiry into the cause of the detIi of 
William Meurant, William Nelson, and 1-lenry Meurant, whose bodies were among 
the first to be brought to the surface by the rescue parties. The inquest lasted until 
the 12th of September, 1902, sittings being held, on twenty-two days. 

21. At this inquiry Senior-Sergeant Banks, the officer in charge of the 
'Woflongong Police, brought forward all the evidence ; the miners employed at the 
Mount Kembla Colliery, and the relatives of deceased miners, were represented by 
Mr. A. A. Lysaght, solicitor, of Wollongong, and by Mr. David Ritchie, the General 
Secretary of the I ilawarra Miners' Association ; the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil 
Company were represented by Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by 
Messrs. Curtiss and l$airv, solicitors ; and. the Mines DcJ)artment \vas represented 
by Mi. Bruce Smith, Bsrrister-a i-Law, instructed by Mr. 11. D. Wood, B.A., LL.B., 
of the Crown Solicitor's Office, assisted by Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of 
CcaI 1 ines. 

22. rlhe following is a list of the witnesses (twenty-eight in all) who wcro 
examined at the inquest 

Pa,e of 
Name. Profession or Occupation. 

Atkinson, A. A .. ... Chief Inspector of Coal Mines ... 55, 56, 60 
Banks, H. S. ... ... Senior-Sergeant of Police, Wollongong 48 
Broadhead, Win ... ... Miner ... ... ... ... 6 
Evans, David ... ... Deputy, Mount Kembla Colliery ... 29, 30 
Frost, Matthew ... .. Overman of wheelers, J\Iount Kembla Colliery 10 
Frost, Adam ... . . .1 Oversees ,, ,, 33 
hopkins, Wrn ... .. Miner ... ... ... ... 55 
Jones, W. E. ... ... Mining surveyor ... ... ... ... 41 
Kerr, Dr. W. B....... ... Medical practitioner ... ... . 26 
Laidlaw, John ... ... Miner ... ... ... ... 4 
Lee,Dr. T. W ... .. H Medical practitioner . ... ... 25 
Meurant, Thos ... ... Miner ... ... ... ... .. 
Meurant, Mrs. A F. ... ............................................... 

Miner .. ... ... ... ... ... 
. . . 2 

2 Meurant, Edward 
Morrison, John ... H Deputy, Mount Kembla Colliery ... ... ... 13, 16, 17, 19, 27 
Moran, Wni ... 
May, J. ... 

... Miner ... ... ... ... ... 

.. Lecturer on Mining and Geology, Technical Educa-1 
47 

tion Department, Wollongong •. 42 45 
Nelson, Mrs. A....... ... 3 
Nash, Dr. J. B. ... 

............................................. 
... Medical Practitioner ... ... ... ... 20 

Paton, Dr. B. T ... ... Government Medical Officer ... ... ... 22 
Quinn, M. ... ... Miner ... ... ... ... ... . . H 51, 52 
Rogers, Was. ... ... . . . Manager, Mount Kembla Colliery ... ... ... 1, 35, 36, 38, 

41,45 
Ritchie, D....... ... ... Miners' General Secretary, Illawarva District ... 49 
Ramsey, George ... ... Miner ... ... ... ... ... .. . 53 
Staflbrd, Adam ... -. ... . ... ... ... ... ... ... 53 
Stafford, Ernest ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 54 
Wade, Dr. T. F....... ... I Medical practitioner... ... ... ... ... 23, 45 
Warburtn, S. II ... ... Mining Surveyor, Mount Kensida Colliery .. 45 

23. The Coroner's Jury, after hearing the evidence of these witnesses and 
visiting the mine, brought in the following verdict :— 

" The deceased, William Meurant, Henry Meurant, and William Nelson, died at Mount Kembla 
Mine, in the County of Camden, and State of New South Wales, on the 31st (lay of July last, FROM 
CARBON-MONOXIDE POISONING PRODUCED BY AN EXPLOSION OF FIRE-DAMP, 
IGNITED BY THE NAKED LIGHTS IN USE IN THE MINE, AND ACCELERATED BY A 
SERIES OF COAL-DUST EXPLOSIONS, STARTING AT A POINT TN OR ABOUT TIlE 
NUMBER-ONE MAIN LEVEL BACK HEADINGS, AND EXTENDING IN A WESTERLY 
DIRECTION TO THE SMALL GOlF, MARKED 11 PERCHES ON TlI1 i\IINE PLAN." 



	

	

xix 

r1he Appointment of this Commission—Course Adopted at 
the Commission's Inquiry—Evidence Taken—Theories 
Advanced to Account for Disaster. 

24. On the fith of November, 1902, the Governor-in-Council appointed us a 
Commission to, primarily, inquire into the cause of the explosion, and to report on 
Various other questions raised thereby, as recited in the first paragraph of this report. 
From various causes, which need not be further referred to here, the Commission 
was unable to cuter UJ)011 its duties until the 5th of December, when a preliminary 
meeting was held, at which the notification of the appointment of Mr.J. Garliek as 
Secretary and Principal Shorthand Writer to the Commission was received, the course 
of procedure to be adopted was determined, and it was resolved to visit the Colliery 
on the 9th and 10th of December. As, however, one of the questions which had led 
to the former delay again caine under the consideration of the Government, the 
further action of the Commission was deferred until the matter was settled, and the 
Commission did not visit the mine until the 16th and l7th of December. The 
Christmas holidays were then close at hand ; and it was considered inadvisable to 
1)egin the taking of evidence until after they had passed, in view of the probable 
absence of important witnesses and Counsel froniWollongong, where the Inquiry 
was to be opened. The intervening time was t'terefore spent in reading and discussing 
the evidence taken at the Coroner's Inquest, which the Commission decided to accept 
as evidence at their Inquiry, in order to avoid the expense and delay involved in 
re-taking the testimony. By this (leelsion 22 days were, in etlect, saved. The 
Commission began the examination of witnesses at Wollongoiig on the Ctli of 
January, 1903, adjourned to Sydney on the t9th of January, and concluded the 
taking of evidence in Sydney on the 20th of March. '1 hey again visited the Colliery 
on the 2 ith, examined one witness there, made a number of tests for fire-damp with 
a hydrogen lamp (the most reliable of the more-sensitive instruments science has, 
so far, devised for the purpose), and carefully inspected certain portions of the 
mine to which their attention had been directed by the evidence. The next day, 
the 2thi of March, they visited hlelensbui'gli, in order to be able to compare the 
conditions at Mount Kembla Colliery, a mine which was, up to the time of the 
accident, reputed to be safe in relation to dust, and to the issue of fire-damp, with 
those at the Metropolitan Colliery, a mine acknowledged to be exciptionahly fiery 
and dusty. At Ileienshurgh a number of very instructive tests were made in the 
presence of the Commission as to the explosihility of Mount Kembla and Metro- 
politan coal-dust, and the safety of permitted explosives " as cornparcd \vithl 
gunpowder, paitictlars of which will be found in the minutes of evidenca (pars. 
07(iG-307Gt) Comn.). The remainder of the sittings of the Commission were 

devoted to the consideration of the evidence and the preparation of this ileport. 

3• Tile  Commission having dccdcd to begin  taking evidence at Wollongong 
on the (thi of January, the following advertisement inviting, persons interested to 
appear was inserted in each of the Sydney daily newspapers, and in the papers 
publislicd at \\ollongong, Newcastle, and Lithgow :— 

ROYAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY RESPECTING THE MOUNT KEMBLA COLLTERY 
DISASTER. 

Notica is hereby given to all cncerned that the above Commission will cmmence iti sittings for 
the taking of evidence on Tuesday, the 6th January, 1903, at I] 30 n.m., in the Court-house, Wollongong. 

Tire scope of the Commission embraces not only the causes of the explosion which occurred at 
Mount Kembla Coal Mine on 31st July last, but also (1) the General Management of Collieries, (2) 
Ventilation, (3) the Treatment of Coal Dust, (4) the Prevention of the Accuniulation of dangerous Gases, 
(ii) the Use of Safety Lamps, and ((;) the Use of Explosives. 

Air persons having a knowledge of these matters are invited to attend the meeing of the 
Commission, or to communicate with the Sucietam v. 

For the convenience of witnesses the Commission will sit in Wollongong and Sydney. The 
Commission will also visit other places for the purpose of taking evidence, if necessary. 

By Order of the Commission, 
22nd Dccemnler, 1902, 72A Phillip-strset, Sydney. J. GARLICK, Secretary. 

In respohse to this advertisement the Commission received a few letters from 
persons in different parts of the State who were desirous of giving evidence these 
persons were then asked to state generally the nature of the evidence they could 
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give, and their experience; and their replies enabled. the Commission to decide in 
which cases it would probably be of service to the Inquiry to call the writers to 
give evidence. The Commission regret that none of the Colliery Managers, or 
proprietors, whose interests are vitally affected by the questions upon which the 
Commission were directed to report, accepted this invitation, or the opportunity of 
appearing which the President held oat at the opening of the Court. 

The first sittings for the taking of evidence were held at the Wollongong 
Court-house, which had been kindly lent for the purpose by the Justice Department 
at considerable inconvenience to their local officer, the Police Magistrate, who 
courteously did all in his power to assist the Commission in their duties. After 
having heard the evidence of all the witnesses then available at Wollongong, the 
Commission adjourned to Sydney, where the Land Appeal Court was, for a time, 
placed at their disposal; then, in succession, a room at the Treasury, the No. 2 Jury 
Court, and, lastly, the No. 2 District Court. 

On the opening of the Court at Wollongong, Mr. A. A. Lysaght, solicitor, 
appeared on behalf of (a) the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &c. 
(victims of the disaster), (h) the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, 
wheelers, &c.), and (c) the Ihlaw-arra Colliery Employees' Association; Mr. C. G. 
Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed. by Messrs. Curtiss and Barry, solicitors, appeared 
on behalf or the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company, Limited; and J\Ir. Bruce 
Smith, Barrister-at-Law-, instructed by Mr. II. D. Wood, of the Crown Solicitor's 
Office, appeared to represent the State, through the Mines Departrnent—Mr. A. A. 
Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines, being present by leave of the Court to 
assist Mr. Bruce Smith, though to be called, later, as a witness. The President 
announced that the application of any other person or body wishing to be heard or 
represented on the Inquiry would at any time be entertained. 

The parties were then infornied that the evidence taken at the Coroner's 
Inquest would be accepted as if it had been given before the Commission; but that, 
if any party desired it, any witness who had given evidence at that Court might be
recalled for the purpose of further examination or cross-examination. 

The taking of evidence was then proceeded with, and occupied forty-one 
days, the following being a list of the witnesses examined 

LIST OF WITNESSES CALLED TO GIVE EVIDENCE BEFORE THE COMMISSION 

Pate. Name of Witness. Profession or Trade. Called by— Paragraphs. 

1903. 
6 Jan. Morgan, Thomas Richard Miner ... ... ... ... Mr. Lysaght ... 93-621- 
7  Biggers, Edwin ... ,, ... ... ... ... ... 657-679 
7 ,, Maguire James ,, ... ... ... ... 6801307 ... 
7  

... 
OSullivan, Edward ... Ex-miner... ... ... ... 

,, 
. 1308-1372 

7 ,, Quinn, Michael ... Miner ... .. ... ,. ... 137:3-1710 
S ,, Smith, Charles .. .. ... ... ., .. 17112474 
S  McDonald, Frank .,. 0 •• • ... ,, .. 2475-2696 

14  Hicks, Alexander . . ., Clieck-wcigliman at Corrmal ... 1 4144-4396 
Colliery. 

15 ., Sweeney, John Miner ... •.. ... .. H 4417-4881 
15 ,, Sells, John H • ... ... .. ,, ... 4882-5218 

20  
20 

Marshall, William 
... ... ... 
... ... ... 

... 5220-5453 

... 5454-6115 
20  Scott, Robert ..H  •.. ... ... ..H 6146-6326 
21 ,, 
21 ,, 

11 • .. 
Gleeson, Patrick • 0 

H ,, • ... 
... •.. ... , 

6330-6518 
... 6519-6928 

21  Gleeson, Alfred •  ... ... •.. ... 6929-7105 
21  Harley, William • ...  •.. ... ,, .. 775-7619 
22 ,, McLeod, John .. ... •.. ,. ... 7625-7936 
22  Midgley, Sidney •  • .. 7937-8176 
22 ., Raynor, John ........ ... ... ... ... 8177-8411 
22  Joslaiid, Charles  • ... •.. ... 8412-8568 
3 Feb. Heron, John  • ... ... •.. ... 12060-12257 

18 ,, Bower, William ... •. •.. ... 17765-18180 
19 
19  
 • 

Gray, Michael 
 •. • ... 

... •.. •.. ,, 
.. 18210-18791 

... 18792_18902 
19 ,, Paterson, John • Miner ... ... ..; ,, ... 18903-18969 
19 Mar. Brownlee, Patrick ..' Clieck-weighman at Mt. Kembla ,, ... 29615-29909 

Colliery. 



	

	 		
		 	 	
		

		 								
	 	
		
		

	

		

		 		

		
	 	

	

	

	

	

	 		 	
			 	

	

		 	

	 	

	

	

	
	 			 	
		 	

	

	 	

	

	 		

 

	 		
		

		 				 	

	

	

	 			

				

Name of Witness. Profession or Tra Is. 

ssfroi'd, William . . . ... Ex-mner ... . . . 0• 

Ranisay, IE{arry ... ... ..I ... ... ,, 
Morrison, John ... ... Deputy at Mt. Kembla Colliery 

I is ingtone William Mu u 
1\Iuir, Thomas . . . ...  . . . . . . . . . 
,Jolmson, Thomas ... ...  ... .. 
Biggera, Charles ... ... Deputy at Mt. Kembla Colliery 
Selb-rs, Alfred Ernest Manager, South Bulli and Bel- 

Oswald. lambi Collieries. 

McGeachie, Duncan 
. . 

Manager of \Vest Walisend Colliery 

Warburton, Silvester Henry Mining Surveyor at Mt. Kembla 
Colliery. 

Hay, William ... ... Clerk and Weighman, Mt. Kern- 
bla Colliery. 

Barr James ... ... i\Ianager, Co oerative Colliery, 
Newcastle. 

Leitch, George I .. Manager, Stanford Mertliyr Col- 
liery, West Maidand. 

.Io,ips .Tt1(1d1 I',.,lne . Manaer 1\1. Keira  C,dlip,v 

xxi 

10 
11 
12 
16 
17 
19 Mai 
20 
21 Jan. 
28 

Called by— Paragraphs. 

Sir. Lysaght 29911-30000 
30001-30013 

Mr. Wade 8862-9011 
11194-11754 
11755-12056 

9232-9868 
108:31-10983 
10984-11190 
12258-12710 
189 70-19533 

19537-20408 
21318-21540 
20411-20817 
29527-29612 
c083 1-2 1347 

21541-21986 

21987-22031 

2205222.316 
22317-22795 

- 
... 22803-23659 

Robertson, Dr. James ...' Mining Engineer... ... ... ... 23660-23704 
Robert, Miller ... ... ... 3705-24321 

... ... ... ... 24322-24891 
24893-25490 

Rogers, William \Ianagei', Mt. Kembla Colliery... ,, (by diree-' 25-191-25667 
lion of Corn- 

:: 
25668-26375 
2644 1-26766 

Atkinson, Alfred Ashley... i  Chief Inspector of Coal Mines,' Mr. Bruce Smith 12744-13295 
Department of Mines, N.S.W.I 

13946-14240 
14241-15054 
15072-15858 
13839-16163 
16241-16810 
17713-17764 

H ... 30044-301(;O 
304 75-30688 

F[amrnon, Clifford... ... Wheeler ... ... .. ... The Commission 7106-7374 
Jubb, Henry ... ... Assistant Under-manager at Mti ... 9869-10379 

Keira Colliery. 

Date. 

1903. 
19 Mar. 
19 
27 Jan. 

2 Feb. 
3 

28 Jan. 
29 
29 
3 Feb. 

23 71 

24 
26 
25 
18 Mar. 
26 Feb. 

2 Mar. 

2 

3 
3 

4 
4 

9 
10 
10 

11 
11 

4 Feb. 

McDonald, Alexander ... Deputy at Mt. Keira Colliery ... 

Cambage, Richard Hind ... Mining Surveyor, Nines Depart; 
ment, Sydney. 

Mingaye, John C. H. ... Analyst and Assayer to Depart- 
inent of Mines. 

Humble, William ... .. Inspector of Collieries ... .. 

Goodwin, John Dickinson Mining Engineer for Borough of 

. 

Ashuielil. 
IParton, Thomas . .. Mining Engineer... ... . .. 
1-Totchkis, Daniel . . . . . Umler-nuanager at Mt. Keaibla 

Colliery. 
Silcock, James ... ... Miner ... ... ... . . . ,, (a 

28 
29 
12 Feb. 

11 Mar. 

is 
18 
12 
17 
18 

18 
24 

13 Jan. 

13 ,, 

14 
27 
27 
17 Feb. 
17 
19 Mar. 
17 ,, 

May, Jonathan 

Wynn, John ::: 

Bailey, John' William 
Coulson, Thomas 
Jeifries, Joshua 

the request o 
the witness). 

Lecturer on Mining, Geology, and 
Mine Surveying. 

Contractor ... .. . . 

Miner ... III :1: III 
' Manager of the Metropolitan Collierv 

10380-10464 
10465-10830 
16164-16240 

26376-26440 

2870.5-28984 
29145-29149 
2676 7-2 7344 
277 13-2 864 5 
28986-29144 

2915 1-2 9526 
30708, 

307 22-30752 
2698-3451 

345 2-3 4 66 

3 473-4143 
8569-8861 
901 2-923 1 

16811-17408 
17110-177 12 
27346-27712 
2$646--28704 



In the conduct of the Ilnquiry it was arranged that Mr. Lysaght should 
call his evidence first, that Mr. Bruce Smith should follow, then Mr. WTade,  and 
lastly the Commission; with the understanding that, if necessary, any witnesses could 
be called out of the prescribed order by any party, and that all fair latitude and 
elasticity with regard to calling witnesses in contradiction, or in reply, would be 
allowed. 

Mr. Lysght opened his case by submitting to the Commissioii a number 
cf ilecommendations mode by the Illawarra Colliery Employers' Association ; and, 
at a later stage, lie supplemented these Recommendations by others from the Mining 
Employees at Newcastle and Lithgow. Re then f)roceeed to call officials of the 
various Associations, and working miners, to give evidence in support of these 
Recommendations. With respect to the Disaster itself Mr. ILysaght called evidence 
of miners ; some of whom supported the theory endorsed by the Coroner's Jury, viz 
that it was caused by the ignition and explosion of fire-damn at the face of No. 1 
Right Back heading ; while others advanced theories fixing the seat of the disaster 
variously at about Aitken's Working iPlace, Morris' Working P1ac', and elsewhere 
but these theories were not supported by any evidence of weight. 31r. Lysaght 
also endeavoured to prove that the ofticers of the mine had been negligent, in the 
performance of their duties in that the standing  places (places in which no work 
was being done) at the face (the extreme Northern end) of the No. I. Right Back 
and Front headings had not been examined for lire-damp, and that, if the accident 
was caused by the ignition of gas  in the Back heading, this neglect directly con-
tributed to the disaster. At a later stage, when the weight of the evidence pointed 
to the Junction of the 4th Right Rope Road with No. 1 Bight Main Level as the 
seat of the explosion, Mr. Lysaght directed his effoits to prOve that the Management 
contributed to the areident by their neglect to make weekly examinations at the 
edge of the 35-acre goaf on the 4th Right 11ope Road as prescribed by Special 
Rule iO. 

Mv. Bruce Smith called only Mr. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal 
Mines ; who first expressed his opinion upon the recommendations of the miners, 
and then proceeded to detail his observations, made on a number of inspections, as 
to the evidences of the force of the explosion',and the directions in which the force 
operated, as deduced from those evidences. Mr. Atkinson produced a plan on which 
were marked (a) the places where the various men in the mine at the time of the 
disaster were working, (b) the places where victims were found by the rescue 
paities, (c) the ventilating currents, and (ci) the directions of forces, shown by 
arrows. He also piocltceci a plan and two sections, prepared1 under •lis direction, of 
that part of the No. 1 Right Main Level Bol:e Road between the 3rd Left Lope 
Road and the 6th Cut_f lirough from the face. On these plans, Mr. Cambage, Chief 
Mining Surveyor, and his assistants, who had spent four days in the mine gathering 
the information, had depicted graphically the general indications of the force of 
the explosion—overturned, skips, bodies of men and horses, rails torn up, stoppirigs 
blown out of cut-thiroughis, telephone wires broken and twisted, coal thrown from 
skips, &c., &c. At. the Coroner's Inquest., Mr. Atkinson had been divided in opinion 
between the No. 1 Pack ileading and the 4th Right Junction as the place where 
the disaster originated. He now stated, as the result of further examinations of the 
mine and a careful consideration of the plans, that lie believed the accident to have 
occurred through the ignition, by a naked light (Wheeler Morrison's), at the 
4th Left Junction, of a body of gas wluih issued from the 4th Right Road ; and 
that this body of gas had been driven from the higher portions- of the 35-acre goaf 
by a fall of the roof there. 

Mr. Wade called the evidence, on behalf of the Mount Keinbia Company, 
of a number of the mine officials and Managers of other Collieries; who gave 
evidence in opposition to tle theory that the disaster was caused by the ignition and 
explosion of gas, and advanced various theories by which they considered the 
disaster could be accounted for ithout such an explosion. 

Mr. Sellers (Manager, South Buihi awl T3cllambi Collieries) advanced the 
theory that, assuming that 44 yar ds square of the roof of the 35-acre goaf at the 
end of the 4th Right fell in half a second, the depth of fall. being 4 feet 6 inches, 
the air beneath would be driven out through flue 4th Right (an opening 
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12 feet x 6 feet) at a velocity of about 700 miles per hour, even after allowance was 
made for the escape of 50 per cent, of the air into the surrounding goal : that thus 
the air would be so compressed that, at the opening to the 'ith Right, there would 
be a pressure of 35 lbs. per square inch, which would give all increase of 
temperature of 228 degrees, winch, added to the temperature of the air at starting, 
70 degrees (ftc assumed temperature of the strata), would misc the temperature of 
the blast to 29S degrees, and that this temperature would he more than sufficient to 
cause tile ignition, without gas or flame, of the coal-dust which would be raised by 
thic fall and the blast, as Professor Bedson had—it was contended—shown, by his 
experiments, that coal-dust would ignite at a temperature of 291 degrees. 

33. Mc. McGeaclne (\fanager of West Walisend Colliery) was of opinion 
that a fall of roof in the 35-acre goal drove out a blast of Iriwi, which, separating 
at the junction of the liii flight with the No. 1 Main Level, travelled OUtl)Ve and 
inhye, and c mused all the damage found in the No. 1 ROa(l. rilhie  portion of the
blast which went inhyc was compressed against the face, and became heated by the
compression ; tints causing the partial coking of dust noticed there. and the singeing 
of the mcii upon whom signs of heat were found. 

35x. Mr. Barr (Manager Cu-operative Colliery, Newcastle) submitted the 
theory that the air forced omit of the 401 iliglit divided when it reached the Main 
Level, on",  portion going outlue and time other inbye : the latter volume of air 
j)rocccded at such a terrific pace that it overturned skips, blew tubs off their wheels, 
and wheels oft their axles ; and, as the skips were blown along, the steel clips by 
which they were attached to the lmauIae rope were dragged along the rope at such 
a rate that time friction produced fire like flashes of electricity. The air, on reaclnng 
the face, was heated by compression to such all extent that, though no gas was 
presemit, .in explosion of air, " oxygen," took place when it rebounded, and there 
was a little flame. This theory the Commission at once rejected as absurd. 

30. Mr. J. C. Jones (Manager, Mount Keira Colliery) thought the first cause 
of the accident was a fall in the 4th flight G-oaf, which, lie reckoned, would force 
out the air at the rate of 712 miles per hour (assuming a quarter of all acre fell 
5 feet in 1 second). This blast of air, lie thought, went straight oitbve towards the 
Main .funnel Mouth, causing the destruction found on the way. lIe did not think 
it would go all the way, thou-11 there was no doubt that some force had gone right 
to time 'ritnnel Mouth ; but what that additional force was lie would not like to say. 
Probably that would be caused by a dust explosion, though how the dust was ignited 
lie could not explain. The coal-&tist raised by time blast would be " Pretty well 
heated " by time compressed air, and would be ignited in some way, either by the rails 
or skip wheels striking fire or by an electric spark from the telephone wires. Tie had 
seen a statement in Mr. Stokes' evidence before the 1S92 (Fag.) Royal Commission 
on Colliery Explosions that coal-dust begins to distil at a temperature of 210 degrees; 
so that gas may have been given off from time dust raised by time wind-blast, and 
ignitc(l by a spark. Later, in cross-examination, Mr. Jones said lie thought that 
gas and coal-dust issued from the 4th Right a few seconds after the blast of air ; also 
that the vacuum which lie thought would be caused by the blast allowed the escape 
of occluded gas from the seam inbyc, and that this gas might have been ignited at 
some nrtked light. 

37. Dr. Robertson (Consulting Engineer to the Mount Kembla Coal Company) 
stated that lie had had some plaiis prepared by Mr. Warlmrton, the Surveyor at the 
Miüe, showing time indications and directions of forces (1) in the No. 1 Right between 
time 4th Right and the SLIt Right, () in the No. 1 flight.bet\veen the 2nd and 4th 
Right, and (3) in the No. 1 Bight Front and Back headings from the 5th Right to 
the face, together with the workings to the left, or westward, of the No. 1 Right as 
far as Aunesley and James' Pillar (o. S5 Woiking place on plan of Mine). He 
did not think the evidences of force lie saw in the Mine could be accounted for by 
time theory of all explosion of gas ; but it appeared to him that all the appearances 
could be reconciled by the theory that a great wind-blast was forced out by a fall in 
time 35-acre goal at tiie end of the 4th Right ; and that the damage was (lone by 
percussioii throughout time mine without any explosion : in fact, there were prac-
tically no evidences of flame or  heat. in cross-examination he admitted that 
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carbon monoxide playedT a part in the after effects of the wind-blast ; and carbon-
monoxide could only be produced by incomplete combustion of coal, or, rather, in 
this case, of coal-dust. The heat produced by the compression of the air was, lie 
believed, so great that, without flame, it caused the coal-dust to distil, lie thought 
the velocity of the air out cf the 4th Right would be 700 miles per hour. This 
calculation was made from data paitial1y assumed—that an area of roof 41 yards 
square fell in a block in a little under half a second from a height of 6 feet : and 
that 50 per cent. of the air beneath the falling roof escaped into the surroinding 
goaf or into the space from which the fall conic. r1  lie damage done at a great 
distance from the 4th Right, as, inte.,  alia, in the overturning of skips, &c., at 
Price's Flat (at the extreme west end of the 4th Left Rope Road, 32 chains away 
by the road), could not have been caused by the direct force of the wind-blast; but 
lie considered that would be caused by the percussion produced by the fall, which 
would operate at long distances though there would be no direct forcible motion of 
the air. lie did not see any smoke in the mine himself ; but the smoke of which 
witnesses had spoken would be caused by the distillation of the dust. He could 
not account for the heat observed by several witnesses in the mine shortly after the 
disaster except by the derangement of the ventilation. 

3. Mr. Rogers (Manager of Mount Keml)la Colliery) said the only theory 
lie had as to the cause of the disaster was that a fall in the 4th Right Goaf drove out 
a big blast of air. lie thought coal-dust played a part in the disaster; it might have 
been heated by the c Jmprcssion of the air; but lie bad seen no indication of flame 
in the mine. 

Mr. W. humble (Inspector of Collieries), called by the Commission, 
sttted that lie had made several examinations of the mine within a few days after 
the disaster: he supported Mr. Atkinson's theory that a fall in the 4th Right Goaf 
drove out gas which had accumulated there, and that the ignition of this gas and of 
coal-dust caused the disaster; but lie differed from Mr. Atkinson in his opinion as 
to where the gas was ignited. lie thought it was probable that the gas ignited at a 
naked light somewhere on the No. 1 Travelling Road (parallel with the No. 1 Main 
Level), and then the light flashed into the main body of the gas, causing the explosion 
pl'oper at about the junction of the 4th Right with the Main Level. In his opinion 
the light at which the gas was ignited was that of T. Purcell (whose body was found 
in the Travelling Road some distance-23 chains south—from the 4th Right), and 
that the ignition took place as Purcell passed down the Travelling Roid across the 
4th Right. 

Mr. T. Parton (Mining Engineer), called by the Commission, stated that 
he had inspected the mine after the accident, and had heard the evidence given at 
the Inquiry as to the " wind-blast theory'' ; but his opinion was that there was a fall 
in the 4th Right Goaf, which forced out gas onto the nearest lights, and an 
explosion followed, which, igniting the coal dust, would exhibit the evidences of 
force seen in the mine. 

After the evidence of the experts called by Mr. Wade had been heard, 
Mr. Atkinson was re-examined, and stated that lie could not agree with the theory 
that the disaster was caused by a wind-blast without the ignition of gas, and that he 
saw no reason to alter the opinion lie had previously expressed. 

Consideration of the Evidence as to \Vhere the Disaster 
Originated and its Cause. 

In their efforts to ascertain the cause of the accident the Commission 
were confronted with two important questions ; 1st—At what part of the mine did 
the force originate which caused the disaster? 2nd—What was the nature of that 
force? 

The Commission have had little difficulty in arriving at a conclusion on. 
the first question, for the evidence of the various witnesses was almost unanimous 
(and that of the experts quite unanimous) in indicating the point where the 4th 
Right iope Road joips the No. 1 Right Main Level as about the centre from which. 

the 



	

xxv 

the principal force of the disaster was exerted.. The plans and sections prepared by 
Messrs. Cambage and Warburton, showing the nature of the damage done in the 
No. 1 Right Main Level and other roads, together with the evidence of the wit-
nesses, prove that almost all the damage between the 4th Right and the Tunnel 
Mouth was caused by a force exerted oiithve (i.e., towards the Tunnel Mouth), and 
that the damage between tlie4thi Right and the 5th Right was caused by a force 
exerted in the opposite direction, irihve. It is true that there are a few apparent 
evidences of force having been exerted in each case in directions which. clash with 
this conclusion ; but this fact is capable of explanation, and really supports the 
conclusion at which the Commission have arrived as to the nature of the accident, 
as will be shown later. 

44. In seeking an answer to the second question, viz., what was the nature 
of the force which radiated from the 4th. Right, the Commission have had a some-
what more difficult task. Mr. Lysaght's witnesses contended that the disaster was 
caused by an epiosion of fire-damp (though they did not all place its centre at the 
4th Right) ; Mr. Atkinson, the Chief Inspector of Coal Mines, called by Mr. Bruce 
Smith, believed that it was an explosion of fire-damp ; but Mr. Wade's witnesses 
were unanimously of opinion that the sole initial cause was a terrific wind-blast, 
travelling at the rate of about 700 miles per hour ; though some of them thought 
that, before the force of the blast diminished—as it necessarily would quickly 
diminish—its work was taken up and carried on by explosions of coal-dust, and (as 
put by Mr. J. C. Jones) of fire-damp also. 

43. Though they have given the matter careful consideration, the Commission 
cannot see any justification for accepting what may be called the "wind-blast" 
theory. This theory depends on too mauy assumptions, some of which are quite 
untenable. It was assumed that an area of roof 41 yards square fell in a body from 
a height of 4 feet 6 inches above the floor ; that the time of falling was about half 
a second (the rate at which it would fall in vacuo) ; and that it would drive out half 
of the air beneath it through an opening 12 feet x 6 feet. Allowance does not appeal' 
to have been made for the fact that the time of fall would be prolonged by the 
resistance of the air beneath, which would be enormous if the air were to be—ex 
hypothiesi—coinpressecl to such an extent as to raise its pressuie 1rom—say-14 to 
35 lbs. per square inch ; in fact, the calculation could only be correct if the height 
of the falling mass were SO great that the psm'e on the air below, due to its fall 
(assumed for the sake of argument to be rightly calculated as a resistance varying in 
half a second from 14 to 35 lbs. per square inch) were infinitesimal in comparison 
with the weight of rock the motion of which such pressure tended to retard : tbc 
weight would have to be an infinite multiple of the resistance in order to reduce its 
retarding effect to zero; and yet a resistance of only 28 lbs. per square inch would 
balance a mass of rock of at least 246 feet in height. This aspect of the case will be 
found touched upon later, when the question of gas, as a factor in the catastrophe, 
is considered. The hypothesis, even if it be possible, is certainly grossly improbable—
so improbable, indeed, that, even if there appeared no other possible explanation, 
the Commission would have to conclude that the catastrophe was not reasonably 
explicable. 

46. The Commission, having come to this conclusion, proceeded to examine 
the other theories brought forward, in each of which it was assumed that the accident 
initiated in the ignition of fire-damp. here the Commission were brought face fc 
face with a very important question, viz., Is fire-damp given off in Mount Kembla 
Mine P The concensus of opinion, both of officials and miners, before the accident, 
appears to have been that Mount Kembla Colliery was free from fire-damp. Appar-
ently the last occasion on which the discovery of fire-damp in the mine was officially 
reported was in 1891 (when a man named Gallagher was severely burnt through the 
ignition of a quantity of gas which entered his working place from a cavity—an old 
working place—into which his pick had penetrated); so that there was evidently some 
reason for the feeling of entire security pervading both mmagement and men. The 
mere fact, however, that gas was not reported does not necessarily prove that it was 
not there; for the ventilation of the mine, since the construction of the new furnace 
and upcast shaft, has been so goodi that small quantities of gas, even though they may 
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have been given off constantly, would be at once diluted, rendered harmless, and 
carried off to the outer air; and such small quantities could, under normal 
conditions, hardly be detected with the safety-lamp ordinarily used in testing, though 
they might possibly be found by means of the hydrogen lamp. The only chance of 
such gas being present in dangerous quantities would be, possibly, in an abandoned 
working not properly swept by the ventilating current, or in a goaf (or worked out 
portion of the mine) the roof of which had fallen, and so prevented the free circulation 
of air. In the latter case it would be very unlikely that the presence of fire-damp 
could be disgovered; for it would be, in most cases, impossible for any person to 
cross the fallen stone a sufficient distance to reach the higher parts of the flssues, to 
which the gas would naturally ascend, its specific gravity being considerably less 
than that of air. 

47. Between the date of the. burning of Gallagher (1S91) and the date of the 
disaster, the only evidence of the occurrence of gas in the mine of which there is 
any record is found in the proceedings of the Royal Commission of 1895 on the Coal 
Mines Regulation Bill. Mr. Ronaidson (then Manager of Mount Kembla Mine), on 
the 1st of October, 1895, gave the following evidence :- 

5231. Q. Dces the mine give off any fin-damp? A. Very rarely, in cracks. 
526-1. Q. It does give off a little? A. Ies, from fissures, rarely. 
5200. Q. It either gives it off or does not give it off? A. It gives it off rarcly 
5207. Q. In what section of the mine is this P A. All sections. 

4. After the disaster occurred, however, quite a number of persons who 
either were or had been working in the mine came forward and gave evidence of 
having seen gas ignited at their lights (vliicli were naked) when at work. The 
evidence of these witnesses is summarised below 

B. Meurant, Miner, (p. 3, Inquest) stated that lie had, during the 21 months 
that lie had worked in the mine, heard " blowers of gas " (i.e., gas hissing 
as it issued from coal) ; but liehad never been able to locate them with his 
lamp. lIe did not report the fact to anybody (though bound by law to do 
so). His only experience had been in two bords in the shaft district. 

W. Broadlicad, Miner, (pp. 6 and 8, Inquest) said lie had found gas in the mine 
many limes when lie had fired shots, both in No. 1 District and the Shaft 
District, lie did not report it, as the quantity was not sufficient to be 
worth talking about. lie knew lie ought to report it.. 

The following day Broadhead was again questioned regarding this 
and then be said lie did report the finding of gas, when it was severe," to 
David Evans, one of the Deputies; but lie never saw more than the air 
would put out (i.e., dilute to such an extent as to render it harmless), lie 
also stated that lie had reported gas to Deputy Dungey (who was one of 
the victims of the disaster) the quarter before last (five or • six months 
before the disaster) ; that, all that time, William Hopkins was his mate; 
and that., about nine months before the disaster, lie had reported the 
occurrence of gas to Mr. Nelson, Under Manager (killed in the disaster). 
When lie reported the gas to Evans, he said, Evans wrote on a shovel, with 
chalk, " Fire do not go past this ; put your light out ; take your coat and 
go in and fan the place well out." lie had also reported to Mr. Rogers 
that a certain place was "very gassified." When lie saw gas after firing 
shots, the flash was red. Later, in cross-examination, lie said lie never 
went to Mr. Rogers himself and complained about the presence of gas; 
Iliet Mr. Nelson was a strict and careful n-ian, who always gave special 
attention to the safety of the miners; that the miners could trust iDungey 
to look after their interests ; arid that Mr. Rogers is a man who shows 
every care for the safety of the miners. 

William Hopkins, Miner, stated (p.  55, Inquest) that lie never saw a sign of 
In 

while working in the Shaft District with Broadheacl ; nor did lie ever 
hear Broadhiead make a complaint to Dungey, or any oilier fireman,_ about 
gas being in the mine. 

David 



David Evans, Deputy at built Kembla, stated (p. 31 Inquest) that Broadliead 
did not report the finding of gas to him; and he did not write on a shovel 
as stated by Broadhead. lie was sure there had not been a report of gas 
for the past five years; but he had come across gas 11, 12, or 13, years ago, 
when the old furnace was in use ; and had found some in several places 
ln'fore the five years ; when lie found the gas, lie stated, lie reported it to 
Mr. Rogers, who was then Under Manager; and also reported it in a book. 

Mr. W. Rogers, the Manager of the Mine, stated (pp. 35, 36, and 40, Inquest) 
that he did not know that gas was constantly exuding from the coal in 

m Kebla, even in small quantities ; thou gli lie knew gas was found in the 
mine years ago ; but he knew there was no gas during the last ten years, 
because the Deputies would have reported it if there had been. ile did 
not remember Evans reporting-  gas to him, as stated by Evans, lie did 
not admit that, as stated by Mr. lionaidson, gas was given off in all 
sections of the mine, though rarely. U e would swear there had been no 

wledge during the last five years, i.e., since gas in Kembla to his kno  
the new air-shaft was constructed ; since that shaft was put in he did not 
consider that there was any gas at all in. the mine. lie knew that it was a 
seaiu that gave off gas; but he relied on the superior ventilation and on 
the fact that gas was not found. 

W. Moran, Miner, stated (pp. 47-48, Inquest) that, when Mr. Ronal.dson was 
Manager of the Mine, and Mr. Rogers was Under Manager (seven or 
eight years l)etore), on one occasion when lie went into work, gas lit at his 
flare-lamp, and the flame rolled round and round for about 15 or 20 yards 
out of the heading and then hack again ; and he dropped down to save 
himself from being burnt (the gas was apparently lying along the roof, as 
would be natuial). lie reported the fact to Evans. it was after the 
construction of the present ventilating shaft. This was in the cinder 
heading. his hair was burnt a bit. When working in the No. 1 District 
lie did not see any fire-damp to speak of ; but at times lie would meet a 
"blower." That was over two years ago. He thought lie had told 
Mr. Nelson about the " blowers." In the No. I lie never had any lighting 
up like that lie spoke of in the cinder heading ; it "just burnt like a 
candle." 

M. Quinn, Miner. staftd (pp. 51, 52, Inquesl) that one day, about eight years 
ago, when Mr. Rogers was Under Manager, in had lit a jet of gas in 
front of Mr. Rogers in a heading in the No. 1 District; he had lit the gas 
several times when by himself ; lie told Nelson (then Deputy) there was 
gas in the Place;  gas could be seen in any bord; about seven or eight 
months ago (say, in January, 1902) lie saw gas oozing out of the face into 
the bord in the 5th Right (No. 1 District), and on several occasions set fire 
to gas in that place ; lie drew Deputy Dungey's attention to it. He couid 
find gas there any time, after a shot which had not broken down the coal, 
in cracks. He reported gas when lie thought it was dangerous. The next 
day, being recalled, Quinn stated that lie did not speak to anybody when 
he found the gas in the 5th Right. lie was talking to everybody about 
the gas, it was such a common thing ; it was common talk at Mount 
Keinhia for about nine years. When lie reported the gas to the Under 
Manager, he (\ir. Rogers) took the proper precautions. He never saw any 
other men light gas ; but lie expected they would do as he did ; setting 
fire to the gas (to clear it away) was an idea of his own. (See also Qs. 
1577-1592, Commission). 

Examined before the Commission, Quinn stated that eleven years 
ago a man named Robinson had his leard singed by gas which was lit at 
the face. It was subsequent to the erection of the present furnace (Qs. 
1411-1414). 

G. Eamsev, Miner, stated (p.  54, Inquest) that about twelve months ago, when. 
working with O'Sullivan, lie saw gas in the 4t1i Left (No. 1 District) ; lie 
told Deputy Nelson. 



O'Sullivan, exrniner, stated that about 11 o'clock one day in November or 
December, 1900, or 1901, lie was working in the 4th Left off No. 1 Right, 
when Ramsey put his -light up to the face to look at it, and some gas lit 
Ramsey reported it to Mr. Nelson. (Pars. 1313-1327, 1346, 1352, 1368, 
1372, Commission.). lie had two or three times seen men put a light to 
the face after firing shots, and gas had lit and burnt for a few seconds. 
(Pars. 1329, 1334, 1339, 1361, 136€). 

Stafford, Miner, stated (p.  55, Inqncst.) that he had worked in the 3rd Right, 
off No. 1 Right, and, while there, three and a half years ago, one night when 
lie and his brother were going in to the face, gas lit from their lamps ; they 
went out and told Deputy iDungey. He had worked in the 4t1i Right and 4th 
Left, but never found gas in any portion of the mine except the 3rd Right. 

C. Smith, Miner, stated (Qs. 1893-1906-2276, Commission) that, about six 
months before the disaster, he was working in No. 44 in the Shaft District, 
and one day, after firing a shot, his mate, Prior, went back, and some gas 
lit up. lie told Daputy Evans about it. About a week later gas lit again 
in the same place, when he himself went back after firing a shot; lie 
reported this also to Evans. He had also heard Jackson, in the next 
1)ord, No. 39, report to Evans the lighting of gas. 

J. Sitcock, Miner, stated (Qs. 2710-2728, 3137-3148, 3211-3249, Commission) 
that lie had seen small flashes of gas after powder shots twice (about 
January, 1902). He did not report the gas. lie did not think there was 
a sufficient quantity to be dangerous. The mine was talked of as a non-
gassy mine. The real reason he did not report gas  was that he was afraid 
to do so; if a man were to report everything lie saw, lie would never work 
again in his life. 

J. Sells, Miner, stated (Qs. 4959-4991, 5181-5213, 5258-5262, Commission) 
that, about seven or eight months before the disaster, lie was working a 
headiimg running towards Powell's Flat., and there was gas there ; after 
firing  shots, his mate, Allen, lit gas on numerous occasions. While working 
there, Deputy Evans came in, and Allen drew Evans' attention to a singing 
noise where water was oozing from the coal, and Evans said it was gas. 
Evans was a good Deputy. 

J. McLeocl, Miner, stated (Qs. 7629-799, 7739-7768, 7819-7900, Commission) 
that during the nine months before the disaster he worked in the Shaft 
District in a heading towards Powell's Flat, near where Maunders and 
Williams were working. After Maunders and Williams had fired a shot, 
they went to see what work the shot had done, and gas lit. He also saw 
something similar in the No. 1 District in a place off Price's Flat, No. 72 
on plan, about a month before the disaster: the gas lit after firing a shot. 
lie did not report it: he had heard of a rule which required the men to 
report : he had a copy of the special rules. 

T. Muir, Miner, stated (Qs. 10245-10861, 10870-3, 10888-10912, Commission) 
that lie had often seen gas light after powder shots, but not under any 
other circumstances. lIe had worked with Quinn; but never saw Quinn 
light gas. 

T. Johnson, Miner, stated (Qs. 11061-11089, 11107-11111, Commission) that, 
when working in No. 4 Right, Shaft District, twelve years ago, gas lit at 
his flare lamp ; lie saw the same kind of thing once in the 4th Left or the 
2nd Left off No. 1 Right Main Level some years ago. He had seen his 
mate light "powder-smoke " after shots. When he found gas in No. 4, he 
reported it to Mr. Rogers, then Under-manager, who ordered himself and 
his mate to use safety-lamps to finish the work with. 

J. Heron, ex-muirier, stated (Qs. 1 2077-1 2136, Commission) that he had twice 
seen gas lit in the working-places off the 4th Left (twenty to twenty-three 
months before the disaster): lie threw doim n his hat, to which his flare-
lamp was attached, on the floor, and some gas lit. i-Ic did not report that. 
About nine or ten months before the disaster  lie met Deputy Dun gey going 

down. 



(Town No. 1 Right Main Level, where it was rising (northern end), about 
10) vai cis from the face ; and Dungey said to him " If you had been here 
before in, you would have got your head blown off; she was standing full 
of gas for 10 or 15 yards back; the brattice was all down." Between 
seventeen and eighteen years ago lie (Heron) lit gas in " Old No. 4 " after 
a powder shot. 1-Ic did not report it. 

C. Biggers, Deputy at Mount Keinhia (Qs. 12272-122S2, 12513-7, 12562-12573, 
12604-1213, 12629, Commission), stated that, when a miner, lie had seen 
gas lit after shots—eight or nine years ago. lie thought it was fire-damp 
but they called it powder-smoke. Of late years lie did not think there 
was any. 1-Ic had heard a hissing sound ; but did, not know whether it 
was water or gas; lie could not find it with a light, and took it for granted 
that it was water. 

P. J. Brownlee, Cheek Weighiman, ex-miner, stated (Qs. 29719-29730, 
Commission) that, ten or twelve years ago, lie lit gas in No. 4 Right in 
Shaft District when lie first went in in the morning, and got the hair burnt 
off his head. He reported it to Deputy Evans. 

Mr. W. Rogers, Manager, Mount Kembla Mine, whose evidence at the Inquest 
on this point is summarised above, stated to the Commission (Qs. 25971-
25997, 26212-4, 26625-6, 26701-9, Commission) that, about two years 
before the Gallagher case, lie saw a little gas in the 4th Left ; but since 
that case lie never knew of gas being given off in Mount Kembla, in any 
quantity. 1-Ic would not say that the mine gave off no gas ; lie thought it 
did, a little. TIe denied that Quinn lit gas in his preenee; and that Evans 
reported fire-damp to him (Qs. 25971-23975). 

Mr. G. Leitehi (Manager of Stanford. Merthyr Colliery), cx Under-manager of 
Mount Kembla, stated (Qs. 22329-2240, 22473-6, 22545-22562, 22568- 
22376, 22599, Commission) that lie had seen" powder-smoke" lit after a shot; 
but had never seen fire-damp in the mine, nor had it been reported to him. 
When lie heard of the accident, lie did not believe Kembla gave off gas. 

ii\Ir. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines, stated (pp. 56, 57, Inquest) 
that, on the 2nd of August, 1902, (two days after the disaster) lie made an 
inspection of the mine, in company with Mr. McGeachie

'
who carried a 

hydrogen lamp; in No. 79 working-place they found 1 per cent. of fire-
damp; in the next place - per cent.; in No. 89 they found 1 per cent. 
On the 4th of August another inspection was made by a party; and in 
No. 82 they found - per cent.: (both tests with hydrogen lamp). In the 
No. 1 Main Heading, l)et\veen the jig and the face, gas was found with 
safety-lamp ; in Morris' working-place, No. 89, with the hydrogen lamp, 
1-- per cent. was found. 

Mr. Atkinson, when examined berore the Commission, stated (Qs. 12842-12854, 
Commission) that, on the 4th of August, some thousands of feet of gas 
which would explode in a safety-lamp were discovered in No. 1 Main 
ileadiri g. 

Mr. W. Humble, Inspector of Coal Mines, who accompanied Mr. Atkinson in 
his inspections, corroborated (Qs. 26792-8, 26808, 26822-26897, 26928-
26966, Commission) the Chief Inspector's evidence as to the finding of 
fire-damp after the disaster; at this time the ventilation was all disarranged. 
Speaking of the 4th of August, lie stated that in No. 1 Back Heading, 
opposite the Northernmost cut-through, lie and Mr. Littlejohn, who had 
separated from the rest of the party, found their safety-lamps full of 
fire-damp. They immediately retreated to the good air. They then 
gradually returned towards the face, testing with safety-lamps, till they 
again found the gas, at a pomt 4 yards on the outbye (South) side of the 
last cut-through. As the hicadiiig was rising they concluded that the gas 
extended to the face, through the cut-through, and to the face of the back 
Iiea(hlng also, whicli would give a volume of inflammal)le mixture of 10,000 
cubic feet. They called the attcntlon. of the rest of the party to this; they 



 

then went on with the inspection. Later, on again joining the party, 
Mr. humble stated, he and 1\1i. MeG cache tested for gas in the 4th Right 
at the Goaf edge arci found 1 per cent. with the hydrogen flame. (This is 
(lemed by Mr. McGeachie). On the 8th of August, he stated, lie tested at 
4th Right Goaf edge with Mr. D. A. W. Robertson, and found I per cent.; 
but an exai mation of Mr. Humble's note-book discloses that the note he 
made on this occasion was that - per cent. was found. Mr. Robertson's 
recollection of the inspection ivferred to was that no gas was found ; and 
lie has since shown to the Commission his note, made at the time, which 
reads as follows—" No gas in hydrogen." 

It will be seen that nearly all the evidence of miners, above quoted, refers 
to the ignition of gas after powder shots—referring, it would seem, in all cases, to 
shots that have split, but have not thrown, the coal ; and there is a certain amount 
of doubt as to whether this gis was fire-damp, or whether it may not have been a 
mixture of carbon monoxide and other inflammable gases prohice:l by imperfect 
o unbustion of gunpowder. The remainder of the miners' evidence, however, taken 
in conjunction ivith that of Mr. Atkinson and Mr. Humble, formed a body of 
testimony going far to prove the existenco of fire-damp. 'ihe Commission, however, 
decided. to make tests themselves with a hydrogen lamp, as already mentioned ; uith 
the result that fire-damp was found to be given off by the coal in several widely 
distant parts of the mine; but in such a very small proportion f1ia it is, under 
present circumstances, easily dealt with by the existing efficient ventilation. This 
result, taken in conjunction with the evidence quoted, leads the Commission 
irresistibly to the conclusion that, right through, from the opening of the mine to 
the present date, it has i)een ca1)ahle of producing enough fire-damp to warrant the 
assumption that, given favourable conditions for accumulation, a dangerous collection 
might be found in almost an y part of the workings. Tie accumulation that was 
found at the end of No. 1 Bight Front and. Back Head ngs after the explosion, and, 
before the proper ventilation of the mine had been re-established, may possibly be 
explained away by supposing that the gas was somehow distilled, and left unburnt, 
by the heat generated in the disaster itself, as was suggested by some of the witnesses 
called by Mr. Wade on behalf of the Mount Kembla Coal Company ; but the 
Commission are not inclined to accept what appeals to theni to be so far-fetched and 
improbable a theory. 

Having arrived at the conclusion that fire-damp was being continuously 
given off in the mine, the Commission proceeded to consider the evidence bearing 
upon the effects of the accident, in order to ascertain, if possible, whether it was or 
was not primarily caused by an explosion of gas. The history of similar occurrences 
elsewhere goes to show that, after the ma.Iority  of gas explosions, signs of great heat 
and of flame are found, in the shape of coked or cindered coal-dust, charred or burnt 
timber, the burning or blistering of tile skin of miners, and the singeing of their 
hair. On behalf of the Mount Kembla Company it was contended that none of these 
evidences were present to such an extent as to prove that flame had been an operating 
agent in the disaster: and, though marks only explicable by the presemscc of flame 
had been observed by witnesses, it was contended that these could have been produced 
by the comparatively moderate heat of the wind-blast ; that they could certainly 
have been caused without the p'eseimee of actual flame ; and that in the case of those 
who were injured, at the month of the main tunnel the blistering might have been 
due to the steam which escaped from the fractured steam pipe. As against this, the 
Commission have the opinions of many intelligent., though unprofessional, eye-
witnesses that the degree of burning or singeing which they noticed on the bodies 
of the victims could not have been caused except by flame, and the evidence of 
the medical gentlemen who examined the victims that a number of them were 
actually burnt by flame. The question was definitely settled, however, on the last 
day but one of the taking of oral evidence, when M. Lvsag'ht (who, when he closed 
his case, had not supposed that the occurrence of flame wonld for a moment be 
contested) called two witnesses who testified, and whose evidence the Commission 
had no reason to doubt., that they had seen a large volume of flame burst from the 
Main Tunnel NFouth when the disaster occurred ; and another witness who saw a 
tongue of flame shoot upwards from the old disuscd ventilating shaft to the Fast of 
the No. 1 Right Rope Road, with whicli it was in direct communication. Marks of 
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charring (said by witnesses called at this stage to have been caused by the flame that 
bur3t from the tunnel mouth) were plainly to ba seen on the lining-boards of 
the weigh-cabin, and were pointed out to, and examined by, the members of the 
Commission on the occasion of their last visit to the mine; and the Company's 
Officers, some of whom were present, did not dispute this fact. 

51. In addition to this direct evidence of visible flame seen by eye-witnesses 
to burst from the mine, there is strong presumptive evidence deduced from analyses 
made by Mr. ilamlet and Mr. Ming'aye. The samples analysed by Mr. ilamlet were 
two, one taken fron a prop ia the first line of cut-tliroughs off bord No. 87 (the 
third boyd to the west of No. 1 Right Main Heading), at "a, point about half way 
between the 4th Left 11ope Road and the last line of cut-t.hrougiis to the noitli, 
the other from the eastern rib of No. 1 Right Back Heading, lust  opposite the last 
cut-through connecting the two headings. Mr. Hamlet found a difficulty in 
analysing the samples sent to him, by reason of the smallness of the quantity. No 
satisfactory conclusion could be drawn from the difference in the percentage of 
volatile hydrocarbons in the samples and in. a sample of coal from the mine 
afterwards analysed by Mr. hamlet ; for the difference actually found (so far as it 
can be taken as a real difference due to distillation, and not a merely accidental 
variation) was only - 76 per cent. (2430 per cent.-2354 per cent.) (see Exhibit 
No. 17) ; but the microscopical examination of the three samples of dust led 
Mr. hamlet to the conclusion that they had been probably subjected to the direct 
action of flame, and that a temperature of at least 4000  Fahrenheit would be 
necessary to produce the effect found. 

51A. The evidence, however, of Mr. Mingaye (Q. 20376 ci seq.), Analyst and 
Assayer to the Department of Mines, is of much greater value, lie was supplied 
with twelve samples of coal-dust, in quantities sufficient to enable him to make 
satisIactory tests. The samples had been collected by Mr. Inspector Watson some 
short time after the accident the respective positions in which they were found are 
marked by numbers on the plan (Exhibit. No. 29) corresponding with those used by 
Mr. Mingaye in his report ; and, with one exception (No. 11—from the 4th Right 
Rope Road), they came from various points on the No. 1 Itiglit Main Engine Road. 
rhlakino. as lie does, on an apparently sound basis, the mean amount of volatile 
hydrocarbons contained in Mount Kembla coal as 23 per cent., Mr. Mingaye finds 
in the samples losses of their hydrocarbons, apparently due to distillation by beat, 
varying from '9 1 per cent. of the whole mass of a sample as it is presunied to have 
been constituted before distillation (or 409 per cent.. of the hydrocarbon originally 
contained in it.), up to 1296 per cent. or 3633 per cent., respectively the means of 
these two percentages of loss, faking the whole of the samples, being 5'i9 and 2343. 
From these facts, added to a miscroseopic examination, which shovecl clearly visible 
signs of coking, Mr. Mingaye unhesitatingly concluded that the particles had been 
subjected to flame at a temperature represented by a cherry-red heat, 7000  to 8000 
Fahrenheit. 

52.. Taking all this evidence into consideration, the Commission do not 
consider that there is any room for doubt that flame did play a part, and a very 
important part., in the disaster. 

53. But the question arises whether this flame was the result of the ignition of 
gas orof coal-dust., orof 1)0th in conjunction. In recent years it has been recognised that 
coal-dust has been a very important factor in Colliery explosions, and that by far the 
greater portion of the damage caused by explosions in mines where there was dust has 
been due to the ignition and explosion of the dust rather than to the expinsion of the 
fire-damp which was first lit. '1 lie occurrence of explosions in mines believed to be free 
from gas has even given rise to the suggestion that coal-dust alone may ignite at a 
naked light and cause a disaster ; and experiments have been made by scientists for the 
purpose of settling this question. The most notable of these were the experiments 
of Professor Bedson, who found that a mixture of coal-dust and air would ignite at 
a temperature of 291 degrees Fahrenheit.. This has been quoted by a niumber of 
Mr. WTade's  witnesses in support of the wind-blast theory; but they appear not to 
have given weight to the fact that., in his experiments, Professor Becison applied the 
heat gradually, so that there was time for fire-damp to be distilled from the very 
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fine dust (in the presence of air) which he was testing, before the actual ignition 
took place—and to this element of appreciable time, for the necessary condition 
precedent of complete chemical action, the Commission attach substanial weight 
whereas, at Mt. Kem1la (even if it be admitted—a conclusion which appears to the 
Commission wildly improbable— that the air was suddenly compressed to a tension 
of 35 lb. to the square inch, and that thus a temperature of over 291 degrees 
Fahrenheit was attained), the pressure would be at once reduced when the blast 
reached the Travelling Road, where there were two openings, and the heat resulting 
from compression would be immediately very greatly lowered by re-expansion; this 
reduction, continually increasing as the ejected air moved on into what would 
relatively be almost a vacuum, would find another outlet for further sudden relief 
at the junction of the 4th Right and the Main. Engine Rood: and, although a 
position inthe latter road about this junction was evidently the centre of force—the 
dead pdint of destruction—quite clearly the mixture of air and dust must have 
passed, and fallen well below, its maximum temperature before that position was 
reached by the blast; which, moreover, as a body advancing with—according to the 
hypotheses—enormous, if not incredible, speed, would, by reason of the acuteness of 
the N.E. angle of intersection of the two roads, ten ci to travel to the southward; on 
that side, therefore, and not on the north, of the junction, the compression would 
rather be sustained, and the consequent ignition, if such a thing could happen, 
would take place—and yet this it evidently did vot do. The Commission, therefore, 
do not see that there is any probability that there was, just before the disaster, any 
such excessive heat evolved as would, without contact of flame, cause inflammable 
gas to distil from the coal-dust and thereafter become ignited: so they are forced to 
the corichision that the initial cause of the disaster was the ignition of an inflammable 
mixture of fire-damp and air about the junction of the 4th Right Rope Road with 
the No. 1 Right Main Level. 

As to how this fire-damp could have been ignited, only two suggestions 
were advanced ; that of Mr. Atkinson being that it was lit at the 4th Left Junction, 
at the naked light carried by the wheeler found there after the disaster; while Mr. 
Humble was divided in opinion between Mr. Atkinson's theory and another suggested 
by himself ; which was that the ignition took place as T. Purcell passed across the 

way down the Travelling Road, and that the flame then flashed 4th Right on his  
through the 4th Right to the main body of gas in the Main Level. But Purcell's 
body was found in the Travelling Road some 23 chains south from the 4th Right 
and it seems highly improbable that, if ins light had been the source of ignition, Ie 
would not have been inj ured to such an extent as to render him incapable of walking, 
in the dark, and over a number of falls, so far from the scene of the explosion. Nr. 
Atkinson's theory, which seems very reasonable in the light of the ascertained facts, 
is that the lighter portion of the fire-damp was carried forward by the in-flowing 
air to the 4tli. Left Road, where it was lit at the naked light carried by Wheeler 
Morrison, as already stated. This the Commission believe to have been the case. 

The next point to be considered is: Where did the fire-damp come from? 
It could not have come from any point on the No. 1 Main Level itself, because that 
is a main intake air-way. Nor could it have come in the return air along the 
Travelling Road, because that was separated from the Main Level at the 4th Right 
by canvas doors; and, though these were blown down, that destruction of the division 
between intake and return would require a considerable force, and there is nothing 
that can be suggested which could have generated such a force on the Travelling 
Road. The fact, however, that canvas from the door or doors (the Commission are 
not quite clear as to the existence of more than one) across the 4th Right between 
the Main Level and the Travelling Road was found blown into a crack in the coal 
on the opposite (western) rib indicates that a force of some kind had probably 
operated in the 4th Right from east to west, whereas if these doors had been blown 
out of place by the explosion itself they would have been forced in towards the 
Travelling Road, from west to east. Again, the fact that the main force of the 
explosion radiated from about the 4th Right Junction proves that that is where the 
main body of explosive gas was at the time of the ignition; and these two indications, 
taken together, naturally suggest that the gas came out of the 4th Right. Exami-
nations which were made of the 4th Right showed that a large area of the roof of 
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the 35-acre waste had fallen ; this being the fall of roof referred to in T)Oth the gas and 
the wind-blast theories ; and, for the purposes of the latter theory, it was assumed that 
there was a fall of an area of roof 44 yards square ; but the evidence of Mr. Leitch 
(i\Ianager of Stanford Merthyr Colliery, West Maitland) who was Under Nanager of 
Mt. hembla lip to si ( weeks before the disaster, gives the area which remained to fall 
as much less titan this, being only 1,212 square yards (Qs. 2195-2252 Commission) 
which would be quite insitfficeit to develop the energy requisite to support the 
wind-blast theory. riI1ele  can be no doubt, however, that such a fall as did occur 
might drive out a volume of air with enough force, notwithstanding the lateral 
relief it would get on reaching the Travelling Itoaci, to blow out the canvas doors 
1)et.w-edn that road and the Main Level, and so drive any gas that may have been 
with it out on to the Main lLoyd ; but much doubt was expressed by Mr. % ado's 
witnesses as to the probability of there beiriany gas in the 4th BIght Goaf to be so 
driven out. Morrison, a Deputy in the mine, stated that, a week l)efOl'e the accident, 
lie went to the 4th Bight, to see if the roof had fallen, and found that there was a 
fall of about 2 feet 0 inches in thickness, lying on the floor. He was carrying a 
safety-lamp at the time ; and, if gas had been issuing from the goaf in any proportio 
over 2 per cent.. of the atmosphere, lie would probably have noticed its effect on his 
lamp ; but, as his attention was directed, principally, to the state of the roof and the 
nature of the fall, and lie does not appear to have had any thought in his mind of the 
possil)iliy of gas, or of any danger incidental to its preseilce, lie may even have 
huled to observe some slight indications that would otherwise have attracted his 
attention. In reply to the obvious argument that the gas, bemg lighter than the 
air, may have, even then, been present in the higher paits of the goaf, against the 
roof, without showing in the roadway, it was contended that, if gas had been there 
and if a fall would drive it out, then the fall whicli Moriison saw a week before the 
disaster would have (lone so. it was further pointed out that, the coal having been 
all extracted from the area, there was nothing in it to produce gas, the strata above 
and below being sandstone ; and, even while coal was being won, gas was never 
found in any of the 4th Right workings. As against this, Mr. Atkinson considered 
that there might be gas in the roof strata which would be released i)y a fall. This, 
however, lie advanced merely as a likely supposition, having no means of getting at 
the actual facts. In support of his assumption, however, there is the evidence of 
Mr. T. Parton (Consulting Mining Engineer) and Mr. W. humble, Inspector OX 

Mines. Mr. Parton recounts how, in the sinking of the shaft of the Sydney Harbour 
Colliery at Balmain, gas was found in fissures and cayities of the strata 1,000 feet 
above the seam of coal, in some cases under such pressure as to cause the floor to lift 
beneath the feet of the men engaged in sinking; but Mr. Parton did not agree with 
the theory that gas might exist in the strata above the seam at Mt. Kembla. 

Mr. ilumble, whose evidence has been summarised in paragraph 48 of. 
this report, deposed to the finding of 1 per cent. of fire-damp with the hydrogen 
lamp on the top of the fallen stone nt the entrance to the goat from the 4th Right, 
four days after the disaster, by Mr. AlcGoachie in his presence. Mr. MeG-cache 
(who had taken no notes) denies this. rIlhiel.e  is a conflict of evidence here—perhaps 
it is better to call it a conflict of recollection : but, taking into consideration all the 
circumstances (one of which is the important fact that Mr. Humble's notebook 
contains in entry of the finding of the gas), and bearing in mind that, at the time 
the discovery is said to have been made, the importance of the 4th Right in 
relation to the origin of the explosion had hardly begun to dawn upon the minds of 
the inspectors (so that the discovery in this particular place of so small a percentage 
would be likely to be regarded by them as a comparatively trifling incident), the 
Conrnjssjon have come to the conclusion that Mr. Humble's account is correct. 

heron's evidence, also, suggests that it is possible (though the Commission 
do not think it is probable) that gas may have been given off even from parts of the 
floor of the goaf, either from "false bottoms " or from the strata separating the two 
seams, in which the upward curvature known to be commonly induced in the course 
of taking out the pillars, by unequal distribution of weight, would naturally have 
caused cracking. It may also be inferred that a sphtting of the roof, due to down-
ward curvature, must precede every ordinary fall. Approximately, the lowest 
pressure of air (in changing barometrical conditions), at the elevation of the Mt. 
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Kembia working., may be put down at 11 lbs. to the square inch. In the absence 
of partial detachment of a stratnn of rock, allowing air pressure to operate ((7)OCe 

the stratum, this pressure would, by itself, hold up 12 3 feet .perpcndicular of the 
roof, even taking the specific gravity of the rock as high as 2 66 (2 tons to tle cubic 
yard). In additioa to this, there is the tensile strength of the material, capable of 
sustaining several feet more, as well as the lateral attachment. As long as the over-
weight remains absolutely rigid, no fall of less thickness than considerably over 
23 feet can begin; unless—a far-fetched suggestion—interlarninated hydrostatic 

pressure, or gas in a state of high compression (inconsistent with the no-gas 
hypothesis), were assumed to operate downwards against sustaining air pressure. It 
seems, therefore, almost self-evident that when, as commnoniv happens, and as had, 
shortly before the disaster, happened in this case, a fall of a few feet in thickness 
occurs, curvature (starting, it may be, even at the surface, where overhead air 
pressure oI)orates, or, perhaps clue to eneral rock expansion) must have begun, 
imperceptible though it may have been. This would almost certainly be accompanied, 
in such a slightly elastic nuss, by cracking ; and, as experience shows does acturlly 
always happen, the rock would fall, not in a solid sheet, but in what may be called 
a storm of hrolen stone. Shortly before the fall, and during its continuance, gas, 
if contained in the strata, would be extruded : the air, driven out ivith violence 
piopotioisate to the suddenness of the fall, would be, in part, forced upwards 
through the avalanche into the cavity above and would finally carry out with it a 
portion of this gas. So that, in the result, whatever gas had collected in the 
hollow roof left by the first fall would almost all be forced out, and would be 
supplemented by part of what was released by the second fall. Of course it is not 
known what tile thickness of the second fall was ; and the action of the management 
in sealing up the 4th itighit prevented the Commission from making a much-desired 
examinatmon. 

The above considerations, as well as suggesting sources of gas, go to 
show the ahsurthty of the hypothesis that the roof can have come down instami-
t mneously  in one solid sheet that drove out in a moment (half of it through the 4th 
Right Rape Road and half in other directions) the whole bulk of miderlying air, 
generating a blast compared wifh which the worst-known tornado would have been 
a trifle, and which, if it had taken piece, would have left the orifice through which 
it rushed a shapeless wreck. 

Therefore, considering all these circumstances (viz., that the seam 
generally gave off fire-damp; that the explosion was initiated by tiie ignition of 
that gas; that there was a large fall of the roof of the 4th Right 0-oaf; that this 
fall did force out a blast of air with sufficient force to blow out the canvas door or 
doors between the back and front headings ; that the centre of the explosion was in 
lust such a positionas would be reached by gas if that gas were forced out with tile 
blast of air into the Main heading through the 4th Right); and considering the 
expert evidence of Mr. Atkinson, together with the actual finding of gas in the 0-oaf 
by Mr. 1-lumble after the explosion; and the fact that the Commission themselves 
found the Mount Kembia seam generally to be giving off gas; th e Commission 
have come to the conclusion that it is reasonable to assumue that the' fire-damp which 
was the primnary cause of the disaster came from time $5-acre waste, though of this 
there is no positive proof. 

(JO. Tile fact, however, that gas was never before found in the 4t1i flight 
Workings, or in the 0-oaf after the workings were completed, seems to indicate 
that there could not have been a very large volume of gas there to be driven out 
and it is almost certain that the explosion of such a volume as the Commission 
(teem it reasonable to stippoe was driven out could neither have caused all 
the exlubitions of force seen in the mine, nor have operated over so wide 
an area as was affected. This, at first sight, would seem to be a difficulty 
in the way of the conclusions at wimich the Commisssion have, so far , 
arrived. Another circumstance which would also appear to be difficult to reconcile 
with the Coinmission's conclusions is the fact that, though, as a generat rule, time 
indications shmomvcd the force of the explosion to have operated from the 4tlm Right, 
outhye to the tunnel mouth an:l from the 4th Bight inbve to the face, there were 
several indications of energy having been exerted in directions coiitrary to or 
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inconsistent with such a force. it is, however, a well-known and widely-accepted 
fact that, where coal-dust has been a factor in explosions, the evidences of force 
have generally been found to be contradictory in character ; and thus, ixhere 
contradictory indications of force are found, it is reasonable to deduce, conversely, 
that they have been caused by the ignition and explosion of coal-dust. This 
cOflSi(lerati011 led the Commission to caref aiiy examine the evidence as to the nature, 
composition, and explosibility, of the Mount Kembla coal-dust. As already pointed 
out by the Commission when describing the mine, the dust is not, like that of the 
Metropolitan Colliery, a very finely-divided powder; and it (Toes not, unless disturbed 
by some violent motion of the air, rise, nor, when it has risen, does it remain long 
suspended. While, however, in relation to its state of mechanical division, Mount 
Kembla dust is much less likely to assist in, or carry on, an explosion than the 
Metropolitan dust (and this conclusion seemed to be strongly borne out by the 
results of the experiments made by the Commission, ride pars. 30766-30769 of the 
evidence) ; still, chemical quantitative analysis has shown that it cantains a much 
larger amount (over 23 per cent.) of volatile hydro-carbons than. is found in the 
Metropolitan dust (1SI per cent.). Moreover, the tests made at Woolwich in 
Ii)ecember, 1901 (ride P. 73 Inquest) show that Mount Kenibla dust stands relatively 
high in explosive force, giving rise to what is described in the report as " violent 
explosion," while the expression used in relation to the Metropolitan dust is 

explosion." The probability is that these tests were so carried out as to allow the 
excessive inflammability due to the presence of this high percentage of hydro-carbons 
to have fall play, the instantaneous combustion required for explosion being very 
tliorouIi : and it is a reasonable conclusion that, if an initial explosion caused by 
the ignition of fire-damp, mixed with some fine dust and an appropriate qtiantity of 
air, were violent enou-h to represent fairly the conditions of these WToolwichi 
experiments, there well might, follow, in spite of the comparative heaviness and 
low divisibility of the Mount Kembla dust, a most destructive and. long_sustained 
series of dust explosions. nih5  indeed, is what the whole trend of the evidence 
before the Commission leads them to conclude has I)cen the case III the disaster 
at Mount Kembla, and disposes of the dfficuhiv before stated, by explaining 
how the explosion of a relatively small quantity of fire-damp in the atmosphere 
of the No. 1 Main Level at about the 4th Iliglit Junction started a series of 
explosions of coal-dust, which penetrated a large portioii of the workings, and 
travelled right out, with apparently unabated force, to the rIuifli.e1  Mouth. That 
the conditions would be favourable to such an ignition and explosion of coal-dust 
there can be no doubt ; for the blast of air forced out from the 4th Right was, 
without doubt, sufficiently violent to raise and diffuse a cloud of dust from floor, 
roof, and sides ; this would be ignited by the explosion of the fire-damp, which 
would raise a further cloud of dust ; and so each eXi)loSioll  Woul(1, in turn, raise 
supplies of fuel which would ignite in such quick succession as to be practically 
one instantaneous explosion, receiving fresh accessions of force as it reached fresh 
supplies of oxygen in the air-courses which it passed or traversed on the routes which 
it took. 

Cause of Disaster shortly stated. 

The Commission having thins traced the course of their reasouin, the 
conclusion,,, at which they have arrived may now, for convenience, be shortly 
summarised as follow 

A fall in the 33-acre Waste drove an inflammable mixture of fire-damp 
and air down the 4th Bight Rope Rea tothe No. 1 lght Main Level wit sufficient 
force to cross the nIravelling  Road without distributing itself in that roadi to any 
great extent, and to blow out a canvas door (or doors, as to which thiere is a doubt) 
between the two headings. The mixture, driven, in a state of compression, into the 
Main Level, with a tendlency (due to the angle at which the 4th Bight meets that 
road) to travel rather outbye than inbye, met the intake air current ; and, its forward 
movement thus retarded and its momentum quickly rediticine, its centre came to be 
about the 4th Right Junction. The northern extreruitv of flue mass, spreading 

inbve 



inbye along the Main Level, first reached the wheeler's light at the 4th Left in an 
over-diluted state; but, as soon as a mixture rich enough to l)uI'n came in contact 
with the light., a flash of flame ran back, starting the destructive action by 
communicating the ignition to the whale body (which was made more violently 
explosive by the presence of coal-dust raised by the first blast). Thus the centre of 
force showed itself at thee centre of the explosive body, and not at the point of 
ignition ; though there is a prevailing and natural, but the Commission believe 
erroneous, inclination to assume that in such eases the force must necessarily radiate 
from this point. The fire-damp and air exploded; and, in turn, started a series of 
explosions of coal-dust, which wrecked a large portion of the mine, and killed a 
number of the miners. These explosions of fire-damp and coal-dust generated a 
large quantity of carbon-monoxide; and it was this deadly constituent of the after-
damp of the explosion which caused the death of by far the larger number of the 
victims of the disaster. 

Verdict of Coroner's Jury and Finding of Commission 
Compared. 

63. This conclusion, it will be seen, is at variance with that at which the 
Coroner's Jury arrived. The Commission would have been only too glad to accept 
that finding as a true solution, if they had not found very good reason to depart from 
it. So far as the verdict gives a gas explosion as the primary cause of the accident., 
the Commission consider it to be correct. Time expression "accelerated by a series 
of coal-dust explosions " has apparently been used by the Jury in the sense of 
cc aggravated," or "intensified," or " continued," by a series of dust explosions : as 
these explosions necessarily followed and did not precede the moment of initiation of 
the catastrophe (being the effects, and not one of the causes, of its origin) they 
cannot have accelerated it, though they certainly might add to its operation. But, 
in so far as the Coroner's Jury fixed the origin at a point in or about the No. 1 
main level back headings" (a conclusion which the finding seems to intend, and not 
merely that the gas explosions started from thence), the Commission cannot but 
think that this part of the verdict was mistaken; but they recognise the fict that 
the body of evidence upon which it was founded stood, at that time, much less 
weakened than it had been, at the lime of the Commission's Inquiry, by Mr. Camnbage's 
careful and exhaust.ive examination. There were arguments appearing at the time 
of the Coroner's Inquest in favour of one view that were, later, completely answered 
by the overpowering evidence of the direction of force—a force relatively too greit 
to be taken as secondary—going to prove the other contention at the time of the 
Commission's Inquiry: so that, in departing from the verdict of the Jury on the 
question of origin, the Commission feel—and they wish this to be clearly under-
stood—that they in no way reflect on, nor have they lightly regarded, the 
conclusion carefully and honestly arrived at by the tribunal properly entrusted 
with the duty of attempting to discover the truth. And, after all, in expressing 
their own view, the Commission say no more than that their finding is, after time 
fullest consideration, the explanation they think most probably consistent with 
truth—certainty is quite impossible to attain, in the face of such remarkable, and 
in many cases inconsistent, conditions. Few of the expert witnesses who gave 
evidence at time Inquiry as to the place of origin, based upon an examination of 
the operation of the forces, were called at the Inquest. Although Mr. Atkinson had 
made his inspections, he had not then the assistance of the plans afterwards ljre-
pared, showiiig the direct.ions in which the force of the explosion operated, and had 
not had time for mature consideration of time observations he had made; so that, 
though he had more than a suspicion that the seat of the disaster was to be found 
near the 4th Right Junction, he was apparently unduly influenced in his judgment 
by the discovery of such a. large quantity of fire-damp in the No. 1 Right Front and 
Back Headings at the face; and was thus led to incline to that locality. 



	

Does blame attach to any Person or Persons? In other 
words, has the Negligence of any Person Caused, or 
Contributed to the Cause Of,  this Disaster? 
6. One of the directions to the Commission is to " ascertain whether blame 

attaches to any person or persons " in connection with the disaster, " tncl, if so, to 
report the person or persons to whom the blame attaches." This has been the 
subject of careful and anxious consideration. During the Coroner's Inquiry the 
fact was elicited that Special hula No. 10 of the Mount Keml)la Mine (which has, 
under the Coal Mines Regulation Act, the force of law) regarding the examination 
of waste workings, had not been strictly complied with. The rule provides that 

lie (weaning the Deputy) shall, at least once in every week, examine., so far as is practicable, the 
state of the waste workings .....and make and sign a true report of the state thereof in a book 
kept at the office for the purpose. 

When under examination, John Morrison, the Deputy in charge of the No. 1 Right 
District of Mount Kembla, stated that lie made the examinations of the 35-acre 
waste and the other wastes in his district once a month, not once a week, as required 
by the Rule (pp. 10, 28, Inquest). He (lid not consider it reasonably practicable to 
examine the waste workings every week: lie could not say who fixed a month as 
the period in which the waste workings were to be examined. His superior officer, 
Mr. Nelson, Under-manager, (one of the victims of the disaster) told him when the 
inspections of waste workings were to be made (pp. 17, 29, Inquest), lIe had only 
made two monthly inspections of the waste workings (p. 29, Inquest). He had 
only held the position of Deputy for nine weeks when the disaster occurred (p.  13, 
Inquest). (See also Qs. 11025-11631, 11748-11754, 11755-11777, 11810-11835, 
11858-11880, I 1.895-1 1936, 12030-12056, in evidence before the Commission.) 

01A. This evidence shows clearly that Special Rule No. 10 was not being 
complied with, as the wastes (or goafs) were not examined once a week. The only 
explanation that Mr. Rogers could give was (Qs. 25610-251114, 25624-25627, 23659- 
25661, 25601-25664, 25666-25667, 26212-26214, Commission Evidence), that lie 
understood the rule to me: n that, if it was practicable to examine the goafs once a 
week, it should be done ; and, as lie did not consider that practicable, he had them 
examined once a month. 

This is a strangely mistaken intetpretation of the Rule, which, of course, 
means, and clearly enough expresses the meaning, that waste workings shall be 
examined once a week, to such an extent— for instance, as far into the falleir ground—
as " practicable " : a word that is equivalent to "physically possible as well as 
reasonably safe." 1-Tow the rule came to be so erroneously read in the first instance 
does not appear : indeed, it seems hardly possible that any careful and fairly educated 
man could make such a mistake. Still, assuming that Mr. Rogers, whose literary 
attainments are not of a high order (English not having been his native language), 
whatever may be his practical experience, found the error accepted and acted upon, 
lie could pei1iaps hardly be censured for allowing its continuance : but, when it was 
actually, as the Commission believe it was, brought under his notice by Mr. Leitch 
(vide Qs. 22628-22650, Commission Evidence—Mr. Rogers' denial, Qs. 25661 &c., is 
so vague that the Commission accept Mr Leitcli's account as substantially correct), 
and Mr. Rogers justified himself by saying in effect that the rule was being 
substantially obeyed " because lie was examining the waste workings every day 
an examination which cannot possibly, if it could be said to be an examination at all, 
have been more than superficial—the Commission think Mr. Rogers certainly 
deserving of censure. As to Morrison, however, it seems unfair to impute any 
appreciable blame to him for practically obeying the orders of his superior officer. 

The disclosure ol the fact that the 4th Right Goaf (the 33-acre waste) 
was not examined once a week naturally led Mr. Lysaght to suggest that this neglect 
had contributed to the disaster. The last of the regular monthly examinations was 
made by McMurray and Morrison on the 19th of July : the disaster occurred 
on the 31st. Morrison, however, states that lie went in and examined about 
the 24th, 30th, and 31st., of July, notwithstanding that lie had made his monthly 
examination on the 19th, because about that time the workings in the 4th 
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Right were finished, the props were withdrawn, and be was expecting the roof 
to fall. There was some confusion in. Morrison's evidence as to how the monthly 
examinations were made (pp.  15, 16, 17, 1, 19, 20, 28, 2:), Inquest). The roads 
leading to goals are fenced off; and no person, except an official on duty, is 
allowed to go piit these fences. Morrison at first said that, on examining at 
the 4th Right and other goals, lie did not go inside the fences (p.  16, Inquest). This 
would, obviously, not be a compliance with the rule. But later in his evidence lie 
said that lie did go inside the fences, and right up on to the fallen stone at the edge 
of the wastes, as far as it was possible and safe to go (p. IS, Inquest). (Q. 11750). 
Regarding this examination on the 19th of July, Morrison stated that lie and. 
McMurray used naked lights (p. 16, Inquest) ; they did not expect to find gas 
they did not look for it ; but they would have found it with their naked lights if it 
had been there (p. 17, Inquest). Later, Morrison said he did look for gas; and that 
lie put the lamp into the waste to look for gas (p. 17, Inquest). When before the 
Commission, lie said that lie used a flarelight in making the monthly examination 
of the waste--,: the first time he took a safety-lamp, Nelson laughed at him and told 
him tlin.t lie (Nelson) always went with a naked light (Q. 11753) : yet the next day 
Morrison said, " I did not go in the 4th Rig-hit with my flare-light." (Q. 11880, 
Commission). Respecting the examinations of the ith Right Waste after the 19th 
of July, 1\oriison states that a few men were at work there up to about 7, 8, or 9, 
days before the disaster ; these men were withdrawn, and the props taken out in 
order to let the roof fall; and lie went in the next day to see if the roof had fallen, 
for his own satisfaction (pp. 16, 17, Inquest). Mr. Rogers, after having had an 
opportunity to refer to written records, stated that the date on which the men were 
withdrawn from the 4th Bight pillars, and the place was fenced, was the 18th of 
July (p.  45, Inquest) ; so that the examination which Morrison made the day after 
the men were withdrawn would he that of the 119th of July already referred to. 
But, in his account of the examination made "about seven clays before the disaster," 
Morrison adheres consistently, in spite of cross-examination, to the statement that 
lie went in with a safety-lamp (pp. 17, 18, Inquest) ; whereas lie had previously 
asserted, with almost equal assurance, that lie had only a naked light with him when 
examining on the 19th of July (pp. 16, 17, Inquest). (Qs. 117ö2-3, Commission). 
It therefore appears probable to the Commission that Morrison has confounded in 
his memory the circumstances of two examinations, that made on the day after the 
men were withdrawn (19th of July), and another which lie seems to have made 
about the 24th of July. 

07. As to whether, when lie examined the 4th Right Goaf about the 2tth of 
July, Morrison made the usual test for fire-damp with Iis safety-lamp, the evidence 
is not absolutely definite, He said several times that lie went in to see if the roof 
had fallen (pp. 10, 17, Inquest.), that lie went inside the fence ; found there had 
been a light fall; but did not go on top of the fall (p.  16, Inquest). lie was not 
supposed to go inside the place; but lie did so, to see how the roof had fallen (pp.  16, 
18, Inquest). It was on this occasion that lie found black-damp (p. 18, Inquest). 
It would, considering all the evidence, appear to be probable that, on this occasion, 
Morrison's sole object in visiting the 4th Right was to ascertain whether the roof 
had fallen, and that lie did not test for gas; though, if any large quantity had been 
present, it would have forced itself on his attention by the effect it would have had 
on his light. It might, however, have been possible for less than 2- per  cent. of 
gas to be present in the air at that part of the mine, and not be discovered by 
Morrison. 

In addition to making the examinations of the 4th Right already described, 
Morrison states (p. 15, Inquest) that lie went there with a safcty-lamp on the 3911 
and 31st of July (the lalter was the day of the disaster) ; but there is nmeh doubt 
whether this was really an examination of the waste or merely an examination of the 
road leading to the waste (pp. 15, 16, Inquest). 

The Commission are thus led to the conelusion that, not only were the 
wastes not examined once a week as required by the Rules, but even the monthly 
examinations, being macTo with naked lights, were of no use for the purpose of 
detecting the possible changer of the presence of a small percentage of fire-damp; 
and it is very doubtful whether the examinations medic on the 24th, 30ti, and 31st, 
can be considered to amount to a virtual coniphiauce with the Rule. 



	
	

The conclusion reached bytlie Commission as to how the disaster was caused, 
however, is consistent with the presence of fire-damp in the higher parts of the goaf, 
not in the 4th Right Road ; and it was clearly not incumbent upon Morrison, nor 
could it be expected of him, that lie should (on the 19th of July) go wider a large area 
of roof from which the props had hicen withdrawn, or (on the 2 itli, 30th, or 31st) 
that lie should, in order to make his examination, go over the feet fall, in view of 
the fact that the whole of the stone was hanging a nd likely to come down at any 
moment. It does not appeai probable, therefore, that, even if the waste had been 
carefully tested once a week with a safety_lamp, the disaster would have been 
averted. 

Whilst the Commission consider that Mr. Rogers has been guilty of a 
grave irregularity in allowiag the provisions of Special Rule 10 to remain unconi-
plied with, and thins permitting so lax and ineffective a series of examinations of this 
particular waste, still they cannot say that this irregularity actually contributed to 
the disaster. And, hiowver exactly weekly examinations might have been carried out 
in conformity with the raTe, it is abtiirlanty clear from all the evidence that, in the 
making of all sueh exin ations, tie pren of fire-damp, a an appreciable 
element of dangei, was s far ignored that there would have been hardly any, if any, 
difference between the weekly examinations and those which Norrison did actually 
make. The reputation of the mine, as one free from gas, led to this mode of action. 
All other possible sources of danger were kept in view : but gas, though no doubt 
not quite forotten, became a relatively remote consideration. In a grave degree g

this appears to be the fault of the system provided by law for the detection of gas 
(mere verbal reporting on the part of miners who discover it, and tests made only 
with the safety-lamp) ; and of the law which allows many mines, even though 
known to be giving off some gas, to be worked with naked lights. What, in the 
opmion of the Commission, is the obvious remedy is suggested in the next section of 
this report. In connection with this subject, the Commission think it is rnnch to be 
regretted that the fact that Special Rule 10 was not being observed escaped the 
notice of the Government Inspectors, whose duty it  was to see that the Rules wre 
properly carried out and to draw the Manager's attention to any omission, and also 
to report it to the Chief Inspector for such action as lie might consider necessary. 
If the Inspectors had. made the discovery, and had carried out their duties properly 
in this respect, the misinterpretation of the Rule would have been pointed out to 
Mr. Rogers, and lie would, the Commission are sure, have taken steps at once to see 
that it was strictly observed. 

The Commission cannot, however, leave this subject without drawing 
attention to a serious defect in the method of making the regular examination of 
the goofs ; andthe use of naked lights in doing so. This though, strictly speaking, 
within the limits of the law, is a reprehensible practice ; and the Commission have, 
therefore, included among their recommendations one to the effect that all examina-
tions in mines, including those worked with naked lights, be made with safety-
lamps. 

At this point the Commission would draw attention to the fact that, up 
to quite recently, the examination of wastes has been singularly neglected in mining 
legislation: in fact, until the report of the Court of Investigation into the Stockton 
Accident, iii 1S7, containing certain recommendations on flue subject, brought it 
i)romillently under the notice of the Department, it was a question that was generally 
ignored. This Commission, seeing its great importance in relation to satty from 
explosions (" goafs" being liable to act as most dangerous reservoils of undiscovered 
lire-clamp and other explosive or noxious gases), now strongly urge legislation on 
this subject ('*lc suggestion o. 4, post). 

Alleged Breaches of the Law. 

7. During the course of the Inquiry a number of statements were made as 
to alleged breaches of the Mining Act or of the Rules framed thereunder, in addition 
to that mentioned in the preceding paragraph. It was not suggested, however, that 
any of these failures to oI)selve the iaiv contributed to the explosion. Most of the 
tatements referred to may be dismissed from consideration so far as they are in the. 
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nature of charges directed against persons now dead—victims of the disaster. But 
the statements of four witnesses refer directly to David Evans, who was a deputy at 
Mt. Kembla before the explosion; and, in a second matter, there are the statements 
of Mr. Rogers and Deputy Morrison with reference to their, own actions. These are 
treated in order, but cannot be absolutely separated. 

75. 1st. Regarding David Evans: in paragraph 48 of this Report the evidence 
of witnesses Broacihead, Smith, Sells, and Brownlee, is quoted ; and each of them 
testifies that the discovery of gas was reported to Evans, who, at the Inquest, had 
stated that no report of gas had been made for the past five years. Brownlee's 
evidence may be put on one side, as it refers to something that occurred ten years 
ago, and Evans admitted at the Inquest that the discovery of gas was reported to 
him ten years ago, and says that lie reported it in a book in accordance with the law. 
Not much reliance can be placed on Broacihead's statements, on account of their 
peculiar and contradictory nature. They are denied by hopkins and by Evans, and 
may fairly be dismissed from consideration. Tle evidence of Sells and Smith refers 
to reports said to have been made to Evans, eight and six months respectively before 
the disaster, as to the discovery of gas ; but in each case the gas was lit by the 
miners' lamps on their return to the face after firing powder-shots; except on one 
occasion, when Sells says that Evans expressed the opinion that something oozing 
from the coal was gas. On the whole, the Commission is inclined to the belief that 
Evans was rather lax in his treatment of what information lie did receive, information 
that should have put him upon diligent inquiry as to whether the mine was or was 
not giving off gas in sufficient quantity to be a possible cause of danger. He seems 
to have been under, and to have been only too ready to disregard anything which 
might tend to dispel, the prevailing and almost universally accepted impression that 
Mt. Kembla was a mine practically free from fire-damp. He may have believed, 
but lie could not possibly be certain, that the gas, the lighting of which was reported 
as following shots, was " powder smoke " : but his expressions, narrated by the 
witnesses, do not bear the construction that he felt by any means assured of this. 
Even by itself, and much more so when coupled with such a very suggestive 
phenomenon as a buzzing or humming of something from the coal, the reported 
lighting of gas should have put him on inquiry, which he does not appear to have 
made: and he certainly should have acquainted the Manager with what he had 
been told, and what lie had himself noticed; yet this too he seems to have neglected. 
If the occurrence was important within the meaning of Special Rule 11, which 
reads thus 

In the Under-Manager's absence, he (the Deputy) is empowered to act on his behalf, and shall report 
any important occurrence, disobedience, or violation of rules, on the part of any employee, to the Manager 
or Overman. In the absence of a Lampkeeper, lie shall see to the condition of any safety-lamp that may 
be in use in special cases ; and in this lie shall carry out the instructions of the Manager or Under-
Manager. 

he should have reported it to the Manager ; although it is rather difficult for anyone, 
and it may have been specially so for Evans, to understand exactly what this rule 
does mean. But, apart from any pecia.l provision, common-sense dictates to a 
Deputy the propriety of informing someone highe r in authority of any occurrence 
that may suggest danger from explosive gas, especially in a mine worked with naked. 
lights. It is impossible to say that any more vigilance on Evans' part would have 
led to the adoption of means whereby the catastrophe might have been averted: 
probably it would not: probably nothing would have resulted beyond perhaps a little 
more constant attention to the brattice : still, Evans' laxity was a factor in the 
conduct of the mine which calls for comment. 

76. It is painful to question the conduct of other officials whom the disaster 
has deprived of the power of vindicating their actions: but, if Evans' too easy mode 
of doing his duty was a prevalent feature in the management, a conclusion to which 
the evidence would appear to point, this is a state of things very munch to be deplored, 
and one that seems to reflect upon Mr. Rogers in his position as Manager. But, 
though the Commission cannot but suspect that greater vigilance in connection with 
this one most vital question of fire-damp ought to have been exercised, and enforced 
at headquarters, the Commission do not think they can reasonably draw the conclusion 
that, in the then history of mine explosions and. the accepted mode of regarding 
precautions, a change to the use of safety-lamps would have resulted from a fuller 
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recognition of the possible danger of explosion. This giving up of naked lights 
is the only change in management that would have l)edn likely to avoid the 
disaster : it can be said with almost al)solIitc certainty that it would have prevented 
it. But all concerned—thie officers of the mine, from the Manaier down, as well 
as miners and workmcn—werc living in what the event piovec1 to be a fool's 
paiailise. 'J'he tradition of inin-innity from accident for ninny years the universal 
behef—it might alust be called faith—in the exceptional safety of the mine 
the fixed idea that the comparatively new furnace shaft, constructed at great 
cost, had power more than enough to sweep away any little gas that such a 
harmless seam might happen occasionally to give off, even though the workings 
extended macli farther than they yet had grown : this atmosphere of confidence 
in whichi lie moved, never doubting that it was well founded, explains Mr. 
Rogers' mental condition of security, tending to laxity of control. It is the 
opinion of the Commission that, from his own point of view, lie was under the 
honest belief that lie was doing his duty well ; that lie was managing the mine 
to what seemed to him to be the very best of his ability ; and that, when the 
awful l)lOW fell, it was to him a horrible surprise, l)ey011d his power to explain. 
He cannot, in the light of what lie then saw and heard, have avoided the impression, 
certainly at the first, that there had been a gas explosion, whatever lie may have 
imagined at a later stage, by way of explanation of the disaster : but neither be nor 
anyone else—no Inspector, assuredly, \\1110 knew the mine, personally  or by repute—
dreamed beforehand of the possibility of a gas or dust explosion in Mount Kembla 
Colliery and, as the Commission find, the combination of circumstances, including 
the quite Tmnlooked-for accumulation of gas, was so pecmil jar and unprecedented as to 
be almost beyond the reach of the clearest foresight : no one could be expected to 
anticipate that so many unforeseen conditions would exactly fit together to lead to so 
terrible a result. Therefore, 011 this question of want of diligence hi dealing 
generally with the search for gas, the Commission cannot go so far as to say that 
either Deputy Evans or Mr. Rogers, the two on whom alone a suggestion of 
culpability in this relation might possibly be SuPpoSed  to fall, is to blame for the 
disaster, or that any negligence of theirs actually contributed to its cause. 

2nd. Regarding Mr. Rogers and Mr. Morrison—Standing Places not 
examined in Daily Inspections.—At the time when attention was specially directed 
to the No. 1 Right Back-I-leading face as the locality where the explosion originated, 
particular interest naturally attached to the fact whether or not that place, and the 
face of the Front heading, had been regularly and properly examined for the 
presence or inflammable gas. Mr. Rogers was questioned at the Coroner's Inquiry, 
and stated (vi(le pp. 40, 41, Inquest) :— 

Morrison inspected up to the fence at the very end of No. 1 Right. No one had examined the two 
faces right up to the end of No. 1 Right on the morning of the 31st of July. The fence is about 30 or 40 
yards from the extreme face. That 30 or 40 yards would not be inspected on the morning of the 
:31st of July by anyone.......here was no reason for not inspecting the :30 or 40 yards beyond 
the fence at the top of No. 1 Right, except that there were no men working there. 

The fence at the top of No. 1 Right was put there because there was no one working up there the 
brattieing was up to the face of that place . . . . . . No. 1 heading had been standing for six or 
eight months because it was far enough for the cut-throughs ........go into it. 

Mr. Morrison, the Deputy in whose district these two headings are 
situated, admitted (Qs. 11230-11253, 11734, Commission) that Mr. Rogers' evidence, 
as quoted above, was correct. He stated, further, that lie had only once been up 
beyond the fence across those headings (Qs. 11230-9) and that was some weeks 
before the disaster, when lie had just newly started as i)eputy. [Note.—Morrison 
was appointed as Deputy nine weeks before the disaster.] Nelson, the Tinder 
Manager, however, Morrison stated, told the latter on the 21st of July that lie had 
examined these headings on the 19th. 

It was understood, Morrison said, that lie had not to examine the place. His 
examination was the examination of the working places : the man who was there 
before him did not examine it; and this man showed Morrison how to examine the 
places. rrhese  two facts led him to believe that lie had not to exanine that place 
(Q. 11277). 

When his attention was drawn to Special Rule 9 (vicle p.  63, Inquest) 
Morrison said lie was authorised by Mr. Nelsoii when lie first started not to make a 
report on any place except the working places (Q. 11448). From the date of his 
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appointment to the date of the disaster lie (i\lorrison) never, in the morning 
examination, inspected any place that was not being worked (Q. 11152). There 
were nine or ten places in the No. 1 hight District not being worked, which he did 
not examine. Tie would not admit that, because he had not examined these standing 
places, he had failed to carry out his duty under Special. Rule 0 ; because lie had 
examined all the " working places " (Q. 1 L 163). lie did not know anybody who 
was supposed to examine standing places (Q. 1140). These places would not be 
examined when he examined the old workings (wastes). lie was told what to 
examine. Ille had no instructions to examine those places (Qs. 11731-11710, 
11 82S-1 I 855, 11889-1I 91, Commission). 

70. Mr. W. lay, CIe:k and Weighman at Mount Kembla, stated to the 
Commission that, being (leil'otl5 of obtaining experience in the detection of gas 
before submitting limself for examination, he went with Mr. Nielsoi on his inspection 
on a pay Saturday, when the furnace was out, and the ventilation, consequently, at 
its poorest, to try to find gas. They went to the highest portions of the mine—
among others, to the No. 1 ilight—but found none (Qs. 21511-21986). Mr. hay 
nas in some confusion as to the date ; but it was between the 13th and ].Oth 
of July. 

Mr. Rogers, when examined before the Commission, stated : That lay 
i to go round with Nelson looking for gas, and afterwar asked his permssion ds 

informed him that they had been to a number of places, of which No. 1 Right was 
one (Q.s. 2551-G, 2i102-6, 26113-26129). 

This inspection, however, said to have been made by Mr. Flay, does not appear 
in any report ; and the Commission are very doubtful as to whether there has not 
been a mistake about it—whetlier such an examination was actually made at that 
particular place or not. But, even if it did take place, it would be of such a casual 
nature as by no means to comply with the practice which, whether it can be said to 
he prescril)ed by any special rule or, not, the Commission are strongly of opinion 
should 1)0 made compulsory, namely that these standing places should be examined 
dali y. 

Questioned as to his knowledge of Morrison's practice in making examinations, 
Mr. Rogers stated that " Morrison would not examine only working faces. That is 
the Deputies' practice, to examine all working faces." The places not working would 
be examined when the monthly examination was made. That would not be the 
only time when such a place would be examined. The Underground Manager would 
go there to examine it; and perhaps lie (1r. Rogers) would go there to examine it. 
The Under Manager would go there on making his rounds—there was no rule about 
it. They had no stipulated time when such places would be examined. (Qs. 26323- 
26335, 26754-26760.) 

Speial Rule No. 9 of Mount Kembla Colliery reads as follows:— 

lie (meaning the Deputy) shall make a true report of, and enter and 51511 Jail11, in a book, 
the state of the mine roads, doors, stoppings, brattice, faces, and ventilating appliances, . . and shall 
continually during his shift inspect the Nvoiking faces, roads, doors, brattice, and ventilating ap1di:trces. 

Tus rule, carefully real, seems to iuclule as a subject for cxarnivatjoa 
the faces of what are called " standing plices ''—i.e places that are temporarily, or 
even permanently, pnit out of work, lying on the intake side of, or otliervisc 
practi ally associated with, act ual working places. Considering the collocation and 
order of the WoL'dS, and in the light of Om1f1011-Seflse, such places, especially where, 
for some reason, the air is actually led past the face by brat.t ice on its wily to working 
places, would appear to be included ; and it would naturally be supposed that any 
ordinarily intelligent man would so read the rule. Further, even if he did not read 
the rule to expressly include such places, it would, in the exercise of his general duty 
(which requires him to apply to his work reasonable care and intelligence), be 
incumbent on any officer havintg charge in or of a mine to exercise as much and as 
constant viilance in inspecting a face past which intake air is led, or supposed to he 
led, as would be proper in seeing to an actual working face. The Commission 
cannot but chiaracterise the omission to make a (1111 V examination of such faces as 
at least very bad management ; and they regret to have iound the practice prevailing 
at Mount Kembla. The Rule, however, is so vaguely worded that it may well be 
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mis-read; and perhaps some competent authorities would even hold that the reading 
here condemned, excluding such standing faces, was, on the wording, the correct 
one. Certainly Deputies might actually 1)0 mislead by the Rule, acting under the 
illogical belief that what is not specifically prescribed is therefore, thoa-ti obvious y 
expedient, not to be (lone. These considerations may have, some little weight in 
palliation of the stupid course adopted at Mount Kembla. At any rate, the 
Commission, holding on this point a strong opinion, not only that the Rule should 
have clearly expressed what the Commission believe it intended, but that it should 
be given what may be called the primary forco of law,. instead of being  left for 
adoption as a Special Rule at the choice of the Management or of the l)epartment, 
have made the recommendation to be found on paragraph 108 of this Report. 

83. So far as the disaster is concerned, however, the Commission, finding, as 
they do, that the initial explosion was at the 4th Right Junction, and seeing no 
reason to suppose another gas explosion at the face of No. 1 Back leading, do not 
find any direct connection between the practice they are here con(lemning and the 
catastrophe itself. 

Prevention of Colliery Explosions in Future. 

84. The terms of the instructions issued to the Commission lay upon them 
the duty of reporting how such explosions can be averted in future and, in 
considering this question, the first point that strikes the Commission is that a serious 
explosion of fire-damp occurred in a mice which wa.s generally believed to be free 
from such inflammable gas. Though many miners now come forward and say that 
they have seen fire-damp in the mine, several of them admit that they did not 
report the fact; some giving as the reason for such culpable neglect that they did 
not consider the quantity they saw was dangerous ; others giving no reason at all. 
This terrible disaster emphiasises the conclusion, to which other similar accidents in 
this State, as well as elsewhere, have pointed, that no quantity of fire_damp, 
however small, given off in a mine can be neglected with impunity. It would 
also seem that., thou ' ,h reports are said to have been made to officials that gas had 
been seen, the infoiina.tion was not passed on to the management, on whom lay 
the respoiisihulitv of taking steps to minimise the obvious possible danger. '11)0 
weakness in the pmseiut state of the law, which operates only through special rules 
made by each mine, appears to be that reports made to officials need, at present, be 
only verbal ; and the persons who make them have no means of knowing whether 
they are recorded in the report-h w ooks as provided by law, or otherise brought before 
the Manager; wiule theManager has no meaiis of knowing that -as has been 
(liscOvered, unless it is recorded in the Deputies' report-books. In order to bridge 
this gap, the Commission have included amongst their recommendations one to the 
eftect that miners who discover -as, no matter how small a quantity, shall be required 
to make a verbal report of the fact to the nearest official, and then to go and make 
a w.'tttei report in a book kept for time purpose. So that as nitich facility as posSible 
may be afiorcled to miners to do this, it is recommended that books for the purpose 
be kept at each Deputy's cabin underground. it is further recommended that any 
official to whom such report may be made shall communicate the fact to the Manager 
or Under-manager by the quictest available means (by the mine telephone, or by 
messenger, or personally), and that the written report shall afterwards be shown to 
the Manager. If this recommendation be adopted, it Sl1OUl(l not be 1)Os4blC for a 
mine to give oft fice_damp in such quantities as to be forced on time notice of the 
miners without the Management also being aware of it; especially if a substantial 
1)elmahiy be provided for a breach of the law in this respect.. 

83. Another weak point in the practice is that, in. the official inspections of 
coal mines, the duty of searching for fire-damp, the most important duty of the
1)eputies in relation to the safety of life and pc'operty, is carried out with an 
instrui'neut (the safety-lamp) which will . not., generally, detect the presence in the 
air of time mine of a proportion of fire-damp less than 2 per cent. (some of the best 
lamps, iiovever, with mineral oil, will detect as low as 11  per cent.), whereas this 
disaster proves (as several explosions have shown liefore) that a much less proportion 
than this may be given off regularly, and may not le discovered because of the 
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inability of the ordinary safety-lamp to detect it; but yet that this small proportion 
may, under favourable circumstances (which are bound to occur, some time or other, 
even in the best-managed collieries), accumulate, and be a source of serious danger. 
In the hydrogen-lamp, science has provic'cd an instrumenf so delicately sensitive 
that, not only will it detect with certainty a proportion of fire-damp in the air as low 
as 5 per cent. (* per cent.), but that with it a well-trained observer may detect even 
a proportion of 25 per cent. (± per cent.). There are, however, several very good 
reasons why this lamp could not be recommended for ordinary every-day use in 
mines ; the principal being that, in the hands of any person, however careful, but 
more particularly one not specially trained to its use, it may become a greater danger 
to him and to others in the mine than the gas for which lie is searching. The 
hydrogen with which the lamp is supplied is stored in a cylinder at a pressure of 
13 500 11). to the square inch, and is highly inflanmiabic ; and a slight turn too 
much of the screw which regulates the flow would allow the hydrogen to escape 
in such a quantity as might., with the great piessu'e behind it, force the flame 
through the gauze of the lamp, and so at once, if the fire-damp for which search 
was being made were present, cause an explosion. Other reasons against the every-
day use of the lamp are the high cost of the hydrogen, the fact that supplies cannot 
at present be obtained in Australia, and the great difficulty of obtaining them by 
importation. Nor do the Commission flunk it necessary that the ordinary examina-
tions for gas should be made with the hydrogen-lamp : for ordinary purposes the 
safety-lamp is considered by all authorities to be sufficiently sensitive. But the 
Commission do, after mature consideration, strongly recommend that the manage-
ment of every mine be required to have as many as 30 separate tests made, at least 
once in every three months, with a hydrogen-lamp, in the principal winning-out 
headings, waste workings, and return airways : such tests to be made by a com-
petent person or persons, appointed in writing by the Manager for the purpose, who 
shall report the results of such tests and the places where they have been made in 
a book to be kept for the purpose. 

If these two recommendations be made law the Commission are confident 
that it will not be possible for gas to be given off regularly in any mine without its 
presence being detected. 

There is a further consideration of great importance to which this 
disaster will direct the special attention of everyone who studies the evidence; and 
that is the great danger inherent in the practice of using naked lights in coal-mines, 
even though, according to ordinary acceptation, they are not of the class known 
among mining people as "gassy" mines. Too much reliance would seem to have 
beenplaced in most mines on the non-detection of gas in the usual examination 
with the safety-lamp, or on the fact that it was only occasionally so detected; and 
it has hitherto been the practice, both here and in Great Britain, to use open lights 
not only in any mine where fire-damp could not be discovered by means of the 
safety-lamp, but even in mines where it has been so discovered. The Commission 
believe that the most valuable lesson to be learned from this disaster, which resulted 
in the loss, in one day, of 93 lives, is that the use of naked lights should not be 
allowed, under any circumstances, in any mine where any quantity of fire-damp, 
however small, has been discovered, whether by safety or hydrogen lamp, or in any 
other way. Such a mine should, in the opinion of the Commission, be treated as a 
"gassy" mine. The Comrnisson recognise that a change in the law to this effect 
would be considered by many in the mining profession to be a drastic one; but they 
are convinced that to provide any less comprehensive rule would be simply paltering 
with an evil which has lain at the root of many appalling disasters. 

87A. The Commission are much impressed with the necessity for the ventila-
tion of mines to be sufficiently ample, not merely to sustain life in the mine, but also 
to thoroughly dilute and quickly carry off any inflammable or noxious gas—indeed, 
the Commission regard the latter as the more important consideration. In their 
recommendation on this subject (Suggestion No. 8) the Commission recommend that 
the minimum supply of air shall be 150 cubic feet instead of 100 cubic feet per man, 
as at present; but they regard it as important that this minimum should not be 
looked upon, as it often is in effect, as the maximum, and that the attention of 
Inspectors of Mines should be specially drawn to the necessity for their insisting 
upon an "adequate amount of ventilation," i.e., adequate to effectively dilute and 
remove dangerous gases.. 88. 
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8S. At present the Coal Mines Regulation Act permits the use of gunpowder 
in all mines ; the only restrictions being that gunpowder shots may not be fired in 
places whieh are dry and dusty, unless the places are first watered, and that they 
may not be fired in any place, if gas has been reported to have been found in the 
same venthating district, until that gas has been cleared away. Though no one has 
suggested, and the Commission do no find, that the fact that gunpowder was used 
in Mount .keinbla had any connection with this disaster, they certainly think the 
practice of blasting ii-ith gunpowder in any mine which is not naturally wet, and also 
free from inflammable as, is fraught with grave danger. The eTidence cf the 
witnesses called by Mr. Lysaght shows that, when charges of gunpowder are fired, 
and merely crack, without dislodging, the cool, the imperfect conbustion of the 
powder results in the generation ot a volume of inflammable gas. Then, on the 
miners' returning to the working place and holding their lights to the face of the 
coal, in order to see what work the charge has done, the gas, issuing from the cracks, 
lights with a flare that might easily, under favourable circumstances, prove to be the 
cause of a serious explosion. Further, the experiments made in the piesence of the 
Commission at I-Ielensburgh showed, most clearly, that the usual charge of gu n-
powder, 8 ounces, when it blows out, throws a large volume of flame at a great heat 
into the air of the working place; and that, when there is coal-dust in suspension in 
the air, an ignition will, almost certainhi, be caused, which may also prove the starting 
point of a grave disaster. The Commission therefore propose, in the list of recom-
mendations given at the end of this 1ej)ol't, that the use of gunpowder be absolutely 
prollil)ited in all mines unless they are (1) naturally vet, and (2) free throughout 
from inflammable gas. The Commission further recommend, among other 
precautions, (a) that only such explosives as are, for the time being, included in 
the English list of " Permitted Explosives " (i.e., explosives as nearly flameless as 
have yet been invented) shall be allowed to be used in mines which are not both 
(1) naturally wet, and (2) free throughout from inflammable gas  ; (b) that in such 
mines explosive charges shall not be fired by any person other than a certificated 
Deputy and Shot-firer, appointed in writing by the Manager of the mine for the 
purpose ; and (c) that, in such mines, the roof, sides, and. floor, of the place where 
time charge is to be fired shall first be thoroughly saturated with water within a 
radius of 20 yards from the shot-hole (provided that, where the roof may be injured 
by watering, and if the Chief Inspector of Coal Mines concur, the roof may be 
thoroughly brushed free from dust instead of being watered). 

Another important factor, in relation to the safe working of mines, viz., 
the necessity for the proper ventilation, and frequent careful examination of the 
state of, waste workings, has been specially referred to in a preceding paragraph of 
this Report. 

Among the suggestions made by the Illawarra Miners' Association are 
two, on the subject of doors in mines, which have an important bearing on the 
question of the prevention of disasters. As time (inc ventilation of a mine is one of 
the most important conditions of safety, particularly in relation to the dilution and 
carrying off of inflammable gases, and as the ventilation entirely depends on the 
keeping closed of doors provided to prevent its taking wrong courses, it is especially 
necessary that every possible precaution should be adopted—(lst) to ensure the 
immediate closing of doors after they have been opene(l; and (2nd) to prevent the 
temporary checking of the flow of a main intake current of air by the opening of a 
door which closes the passage connecting it with a return. In the latter case there 
is an instantaneous tendency to short-circuit ; and any continuance of the opening, 
whether accidental or otherwise, may seriously affect the ventilation. This risk 
would, clearly, be much reduced, and the instantaneous diversion of time ventilation 
due to the more opening and closing of the (loor would be quite obviated, by the 
adoption of what may. be  called the " air-lock " system of double doors, which is in 
use in nearly every really well-managed mine. With this system, no short-circuiting 
can begin unless both doors are open at once ; and the Commission are strongly of 
opinion that it is time that there should be legal compulsion to adopt it. Perhaps 
time reason for its not having, long before this, been made the subject of legislation 
is that it was assumed that, as a matter of course, every mine of any extent would 
adopt it. But experience unfortunately shows that this is not the case. The 
Commission regret to have to call attention to the fact that, in Mount Kembla Mine 
itself, in this respect, the management failed to a very noticeable extent. 
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91. As to the former question—the securing of the closing of every door 
immediately after use—the expediency of making this closing automatic has been 
questioned on very good authority, as it has been contended that the individual 
feeling of responsibility among workmen is thereby reduced. One of the most 
important coal mines in Australia (and a very fiery one) has been successfully 
managed for about 11, years without the introduction of the automatic closing 
system, which has been deliberately, and with very satisfactory results, rejected. 
Mr. Robertson has grave doubts as to the expediency of making the system com-
pulsory ; but the Commission have, on the whole, come to the conclusion that it 
will be safer to make it so, and have attempted to do aw'ay with any idea that the 
fact that a door is supposed to close itself lessens personal responsibility, by the 
recommendation of a slight variation in the wording of a suggested regulation, the 
original of whic'a is to be found among the Special Rules of certain collieries, 
adopted since this disaster occurred. 

02. The Commission have also included, among the suggestions which follow, 
recommendations which, if brought into operation, will (a) have the effect of raising 
the standard of Managers and Under-Managers, by providing that, in future, no 
person can obtain the necessary certificate for such a position except by proving his 
competency by examination; will (b), the Commission believe, evoke a greater 
feeling of personal responsibility in mine officials, by providing a sure and certain 
method by which any person, whether Inspector or miner, may have the conduct or 
competency of an official investigated on making a bona fide complaint; and will (c) 
enable Inspectors of Mines to take official cognisance of any matter in which they 
may consider a mine or its management to be defective—a provision that is not in 
the present Act. The Commission feel confident that these recommendations, to-
getlier with the very important precautions dealt with in the 'preceding paragraphs 
of this section of their report, will, if given the force of law, as they strongly urge 
should be done, go very fhr indeed to reduce the number of avoidable accidents or 
explosions in Coal Mines. 

AV, 1111  on this subject, the Commission desire to point out that., though a 
great step in advance will he taken if their recommendations, as to the use of safety-
lamps in mines in which any quantity of fire-damp, however small, is given off, and 
as to the prohibition of the use of gunpowder in such mines, be adopted, there is yet 
one question of vital importance to be considered. According to Rule 7, where a 
mine official finds that, by reason of the prevaleiice of inflammable gases, a mine or 
part of a mine is dangerous, the workmen shall be withdrawn; and the question is—
WThat constitutes a dangerous percentage of fire-damp in the air of a lllilieP On 
this point opinions differ, as the different conditions of various mines must be taken 
into account in arriving at any conclusion ; and there is no preponderance of opinion 
in favour of any particular percentage. Tjnder these circumstances, though the 
subject has been discussed to some extent in various mining communities already, 
the Commission suggest for the consideration of the Department that a conference 
of experts be invited to consider and report upon the matter. Even though, 
possibly, no direct conclusion might be arrived at by the Conference, the Comrnisson 
feel sure that it would have, indirectly, a good effect, by specially dlrawmg the 
attention of all mining officials to tile importance of the question, and to the great 
personal responsibility placed upon them by the fact that the Act, as it at present 
stands, leaves the matter entirely to their individual judgment. 

Recommendations affecting the General Management of Coal 
Mines—Sugo'estions as to the Amendment of the Law. 

As briefly mentioned earlier in this Report., Mr. Lysaglit, the miners' 
representative before the Commission, brought forward a number of recommendations 
prepared by the Miners' Associations of the Illamvarra, Newcastle, and Lithgow, 
Districts, for the amendment of the present Coal Mines Regulation Act. Some of 
the witnesses also brought under notice matters which they considered required 
attention ; and Mr. Atkinson prepared a number of suggestions, the most important 
of which was one for the amendment of General Rule 12, respecting the use of 
explosives in mines, The Commission themselves have also noticed, in the course 
of the evidence, a number of directions in which the law might, with great advantage, 
be altered. . . 90. 
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05. Owing to the great length which this report has necessarily reached, the 
Commission will now merely state the nature of the various suggestions and by 
whom they were made, and will then gve, in the form of recommendations, the 
conclusions at which they have arrived ; without traversing the evidence or arguments 
bearing on the proposals—clearly set out in the evidence. For convenience of 
reference the Suggestions nie nunibered ; and, when an amendment of a clause of 
the Act is recommended, the clause is copied in ordinary type, words that the 
Commission recommend to be omitted are ruled through, and words which the 
Commission recommend to be inserted are shown in capital letters. They are as 
follow :— 

SUGGESTION No. i. 

From Illawarra District Miners: 
i\lanagcrs, Liider.managers, Deputies, and Shot-firers, to hold Ceitificntes of Competency by 

examination, and to have had five yr ars' practical mining experience, before being eligible for respect ire 
p000 t ions." 

Newcastle District Miners agree, and suggest tuddition of-- 
"All the examinations have to be passed in the State of New South Wales." 

96. As to ilianagers and Under-managers, the Commission recommend:— 
that no more Certificates of Service should be issued, 
that Service Certificates held by persons who have never yet held positions under those 

certificates should be caucelied. 

97. 11 this recommendation be approved, the following is suggested as a 
suitable clause to insert in the Act to effect the object desired :— 

Any Certificate of Service, either as Manager or Under-manager, which may be on the register at 
the time of the passing of this Amending Act, shall, at the expiration of 12 mouths from the said date, be 
cancelled and removed from the register, unless the holder thereof shall, before that date, have proved, to 
the satisfaction of the Board constituted by section 6 of the Principal Act, that b m e has, legitiately, and 
bona tide, occupied the position and exercised the functions of a Manager or Uudermanager of a mine 
in New South W'ales since obtaining, and by virtue of, such Certificate of Service. 

OS. Consequent on the foregoing recommendation, Section 8 (and all its sub-
sections) shall be omitted from the Act. 

90. As to Deputies and S/wi-fliers, the Commission recommend :— 

That Deputies and Shot-firers be required to hold certificates of competency gained by examina-
tion ; such examination to be entirely practical and oral ; and that, as the law pro00des that they shall 
make written reports as to the performance of their daily duties, they be required to be able to write 
legibly. 

If this recoinniendation be approved, the following amendment of 
Section 6 will be necessary :— 

(1) There shall be three descriptions of certificates of competency under this Act—(t) first-class 
C( rtificaiesm, that is to say, certificates of fitness to be Mamiager (2) second-class certificates, that is to 
say, certificates of iitnes to be Under-manager and (B) i'IIIIID-CLASS CERTIFICATES, THAT 
15 TO SAY, CERTIFICATES OF COMPETENCY FOR THE COMBINED POSITION OF 
I) EPUTY AND ShOT-FIRER; but no person shall be entitled to a certificate of competency under this 
Act unless lie has had practical experience in a mine for at least five years. 

While dealing with this subject of Certificates of Competency, the 
Commission desire to also recommend that section 7 be amended as under, and that 
an addition be made to it, as shown, to provide for the recognition in New South 
Wales of Certificates of Competency gained elsewhere in the British Empire, provided 
that the standard of examination is equal to that required in this State :— 

The Minister may ON THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE BOARD make, alter, and revoke, 
rules as to the places and times of examinations of applicants for certificates of competency under this 
Act, the number and remuneration of the examiners, and the fees to be paid by the applicants, so that the 
fees do not exceed those specified in the Third Schedule to this Act. Every such rule shall be observed 
by the Board appüinted under this Act. 

THE MINIt.'T ER SHALL, IF RECOMMENDED BY THE BOAR]) FOR APPOINTING 
EXAMT-Ni,'11,81 , ACCEPT 11011 RLGI' Ill ' lION IN NI \'v ''OU11l W U I ' TN Jfl fT OF ' 
CERTIFICATE FOR ANY OFFICIAL POSITION TN A MINE THAT MAY BE GIIANTED 
tJNI)ER THIS ACT, ANY CERTIFICATE OF COMPETENCY ISSUED TN CHEAT BRITAIN 
OR ANY OF ITS 1)EPENI)ENCIES FOR A SIMILAR POSITION RESPECTIVELY, 

WIIIETH l'hR 



 

WHETHER AS MANAGER, UNDER-MANAGER., OR ANY OTHER. OFFICER, IN COAL 
OR SHALE MINES: PROVIDED THAT, IN CASE OF A CERTIFICATE ISSUED IN A 
DEPENDENCY, IT SHALL BE PROVED TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE BOARD THAT 
THE STANI)ARD OF COMPETENCY REQUIRED TO BE ATTAINED IN SUCH DEPEN-
DENCY IS PRACTICALLY EQUAL TO THE STANDARD REQUIRED TO BE ATTAINED 
IN NEW SOUTH WALES. 

As an amendment following necessarily on the above, the Commission 
recommend that section 9, suj)section 2, be altered as follows :- 

A register of the holders of certificates of competency or service under this Act and under any of 
the Imperial Acts aforesaid, OR SUCH OTHER CERTIFICATES OF COMPETENCY AS MAY 
BE APPROVED BY THE BOARD FOR APPOINTING EXAMINERS, AS PROVIDED BY 
SECTION (7), within the State, shall be kept by such person and in such manner as the Minister directs. 

SUGGESTION No. 2. 

From Illawarra District Miners 

The Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order the us of safety-lamps. 

Newcastle District miners are opposed to this as it stands ; but suggest that, 
where a doubt exists about safety-lamps going into a mine, the Inspector and
District Check Inspector should appoint a third party, the three rersois  named to 
be an Arbitration Court, to settle the question whether safety-lamps are to go into 
the mine or not. 

The Commission recommend, in connection with this suggestion, that 
General Rule S be amended as under : 

No lamp or light other than a locked safety-lamp, OF A PATTERN APPROVED BY THE 
CHIEF INSPECTOR OF COAL MiNES, shall be allowed or used— 

sendes-the-ef-nake4-iights-4angerens IN ANY MINE IN WHICH ANY QUANTITY 
HOWEVER SMALL, OF INFLAMMABLE GAS HAS BEEN GIVEN OFF WITHIN 
THE PREVIOUS SIX MONTHS: 
ii-a wediiig-appmaebhg--naa-a--plsea- a--whieh-tbsre-is-likJy-te-bs-as1atin-ef 
inflmable-gas IN ANY WORKING WHICH IS WITHIN 20 YARDS OF, AND IS 
BEING ADVANCED TOWARDS, ANY LOCALITY WHERE IT IS DOUBTFUL 
WHETHER OR NOT THERE MAY BE AN ACCUMULATION OF INFLAMMABLE 
GAS, OR IN ANY PLACE IN THE SAME VENTILATING DISTRICT ON THE 
RETURN AIRWAY SIDE OF SUCH WORKING. 

BUT THE CHIEF INSPECTOR OF COAL MINES SHALL HAVE THE POWER TO 
DIRECT THAT SAFETY-LAMPS ONLY SHALL BE USED IN ANY MINE. 

Acid to General Rule S the following :— 
() IF ANY DISPUTE ARISE BETWEEN ANY OWNER, MANAGER, OR AGENT, OF 

ANY MINE, AND THE CHIEF INSPECTOR OF COAL-MINES, (1) AS TO WHETHER 
ANY PARTICULAR PATTERN OF SAFETY-LAMP SHOULD OR SHOULD NOT 
BE APPROVED FOR USE IN SUCH MINE, OR (2) AS TO WHETHER THE 
MINE IS GIVING OFF, OR HAS, WITHIN THE PREVIOUS SIX MONTHS, BEEN 
GIVING OFF, ANY QUANTITY, HOWEVER SMALL, OF INFLAMMABLE GAS, 
SUCH DISPUTE SHALL BE REFERRED TO ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY 
SECTION 25 OF THE ACT. 

(d) WHERE THE CHIEF INSPECTOR OF COAL-MINES DIRECTS THAT SAFETY-
LAMPS BE USED IN ANY MINE WHERE INFLAMMABLE GAS HAS NOT 
BEEN DISCOVERED, AND THE OWNER, MANAGER, OR AGENT, OF SUCH 
MINE, DISPUTES THE PROPRIETY OF SUCH ORDER, THE QUESTION 
WHETHER, IN VIEW OF THE SAFETY OF LIFE OR PIiOPFi1iTY, IT IS 
EXPEDIENT THAT SUCH ORDER. BE  ENFORCED SHALL BE REFERRED TO 
ARBITRATION, AS PROVIDED BY SECTION 25 OF THE ACT; AND IN THE 
MEANTIME THE ORDER SHALL STAN1) GOOD; BUT THE MANAGER SHALL, 
ON APPLICATION WHICH HE MAY MAKE, IN A FORM TO BE PRESCRIBED, 

BE 



	

BE TEMPORARILY SIJPPLIEI) BY THE DEPARTMENT WITH A SUFFICIENT 
NLTlBER OF SAFETY-LAMPS TO KEEP THE, MTNE GOiNG; AND FOR. THE 
PRoPER CARE AND SECU1{TTY OF SUCH LAMPS HE SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE; 
AND HE SHALL PAY A REASONABLE RENT FOR THEiR USE, TO BE FIXEI) 
BY REGULATION. 

AFTER SAFETY-LAMPS HAVE BEEN INTITODUCED INTO ANY MINE, NAKED 
LIGHTS SHALL NOT BE USED THEREIN WITHOUT THE SPECIAL PERMISSION 
OF THE, CHiEF INSPECTOR OF COAL MINES: AND, IN THE CASE OF ANY 
DISPUTE BET\VEEN THE OWNER, MANAGER, OR AGENT, OF SUCH. MINE, 
AND THE Cl-TIFF INSPFiCTC)R, SUCH I)ISPUTE SHALL BE REFERRED TO 
ARBITRATION, AS PROVIDED BY SECTION 25 OF THE ACT. 

PROVIDED ALSO THAT, IF THE CHIEF INSPECTOR OF COAL MINES APPROVE, 
NAKED MGI-ITS MAY BE USED AT THE BOTTOM OF, AND IN THE MAIN 
hAULAGE ROAI)S WITHIN A RADIUS TO BE FIXED BY I-JIM NOT EXCEED-
ING 200 YARDS FROM, THE DOWNCAST SHAFT OR THE MOUTH OF THE 
MAIN INTAKE TUNNEL. 

SUGGESTION No. 3. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
Ventilation by furnace should be prohibited, and that by fans substituted. 

Newcastle District Miners agree. 

104. The Commission recommend that the following provision be inserted in 
the Act :— 

It shall be imperative that, in the opelling of any mine in the future, employing thirty men or 
more, the mine shall bt ventilated by fan, unless specially exempted from the operation of this Rule by the 
Chief Inspector of Con Nlines. Before the Chief Inspector grants such exemption, he shall satisfy himself 
that it would be safe to iso a furnace. The following shall be the circumstances under which exemptions 
may be granted by the Chief Inspector: - 

(e) Where the amount of coal to be won may not warrant the expenditure required for the provision 
and erection of a fan 

(5) Where the physical configuration of the country renders it impracticable to in.stal a fan 
(e) Where, from any cause whatever, the Chief Inspector is satisfied that there is a substantial 

difficulty in the way of using a fan ins teaci of a furnace. 

In respect to existing mines employing thirty men or more, where, in the opinion of the Chief 
Inspector, the ventilation by furnace is insufficient or dangerous, he may order the substitution of a fan for 
a furnace, within a certain time to be fixed in such order the owner, manager, or agent, of the mine to 
have the right to appeal to arbitration under Section 25 of the Act. 

105. The Commission also recommend that provision be made, in any future 
legislation, to enable mine-owners to sink ventilating shafts on land under the 
control of the. Water and Sewerage Board, and to put up the buildings and 
machinery necessary to be erected at such shafts. At present the Water and 
Sewerage Board refuse to grant permission for this to he done; though it is 
absolutely necessary if use is to be made of the vast beds of coal extending from 
the coast beneath the catchmciit area of the Sydney Water Supphr, as it is 
impracticable to obtain sufficient ventilation to enable the mines to be worked a long 
distance in from the coastal slope of the Illawarra Range without the construction 
of ventilating shafts in the catchrnent area. The Commission consider that, with 
proper regulations, stringently enforced by the Water and Sewerage Board, there 
need be no fear of the pollution of the water-supply because of the existence of 
such ventilating shafts within the catclimcnt area. 

SUGGESTION No. 4. 

From Illawarra District Miners 
Waste Workings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by return airways (for fear of 

emissions) ; such return airways not to come in contact \vitil intake. 

ewcastle District Miners O0SC this recommendation as impracticable. 

106. In view of the varying constructions placed by ditlerent witnesses on 
the terni "Waste Workings," the Commission recommend that it be defined, in the 
interpretation section of the Act, as follows :— 

Waste Workings " shall he taki'n to mean parts of the woikings of any mine (1) whieie pillars 
have been extracted, whieliet the i:oof has fallen or not, and (2) workings that have been peimiieiitly 
abandoned, 

29—(q) 107. 



	

107. With respect to the suggestion itself, the Commission recommend that 
the following provisions be inserted in the Act - 

In every mine worked on the Pillar-and-Bord system, waste workings shall, as far .s practicable, 
be ventilated, and kept reasonably free from inflammable or noxious gases. 

As far as practicable, the ventilation of waste workings shall be from return airways only. 
If it is not practicable to ventilate Waste Workings from Return Airways, they may be 

ventilated from a separate intake airway 
(e) provided that, when waste workings are ventilated from separate intake airways, notice of the 

fact shall be sent to the Chief Inspector (within a week), and that such notice shall describe 
the position of the intake and the mode of its construction. 

Subject to the provision of paragraph 3, all Waste Workings which are passed or pierced by an 
Intake Airway shall be sealed off from such intake by brick or stone walls, set in mortar; the sufficiency 
of such stoppings to be subject to the approval of the Chief Inspector. 

lOS. The Commission, having in view the laxity of the examination of waste 
workings, as disclosed in the evidence, recommend that the following new sub-section 
be added to General Rule 4 

(ci) As to inspection of waste workings —A Competent peIson or persolls, not being a contractor 
for getting minerals in the mine, holding a certificate of competency as Deputy and Shot-firer, shall, with a 
locked safety-lamp, inspect, at least once a week, every part of the waste workings which is safely 
accessible ; and shall ascertain the condition thereof, with respect to the presence of inilainmable or noxious 
gas, ventilation, roof, and sides, and general safety ; and, whether such examination occupy one day or 
iiiore or less than one day, the examining official shall, before leavhig the mine on each and every such 
(lay, make and sign a written report of such examination in a hook to be kept at the mine for the purpose. 

SUGGESTION No. 5. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
All places, except prospecting drIves, to have cut-throu2hs not more than 30 yards apart. 

Newcastle District Miners :— 
All cut-throughs to be not more than 30 yards. 

The Commission consider that it is impassible to make a hard and fast 
rule as to how close together cut_throurhs should be put, without creating serious 
difficulties in the managemeit of mines generally, owing to the varying conditions, 
such as, for example, differences in thickness of seams, in depth of seams below the 
surface, in the crushing strength of the coal, in the lateral tendency of the coal to 
scale off, in the nature of the roof, and in the nature of the overburden. They 
cannot., therefore, endorse this suggestion. 

SUGGESTION No. 0. 

From Illawarra District Miners :- 
Inspection to be made with locked safety-lamp in all cases. 

Newcastle District Miners agree with this. 

The Commission reconiillcii,,d that the daily inspection of the working 
&C., and all other inspections provided for by the Coal Mines Regulation 

Act, should, in every ease, in every mine, whether such mine be worked with naked 
lights or not, be required to be made with a locked safety-lamp (except where, as 
the Commission next recommend, they are required to be made with a hydrogen 
lamp). 

SUGGESTION No. 7. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
Monthly examination and report should be made by Deputies and i)istrict. Inspector with 

hydrol-f it flame. 

Newcastle District Miners agree with this. 

This sugg w estion, as made by the Illawarra Miners' Association, was not 
very clear ; but it transpired, in the course of the evidence submitted in its favour, that 
what was desired was that once every fortnight an examination of the whole of the 

mine 
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mine should be made with a hydrogen lamp ; and that this duty should be carried 
out by a Deputy of the mine and the Government Inspector for the District 
alternately, so that each would make an inspection once a month. When it was 
pointed out that it would be dangeroUS to allow a hydrogen lamp to be taken into a 
mine by persons inexperienced iii its use, the suggestion was altered to apply to 
Managers or Under-Managers and Government Inspectors. 

ii 2. The Commission, however, do not consider that it would, under present 
conditions, be practicable for the Government Inspector to comply with such a rule; 
nor do they think it would be reasonable to require the management to examine the 
whole of the mine in this way ; but they are strongly of opinion that the hydrogen 
lamp should be more generally used in the future for the detection of fire-damp 
than it appears to have been up to the present. They therefore recommend that 
the following new clause be inserted in the Coal Mines Regulation Act 

In every mine, a competent person or persons, apixulitell  in writing by the Manager, shall make at 
least 30 tests (in all) oiice in everythree months with the hydrogen flame in the principaiwinning-out headings, 
waste workings, and return airways and it shall he the duty of such person or persons to make a written 
report specifying the places where the tests are made, the dates, and the results of the tests, in a book to 
be kept for tile purpose. 

113. The Commission consider that this, while not imposing an unreasonably 
burdensome duty on the management of mines, would yet fully attain the object 
desired, viz., to ascertain whether fire-damp was being given off in the mine. 

SUGGESTION No. 8. 

From Illawarra District Miners 
i\linirnum of 500 cubic feet of air per minute to be provided for every horse instead of 100 as at 

preseat. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agreed to, and 
Jii Not less tilan 200 cabc feat ol air par minute for eaah 11120 aid boy. 

114. The Commission recommend that the following be inserted in time Act in 
place of General Rule 1 :— 

In every mine which is ill opevation, whiethir any parson employed therein shall he below ground 
or not, all amount of ventilation, by air drawn from a p1'e source, shall be constantly produced, except 
when the mechanism or furnace supplying the producing power shall be wholly or partially suspended for 
necessary repair or alteration, adequate to dilute and render harmless inflammable and nOXiOUS gaSes, from 
whatever cause arising, to such an extent that the air in all parts of the mine wherein flhiflers or other 
workmen are required or permitted to be, for the purpose of working, travelling, or otherwise, and in all 
stables where horses or oher animals are kept, and also in all stantliiig piacis Ofl the intake side of any 
working place, shall be safe in relation to risk from inflammable gs SOS in the mine, and wholesome and 
sufficient for the support of liunian and animal life. 

And, when any person or animal employed or used in the mine is below ground for any lawful 
puipe, then such supply of air shall, in the place in which each such m person or animal shall be, be i ot 
less than 150 cubic feet passing such person per muinte, and :iOO cubic feet so passing such animal, for 
each and every such person or animal, or such larger quantity or quantities as the Inspector may from 
time to time direct ; and the air so supplied shall be fbrced, in the prescribed quantities at least, into and 
to the face of every w'orking place where any person or animal is engaged or passing. 

But the provisions contained in part (b) of this Rule, as to a micimum supply, shall in no way 
operate to reduce the obligation imposed by pert (a) thereof. 

115. With respect to this matter Mr. Robertson desires to state that lie does 
not believe in the minimum as an effective provision for ensuring adequate venti-
lation ; but he agrees to this recommendation, as Ito recognises that the Legislature 
has already laid down the principle that there shall be a minimum, and l)ecaUse, as 
the evidence before the Commission shows, most mines at time present time provide 
more that 150 cubic feet per man, the minimum proposed. 

SUGGESTION No. 0. 

From Illawarra District Miners 
All doors erected so as to close and remain cics:d of thier own met ion. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agreed to. 

116. The Commission recommend that the following provision be made in 
the Act :— 

All doors in a mine shall be so erected that 111ev shall close and remain closed automatically. 

117, 
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117. They also recommend that the following General Rule should be inserted 
in the Act to fix the responsibility on the employees to see that doors close after 
they pass through 

General Rule—No person shall open any door or screen in a mine unless it 1j necessary for him 
to pass through it : and, when any person has passed through any door or screen, he shall at once properly 
close the same or take care that it is properly closed ; and no persoii shall be, to any extent, relieved 
from seeing to the closing of a door by the fact that it is so constructed as to be self-closing. 

SUGGESTION No. 10. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
Double doors required on drives between main intakes and returns and maul headings. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agreecl to. 

118. The Commission recommend that the following provisions be made in 
the Act :— 

There shall be double wooden doors in drives between main intakes and returns, and in main 
headings ; and in other places such scieens or wooden doors as may be ordered by the Inspector. 

Where double doors are provided, it shall not be permissible to open or keep open more than 
one of such doors at any one lime. 

SUGGESTION No. 11. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
WTeekly measurements of air should be made in each Section, and report thereof sent to Inspector. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agreed to, and 
Add, Instead of inontlly as at present." 

119. With respect to this suggestion, the Commission see no evidence to 
warrant any departure from the present practice. 

SUGGESTION No. 12. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
Extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites equal to one-third of number of persons 

employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agreed to. 

120. The Commission recommend that safety-lamps be required to be provided 
at all mines worked with naked lights, or extia safety-lamps, at all mines worked 
with safety-lamps, according to the following scale :— 

One safety-lamp for every man employed up to and including fifteen men, with a minimum of 
five lamps. 

At a mine where more than fifteen men are employed, a minimum of fifteen lamps and, in 
addition, (a) one lamp for every five additional men employed, in the ease of a mine worked with naked 
lights, or (b) one lamp for every ten additional men employed, in the case of a mine worked with 
safety-lamps. 

All safety-lamps required by this rule to be provided shall be kept constantly in good order, 
with wicks in place and a sufficient supply of oil to fill each lamp shall be kept available. 

SUGGESTION NO. 13. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
Travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be properly watered. 

Newcastle District Miners :— 
Add, All travelling, main, and horse, roads to be 6 feet high' 

Lithgow District Miners:— 
J di, And properly timbered, and kept clear of any props that may have fallen and that the 

travelling roads be made not less than 6 feet high.' 

121. 



	

The Commission have, in their proposal to alter Rule 12, (vicle 
Suggestion No. 25) embodied the proposal that, in every dry and dusty place, where 
shots are to be fired, the roof, floor, and sides, shall be thoroughly saturated with 
water within a radius of 20 yards from the shot hole, provided that, where the roof 
may be injured by watering, and where the Chief Inspector concurs, the roof, 
instead of being watered, may be thoroughly brushed free from dust. 

The Commission further recommend that the following provision be 
inserted in the Act 

\Vhere watering of parts of the mine, other than those configuous to places where shots are to 
be fired, is not deemed, by the Manager, to be necessary or practicable, the Chief Inspector may, 
nevertheless, order the mine, or any specified part thereof, to be watered: and, in the event of 
objection by the owner, manager, or agent, the matter shall be referred to arbitration. 

With regard to the reconmendation as to timbering made by the 
Lithgow miners, the Commission would point out that the proper timbering of all 
parts of a mine is provided for by G-eimral Rule No. 22; which fact has apparently 
been overlooked by those making the recommendation. The General Rule says 

The roof and sides of every Travelling Road and working place shall be made secure ; and a person 
shall not, unless appointed for the purpose of exploring or repairing, travel or work in any such 
travelling road or working place which is not made so recure. 

Regarding Newcastle and Lithgow Recommendations respecting 
brushing roads to a height of 6 feet, the Commission do not think this matter comes 
within the intention of their instructions. 

SUGGESTION No. 11. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 
Manager to be cinpelled to give more personal time and attention to the managenieut of colliery. 

Newcastle District Miners ;-" Agree i6th this." 

The Commission consider that the best way to attain the object desired 
by the bodies making this Reconimendation, without unduly hampering the Managers 
in the performance of their duties, is to make better provision in the Act to deal 
with the Certificates of any Managers who neglect their duties in any respect. 

The following amendments of the Act are therefore recommended :—
Section 10 :— 

If at any time representation is made to the Minister by an Inspector or øthewise ANY 
OTHER PERSON that any Manager or Under Manager OR DEPUTY AND SHOT-FIRER 
holding a Certificate under this Act cr under any Imperial Act is, by reason of incompetency, er-gs'eea 
ieghgeswe NEGLE(,T OF HIS DUTY, OR OTHER MISCONDUCT (INCLUDING DRUNKENNESS), 
unfit to discharge his duties, the Minister may, AND, 
UNLESS HE H V E GOOD CAUSE FOR 1I B1 \ lIST I)O Ill AS TO THF BONA FID1 S 
OR ACCURACY OF THE PERSON OR BODY MAKING SUCH REPRESENTATION, THE 
N [NISTER SHALL, cause inquiry to be made into the conduct of the Manager, or Under Manager, OR 
DEPUTY AND SHOT-FIRER: and with respect to every such inquiry the following provisions shall 
have effect 

(a) No alteration. 
(1) No alteration. 
() No alteration. 

No alteration. 
No alteration. 

(I) The Court may cancel or suspend the certificate of the Manager, or Under Manager, OR DEPUTY 
AND SHOT-FIRER, if it finds that he is, by reason of incompetency eig'ess-seglgenee OR 
SUCH MISCONDUCT AS AFORESAID, 
t44iti—Ve-45  unfit to discharge his duty 

(j) The Court may require a Manager, or Under Manager, OR DEPUTY AND SHOT-FIRER, to 
deliver up his certificate: and, if any Manager, or Under Manager, OR DEPUTY AND 
SHOT-FIRER, fails without sufficient cause SHOWN to the satisfaction of the Court to comply 
with such requisition, lie shall be liable to a fine not eKceeding one hundred pound1s. The Court 
shall hold a certificate so delivered until the conclusion of the investigation, and shall then either 
restore, cancel, or suspend, the certificate, according to its jucigernenit on the case 

(h) the Court shall have, for the pmipose of the inquiry, all the powers of a Court of Petty Sessions, 
and all the powers of all inspector under this Act: ANI) A CERTIFICATE, PWlPORTING 
10 BE, N1)I 11 IHL HAND OF THE, OFFICE,11 01 ANX COURI THAT IHE 
P11 ON WH0l COMPJ IlNCY OR CONI)UCL js LI ING INQUIIU Ii) INIO WAS 
CONVTCTEI) BEFORE 51C11 COURT OF AN OFFENCE UNDER TITIS ACT, 
SI-I ALL BE PRIMA FAC1E EVIJ)ENCE THAT HE WAS SO CONVICTED, AND 
THAT I-I E WAS, IN FACT, GUILTY OF SUCH OFFENCE. 

(1) No alttration. 

SectIon 
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Section 12 :— 
Where a certificate of a Manager or Under Manager 011 DEPUTY AN]) SHOT-Fl I1ER is 

cancelled or sospended in pursuance of this Net, the Miniatet' shall cause the cancellation or Suspension 
to be recorded in the register of holders of certificates. 

Tile 

the-renewal-er-rester a4e-be-reeeeded-rn-4-he-seg+ster-e4ereeas€l 

New Sub-section :— 
(2) If application be made to the l\Iinister at any time to renew or restore any certificate which has 

been cancelled or suspended in pursuance of this Act, the Minister, if lie consider it just to so i'eiie\v or 
restore such cancelled or suspended certificate— 

shall give 11 clays' notice of such application in the Sydney daily press. 
shall, if any objection to the proposed renewal or restoration of any such certificate be lodged 
within fourteen days by any person or persons, submit the proposed renewal or restoration of 
such certificate and the obection thereto to a Courtt constituted similarly to the Court provided 
for by Section 10 of the Act, who shall have power to make any order that they may think fit 
for the renewal, restoratiun, or otherwise, of such certificate ; and such order shall be 
recorded in the register aforesaid; and 
may, if no such objection be lodged, renew or restore, on such terms as lie may think fit, any 
such certificate ; and may cause the renewal or restoration of such certificate to be recorded in the 
register aforesaid. 

SUGGESTION No. 15. 

From Illawarra District Miners: 
Instruments to be placed at bottom of upcast to determine variation of heat and air pressure. 

Newcastle District Miners :—" Agree with this." 

The Commission do not think that there is any need for an alteration of 
the Present  law, in respect to the providing of instruments. 

SUGGESTION No. 16. 

From Illawarra District Miners : 
Size of manholes should be enlarged. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agi'ec and 
A:ld " To be not less than 0 feet high, 0 feet deep, and 3 feet wide, and to be whitewashed." 

The Commission recommend that Rules 14, 15, and 16, (in which three 
quite different subjects are dealt with) be altered to read as follows 

New Rule 14 (Same as first part of present Rule 11). 
Every underground plane on which persons travel which is self-acting or worked by an engine, 

windlass, or gin, shall be provided, if exceeding 30 yards in length, with some proper means of comniulli-
eating distinct and definite signals between the stopping places and the (nds of the plane. 

New Rule 15 (Second part of present Rule 11, first part of present Rule 
15, and whole of present Rule 16, arnendcd as recommended by the Commission) 

Manholes or places of Refuge shall. be  provided 
((t) On every underground haulage road, on which miners travel to and from their working places, 

where the main and tail system of haulage, or a self-acting incline, not worked by endless rope, 
is used ; and the distance apart of such manholes or places of refuge shall not be more than hO 
yards on roads where there is not sufficient room for a person to stand between the side of the 
tub and the side of the road, and shall not be more than 20 yards where there is suflicient room 
to so stand. 

(b) On every underground haulage road, on which miners travel to or from their working places, 
where the endless rope system of haulage s used ; and the distance apart of such manholes, or 
places of refuge, shall not be more than 20 yards. 

(a) On every main road underground on which miners travel to or from their working places, where 
the load is drawn by a hoi se or other animal ; and the distance apart of such manholes, or places 
of refuge, shall not be more than 50 yards. 

All inauholes or places of Refuge shall 
(a) be not less than 0 feet high, 3 feet wide, and 4 feet dee1); but need not be more than 0 feet 

high, even where the road itself is of greater height than 0 feet 
(/) be constantly kept clear ; and no person shall place amthing in any such manhole or place of 

refuge. 
ALL SUCH MANHOLES SHALL BE, AND SHALL BE KEPT, CONSPICUOUSLY 

WHITEWASHED AT THE CORNERS ADJOINING THE ROADWAY. 

New Rule 16, (Second part of present Rule 15) 
There shall be provided, in every steam-engine room and in every boiler gallery under ground, at 

east two proper travelling ways, 
SUGGESTION No, 17, 
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SUGGESTION No. 17. 

From Illawarra District Miners :-- 
Cancellation of Certiflcate of William Roger,,, Man iger. 

Newcastle District Jiners : - 

We are of opinion that Mr. I gers, Manager, should ix called on to show cause why his certihcato 
should not be cancelled. 

10. The Commission do not consider that this comes within the scope of 
their instructions ; but, so far as Mr. Roger's actions call for comment., the 
Commission have already dealt with the matter in this Report. 

SUGGESTION No. is. 

From Illawarra. District Miners 

Iiistructioii should be given to employees regulailv on means of escape. 

Newcastle District Miners 

Adl " That proper machinery be kept at the second shaft outlet to lift all employees to the surface 
within one hour." 

ILiti gow District Miners 

ihlrl ''And that all escape shafts be properly equipped with means to draw men, in case of accident, 
and that pu per means of signalling be also fixed." 

The Commission recommend that provision be made for the instruction 
of employees as to the means of escape from mines, as follows 

() Once in every quarter as many men (not excecsliiig twelve from each district) as may make 
app1 icato ii, either verbally or in writing, a_h. shall be instructed by the officials as to 
the means of escape by at least one alternative route ; unless provision is made to imlicate the ways out of 
the mine b.V means of direction boardsjor by any other method approved by the Chief Inspector. 

(1) The official so instructing the workmen shall make a written report, stating the number of 
persons from each (listrict so instructed, and the route taken. 

(r) At least a week before it is intended to so instruct the workmen, the management of the mine 
shall exhibit, a notice to that effect at the Pit-top or Tunnel-mouth. 

As to the Newcastle suggestion, the Commission recommend that 
Section 43, Sub-section (1), par. (c) of the Act be amended as follows :— 

SUCH proper apparatus AS THE CI-IIEF INSPECTOR SHALL DEEM NECESSARY for 
raising and lowering persons SHALL BE PROVIDED AT EACH SUCH SHAFT OR OTJTLET: 

41 SUCH APPARATUS SHALL BE 
TESTEI) IN OPERATION AT LEAST ONCE EVERY DAY; AND STEAM SHALL BE KEPT 
ALWAYS TIP ON THE BOILERS PROVIDED TO DRIVE THE MACHINERY; OR, IF 
STEAM BE NOT THE MOTIVE POWER, SUCFT OTHER MOTIVE POWER AS MAY BE 
PltO\ 11)11) SJTALL BE l I' PT ALAVAYS AVAILABLE1' OR TMMT ifiA LI USF 

General Rule 26 at present exempts mine-managements from providing 
shafts under 50 yards in depth with signalling arrangements. The Commission, 
however, are of opinion that every shaft, of whatever depth, should be so provided. 
The following amendment of General Rule 26 is therefore recommended :— 

Evemy working shaft used for the purpose of drawing minerals or for the lowering or raising of 
poisons shall, if exceeding 50 yards in depth, and not exempted in writing by the inspector of the 
(listriet, be )rovided with guides: and EVERY S}{AFT, WHETHER USED FOR THE PURPOSE 
Ol B JING MINF H L, OR FOR LOW] III' G. AND RAISING Ml N SHALL BE, PROVIDED 
WiTH some proer means of communicating distinct and definite signals from the bottom of the shaft, 
and from every entrance for the time being in use between the surface and the bottom of the shaft, to the 
surface, amid from the surface to the bottom of the shaft, and to every entrance for the time being in use 
between the surface and time bottom of the shaft. 

SUGGESTION No. 10. 
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SUGGESTION No. 10. 

From Illawarra District Miners :— 

Coal Mines Act to forbid a Black-list of employees bcing kept, anT pnialising liP 1)iC\CflLiOh1 

of discharged persons obtaining employment. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agreeci to. 

183. The Commission, having  fully considered all that has be--a said on this 
matter, have arrived at the conclusion that no practical resuft would be secured, even 
if the provision asked for by the miners were included in the Coal Mines Regulation 
Act. Whatever opinion may have been honestly held as to the existence of some 

c1i practice in the past, the Commission do not consider that it exists at present. 

SUGGESTION No. 20. 

From Illawarra District Miners :—

Safety-lamps not to be unlocked for shot-firing. 

Newcastle District Miners :—Agree with this. 

13 1. This suggestion is dealt with by the amendment of Rule 12 which is 
recommended by the Commission elsewhere in this Report. (17k/c Suggestion No. 25). 

SUGGESTION No. 21. 

From Newcastle District Miners 
That the Miners of each district should have the power to recommend for appointment an inspector 

for their respective districts. 

135. The Commission consider that the appointment of Inspectors should 
more properly come under the functions of the Public Service Board. They therefore 
recommend that Section 17 of the Act be amended, as follows 

ister-ssy-appoiet THE GOVERNOR I\IAV, ON THE RECOMMENDATION 
OF THE PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD, APPOINT AS TNSPECfORS OF MINES duly qualified 

persons, tobe_iasp tovs_(udss_whatses-tit1a-1a-ms s)-9f-mmaes-tmsd assign them their RESPECTIVE 
duties, and msy award them such salaries as THE PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD think fit or Parliament 

SHALL approve. aadFe -sehpeeton AND EACH SUCH PERSON SHALL BE, 
AT THE TIME OF HIS APPOINTMENT, THE HOLDER OF A FIRST-CLASS CERTIFICATE 

OF COMPETENCY. 
To stand as in Act. 
To stand as in Act. 

(4) 

136. Mr. Robertson is strongly of opinion that candidates for the position of 
Inspector of Mines should, in addition to holding 1st Class certificates of competency, 
be required to have had at least five years' experience as Managers of Mines before 
they can be considered eligible. The President agrees with Mr. Robertson in 
attaching great importance to the practical experience gained by an applicant in 
managing a considerable mine, but agrees with Mr. Ritchie in thinking that, if the 
appointments be placed under the Public Service Board, the Board may be trusted 
to select thoroughly competent inspectors, and that no candidate who is otherwise 
eligible should be rejected merely because lie has not actually held the position of 
manager of a mine for five years. 

137. The Commission unanimously desire to point out that, in their opinion, 
the salaries at present paid to the Inspectors are far too low to attract the best men; 
though, in saying this, they do not desire to, in any way, reflect on the present 
holders of the positions. 

SUGGESTION No. 22. 
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SUGGESTION No. 22. 

From Newcastle District Miners: 

That a red light should be carried on the f ont of trains or sets on engine panes, or other 
self_acting  inclines. 

138. The Commission recommend that the following provision be inserted in 
the Act 

On every haulage road used as a travelling way, where the speed of the skips exceeds five miles an 
hour, the trains or sets shalt carry a red light on the front. 

SUGGESTION No. 23. 

From Newcastle District miners :- 

That a clause be inserted in the Act whereby better sanitary arrangements should be adopted in 
all mines where workmen are employed. 

130. The Commission, while recognising the desirability of some better 
sanitary arrangements in mine,,, are of opinion that the matter might be dealt with 
by the mine management themselves by Special Rule ; and sugg 
as may be made should be stringently enforced. 

est that such rules 

SUGGESTION No. 21. 

From Newcastle District miners 

That the management of a mine should not interfere with the right of an employee to go out of 
the mine when he deems fit. 

140. The Commission cannot see tlieic way to acquiesce in this recom-
mendation, put in such an unqualified way. They think the matter might be 
dealt with by an addition to Special Rules of the various collieries, giving the men 
the right to leave the mine when they have good and sufficient cause, but not on 
frivolous pretexts. 

SUGGESTION No. 25. 

Prepared by Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines 

Proposed alteration of General lIule 12, iection 17, which is based on the assumption that the use of 
gun powder for blasting will be prohibited in all mines where safety-lamps are used, or which are not 
naturally wet throughout, and that in such eases only certificated shot-firers will be pernutted to 
fire shots. 

IRulo 12. Any explosive substance shall only be used in the mine below the ground, as follows 

It shall not be stored in the mine. 
It shall not be taken into the mine, except in cartridges in a secure case or canister containing 

not more than five pounds. 
A workman shall not have in use at one time in any one place more than one of such cases or 

canisters. 
A workman shall not take into any mine any iron or steel pricker, charger, tamping rod, or 

stemmer nor shall any workman use an iron or steel scraper in the process of charging or stemming for 
blasting; and only clay or other non-ii1lammable substancea shall be used for stemming, and shall be 
pmovided by the owner of the mine. 

No explosive shall be forcibly pressel into a hole of insufficient size ; and, when a hole has 
been charged, the explosive shall not be unrammed ; and no hole shall be bored for a charge at a distance 
of less than twelve inches from any hole where the charge has missed fire, and shall, as far as practicable, 
be parallel with it : provided that in case where a fuse is used no person shall return to a place where 
such charge has missed fire until a period of eight hours has elapsed from the lighting of the fuse attached 
to such charge. 

In any mine in which the use of a locked safetv.Jamp is for the time being required. (by the 
Coal Mines Amendment Act, 1003), or which is not naturally wet throughout, only Permitted Explosives, 
according to the most recent Imperial Coal I\Iincs Order, shall be used and in such case the following 
precautions shall be observed 

No shot shall be charged or fired except by a certificated shot-firer appointed, by the Manager of 
the mine in writing. 

No shot shall be fired except by means of an electric battery or apparatus: and the certificated 
shot-firer shall himself eonple up the cable to the charge, and whilst doing so shall have the 
battery with km. 11e shall also himself couple the cable to the battery. 

29—(k) 3. 
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No shot shall be fired until the certificated shot-firer has examined the place itself where the shot 
is to be fired, and all the contiguous accessible places, and found that there is no accumulation 
of inflammable gas, however small, within a radius of 30 yards, or if inflammable gas is being 
given off in dangerous quantities. No shot shall be fired whilst an accumulation of inflammable 
gas is being removed in the same ventilating district. 

No shot shall be fired unless the roof; sides, and floor, of the place or places have been thoroughly 
watered for a radius of 30 yards. 

No shot shall be fired on a haulage road vorkcd by steam or other mechanical power (including 
inclines worked by gravitation) or on main intakes or man return roads without special 
permission in writing from the certificated manager, and unless all workmen have been removed 
from the seam in which the shot is to be fired, except the men engaged in firing the shot, and 
such other persons, not exceeding ten, as are necessarily employed in attending to the ventilating 
furnaces, steam boilers, engines, machinery, winding apparatus, signals, or horses, or in inspecting 
the mine. 

No shot shall be fired if from any cause whatever the certificated shot-firer apprehends danger, 
and that thereby life or property would be in peril. 

Only one shot shall be fired at a time in any one place (sinking shafts excepted) ; and, after each 
shot has been fired, the certificated shot-firer shall return to the place, and carefully examine it 
for inflammable gas, and as to the security of the roof and sides, and shall not permit any person 
to enter therein (except for repairs) until he has reported the place to be safe. 

S. The certificated shot-firer shall have in his pOssesSion all detonators intended for use, and shall take 
care that in eases where men charge their own shots that only the requisite number be handed 
(lit ; and those not used (if any) shall be deposited and kept under lock and key in some suitable 
place to be provided for that 

0. No missed shots shall be vinrainined ; but in all cases a fresh hole shall be drilled, which shall not 
be within 12 inches of any hole which has missed fire, and shall, as far as practicable, be parallel 
with it. Should the missed shot contain adetonator, the certificated shot-firer shall, before firing 
the fresh hole, attach a string to the fuse of the missed shot and secure it to the prop or to tl.e 
cable. Immediately after the firing, the certificated shot-firer shall, with his hands only, and 
with the greatest care, search the coal or stone ; and, if be fails to find the detonator, or is not 
satified that it has been exploded by the second shot, be shall cause the coal or stone to be loaded 
with the greatest care, and sent to the surface for further examination. Should the missed shot 
not be diJodged, further holes must be drilled and fired until this is effected. He shall report 
The circumstance to the Under Manager without delay, and hand the detonator to him when 
found. 

(g) In this Act " Ventilating District " means such part of a seam as has an independent intake 
commencing from a main intake air-course and an independent return air_way terminating at a niain return 
air-course ; and "Main haulage road " means a road which has been or for the time being is in use for 
moving trains by steam or other mechanical 

(/i) Where a seam of a mine is not divided into separate ventilating distriets, the provision in this 
Act relating to "Ventilating District" shall be read as though the word " seam" were substituted for the 
words " Ventilating '' District. 

141. The Commission recommend that the following be inserted in place of 
Rule 12 of the present Act: 

Rule 12—The following shall be the conditions under which explosives may be used in mines 
below ground 

(1.) Explosives shall not be stored in the mine. 
(2 ) Explosives shall not be taken into the mine, except in cartridges, which shall be in a secure 

case or canister ; and such case or canister shall not contain more than five pounds' weight of such 
cartridges ; and there shall not be at one time in any one working or other place more than one such case 

r canister. 
A workman shall not take into or use in any mine any iron or steel pricker, charger, tainping 

rod, or stemmer; nor shall any workman or shot-firer use an iron or steel scraper in the process of 
charging or stemming for blasting. 

Only clay or other non-inflammable substances, provided for the purpose by the management 
of the mine, shall be used for stemming. 

Shot-holes shall be made of a sufficient size for the easy insertion of the explosive cartridge; 
and an explosive shall not be forcibly pressed into a hole either because of the insucient size of the 
hole or for any other reason. 

When a hole has been charged and stemmed, or partly stemmed, the stemming shall not be 
withdra vn. 

When an explosive chargts has missed fire, or, from any cause, remains unexploded, no hole 
for an additional charge shall be started or driven so as to come, in any place, nearer than 12 inches to 
such hole containing such unexploded charge. 

In case of a shot missing fire, to which any fuse other than an electrical fuse has been attached 
and lit, the person who fires the shot shall immediately put up a signal or fence to prevent persons 
entering the place, and shall not remove the same within eight hours ; and no person (including an 
examinmg deputy) shall return to such place until such period of eight (8) hours shall have elapsed from 
the liglituig of tle fuse. 

Neither gunpowder, nor any other explosive which is not on the list of "Permitted Explosives" 
in force, for the time being, in Great Britain, shall be used in any mine which is not both naturally wet 
and tree from inflammable gas ; and, in mines where such "Permitted Explosives" are used, the following 
additional precautions shall be observed 

(a) All shots shall be charged, stemmed, and fired, by one or more certificated Shot-firing Deputies, 
who shall be appointed in writing by the Manager of the mine for the purpose; and no shot 
shall be fired by any other person. 

(b) 
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(h) Shots shall not be fired in any place (1st) if inatinnab]e gas is being given off in dangerous 
quantities in such place ; (2nd) while an accumulation of such gas, in any part of the ventilating 
district in which ajach place is situated, is being removed ; or (3rd) if there is an accumulation 
of such gas, however small, within a radius of 50 yards of the shot hole ; or (4th) if the Shot-
bring Deputy apprehend danger from any cause whatever. 
The Shot-firing Deputy, when firing shots, shall proceed as follows 

(1st) Tie shall examine the shot hole; and, 
(2nd) if the shot hole be properly drilled, be of sufficient depth, and be placed to the bet 

advantage, he shall take the necessary quantity of explosive ; and, 
(:rd) He shall insert the electric fuse and detonator; close, and secure, the cartridge paper 

round the fuse wires ; and, 
(ith) [Ic shall place the cartridge detonator and fuse in the hole ; gently push them hone; 

and, if any difficulty be experienced in so doing, by reason of inequalities in a bore, 
shall cause it to be reamed out to permit of the cartridge, etc., being easily inserted, 
and then insert them ; and, 

(5th) He shall stein the shot with clay or other non-inflammable substance ; and, 
(6th) He shall warn all persons to remove from the place b shouting loudly Fire'' ; and 
(7th) TIe shall connect the fuse wires with the leading wires ; and 
(Sib) He shall connect the leading wires to the magneto-exploder ; and, lastl, 
(0th) lIe shall then fire the shot. 

No shot shall be fired unless the roof, sides, and floor, of the place o plrccs have been thoroughly 
saturated with water within a radius of 20 yards from the shot hole: 

Provided that where the roof rn-my be injured by watering, and if the Chief inspector 
concur, the roof, instead of being watered, may be thoroughly brushed free from dust. 
No shot shall be fired, on a haulage road worked by steam or other mechanical power (including 
inclines worked by gravitation), or on main intake, or main return roads, unless by the special 
permission in writing of the manager ; which written permission shall be returned to the 
manager immediately after the firing of the shots authorised therein has been completed 
and, in firing such shots, the following precautions shall be observed 

(1st) The place within a ra has of 20 yards f:omn the shot-hole shall be cleared of material 
accumulations of flue small coal or dust ; and 

(2nd) the roof, sides, and timber, shall be biushed clear of all dust; and 
(3rd) All stringy, or readily inflammable, bark shall be stripped from all timber within a 

radius of 10 yards from the shot hole and removed to beyond such radius; and 
(Ith) the roof, sides, and floor, within a radius of 20 yards from the shot hole, shall be 

thoroughly saturated with water ; and 
(5th) any brattice cloth which may be within a radius of 5 yards from the shot hole shall be 

well damped ; and, 
(6th) a wet cloth shall be placed in a position to intercept the flame which may result if the 

shot blow out ; and 
(71h) All persons shall be removed from the seam in which the shot is to be fired ; with the 

exception that the shot-firing Deputy may permit to remain therein all such persons 
as aro necessarily employed below ground, either in (a) assisting him in shot_firing, or 
(b) in carrying out necessary repairs, or (c) in carrying out necessary inpections. 

Only one shot shall be fired at any one time in any one place ; but moro than one shot may, if 
the permission of tha manager shall, first, have been obtaiue.l, be fired at one time in sinking 
shafts or in stone drives. 
After a shot or series of shots shall have been fired, the certificated shot-firing Deputy shall return 
to the place; shall carefully search for the l)m'esence  of inflammable gas ; shall examine the 
i oof and sides as to their secur:ty ; and shall not permit any person to enter therein (except 
such persons as he may direct to carry out repairs therein) until he shall have reported the place 
to be safe. 

(Is) Detonators shall not be issued to, or handled by, any person other than the certificated 
shot-firing Deputy, or his superior officers ; shall be packed in tins containing sawdust, or other 
suitable cushioning material ; and shall be taken to the surface after each shift by the person 
to whom they have been issued, and shall be deposited, and kept, under lock and key, in some 
suitable placa to be provided for that purpose. 

(i) Should a mnissad shot contain a detonator, the certificated shot-firer shall, before firing the fresh 
hole, attach a string to the fuse of the missed shot and secure it to the prop or to the cable. 
immediately after the firing, the certificated shot-firer shall, with the greatest care, search the 
coal or stone; and if he fail to find the detonator, or be not saflod that it has been exploded 
by the second shot, lie shall cause the coal or stone to be loaded with the greatest care, and seat 
to the surface for further examination. Should the missed shot not be dislodged, further holes 
must be drillej and fired until this is effected. TIe shall report the circumstances to the [Tnder-
manager without delay, and hand the detonator to him when found. 

142. In connection with this recommendation, the following shall be put in 
Interpretation Clause of Act : 

(j) In this -Act " ventilating district " means such part (or the whole) of a seam as has an 
independent intake commencing from a main intake aircourse, and an independent return 
airway terminating at a main return airoour.s3 ; and miii haula c road " meats a road which 
has been, or, for the time being, is, in use for moving trans by steam or other mechanical 
power, - 

SUGGESTION No. 20, 
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SUGGESTION No. 26. 

From Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines 
That General Rule 4 be altered so as to require the inspection of all places in a ventilating 

district by Deputies, including those temporarily idle. 

143. The Commission recommend that General Rule 4 be amended as 
follows :- 

A station or stations shall be appointed at the entrance to the mine, or to ANY different paids 
PART of the mine, as the case may require and the following iov1os shall have effect :- 

As to inspection before commencing work 
A competent person or coinpetentpersons EACH OF WHOM SHALL BE A CERTIFI-

CATED DEPUTY AND SHOT-FIRER under this Act, appointed for the purpose by the 
owner, agent, or manager, and not being a contractor for getting minerals in the mine, shall, 
within such time, immediately before the commencement of each shift, as shall be fixed by 
Special Rules made under this Act, inspect every part of the mine situate beyond the station or 
each of the stations, and in which workmen are to work or pass during that shift ; AND ALSO 
ALL PLACES TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENTLY IDLE ON THE INTAKE SiDE 
OF ANY WORKING PLACE, and shall ascertain the condition thereof, so far as the presence 
of gas, the ventilation, roof, and sides, and general safety, are concerned. 

No workman shall pass beyond any such station nutil the part of the mine beyond that 
station has been so examined, and stated by such competent person to be safe. 

The inspection shall be made with a locked, safety-lamp. esseept in the-eaee-ef-anine-ks 

A report specifying where noxious or inflammable gas, if any, was found present, AND 
STATING, ALSO, WHETHER THE GS WAS OR WAS NOT FOUND PRESENT IN 
QUANTITY SUFFICIENT TO RENDER TIlE MINE IN SUCH PART DANGEROUS; 
the condition of the ventilation ; and what defects, if any, in roofs or sides, and what, if any, 
other sources of danger, were or was observed, shall be recorded without delay in a book to be 
kept at the mine for the purpose, and accessible to the workmen ; and such report shall be 
signed by, and, so far as the seine does not consist of printed matter, shall be in the handwriting 
of, the pexuomi who made the inspection. 

es-4he pmirpese-efhe-feregasngraseeno-of thisule3-fwermase-s4sifte-e€eeedhsg-ene 
amether-w4hat-any inteal-are-te-be-4eemed4e-be-enelsi4t, 

As to inspection during shifts 
A similar inspection, similarly reported, shall be made in the course of each shift of all 

parts of the mine in which w-orkmen are to work or pass during that shift, INCLUDING-
PLACES TEHPORARIL OR PERMANENTLY IDLE ON THE INTAKE SIDE OF 
ANY WORKING PLACE. 

idsll-that-i+-flse-ease- of a 
alsif-,4he-sape4-ef-ne-ef-sueh-inpeetieu oliall lse-eesde4-in-mamer-abeve-s'eqt+isesh 

SUGGESTION No. 27. 

From Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines 
That, as far as practicable, doors, for the purpose of directing the ventilation, should be avoided 

in the haulage road, where mechanical haulage is adopted." 

144. The Commission recommend that it be provided :- 
That no door, for the direction of the ventilation, or for any other purpose, shall be erected in a 

hxulage road where mechanical haulage is used, except under the following conditions 
Notice shall be sent to the Inspector, either beforehand. (of the intention to erect the door) or 
within a week after (of the fact that the door has been erected) : and such notice shall describe 
the position in which the door is proposed to be, or has been, erected ; and 
The Inspector shall have power to veto the erection of any such door as proposed, or to order 
the removal of any such door, if erected, if, after consultation with the Manager of the mine, be 
considers it necessary to take such a course. 

SUGGESTION No. 28. 

From Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines :- 
"That, having regard to the many fires caused by the use of naked lights, all roads and workings, 

in collieries where naked hghmts are used, should be inspected by the officials with a locked safety-lamp, 
on the cessation of the day's work ; and a report should be made of the inspection." 

145. The Commission recommend the addition to General Rule 4 of a new 
sub-section as follows 

(c) As to inspection after the cessation of the day's work:— 
An inspection in every respect similar to that provided for in paragraph (a) of this Rule 

shim be made, with a looked safety_lamp, in every mine in which naked lights are used, on each 
occasion of amd immnediately after the cessation of work in the mine ; and a report of such 
inspection shall be recorded witimout delay in a bopk to be kept at the mine for the purpose, as 
provided in paragraph (a). 

- SUGGESTION No, 29. 
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SUGGESTION No. 29. 

From Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines 

"That, where steam is used for raising or lowering persons, safety hooks, to prevent the cage 
from being over-wound, shall be compulsory."' 

146. The Commission recommend that a provision be inserted in the Act as 
follows :— 

Where stoam or other mechanical power (excepting a winch or other machine work d by men or 
horses) is employed in mine shafts ordinarily used for the purpose of raising and lowering persons, safety 
hooks shall be fitted to all cages, buckets, &c., for the purpose of effectually releasing such cages or 
buckets from the winding rope and retaining them in a position of safety, in case of the rope being over-
wound. 

117. It is also recommended that Section 47, General Rule 27, pogc 30 of 
Act : he amended as under 

Emmie 27. Tim any msh+ SiT CF C N \Vl[ [CiT the win lir apre.tn is fl it REQtTIRED BY 
THIS A CL' TO BE provided wit Ii sone autoniatic ('(Intl ivaiice to prevent over-w imding, AND IN 
\VILICI[ NO SUCH CONTRIVANCE IS PItOVIDEI), then the cage, when mcii are being raised, 

slum11 not be wound u at a speed excc din three miles an hour, after the cage has reached a point in the 
shaft to be fixed by the Special Rules, NOT BEING LESS THAN 20 FEET BELt) Vt! TILE BANKING 
LEVEL. 

SUGGESTION No. 30. 

From Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines 

That, iii mines where safety_Limps are not in use, it book be kept for the purpose of reports as to 
the presence of gas seen by workmen, such reports to be signed by the workman who makes the report. 

148. The Commission recommend that the following provision be inserted in 
the Act 

(I.) In mines where safety-lamps are not used, any workman, who sees the ignition, or otherwise 
becomes aware of the presence, of in flammable gas, shall (I) i mnmedixtely fence off his working place, if 
that be time place where the gas is found, (2) report the (liscovery of gas to the nearest mine official, and 
(3) i'. rite and sign a report of the circumstances in a book which shall be kept at the Deputy's Cabin for 
tie purpo.e. 

Provided that, if such workman cannot himself \Vrire the necessary report in the book,— 
(() if there be a cheek-weighnian at the mine, he shall dicta' e to such check-weighman, and sign by 

a mark which the eheck-weighman shall witness, a report of the finding of gas and of the 
circumstances: such report shall be written ci :her in the book provided br the purpose as 
afores:nd or on a separate sheet of writ imig paper, whichever be more convenient, and shall be 
read over to him slowly and distinctly by the ehcck-weighman before being signed and it shall 
be the duty of the cheek-weigh man to so assist any w'orkmaii as herein provided 

(b) if there be no eheek-weighman at the mine, he shall procure some person to write the report at 
his dictation, to read it over to him, and to witness his mark in lieu of signature in accordance 
with paragraph (a) 

and he slall hand such report, so dictated, written, signed by mark, and witnessed, to a responsible 
official of the mine within 12 hours of the time when he shall have so discovered gas. 

In moines in which safety_lamps are used, any vorknian i'hmo becomes aware of the presence of 
imitlamnmahle gas shall at once report the fact to the nearest official ; but stich report need not necessarily 
be made in vriti ne. 

it shall be the (luty of any and every official to i born any report of the finding of gas is made 
by mmnv \vorkmau to communicate such report immediately by the most expeditious nicans reasenably 
available to the Manager or tjndernianager, whichever may be the more readily accessible and the book 
containing the written report, or, if it be more convenient, a copy of such report, or, it' the report be not 
made in a book, then the original, shall be, also, as early as may be practicable, taken or sent by the 
officer who shall first have possession, or become aware, of such report, to the Manager or Under-
manager. 

149. As -in amendment following as a consequence on the recommendation in 
the preceding paragraph, the Commission recommend that General Rule 38 be 
altered as hete shown 

Time books mentioned in these Rules shall be provided by the owner, agent, or manager ; and the 
books, or a correct copy thereof, shill be kept at ti4-iffl-ef the mine, EXCEPT \VIIE[E 0 U1IERWISE 
P EOVI 1) EL) BY TIlLS ACT ; and aimv Inspector under this Lct and any persomi employed in the mine
mommy, at all reasonable times, inspect, and take copies of, and extracts from, any such b ohs but nothing 
in these Itules shall be construed to impose the obligation of kcepimmg any such book or it copy thereof for 
more than tweie-mem4Iss THREE IRARS after the book has ceased to be used for entries therein under 
this A ct. Any report by t his Act re 1 uii'eJ to lot recorded ii it book may be pertly iii pnimit, including 
li tliogramlms, and partly wri Ii mg. 

SIJGGJST[OIN No, 31, 



	

SUGThSTION No. 31. 

F rrn Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Imp3ctor of Coal Mines : 
That, at Collieries employing more tian 20 persons, a tracing of the workings should be kept, 

showing the direction of the air-currents, tIm posit ions of the air-crossings, doors, stopii1gs, &c. This 
tracing to be posted up at least once in every twelve months ; and to be posted up for general information. 

150. The Commission recommend that the following provision be inserted in 
the Act 

At all mines where more than 20 workmen are employed there shall be kept a tracing of the 
plan of the workings, on which shall be shown (1) the directions of the air-currents by which 
the workings are ventilated; and (2) the positions of air-crossings, doors, screens, stoppings, 
brattices, &c.; and this tracing shall be open to the inspection of the Miners' Check Inspectors 
for the time being; 
such tracing shall, from time to time, at intervals which shall not exceed six months, be posted 
with the additional information rendered necessary by the extension of the workings. 

SUGGESTION No. 32. 

From Mr. J. Wynn, ex-miner, and Miners' Check Inspector (Illawarra 
District), and Mr. W. Bower, ex-miner, and Miners' Check Inspector (Newcastle 
District) :— 

That the law, which, at present, requires Check Inspectors to be "practical 'working miners," 
should be amended by the omission of the word "working." 

From Mr. W. Bower :— 
That the prohibition contained in the Act against the appointment of a Mining Engineer as a 

Check Inspector be repealed. 

151. The President and Mr. Ritchie recommend that General Rule 39 be 
amended as follows :— 

Rule 39--The persons employed in a mine may from time to time appoint at their own cost two-of 
EITHER ONE OR 

TWO PERSONS to inspect the mine at-theis'-ow t: and the PERSON Ott persons so appointed shall 
be allowed AT ANY REASONABLE T11E ease-at-kastio-eery-month accompanied, if the owner, 
agent, or manager, of the mine thinks fit, by himself or one or more officers of the mine, to go to every 
part of the mine, and to inspect the shafts, levels, planes, working-places, return airways, ventilating 
apparatus, old workings, and machinery. Every facility shall be afforded by the owner, agent, and 
manager, and all persons in the mine, for the purpose of inspection: and the PERSON OR persons 
appointed shall forthwith make a true report of the result of the inspection ; and that report shall be 
recordcd in a book to be kept at the mine for the purpose, and shall be signed by the PERSON OR 
persons whsa4e MAKING the inspection: and st-t4s-sepe4-*4atee-the-esso4efieeiPafprohend-essistoee-of 

the owner, agent, or manager, shall forthwith cause a true copy of the report to be sent to the 
inspector of the disirict. 

152. Mr. Robertson does not see his way to concur in leaving out the words 
"not being mining engineers," but thinks that they should follow the word "minors"; 
he is also of opinion that the provision imposing upon the mine management the 
duty of forwarding a copy of the report to the Inspector should be repealed, and that 
this duty should be cast on the Check Inspector. The President and N1r. Ritchie 
think the Rule had better be amended as above. 

SUGGESTION No. 33. 

From Mr. W. Bower :— 
That the provision in the Act, requiring objections by Unions to proposed Special Rules to be 

forwarded to the Department in print, be repealed. 

153. Mr. Bower, and the other witnesses who nientionecl this subject, have 
been misled by the involved phraseology of section 31 of the present Act, which 
they have uiiderstood to mean that miners who may raise objections to proposed 
special rules must forward them, printed, to the Inspector; whereas in fact the 
provision contained in this section which has been wrongly applied by them is that 

the 



	 	

the oione),s of the mine shall exhibit a printed notice stating that objections may be 
made. The Commission recommend that, in amending the Act, the following re-draft 
of this section be adopted :— 

Section 51. Subsection (2) The owner, manager, or agent, of the mine shall, during not less than 
two weeks before the proposed special rules shall be transmitted to the Inspector, KEEP postED up, or 
cause to be KEPT posted up (in like manner as is provided in this Act respecting the pUbllCatlOfl of 
Special Rules for the information of persons employed in or about the mine) 

the proposed special rides ; and 
a printed notice TO THE EFFECT that any objection to the proposed special rulcs (on the 
ground of anything contained therein or omitted therefrom) may be sent, in writing, by any of 
the persons employed in or about the mine, to the Inspector of the District, at his address, 
which shall be stated in the notice. 

And a certificate that the Rules and notice have been so posted up shall be sent to the Inspector, 
with two copies of the rules, signed by the person sending the same. 

SUGGESTION No. 34. 

From Mr. W. Bower: 
That refuse or small coal should not be stowed behind brattiec in airways. 

154. The Commission consider that the provisions of the Act with regard to 
ventilation sufficiently safeguard the interests of the miners against the practice of 
stowing waste in airways being carried to such in extent as to cause danger by 
interfering with the supply of air: this being the only danger to be apprehended, 
even remotely, from such a practice. The Commissioners are, therefore, of opinion 
that there is no need for any alteration of the law in the direction proposed. 

SUGGESTION No. 35. 

From Mr. T. Coulson, ex-miner, I-Ielensburgli :— 
That an inspection of each mine be made, once in every si months, by a representative of the 

mine (the Under-manager), a representative of the miners (the Cheek Inspector), and the Government 
Inpector, conjointly ; and that the report be published. 

15.. The Commission do not see their way to endorse this recommendation. 

The following are suggestions which have occurred to the Commission when 
considering the evidence :— 

SUGGESTION No. M. 

The Commission recommend that the following be inserted in the Act 
as a new clause :— 

Wherever any duty is imposed upon any Deputy and Shot-firer or Under-manager of a mine by 
virtue of the provisions of the Act such duty may be discharged by the Under- man ager or the Manager. 

SUGGESTION No. 37. 

The Commission recommend that section 20, subsection (1), of Act, 
be amended by omitting certain portions as shown hereunder :— 

20. (1) If in any respect 
poe441-r*s1e) any inspector finds any mine or any pa1t thereof, or any matter, thing, or practice, in or 

connected with any such mine, or with the control, management, or direction, thereof by the manager to 
be dangerous or defective, se-a -l+is-epii$en_to threateis er-tead-te-the-b y4ej-sis f-an- re--ai he may 
give notice in writing thereof to the owner, agent, or manager, of the mine: and lIE shall state in 
the notice the particulars in which ho considers the mine or any part thereof, or any matter, thing, or 
practice, to be dangerous or defective ; and SHALL require the same to be remedied; and TIE shall, 
unless the same be forthwith remedied, report the same to the Minister. 

SUGGESTION No, 38. 
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SUGGESTTON No. 38. 

The Commission recommend that section 25 of the Act be amended as 
follows, in order to provide for the representation of miners at a.rbitrations under 
the Act: 

Section 2 ----With respect to arbitration under this Act, the following provisions shall have effect, 
and, except where they are inconsistent with the provisions of this Act, the provisions of the Arbitration 
Act, 1902, shall apply to arbitrations under this Act :-- 

(a) the parties to the arbitration are in this section (leemeci to be the owner, agent, or manager, of 
the mine, on the one hand, and the Inspecbr of Mines (on behalf of the Minister) on the 
other 

PROVIDED THAT THE PERSONS EMPLOYED IN OR ABOUT THE MINE 
MAY ALSO BE PARTIES TO ANY SUCH ARB[TRATION: AND THAT, IF SUCH 
PERSONS EMPLOYED IN OR ABOUT THE MINE MAKE APPLICATION TO THAT 
EFFECT, THE MINISTER SHALL APPOINT A DISTRICT COURT JUDGE TO BE 
A SINGLE ARBITRATOR IN LIEU OF THE BOARD OF ARBITRATORS 
AFORESAID AND SUCR SINGLE ARBITRATOR SHALL BE ASSISTED BY THE 
ARBITRATOR APPOINTED BY THE MANAGEMENT, AS ASSESSOR, AND BY 
ANOTHER ASSESSOR TO BE APPOINTED BY THE WORKMEN SO MAKING 
APPLICATION. 

(The rest of the section to stand as in Act.) 

SUGGESTION No. 39. 

In order to make provision for the representation of miners at Inquests 
on the victims of colliery accidents, the Commission recommend that section 26 
of Act, subsection (h), be amended by adding words as shown hereunder : - 

(h) any ralative of any person whose death may have been caused by the explosion or accident 
with respect to which the inquest is being held, and the owner, a.ent, or man'ger, of the mine in winch 
the explosion or accident occurred; and any EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF ANY UNION OF 
WORKMEN, OR ANY person appointed by the order in writing of the majority of the workmen 
employed at the-sail-mime ANY MINE WHERE THERE IS NO UNION OF WORKMEN, shall be 
at liberty to attend and examine any witness, either in person or by his counsel, solicitor, or agent. 

SUGGESTION No. 40. 

The Commission recommend that section LS, subsection (2), of Act be 
amended as under :- 

(2) The owner, agent, or manager, of the mine shall, on request at any time of an inspector under 
this Act, produce to him, IN CONFIDENCE, at the office of the mine, such plan and section, and shall 
also on the like request mark WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME on such plan and section the then 
state of the workings of the mine; and the inspector shall be entitled to examine the plan and section, 
and for official purposes AND IN CONFIDENCE only to make a copy of any part thereof respectively, 
AND SHALL NOT ALLOW ANY SUCH PLAN OR TRACING OR COPY THEREOF TO 
LEAVE HIS CUSTODY, OR TO BE COPIED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER 
THAN SUCH AS ARE PROVIDED FOR IN THIS ACT. 

SUGGESTION No. 41. 

The Commission recommend that the following provision be inserted in 
the Act :- 

On application made to a Supreme or District Court Judge, by any person who has been injured in 
any mine, or who ii the legal personal representative of any deceased person whose death was caused by 
injuries received in any mine, after notice to the management (the sufficiency of such notice to be in the 
discretion of the Judge), whether any action has been commenced or not, such Judge shall have po\ves' to 
make an order for the inspection (in eonddeuca) of the mine plan by such person or his legal adviser on 
such terms and conditions as he (the Judge) may think fit provided that the proprietors of the mine shall 
have the right to be represented at such inspection of the plan by any person whom they may appoint. 

The Commission consider that, if this recominentlation be carried out, 
it may prevent., in some cases, useless suits for damages being begun. 

SUGGESTION No. 42. 

The Commission recommend that section 47, General Rule 2 1 (page 35 
of Act), be amended as under :- 

Rule every working or pumping shaft shall be securely 
cased, lined, or otherwise made secure. Every shaft in course of sinking shall be kept clear of all noxious 
AND iNFLAMMABLE gases by a fan or some other appliance. 

SUGGESTION No. 43. 
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SUGGESTION No. 43. 
14.  The Commission recommend that General Rule 24 be struck out and a 

new rule be inserted, as follows :- 

I-en-g+iisg-reassnab1e 

New Rule 21: 
NO SHAFT IN WHICH PEIoNs ARE LOWERED FROM AND RAISED TO THE 

SURFACE OF ANY MINE IN CONNECTION WITH THE ORDINARY WORKING OF 
SUCH MINE SHALL BE USED TO CONDUCT FROM ANY FURNACE TO THE SURFACE 
THE FUMES, SMOKE, HEATED AIR, OR GASES RESULTING FROM COMBUSTION: 

PROVIDED THAT NOTHING IN THIS RULE SHALL BE CONSTRUED TO PREVENT 
WORKMEN BEING RAISED OR LOWERE D IN A SHAFT WHICH IS SO USED, IF SUCH 
WORKMEN ARE ENGAGED TN THE INSPECTION OR REPAIRING OF SUCH SHAFT. 

SUGGESTION No. 44. 

163. The Commission recommend that General Rule 26 (page 36 of Act) be 
amended by striking out words as shown hereunder 

Every working shaft used for the purpose of drawing minerals or for the lowering or raising of 
persons shall 
be provided with guides and some proper means of communicating distinct and definite signals from the 
bottom of the shaft, and from every entrance for the time being in use between the surface and the bottom 
of the shaft, to the surface, and from the surface to the bottom of the shaft, and to every entrance for the 
time being in use between the surface and the bottom of the shaft. 

SUGGESTION No. 45. 

As the Act stands at present, though miners have the right to object to 
any proposed Special Rules, they have no statutory power to propose amendments 
of Rules which have once been put in force. In order to grant them this privilege, 
the Commission recommend that the following new sub-section be added to section 53 
of the Act :- 

(3) After special rules are established in any mine, any modification of them, by way either of 
omission, alteration, substitution, or addition, may he proposed, in writing, to the Inspector of the District, 
for the appioval of time Minister, by any number of persons, employed in or about the mine, being not less 
than one-fourth of those who are directly affected by the rule or rules so proposed to be modified ; and such 
proposed modifications shall be dealt with in like manner as is provided for dealing with amendments 
proposed by the owner, manager, or agent, of the mine under sub-section (1) of this clause 

Provided that the person or persons so proposing amendment of the special rules shall forward at 
the same time to the owner, manager, or agent, of the mine a true copy of the letter to the Inspector in 
which such amendment is proposed. 

SUGGESTION No. 46. 

The Commission recommend that a new section be inserted in the Act 
as follows 

Should any workman become aware of any defect or defects in the condition of the mine or of the 
machinery or appliances connected therewith, or suspect danger from any cause whatever, he shall at once 
report the circumstance to an official of the mine 3 but he shall, if it comes within the scope of his duties, 
and if he is able to do so, remedy such defect or defects ; and, in every case, lie shall, if it appears to him 
to be necessary, take such steps as he may deem possible and advisable to prevent danger to life or injury 
to propem'ty. He shall not use any mnaehinery or other appliance that seems to him to be unsafe, unless 
impelled to do so by time urgency of avoiding imminent danger to life. 

Whenever any danger or defect or supposed danger or defect is reported to in official, such official 
shall, in addition to remedying it, make a memorandum in writing of such report in a book to be kept at 
the colliery for the purpose. 

SUGGESTION No. 47. 

The provision inserted in the suggested alteration of Rule 12 that, when 
explosive charges are to be fired, the bark shall be stripped from all timber within 
a radius of 20 yards, has suggested to the Commission a matter which appears to 
have some considerable importance in relation to the safety of mines from fire; and 
they therefore recommend that, in future, no timber shall be taken into any mine 
unless the hark is first stripped from it. 

29—(i) There 



There are three important reasons for adopting this course, (1st) the danger 
of fire being caused by the leaving of the dry bark on props used or to be used in a 
mine ; (2nd) the similar danger of fire caused by leaving timber in that condition 
in stacks above-ground; and (3rd) the Commission have good reason to believe that 
where such timber as is cut for use as props is kept, after being cut, for some time 
before being used in the mine, its strength and durability are very pieitlicia1ly 
affected by the bark being left on it. 

SUGGESTION No. 48. 

16. The Commission recommend that in Rule 10 the following amendments 
be made :- 

10. Tn any mine er-p 4—ef-a-nshie in which cafetv-lamps are rec1uired by this Act, or by the Special 
Rules made in pursuance of this Act, to be used,— 

To stand as in Act. 
To stand as in Act. 
To stand as in Act. 

(ci) A person shall not have in his possession any lucifer match or apparatus of any kind for striking 
a light OR ANY DESCRTPTION OF CIGARETTE, CIGAR, OR TOBACCOPIPE. 

ptiia_celc4s_ced_aier_aahebe_fuef_e_shot-. 

170. In making t1ese recommendations, the Commission, having no knowledge 
whether, if effect were given to the recommendations, the present Act would be 
amended, or an entirely new Act drafted, have merely recommended that alteration 
be made "in the Act." 

Con c lu si on. 

We have now completed the arduous and responsible duty which Your 
Excellency has seen fit to entrust to us; to the very best of our ability ; with a due 
sense of the honor which Your Excellency has conferred U011 US by this Your 
Commission; and in the earnest hope that the result of our investigations may 
prove of substantial benefit to all concerned in the coal-mining industry of this 
State and to the public generally, and that the avoidance of such disasters as that 
which has led to the holding of this Inquiry may be a result of our endeavours. 
But, before closing our report, we beg leave to bring under Your Excellency's notice 
a few matters connected with the conduct of this Inquiry. First, when we undertook 
it, we were led to expect—and Ave feel that the general public also understood—
that it was likely to be completed within a few weeks from the time of our beginning 
the investigation. It is now,  over six months since Your Excellency's Commission 
was issued, and five months since we first visited the mine, before taking evidence 
at Wollongong. Yet Your Excellency may rest assured that from time first we have 
used our very best endeavours to complete the matter within the earliest possible 
date, and that it was, in the beginning, due to certain unavoidable circumstances 
beyond our control, and has been, since we began our investigation, owing to the 
great extent and complexity of the subjects to be dealt with by us, that the Inquiry 
has been, necessarily, prolonged ; and we assure Your Excellency that we look 
forward to its close with a great sense of relief. Though meeting, as Commissioners, 
at certain times which appear on the minutes, as frequently as was possible, consistently 
with our own other unavoidable duties and the ability of our staff to keep the work 
from overrunning their most zealous endeavours to cope with it, we may be 
permitted to inform Your Excellency that the hours, by day and night, also devoted 
T)y us to work connected with the Inquiry bear a very large proportion to time 
time which the minutes disclose as having nominally been consumed by us on 
the duties incident to the Inquiry. And these remarks naturally lead us to a 
mention of the ability, industry, and zeal, displayed by time staff employed 
in the secretarial, reporting, and general work of the Commission; which we are 
very pleased to have this opportunity of acknowledging. And, especially, we desire 
to express our indebtedness to Mr. John Gariick, time Secretary and principal 
Shorthand-writer, for the very remarkable ability, the unremitting attention and 
zeal, the cheerfulness and tact, and time extraordinary industry, which he has 
displayed throughout, and which have been of quite invaluable assistance to us, 
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from the very first moment of his appointment to the completion of the report, in 
the framing of winch his powers of orderly arrangement and of composition, his 
industry, and his understanding and recollection of the evidence, i crc of such service 
to us that we feel convinced tliiit without his valuable aid we should have taken a 
very much longer time, and should have had incalculably more labour and difficulty, 
in completing our work. We most strongly recommend Mr. Garlick to Your 
Excellency's notice, 1)0th as an officer especially entitled to consideration on account 
of 1nciit and ability,  and as one who, in this particilar instance, deserves a very 
substantial recognition of his services, winch we can safely say have saved much 
expense to the State ; while Ave are aware that, in the course of the performance of 
his duties, continuing for months, lie uncomplainingly devoted extraordinarily long 
hours to very fatiguing work. We have also to thank the various permanent I-leads 
of Departments, and the members of their stall', with whom we have come in 
contact, and especially the Chief Inspector of Coal Mines, for the valuable assistance, 
the courtesy and consideration, which they have extended to us, thereby very 
effectively assisting us in various ways in the course of our Inquiry. 

We have the honor to be, 

Your Excellency's most obedient Servants, 

(Sd.) C. F. H. MURRAY, 
President. 

(Sd.) D. A. W. ROBERTSON, 
Uommissionev. 

(Sd.) DAVID RITCHIE, 
Cwn inissionci'. 

.sSydflCL/, 2Wey 20, 13. 



  

	

ROYAL COIYI1IISSION OF INQUIRY RESPECTING THE MOUNT KEIvIBLA 

COLLIERY DISASTER. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

FRIDAY, 5TH DECEMBER, 190. 

[District Court Offices, Sydney.] 

Present —His Honor Mr. District Court Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; 
D. Ritchie, Esq. 

Mr. J. Garlick, Principal Short-handwriter to the Public Service Board, attended the meeting as 
Secretary to the Commission. 

By direction of the President the Secretary read the Commission, which was found to be dated 
5t} November, 1902, and to have currency for one month. 

The President moved, and it was resolved,—" That the Secretary be instructed to write to the 
Principal Under Secretary, asking that the currency of the Commission he extended for one month." 

A letter from the Secretary to the Public Service Board to the President, dated 3rd December, 1902, 
notifying the appointment of Mr. J. Garlick as Secretary and Shorth and -wri ter to the Commission was read 
and received. 

It was resolved, after discussion, that the Commission should visit Mount Kembla Mine on Tuesday 
and Wednesday, the 9th and 10th December, 1902 ; and that the first sittings for the taking of evidence 
should be held at the Court house, Wollongong, on Tuesday, the 16th December, at 11-30 am. 

As the Commission desired to sit from (lay to day continuously, the Secretary was directed to write 
to the Under Secretary, Department of Mines, asking for the necessary assistance. A letter in accordance 
with this resolution was submitted and approved. 

The Secretary reported that, by direction of the President, he had written the following letters, 
which were read and approved :- 

Dated 4/12/02, to Mr. Barry, solicitor, as to date of meeting. 
Dated 4/12/02, to Under Secretary for Mines, asking for advance of £50 for expenses. 
Dated 4/12/02, to Under Secretary for Mines, asking for railway ticket order book. 
Dated 4/12/02, to Under Secretary for Mines, asking for authority to obtain stationery, &c. 
Dated 4/12/02, to Secretary Public Service Board, asking for assistance of shorthand-writer and two 

typists. 
Dated 4!12/02, to Under Secretary for Mines, asking for assistance of shorthand-writer and two 

typists. 
Dated 4/12/02, to A. A. Lysaght, Esq., solicitor, as to date of meeting and proposed procedure. 
Dated 5/12/02 do 

The Secretary submitted a draft of an advertisement to be inserted in each of the Sydney and 
Wollongong papers. The draft was approved. 

The Secretary reported that he had made personal application to the Department of Justice for the 
use of the Court House, Wollongong, for the sittings of the Commission ; but it had been found that the 
Court House could not be spared on Mondays and Thursdays, and the Justice Department suggested that 
the Town Hall should be secured. 

The Commissioners then waited personally upon the Under-Secretary, Department of Justice, who 
promised to arrange for the use of the Court House to be granted, as the Commissioners considered the 
Town Hall to be unsuitable. 

Mr. Barry (Curtiss and Barry, Solicitors), representing the Mount Kembla Coal and Oil Company, 
then waited on the Commission, and suggested that the investigations of the Commission should be 
conducted without allowing legal assistance to any of the parties, who should furnish the Commission with 
the names of their witnesses, but leave the questioning of those witnesses, the eliciting of evidence, to the 
Commission. By this plan, he said, all feeling would be eliminated from the proceedings, and the parties 
would be saved much expense. 

The President, after consulting his colleagues, informed Mr. Barry that the Crown proposed to be 
represented by Counsel, and if other parties desired to be represented the Commission could not see their 
way to refuse, Apart from that the presence of legal gentlemen would be a help to the Commissioners, 
upon whom much work would devolve if they had to elicit the evidence themselves. 

Mr. Barry was informed that the Commission intended to visit the mine on Tuesday and Wednesday. 
He then withdrew. 

The meeting then adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 5th December, 1902. 
Minutes read and confirmed at meeting on 22nd December, 1902.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

December 22, 1902. 

MINUTES 



	

	

  

MINUTES OF MEETING, 

TUESDAY, 16TH DECEMBER, 1902. 

[The Commission met at 1050 am. at the Railway Station, Wo1longong. 

Present :—His Honor Mr. District Court Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; 
D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission drove to Mount Kembla Mine, which they entered by the Main Tunnel, turning 
off along the No. 1 Right engine road. The reads leading into the 35 acre goaf were inspected, and, after 
proceeding to the end of the No. 1 Right engine road, the Commission returned by the travelling road 
parallel to it. 

Mr. W. Rogers, Mine Manager, 1\lr, I{otcbkis, Under Manager, and Mr. Morrison, Fireman, 
accompanied ftc Commission on this inspection. 

The Commission then adjourned until next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, December 16th, 1902. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President, 

December 22, 1902. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 17TII DECEMBER, 1902. 

[Toe Commission met at Wollongong,] 

Present :—His Honor Mr. District Court Judge Murray (President), P. A. W. Robertson, Esq., 
D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission drove to Mount Kenibla Mine, which they entered by the Main Tunnel, accompanied 
by Mr. W. Rogers, Mine Manager, Mr. Hotchkis, Under-Manager, and Mr. Morrison, fireman. They 
proceeled along the Main Tunnel as far as the ventilating shaft and furnace, examining, on the way, portions 
of the No 3 Right, No. 4 Right, and No. 5 Right roads. After inspecting the furnace the Commission 
traversed No. 6 Right rope road, and proceeded through the workings to Powell's flat, Price's flat, 
Stafford's Lord, thence to the -acregoaf and through the workings to the back heading of No. 1 Rig 
r 

ht 
ope road. There, what were taken to he indications of fire at the time of the explosion were seen, and 

samples of apparently coked coal-dust were taken for purposes of analysis. The Commission then inspected 
bore! No. 87, and in the first line of cuts-through off this Lord other indications of fire were found. 
Specimens of coal-dust were taken from a prop in this portion of the mine for anali sis also. The 
Commission returned by way of No, 1 Right engine road. 

The Commission then adjourned until Monday, 22nd Dccernber, at their Room, 72A Phillip-street 
Sydney. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, December 17, 1902, 
Confirmed.—C. E. R. MURRAY, Pmvsident, 

December 22, 1902. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 22ND DECEMBER, 1902. 

[The Commission met at the Board Room, No. 72A Phihlip-street, Sydney, at 11 am. 1 
Present:—His Honor Mr. District Court Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. 

D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the thi'ee preceding meetings were read and confirued. 
It was resolved that the Commission should sit at Wollongong on Tuesday, 6ili January, 1903, and 

following days for the purpose of taking evidence. The Secretary was instructed to so notify all persons 
concerned. 

The Secretary reported having written to the Principal Under-Secretary asking for the extension of 
the Commission for one month as resolved at the meeting on the 5th instant. The reply of the Principal 
Under-Secretary (dated 10th December, 1902), was read and received. The Secretary was instructed to 
acknowledge the receipt of the Governor's minute extending the Commission, and to ask for a further 
extension of one month. 

A letter from the Secretary to the Mount Kenibla Coal and Oil Company, containing a list of 
witnesses whom the Company desire the Commission to examine, was received, and the Secretary was 
instructed to inform the Company that their request would be acc ded to. (Dated 18th December, 1902). 

A letter from the Secretary to the Mount Kemb!a Coal ai ci Oil Company (dated 18th December, 
1902), asking that, in the event of certain wItIes.s( s being called, they might be exanimird in Sydney, was 
received. Instructions were given to reply that the request would be granted. 

A letter from George Lyehi, miner, Nvniagee, offering to give evidence, was received, and the 
Secretary reported having written to Mr. Lyel: asking what was the nature of the evidence lie could give. 
The Secretary's action was endorsed. 

A letter from Mr. Lyaghit, solicitor, dated 8th December, 1902, stating that lie had been instructed 
to appear before the (Joniniissioner on behalf of (a) m'ep'esentatires of deccasi dl miners, wheelers, &c. (victims 
of the explosion) ; (b) employees of Mount Keinbla Colliery ; and (e) the Illawarra Colliery Employees' 
Association, was received. The Secretary was insti ucted to ask Mr. Lysaghit for a list of the witnesses 
whom lie proposed to call, with an estimae of the time their examination would occupy. 

A letter from the Honorable the Minister for Mines was received (dated 1 itli December, 1902) 
appointing Mr. W. B. Pratt to be Assistant Shorthand-writer to the Cowriiission. 

A letter dated 8th December, 1902, was received from Mi'. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of 
Coal-mines, forwarding a lithograph plan of N unit Kembha Mine, with particulars noted thereon from the 
evidence given by the witnesses at the Coronem"a Inquest respecting the explosion. 

The 
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The Secretary submitted an amended draft advertisement for ineertion in the newspapers in milling 
districts, together with a paragraph to be supplied to the papers inviting persons possessed of information 
respecting the questions to be inquired into by the Commission to communicate with the Secretary. The 
advertisement and paragraph were approved. 

Afcer discussion, it was resolved that for minors from the Illawarra District attending to give 
evidence the Commission should iay lOs. per day, together with the necessary coach and train fares, for 
other witnesses it was res1ved to adopt the District Court scale oF fees. 

It was furrher resolved that, in order to facilitate the kecping of a prpper check, witnesses should 
be required to sign an Attendance Book each day tbey were necessarily in attendance upon the Court on 
subpcena, and that they should only be paid for the days on which their attendance could be authenticated 
by their signatures in that Book. 

The Commission then proceeded to consider the evidence taken at the Coroner's Inquest, in 
conjunction with the plan of the mine. 

At 1'15 the Commission adjourned for lunch, resuming at 230 p.m. 
The Commission further considered the evidence. 
The Secretary was instructed to write to the Mines Department for a copy of the l\Iining Act of 

1876 and to ask if there was any record in the Department of any persons having been burnt in Mount 
Kecnbla i\iine prior to 31st July, 1902. 

A quantity of formal correspondence respecting the supply of a Railway Ticket Order Book, the 
Royal Commissions Act No. 23-1901, the Depositions at the Inquest, the furnishing of the Board Room, 
the arrangements to inspect the nine, &c., &c., was read and received. 

At 445 the Commission adjourned until next day. 

J. Giier.icic, Secretary, December 22nd, 1902. 
Confirined.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 23RD DECEMBER, 1902. 

[The Commission met at 10 am. on Tuesday, 23rd December, 1902, at the Board Room, No. 72a, 
Phillip-street, City.] 

Present :—His Honor Mr. District Court Judge Murray (President) ; I). A. W. Robertson, Esq. 
P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of last meeting were read and confirmed. 
The Secretary reported that lie had written a number of letters as directed by the Commission on 

the previous day. The letters were read and approved. 
The Secretary reported that lie had written to the Government Analyst asking that officer to make 

rniscroseopical and analytical tests of the specimens of coal-dust taken at the inspection of the Mount 
Keuibla Coal 11ine. 

The Commission instructed the Secretary to 01)1(1111 for them a copy of Dr. Haldane's report on 
colliery explosions. 

The Secretary submitted particulars of the cash expended to date, amounting to £7 5s. 3d. The 
expenditure was approved. 

The Commission then adjourned until Tuesday, 30th instant. 

J. GAISLICK, Secretary, December 2.3rd, 1002. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President, 

December 30th, 1902. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAt, 30TH DECEMBER, 1902. 

[The Commission met at the Board Room, 72x, Plnliip-street, Syclircy, at 10 n.m.] 

Present —His Honor Mr. District Court Judge Murray (President) P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. 
P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Minutes of the previous Meeting were read and confirmed. 
A letter from Mr. George Lyehl, sear., miner of Nynaagee, giving particular's of the nature of the 

evidence lie desired to give before the Commission, was read; and the Secretary was directed to inform 
Mr. Lyell that the Commission, while thanking him for his offer to give evidence, did not think it would 
be necessary to put him to the trouble of attending for that purpose. 

The Secretary was directed to remind Mr. Lysaght and the Secretary of the Mount Kernbla Company 
respecting the list of witnesses asked for. 

The Comnissiori then proceeded with their reading of the depositions taken at the Coroner's Inquest. 
At 1 '5 p.m. the Commission adjourned for luncheon, resuming at 215 p.m. 
After the adjournment the Commission continued their reading and consideration of the depositions 

taken at the Coroner's Inquest. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next clay. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, December 30th, 1902. 
Confirnsed.—C. B. R. MURRAY, President, 

January 7th, 1903. 

MINUTES 



	 

  

MINUTES OF MEETING, 

WEDNESDAY, 31sT DEcEMBER, 1902. 

[The Commission met at the Board Boom, No, 72a, Phillip.street, Sydney, at 930 am.] 

Pics'nt :—His Honor Judge Murray (President.) P. A. W. Robertson, Faq, ; P. J3itcliie, Esq. 

A letter from Mr. A. Stevenson, of Beechwood, formerly a miner at Mount Kembla, in which he 
offered to attend as a witness, was received. The Secretary was instructed to obtain further information 
from Mr. Stevenson as to the nature of the evidence he could give. 

The Commission then inoceeded with the further consideration of the evidence taken at the inquest. 
At 12'30 p.m. the Commission adjourned until Tuesday, the 6th of January, at Wollongong. 

J. Gaisuei, Secretary, December 31st, 1902. 
Con Ii med—C. E. R MURRAY, President, 

January 7th, 1903. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, OTIS JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Cominisson met at the Court-house, Wollongong, at 1115 am. in the Judge's Room.] 
rsene :—I[is Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

Letters from Messrs. J. \V. Bailey, Johnathan May, Silcock, and Mrs. A. Nixon were read, and the 
ecretary was instructed as to the replies to be sent. 

The Commission then adjourned to the Court-room. Mr. Wade, on behalf of the Mount Kerubla 
Coal Company, objected to Mr. Ritchie's sitting as a member of the Commissicn, in view of certain slate- 
memds made by Mr. Ritchie when giving evidence at the Coroner's Inquest. Mr. Wade appealed to Mr. 
Ritchie to withdraw. 

The President expressed every confidence in Mr. Ritchie as a perfectly fair, independ€nt, unbiassed, 
unprejudiced and iionorabe member of the Commission. 

Mr. Ritchie said his conclusions would be based entirely on the evidence brought before the 
Commission, apart altogether from any opinion he may have previously formed. 

Mr. Wade expressed himself as perfectly satisfied to go on after what His Honor and Mr. Ritcliie 
has said. 

Mr. Lysaglit submitted a numimber of recommendations from the Miners' Union Delegate Board, and 
from the Mount Kembla Branch of the Union. 

Mr. Lysaghmt then called Mr. T. II. Morgan, whose evidence was taken. 
At 1 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m. 
At 2 p.m. the examination of Mr. l\Jorgdn was continued ; and he was cross examined by Messrs. 

Wade and L'ruce Smith. 
The Commission desided to sit each week on 

\\ollongong. 
Tuesdays, Wednesdays, and Thursdays, while taking 

evidence of local WitileSseS in 
At 515 p.m. the Commission adjourned till 930 am, next day. 

J. (bsnaicic, Secretary, .January 6th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. Ti. MURRAY, President, 

January 7101,  1903. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 7T1 JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 930 n.m. in the Judge's Room, Courthouse, Woihongong.] 
Irssent :—iIis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Minutes of the meetings held on 30th December, 1902, 31st December, 1902, and 6th January, 
1903, were read and confirm d. 

It was resolved that the depositions and exhibits put in at the Coroner's Inquest be put in as 
evidence before the Commission. 

At 10 n.m. the Commission adjourned to the Court-room, sitting until 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. to 
4'10 p.m. 

The evidence of the following witnesses was taken —Biggers, E. ; Maguire, J. O'Sullivan, F. 
Quinn, Al. 

At 440 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 915 cm. next clay. 
J. CAmS nica, Secretary, January 7th, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

THURSDAY, Sims JANUARY, 1903 

[The Commission met at 9-15 am, in the Jud-e's Room, Court-house, Wollongong.] 
Present .'—T-Iis Honor .Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirnicd. 

A letter from Mr. .1. Jivan, offering to give evidence, was received, and the Secretary was directed 
to inform Mr. livami that be would be summnondecl on some convenient day. 

The Secretary was directed to ask theMines Department for a copy of the report of-ii accident 
which occurred through a fall of the roof of a colliery in South \\ales. 

At 



	

	

At 930 the Commission adjourned to the Court-room, for the purpose of taking evidence. They sat 
from 930 till 1, and from 2 till 3 p.m. 

The following witnesses were examined —Mr. C. Smith, Mr. F. McDonald. 
At 3 p.m. the Commission adjourned till 1130 a.m. next Tuesday. 

J. Gucic, January 8th, 1903. 
Confirmed. - C. E. R. MURRAY, President, 

January 13th, 1903. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 13TH JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met in the Judge's Room, Wollongong Court-house, at 11 a.m.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed. 
The accounts for the period between December 30th and January 12th, amounting to £17 17s. id., 

were read in detail and approved by the Commission. The Secretary was instructed to ask the Under 
Secretary for Mines to take the necessary steps to replenish the Commission's advance by the aniount 
expended to date £24 12s. lOd. 

Formal correspondence was submitted and approved as written. 
The Commission adjourned to the Court-room at 1130 a.m., sitting till 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. till 

4'lo p.m. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. J. Silcock, Mr. J. May. 
At 410 p.m. the Commission adjourned till 930 am, next clay. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, Piesident. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
WEDNESDAY, 14'rii JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met in the Judge's Room, Wollongong Court-house, at 9'30 a.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed. 
It was resolved that maps used to illustrate the evidence of witnesses at the Coroner's Inquest, but 

not put in as exhibits, at that inquest, should be put in as exhibits before the Commission. 
At 10 a.m. the Commission adjourned to the Court-room, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 2 till 450 p.m. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. J. May, Mr. A. Hicks. 
At 450 p.m. the Commission adjourned till 9-30 cm. next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, January 14th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

THURSDAY, lorii JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 930 a.m. in the Judge's Room, Court-house, Wollongong.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed. 
Letters were received from Mr. Stevenson, Hastings River; and Mr. Dawson, Moss Vale ; which 

the Secretary was instructed to acknowledge. - 
Formal correspondence with the Under Secretary, Department of Mines, was submitted and 

approved. 
At 10 a.m. the Commission adjourned to the Court-room, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 2 to 3 p.m 
The following witnesses were examined :—J. Sweeney, J. Sells. 
At 3 p.m. the Commission adjourned till 930 a.m. on Tuesday next. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, January 15th, 1903. 
Confirmed.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEErING. 

TUESDAY 20TH JANUARY, 1903. 

The Commission met in the Judge's Room, Court-house, Woflongong, at 930 a.m. 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed. 
The Secretary submitted details of the expenditure between 13th and 19th instant, amounting 

to £16 19s., which was passed by the Commission; and the Secretary directed to ask for the advance to be 
replenished by that sum. 

A letter from Mr. J. W. Bailey, as to evidence which he desires to give before the Commission, was 
received, and the Secretary was instructed to inform lnm that he would be called later on. 

The Secretary was directed to write to the Principal Under Secretary, asking for the extension of 
the Commission by one month. Letters 



	

	

Letters were received from the Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture regarding expenses of 
staff, and report of accident in South Wales. 

A letter was received from the Institution of Surveyors, N.S.W., asking the Commission to investigate 
the necessity for requiring mining surveyors to pass a qualifying examination. The Secretary was instructed 
to reply that the matter would receive consideration. 

The Secretary submitted a letter which he had written to the Under Secretary for Mines and 
Agriculture respecting the payment of Mr. Pratt, the assistant shorthand-writer. The letter was approved. 

At 10 a.m. the Commission adjourned to the Court-room, sit' ing till 1 p.m., and from 2' 15 till 410 
p.m. 

The following witnesses were examined —Mr. J. Sells, Mr. W. Marshall, Mr. R. Scott. 
At 410 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next day at 0 - 30 a.m. 

J. Gueucic, Secretary, January 20th, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 
- January 21st, 1903. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

'WEDNESDAY, 21ST JANUARY, 1903 

The Commission met in the Judge's Room, Court-house, %Vollongong. 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the last meeting were read and confirmed. 
A letter from the Under Secretary for Mines was read, stating that Mr. Pratt is to be paid only 

for time employed. 
A letter from the Government Analyst, giving the results of his tests of two samples of coal-dust 

from Mount Kemnbla, was read. The Secretary was instructed to obtain for him samples of the coal in the 
ru) of the back heading where the dust was taken from the wall of coal. 

The Secretary was further directed to obtain samples of dust from the roadway in No. 1 Main 
Level letween the 4th Right and the 4th Left. 

At 10 a.m, the Commission adjourned to the Court-room, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 215 till 3'20 p.m. 
The following witnesses were examined :—P. (leeson, M. A. Gleeson, C. Hanimon, W. Harley. 
At 320 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 930 next day. 

J. GARLICI, Secretary, January 21st, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

January 22nd, 1903. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TIIURSDAY, 22ND JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met in the Judge's Room, Court-house, Wollongong, at 930 a.m.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of last meeting were read and confirmed. 
The Secretary was instructed to write to the Sheriff and ascertain whether the use of a Court at 

Dat linghurst could be granted to the Commission for use after the taking of evidence at Wollongong shall 
have been completed also to arrange for offices for the Staff, as the lease of the office at present in use will 
expire on 31st instant. 

A letter was received from the Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture stating that the 
Government Printer would prefer the evidence to be printed on completion, not as the inquiry proceeded. 

At 10-15 a.m. the Commission adjourned to the Court, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 2 to 3 p.m. 
The evidence of the following witnesses were taken :—J. MeLeod. S. Midgley, J. Raynor, C. Josland. 
At 3 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 11-30 am., Tuesday next. 

J. Ciuicjc, Secretary, 22nd January, 1903. 

Confirmed—C, E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 27TH JANUARY, 1903. 
[The Commission met in the Judge's Room, Court-house, Wollongong, at 11'16 a.m.] 

Present '—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. P. Ritchie, Esq. 
The Secretary submitted particulam's of the amount expended during the period between the 19th 

and 26th instant, £20 15s. 81, and was directed to ask the Under Seeretary for Mines to replenish the 
Commission's Advance Account by that sum. 

A letter was received from the Sheriff, stating that the Commission might have the use of the Land 
Appeal Court for its sittings in Sydney. 

A letter was received from Mr. Coulson, of Helensburgh, offering to give evidence. The Secretary 
was instructed to ask Mr. Coulson forparticulars of the evidence he desires to place before the Commission. 

At 11 '35 the Commission adjourned to the Court Room, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 2 till 4. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. J. 'Wynn, Mr. J. Morrison, 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 9-30 a. m. next clay. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 27th January, 1903. 
Confii'nied.--C. E. U. MURRAY, President. 
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MINUTES OF MEETING. 
WEDNESDAY, 28T11 JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Judge's Room, Wollongong Court-house, at 930 a.m. ] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the last two meetings were read and confirmed. 
A letter was reeeivsd from the Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture, asking that a copy of 

Mr. Jonathan May's statement, which the Commission declined to accept in evidence on the 14th instant, 
be supplied to the Department. The Commission decided that, as the statement was not admitted in 
evidence, they could not comply with the Under Secretary's request. 

A letter was received from the Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture, with further reference 
to the method of payment of Mr. Pratt, Assistant Shorthand-writer. 

At 10 a.m.the Commission adjourned to the Court Room,sitting from 10 till 1255, and from 2 till 4 p.m. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Henry Jubb, W. Livingstone, Alexander McDonald. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 930 a.m. next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 28th January, 1903. 
Confirmed.— C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
THURSDAY, 29'rii JANUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 930 am. in the Judge's Room, Wohlongong Court-house.] 

l'resent :—His Honor Judge Murray, (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the last meeting were read and confirmed. 
After formal correspondence had been submitted, the Commission adjourned to the Court Room, 

sitting from 10 a.m. till 1 p.m., and from 2 to 230 p.m. 
Thefollowing witnesses were examined:—A. McDonald, Thos. Muir, Thos. Johnson. 
At 230 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 2 p.m. on Monday, 2nd February. 

J. G.armici, Secretary, 2nd February, 1903. 
Confirmed.—C. E. It. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
MONDAY, 2ND FEBRUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinghurst, at 2 p.m.] 

l'reseed :—His Honor Judge Murray (President.); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was examined :—John Morrison. 
At 5 p.m. the Commission adjourned until 930 a.m. next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 2nd February, 1903, 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
TUESDAY, 3RD FEBRUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 930 a.m. in Mr. Houston's Room, at the Land Appeal Court.] 

Present .--His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the previous meeting were read and confirmed. 
Formal correspondence was read and received. 
A letter was received from the Under Secretary Department of Mines and Agriculture, asking for 

an estimate of the probable cost of the Commission. The Secretary was instructed to prepare one on the 
supposition that the Commission will conclude its work in two months' time ; but to infonn the Department, 
when forwarding the estimate, that it can only be regarded as a rough approximation. 

It was resolved that the Commission should meet for the transaction of business on Mondays at 
1030 a.m. ; other meetiugs to be for the takiug of evidence only. 

It was decided to recommend the Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture to grant £5 to the 

Sheriff's Officer, and Court Keeper, Wollongong, for extra services rendered to the Commission while taking 
evidence there during January. 

At 1015 a.m the Commission adjourned to the Land Appeal Court, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 

2 till 330 p.m. 
The evidence of the following witnesses was taken :—Mr. J. Morrison, Mr. J. Heron, Mr. Biggers. 

At 3 30 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 
J. Gusucic, Secretary, 3rd February, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
WEDNESDAY, 4TH FEBRUARY, 1903. - 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlingburst, at 10 a.m.] 

l'resent :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was examined :—A. A. Atkinson, Req., Chief Inspector of Coal Mines. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission aujou rued. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 4th February, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MIN UTTdF 



  

MINUTES OF MEETING, 

TII1JRSDAY, 5Th FEBRUARY, 1903. 

rT].1e Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlingburst, at 10 am.] 

Present: His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robert on, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The evidence of the following witness was taken :—A. A. Atkinson, Esq., Chief-Inspector of Coal- 
mines. 

At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 5th February, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 9TH FEBRUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at Darlingliurst Court-house at 2 p.m.] 

l'vesent :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Minutes of the meetings held on January 29, and on February 2nd, 3rd, 4th, and 5th were 
read and confirmed. 

The Secretary submitted particulars of the expenditure of the Commission for the weeks ended 
January 31st, and Febtuai-y 7th, amounting to £17 7s. Gd. and £5 17s. 7d. respectively, and was instructed 
to apply to the Under Secretaiy for Mines and Agriculture for the advance account to Le replenished to 
the extent of the amount expended. 

An anonymous letter signed Bulb i\Iiner" was received. 
The Secretary submitted an estimate of the probable cost of the Conimision, based on the past 

expenditure, and on the assumption that the Commission would last another eight weeks. Directions were 
given that the Under Secretary for Nines be informed of the amount of the estimate, roughly £1,200. 

At 215 the Commission adjourned to the Land Appeal Court, Sitting till 4 p.m. 
The following witness was examined:—Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Ccal-niin s. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next clay. 

J. Gcnucic, Secretary, 9th February, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

T[JESDAY, lOTu FEBRUARY, 1903. 
[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, D;rrhnghurst, at 10 a m.] 

P,esent :—IIis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. I1oherson, Es3., D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was examined —Mr. A. A. Atkinson. 
The Commission adjourned from 1 till 2 p.m., when the examination of Mr. Atkinson was contnucd. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next clay. 

J. GARLIC:C, Sccretary, February 10t1j, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. II. MURRAY, Preeclent. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 11TH Fsnrwiin-, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlingliurst, at 10 a.ni., and sat till 1 p.m. and from 
2 p.m. till 4 p• 

I'iesent:—Ilis Honor Judge Murray (President); P. A. W. Robertson, Es1. ; D. Ritchie, Ej. 

The following witness was examined :—Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines. 
At 1 pm the Commission adjourned until next day. 

Confirmed--C. E. R. MURRAY, Pesident. 
J. GARLICK, Secretary, February lIt!,, 1903. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

Tuu I1SDAY, 1 2T11 FEBRUARY, 1903. 

The Comiuindoii met at (lie Land Appeal Court., Dar1inghurs, at 10 am., and sat from 10 till 1, and from 
2 till 245 p.m. 

rresent :—Ilis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; ID. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; ]). Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were. examined —Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines ; and 
Mr. B. IT. Canibage. 

At 245 p.m. the Commission adjourned, as counsel were not prepared to continue the further 
examination of Mr. Atkinson until they had i-eacl through the remainder of his eN idence, given by hint this 
morning. 

J. Ganuca, Secretary, February 12th, 103. 
Ccnfirmecl.—C. E. B. MURRAY,  President. 

MINUTES 



MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 16TH FEBRUARY, 1903. 

The Commission met in Mr. Houston's room at the Court-house, Darlinghurst, It 1030 am. 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the meetings held on 9th, 10th, 11th, and 12th February were read and confirmed. 
Formal correspondence was dealt with. 
At 11 am, the Commission met in the Land Appeal Court, rising at 1 p.m. They sat again from 

2 till 4 p.m. 
The following witness was further examined:—A. A. Atkinson, Esq., Chief Inspector of Coal-mines. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, February 16th, 1903. 
Confirmed--C. E. 11. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 17TH FEBRUARY, 1903. 

The Commission met at 10 am. at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinghurst. 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 10 am. to 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. to 4 p.m. 
The following witnesses were examined:—J. W. Bailey, T. Coulson, A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector 

of Coal-mines. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. Gucic, Secretary, February 17th, 1903. 
Confirmed.—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 18TH FEBRUARY, 1903. 

The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinghurst, at 1145 am., and sat till 1 p.m., resuming 
again at 2 p.m. and sitting till 415 p.m. 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was examined :—W. Bower, Check Inspector, Newcastle. 
At 415 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, February 18th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

ThURSDAY, 19Tn FEBRUARY, 1903 

[The Commission met at the Land Appeal Court, Darlinghurst, at 10 am., sitting till 1 p.m. and from 2 
p.m. till 410 p.m.] 

Present —His Honor Judge Murray (President); P. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were examined : —W. Bower, M. Gray, J. Patterson. 
At 410 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. G.&inici, Secretary, February 19th, 1903. 
Confirmed.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 23RD FEBRUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission sat at the Treasury, Macquarie-street, Sydney, from 11 a.m. till 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. 
till 4'25 p.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was examined —Mr. A. E. 0. Sellers, Manager, South Bulli and Bellambi 
Coal-mines. 

At 425 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next day. 
J. GARLICK, 23rd February, 1903. 

Conflrmed.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MINUTES. 

TUESDAY, 24TH FEBRUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission sat at the Supreme Court, Sydney, from 10 am. till 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. till 410 p.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was examined :—Mr. A. E. 0. Sellers, Manager, South Bnlli and Bellambi 
Collieries. 

At 410 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next day. 
J. GARLICK, Secretary, February 24th, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES 



MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 25TH FEBRUARY, 1903, 

[The Commission sat at the Supreme Court from 2 p.m. till 440 p.m.] 
Present :—}Iis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witness was exaniined —Mr. D. McGeachie, Manager, West Walisend Colliery. 
At 440 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. Gaaicic, Secretary, February 25th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President, 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TTILTRSDAY, 26'iis FEBRUARY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 930 a.ni. at the Supreme Court, King-street, Sydney.] 
Present .'----I{is Honor Judge Murray (President) ; ID. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of meetings held on 1 6th, 170), 18th, and 19th instant were read and confirmed. 
A letter dated 1 Gtl-  instant was received from Mr. Jonathan May asking for Copies of plans prepar ci 

by Mr. Cambage, or to be allowed to see them. Secretary's reply was read, informing Mr. May that he 
might see the plans at the office of the Commission. 

A letter dated 17th instant was received from the Under Secretary for Mii]es, forwarding a letter 
dated 11th idem, sent by Mi'. Ehemiezer Vickery to the Premier, suggesting that certain gentlemen be called 
as witnesses. It was decided to place the letter before Mr. Wade, counsel for the Mount Kembla Company. 

Letters were received from Messes, Bower, Gray, and Paterson, witnesses, asking for further payment 
for expenses. The Commission decided to grant Mr. Bower an additional day's fee, lOs., and expenses, 7s. 
Gd. ; Mr. Bailey, the same ; Gray, lOs. fees ; and Paterson, lOs. fees, and 7s. Gd. expenses. 

A letter was received from the Government Analyst, dated 16th instant, giving the results of his 
analysis of the coal from the face of No. 1 main back heading. 

The Secretary was instructed to write to the Principal Under Secretary asking for the extension of 
the Commission for one month. 

A letter dated 21st February, 1903, was received from Mr. W. Bower, Check Inspector, Northei n 
District, forwarding two documents referred to in his evidence. 

The Secretary submitted details of the accounts for the period between 9th and 21st February, 
totalling £9 1 7s. id. The expenditure was approved and the Secretary was instructed to apply for the 
advance account to be reimbursed by that sum. 

Accounts from various newspaper proprioters, rcceived through the Government Printer, for £7 4s., 
were passed for payment. 

At 10 n.m. the Commission sat for the taking of evidence, continuing till 1 p.m. and from 2 p.m. till 
3'45 p.m. 

The following witnesses were examined —Mr. S. H. \Varburbn, Surveyor, Mount Kembla Mine, 
Mr. A. E. 0. Sellers, Manager, South Bulli and Bellambi Collieries. 

At 345 p.m. the Commission adjourned till Monday, 2nd Mardi, at 2 p.m. 
J. Gusuorc, Secretary, February 26th, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 2ND MARdI, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 2 p.m. at the Supreme Court, Sydney.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were examined :—W. Hay, J. Barr. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, March 2nd., 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 3rd MAItcsl, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 930 a.m. at the Supreme Court, Sydney.] 
Present '—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the meetings held on 23rd, 24th, 25th, and 26th February, and on 2nd March, were 
read and confirmed. 

The Secretary submitted a statement of the cash expended between 23rd and 28th February, 1903, 
£8 12s. Sri., which was approved, and the Secretary was instructed to apply to the Under Secretary for 
Mines with a view to replenish the advance account by that sum. 

A letter was received from the Police Department reporting on the claim of Mr. John Heron, a 
witness, for payment of further fees and expenses. The Commission approved of the payment of an 
additional day's fee, lOs., and coach fare, 3s., directing that the latter be sent to the coach proprietor direct, 
and that 2s. be  deducted from the former on account of payment of coach fare already made to Mr. Heron, 
but not paid by him to the coach proprietor. 

A letter was received from Mr. J. Goodwin stating his desire to give evidence before the Commission. 
A 



	

A letter was received from the Under Secretary for Mines conveying the Minister's approval to 
payment of a bonus of £5, to Sheris Officer Boys of Wollongong, as recommended by the Commission. 

At 10 am. the Commission adjourned to the Court Room, sitting till 1245, and from 1-45 till 
420 p.m. 

The following witnesses were examined —Mr. J. Barr, Mr. G. Leitch. 
At 420 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. Gumicic, Secretary, March 3rd, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 4TH MARCH, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 10 n.m. at the Supreme Court, Sydney, sitting till 1245 p.m., and from 145 p.m. 
till 4 p.m.] 

?reseat :--His Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were examined --Mr. J. C. Jones, Dr. J. R. M. Robertson. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day, 

J. Ganuca, Secretary, March 4th, 1903. 
Confirmed.--C. E. P. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

THURSDAY, 5TII MARCH, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Supreme Court, Sydney, at 10 am., sitting till 12-45 p.m., and from 1 45 p.m 
till 4 p.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Jucle Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchi, Eq. 

The following witness was examined :—Dr. J. R. Al. Robertson, 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until Monday next. 

J. GanLicic, Secretary, March .5th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 9TH MARCH, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Supreme Court at 12 noon, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. till 4 p.m.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie., Esq. 

The following witness was examined :—Dr. J. B. M. Robertson. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned until next day. 

J. Gtnucic, Secretary, March 9th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 10TH MARCH, 1903. 
[The Commission met at the Supreme Court at 930 am.] - 

Present :—llis Honor Judge Murray (President); P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the meetings held on the 3rd, 4th, Sihi, and 9th March, were read and confirmed. 
Letters were read as follow :- 

From Principal Under Secretary, 5/3/03, forwarding extension of Commission for one month. 
From Mr. J. Jeifries, Manager, Metropolitan Mine, offering to give evidence (5/3/03) ; and reply 
asking him to hold himself in readiness to come on receipt of notice. 

From Mr. Jonathan May, re black-listing—submitted to counsel appearing before Commission, 
who intimated that they had no desire to supplement their cases by calling Mr. May on this point. 

To Mr. John Heron, ye expenses. 

The Secretary submitted the accounts of the cash expended (12/2/10) between 13th February and 
7th March, which were approved by the Commission. 

An account from Stott and Hoare for the hire of a typewriter and table for two months at £1 2s. Gd. 
per month was passed for payment. 

At 10 am., the Commission adjourned to the Court Room, sitting till 1245 p.m., and from 1-45 
till 4 p.m. 

The following witnesses were examined :--Dr. J. R. M. Robertson, Mr. W. Rogers. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. Gnricx, Secretary, March 10th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTE 



MINUTES OF MEEI1G. 

WEDNESDAY, 11T11 Miiwii, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Supreme Court at 10 am., stting till 1245 p.m., and from 145 till 4 p.m.] 

l'resent :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were examined —Mr. W. Rogers, Mr. J. C. 11. Mingaye. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, March 11th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C, E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TIIIJIcSDAY, 1 2T11 MARCH, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 10 am., sitting till 1230 p.m., and from 2 p.m. till 4 p.m.] 

Present :--Iiis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were examined —Mr. W. Humble, Mr. J. Jeifries. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till Tuesday next, 17th March, 1903. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, March 1201, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY 17TH MARdI, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the District Court (No. 2), King-street, at 10 am., and sat for the taking 
of evidence till 1 p.m., and from 2 p.m. till 410 p.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 
The following witnesses were examined :—Mr. \V. Humble, Inspector of Mines, Newcastle ; Mr. J. 

JeIfries, Manager, Metropolitan Mine, Helensburgh. 
At 110 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next clay. 

J. Guiudic, Secretary, March 17th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

\VEDNESDAY, ISTII MARC!!, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 2 District Court at 10 am., and sat till 1 p.m. for the taking of evidence, 
and from 2 till 415 p.m.] 

Present :--llis Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; 11). Ritchie, Esq. 

The evidence of the following witnesses was taken :—J. C. H. Mingaye, Esq, Analyst and Assayer, 
Nines Department; Mr. J. Goodwin, Nunicipal Engineer, Ashfleld ; T. Parton, Esq., Consulting Mining 
Engineer, Sydney; Mr. P. McGeaehie, Colliery Manager, West Wallsend. 

At 415 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next clay. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, March 18th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

ThuRsDAY, I 9i'ii MARCh!, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the No. 2 District Court at 10 am., and sat for the taking of evidence till 1 p.m., 
and from 2 till 415 p.m.] 

Present —His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; 1). Ritchie, Esq. 

The following witnesses were examined :—P. J. Brownlee, V. Stafford, senior, H. Ramsay, and 
A. A. Atkinson, Esq., Chief Inspector of Coal-mines. 

At 415 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next diy. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, March 19th, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

FRIDAY, 20TH MAR01!, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 10 am, at No. 2  District Court, Sydney, and sat till 12 noon.] 

Pre8ent :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The examination of Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, was concluded. 
The Commission adjourned ,'zne (ic. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, March 20th, 1903. 
Confirmed. —C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES 



MINTJES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 24TH MAP.CTI, 1903. 

ITile Commission met at Wollongong at 830 am.] 
Present :—}Iis Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission drove to Mount Kembla, where they spent the day inspecting various portions of 
the workings ; and made a number of tests for gas with the hydrogen flame. Full notes of the day's 
proceedings are incorporated with the Minutes of Evidence. 

Mr. D. Hotchkis, Under Manager, Mount Kembla, was examined at bord No. 87 regarding the 
finding of a pipe. 

About 5 p.m. the Commission left Mount Kembla and proceeded by train the same night to 
Helensburgh. 

J. Gxiuicic, Secretary, March 24th, 1903. 
Conhrwed.—O. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 25TH MARCH, 1903. 

[The Commission met at the Metropolitan Coal Company's Mine. Helensburgh, at 10 am.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission inspected the surface works and a portion of the underground workings, and then 
adjourned from 5 to 7 o'clock p.m., at which time they again met at the mine, and some experiments were 
made to test the inflammability of Mount Kembla and Metropolitan coa1-dus, when suspended in the 
atmosphere in which an explosive is fired. Full particulars of these experiments are embodied in the 
Minutes of Evidence. 

At 9 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 
J. Ginracic, Secretary, March 25, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

THCRSDAY, 26TH MARdI, 1903 

[The Commission met at No. 54 Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am., sitting till 1245 p.m., 
and from 2 till 4 p.m. 

Present ;—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission discussed the evidence and deliberated upon their report. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 

J. thnuc, Secretary, March 26, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 1ST APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54 Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the meetings held on lOLh, 11th, 12th, 17th, 18th, 19th, 20th, 24th, 25th, and 26th 
March, were read and confirmed. 

Particulars of the petty cash expended between March 11th and 24th (17 13s. Sd.) were submitted 
and the expenditure was npprov€d. 

A verbal application made by Mr. John Morrison, deputy, Mount Kembla, for a further allowance 
of expenses for attending as a witness was considered, and it was decided to grant him £1 in addition 
to the sum already a1 lowed. 

Letters were read and received as follow 

From Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture regarding the printing of the evidence (30/3/03): 
From Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture regarding appointment of Mr. A. H. Gelding as 
junior clerk 

To iir. W. Rogers, Mount Kembla, asking for information as to ventilation of 4th Right (27/3/03) 
From Mr. W. Rogers in reply to above (:31/3/03) 
To Mr. G. Leitch, late Under-Manager, Mount Kembla, asking for information as to ventilation of 
4th Right (27/3/03) 

To Mr. James Barr, asking him to return evidence sent to him for revision (28/3/03) 
To Mr. D. McGeachie, re same: 
To Mr. J. C. H. Miagaye, re same 
To Mr. W. Humble, re same 
To Dr. J. B. Al. Robertson, re same 
From Dr. J. B. M. Robertson, reply to above, and also drawing attention to a paper by Dr. Bedson 
recently published (Vol. xxix, page 26, "Transactions of Federated Institute of Mining Engineers") 
(31/3/03) 
To J. Ashworth, Esq., ME., Derby, thanking him for papers forwarded 
To Mr. A. Stevenson, Hastings River, informing him that Commission did not think it necessary 
to call him. 

The Secretary was instructed to write to the Principal Undr Secretary asking for further extension 
of the Commission. The 



	

	

	

The Secretary was also instructed to send telegrams to Mr. Rogers and Mr. Leitch asking them to 
describe method by which 4th Right pillars were ventilated up to and atthe time when the extractiour of 
pillars was completed. 

The minutes of ti e inspections by the Commission of Mount KeiiL1a and Metropolitan mines on 
24th and 2.5th March were real and passed ; and directions were given to incorporate them with the 
evidence. 

The Commission then proceeded with the consideration of the evilenc, sitting till 1 p.m., and from 
21 till 410 p.m. 

Recommendations Nos. 1 to 7 were dealt with. 
At 410 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, April 1, 1903. Confirmed—C. E. It. MURRAY, Pre,ident. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TIIwssDAY, 2ND APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54 Young-street, Sydney, at 10 a in.] 

Present .--IIis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; I). A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Minutes of last. Meeting were read and confirmed. 
Letters to Mr. J. Morrison, the Principal Under Secretary, and Dr. Robertson, were read and 

approved. 
A memorandum received from Dr. Robertson containing a quotation from a paper by Dr. Brookman, 

published in the " Transactions of the Federated Institute of Mining Engineers," Vol. 2 t, p.  26, was read 
and received. 

The Commission then proceeded to further deliberate upon their report., sitting till 1215 pin., and 
from 2 till 415 p.m. 

Recommendations 8, 9, 10, 11, and 12 were dealt with. 
At 415 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 2nd April, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

FRIDAY, 3nn APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 51 Young-street, and sat from 10 am. till 1, and from 2 p.m. till 4.] 

Present —His Honor Judge Murray (President.) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. : D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission further discussed their report, dealing with Recommendations Nos. 12 to 22. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned till next day. 

GARLICK, Secretary. 
Confirmed—C. E. II. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 6TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54 Young-street., and sat from 10 am. till 1 p.m.] 

Present :—D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission proceeded to further consider their report, Recommendations Nos. 23 to 36 being 
dealt with. 

At 1 p.m. the meeting adjourned till next day, but Mr. Robertson attended the oflice from 2,45 till 
4 p.m., and drafted a number of suggestions for next meeting. 

J. GsnnicIc, Secretary. 
Confirmed.—C. E. B. MURRAY, Commissioner. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 7th APRIL, 1903. 

Mr. Ritchie attended at No. 54 Young-street, at 10 am., and from 10 to 12 prepared a number of 
suggestions for the Report. 

[The Commission met at 12 noon, sitting till 1 p  m., and from 2 till 4 

Present .—D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The preparation of the draft of the report was proceeded with. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary. 
Confirmed—C. B. B. MURRAY, Commissioner. 

29—(1) . MINUTES 



MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 14TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 51, Youngstreet, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
rresent :--His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; 1).Jiitchie, Esq. 

The minutes of the meetings held on the 2nd, 3rd, 6th, and 7th instant were read and confirmed. 
A letter dated 8th instant was received from the Under Secretary for Mines respecting the printing 

of the evidence, and an'ther, dated 6th ibm, forwarding a list of perams kille.l or injured in the disaster. 
An account for £1 2s. Gd., for the hire of a typewriter and table for one month, was submitted and 

approved. 
The Coinmssion then proceeded with the preparation of their report, rising from 12 50 till 215 foa 

lunch, and adjourned at 4 p.m. 

J. Guuicmc, Secretary, 14th April, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MI5IIRAY, Pr€sident. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

VEDNESDAY, I-Wii APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 a m.] 

Peesent —His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 
A letter dated 146 April, 1903, was received from the Mount Kembla Coal Company, forwarding 

a memorandum in Inspector Humble's writing, received by the Company from Mr. McGeachie, and containing 
notes of the inspection made by Messrs. NcGeachie and Humble jointly in Mount Kenibla Mine, on the 
4th August, 1902. The report was forwarded as bearing on Mr. I-Iumble's evidence respecting the 
inspection, lie having stated that Mr. McGeachie found gas in the 4th Right, whereas the nots forwarded, 
written by lim, contained no mention of this fact. 

The Secretary was directed to write to Mr. Humble, asking if lie could explain the discrepancy 
between his evidence and this memorandum. 

The Commision then proceeded with the preparation of their report, sitting till 124, and from 2 
till 3 p.m, when they adjourned till the 17th. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 15th April, 1903. 
Confirmed. —C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

FRIDAY, 17TII APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young street, Sydney, at 10 a.Ii).] 

1'rseret .—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ;.D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritliie, Esq. 

The Secretary read the letter which lie had written to Mr. Humble, as directed at last meeting, and 
it was approved. 

The Secretary reported that the work for which Miss Blackwell, typist, had been engaged was com-
pleted. It was decided that she be just, ucted to report herself to the Public Service Board ; and that the 
Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture be so informed. The Secretary was directed to state, at the 
same time, that Miss Blackwell had given the utmost satisfaction in the performance of her duties ; and to 
recommend that she be paid for the overtime she had worked. 

A letter was received from the Principal Under Secretary forwarding an extension of the Commission 
for one month from 6th instant. 

The Commission proceeded with the consideration of their report, sitting till 1245 p.m., and from 2 
till 4, when they adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 17th April, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINJTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 21sT APRIL, 1903. 

[The C'ommision met at No. 54, Young street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
Peesent :ITis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

A letter, dated 11th April, 1903, was received from the Under Secretary for Mines and Agriculture, 
forwarding two copies of the "Colliery Guardian," brought under the notice of the Agent General in London 
by Mr. James Ashworth, mining engineer, Chiaddesen, who directed attention to correspondence in the 
journal regarding the recent explosion at the McLaren Pit, Abertvsswg. 

A letter was also received from Inspector Humble explaining the disciepancy between his evidence 
and the notes lie gave to Mr. i\IcGeachie, as referred to in the minutes of 15th instanF. 

The Commission sat until 1245, and from 2 till 4 p.m., preparing their report. At 4 p.m. they 
adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretaiy, 21st Apiil, 1903. 
Confirmed.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 
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MINUTES OF N EETING. 

THURSDAY, 23RD APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
i'i'esen& —His Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. \V. itoliert son, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 10 a.ni. till 1245 p.m., and from 2 till 4 p  in., considering the ex idei:cc 
and Peparing their Report. 

At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 
J. Gtnuca, Secretary, 23rd April, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, Prcs:dent. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

FRIDAY, 24TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
Pvesent.—IIis Honor Judge Murray (President) ; I). Ritchie, Esq. 

The preparation of the Report was proceeded with, the Commission sitting from 10 till 1245, and 
from 2 till 4 p.m., when they adjourned. 
J. GARLICK, Secretary, 24th April, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. 14. MURRAY, President, 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

SATURDAY, 25TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
- 1'resen--His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. Ilitcliie, Esq. 

The preparation of the Report was proceeded with from 10 am, till 12 noon, when the Commission 
adjourned. 

J. Gimucic, Secretary, 25th April, 1903. 

Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

MONDAY, 27TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 a in.] 
TreseW.—His Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. 

The Cumiiuiissiomi proceeded with the consideration of their Report until 12 45 
On iesullling at 2 p.m. Mr. Ritchie also attended, when the preparation of the Report was fut them' 

proceeded with. 
Report. The Commission adjourned at 4 p.m, but Mr. Ritchie remained until 5 p in connection with tIme 

J. GutLica, Secretary, 27th April, 1903. 

Confirmed—C, E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
TUESDAY, 28TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
P'msne :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 10 till 1245, and from 2 till 4 p.m. considering their report. 
The minutes of meetings held on 14th, 1501, 17th, 21st, 23rd, 24th, 25th, and 27th April were mend 

and confirmed, 

The Secretary submitted details of the cash expenditure between 14th March and 28th April 
amounting  to £16 19s. Gd., which was approved. 

At 42.5 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 
J. GARLICK, Secretary, 28th April, 1903. Confirmed —C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 
WEDNESDAY, 29TH APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 
Present :—}Iis Honor Judge Murray (President) D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 
The Commission sat from 10 to 1245 and 2 to 15 p.m., in the preparation of their report. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 99th April, 1903. 

Confirmed.— C. E II. MURRAY, President, 

MINUTES 
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MINUTES OF MEETING, 

THURSDAY, 30ru APRIL, 1903. 

[The Commission met at 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 

Piesent .—His Honor Judge Murray President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 10 to 12-45, and from 2 to 420 p.m. in the preparation of their report. 
At 4-20 p.111. the Commission adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 30th April, 1903. Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

FIUDAY, 1ST MAY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 am.] 

Pi'eeent '—His Honor Judge Murray (President); D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 10 to 1245 and 2 to 4 p.m. in the preparation of their report. 
At 4 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 1st May, 1903. 
Confirmed.—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

SATURDAY, 2ND MAY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 930 a.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; D. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; P. Ritcliie, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 9-30 to 1230 in the preparation of their report. 
At 12'30 p.m. the Commission adjourned. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 2nd May, 1903. 
Confirnled.—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

SATURDAY, 9TH MAY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 10 a.m.j 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); P. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

A letter dated 4th of May, from Under Secretary of Mines and Agriculture, was received, forward-
ing reprint of communication to ' Colliery Guardian," from Mr. James Ashworth, Mining Engineer. 

A letter was received from the Principal Under Secretary forwarding an extension of the Commission 
for two weeks from 6th May, 1903. 

The Commission then proceeded with the consideration of their report, and adjourned at 1250 p.m. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 9th May, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

TUESDAY, 12TH MAY, 1903. 

[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 9-30 am.] 

l'resent :—His Honor Judge Murray (President) ; P. A. W. Robertson, Esq.; P. Ritchie, Esq. 

The Commission sat from 930 to 1220 in the preparation of their Report. 
At 1220 the Commission adjourned. 

J. Gnricic, Secretary, 12th May, 1903. 
Confirmed—C. E. R. MURRAY, President. 

MINUTES OF MEETING. 

WEDNESDAY, 20TH MAY, 1903. 
[The Commission met at No. 54, Young-street, Sydney, at 2 p.m.] 

Present :—His Honor Judge Murray (President); P. A. W. Robertson, Esq. ; D. Ritchie, Esq. 

The minutes of meetings held on the 28th, 29th, and 30th April, and 1st, 2nd, 9th and 12th May 
were read and confirmed. 

The Commission then reach and signed their report. 
The Commission adjourned at 330 p.m. 

J. GARLICK, Secretary, 
Confirmed—C. E. B. MURRAY, President. 



		 	
				
		

	
		
			

	
			
		
		
		

	

	
			 	
	 	
	 	
	 	

	

	 	

	
	

		 	

		 		
	 	

	 	 		

			 	
		
		

	
			
		
		

				
	 	

		
		
		

	

				
	 		 		
	 				
	 				
	 	 		
	 			
	 				
	 				
	 				
		 					
		 		 		
		 			 	

		
	

		 	
		
		
	

	  
		
		 	
		
	

	 			

MOUNT KEMBLA COLLIERY DISASTER. 

CORONER'S INQUEST-DEPOSITIONS. 

INIJEX. 
Evklcnce taken 

at Coroner's lniLu.ut 

Atkinson, A. A-Evidence in chief .............................................................................. 
PAQ. 

55, 56, 60 
Questioned by Mr. Lysaght ............................................................... 59, 62 

Mr. Wade ................................................................. 60 
aJuror ........................................................ ............... 61 
Foreman of Jury ........................................................ 61, 62 
Mr. Bruce Smith ........................................................ 61 
Coroner.................................................................... 62 

Evans, David-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks ..................................................... 29 
Mr. Bruce Smith .......................................................... 30, 31, 32 
Mr. Lysaght ................................................................. 30, 31 
Mr. Wade .................................................................. 30, 32 
Foreman of Jury ........................................................... 32 
aJuror ........................................................................ .. 32 
Coroner..................................................................... 32 

Exhibits-- 
A. Map of Mine, put in during E. Meurant's evidence ............................................. 3 
B. ,, J. Laidlaw's evidence .............................................. 4 
C. Page of Report Book, put in during J. Morrison's evidence ................................. 14 
D. Copy of the Special Rules of Mount Kembla Colliery ......................................... 13, 63 
E. l'age of Report Book, put in during J. Morrison's evidence ................................. 14 
F. Report in book regarding examination of waste workings, dated 19th July, 1902, 

put in during evidence of J. Morrison ......................................................... 16 
G. Buok, containing J. Morrison's report of nightly examinations made by him ............ 20, 27, 38 
H. Report, signed by Dr. J. B. Nash and Dr. R. T. Paton ....................................... 20, 22, 73 
I. Book of Reports of date previous to Exhibit 0, produced during evidence of J. 

Morrison................................................................................................. 27, 28 
J. Deputy's Report Book, from 2nd June, 19)1, to 3rd September, 1901 ..................... 28,32 
K. Report Book, 3rd September, 1901, to 6th December, 1901 .................................... 28 
L. Book (7th December, 1901, to 19th March, 1902), containing report, dated 17th 

December, 1901, signed by David Evans......................................................... 28, 31 
M. Report Book, containing report by David Evans, 31st July and 1st August, 1902 32,38 
N. Diary, put in during evidence of W. Rogers ...................................................... 36, 38 
0. Ventilation Book, put in during evidence of V. Rogers ....................................... 39, 40. 45 

Book kept by the Check Inspectors, put in during evidence of W. Rogers ............. 39 
Letter from A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal Mines, to Mr. W. Rogers, 

Manager of Mount Kembla Mine, dated 13th May, 1898.................................... 74 
Ventilation Book, put in during evidence of W. Rogers ....................................... 42, 45 
Telegram from Mr. D. Ritchio to Mr. J. May ............................. ........ ............ 48 

Frost, Matthew-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks................................................... 8, 9, 10 
Mr. Bruce Smith --------------------------------------------------------- 10, 12 13 
Mr. Lysaght .............................................................. 11 
Mr. Wade ............... -.................................. -............... 12 
Coroner.................................................................... 

Frost, Adam-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks ..................................................... 
13 
33 

Mr. Bruce Smith ............................................................. 33, 34 
Mr. Lysaght ................................................................... 33 
Mr. Wade ....................................................................... 34 
Coroner......... -................................................................. 34 

Gallagherburnt ..... ............... ........... .... ................................................ ............ . ..... 6, 11 
Hopkins, William-Evidence in chief ......................................................................... 55 

Questioned by Mr. Bruce Smith ...................................................... 55 
Mr. Lysaght ........................................ -................... 55 
Mr. Wade .............................................................. 55 

Inquest on bodies of W. Meurant, H. Meurant, and W. Nelson ....................................... I 
Inquest- 

1st August, 1902........................1 29th August, 1902 .............. ...... 30 
11th 1902 ........................ 1 1st September, 1902 ..................... 33 
18th 1902........................4 2nd ,, 1902 ..................... 36 
19th 1902.......................6 3rd ,, 1902 .................... 38 
20th 1902........................10 4th 1902 ..................... 
21st 13 5th 1902 

41 
45  1902........................ ,, ..................... 

22nd 1902........................16 8th ,, 1902 ..................... 48 
25th 1902........................17 9th ,, 1902 .................. 48 
26th 1902........................19 10th ,, 1902 ..................... 52 

56 27th , 190-2 ....................... 23 11th ,, 1902 ................... 
28th ,, 1902 ........................ 27 12th 1902 .................... 60 

Jones, Wm. E.-Evidence in chief ... .......................... ............................................... 41 
Questioned by Mr. Bruce Smith............................................................ 41 

Kerr, Dr. W. B.-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks .............................................. 26 
Mr. Bruce Smith ................. ....................................... 27 
Mr. Lvsanht ............................................................... 27 
Mr. Wade .................................................................. 27 

Laidlaw, J.-Examined by Senior-Sergeant Banks ........................................................ 3 
Lysaght, A. A.-Appearing for employees of Mt. Kembla Mine; for relatives of W. Meurant 

and H. Meurant (viz., T. H. Meurant and J. Ryall) ........................................... 4 
Laidlaw, J.-Examined by Mr. Bruce Smith ............................................................... 4, 5 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght ........................ ..... ........ ......................... S 
Mr. Wade ------------------------------------------------- ------------------ 

Examined by Coroner ........................................................................... 
11 Foreman of Jury .................................................................. 
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May, Jonthan-Evidence in chief ............................................................................... 43 
Questioned by Mr. Bruce Smith ......................................................... 46 

Mr. Wade ................................................................ 45, 47 
ajuror ....................................................................... 
Coroner............................................................... . .. ... 

46 
46,47 

Moran, Wm.-Evidence in chief ................................................................................ 47 
47, 48 Questionedby Mr. Wade ................................................................... 

Coroner....................................................................... 48 
Foreman of jury ................................................................ 48 
Mr. Bruce Smith ........................................................... 48 

Mt. Kembla Colliery Special Rules, Exhibit I)............................................................ 13, 63 
Nelson, W.-Inquest on ............................................................................................. 
Nelson, Agnes. -Examined by Senior-Sergeant Banks ................................................... 

1 
3 

Nash, Dr. J. B-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks................................................... 20 
Mr. Bruce Smith ........................................................ 20, 22 
Nr. Lvsaght ............................................................... 21 
Mr. Wade .................................................................. 21, 22 
Coroner.................................................................... 22 

Order that part of mine lying to inbye side of 2nd left rope-road and 2nd right rope-road 
- he left undisturbed ......................................................................................... 4 

22 Paton, Dr. B. T.-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks ................................................ 
Mr. Bruce Smith ........................................................ 22, 23 
Mr. Wade ................................................................. 23 
Mr. Lysaght ............................................................... 23 
ajuror .................................................................... 

Quinn, Michael-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks ................................................... 
23 
31 

Mr. Bruce Smith ......................................................... 52 
Mr. Wade .............................. ....................................... - 52 
ajuror .................... ........... ...... ........ ......................... 
Mr. Lysaght ........... ...................................... ............... 

52 
52 

Coroner........... ........................................................ ... 52 
Ritchie, David -Appearing for miners and relatives of deceased ...................................... 4 
Ryall, John-Appearing by Mr. Ritchie and Mr. Lysaght ............................................ 4 
Rogers, W.--Identification of W. Nelson .................................................................... 1 
Rogers, Win-Questioned by Senior Sergeant Banks ........ ........... ................................. 35 

36, 40, 42 Mr. Lysaght ...................................................................... 
Mr. Bruce Smith ............................................................. 3S, 39, 41, 4-2 
Mr. W'ade ................................................................... 38, 40, 42 
Coroner........ ........... .. ........ ........................................... 41, 42, 45 
ajuror ......................................................................... 42 

49 Ritchie David--Evidence in chief ............................................................................. 
Questioned by Mr. Bruce Smith ........................................................... 49 

Mr. Wade ....................... .............. .............................. 50,51 
Mr. Lysaght ................................................................. 51 
ajuror ...................................................................... 
Foreman of jury .......................................................... 

51 
51 

flamsay, George-Evidence in chief ........................................................................... 53 
54 Questioned by Mr. Bruce Smith ........................................................ 

Mr. Lysaght ............................................................... 54 
Mr. Wade ................................................................ 54 
ajuror ..................................................................... 

Rules, Special, of Mt. Kembla Colliery, Exhibit D........................................................ 
54 

13, 63 
Smith, Mr. Bruce-Appearing for Crown ..................................................................... 1 

53 Stafford, Adam--Evidence in chief ............................................................................ 
53 Questioned by Mr. Bruce Smith ...................................................... 
53 Mr. Wade ................................................................. 
53 Mr. Ritchie ................................................................. 
54 Stafford, Ernest-Etidence in chief ........................................................................ 

Questioned by Mr. Lvsaght ............................................................... 55 

11 Mr. Wade .................................................................. 
Special Rules of Mt. Kembla Colliery, Exhibit D............................................................. 

55 
13, 63 

Wade, C. G-Appearing for Mt. Keinbla Colliery Co . ....................... ... ..... .......... ...... 4 
23 Wade, Dr. T. F-Questioned by Senior-Sergeant Banks ................................................ 

24, 25, 43 Mr. Bruce Smith ....................................................... 
Mr. Lysaght ................................................................ 24 
Mr. Wade ................................................................. 24, 45 
Foreman of jury ......................................................... 24 
Coroner........... ............. ........ ......... ...... ............ .. ...... , 45 

Warburton, S. IL-Questioned by Coroner .............................................................. 45 
45 Foreman ofjury .................... ..... ..................... .... .- 

ajuror ................................................................. 
Mr. Wade ............................................................ 

45 
45 

Waste Wor kings, Iieçort of 19th July, 1002 .....- . 10  



	

	

	

	 	

Depositions and Exhibits in connection with the Mount 

Kembla Colliery Disaster Inquest. 

New South Wales, 
to wit. 

INQUISITION held at the Court-house at Wollongong, in the State of New South Wales, commencing on the 
1st day of August, one thousand nine hundred and two, and concluded on the 12th day of September, one 
thousand nine hundred and two, before me, Charles Coffey Russell, one of the Coroners of our Sovereign 
Lord the King, for the State aforesaid, on View of the bodies of William Meurant, Henry Meurant, and 
William Nelson, at the Morgue, at the Mount Kembla Colliery, then and there lying dead. Upon the 
oaths of James Kirby, James Dean, Arthur Willoughby Viniug, George Cochrane, Arthur John Holland, 
Richard Fairweather, William John Pouler, John Shapley Jarman, Joseph Henry White, William 
Osborne, George Madden, William Henry Rickard, good and lawful men of Wollongong aforesaid; who, 
having been sworn and charged to inquire (on the part of our said Lord the King) when, where, how, and 
by what means the said William Meurant, Henry Meurant, and William Nelson came to their death, do, 
upon their oaths, say that the deceased William Meiirant, Henry Meurant, and William Nelson died at 
Mount Kembla Mine, in the county of Camden, and State of New South Wales, on the 31st day of July 
last, from carbon monoxide poisoning produced by an explosion of fire-damp ignited by the naked lights in 
use in the mine, and accelerated by a series of coal-dust explosions starting at a point in or about the 
number one main level back headings, and extending in a westerly direction to the small goaf, marked 
11 perches on the mine plan. 

In witness whereof, as well the said Coroner as the Jurors aforesaid, have to this inquisition set 
their hands and seals, this clay and year aforesaid. 

CIIA RLES COFFEY RUSSELL, Coroner. 
JAMES KIRBY, Foreman. 
ARTHUR WILLOUGHBY VINING, 1 
ARTHUR JOHN HOLLAND, 
WILLIAM J. POULTER, 
JOSEPH HENRY WHITE, 
GEORGE ARTHUR MADDEN, 
JAMES DEAN, Jurors. 
GEORGE COCHRANE, 
RICHARD FAIRWEATHEfl, 
JOHN SHAPLEY JARMAN, 
WILLIAI\i OSI3ORNE. 
WILLIAM HENRY RICKARD, 

New South Wales. 
INF0nMATI0N and depositions of witnesses, taken on oath before me, Charles Coffey Russell, one of the 
Coroners of Our Sovereign Lord the King, for the State of New South Wales, this 1st day of August, 1902, 
at the Court-house of Wollongoag, in the said ii ate, on view of the bodies of William Meurant and Henry 
Meurant, lying dead at the Mount Kembla Mine. 

Thomas Meurant, having been sworn, states : I am a miner, and reside at Mount Kelnbia ; the 
bodies now pointed out to the jury by me are the bodies of my brothers—William Meurant and Henry 
Meurant. 

Sworn and made, at Mount Kembla, this 1st day of j THOMAS MEURANT. 
August, 1902, before me,— 

CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

William Rogers, on oath, states : I am the manager of Mount Kembla Mine; the body now 
pointed out to the jury by me is that of William Nelson, who was the underground manager of this mine. 
Sworn and made, at Mount Kembla, this 1st day WILLIAM ROGERS. 

of August, 1902, before me,— 

CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for the PU1T0SC  of obtaining further evidence, until 11 o'clock on Monday, the 
11th day of August, 1902, at the Court-house, Wollongong.—CnAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 
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Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at 1130 am., on the 11th day of August, 1902, 
at the Court-house, Wollorigong.—CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, instructed by the Crown Solicitor, appears for the Crown. 
Mr. G. J. Barry appears for the proprietors of the Mount Kembla Mine. 

Examined by Senior-sergeant Banks :—Acla Frances Jienrant, sworn, states I am the wife of 
William Meurant; I reside with him at Mount Kembla; Henry Meurant resided with me and my 
husband; he was a brother of William Meurant; I recollect Thursday, the 31st July last; my husband 
was on that date employed as a miner at the Mount Kembla Colliery; he left home that morning at ten 
past 5 to go to work; he was employed on the front shift; I have not seen him alive since; I have seen 
his dead body since at the colliery, in a shop there Henry Meurant was also on the 31st July employed 
as a miner in the colliery ; he left home that morning to go to work at 7 o'clock ; I have not seen him 
alive since ; I have seen his dead body since with that of my husband at the engine-house ; I saw the 
bodies on the 1st August (Friday) ; Henry Meurant was employed on the back sluft; I do not know how 
they met their deaths. [No questions.] 

Sworn and made, at the Court-house, Wollongong, ADA F. MEURANT. 
on the 11th day of August, A.D. 1902,— f 

CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by Senior-sergeant Banks :—Edward Meurant, sworn, states : I am a coal-miner ; I 
reside at Kembla Heights; I am employed at the Mount Kembla Colliery as a miner; Henry and William 
Meurant were brothers of mine; I recollect the 31st July last (Thursday); I arrived at the face that 
morning about half-past 8 ; I was working in the district known as No. 6 left; it was No. 19 bord ; I was 
working with Francis Stewart; Stewart left me at ten minutes past 2 that (lay ; I continued working on 
I was with George Walker; we worked on till about 4 o'clock; Walker was working close to me; Stewart 
and I were working in what is known as a cut-through, and Walker and a man named Woodruff were 
working in what is known as a herd; up till the time that Walker and I knocked off work, about 4 o'clock, 
we were not aware that anything unusual had happened ; there was nothing unusual about the air at the 
particular place we were working at ; Walker and I got out our clothes and put them on, and got our 
tools ; we followed the usual road known as the wheeling-road out to the flat; I know where the main 
heading is; we went towards that; when we were about. 40 or 50 yards from the main heading I noticed 
a smell like boiling tar; Walker remarked that it was new canvas; the canvas is known as brattice-cloth; 
I said, " I believe the pit's on fire"; I said that in a half joke ; we continued on to the main heading ; we 
went there to see if the wheelers had gone home; when we got there we found the tins and bottles of the 
wheelers; we did not see any harness; I.still smelt the smell that I had noticed lower down, only it was 
stronger; we still continued along to the main heading on the engine road; about that locality there is a 
canvas right across the road ; when we got through the canvas we saw the body of Hugh McLister ; his 
body was at the side of the rib ; I put my hand inside his shirt ; he was (lead as far as I can say; we left 
i\IcLister there and proceeded towards the furnace ; that was still going towards the mouth of the tunnel ; we 
continued on to Jenkin's Flat ; there we found a horse lying dead I then placed my lamp down towards the 
floor to try the air ; that was to see if there was any black-damp ; the lamp burned, and I knew there was no 
black-damp ; Walker and I then threw away our tools and this we still continued to go towards the furnace 
we had then to go about 350 or 400 yards to reach the flat ; in that 300 or 400 yards we passed several men 
and horses lying on the road I did not count them, but there were several ; I know a man named Meredith 
we passed him ; he was sitting against the rib ; he was alive ; he had a lamp burning ; it was a naked lamp ; I 
said to him, " Come on, Joe" ; lie had his senses, but lie seemed like a man intoxicated ; he said, " Come and 
have a smoke " ; he had no other conversation with us ; Walker and I went on ; before we left Meredith 
he made no complaint of any kind; he did not say anything about an accident having happened; Meredith 
was after that brought out alive ; after -Nye left Meredith, Walker and I met Henry Kelly and Ernest 
Allen ; we met them on the flat; they had safety-lamps ; they were trying to keep the men who were 
there prone (some of them were trying to roam about) Kelly said there was an explosion in No. 1, but 
that the air was good where be was then; I said to Walker, "You had better go out, George, you are an 
old man " ; Walker then left me to go out and I went to the Little Flat section ; I carried three bodies 
from the Little Flat with the assistance of other.; ; one of the bodies was a dead body (that of John Ryan), 
the other two were alive ; the two latter were Hartley Olsen and a man whose name I do not know I then 
went towards the sixth right section ; there were several men lying about there; I cannot say whether 
they were dead or alive ; at the sixth right section I met Matthew and Adam Frost, before that we left the 
bodies at Mat Frost's flat, and -Nye (myself, Price, and Kelly) went to the sixth right section ; we left two 
live bodies at Mat Frost's flat because the air was good there ; when we met the two Frosts I said to Mat, 
" Did you see Will" (meaning my brother) ; he said, "You're Will's alive " ; Mat Frost then held the 
lamp round and I saw my brother lying wih his shoulder up against the rib; Mat Frost said, "I've just 
raised him up " ; my brother was alive, I could hear him breathing ; my brother Henry was lying alongside 
my brother William ; he was lying mor on his shoulder; I could not say whether lie was on the floor 
or against the rib; I cannot say whether he was alive; I did not examine him to see ; I thought both 
were alive I said to Mat Frost, '' I'll go out and tell the women" ; the air at that particular spot was not 
quite so bad as what we had come through, but it was worse than what it was on Mat's flat; Price, Kelly, 
and-I then carried a man to Mat's flat I cannot say whether lie 4as alive or dead ; that was back to Mat's 
flat towards the entrance; I was very nearly exhausted from the nature of the air; Kelly and Price said 
they were right; Adam and Mat Frost remained where I left my brothers; I met Meredith and Sullivan 
at Mat's flat, and they and I went towards the entrance down the main road ; we went along the engine 
road to No. 5 and thence into the travelling road ; we then went right out of the mine I did not go 
back to that section of the mine that day, and I did not see my brothers again till I saw their dead 
bodies next day in the engine-house; I do not know what caused their death. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith: The place where I was working was about 1,600 yards from 
the entrance to the mine; when I knocked off the air was in its normal condition ; we had gone about 300 
yards from the face when we met the first body ; I did not try the air there, but I could notice the smeli 
all the time; we did not move that body; we did not attempt to carry it to the part in which we tounct 
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the air good; we did not ask Meredith any questions ; we knew something must have happened, but we 
did not ask him ; we were near ready to drop then ; we did not ask him if lie was ill; we were expecting 
to fall every minute ourselves we did not go towards the place where the air was good, because we knew 
that the bad air was travelling towards that place and we tried to get out of it; we concluded 
that we could not carry the body with us; we did not speak to Meredith about what had happened 
because we took it that there must have been something wrong; we were going towards the outlet 
but were doing what we could to help the others by the way ; when we came to where my 
brothers were, I don't think that we could have done any good by lifting them up; before I got 
to Mat Frost's flat I was very much scared ; I was not collected I took it that when Mat 
Frost said one of my brothers was alive that the other was also all this time I was in a very 
scared excited condition ; the first- feeling I felt after leaving the face was that I had walked a long 
(listande and wanted to lie (lowfl I had no shortness of breath, or anything of that sort . I felt 
as if I could not lift my feet; it wos not a weakness in the joints but a weariness in lifting my feet 
I look at the map inaill -- [-p put in and marked A] ; the point marked with a X No. 1 is the place 
where we found the first body (McLister) the position inarked X 2 11 is the point where we met with a 
(lead horse ; we met several bodies between the points indicated by the marks X 3 and X 4 3 1 could not 
say how far the bodies were apart ; Meredith was lying somewhere about the position of the mark X 4 ; the 
point at which we met Kelly and Allen helping others is indicated by the mark X5 ; the point at which we 
found John Ryan is indicated by the mark X 6 ; the point in the sixth right section at which we found 
Mathew and Adam Frost is marked X 1 1 my brothers were there at that point (marked X 7) also ; the 
first sensation I felt was a heaviness about the legs, as if I could not stand on my feet and wanted to 
fall down ; the heaviness in the legs kept on till I got on to the flat and sat clown I did not suffer from 
any dizziness till I got out il-ito the open air I did not suffer from dimness of sight at all I did not 
suffer from palpitation ; none of the men w'ho afterwards died described their symptoms to me ; the sensation 
was increasing in my case and if it had gone any further I should_have fallen. 

To a Juror.  . I have been working in the mine for one year and Iliac months ; I never noticed any-
thing that would lead me to suspect that an accident of this kind might occur. 

To dir. Bruce Smith: During the year and nine months I have been there I have never seen any 
result- from gas but I have heard blowers but I have never been able to locate theni with my lamp ; I cannot 
mention any particular place where I have heard blowers; I have only worked - in two sections—one is 
called the fourth left and the other is the furnace road in the shaft ; I never reported having heard the 
blowers to anybody. 

To the Coroner : My experience as to blowers only refers to the two parts of the mine in which I 
have worked; I have heard blowers at No. 85 fourth left section that was in a bord; I also heard blowers 
in another bord : the only experience of blowers was in two bords I know nothing about all the rest of 
the workings ; on the day of the disaster I was working in a cut-through, which is not shown on the map 
marked A ; I could not say where time air was coming from to us, it was being carried to us by canvas 
I cannot say whether the air was coming down through the furnace or through the ordinary entrance 
I do not think that there is any intake from behind the furnace; if there is no means of getting air from 
the back of time furnace, I expect you would he dependent on getting air from the front; there was 
nothing unusual in our hiorci up to the time we knocked off work ; when we left our cut-through we came 
on to the wheeling road leading to the main heading ; there was only one canvas in the wheeling road, and 
that was near the flat, and that I expect was erected to prevent air coming clown the wheeling road and to 
divert it into some other channel ; when we left the cut-through we came with the air and not against it 
we did not remove the brattice, we just lifted it and walked lmndler it ; by doing that we did not do anything 
by which we would interfere with the circulation of air in any other portion of the mine ; beyondl the smell 
of boiling tar I did not notice anything else up to the time we got to the brattice with the exception of a 
mistiness in the air ; the brattice was all right I did not feel the mistiness in my eyes or throat ; there 
was no smell beyond the tar; after we got through the brattice I found the air worse than on the far side; 
the reason of that was that we were in the air before we came through the brattice ; I could not say 
whether we could have reachedi the entrance by going against the air ; if we had gone against the air 
from the time we left the cut-through we would have reached the entrance ; we were making for the 
furnace; when I saw McLister's body I did not know what had happened; the first thing that occurred 
to inc was to take the shortest way out, notwithstanding the (langer; no brattice cloth was burnt ; new 
brattice cloth without being burnt produces the smell of boiling tar; I made the divergence from Mat's 
flat to No. 6 right in order to look for my brother; when I had found! him I returned and came out by 
the route I intended to get out by in the first- instance; Kelly and Allen are men who work in the mine 
they do not work with safety lamps ; we met Kelly and Allen about twenty minutes past four; I have 
been talking about George Walker, senior, all the time ; there are two Walkers working in the mine—
George Walker, senior, and George Walker, junior; all through the mine we were working with naked 
tallow lights fixed in caps as far as I know ; some of the lamps are oil lamps but they are all naked lights. 

To Mr. Barry: I know that the two Deputies use safety-lamps on their morning and other rounds. 
Sworn and made, at the Court-house, Wollongong, [ EDWARD METJRANT. 

this 11th clay of August, AD. 1 902, before me,— 
CJIA5. C. RUSSELL1  Coroner. 

Examineciby Senior-sergeant Banks :—Aqnes Nelson, sworn, states: I am the wife of William Nelson; 
my late husband was the under manager at the Mount Kembla Colliery ; I recollect Thursday, the 31st July 
last ; my husband left home that morning to go to work about a quarter to 7 ; lie was then quite well, in 
his usual health I did not see him alive after that ; his dlead body was brought home to the house ; that 
was early on the morning of the 1st August ; I have no knowledge as to what caused his dleath; my 
husband had been working for twelve years in the mine, the last two months as under-manager. [No 
questions.] 

Made and sworn at the Court-house, Wollongommg, this AGNES NELSON. 
11th day of August, £0. 1902, before me,— 1 

CUAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined 
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Examined by Senior-sergeant Banks :—Joltn Laidilaw, sworn, states: I am a miner; I reside at 
Mount Kembia; I was employed in the Mount Kembla Colliery as a miner; I have been employed there 
as a miner for somewhere about two and a half years; before that I was employed there as a wheeler for 
about nine years ; I recollect Thursday, the 31st July; I was at work in the mine on that day ; I went to 
work that morning about ten minutes to 6 ; I was working in the fifth right Lord 90; I was working with 
Charles McKinley as a mate; we continued to work up till 2 o'clock that day; I know Mr. Bates, the 
Mining Inspector by sight; Mr. Bates and Mr. Nelson (the deceased) came to the portion of the mine 
where I was working about a quarter to 2; they inspected the place where we were working; they asked 
me how I was getting on, and I said "All right"; the wheeler Harry Kelly came up then; Nelson said, 

Stop, Jack, a minute, I want to see how this chain works with the two skips"; Mr. Bates and Mr. 
Nelson saw the skips run; they then left; after they left we went on with our work ; that was about a 
quarter to 2 ; 1 filled a skip ; that took two or three minutes ; I then sat down to have some lunch; while 
we were at lunch it went off; I heard a terrible noise; McKinley said to me, "What is that 1" I said, "I 
think th it is the next place fell in" (meaning the next bord) I then went down the bord to get some 
powder; when I got the powder I went up to put it in the hole I had made; when I was putting it in the 
hole I heard a noise away down the road; I said to McKinley, ' That is the wheeler singing out, there is 
soinetlung wrong" (the noise I heard was the sound of a voice) ; I then went down to the wheeler, Clifford 
Hammonds; I said, "What is the matter l" he said, "I do not know, come down here, my horse is dead, i 
think" ; I went down a few yards and I smelt some nasty smell coming towards me; I said, "You had better 
make back, there is something wrong" ; I went back and got my tucker tins, and then we eame back and 
went out to what we call the daylight heading; I got out there very near the daylight heading and I met 
Adam Frost, ard I said, "What is the matter 1" lie said, "I do not know, I have tried to get down the 
second right and I cannot"; we then both came out of the mine together by the daylight heading; McKinley, 
Frost, and I came out together; I saw a number of the employees of the mine there; there was a little 
confusion, but not much ; I never saw Nelson or Bates after they left me at the bord ; my bord was the 
last they would inspect, I think. 

his 
Sworn and made, at the Court house, Wollongong, this JOHN x LATDLAW. 

11th day of August, A.D. 1902, after being read to mark. 
witness and he appearing to understand same, ( Witness to ma! k—CIIAriLEs NOBLE, 
before me,— ) Senior-constable. 

Cnas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

It is agreed that that part of the mine be left undisturbed which lies to the inbye side of the second 
left rope road and the second right rope road until Monday next, 1th August, 1902 —Coas. C. RUSSELL, 
Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 11th August, 1902. 

Inquest adjourned, for the purpose of obtaining further evidence, until 11 o'clock am, on Monday, 
the 18th day of August, A.D. 1902, at the Court-house, Wollongong.—CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-
house, Wollongong, 11th August, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at 11'30 n.m., on the 18th day of August, 1902, 
at the Court-house, Wollongong.—CHAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner, 

Mr. C. G. Wade, instructed by Mr. G. J. Barry, now appears for the proprietors of the Mount 
Kenibla Colliery. 

Mr. Lysaght appears, with Mr. Ritchie, for the employees of the Mount Kembla Mine, and also for Thomas 
Harold Meurant and John Ryall, relatives of the deceased, William Meurant and Henry Meurant. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :—John Laidlaw, recalled, states I have bccn a miner for 
about two and a half or three years; the noise I heard was just like a crash of thunder; it was a single 
noise; I could hear it going for a good bit; it seemed to go just like thunder; it was a series of noises 
which seemed to get farther away ; apart from the noise, I did not notice any smell not till I went down 
the bord ; I began to move [Plan put in and marked "B "] a few minutes after I heard the noise ; I was 
working at 90 fifth-right; I was there at the time I heard the report I have mentioned; it was about 
twenty minutes or a quarter to 2 when I heard the report; I went to get some powder when I heard the 
report; I went down the bord to get the powder; I had it lying in a tin; the noise affected my ears very 
much ; when I got the powder I went to put in the hole ; I heard another noise then; I only heard one 
explosion ; I went on with my work as if nothing had happened I had heard noises something similar to 
'hat in the mine before that more than once ; I have heard noises like that many a time; I have heard 
noises like that when I was drawing timber in the same mine ; it was an uncommon noise ; the other 
noises I had heard were not so loud; it was the drawing of timber that caused the other noises, the roof 
falling after timber had been drawn ; this noise was something like that ; I worked on for about twenty 
minutes that brought me up till about five past 2 ; I then started to go down to the wheeler who was 
singing out ; I do not know what he was singing out ; I went down to him ; I saw him ; he was all black 
he was coming towards me; his face was blacker than usual; he was walking ; I asked him what was the 
matter, and he said lie did not know ; lie was working about 210 yards from where I was working ; he 
was working straight in ; the wheeler was working at the end of the bord on the rope-road where the mark 
X 2 is ; his name is Clifford Hammond ; he said, "Come down to my horse, because he is killed, I think" 
I went down part of the way to the horse; I was stopped by a bad smell, like the smell of a new canvas 
I had no conversation with him as to his being black ; I said to him, "What is up?" he said, " I do not 
know " ; when I smelt the smell, I said to him, " Get away out ; I said that because I thought there was 
sometling up; I could not tell what it was that was up ; I came up the daylight road and showed Hammond 
the way out; Hammond is alive now ; McKinley, my mate, also got out ; McKinley was with me when I 
n-emit to meet Ilaummond ; the three of us did not go out together ; I put Hammond on the road, and then 
went back to the bord to get my tucker tins ; McKinley was with me; I was not in a great hurry to get 
out; I went out down the rope-road by the daylight heading against the air; I took that road because I 
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knew it was against the air and was the best; on the way I met Adam Frost; he is alive now ; lie was 
standing at the mouth of the daylight heading; lie was all right I met a lot of others ; I cannot tell you 
their names ; there might have been about ten or twelve they were walking out by the same way ; I 
overtook them; I think they are all alive now ; I (lid not notice the smell as I went along I did not see 
anything unusual at all in going out ; Charles Smith was one of the men ; Thomas Johnson was another 
and John Russell was another ; that is all I can remember; I came out ; I put shots in sometimes once and 
sometimes twice a (lay ; 1 always tampeci with coal-dust; I did not go up to see the horse ; I tamped with 
dry coal-dust ; it was a little damp sometimes , if I cats get anything to damp it with, I damp it; if I 
cannot, I do not; I do not put any spray about the bord when I am doing so. 

Cross-eu amtned by llfr. Lysay/it The sound I heard came in the same direction as the air that was 
coming up to my bord ; I thought the noise came from the next bord on the left where the wheeler was, 
from the direction of the main travelling road; I thought the noise came from No. 89 bard I heard a 
noise like that some months ago when I was working a pillar in the shaft section; I could see what caused 
that ; it was the fall of the roof; I myself had taken out the timber; I do not think I ever Leard a noise 
like this before arising from any other cause than the taking out of timber; the falling of a roof will 
resound, but perhaps not as loud as the noise on this occasion ; I went down about 10 yards from where I 
met Hammond till I met the bad smell I was still in the bord when I smelt the smell; the bad smell was 
travelling against the air ; I brought Hammond back up to my bard ; McKinley asked me what the noise 
was ; lie did not say what he thought it was. 

Cross-examined by Jfr. lJTade During the two years and a half I have been a miner my work has 
been in bords, and bords and pillars; in the course of mining we very often break off at might angles into 
bords the bords are 8 yards wide we drive them 35 yards on either side there is a pillar of solid coal 
the pillars are 16 yards wide ; there was a bord to the right of the one I was working in, and the space 
between them was solid coal, called a pillar ; it is shown on the plan by the shaded mark ; when we are 
working it bord it is timbered with props; when we have finished a bord the props are drawn ; we work 
the bord and leave the timber standing, and then we work the pdlar, and then the timber is drawn from 
the pillar and the bord ; the timber is drawn to allow the roof to fall ; that is the regular system of 
working ; that is done to ease the pressure, and to make things safer; that is the practice I have bren 
used to at Kembla; I have not had experience of it anywhere else; I have worked at Newcastle, but not 
as a miner; a great number of pillars have been worked at Mount Kembla; I have heard the sound of the 
roof falling pretty often during the two years and it half, and it is a sound I am pretty well used to ; the 
only diflerence btveen those sounds and the sound I heard on the 31st July was that the sound I he tid 
on the 31st July was a good deal louder; I put it down to being a fall of the roof, and went on w itli my 
work ; I was a little alarmed. I do not remember whether I had fired a shot in my working-place that day 
1 have heard the sound of shot-firing ; it is difibrent to what I heard on the 31st July I 

In 
 have fired many 

shots myself without any trouble or accident ; I have always used coal-dust (damp slack) ; I get that from 
the working-place ; it is about  210 yards from the place where I was working to the turn of time rope 
when I speak of the rope I refer to the endless rope to which the skips are fastened I heard tIm sound 
first on my left ear ; the noise was to the left side of the bord ; when I say that the sound came from the 
heading on my left, that is speaking quite generally ; when I heard the noise my mate was filling the skip 
about 20 yards away behind me on the right-hand side of the bord looking towards the face ; I did not go 
into No. 1 right headings at all ; the nearest point I got to them was about 20 yards from the turn inbye 
towards my working face ; when I noticed the peculiar smell I did not see anything else in the air ; I saw 
nothing unusual ; the wheeler's light was not burning when I saw him my light was burning all the time 
till I got out ; the lights of the other men that I passed were all burning ; Russell and Johnson were 
working higher up than me in the hundreds ; Johnson was working to the right of my working-place in 
No. 91; I overtook a few of the men that were working in that district a good distance from where I was 
working. 

To the Coroner I left the mine at the point shown on the plan just above the word "Plan"; I 
was affected ; I got a terrible hesdache through the shock ; when I got outside I was not affected in any 
way ; the only thing that affected me was the shock ; I came against the air the whole way. 

To the Foreman : The next working to my working was not an abandoned working; I never fired 
the shot that I had made prepnrations for. 

To the Coroner . I take the precautions which the Act provides when firing a shot. 
To a Juror The working that I thought had fallen in is situate next to where I was ; it is to the 

left of where I was working. 
To dir. Bruce Smith I thought that the roof of the heading had faPen in. 

his 
Sworn and made, at the Court-house, Wollougong, JOHN x LAIDLA.W. 

this 18th day of August, A.D. 1902, after being maik. 
read to witness, and he appearing to understand ( Witness to mark,— 
sante, before me,— ) Cn.usLEs NOBLE, Senior-constable. 

CHAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by Senior-sergeant Banks :—Willia,n Broadimead, sworn, states : I am a miner, and 
reside at Mount Kembla ; I have been working in the Mount Kembla Mine for about ten and half years; 
I remember the 31st July last (Thursday) I was at work in the colliery on that day; I was at work on 
coal, with Thomas Smith as it mate ; I was working in fifth right, No. I section, second siding, bord 
No. 98 Smith worked on the front shift; he went in about 6 or half-past 6 ; I was working on the back 
sluft I went in to work at half-past 8, and reached the place by 9 I found Smith at work when I went 
in; he and I workedtogether till lie left me and went out at half-past 1; shortly before Smithleft me 
Mr. Bates and Nelson came to where I was working; that was about half-past 12 ; they had a conversation 
with me about the quality of time coal, and then they went out after Smith left I filled two skips of coal 
after that I went back in my bord about 20 yards to fill my lamp and have some lunch ; when I was about 
to get my lunch I heard a noise like distant thunder; I thought it was the effects of a heavy shot at a 
distance; I did not take any notice of it ; after I had had lunch I went back to finish my- work up before 
I left I cleaned up my place, and prepared to leave; I left my face between a quarter past and half-
past 2 ; when I left my face I sarted away out and put my clothes on to go home as if nothing had. 

occurred; 
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occurred; I went down my bord towards the rope road the way I came; when I reached the rope road I 
found everything blown to pieces, all disorder like a wreck ; that was the first time I found that anything 
had gone wrong; I was very anxious to know whether I could breathe ; the air was moderate, a little 
warm, but good; I went with it for a distance of two sidings, when I would turn into the main 
travelling road; I went along the main travelling road for a distance of 400 or 500 yards ; there were 
some slight falls, but not heavy; when I got about CO yards I met a heavy fall, which I could not get 
through I returned then along the travelling road to the first cut-through, and on to the rope road; that 
is known as No. 1 main rope road ; I went along that as far as I could get—about 100 yards; I then met 
a tremendous heavy fall 5 or 6 yards high ; I was unable to got over that fall I stood and gazed at it for 
a while, and then turned back to another cut-through, and through that on to the travelling road again 
I then continued on towards the tunnel mouth ; I was blocked again about twice by falls I then 
returned by a cut-through on to the rope road again ; UI) to that point I had not seen or heard anyone at 
all ; I went along that rope road till I came to another obstruction, and then I went through a cut-through 
on to the travelling road; I went along that for 300 or 400 yards and did not meet with any big falls—
just some loose timber and a few rocks here and there; I then came across two men ; I walked right in 
between them ; I cannot say on the plan where it was I found them ; it was about half a mile from the 
tunnel mouth or a little over, and it was in the main travelling road I could not tell who the men were; 
I looked at one of them ; he was alive ; he was lying on his side, and his safety-lamp was down by his 
le;s ; it was not burning ; he was breathing, but it was very weak and slow ; I said to him, " Would you 
like to come out?" ; I got no answer from him ; he seemed to be unconscious I thought that it looked 
very much like Mr. Bates, but his face was so black ; when I got hold of him to lift him I thought it was 
not an ordinary miner's dress; the second man was only about 2 feet away; he was lying face downwards 
on the road ; there was no movement in him at all ; lie was, as far as I could judge, quite dead, but I did 
not look ; I know Mr. Nelson; I lcft the two men there and went on towards the tunnel mouth I saw 
some lights; the lights were 40 or 50 yards away I called out for them to go outside and fetch six men 
in to bring two men out who could not get out; I remained where I was; I said I would remain where I 
was till assistance came ; after that Mr. Ritchie and a party came in and met me; I directed Mr. Ritchie 
and the party to where the bodies were lying ; ultimately the bodies were got out. 

Cross-examined by hi'. Bm'erce Smith -. I did not smell anything after I left the face at any time; the 
noise I heard was a rumble like distant thunder; I had never heard a noise like it before ; it was too 
long a noise ; it was a running noise it was something like the noise of artillery ; there was no loud 
report; the noise got less and less I did not smell anything till I got to the neighbourhood where there 
was disorder, and then I smelt a smell like sulphur; I have often heard the noise of a roof falling in ; the 
noise I heard on this occasion was not a noise like that; I never suffered in any way from tins; the first 
thing I noticed was the brattice blown down; time door of the bottom siding had disappeared altogether; I 
have found gas in that mine many times, when I have fired shots ; it was down in No. 1 and the shaft 
also; I did not say anything, only to my mate ; I did not say anything because we saw it often I know 
the rules; I know that it is my duty to inform someone over me when I see gas ; my reason fur not 
reporting was that there was not sufiicent quantity to be %vorth. talking about I know that I ought to 
report any appearance of gas ; it occurs so often that I did not report ; there is no alteration whether you 
report it or not ; I have not seen any gas for two or three months ; I have not seen anyone singed in that 
mine ; I have known a man singed in that mine; his name was Edward Gallagher ; lie was singed by gas 
that was about ten years ago; Gallagher is dead now ; I cannot say whether that case was reported; it 
was well known at the time; Gallagher was off a long time; I cannot say that since then I have known of 
any burning; when an extensive fall takes place it sounds like thunder frequently when you are at a 
distance. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WILLIAM BROADHEAD. 
this 18th day of August, A.D. 1902, before rue,— f 

CIJAs. C. RLSSELL, Coroner. 

It is agreed that that portion of the mine inhye of No. 2 Left be left undisturbed for the present, or 
until the further order of this Court.—Ciixs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wohlongong, 18th August, 
1902. 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, until 10 o'clock am., on Tuesday, the 19th day of August, 
A.D. 1902, at the Court-house, Wollongong.—Ciias. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 
18th August, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at theCourt-house, \Vollongong, on the 19th day of 
August, A.D. 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—C1m.ds. C. IIUeSELL, Coroner. 

Cross-examined by Mi'. Bruce Smith :—TVi?liam Broadlccad, recalled, states : My copy of the rules 
is at home ; it is on the shelf over my ]lead I reach it sometimes; I know of the rule you referred me to 
yesterday ; the known presence of gas in a mine makes a difference in the management of the mine ; the 
difference is to bring the brattice closer to the face ; I know also that the known presence of gas might 
lead to the preventmon of the use of naked lights I know that the lives of the miners are endangered by 
the use of naked lights where there is gas ; I can see that neglect to report gas may lead to the loss of the 
lives of the miners ; I have reported the presence of gas when I saw it was severe, when I saw it was 
requisite if I told you yesterday that I did not report it to an official I made a mistake ; what I said 
yesterday is not true; I reported to Mi'. David Evans last quarter when I was in the shaft; Mr. David Evans 
is the head fireman in time district of the shaft ; that is not the only occasion on which I have reported gas 
I cannot distinctly appoint any other tinie I have reported ; I have reported every time I have noticed gas 
severe at all ; I have never reported gas more than the aim' would put out ; I never saw more ; the gas I 
reported to Evans was mostly in the shaft ; I told himn that there was a good deal of gas in that part of the 
pit, and to keep the canvas forward; there was slightly more than usual when I reported to Evans on the 
occasion I have mentioned; there was a good deal on that occasion. - 

Cro$8.excnmnined 
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Cross-examined by ilIr. Lqsaght I told the Coroner yesterday the fireman knows there was gas, 
and I might speak to the fireman ; when I did report to the fireman be did not do anything to prevent the 
gas when I reported the gas to Mr. David Evans, lie said, "Oh, you saw some gas when you fired the 
shot," nothing more I have had a conversation with Nelson and Dungey durmg the last twelve months 
the quarter before last Dungey was our fireman, and I told him that the gas was rather srong ; I spoke to 
him when I was in the left hand No. 1 in Powell's Flat I told him the gas was in Powell's Flat ; when I 
told him that, he said, " We cannot do anything, only keep the canvas forward, Broadheacl " ; he sent in 
more canvas on that occasion ; the gas had exploded when the canvas was sent in ; it exploded when the 
shot went off; I also spoke to Dungey about gas higher up than Powell's Flat ; it was not to Dungey I 
spoke then, it was to Nelson I told him that the gas was pretty strong, that it showed itself when you 
fired a shot, prominent ; Nelson said, "We will have to get the canvas a bit farther forward, I will send in 
some canvas, and get it put up "; he sent in more canvas on that occasion ; William Portus was working with 
me when I reported the gas to Nelson ; Portus is alive now; when I reported the gas to Dungey, William 
Hopkins was my mate ; it is about nine months ago that I had the conversation about the gas with 
Nelson ; I cannot remember any other occasion on which I have reported gas, either to Nelson or Dungey, 
or anyone else ; it is too long ago, but there has been times I know of an occasion when the fireman has 
done something to prevent gas before I knew of the presence of gas ; Evans was the fireman ; he is living 
now ; he picked up a board, or a shovel, or a slab (it was the shovel) he wrote on the shovel, Fire do 
not go past this ; put your light out ; take your coat and go in and fan the place well out "; it was written 
on the shovel with chalk ; it is too far back to say who I was working with at that time, but I was working 
behind the furnace in the shaft; that took place about three years ago ; on that occasion I did as I was 
directed ; when I fanned the gas out to the canvas the air carried it away ; I cannot remember any other 
time when I had to fan the gas out like that; about four months ago when I was working in the place I 
came to before last the air was a bit dull and gassy and the seam low, 4 feet 6 ; I asked Mr. Rogers to be 
shifted I said the place was too hard and was very gasified, and was too badly ventilated ; Mr. Rogers 
ordered the fireman to shift us about half a mile down the rope road I did not see Mr. Rogers look at my 
place; Mr. Leitch came and looked at the place before I was shif ted I told Mr. Leitch that it was a poor 
place to earn a living ; I say that place was dangerous ; that place was marked by the fireman with the 
date in the usual way ; Evans was the fireman who marked that place with the date ; there is no other 
occasion during the last twelve months when I have observed an extra quantity of gas ; the map produced 
is imperfect 1 could not see a particle of the door I spoke of yesterday; it was there in the morning; the 
brattice was blown up against the air, I think I formed the opinion that time explosion had started a 
considerable distance to the left, but I could not tell to hunch-eds of yards ; I was too far away I have no 
idea where the explosion started I have never been in a mine when an explosion has taken place before 
I did not notice any marks of burning, much, as I came out ; I saw nothing that had been burnt much or 
charred ; the canvas was burnt where it was broken ; there was nothing else burnt besides the canvas ; I 
caine about 5 or 6 yards down the rope road when I saw the brattice burnt ; all the canvas was burnt as I 
proceeded ; there were more marks of burning as I went further down ; 1 saw a skip with the top blown 
off right opposite where I came on to the rope road ; it was an iron skip ; I noticed the gas more in the 
solid workings than in the side workings ; both sides of Lord PS are new workings ; no ventilation is forced 
into the waste workings the roof often hangs for acres and acres, and it may hang for years; yards of gas 
gather in the waste headings 1, there is no ventilation put on to remove that gas. 

Cross-examined by Air. JVade I know. that the Government Inspectors come round time mines 
pretty often in the year; Mr. Atkinson is an experienced and capable man; he has been to Kembla several 
times ; he must have seen the waste workings ; I have never been through the waste workings; I mean 
by " waste workings" places that have been worked, and then left I know that the ordinary miner is 
not allowed in the waste workings ; Lnever examined the edge of the waste workings I have seen Mr. 
Eowan in the mine several times; I never told the sergeant about the conversation with Dungey and 
Nelson, because he did not ask me; he may have asked inc a little about gas; I have forgotten; I do 
not think he did; to the best of my recollection, I do not think he did ; 1 am pretty well positive ; I 
do not remember his asking me about gas last Saturday; I do not remember saying yesterday that I did 
not report the gas because it was not worth while ; I thought of the conversation with Dungey and 
Nelson this morning I could not be sure, now, whether I had a conversation with the sergeant on 
Saturday last about gas; I remember to-day, because the questions were pressed upon me ; I went home 
last night as soon as the Court dismissed ; 1 got home about dusk ; I got into town this morning about 
9 o'clock ; I was nearly all the time in the street; I went and got my breakfast at half-past 9; I did 
not tell Mr. Lysaght or Mr. Ritchie about these conversations; I saw the gas when firing shots ; I saw 
a flash -off, like of gas; I saw the red flame ; the flame came from near the shot; it came from where the 
shot went off, and back again to the same place ; I just saw the one flash, and it was gone ; the quantity 
of powder used varies; a pound of powder is used sometimes—average, half a pound; sometimes the 
hole is made at the top, sometimes in the middle, and sometimes at the bottom, and I have seen the flash 
from each of those places; it was always the same kind of flash ; the powder used was the plug powder 
for the first four or five years 1 did not notice the red flash so much ; 1 have seen it for the last five or 
six years ; I never looked for gas in the roof; I have never tested in the roof with my lamp for fire-damp; 
when I went to work in the morning I always found a chalk-mark on the working face ; I know by that 
that it was safe, and I could go to w'ork ; the colour of the flame of fire-damp is the colour of the rainbow 
—that is, all colours and all shades ; there is only one shade at Kembla ; I have seen a shot fired at a 
quarry in open daylight; I cannot say I have ever seen a flash from one ; I know that men sometimes 
overcharge, and sometimes the shot blows out ; time reason the shot blow-s out is because it is not properly 
tamped I know that I am liable to instant dismissal for breaking the rules I had time rule in my book 
about reporting any appearance of fire-damp ; I did not think the place was dangerous when I saw the 
red flashes I have spoken of—it was only ordinary ; I know that if the manager finds that a place is 
dangerous, the inca are removed; there must be strict regulations for the safbtv of the men I know 
that if the manager refuses to carry out the Coal Mines Regulation Act he can be punished ; I never 
went to Mr. Rogers himself and complained about the presence of gas ; I know that Nelson 
is dead, and also Dungey; I was working with Thomas Smith, last quarter, also; it was last 
quarter I spoke to Dungey, I think ; I do not think that Smith was present when I spoke to Dungey 
1 spoke to Nelson the quarter before last ; William Portus was my mate then ; I think he was 
present when I spoke to Nelson; canvas is sent in about once a week ; the brattice is supposed to be 
about 4 yards from the coal Evans wrote on the front of the shovel; I did not see Evans write on the 
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shovel; on the occasion I got moved out of my place I had been at work for about six weeks; I noticed 
gas there for about two weeks; we could hear it springing out near the floor 1 foot or 18 inches above 
the floor; our lights used to burn there all right; the ventilation was not sufficient ; that state of things 
existed for two or three weeks before we were shifted; it went on all the time ; my chief trouble was that 
I was not earning enough money combined with gas and bad air; I found out I was not making enough 
wages before I heard the gas there; I spoke about being moved about a fortnight after I found that I 
was not making wages; it was two or three weeks after I noticed the gas that I asked to be moved; I 
only asked to be moved once; that place was down the rope road from thQ shaft on the left-hand side in 
the shaft district; it was in No. 2 right in the rope road No. 29 ; there is no water about the place where 
I was working on the 29th July; the floor is damp ; that is in No. 5 right; when I go in of a morning I 
go in 59 yards to the left of the main tunnel, after a bit I strike the No. 1 travelling road and walk along 
that till I pass the telephone cabin, and then I go on for about 500 yards till I come to a turning where 
I strike the rope road that comes to my district ; I turn to the right, and at the second siding I turn to 
my left and get to my place; when I finished my work on the 31st July I started to go out by the same 
way as I came in ; I remember getting to that point where the rope road for my district joins the main 
rope road ; from that point, roughly speaking, 400 or 500 yards towards the tunnel mouth was where I 
found the heat worst; I could only just stand it; the door was on the rope road about 4 yards from 
where I got on to the travelling road; when I went in in the morning I saw the door; when 'I came out 
afterwards I did not see the door; what concerned me most was whether I could breathe the air as I went 
along ; I was not thinking much of the signs of the damage done I could breathe the air, but it was very 
warm; I never had to stop; for 500 yards it was a struggle; I did not see anyone at all in the part of 
the tunnel I say was hot ; Nelson was a very old official in the mine; Nelson was always a very strict and 
careful man; he always gave special attention to tie safety of the miners ; Dungey was an old official 
the miners could trust him to look after their interests; Mr. Rogers is a man who shows every care for 
the safety of the miners ; be is always attentive and does all be can ; the only alteration there is if gas is 
reported is to bring the brattice forward ; there is some alteration arimen gas is reported ; I meant by 
saying that there was no alteration whether gas was reported or not that the men would not be withdrawn 
from working the place any longer I do not suggest that Dungey and Nelson did not make the place 
safe as far as they could. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith: I had not been in the part of the mine where I was on the 20th very long; 
I did not know the daylight road ; I had neglecte I to go out that way; I could have gut out by that way 
very easily ; 1 knew men were working at 100 (two bords away) ; I had never taken the trouble to 
inform myself that I could get out by the daylight in ten minutes ; I was at liberty to go out by that 
road every day had I liked ; it was through negligence 011 my part that I did not know that way out ; I 
would not have lost any time if I had been stopped working at any place I would not have lost a shift; 
the skips hold from 11 cwt. to a ton; the iron skips would hold 11 cwt., and the woolcn ones from 18 to 
20 cwt. ; I would load the skips from 18 to 20 inches over the top sometimes; the reason for loading so 
high might be that we were short of skips ; coal tumbled off sometimes when not put on properly ; it was 
not always put on properly; if the coal fell off the skip it would be a loss to the miners; I tamnped my 
shots with damp slack ; it was always damp, as munch damp as we could get; I did not speak to Mr. Rogers 
myself personally about being shifted; I did not hear the fireman communicate my message to Mr. Rogers; 
I believe that my message reached Mr. Rogers, because I was shifted ; that is my only reason for so 
believing. 

To the Coroner: I mean by the top of the skip being blown off, the coal above tl-e rim of the skip 
I know that a withdrawal of the men must follow a report that the mine is dangerous I knew that on(,, 
particu'*r part of the mine was dangerous, and I made a report of it to Mr. Evans ; the place was stopped 
after I reported to Mr. Evans ; that was the place where the writing was on the shovel ; it was stopped 
a few days after the writing was on the shovel ; in my experience, when I reported, they always took the 
necessary precaution, and always did sufficient to satisfy me; Smith was my mate when I spoke to Dungey, 
I think, that is as far as I can recollect ; it is such a long time ago I cannot say. 

To the Foreman : I do not think that the waste workings are properly sealed up when they are 
abandoned; I cannot say. 

To the Coroner: The waste places I have mentioned are not in actual use now for the purpose ef 
getting coal or for the purpose of extending the mine; those places are not fenced ; there is no fence across 
them I know rule 41, which says that any employee must report any appearance of fire-damp I know 
that every person employed in the mine " shall make himself thoroughly acquaintcd with the provisions of 
the Coal Mines Regulation Act, and the special rules so far as they relate to his employment and duty, 
and shall strictly observe the same "; I know there is such a rule; also that "ally person employed in or 
about the mine who shall violate or iufringe any of the rules shall be liable to instant dismissal "; I 
received a copy of the special rules from the management I think I could go into the waste workings 
without climbing over anything. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, WTollongong, ) WILL] LM BROADHEAD. 
this 19th day of August, AD. 1902, before me,— 

CuAs. C. RtssELi, Coroner. 

Examined by Senior-sergeant Banks :-211athew Frost, sworn, states I am overman over the 
wheelers and shiftmen at the Mount Kembla Colliery; I live at l\Iount Kembli; I have been employed 
in the colliery for as near as I can say twelve years ; I was employed wheeling in the earlier part of my 
time there I remember the 31st July last; I was in the mine on that date ; between 1 and 2 that day I 
was in the seventh rigbt in the shaft section ; I was working at the point marked on the map X 1; while 
I was there I felt a great pressure of wind coining round the rope road and also at the back heading; it 
was sudden; the wind was coining against the air; the wind was coming up the back and front headings; 
I heard no noise at all; as near as I can say that was about 2 o'clock in the afternoon ; shortly prior to 
that I had met Mr. David Evans, the fireman ; that was about ten minutes or a quarter of an hour before; 
when I felt the air I made my way to find the company's deputy; I went round the rope road into the 
pillars between No. 6 right and No. 7 right ; the track I took is shown by,  the pencil mark on the map; 
I thought there might have been a fall at the pillars; I did not find Evans there then I did not see any 
fall; 1 then went to No. 6 right; when I got there I saw Jack Sells and. Allen I spoke to them; they 
are both living now; I asked them if they had had a fall in their place, and they said "No, that they had 
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been drawing the timber, but it had not fell" ; I then went back into the pillars again I then found 
David Evans, the fireman, there ; before I went back I saw Dunning and his son, and Walker, and 
Dixon ; Dunning passed the remark that there was a fire ; he said he thought there was a fire ; he was in 
,in excited state ; I told him to wait there, and I thought ' I could find Evans very quickly ; it was then I 
returned to the pillal's and saw Evans; Dunning and his -on and Dixon are dead, and Walker is alive in 
the hospital ; I told Evans what the men had said, and that he had better come out to consult straight 
away with the miners that had come from that part; be did not appear to know what had happened ; he 
(Evans) returned with me to No. U right ; the men were there when we got back ; Evans told Dunning 
to keep cool and stay there till such time as we returned back to them ; Evans tried to get along No. U 
right towards Powell's Flat to see the return; I went with Evans as far as we could get, and that was 
about six bords down ; we were stopped by smoke and dust; we were unable to go further; Evans said, 

We will' get back to the men"; we returned to where we had left the men, but they were not there 
Evans and I went from there up towards the furnace ; when we got between No. 6 right and the furnace 
we were overtaken by seventeen or eighteen men; Oakes, Ridley, ilunt, Dixon, Sells, Allen were some 
of the men ; they are all alive ; there were others ; when we got to No. 6 right Evans suggested to open 
the doors at the point marked on the map in pencil with two small circles ; they are wooden doors ; the 
foul air was coming in the intake way, the main road to No. 6 right; we opened the doors, and that had 
the effect of turning the air back to the upcast shaft; up till the time the doors were open the men were 
very excited, and they were afterwards also ; they wanted to get out very bad; one of the men said to 
try old No. 2 ; that is on the left-hand side of the main tunnel, round the outside of the 92-acre goaf 
Evans said, " That is the way we will go ''; Evans left then, with all the men I have mentioned ; I remained 
there with Ridley; Evans said to me, "There is only me and you that knows the road out by No. 2, and 
one had better stay behind in case any more men should come"; I was to stop any men from passing that 
point ; Ridley and I remained there may be for forty minutes ; Ridley remained with inc for company 
we noticed very little, except that the doors being open was keeping the after-damp from coming to us 
Evans told inc to wait as long as I thought any men were likely to come that way ; Ridley and I stayed 
at the doors ; the doors being open short-circuited the air; while Ridley and I were there no more men 
caine up; he and I then went to the ucast shaft; we there met the i'elief party coming in ; from the 
time Evans left us till we got to the npcast shaft it was between half an hour and forty minutes ; before 
that I saw Richard Walker lying in No. U right Ridley was with me at the time ; while I was standing 
with Ridloy I saw a light burning about 40 or 50 yards down in No. 6 right ; I went down to the light 
Walker was there, and he was unconscious ; he is dead now; his light was alongside of him on the floor, 
burning; Ridley and I carried Walker, and laid him on the inbye side of the doors ; that was to get bini 
out of the foul air at that time I did not notice anyone' else there;. there was another light burning 
lower down than \Valkcr's, a few yards lower down ; after we had taken Walker to the doors, I said to 
Ridley, " We will stay here for a few minutes and get a breath of air, and then we will go back and get his 
mate" ; we went back ; we did not get his mate ; I saw twelve or thirteen men in a heap together, all 
unconscious ; they were groaning, most of them ; that was at the placo where I had seen the light 
burning lower down than Walker's ; George Dixon, Daniel Healey, henry and William Meuran. 
Dunning and his son, Filby, Peter Muir, and Michael Gallagher; that is about all I can remember; they 
are all dead ; they were alive when I saw them, and were groaning ; the too Mcurants were close 
together, sitting on the left-hand side of the road, side by side I looked at all the men I have mentioned 
the two Meurants were alive ; I have put three crosses (XXX) to indicate where these twelve or thirteen 
men were lying; they were 130 or 1-10 yards down No. 6 right rope road from Mat's Flat; I have put a mark 
on the top to indicate Mat's Flat; I have put a cim'cle round it I said to Ridley, when I saw the twelve 
or thirteen men, " We will try to make outside for a relief party ''; the air was then it litte sultry, but the 
air was taking its natural course ; the air had not been iniproved where the mcmi were lying by opening 
the doors; the opening of the doors did not bring the men within the short-circuit it made no difference 
to them ; the men that were in the heap were the same men that, were with Dunning when we had 
told him to stay where he was ; if they lad staved they would have been all right ; Ridley and I trkd to 
get out for relief, and we mnt the first relief party there at Mat's Flat ; Adam Frost was one of the 
party ; Croivthier and Bigeers and i\lorrison were others; I took the party down No. C right to where we 
had left the men lying ; we pitt all the men up in a silting position I think they were then all alive, we 
then commenced to carry them out to N at's Flat; Walker was the first I fiat was carried out ; when we 
carried Walker out 1 tan' Edward Meurant ; lie wa at my flat ; he asked Inc if Ins brothers were olive. 
and I told him they were I found a boy named Olsen on my flat ; ho was not exrmcllv unconscious. but 
seemed very muddled' in the head he is alive now ; I took him out by the main hauling read till I got to 
the main travelling road, about 200 ya! ds from the outside ; I went that way bc tote it was much shorter 
to go that way, and by that time the air had become much cloai'er ; Kelly was with me when 1 took Olsen 
out ; I was out for, it may have been, twenty minutes, and then back again to No. U right ; there were 
others there then assisting to get men out ; I went in again by the main travelling road right through 
No. 6 right ; I noticed when I got back the two Neui'ants were dead, and also several others , I saw 
several of the bodies brought out on skips to my flat; Gallaghr was brought out to the shaft flat alive, 
so was Peter Muir; they died two days after ; I went out of the mine with bodies the second time ;  later 
on I went in with Mr. Johnson, the manager of Bulli, and a party ; I was Nvith Dr. Robertson's party ii 
the mine ; Dr. Robert son and Evans and1 went in, and we met .Johnsomi's party inside I went into the 
mine on the next day (Friday, the 1st August), with Mr. Cook's party ; we vent in the dayhght tunnel way 
we did not find any bodies in the tunnel ; we followed the intake ; we found a body in the main heating, 
where 1 have put an X ; it was in No. 1 main heading ; they said it was Dungeys body, but I could not 
recognise it ; it was about 100 yards from the fifth right rope road inbye wilt-re his body was found ; his 
hotly was very much mnut ilaten ; the head was not on the body ; his arm was not on the body I do not 
think the body was greatly torn about in other respects ; after finding Dnngey's body we continued on 
we went up along No. 1 main heading to the left hand of No. 1 main heading to the bords. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, this ) M. FROST. 
19th day of August, A.D. 1902, before,— 

CIrAs. C. RUSSSI,L, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, till Wednesday, the 20th day of August, A.D. 1002, at 
10 o'clock a.m —Cimas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Woflongong, 10tl August, 1002. 
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Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 20th day 
of August, A.D. 1902, at 10 o'clock a,m,—CHAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by Senior-aerqeant Ban Jes :—Mathew Frost, recalled, states: Aiken was found in one 
of the bords off No. 1 main heading ; we continued down the line of bords; we found seven bodies in 
different bords on the left hand of No. 1 main heading; I have marked the place on the map with three 
crosses (XXX) ; the bodies were found 20 or 30 yards from the face; none of the bodies were found close 
to the face ; the bodies were Ansler, James, Wilkinson, Howell, S. McLister, Egan ; that is all I can 
remember ; we carried the bodies out with stretcher parties towands daylight ; the body of John Purcell 
was also found in one of those bords ; after carrying the bodies out I returned to the fifth right rope road, 
to the spot marked " 0"; I found bodies there that had been brought there by a party that were further 
in the mine; I assisted to carry those bodies out also; I continued to go in and out to the rope road to 
assist to carry out the bodies that the parties on the inbye side brought there ; I was in several times during 
the day to that point only; I was with Mr. Cook's party UI)  to the time I found the seven bodies together; 
at that time there were two other parties who joined ours, Mr. Johnson's, and my brother Adam's party; 
of the seven bodies only that of the young Aiken seemed to be affected ; it seemed to be singed a little 
about the bare arms ; there was very little wrong with the other bodies; I do not think Aiken was 
scorched about the face or hair. 

Cross -exam in ed by IiLr. Brace Smith : I am in the employ of the company; I receive my salary 
from my father ; I am contractor's foreman; I receive my pay from my father as contractor ; I used the 
word overman in the sense of being a foreman in control of the men engaged by my father; I do not 
receive any regular pay from the company apart from the wages I got from my father; I have no duties 
towards the company apart from my father's employment; my father has no official position in the mine; 
lie simply contracts to shift coal at so much a ton to the outside ; I have always been in my father's 
employ; I have no official position iii the mine ; I have been working in the mine for, as near as I can say, 
twelve years ; I know the geography of the shaft section of the mine only; the shaft section includes the 
seventh right rope road and all the workings about it, the sixth right rope road and all the workings about 
it, and the bords on the left-hand side of the shaft main heading; that is all that is included in the shaft 
section ; that is the only part of the mine that I understand and know the run of thoroughly ; I do not 
know No. 1 section so well I only go there when my brother is not there ; the plan shows all the shaft 
section thoroughly ; I went into the mine on the 31st at it quarter to 7 and came out, as near as I can say, 
between 4 and .5 ; that was when I first came out; I came out the second time about 9 o'clock or after; 
I went in again about twenty minutes after and came out again at, as near as I can say, 1 or 2 in the 
morning; after I came out finally I felt a little dizzy, but I was quite sensible enough, but I felt a little 
weary in the legs ; I am of opinion that the cause of the accident occurred in No. 1 section ; that is the 
result of my observation from the time I was in the mine from 7 o'clock on the morning of the 31st till 
1 or 2 next morning ; I am of the same opinion now I have formed the opinion that time cause of the 
accident was within that part of the mine shown on the map by the red line I could not say in what 
part of that area the seat of the explosion wi's.; my observations do not enable inc to say that ; I say that 
the explosion occurred in that area because it was in that part of the mine that I saw things upset from 
their usual condition, skips upset, timber blown out of place, horses and men (lead, tools lying alongside 
dead men, doors blown out, canvasses disarranged, falls in the roof, stoppings blown out ; I cannot think 
of any other indications that I noticed of all explosion having taken place ; I did not see any charring in 
that area ; I saw indications of men having been singed I did not see any charring on any subsequent 
visit; apart from the singeing of Aiken I saw no indication of charring up till now; I saw one body with 
the head and one arm off; that is the wort mutilation of all that I saw ; the body of the boy Walker 
was also mutilated ; part of his head was smashed in at the back I have marked on time map the places 
where the bodies were found in red as follows —No. 1, Danger ; 2. Purcell ; 3 Aiken ; 4, Anslev ; 5, 
Egan; 0, MeLister; 7, Wilkinson; 8, Howell; 0, Walker; 10, Stafford; .11, Leice; of those there was 
only one, that of the boy Walker (No. 0), found near where lie was working ; I think Purcell was very 
close to his work ; the men (Nos. 2 to 8 and it) and 11) had been working within 50 yards 
of the places at which they were found; they had not got farther away from their work ; the 
bodies that were found outside the areainirked with the red pencil were not knocked about 
at all; I do not know where those men—there were seventeen of them—had been working 
but where they died was no indication of where they had been working ; the only dead horse I 
saw in the area enclosed with red was where I have marked. "0 " in No. 1 main road; there were nine or 
ten or more horses working in the area enclosed with the red line on the day of the explosion ; the horses 
belonged to my father; the horse that was found dead marked 0" was working between the point at 
which lie was found and the places where the dead men (Nos. 1 to 9) were found ; nine other horses were 
killed in that section; four of the horses working on the fifth right off No. 1 main heading were got 
out alive ; the four marks with a circle with a line clraivn through the centre indicate where the horses 
were working ; they were working between the bords and the fifth right rope road ; the other 
five or seven horses were found dead, one close to howell (No. 8) ; the position of that horse 
is marked with a circle ; three dead horses were found at Powell's Flat ; they had been working in 
bords close by where they were found; one dead horse was found at Stafford's Flat, indicated by a circle 
on the map ; two dead horses were found at Price's Flat, indicated on time map by two circles; the horses 
were harnessed for working when found ; they were hitched on to the skips some of them, one or two 
one at Price's Flat and one at Powell's Flat; the others were waiting and were not attached to skips ; 
cannot say whether those horses moved about at all before they fell ; I saw eight or ten skips empty 
disturbed at Price's Flat ; they were thrown off the rails; I cannot say whether they had been thrown on 
the inbve side or time outbve side I did not make a close inspection to find out at the time ; the whole 
of the skips at that point had been standing there waiting for the wheeler to work them ; two of them 
were on their sides and one on its end when I saw them ; 1 have marked the position of the skips on the 
map with red squares ; the skip that was on its end was the one nearest to Stafford's Flat ; there were no 
other trncics displaced besides those I have mentioned ; I saw no other skips disarranged that day ; I 
saw timber blown out of place close to where Dungey's body was found in No. 1 main heading ; it was 
also close to where time dead horse was found ; I cannot say which way the timber had been thrown ; I 
did not see any other timbers in No. 1 section out of place; the door was blown out close to the dead 
horse (marked 0); I cannot tell what directien it was in which the door had been throw-n; I do not 
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profess to know where all the falls were in that area; as far as I know Dungev's body had not been 
moved when I first saw it; I cannot remember the osh ion in which the body (Dun(,ev's) was lying ; the 
head was about 30 or 40 yards from the body ; the arm was a less distance from the body than the head, 
between the henri and the body the head and the arm were lying  towards the centre of the area (No. 1 
section) from the body ; the body maci the head and the arm were lying in No. I main heading (No. 1 
main level on the map) Walker's body was Ivilig oil top of a full k p with the face down ; the bead was 
lying in the same di-ection as the head of Dungev was lying ; there were other skips behind hini ; I 
cannot say whether lie was on the first or second skip he could have got up on the skip if lie had wished 
to do so ; there was a fall of stone just there and some of the stone was on him ; it was on him in large 
quantities ; he was so covered with stone that at first he was overlooked ; I am fhmiiiar with the sound 
of a fall of stone in the mine , when you are close to it it sounds like a rumbling of thunder; that is a 
large fall when you are drawing timber I heard no sound at all on the 31st at any time; it was the wind 
that attracted by attention ; it was coming in the opposite direction ; a fall when they are drawing timber 
in the pillars might have caused the change in the direction of the air. 

Cros-s'-e.vamined lq, ALe. Lysaqizi : The wind came against the air I did not detect any bad smell 
at the time I first noticed the air ; it was detected I)y inc (the bad smell) about a quarter of an hour 
after; I had not got the bad smell when I met Mr. Evans , I detected the smell in No. 6 right, about 
six bords down, towards Powell's Flat; I knew that that smell was the after-damp; it was pretty 
strong there ; I turned back ; we thought we had gone quite far enough that way ; I was going with the 
air on the way to Powell's Flat the air would meet the ci ust and sinolce, and clash; they did meet half-
way down towards Powell's Flat ; I had an idea then i hat there was something wrong, but I did not 
know what it was ; Dnnning told me that his place was very hot, or something to that effect ; I cannot 
say that he said his place was on fire, but be said it was very hot ; Dixon said nothing about his place 
young Walker was very excited, and wan ted to get cut ; lie did not say anything more than that lie 
wanted to get out ; other men said that No, 1 was en fire, but I do not know what men said that ; the 
conclusion I came to was that, if No. I was 011 fire, the sooner the men were got out the better ; I thought 
it was an explosion of gas fire-damp ; I did not know before the explosion that there was fircdamp about 
Powell's Flat I do not know now that there was fire-damp about there before the explosion ; I have been 
to Powell's Flat since ; I am now satisfied that there was an explosion in No. 1 from fire-damp I do not 
know what Evans was convinced about when he said lie was convinced ; Allen and. Sells told me that 
they had felt a change in the ar the same as I did ; tiev thought there had been a fall ; they did not tell 
me that they had heard any noise ; the suggestion that we should go and loolc at the return air-way was 
Evans' ; we went to Powell's Flat to see if the air was right ; if the return was not all right, the air 
would have come past to where we had n left the me, and would very likely have killed them ; from the 
time I and Evans left the men, and told them to wait there till we came back, and the time we returned 
to where we left them, I had a conversation Nvith Evans ; Ito only said, .1 am satisfied " lie did not say 
what he was satisfied with ; there was sonic after-date p conii ig 

'been 
the main tunnel ; that was about half 

an hour or twenty minutes after 1 felt the wi ad ; I lni,l net been standing at the ttpcast shaft for any 
time before I felt the after-damp coining up the mail tunnel , I was etantling 200 N ards from it ; 1 could 
there detect after-damp coming iii the neOn tunnel 1 li:ul never heat-cl of fire_clamp being  in the Kembla 
Mine before ; I had never heard of it in any proportion at all I will swear that I never knew of any 
lire-damp ; I just recollect a man named Gallagher being burnt that axas many years ago ; it was in my 
time that he was burnt ; I do not remember the occurrence ; I tlunkI would be wheeling at that time; 
I do not know perfectly well that he was burnt w:tii fire-damp ; 1 heard that Gallagher was burnt; I never 
asked what with I do not recollect that a man named liowie was burnt with fire-damp ; I do not recollect 
anything of that at all I do not know that a man named Waples was burnt wi ti fire-damp ; the door I 
have spoken of was a wooden door; I ca - v it before the explosion ; it may be three months before ; I 
cannot remember the occasion I saw it I have not seen the door since the explosion ; I did not say the 
door n-as blown, off; it may not have been bloivn off; I did not carefully examine Dungey's body 
or any of the clothing ; his clothing was not binnt that I can say ; 1 will not swear that his 
clothing was not burnt ; I cannot swear that he was or was not burnt in any way; I did not 
iake any examination I cliii not iotckeaiiy vxaniinat ion of Purcell's body either ; I did not notice whether 

any of his clothing was burnt; ii did not not ice whet her t lie brat tico cloth was burnt; there was no other 
door except that one near the dead lior c I do not ku-a iv that biotvn-out shots are a freq uent occurrence 
in Ketubla.; I may have heard men say they have ha: I blown- ont al ots ; I water the haulage road ; the 
road is watered whenever the manager thinks it is i equb ed I cannot say the iiuinber of tOnes the road. 
has been waterc-cl since the 1st of .Jailimai-y it has been watered often and whenever the manager said it 
ivas to be watered ; it may he ivatere(I on an average every fortnight, at places the road is naturally wet 
and at others it is dry, butnot very dry, and very little duct accumulates in the main hauling road ; I do 
not know anything about tIie o atei-izi ,f No. 1 sect ion ; the uticler-inanager anc the deputy would give 
orders for the watering of the road those ot-ilers would be given to me in nay section ; I was not paid 
extra for watering I hind to do that itiler tile contract ; the object of watering is to liy the dust so that 
it would not ignite there is considerable danger eli dust igni' ing if it is not watered, the system of 
ivateri rg in R enibla nil e ivas ivat€i- tuks, with plug-hole in the bottom ; the watering is supervised to 
see that there is nit: too Much put in one place ; 1. have four wa ter tanks in my section (the shaft section) 
the tanks are shifted alout 1 (to n e not hcow lion miany tanks are in the mine; the tanks would hohi a 
few hi undred gal Ions ; I shin uld thumik the large one no old hold 300 ci -100 gallons ; there is no particular 
place for the tanks to stop or to go to, but they are always sent to the places we got oi-cler.s for them to 
go to ; they go off the role roads ; they go into I lie Lords right up to tie face when required ; I have 
kilown that to be done ; 1 know the tank travelle,i up to working places in No. 6 right, with water ; No. 
6 right nian heading mahces a little water ; the ivat cv would he got from there, and in six or seven 
dill event places : in several bords in No. 6 vi lit ; I myself have liar water brought to No. 6 right, heading 
to the stroighit-in bard in that beading. itt tanks, to ivatcr ; I have known water to he taken into Ifichard. 
Walkem-'z place to wet mt; one of the Peaces was his mate ; it may have been a few days -befere the 
explosion ; I gave orders for Walkers place to be avaterc-d ; I thinl Mr. Nelson gave me instructions to 
live Walker's place watered the, last time t ivait iiaatcred before the explosion ; Nelson foul inc that 
Walker's place wanted water ; ho did not tell me any mai're ; at the time he told inc that ho did not tell. 
Inc 'nay other man's place wanted water I know of no oilier working places besides Ifiuhiard Walker's 
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that were watered during the month before the explosion; there were no very peculiar conditions about 
Walker's place that necessitated its being watered ; it is naturally a wet place ; Walker's place did not 
need watering; we used to take water from it; where Nelson wailted it watered was a hundred yards 
distant from the face ; it was not extra bad there a hundred yards from the face ; there was dust there, 
but it was not very dusty; it was more so than at any other place I can think of at the time ; Walker's 
place was in No. G right heading; I cannot think of any place other than the travelling roads that was 
watered during the month before the explosion; I do not know,  whether Nelson got any instructions 
from the manager to have Walker's place watered; Nelson was under-manager at the time; all the water 
that was used for watering was got from inside the mine; the left hand of No. 1 main heading was not 
very dusty when I was there about a month before the explosion ; there was natural damp at Price's 
Flat and Stafford's Flat; with the exception of those two flats the other parts were a little dusty ; water, 
to water that section, could be got either from Price's Flat or Stafford's Flat I do not know whether any 
watering was done there at any time; there may have been a place or two in the travelling road where 
there was a little dust; it was a little more than on the main haulage road ; the travelling roads are not 
as a custom watered ; water is let on to them ; water has been let on at No. 5 ; I mean by "let on" that 
the water was let on to the road by drains; that is the only water the travelling road gets, therefore any 
rise in the travelling road gets no water at all ; from the main tunnel to the telephone cabin is descending, 
and from there to the top of the No. 1 main level, and right up to the top of the main workings, it is 
ascending ; I cannot eaplmun whether any water is being macto in the No. I main heading ; there is an 
accumulation of dust on the floor of the travelling road fro:n the telephone cabin up; there may be an 
inch or so on the floor; your feet do not sink into it ; there may be a little dust on the sides and on the 
roof, but the roof is cicami; that state of things would apply to the place where the dead bodies were 
found—that is, the seven dead bodies : I do not consider myself comupetent to give an opinion on scientific 
questions I do not know whether anything was done to remove the dusty conditions, because that was 
not my section ; when my brother was away I was in that section for perhaps an iioimr in the day that 
was for about two days about a month ago I have been in No. 1 several times in the last three months 
that was for about one day a fortnight for an hour a day ; while I was there I did not do anything to 
remove those dusty conditions ; there is very little dust in the shaft section ; there is no considerable 
accumulation of dust on the roads in the shaft section ; there is very little dust in both soctions I have 
spoken to Mr. Atkinson when he has been at the mine; I was speaking to i\Ir. Atkinson four or five 
months before the explosion : he never gave me any instructions about watering, neither did any other 
inspector I have never had any directions from an inspector to water ; it was just by accident that I saw 
Mr. Atkinson I only passed the time of day to Mr. Atkinson I do not know when the inspectors are 
corning ; I cannot indicate any particular portiola of the section winch I thought the worst part of the 
explosion came from; when I saw the dead horse I could not swear whether lie was or was not singed; I 
did not notice whether the horse had been burnt; I did not notice whether any of the horses had been 
burnt; I did not notice whether any of the timber was broken ; I could not say that all the tiumber I saw 
thrown out on No. 1 main road was charred ; it was very black ; I did not examine it at all. 

Cross-examined by Jim. JVads : Timber is often brought into the mine which is burnt, and it is used 
in the mine ; I do not know the travelling road in No. 1 section as well as I know that in the shaft district 
when I took my brother's place I used to cut across throuchm No. 6 right from my own section ; I would 
have no occasion to he on either the main travelling or haulage road to get there; unless I wanted to go 
to the telephone cabin 1 had no business in the main road ; it was a frequent occurrence for me to go to 
the telephone cabin when I was in No. 1 section ; when I had flnishrcl my work in No. 1, I might go by 
the main road ; my knowledge of time travelling roads in No. 1 is good; 1 have been on the main road to 
the telephone perhaps twelve times in the last six months I would travel the road for no other purpose 
than to see that things were kept right; while I was in No. 1 section I took steps to see that the road 
from the telephone cabin outbye was kept in good order ; I have also takemi steps when there, if I saw 
anything wanting, to clean the road up from the telephone cabin inbye to No. 5 might; on one occasion 
I saw something that wanted cleaning up, and I had it done on that part; I know an opening from 
the right of No. 1 main travelling road into goaf of 33 acres, which is known as No. 4 right; 
I do not remember whether there was any dampness in the locality of No. 4 right ; there was no pump at 
No. 4; old No. 3 right is between No. 4 and the telephone cabin ; there is a pump at No. 3 right ; the 
water accumulates between 3 and 4 ; I do not know where time water drains from ; as near as I can say 
the trucks travel on the endless rope 2 or 3 miles an hour; time main and tail road haulage travels much 
faster than the endless-rope haulage ; it goes 7 and S miles an hour; there is a good deal more dust then 
when the skips go fast; I have marked a " " where Richaid Walker was working, it was at No. 6 right 
straight heading ; from time end of the heading to the junction of the main tunnel would be about 500 
yards; we used to get the water out from Walker's place and take it along the heading, not because the 
place was dusty, but to save time trouble of pumping; Aiken's body (young Ailcen) 1 do not know where he 
was found ; I saw the scales of flesh hanging off his arm from the elbow clown, where lie had been singed 
his arms were black ; his face was burnt a little I could see time scales of flesh on his face too ; the flesh 
was loosened from the face and the arms; the hair was singed a little on time back of the beach, like a 
barber singes one ; lie had some clothes on ; I do not know whether lie had his coat on or not; Purcell was 
at his place a few yards from the face when I saw him ; Purcell did not seem to be burnt at all ; there was 
no mark of injury on his body ; Purcell was in one of the herds at the extrenme end ; I first saw Aiken on 
the heading; Purcell was not dressed he was not dressed for coming out ; his arms were bare; I have 
known Mr. Rogers, the manager, for a number of years—ten years ; I have found him to he a man who is 
very careful about the safety of the mine ; lie is strict in time observance of the special rules ; I can say the 
same about Nelson and Dungey ; they were dareful of time safety of the miners I only have to do simply 
with time getting out of the coal and keeping time mine in repair I have studied a little about coal 
explosions; after I smeit the after_damp I came to the conclusion there must have been an explosion of 
fire-damp ; that was the only cause I could think of ; gas is the only substance I know of to cause 
explosions ; I have travelled by the travelling road from the telephone cabin to No. 5 right since the 
explosion, but I have not travelled by the haulage road ; I have not examined either of the roads. 

To .l[r. Bruce Smith I have rend a little for my own safety; I was under the impression that a per-
centage of gas was essential to an explosion, and that is why I formed the opinion that there had been an 
explosion of fire-damp ; I have not read that explosions take place witlmout time presence of any gas and 
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merely from dust and the flame from a shot ; I give the answer that I am now satisfied that there was an 
explosion in No. 1 from fire-damp, because I know of no other cause for an explosion but fire-damp; my 
father has a contract in wilting with the Company ; I cannot say,  whether there is a provision in that 
contract that my father is to undertake the watering of the mine ; the tanks I have spoken of are the 
ordinary malt tanks, 200 and 400 gallons , I have seen four of them at one time in the shaft section ; I 
(10 not know of any more than those four tanks ; the water comes from a hole right in the bottom ; the 
hole is 2 or 3 inches in diameter ; it is a round hole stopped with a wooden plug ; there is not any other 
apparatus in the mine for watering that I know of , thero is no water supply at the name other than that 
in the mine ; water has never been carried down from the entrance for use in the mine ; all the water that 
V ids its way on to the roadway comes from one or other of the natural springs in the mine ; when the tanks 
are not in use they are p1ieed in the most suitable place where it is thought they will next be needed to 
hale water where it has accumulated ; the water is collected with buckets and put into the tanks, and then 
tiny are taken away ; if the water does not accumulate, the tanks are very seldom used for carrying 
waterlong the roads , the primary use of the tanks is to carry water away so as to get on with the 
working ; the water is always taken to the watercourse that runs out of a mine, or to a pump to pump it 
out it is taken to tic most coflveajeflt place to get rid of it ; when a plug is taken out of a tank the tank 
takes two or three minutes to empty ; the troliy is stopped, the plug is taken mit, and we stay there till it is 
enipty avlen any water is taken along the road for watering, tie water is distributed when necessary ; the 
empty] ig can be made to extend for a out a quarter of an lieu r . a tank of water would go a long way 
nrc man working a whole shift might have used fourteen or hfteen tanks of water in watering twelve 

months LO ; since then there has not I eon anything like that quantity used on any road, but other parts 
of the mine have been watered ,in wet weather there is an unhmnited supply of water inthe mine ; even 
inthis dry season there arc thousands of tanks full of water conic into the mine and go out in a week 
there is no stint of water in the mine ;avery small portion of that water has been used in watering the 
roads ; the water runs between the rails ; it can also run underneath the rails and on to the side ; if the 
water was coming out in small quantities the water would not go under the rails ; 2 feet is the 
maxiinuin width watered unless the plug is pulled right out ; at the ordinary pace, with the plug pulled 
right out, one tank would water 30 or .10 yards ; even in No. 6 right the water would not be put On the 
roads for the purpose of watering, but for the prrrpse of bailing ; so far as my district is concerned and 
my brother's, when I have had charge of it,,no water has been put on for weeks I have never seen any 
but the four tanks I have mentioned in the mine I know all those four tanks ; we always use the same 
four tanks ; since I have been in the mine I have never known anything to ha clone to spray or water the 
sides of the roads ; the main road is 14 feet wide, the two hires of rails occupy 4 feet to each ; there is 2 
or 3 feet between the sets of rails that leaves about 3 feet 6 inches on either side of the rails ; I have 
only known the plug to be pulled right out to water the spaces on either sides of the rails ; that has only 
been clone at very short ilistnces where the tanks have been wanted to be emptied ; Nelson instructed inc 
to use the water to water \'ialkers heading at a point 100 yards from the face ; when I took my brother's 
place I had charge of the whole of the main road ; my duty was to see that the road was right, tidy, and 
clean ; that consisted in tilling the skips and pieking up any timber that may have fallen çr anything else 
but I did not do any watering ; our system of haulage is the endless rope. 

To the Coroner: If there is any quantity of stuff besides dust, it is filled and taken out ; the dust 
is only watered ; it always depends on the nature of the floor whether it requires watering again ; if the 
floor is not of a clamp nature the slack is gathered up and sent out, stuff that would lie dust if it were 
allowed to remain there ; I could not say about the skips whether they were uncoupled or not, but they 
must have beer, for they were further than the distance of the coupling; there was nothing in the position 
of any of tIre bodies that led me to form any conclusion there were no tools lying beside them ; most of 
the men where I have marked on the map had evidently retired from the face. 

To dir. Jiruce Sin it/i : I have never cleaned up dust from the travelling road ; there is always a 
good stream of water in the drain 6 inches deep cony be, and 2 feet wide, and that is running all clay. 

MacIc and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, this ) M. FROST. 
20th day of August, A.D. 1902, before mire,— 5 

CHAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

[Special Rules of Mount Kembla Colliery are now put in (marked D).] 

Inquest adjourned, for the purpose of further evidence, till the 21st day of August, A.D. 1902, at 
10 o'clock am., at the Court-house, \Vollongong.--Cmrxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wohlengemig, 
20th August, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuamace of ailjournnrent, at the Court-house, Wollongommg, on the 21st day 
of August, A.D. 1902, at 10 o'clock a.rn.—Cinxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by Senior-serqeant Banks :—JoJrn ilLorr'ison, cavern, states I reside at Mcuirt Kembii 
I am the deputy of No. I right district at the Mount Keabla Colliery ; I have been enrplovecl in the 
colliery altogether for fifteemr years, and for about nine weeks as deputy ; I have marked the plmmr avitir a 
blue pencil showing what portion of the colliers' my district embraces ; I commence duty at 9 o'clock at 
night ; 1 conaniemreecl at that, irour on the night of tire 30th .July last (Wednesday) ; during  that night I 
went in and exanmimned for the s'oneimren ; I have no recollection of all the various places 1 went to ; I 
examined all those p1cc s where the stonemen avcre gciirrg to work I examined the working-places for the 
nriuers coaling omi in the morning ; all those in my district I exanrimrech I examinerl the rope roads in that 
portion of the mine ; I found nothing imnustral in nry portion of the mine that miiiirt ; I continued on with 
mmiv work durinrg the night, and returned to the cabin, avirich I inn-c mrrarked on the plan with a cross (X), 
about ten urmutes to 6 ; that is on the main travelling road rear the entrance ; I met McMurrav, a dputy, 
there ; he is the night deputy for the shaft district. , when I met MclJu.riay I started to giv e out the 
tokens to the urea going in to work ; those were to the men on the fr-omit sirift in ray ow'n and MeMorrays 
district ; I myself did not give out all the tokens; McMarray started to write out the report, every niart 
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I handed the token to in my district I said "All right" to ; McMurray called out "All ril,lit" for his 
men ; when I called out " All right " to the men, I meant that their working places were all right I had 
no occasion to stop any of them from going into my district that morning everything was all correct at 
the various working-places in my district; neither IN"Illiam aol Henry Meuiant worked in my district 
they were working in McMurray's district ; if either William or Henry Meurant went in that morning he 
would pass the cabin I have mentioned and would get his token ; I cannot recollect whether either of 
the I1eurants did go in that morning ; after passing the men in on the frant shift, McMurray and I 
left the cabin about five or seven minutes after; I think there were three men who did not go into my 
district that morning ; their tokens were left hanging on a board in th- cabin ; I cannot say what 
three men they were ; I could not say whether any of McMurray's mcci did not go in ; after leaving 
the cabin I saw the under-manager, Mr. Nelson ; I gave him a written report ; the report was in a book 
the book is known as the " Report-book "; I produce that book [Page put in and marked Exhibit C] 
Mi. Nelson took the duplicate reports from the book ; after I handed the reports to i\lr. Nelson the whole 
of my duty for that clay was tinished ; I also made another report to Mr. Nelson, and produce it [Page put 
in and marked Exhibit E] ; both the reports were mache at 6 n.m. on the 31st; I left the colliery after 
making the reports, and went home. I went to bad ; between 1 and 2 in the afternoon I was awakened 
by some noise I asked my family what it was ; I\1 r. MeMurray, who reajdes with me, called out that he 
thought it was a boiler had burst McMurray went home with me in the morning from the colliery ; when 
i\IcMuriay said that, I rose and put on my clothes ; McMurray had his on ; I said there might be 
s mething wrong with the mouth of the tunnel, and I would take a safety-lamp in my hand ; I did so ; I 
rail down to the tunnel mouth with McMurray ; when I got to the tunnel mouth everything was smashed 
up, and you would have thought the tunnel was closed up altogether ; I could see that a very serious 
accident had occurred I lighted ray safety-lamp, and went up to the niou tic of the tunnel ; MeN urray was 
with me ; McMurray and I both went in to the mouth of the tunnel with the oiie safety-lamp; McMurray 
said we would never get in with that lamp, and he went down to the eugincers' shop and got a big flare 
lamp ; I waited till he returned, in a minute or two ; we then went in to the main tunnel, and when about 
50 yards in we met James Powell ; lie was either in his stocking soles or ham feet ; lie was running ; I 
asked him if he saw anyone on the road, and he said, "There is any amount of dead ones" ; I said, "Are 
you going straight out ?" ; lie said he thought lie had done enough ; lie then passed on ; McMurray then 
went on, and went through the cut-through at No. I right  ; I mark that place now on the plan X 2 ; I 
found a big fall there in the travelling road ; at the back of the fall Adam Frost, Sen., and Charlie Biggers 
were standing ; I saw them ; I did not go over that fall ; MeN urray said lie would go back and got his 
safety-lamp, and he left me ; Charlie Biggers then went with me ; he caiue over the fall to me ; we went 
in the main tunnel ; we went right to the shaft—to No. 6 right, where the ventilating shaft is ; I have 
marked that point on the plan X 3 ; before we got to the shaft we found three bodies, at the point marked 
on the plan X 4 ; the bodies were those of Jael Iiitchings, I dwai'd Gallagher, and Blackett (I do not know 
Blaekett's Christian name) I think it was the elder of the two Blacketts I lifted Hiteliings and Gallagher 
up into a sitting position ; about 10 or 15 yards inbye I met ']'on) Muir, Jimmy Muir, and William Muir 
I have marked the place where we found the three Muirs X 5 ; those three Muirs are still alive ; it was 
after that Biggers and I went right in to No. 6 right ; I there saw a man named Maunders just at the 
shaft sitting picking his jacket ; lie appeared to have lost his head ; next to Maunders there was Picky Lane 
and his son, Walter Olsen, and others whose names I do not know ; we sat them all up I have marked 
on the plan where we found these men X 6 ; Matthow Frost then came out of the sixth right with Bidhey, 
and Frost, Ridley, Biggers, and I then went into No. 6 right ; there were a lot of men, and bodies were 
lying in No. 6 right ; those that were alive were unconscious ; those men and bodies were hying somewhere 
about 200 yards from the shaft ; we sat them all up ; I have marked on the plan where the men were X 7 
I am not well acquainted with that district ; after we had sat the men all up we went along to James' 
heading ; Richard Walker was lying further in than the other men-----some\vhere about James' heading ; I 
think Mat. Frost then told me that Davey Evans had all the men the other way ; I returned with others 
to the shaft,; there was one stretcher there then, there were others there after: we returned to the shaft to 
clear the road, so as to get the men out in skips ; while we were clearing the road Andrew Patterson 
called to me to come, that there were men lying in No. 6 left ; I went away with hini into No. 6 
left ; I found two men at the point marked on the plan X 3 ; one of them was my son—he is 
still alive—and the other was Jack Ryan--he is dead ; lie was alive when I found him four mcmi 
took my son and Ryan away ; Ei-ny 

w 
Allen then joined in(,., Patterson having been one of the four 

took my son and Ryan away who y ; Allen and I then went up to the pillars on the outside of the 
long ivall , w e did not find any bodies there ; we found nothing at all ; we returned then, and went 
right through into the main tunnel ; about it) vard in the main tunnel I saw a man ; lie was alive, 
and is still ; his name is Toni Evans; the place where I saw him I have marked on the plan X 9 ; we 
just sat him up, and Erny Allen went down and cried out to the men that there was another up there; he was 
carried away in the direction of the shaft in a skip Allen and 1 went on, and about 30 yards inhye right 
we found two other men—one was Daniel Gallagher, the other I do not know ; 1 have niarked the place 
X 10 ; they were both dead ; Allen and I went on ; we went on to a flat about 30 yards from the sevenru 
right marked X 11 ; we then returned by the main tunnel to No. 6 right, and started to help to carry the 
men out; the first man I helped to carry out was alive ; he was Alexander \Vhiice I helped carry him 
to old No. 5 ; Patterson was there with others, and Patterson said they could not find William Ciinton, and I 
went back with Patterson to look for him to the shaft ; we handed White over to others ; I went into the 
main heading  with Patterson; we went through a cut-through we heard Clinton had goie out another way; 
we started then to carry out Picky Lane (the old man) ; I assisted to cari-y him out by the travelling road 
right outside ; it was then between S and 9 o'clock, I think ; I went in again, about half an hour after it 
may be ; I then went No. 1 section ; ten besides inc went into No. 1 ; we went in the travelling road ; we 
went to the main heading to the cabin (telephone), and we found three bodies at the point marked on the 
plan X 12 ; I could not say whose bodies they were ; I think one was Purcell ; we then went to the fourth 
right; we went in through the cut-through into the back heading; we then went right along the travelling 
road, and through a cut-through at the fifth right: I think there was a dead horse about the spot marked 
on the plan " 0 " ; from there we went right up along No. 1 main-level about 250 yards past the fifth 
right ; about there we came on the body of Frank Dimgey 3 I did not know then that it was his body, but 
it turned out to be his ; it is about 66 yards from No. 5 right, and not 250 as I said just now; 1 han 
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marked the place where Dungey's body was X 13; DLingey's body was lying on the back ; his inside was 
hanging out; the head was off the body; I could not particularly say where his head was; the head was 
beyond the body inbye ; everything was beyond the body inbyc ; they were gathering bits of the body up; 
we did not find any other bodies with Dungey's ; our party went on then right up into No. 89 heading 
we found nothing there we then went into No. 105 bord; Morris and son were working in No. 89 
heading; at 105 bord we found John Purcell, that is the first bord next to the back heading; I have 
marked the spot where we found Purcell X 14 ; he was dead, and was lying on his face about 3 yards from the 
face ; his body was neitliei' knocked about nor burned ; we left his body and went on ; we went into bord 88; 
we there found Tom Tost lying out of the bord in the head;ng ; his body was not mutilated ; I have marked 
the place where his body was found X 15 ; we went down the bord opposite old $8, and from there through a 
cut-through into 87 bord ; there we found the bodies of Johns and Thomas ; I have marked the spot where 
their bodies was found X 16; Adam Frot, junior, was one of the party; the two bodies were lying about 7 or 8 
yards from the face in front of a full skip ; they were lying close together ; they had come out from the face 
and were lying in the roadway ; their bodies were not mutilated nor burnt from 87 bord we went through a 
cut-through and all old bord to bord 86; we there found the body of Aiken and that of his son; I have marked 
the spot -X 17 ; they were lying about 10 yards from the face; both those bodies were a little burnt; 
from 86 we Nvent into bord 85 ; we there found the bodies of Ansley and James; I have marked that 
spot X 18 ; $5 and 86 are both pillars; they were both lying out in front of a skip that was standing 
out about 15 yards from the face; those bodies were not niutilaterl or knocked about at all nor burnt 
from there we went, via Gill's gannon Lord, to Nos. 82 and 83; we found Slim McLister before reaching 
No. 83 ; that was in Gill's gannon bord, at the point marked on the map X 19 ; the body was 40 or 50 
yards from the face; he was a wheeler ; his horse and skips were close by; the horse was dead also 
i\Ic Lister's body had nothing wrong with it ; it was not burnt ; we did not go into 83 ; we returned by 
(lill's gannon bord to the fourth left back heading to Stafford's gannon bord; we there found Reynold 
Ilunie lying in the mouth of that bord ; Jim f[eanl and Best were also there, also Hewlett and Russell 
(George Russell); Head, Best, Hewlett, and Hume wei'L together at the point marked X 20 ; Russell's 
body was at the point marked X 21 ; the five bodies were all right, not mutilated or burnt; we went 
fl'oIlI there to No. 81 pillar off Staffiji'd's gannon bord ; we there found the bodies of Rich and they 
were at the point marked X 22 ; there was nothing wrong with their bohies ; the bodies were 35 or 40 
yards from the face ; we then went up into No. 79 heading ; we did not find anything there ; from tlii'i'e 
we went down Safliud's gannon bord to the fourth left rope road, and along that road to Price's Fiat ; tier 
first 0110 we found at Price's Flat was Keinbla Stafford, then Patrick McCaiin, Jack Murphy, GIeeroii, 
Brazier, and Doherty; I think Voungman was got there too, but 1 am not certain ; they were a'l diced 
Stafford was hurried a little, but none of the other bodies were burred ; Stafford's body was a little away 
from the others nearer his working-place ; I think he had been knocked there ; his horse was found also 
attached to the skips ; Stafford was a wheeler ; 3 or 4 yards off that little crowd we found a man nanledl 
Scott ; his body was not burnt nor mutilated at all ; we then left that place (the whole party of us) and 
wnnt to Lord 74 ; that is where the two Egans had been working ; we found no one there we then went 
to bord 73 ; we found no body there ; hunt and son had been working there ; from there we went into 
bord 72 : we found no one there ; Jim Flead worked there ; that is the same Head whose body we li -nI 
found on Stafford's gannon road ; we then went sti'aiglit down to 74 through the cut-through and then on 
to 69 bord ; we had seen all the uien who had been working in 69 to 65 inclusive in the shaft chsti'ict or 
knew that they were out ; in 69, Dunning and son had been working, and they are now dead ; in 6$, 
Williams and Benjamin had been working, they are both alive; in 67, Could brothers had been workinc, 
they are both alive ; in 66, Fitzgerald and they had been working, they are alive ; in 65, Price and Brazier 
had been working, they are bitli alive ; we did not go into any of those herds ; we went to 64, wher 
Bi'yson and Gill had been working ; we found no one there ; Bryson and Gill are dead ; we went into the 
face of No. 63 and saw no one ; I saw the two men who had been working there (Muir and son) in the 
shaft district, they are dead ; from there we went right out to Powell's beading through Lord 69 ; when we 
had got that far we found we had got too far; I mean by ''too far," that we had gone too far for our own 
safety, we could hardly walk ; we then went into 70 old Lord through the cut-through and up through on 
to the heading corning off Price's Flat, and from there on to Price's flat up to that point we had not seen 
any further bodies ; from Price's Flat we went up the second left, and on to the fourth left and straight out 
the fourth left ti'avelling road; from there we went on to the No. I right travelling road ; we then went 
into the fifth right ; we just had a lie down there-; we found nothing there; we then went right up the 
fifth right to the top ; then we came back a crosscut to the daylight heading; it was between 3 and 4 
o'clock ivlien we came out I then went home. 

C-ross-ea'amvted by Jfr. L,jsayJit: I have seen the plan many a tune before coming into Court to-day__ 
one just like that ; I saw it last night in my own house ; I gut it last night ; Mr. Bugers gave it to nc; 
it was in the sulky, and I asked to take it: Mr. Rogers was not with me at lily house looking over the 
plan ; George Russell and a man named Joseph Anderson was there -also; everything I have said is what 
I know myself; I could take you into the place and show you every corner; it might he thirty or forty 
minutes after going in the first time that I came across Dungey's head; I examined some of the waste 
workings on the 30th and 31st ; I examined l5 acres and the 35 acres on the other side ; I cannot tell you 
exactly how long I took to examine the 15-acre waste ; the waste was examined bef'oi'e 3 in the morning 
I cannot give any idea how long I spent in the examination of the waste workings the 15-acre waste is all 
fenced off; it had all fallen ; I do not known whether all of it had fallen in; I know that some part of it 
had fallen ; I say now that it had all fallen in ; you could get into that waste from the side near No 1 
right I could get into it on the left lope road side; you could not get into it on the side nearest the fourth 
left )-  the two places I have mentioned are the only two places you could get into it, but of eoui'sc both 
those places were fenced off; they were fenced off with timber ; I did not get into that waste by either of 
those ways that night I went into the fence ; with the exception of going to the fence I (lid not go into 
any of the waste that night-_-I never do go in; I went to the fence to inspect ; I just go and see thiac the 
stoppings are all right and that the roof is all right; it is not my duty to go right into the centre of the 
waste; I saw no gas; I do not know whether gas could accumulate inside those waste workings where I 
never of ; I never did anything to see whether gas had accumulated in that waste ; I never went into the 
waste in my life; as to the 35-acre waste, I went to the third right, where there are pipes, and I examined 
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there ; I went there to see that the pipes were all in order ; I examined the place right up ; thit was done 
before 3 in the morning ; that is what I call the examination of that waste ; that is all I want to show 
about the exanination of the waste I did not go into the waste to examine it ; I went into the fence on 
the fourth right it was open beyond that fence I have been beyond that fence but I was not on the 31st; 
about seven days before I had been beyond that fence to see if it had fallen; the men had been drawn out of 
that place seven days before the 31st and the timber was drawn , I went in the night after to SOC it and 
the roof had fallen light the fall was about two feet and a half thick ; sven days before the 31st there 
was a big opening above that ; I did not go in on the top of the fall at all ; I saw some black-damp t or 
5 yards before I got to the fall ; that was seven days before the 31st ; it dd not put my light out ; I 
never went inside the fence after that up to the time of the accident I have been inside the fence since 
when I made that examination of that waste I mache a repert in writing I did not mike a report in 
writing of the examination of the waste seven days before the dsaster I male no repert I made no 
report of the black-damp ; I was not supposed to go inside the place, but I did so to see how the roof fell 
my duties do not at any time take me beyond any fence of a waste ; Mr. Ne1n took inc round once and 
Mr Dungey took me round once; when I got tIme oh Mr. Rogers toll me thit any time not to allow time 
hmattice work to fall behind, and if we were not fit to do it lie would send someone for to assist us ; also that 
if I found any gas or anyttming I was to report to him at once ; there were no other instructions ; I do not 
remember all that Mr. Rogers said to me ; wherever there has been all inlet into the waste if there is not 
a stopping put in there is a fence put in ; that is done (the fence or stopping) whether the waste has fallen 
or not I knowgas when I see it I have studed works on gas in coal-mines I have read Hughes ; I 
knew of the existence of the following rule (No. 10)—" That the deputy shall, at least once in every week, 
examine, so far as is practicable, the state of the waste workings and main air-ways and make and sign a 
true report of the state thereof in a bock kept at the office for that purpose" ; the book produced contains 
the reports made as required by Bale TO of the waste and working-places in No. 1 section ; there is no 
b ok kept at the office, as far as I know, for a we-kly repoeb under Rule 10; I made the report in the book 
produced on the 19th concerning the waste workimgs (it is marked Eihil)it .F) , there is no report about 
the waste workings in that ho A since that one (Exhibit F) ; the reort is niade cvery month ; when I 
made my report on the 19th I had a naked light and no safety-lamp; bIclIurray had not a safety-lamp; 
on the 19th I went through the fencs of the waste womhings. 

Made and sworn at the Court-house, Wollon;ong, this ) JOhN MORRISON. 
21st day of August, A.D. 1902, beorc 

Cuas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, till the 22nd (lay of .4 ugu t, iT). 1 iu2, at tile Court- 
house, \Vullongong, at 10 o'clock a.ne.—.Ctias. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Cocietlioume, 1Vollongong, 21st 
August, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at tii Court-home, Wollongung, on the 22nd day - 
of August, A.D. 1902, at 10 o'clock am.—Cuxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysjlmt .—Joln ilorrLson, recalled, states. I have reed Rule No. 4 I have 
heard you read part of that rule I have never reported the finding of noxi us or imiflanemable gis in 
Kenmbla mine; with the exception of the black-damp that I discovered seven days before the disaster I 
never discovered black-damp at any other time ; the safest way to detect i,ifio.mnmable gas is with a safety-
lamp_that is tile proper way I have never found any inflam nmable gas in the mine I did not look for 
inflammable gas when [ macic the inspection on the 19dm July ; if you go in there with a naked light, any 
man that knows his business will flied it ; we examined with a naked light ; with such an inspection as we 
gave it we would have discovered gas if there hal been any there ; it is poesible fox gas to be in some 
places in the roof of the mine and not be detected with a naked lamp carried iii time usual way (in the hand) 
I always carry a naked light on my head I did so on time 19th ; to my knee-hedge I did not take that 
naked light from ney he-id at all ; I could not say exactly ; it is not possible for inflamnmahole gas to be in 
corners and remote places of a heading and not to be (lebectecl widi a naked light, if a persn were in the 
vicinity ; I cannot say h-ow far the inflamnniable gas would have to be from a naked light before the gas 
would be detected; I cannot give any niensuremeat because I never tried it; if a man goes in -with a naked 
light, lie finds the gas quick enough if it is there ; I cannot give you any idea how far a naked light would 
have to be from inflammable -is before it would ignite it ; the only way that you would ignite intlinemable 
gas with a naked u gh would be in a way that you could not report it if there was sufficient quantity 
inspection for inflammable gas with a naked light is practically worthless ; the places we inspected on time 
19th were two headings where the fresh air cane strmight in from time travelling road ; we inspected 
just air-courses on that date ; we did not inspect any of the working-places on that date ; the two 
hemdings I have mentioned are not time only places we inspected on the 19th ; we inspected another 
watercourse, between No. 1 main tunnel and the straight ; we examined the return air-way from the 
back heading to the shaft we came back the other heading, and event out No. 5 evay, and went 
right up to old No. 2 ; eve went into No. 2 (old) ; I have finished with the right section ; when 
we went in we went up the first right, and took a he ding each, and we went right up to time top of 
time heahmigs and event out the daylight ; then went right back to time second right heading ; we went deem 
the second back heading to the travelling read, and then McMurm-ay went to the evatcr-level, and I went 
the return air-way to the shaft ; then we went out to old No. 2 ; as we were going along we were examining 
all time places ; we examined all old No. 2 right round to the shaft then we caine back the back heading 
of time main tunnel to the oil-punmp, and then we went out to old No. 1, and examined that to the daylight 
heading at Mr. Rogers' ; that is the lot ; I could not say roughly hmoev long MeN urray was away from nec 
at any time during the inspection on time 19th I believe I canme out a little before him ; I do not think 
he was away an hour at a stretch ; he nmight havebeen away half ,in hour at a time ; he was away from 
me tevice that day ; when I sigmied the report oms time 19th there were two places I had not travelled ; one 
was the water-level between No. 1 level and time main tmmmmel ; I anm not certain evhmich of the levels I 
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examined I did not travel one of the headings in No. 1 right and the water-level I have mentioned 
McMurray travelled one of the levels, and I the other ; the heading I did not travel is not in my district 
I do not know whose district it is in ; it is not in my district for examining; the heading I did not travel 
is known as old No. I right ; I examined no working bords in the heading I went into; I never examined 
any working bords i on the 19th I cannot remember any bords in wastes that were standing ; I cannot 
remember whether I went into any bords that are standing in any waste; we did not expect to get any 
gas in the examination on the 19111 ; the examination was chiefly for the roof and sides ; we would have 
found gas if there had been any there ; we dii not expect to get any gas, otherwise we would not have 
gone there with naked lights ; we looked for gas on the 19th ; I will say that to please you; we wouh 
have found it if there had been any there ; there was no gas present ; on the 19th 1 dii not go to look for 
gas I did not make an examination on tlir night of the 19th I think the 19th was a Saturday I think 
McMurray and 1 left the tunnel mouth about ten minutes to 7 on the nlornin' of t'e 19th to inspect ; we 
came out at 9 o'clock in the afternoon ; from the time that we went in till we came out, we were in the pit 
examining we do not generally carry the Report Book on inspections such as that made on the 19th 
I never carry that book ; we did not carry it on the 19th ; I have only made two monthly inspections 
one report I put in this book, and one in another ; that is since I have held my present position ; on one 
of those inspections I maa.Ie an inspection of the main tunnel, and on that occasion McMurray carried the 
Report Book I did carry the book with McMum'i-ay into the mine on the 19th July; William McMurray 
wrote out the second report on the 19th July ; I saw McMurray sign the report ; we were both together; 
we signed it at the cabin ; I signed the report after he did ; to tell you the truth, I have very little 
recollection of what occurred on the 19th ; 1 cannot swear whether I signed the report on the 19th or 
some day after I have very little recollection of the 19th ; I cannot recollect whether I mentioned to 
McMurray about having seen the black-damp I do not recollect whether I mentioned it to Nelson ; on 
the 30th July the inspection for the stonemen would continue on till about 9 o'clock in the morning ; I 
assis n t with the brattice work ; any bratticing T do is done between 9 all(] 2 ; I cannot say how long I aim 
occupied each night with bratticing work; sometimes I do not do any at all ; there is nothing more certain 
than that I did some bratticing time week before the disaster ; I might go into a place, and do some for 
about ten minutes, but I have no idea of the time I have no idea of the distance I would travel from 
the time I go in till I come out; the places I had to go to were from bords 56 to 106 inclusive; there 
would be fifty places I had to go into ; I started about 3 o'clock in the morning to inspect the places, and 
was out at the cabin about ten minutes to 6 ; I do not know the distance from the cabin to the places 
I cannot tell you how mitch time I occupied over each place, but from 3 till 6 I examined fifty places 
I have drawn the route on the map as near as I can, but it is not the true route; on the morning of the 
31st I went into every working place—the whole fifty I had a locked safety-lamp with me I tried the 
roof of each of those working places for gas on the morning of the 31st July; I would go to one corner 
and examine it, and then to the other corner ; I examined the highest part of place on each side ; I was 
not looking for anything else but gas ; I did not find the slightest trace of inflammable gas in any one of 
those places; I examined the headings in the same way ; front the 19th to the 31st, I put the lamp into 
time waste to look for gas I did that on the rope roads where the waste approaches them I examined 
each waste from the travelling road and the rpe road both from the 19th to 30th July ; Mr. Lysaglit asked 
me yesterday who instructed me in my duties, and I told him something ; it was William Nelson who 
ins.ructed me in my duties ; he showed me the work to do ; when it was the (lay to make the monthly 
report, Nelson would tell us; front the 19th to the 31st July, I did not take my safety-lamp through the 
fences into the waste workings ; I never crossed the fences to the waste workings to look for gas at any 
time with my safety-lamp ; I did go into the waste seven clays before tile clisascer to see if the roof had 
fallen for my own satisfaction with a safety-lamp ; as far as I know there was no inflammable gas in any 
part of my seetioa tip to the 31st July, I have no ttieory as to what caused the disaster ; my opinion is 
tits—to make it short—that there was a big fall in the fourth right pillars ; that is a waste area ; if there 
was a big fill there, there would be a greet rush of air into the road ; I go by the way the force went the 
air was forced both ways; I do not think I am competent to form an opinion as to what caused the 
disaster. 

Made and sworn at the Court-house, Wollongong, JOHN MORRISON. 
tIns 22nd day of August, A.D. 1902, before me,--- f 

Ciias. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned till the 256 day of August, A.D. r902, at 11 o'clock am., at the Court-house, 
Wollongong, for further evidence. —CHAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 22nd 
August, 1902. 

Inqnest resume-I, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court house, Wollongong, on the 25th day of 
August, AD. 1902, at 11 o'clock a.m.—CHAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Cross-examnntel b, dir. Lyse,qht :—Jolmn 2!forrison, recalled, states: I have heard you read part of rule 9 
of the special rules of the mine ; I was aware of the existence of that rule; the different reports that I 
made for the week before the disaster were left in the butts time underground manager got the others 

' C, the reports are in the bok containing exhibits '" E," and "F " ; I look at the report on time 30im 
July, and also that on the 31st ; the svord, The state of the mine, roads, doors, stopping, brattice faces, 
and ventilating appliances," do not appear in these reports ; if, when I am examining, I find anything 
wrong with the brattice I fix it up before I make the report ; I do the seine if I see anything wrong with 
the roads or anything else ; after I put the things right I do not report what was wrong with them ; there 
is no other report (written) made by me concerning the mine, roads, doors, stoppings, brattice faces, and 
ventilating appliances except those in that book ; I got 9s. Gd. a day wages as deputy I have no certificate 
of compe'encv in connection with cdal-minimmg ; I never underwent any examination before a Board of 
Examiners ; I have heard you read part of rule No. 3 of the spi cial rules I have read all those rules ; I 
am not the overman, the overman is above me; the day deputy is between me and the overman ; I am the
subordinate to the ovm- rman; I do not know of anybody else over me but the overman and the niamiager 
16825 29-0 William 



William Nelson was undermanager at Mount Kembla; I know that fire-damp will put out a light; I 
know that it was black-damp that I saw a week before the disaster and not fire-damp, because black.damp 
takes the light clean away and fire-damp raies the light up in the lamp and leaves a blue cap on the top of 
it fire-damp is almost invisible without a safety-lamp ; I was in tire mine with a safety-lamp seven days 
before the disaster I did not say it was with anything else ; the black-damp did not put my light out and 
leave a black wick, when I found the trace of it seven clays before the disaster; anybody that has had any 
practice at all can see black-damp without going into it ; I saw it and went back ; if you go into plenty of 
it black-damp will put the light out ; I just went to the edge; I took my safety-lamp with me on the 31st 
when I went to the mine in the afternoon ; I did not fear that there was any gas in there I believed 
that the mine was one of the safest in the Colony; I have heard of a man named Gallagher being injured 
in the mine I suppose lie got burnt with gas; I was. not there ; I was working there at the time; the 
reason I did not go to irry own section was because I went on to look after the members of my own family; 
I went to the shaft district where they were working ; the waste stoppings were into the travelling road 
in No. 1 section ; the stoppings were lying from just past the old furnace heading to the cut-through just 
outside the shunt near the fourth right ; none of stoppings were in their ordinary places after the disaster 
I cannot tell you where the stoppings of the 15-acre waste were lying simply because I never went to see 
I am not certain where the stoppings of the 35 acre waste were; I am only speaking of the stoppings 
between the main heading and the travelling road. 

Cross-examined by dir. -Ritchie The red marks on the plan do not indicate the route of my daily 
visit; I examine the roads and flats, be., from 9 o'clock till 2 ; any little brattice that wants doing I do as 
I go along; some of the roads may be examined, from 10 o'clock ; I have heard you read part of Rule 8 of 
the special rules I have read that rule ; I do not go into the face of every working place twice ; but I 
am in the places more than once; the cut-throughs to the working places are generally hauling roads; I 
believe the cut-through in No. 1 section is in every case the place where the coals come through ; on the 
19th July I penetrated into the old goafs as far as was pnrcicable as far as was safe to go ; that is what 
I mean by practicable; loose stones are hanging in those places and that is what stopped me, in some 
places, in other places the goaf is like a stone wall and you could not go in ; I did not examine the 35 acre 
goaf on the 19th July; I did not examine the fourth right pillars on the 19th ; I examine to the fence of 
the forth right every shift; I was only once in the fence of. the 35-acre goaf for niy own satisfaction since 
the men were wit hdrawn ; that was about seven or nine clays before tire 3 1st. it had fell lightly; I went 
right up to the fall before I met the black-damp ; there were vc'I-y -,light traces of black-damp I believe 
the pillars in the fourth right were working pillars at the time I made nry inspection on the 19th ; my 
books would not show whether they were wo'rking or not ; I have no record of the places that working; I 
do not keep a record written by me of them ; I go beyond the fences when I urn making my examination 
of waste workings ; I have no idea of the distance we go if the timber is drawn I do not go in; the 
fourth right 35-acre area was the only place I knew that had not fallen ; the area in that space that had not 
fallen was about two chains square ; when I was in there the roof was perfectly quiet ; the waste workings 
which I did not or could not travel were not ventilated when no one was working there these workings 
were closed either by stoppings or feneings ; they were not all sealed off; some of the places were built up 
and some were fenced ; the section of which I was deputy was not a dusty section it was rather inclined to 
be damp ; the fourth left was the only part of it I think that was at all dry ; I scouid regard the fourth 
left as dusty ; the main hauling road was always inclined to be dump ; I cannot say there would not be 
any dust there; there might be some dust on it ; there was no great accumulation of dust on the, road ; I 
could not say whether the dust was dangerous ; I can give no idea of the amount of dust there was there 
in general the place was always inclined to be (lamp ; with regard to the fourth left I think I am safe in 
saying that it was watered every night ; Paul Donovan did the watering; the roads were 12 feet wide; 
the watering is done with a tank with a hole in the bottom ; I cannot say whether the watering was done 
for the purpose of getting rid of the water or for watering, but it was clone regularly, that is all I know 
after the watering, the muck had always to be cleaned off; if that part of the road was never watered it 
would be dusty ; I travelled that road every clay ; the watering was always done at night but at no special 
time; the watering was done nearly every night; they had to draw that water to keep the place dry and 
they put it on the road ; I could not say whether a gr-eat rush of air coining out of the fourth right pillars 
would create a great cloud of dust, or not ; I went into the waste the nigirt after the men was withdrawn 
and then I saw it had fallen light ; I went up to the barrier and looked in ; it was then I saw the shghit 
trace of blacic_danmp ; it was not for fright of the black-damp that I hcl not go into the wacte but no 
practical miner would go in there I have never seen any accumulation of black-damp in Kembla mine 
what I would call an accumulation is where men could not go; I have had practical experience of gas in 
the old country I have never had any experience of it here because I have never found any,; the door 
about sixty ya.rd on the inbye side of the second right heading had been driven outwards ; there are two 
wooden doors on the second left; there was a big fall ort the top of those two doors, and we did not 
see them ; there is a door on the cut-through opposite the fourth left back-heading ; that door has been 
driven to the No. 1 travelling road on tire right; there is another door on the fifth right; that door was 
intact, but the stoppings were chr'iven in the same direction as the previous door I spoke of, that is to the 
right; there was another door on the main No. 1 level travelling road inside the fifth right; that door 
also was intact, but the buildings alongside of the door were driven back into the fifth right ; there 
are two canvas doors on the fourth right and fourth shunt ; one was driven 30 or 40 yards on the outbye 
r. ide, the other was 4 or 5 yards inbye ; I cannot give you any date on which I noticed the position of 
tkcse doors; I could not say whether any of the men at the telephone tunnel were burnt ; I do not know 
the position of those bodies either. 

Cross-examined by dir. Wade The two C's on the plan, opposite No. 4 right, are the two canvas 
doors I was speaking about ; they were both found in No. 1 main haulage road one was on the cabin side 
of No. 4 right, and the other was 4 or 5 yards the other side of No. 4 right. I mark with blue pencil 
outbye of No. 5right, the direction that door was blow-n ; I nrark with a blue arrow the direction the cheer 
was blown, which is opposite No. 5 right ; the stoppings of the last door inhye had been blown towards the 
mouth of the tunnel ; I noticed some skips near No. S right in the muin lraulage road ; I saw five ; they 
were full ; from No. 5 right to tire end of the heading is a rise ; the skips would conre clowirhih.1 to tire 
point where I saw them; the skips came from hords 87, 88, 105, and 82 ; the tokens were on the skips 
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three of the bords I have mentioned were to the left of the main heading, and the other, Morrrs and sons, 
was to the right of the cut-through off the main heading; the five skips were in between the fifth right 
and fourth left I think all the skips were all off the road ; they were separated, and the first skip on the 
outside was turned sideways round to the right I mark with an arrow the direction the front skip was 
lying ; the skip was turned to the left coming from the tunnel ; I saw a dead horse lying on the opposite 
side to the skip, on the side towards the fifth right ; the last two skips were separated from the other 
three, and seemed to be knocked back from the other three ; I saw four skips about 35 yards out past the 
fourth right shunt on the telephone cabin side towards the tunnel mouth ; there was a clip on the first 
skip fastened to the rope ; the second skip was standing right on its end with the wheels facing out towards 
the mouth of the tunnel ; the other two skips were knocked in hard to the other two ; these skips were 
full skips, the four of them ; I noticed one chock in the mouth of the third left ; there used to be a chock 
there that was found on the outbye side 5 or 6 yards I noticed something about the coal in the skips on 
the outbye side of No. 4 ; I noticed that the coal on the top of them had been knocked off towards the 
tunnel I have worked on the coal as a miner at Keinhila; off and on I have so worked for five or six 
years I worked in dillerent parts of the pit pretty well all over the mine ; I first began to work as a 
miner at Kembla fifteen years ago ; 1 always worked with a naked light ; I never came across gas at any 
time in Keinbia, neither on the coal or otherwise I used to do contract work in the mine also, such as 
laying out the roads, and raising the roof, and so on ; during the whole fifteen years I have worked there it 
has either been on the coal or doing contract work until I became depuly I worked with a safety-lamp in 
the old country, where I have had experience of gas ; I unrierstood the use of the lamp (safety) before ever 
I saw Kembla the working faces to the right and left of the main No. 1 heading were the highest part of 
mine ; Broadheacl was working in boi-d 9$, one of the highest parts ; fire damp makes for the highest part 
before the explosion the brattice was carried up to all those places; that helps to keep the current going if 
some brattice is torn down that stops the air current; after the explosion I examined the brattice in the part 
where Broadhead had been working, and it was standing all right as it had been before the 31st I did not 
find the brattice down to the right of the main heading ; the brattice was down in 89 and 105, where Morris 
and son, and Purcell respectively had been working; the brattice in 87 and 88 was knocked away; I noticed 
that the brattices were disturbed on the night of the disaster; if there is gas in the mine, and the brattice 
is down that would tend to collect it in the higher parts of the mine ; since the explosion I have examined for 
gas in 87, 88, 89, and 105 with !in ordinary sifetylamp ; I cannot say exactly the (late; I have been in every 
day since, nearly; I think I was in the Monday following, Mr. Atkinson was with me; I found no gas on 
any of the dates I have been in since the explosion ; I have examined those places three or four times since 
the beginning of August; the last time I was there with Mr. Ritchie ; I have not found gas at any time 
since the disaster I have been to No. 4 rieht where the goaf is since the date of the disaster (the 35-act-c 
goaf); I have been right up as far as you. can gat ; the roof has fallen and come out 5 or 6 yards past the 
pillar ; the space between the left-hand side of the goaf and the right-hand side of the travelling road is 
solid coal; it is about 30 yards thick ; it is about 15 yards f roni the edge of the haulage road to the edge of 
the goaf ; at the entry it is 4 yards, but higher up it was wider; the roof is somewhere about 5 feet ; it is 
a kind of tunnel from the edge of the haulage road to the goaf ; I have tested for gas (fire-damp) in that 
tunnel at the edge of the goaf since the explosion three or four times ; I tested with an ordinary safety-
lamp ; I have seen no signs of gas there since the disaster; Frank Dungey would be in charge of No. 1 
section in the daytime before the disaster ; Nelson would be wherever he was wanted ; he had charge of 
the whole underground work and had no particcilar district ; William Nelson was the first to go round 
with me to show me what to do; Nelson went right round about with me, through the whole of No 1 
section; he showed me as we went on how to go round and examine, all the different roads to go, and so on 
that was before I started the work as deputy ; Dungey also went round and examined the places and I 
along with him before ever I started ; lie examined the places and signed for them, and I looked on 
Dungey did not do more than Nelson to show inc what to do ; when I went round with Nelson it was in 
the daytime and we had naked lights ; Dungey carried a safety-lamp at night; I saw the way that 
Dungey did the work; I took Dungey's place as night firensan ; Nelson and I went over the main roads 
and examined all the wastes in connection with the main roads ; three or four pairs of men were working 
in the place which is now the 35-acre goaf when I first began as night fireman ; those men went on 
working there for six or seven weeks after I started ; I mache an examination of their working places; I 
went in with a safety-lansp and examined in the edges and the corners ; that-would be in the morning before 
the men came to work; the waste would be close by their working places then ; there would be a slice 
taken off the pillar, and the solid coal to your face, and the other side would be waste ; I went on 
examining these pillars till the time the men were withdrawn ; I never found fire-clamp at any time during 
that period in any of those places ; I have found a little gas in the mine since the explosion ; Mr. 
Atkinson and I were in 83 and 84 since the disaster and we found a little fire-damp; I could not exactly 
say on what date that was I did not exactly find it I lost my light with it; that was a safety-lamp 
I got on a stone and pushed the light up, and it went out. 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wohlongong, JOHN MORRISON. 

this 25th day of August, 1902, before me,— - 
Cuas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for the purpose of further evidence, till the 26th day of August, 1902, at 10 
o'clock, in the Court-house, Wohlongong.—CJIAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 25th 
August, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Woilongong, on the 26th day 
of August, 1902, at 10 o'clock, a.m.—CHAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Cross-examined by dir. Wade :—Joltn Jiorrison, recalled, states When I lost my light we came 
straight out of the heading, which was No. 83 ; I could not give you the date of that; Mr. Atkinson was 
with me; I have never been there since; Nos. 83 and 84 are two headings at the top of Gill's gannon 
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bord; the brattice in those headings was all knocked dowii; the light went out 3 or 4 yards from the 
working face; I have not found fire-damp in any place in the pit since the explosion; I had not been in 
Nos. 83 or 84 since the explosion until I went with Mr. Atkinson; it was the following Tuesday or 
Wednesday after the 31st that I was there with Mr. Atkinson, I think; with the exception of the openings 
at No. 3 right and No. 4 right, the whole of the western side of the 35-acre goaf was a solid pillar of coal; 
I think there were two or three openings on the south side there were one or two openings on the east 
side, and on the north side there are five or six openings ; all those openings were either fenced off or 
stopped ; when I was examining the waste I went right along the rope roads, and where there was an 
opening into the waste, I would go into the opening and examine it ; that was my usual course of examining 
the wastes; I looked at the stoppings to see if the top was off them, or anything wrong with them ; I used 
also to examine the front of the stopping with a lamp ; that was to see if there was any gas; I never found 
anything; I never found any indication of fire-damp at any of the stoppings ; Frank Dungey put the fence 
up in No. 4 right after the men had been withdrawn I mark an oblong on the map, which is the site of 
the last piece of the pillars that was taken out; after the fence was put up no man worked in there as far 
as I know; I know the rule which says that a workman shall not go inside a fence without permission 
that is in rules 15 and 37 of the special rules ; there is a canvas door between the two headings at No. 4 
right; if air or "as were to come out of No. 4 right it would go into the back heading of No. 1, and then 
outbye till it came to the air crossing near the telephone cabin, and out some of the roads by the upcast 
shaft: that is the ordinary exudation of air ; so far as I know, there was no vork being done in that back 
heading on the 31st July ; I know the part of rule 15 of the special rules you now read to me with respect 
to the duties of time miners ; the canvas between the two headings at No. 4 right is meant to keep the air 
from the back heading into the front, up to the strength of the canvas ; I have had practical experience of 
breathing black-damp; that was when I was a boy in Scotland ; I was always told that whenever the light 
went out to run; black-damp does not explode like fire-damp ; it affects the light and your breathing if you 
go into enough of it ; whenever the light goes out I do not remain there any time ; the book now shown to 
me is the book in which I made the report of my nightly examinations [Book put in and marked Exhibit G] 
a large part of the book is printed, and that is always the kind of book I have been accustomed to use 
Mr. Rogers and the overman initial the leaflets; we give them from the book in the morning; I look at a page 
on the 17th July; it bears the initials T.L.B. ; I do not know who put them there ; when I was awakened 
by the noise on the 3 1st, I put on my clothes, and as McMurray was going out of the door I said, "For 
fear that there is anything wrong with the tunnel mouth, I will take my safety-lamp" ; McMurray said, 

Yes, bring it" (I think that is what he said) ; when we got to the tunnel mouth the air was rushing in, 
and McMurray said he would go and get a flare-lamp I do not know of any conversation I had with 
McMurray about the lamp. except what I have stated in Court; when I had finished my inspection I would 
see Mr. Nelson at the cabin outside time mine, and almost every morning Mr. Rogers ; Nelson was there 
every morning, and Mr. Rogers nearly every morning ; anything that I found wrong in No. 1 section I 
would report to Nelson or Rogers; that is pait of roy duty to report either to the under-manager or the 
manager ; the miners were not allowed to go past the cabin before I came back from my inspection ; if I 
found anything wrong with the roof of a w(>rking place I never allowed any man to go and work there 
before it was made secure ; if there was anything wrong with any of the places 1 would send the men to 
put it right before the miners went in ; that was a special gang of men waiting on inc to do that ; those 
men worked around with me, and in any case I thought necessary I would send them on to do what was 
required ; if bratticing had to be done during the night I would (10 it myself ; I never heard of its being 
necessary to have a certificate for a deputy's work; I have been under Mr. Rogers for about thirteen years; 
the four skips found on the outbye side of No. 4 right shunt appeared to have been travelling on the rope 
at the time of the disaster ; the clip is still on the front skip ; Staffords horse was on the No. 4 left rope 
road and just inhve of the cut-through leading into Stafford's gannon hoed; Stafford was found on Price's 
flat, Stafibrd's work would not take him to the spot where his body was found; it would be time other 
way; the full skips would come down Staflbrd's gannon bord and on to the fourth left rope road, then 
around the curve on to the second left, and would come out at the telephone cabin; Stafford's horse was 
fastened to the skip. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, JOHN MORRISON. 
this 26th day of August, 19Q2, before 

CHAS. C. RtJSSELL, Coroner. 

Rxmnined by Senior-sergeant Banics :—JoJ,n Brady Hash, sworn, states: I am a legally-qualified 
medical practitioner, residing and p"actising at Macquarie-street, Sydney; I am a Aleinbcr of the 
Legislative Council ;  I am an M.D. of the University of Edinburgh, and a member of the Royal College 
of Surgeons, England ; I have been practising for nineteen years ; on the 31st July last I proceeded to 
1\Iount Kembla in company with Dr. Paton I remained at the colliery during Friday morning, Friday, 
Friday night, and Saturday morning; during that time I inspected sixty bodies which had been removed 
from the Mount Kemnbla mine; I have since prepared a joint report with Dr. Paton on the matter; that 
report is signed by Dr. Paton and myself; I produce that report ; that report is the whole of the evidence 
I can give on the matter ; that report is true [Report here read by witness, and handed in and marked H.] 

Cross-crammed by -Mr. Bruce Smi/ht : I am not prepared to speak specially with regard to the 
three bodies of the two Meurants and Nelson; I have no personal knowledge beyond what is stated in the 
report I have just read; I cannot identify any of the signs or symptoms with any of the bodies more than 
I as been done in the report; death from carhcn monoxide gas is a well-known result from the incomplete 
combustion of carbon, and generally occurs where there has been a flame ; an explosion in a mine, if there 
be a flame with it, is the most common cause ; there is a good deal of medical and scientific literature 
during the last twenty years in connection with mining explosions; Dr. Haldane's report is the princi pal 
treatise that is a report which is looked upon professionally as the most authoritative treatise on tl.e 
subject; I know of some articles on colliery explosions by W. N. and J. B. Atkinson ; we have only 
mentioned the prominent symptoms of after-damp in the report; I assent to what you havejust read from 
Dr. hlaldane as a fair description of the symptoms of after-damp with which carbon monoxide is connected; 
I say that from my experience and reading the part of the report I refer to is as follows :—Speking of 
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the symptoms produced in rescuers by after-damp Dr. Haldane says, " Mr. Thomas told me that just 
before he fell he was under the impression that he wasgetting into fresher air on getting into the 
after-damp, he had felt smarting of the eyes, but the first definite symptom was loss of power over the legs; 
lie ncl his companions sank helpless to the ground with very little previous warning; they were brought 
back to the shaft lying unconscious on trucks; on recovering consciousness those affected had severe 
headaches and nausea, or vomiting accompanied by shivering ;  a member of the party who was not so 
seriously affected told me that when he got into the after-damp he felt smarting of the eyes and dryness 
of the throat, though these symptoms caused no serious inconvenience, at the same tine he felt his 
legs becoming more and more unsteady, and he could make no extra exertion," that commends 
itself to me as a medical and scientific man as a fair account of the symptoms of after-damp ; the 
affection by carbon monoxide, of which I reported that these men died,is connected with after-damp, of which 
those are the symptoms ; 1 would expect any miners who had been in the explosion and who had been 
rescued to have suffered from those symptoms if they had been in the after-damp; I now listen to you 
reading from notes of the effects of after-damp at the Albion Colliery explosion, by J. Shaw Lyttle, 
M.D., as follows :---" I saw some men lying on the ground who had the appearance of being in an ordinary 
epileptic attack, frothing at the mouth "; that would correspond fairly well with the condition of the one 
man referred to in our report, except that one was alive and the other dead ; carbon monoxide would not 
cause men suffering from it to groan, but some of the other elements of after-damp might do so; I have 
no reasonable doubt that the majority of the bodies I saw had died from after-damp ; in attributing the 
death of the majority of these people to carbon monoxide, I treat it as a constituent of after-damp, from 
which I believe they met their death , groans may be a sign of after-damp ; I will not say that groaning 
is it si(,n that men are suffering from after-damp ; under the heading of " Men killed by after-damp," in 
Haldane's report, the following occurs :-" In nearly every case of death from after-damp the parts of 
the skin or mucous membrane through which the colour of the blood could be observed, had a red or 
pink colour, instead of being leaden, blue, or pale, as is the case from death from any other causes; this 
reddening, as seen in the face, hands, &c., often gave the bodies an extraordinary appearance of life 

on the lips the pink or carmine was usually well marked, though sometimes they also 
were pale ; there seemed to be only one cause which could account for the carmine red colour of the 
blood—namely, the presence of carbon monoxide" ; that account of the appearance of the bodies after 
death corresponds with the appearance of the bodies I saw at Kemnbla I hear you read from Haldane 
under the heading of" Carbon monoxide " on the subject of after-dam1) :  If there is less than 1 per cent. 
of carbon monoxide death is very gradual and peaceful "; that corresponds with what I state in the report 
with reference to some of the bodies at Kembla; also, " After paralysis of the limbs the senses are more 
and more henumnbed as by a gentle anmesthetic "; I believe that to be correct ; I mean by what I say in 
the report as to Mr Bates that he appeared to me to be like a man who had received a very severe shock 
to the nervous system ; Mr. Bates had a slight swelling on his left temple ; he was not absolutely 
conscious when I examined him, not sufficiently to answer questions ;  I saw no evidence in Mr. Bates 
t.at would point to inc that lie was suffering from the effects of after-damp ; I was not able to identify a 
Mr. Nelson among the sixty bodies seen by me; I do not know that Mr. Bates and Mr. Nelson were 
walking through the mine together and were found lying within three or four feet of one another I did 
not see Mr. Bates till after midnight, ten hours after the disaster; the period named by Dr. Haldane as 
the time after the exposure to carbon monoxide when it might be possible to discover carbon monoxide in 
the blood is limited by six hours in the case of a man, I would expect the effects of carbon monoxide 
to disappear as soon as the carbon monoxide ; if unconsciousness were occasioned by carbon monoxide, I 
would expect it to disappear as soon as the carbon monoxide I do not believe that those men who were 
unconscious for ten or twelve days were rendered unconscious by carbon monoxide; the partial absence 
of oxygen might produce temporary unconsciousness apart from carbon monoxide; if a man were 
unconscious for ten or twelve days, I would attribute it to some other cause than carbon monoxide ; the 
cause, then, in my opinion, is the shock to his nervous system—nothing to do with the absence of oxygen 
or the presence of carbon monoxide ; in my opinion, it would be perfectly useless to try and bring a man 
back to consciousness after six hours by pumping oxygen into him I did not try it; some cylinders of 
oxygen were brought down from Sydney on the Friday; I did not examine any of the living men except 
Mr. Bates; I spoke to several of the men who formed the rescue party ; they described their symptoms 
to me ; I believe they had been affected with after-damp ; 1 state that in my report. 

Cronc-e,ramined by Mr. Lysagji(. The smartiog of the eyes might arise from some compound of 
sulphur ; I would not empect that symptom from a compound of carbon and hydrogen ; the burns I saw 
on the bodies indicated to me that sonic flame of very high tern 'erature had rapidly passed over the skin 
I could not express an opinion as to whether the burns causci by the ignition of coal-dust alone would 
or would not he sufficient to cause the burns I saw; I did not observe burns where there was no 
indication of' coal-dust I would not say that in every case the skin was peppered with parmially-burnt 
coal-dust, but it was in time majority of cases ; every body that I saw was black from coal-dust ; all the 
burns that I saw were produced by some flame of a very high temperature passing across the body rapidly. 

Cro.c-exaimnned by Mr. JVa'Ie: I say that wherever you have carbon monoxide you must have fire; 
I do not say flame in the ordinary acceptation of that word ; there must be intense heat, but there need 
not be a flame as we know it; I have heard of gob fires ; I do not know how gob fires are started; gob 
fires are coal burning in an abandoned part of the, pit; I do not believe in spontaneous combustion; I 
will not say that there are fires which break out in coal mines which cannot be traced to human agency 
1 do not know anything about it I do not know that if you subject coal to intense heat it will give off 
oxygen ;  if you leave oxygen alone it. will not produce heat ; oxvg n of itself does not produce heat in the 
body ; I do not know that oxygen will produce oxidization of coal ; I still say that I am not prepared to 
give an opinion upon spontaneous combustion ; I cannot say that I have seen tinder in an air cylinder 
ignited simply by the compression of air; the compression of air produces heat ; I am not an expert in 
chemistry ; I inn not prepared to expiess an opinion uhether heat engendered by compression of air 
produce; oxidation of coal-dust ; I am not prepared to say that the action of the oxygen of the atmosphere 
of ordinary temperature, and under ordinary pressure upon coal in a mine, tends to produce heat by 
oxidation, and if that heat so engendered is not carried away that there is a further increase of heat; 
I hear you read from page 65 of the appendix to the report of the Royal Commission, appointed in July, 
1896, to inquire into the dangers to vessels carr-ing coal I cannot express an opinion on the subject 
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referred to by you ; I saw two particularly marked cases of burning amongst the dead men ; they looked 
like boys, they were small; from their size I should say they were not men there may have been five or 
six others on which I saw burning besides the two ; the outer skin was loosened or off; I saw no lymph 
at all ; I did not see any lymph in the case of the two youngsters I would not have expected to find 
lymph at the stage I saw the bodies at it would have been all dried up; the skin was either loosened or 
curled up; I could see no lymph vhether the action of flame produces lymph or not depends 011 the 
temperature ; with a very high temperature that would not be so ; a comparatively low temperature 
produces ordinary blistering; if there is an explosion in a coal-mine the temperature would be high, I believe; 
the skin was all completely charred and curled up ; some was off and some was not ; the driving of coal-
dust against the skin with great heat might produce a loosening of the skin, but not such loosening as I 
saw; I did not remove the coal-dust off the loosened skin; I judged that the skin was charred because it 
was black and wrinkled I do not think one is apt to believe from the loosening of the skin and wrinkling 
of it, and the presence of coal-dust, that there has been charring when there really has not been ; I 
judged that the bodies I saw had been burnt, because of the charred and detached skin ; I got the 
indication of charring  from the coal-dust on the skin, and the curling up and wrinkling of the skin ; the 
superficial skin on the hands and legs, and in some cases, the trunk, was black and curled up I judged 
that the men had been burnt by the appearance of the loosened skin; the appearance referred to was 
black, loosened, and curled up ; both sides of the loosened skin were black ; that was so wierever the 
skin was curled up ; the proof of the charring was the blackened and curled up condition of the skin ; I 
hear you read from page 3 of ilaldane's report; I think that is correct ; I hear you read from page 25 
of Haldane's repert ; I agree with what you read there ; I am not competent to say whether, in an 
explosion, the flame is first and their the dust ; I suppose the flame would come first, and after that there 
may be coal-dust ; the burns on the two youngsters were extensive, they were on the limbs and trunks ; I 
cannot say whether there was any burning of the back the boy Stanley Richards was burnt on the face, 
hands, hair, and arms I do notkiiosv whether there was any scalding about him ; he might have been 
scalded; the condition of his hair was not consistent with scalding, that was not due to scalding; the 
hair was severely singed ; it was not burnt very close to the head , I think the two men mentioned in my 
report with pale faces died from absence of oxygen in the air ; the insides of their lips were blue I did 
iiot examine inside their mouths; the clothes were burnt on the two small bodies ; I cannot say. that 
those were the only two small bodies among the sixty, but I can say that they were the only two small 
bodies that had their clothes, the greater portion of them, o, and that were burnt, practically they were 
naked ; the clothes had all been burnt off except underneath the strap round the waist; the swelling on 
Mr. Bates' temple was not, in my opinion, sufficient to indicate any concussion of the brain. 

To 21fr. Bruce Smith In the cases which came nuder my notice the outer skin was broken and 
curled up, indicating burning, and with that condition present I could not mistake coal-dust adhering to 
the skin for charring; if a man died immediately—that is, within a m'nute—t here might be a slight 
appearance of lymph ; there would be no question of seeing lymph in cases like those of the two small 
bodies I have referred to ; the absence of lymph is no guide as to the body having been severely burnt. 

To life. Wii,/e None of the men that I saw burnt other than the two s:! all bodies vould have 
decl. in my opinion, froin burning ; those men may have lived if they had been got out ; there was nothing 
to show me that they (lid not live for half an hour after they were burnt ; if the burn was not sufficiently 
severe, and a man lived for half an hour after being burnt, there would. be  ample time for lymph to collect 
where the burning is very severe there is no l'rnph. 

To i/ic Coroner. I have practised, in a coal mini:lg district for about seventeen jears ; I have had 
practical experience with regard to burning and the effects of carbon monoxide; putting aside the men 
who were burnt, the skin of the others—those who died from carbon monoxide—was in no way raised or 
separated ; poisoning by carbon monoxide does not produce the separation of the superficial frim the deep 
skin ; where I did find a loosening of the skin it was oils- on the exposed parts of the body ; I can say 
that the two small bodies ded from inlialatious of carbon monoxide, and not from time bnroi ng. 

To life. Bruce Smith : Wian I say pappered " in the report I could not siy whether the dust 
had been on the face and been driven in by the flame or whether burning dust had been precipitatel on 
to time skin ; I did not submit any of the coal-dust found on the ikin to a microscope examumii:tt:on ; I did 
not examine time blood in any cisc wth a spectroseope. 

To die. JVitJe The burns were not sufficient to cause death in any case other than time two small 
bodies; in those two cases the burns might have been sufficient to cause death. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-Louse, Wollongong, ) JOHN B. NASh, M.D. 
this 2Uth day of August, 1902, before me,— 5 

CIIAs. C. RuSSELL, Coroner. 

Ea-asminecl by Sea ier-sarqsant Ben/s : —Robert Thomc n P (on, sworn, s ales I am a legally 
qualified medical practil ioner ; I am Government Medical Officer for Sydney ; I am a Fclloiv of the Royal 
College of Surgeons, Edinburgh, and a doctor of Medicine of time University of llrusrels I have been 
practisi n g for about seven ecu veers on the filet July last I u-cut to the hi ommi t K eumbla Colliery with 
Dr. Nash ; we arrived at Mount Kembla between 10 and 11 o'clock at night, I think ; I remained at the 
colliery dimming the imiglmt ; I was there on Friday morning, Friday night, and Saturday morning ; during 
that time 1 inspected a number of bodies that were brought into the engine-shed ; personally T examined 
fifty-eight those bodies had been removed from the n-inc ; I have since prepared a joint rei of with Dr. 
Nash upon the matter ; that report is signed by mc ; that report is true ; tha report embod ci the whole 
of time evidence which 1 can give on the matter ; the report produced by Dr. Nash [marked II] is the 
report I refer to. 

Cross-examined by lily. Bi'uce Smith : I heard the evidence given by,  Dr. Nash; I agree 
substantially with the answers he gave in cross-examination ; I can think of no question that was ptmt to 
Dr. Nash that I WOitivi answer otherwise than lie dd ; Mr. Bates was suffering from shock at the time we 
saw him afrer 12 o'clock at night ; he might have suffered from after-damp before we saw him I have 
no doubt that the two small bodies had been subjected to flame ; I am inclined to think it was flame as 
distinguished from fire ; with reference to the word peppered," used in the report, I am unable to say 
whether there had been coal-dust on the skin and that it was driven in by the flame or whether burning 
coal-dust had been driven against the skin. Cross-eamincd 



	
	

23 

Uros&-examine by Mi'. Wade: I do not agree with Dr. Nash as to there being no such thing as 
spontaneous combustion; I have read that combustion can take place spontaiieously, and I believe that it 
can ; I have read of it happening in coal cargoes on board ship; I have heard of fires that have not been 
accounted for in coal-mines; I hear you read from the report of the Royal Commission on the cause of 
the dangers to ships carrying coal as follows, " Coat naturally absorbs oxygen from the air, and undergoes 
a process of slow combustion ; as this process goes on heat is developed and the temperature of the coal 
tends to risC ; the activity with which oxygen is absorbed increases as the temperature rises " ; I agree 
with that I believe it to be correct I do not know what the igniting point of coal is spontaneously ; I 
know there eaii be very great heat without any flame in a coal-mine ; intense heat without flame would 
not produce the same effect as a flame; if a feather were put into heat of 300 or S00 degrees without a 
flame I believe it would burn and shrivel up ; if coal-dust, in the presence of intense heat, were driven 
against the outer skin it would tend to separate the outer skin from the inner ; the separation of the skin 
was not the only evidence of burning ; there was also the singeing of the hair ; the hair had actually 
burnt, and I am inclined to think that it was caused by flame, because if the heat had been so intense as 
to cause the hair to burn otherwise I would have expected very much more destruction of the body ; I 
place more reliance on the condition of the hair than the skin to prove a flame ; if a flame passed very 
rapidly over a body I would only expect the exposed parts to be injured ; if there was any inflammable 
material in the working place of a man whose hair was so burnt I would expect to find it burnt also, that 
is if he -was burnt there I should say that a man might go  some distance after being burnt as the two 
small bodies were burnt ; it must have been rather a hot flame to cause the condition of the skin I saw 
I should say that it was a very much hotter flame than an ordinary gas stove; I know that intense heat 
will cause a distillation of the coal I think that the length of time the heat is applied has to do a good 
deal with distillation; I know that the flame of an explosion travels at an incredibly fast pace ; I do not 
know that the flame as it passes over the coal distils it; I have had no experience in the matter; I saw 
one head off a body; I cannot say whether it was burnt or not it was considerably mutilated; I have 
no recollection of seeing any burning on that head ; I saw a body away from a head ; that was in the 
morgue with the head; I have no recollection of seeing signs of-burning about that body; when I referred 
to the six or eight bodies that were burnt in my report I did not include that body ; that body comes 
under the heading of mutilation ; under ordinary circumstances the skin has no natural inclination to 
curl up ; it is the force that causes it to curl ; heat or flame would cause it to curl ; the loosened skin 
appeared to be blackened on both sides when we saw them I could not form an opinion whether the 
skin had been burned by flame or by heat from the condition of the skin alone; the only real evidence of 
flame was the hair, and in some eases the clothing ; there may have been eight men, out of the fifty-eight 
upon whom there were evidences of burning ; in my opinion the two small bodies had been burned by 
flame. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith : Apart from the niceties of cross-examination I have no doubt that some 
of the bodies I saw had been exposed to actual flame ; the fact that there were, say, fifty bodies without 
any evidence of flame does not influence inc in that opinion I believe that in the case of the feather put 
by Mr. Wade, that if the temperature were high enough the feather would burst into flame ; with 
reference to the head I saw I could not tell by what force it had been severed from the body ; the body 
was clothed but appeared to be mutilated'; assuming that there was no fl:une to break the skin, hot air 
would not cause the skin to curl up unles the heat were very great. 

To Mr. Lysaghit: The condition of the bodies that I saw was consistent with an explosion of 
fire-damp ; it may have been an explosion of a hundred other things, such as a dust explosion I have 
read Dr. Haldane's report; I am not an authority on explosions of any kind. 

To Mr. Wade. Carbon monoxide can be given off where there is heat and no flame, but under 
those circumstances I would expect it to be in very minute quantities , if the air supply is limited 1 would 
expect to find a percentage of carbon monoxide, even though there were no flame. 

To a Juror: I saw no body identified as that of William Nelson. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, R. T. PATON. 
this 213th day of August, 1902, before me,— 5 

CuAs C. Russxxa, Coroner. 

The inquest is adjourned for the purpose of further evidence, till 10 o'clock, am., on the 27th day 
of August, 1902, at the Court-house, Wollongong.—Cnis. C. RUSSELL, Coroner, Court-house, 
Wollongong, 20th August, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 27th day 
of August, 1902, at 10 o'clock, a.mn.—Ciixs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Exumisied by Senior-serqeant Banht's :—Thomas Fouler Wade, sworn, states: I am a legally 
qualified medical practitioner at Wollongoug; I am a member of the Royal College of Physicians and 
Surgeons, Ireland, and a licentiate of the Rotunda Lying-in Hospital; on the 31st July last I went to 
the Mount Kembla Mine,' shortly after 2 o'clock p.m.; 1 remained there until about S or 9 o'clock; I 
saw a number of bodies brought out of the mine ; I was there again on the 1st August, about t am.; I 
was present when the Coroner and jury viewed the bodies of Henry and 'William Meurant and William 
Nelson I looked at those bodies in a cursory way; I saw they were dead; they were lying in the engine 
shed ; the cause of death was carbon monoxide poisoning; I do not remember any marks o violence being 
on those three bodies ; I remained there at the mine during the whole of that day (Friday), and saw a 
large number of bodies brought into the shed during the thmy ; the cause of death of the others, speaking 
generally, was carbon monoxide poisoning; generally speaking, I did not see any other bodies that died 
from anything cisc but carbon monoxide poisoning; I saw some bodies with signs of violence on them; I 
attended a man named George Hartley, who subsequently died ; he had a fracture of the frontal bone, 
and nearly all the back of his scalp was torn off; I had him removed to a but near by, and with Dr. Reid 
I, dressed the wounds temporarily to prevent further injury, and afterwards had him sent to the 
Wollongong Hospital, where be died; I noticed signs of burning on some of the bodies, but I do not 
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know whose bodies they were; I could not tell the number; I would not call them badly burnt; nothing 
like sufficient to cause death ; I went into the mine with Mr. MacCabe about 4 o'clock on the 31st July; 
while I was in there I saw a number of men, some were alive and some dead; one of the G-allaghers, 
I think lEdward—he died afterwards—was suffering from severe shock; he was found at Mat's Flat; 
there were three or four dead bodies there too, besides several who were not dead ; those who were not 
dead were apparently suffering from carbon monoxide poisoning ; some who were there were afterwards 
removed to the hospital, and are still there suffering from carbon monoxide poisoning.; Mr. Thomas Cook, 
manager of the Mount Pleasant Mine was a typical case. 

cross-examined 1w Air. Bruce Smith : I heard the evidence of Dre. Paton and Nash here yesterday; 
I agree substantially with what they said ; there is no comment I would like to make on the question of 
carbon monoxide poisoning.; I am of opinion that some of the bodies I saw were unmistakably burnt by 
flame as distinguished from great heat ; my principal reason for thinking so was the burnt hair and the 
curling up of the outer skin, especially about the exposed parts; the hair was actually shrivelled and not 
only curled; it had all the appearance of being singed and had bulbous ends; none of the bone was 
broken on the back of Hartley's head ; I should say that violence of some kind caused the injury, some 
severe blow; there were signs of burning on Hartley, too, about the head; I will not swear positively 
to that, but I believe it was so; it did not occur to me to take a note of the names of the bodies I looked 
at; I was more concerned with the living than the dead; I took no notes whatever; I did not, see a body 
from which the head had been severed. 

U,-oss-exanined by  Mr. Lysaqlit: I observed the condition of the mine to an extent when I went 
in ; it was strange to inc going in there ; 1 noticed some of the timber in the travelling road was lying 
about; I went in as far as Mat's Flat ; as we penetrated we met a number of men coming out; I do not 
know the men's names I could not swear whether Hartley's hair was singed all over ; to the best of my 
recollection some of Hartley's clothing was burnt or scorched ; there was blood and coal-dust on his face; 
I believe his face was burnt too ; that is by a flame as distinct from intense heat; I was the first medical 
man to render assistance; the first man I attended to was .John Clark; that was about 3 o'clock; he 
was badly,  burnt; his head, eat's, face, arms, and hands were burnt ; he is living still ; the front of his 
chest was slightly burnt he was suffering from shock I did not know about carbon monoxide then ; I 
had forgotten it at, that time, but I have read it up since I would not expect to find any signs of carbon 
monoxide about him, as he was outside the mine in a shed; his burns were burns from a flame; I was 
not travelling through smoke with Major MacCabe in the mine ; what did strike me was that the air in 
the travelling road was as good as it was; when I got to Mat's Flat the first thing that occurred to me 
was that I was out in the open air. 

Cross-examined bq Mr. IVade: When I first, saw Clark he was on a couch; be had his working 
clothes on ; there were signs of his clothes being singed , I could not swear positively that his clothes were 
singed, but I believe they were; 1 could not swear whether his clothes were or were not singed—to the 
best of my belief they were; I could not tell you whether there was any sign of burning on Clark's back—
I do not believe there were—no, I think the hair was burnt all over, and his ears were badly burnt, 
particularly,the right ear; I cannot swear that the h-sir at the back of his head was burnt, but I believe 
it was ; it was singed very much more than hair singed by a barber; I am speaking now particularly of the 
right side of his head ; there was hair left on his head ; there were a number of blisters on his hands, with 
lymph inside. them ; some of them were large ; that was the general nature of the injuries on his face; you 
could get that condition Irom steam ; my memory is clear as to the blisters on the arnis and back of the 
ears particularly ; I do not think that the condition of the hair could have been brought about by 
steam ; I will not swear whether the condition of Clark's hair when I saw it could or could not have 
been brought about by steam ; I should not be surprised if Clark had no scars on him now, because I 
took some trpuble with bins ; if he has scars now that would not help me to decide whether the injury 
was caused by flame or scalds; the injury to Hartley's head could have been ensued by a sliding blow 
from timber; if the blow were sufficient to knock him down, he might have got the fracture of the 
frontal bone by falling on some sharp substance; lie might also have been hit in front at first., and 
knocked back against some rough substanc, which would tear the scalp off; the piece of the scalp was 
hanging on at the back of the neck it had become detached higher up; my memory does not enable me 
to swear positively whether Clark's hair was singed I took no notes of the case ; I cannot be positive 
that his clothes were burnt; 1 actually went into the pit about 4 o'clock ; when I was facing the opening 
of the mine the air was blowing into the tunnel; it was about 7 or 8 o'clock, I should say, when I got 
out; I was attending to men who wanted attention while I was inside ; Dr. Eeid and Dr. Lee were 
outside of the mine while I was in there ; Dr. Lee is the mine doctor, and be would probably know the 
men ; I only recognised the men belonging to the Mount Pleasant Mine, Mr. Rogers, and Sergeant 
Banks, in the mine; I saw one man as I was going into the travelling road-, he appeared to be delirious; 
he was struggling violently , I do not know who the man was; I believe there were some of the other 
men that we met on the stretchers coining out that were both struggling and delirious I did not examine 
the skin of any man in the mine; outside, before I went in, I saw a man named Tom Smith and a boy 
named Stone and another man; Smith and Stone were burnt; Smith's hair was burnt, and particles of 
coal were ground into him like ; I had difficulty in picking them off; his neck and face and hands were 
burnt, and there was an injury to his leg; I cannot say what; they were of the same kind as Clark's 
water blisters, but not so severe; they were trivial compared with Clark's ; the boy Stone was lying in bed 
wrapped up; he had been dressed; I examined him cursorily and went on; I think the injuries on Smith 
and Stone were caused by burns. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith : I do not know how many stretches there were in the mine; they wanted 
more than were there; I still say that the rest of the men referred to by me in answer to you were burnt 
by flame ; I am distinctly of opinion that there had been flame at work in causing injury to some of the 
men ; I cannot say whether the coal-dust had been on the man's face and then a flame driven on to it, or 
whether bet coal-dust had been precipitated against his skin; I know the man Smith I have been 
speaking of as "Tommy Smith" ; the particles of coal I have referred to were imnbedded in burnt parts of 
the skin. - 

To the ,Forenzam: Paddy Purcell was one of the men who had the coal-dust embedded in the skin, 
and Tommy Smith was, the other. 

To Air. Wade: I picked the coal-dust out with my nail; the condition of the skin about that 
place was not blistered; the skin was blistered in adjacent parts; I did not pick coal-dust from the parts 
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that ivere blistered; the skin where I picked the coal-dust out presented the appearance of having been 
scorched ; the skin was, comparatively speaking, sound ; it was not detached from the'unclerskin where I 
picked the coal-dust out. 

To Mr. Ji-uce Smith Time coal-dust or minute particles of coal appeared to have been forced into 
the skin ; it ri1 iiired more to remove than mere brushing. 

To the Coroner : I would like to say with regaid to Clark that my not being able to say whether 
he was burnt or not now is due to the fict that he was in the engine-shed, and those injuries might have 
been caused by scalding; I differentiate between Clark and Smith because Clark was near the boiler ; I 
have seen Dr. Halilane's book ; I hear you read from page 1 of Haldane ; I consider that what you have 
read is it fair description of the condition of the bodies of men killed by after-damp ; I hear you read 
from pigo 10 of Ilaldane ; I am not competent to give all opinion on whether what you have read is 
correct ; I am not competent to give an opiuion as to the quantity of carbon monoxide that will kill. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, \Vollongong, '( THOMAS FOWLER WADE. 
this 27th day of August,1002, before me,— 

Cuas. C. RussELL, Coroner. 

Examined hq Senior-sergeant Banks :—Timothy Wood Lee, sworn, states I am a legally-qualified 
medical practitioner, at Wolloiigoiig ; I am Government Medical Officer for the district ; I mu it member 
of the Royal College of Surgeons, England, and a licentiate of the Society of potlaeearies, London ; on 
the 31st July last I went to the Mount Kembla Mine ; I started at 2 o'eock ; I saw some of the injured 
men on the road ; the first juan was Gillespie ; I do not know his Christian name ; I dressed his burns 
after Gillespie, the next patient I had was a boy named Stone ; Stone had been burnt, too ; after Stone, 
the next patient was Richards ; he also was burnt; the next was a man named hartley ; I saw him in 
his but ; Hartley (I was told that was his name) was suffering from injuries to his head ; they had been 
dressed, and I did not touch them ; I saw a man named Purcell (Paddy Purcell) about the same time 
he was burnt I then went on to the mine ; I went on to the engine-shed ; I arranged it for the miners 
as they were brought in ; when I got there there were no bodies there; later on, during the evening, I 
saw a number of miners there ; they were not all (lead ; Gallagher (Mi(-hael), Woodruff, two or three 
men, named Peace, Muir, \Talleer  (Dick), were alive ; I do not call to inimid any others; they were all 
suffering from something ; I saw a number of bodies there then ; some of them I knew the names of 
they were the two flelms (father and son), Ed. Gallagher ; I saw the body of Nelson, the under-manager 
I saw two bodies whoin I heard called Meurauts ; I made no close examination of Nelson's body ; I can 
form no opinion as to the cause of his death I did not see the bodies of the ?4Icurants more closely than 
Nelson's I cannot saw what; caused their death; I went imp to the mine later on on the lit; I had 
remained there the fm-st time till about 4 o'clock. and was there again about 11; I then saw a further 
number of bodies in the engine-house ; I cannot for-rn any opinion as to the cause of their deali ; I can 
forte ,in opinion, but I cannot state what the cause of death was. 

Cross-examined b!l Mr. Bruce Smith : I am the doctor of the 1\Iount Kembla Mine; I am the 
lodge doctor ; I have no professional connaction with the proprietors of the mmmimme ; I went out on the 31st 
July in my capacity as lodge doctor; I was on my way to the mine when I got the message ; I do not 
thnk I was there \\ hi-n  the Coroner and jury arrived there I did not give munch attention to the (lead 
bodies, simply to ascertain that there was no life in them ; that is all I did not make any observation of 
those bodies which would enable me to express an opinion as to the cause of their death ; in some casea 
my obsorvation was sufficiently close to enable me to state what their general appearance was ; I noticed 
some bodies which presented the appearance of having been burnt in some way I recognised some of the 
bodies which presented that appearance ; they were Thomas Purcell andEclivard Gallagher; I do not 
remember any others ; Purcell had somna clothing on; the face and upper part of the neck were 
exposed ; the skin was peemed and curled tip, and black from coal-dust ; I would not commit myseli 
to saving that the skin was charred ; I say flirt the skin had been burnt, because it looked as if it had 
been blistered ; my own opinion is that time burning had been done by flame ; very gm-eat heat would loosen 
time tipper skin, but it would not era-k it and curl it as I saw it Pu i-cell's hair was singed ; I thi n-k that 
was fimmnc ; possibly great heat mi all t do that-1 (10 not know ; I could not say that the hair itself indicated 
burning by flame ; the effect of burning with a flame is to make bulbous ends on the hair ; m',' impression 
is that the hair was bum-mit by llmmne I do not remember whether Purcell's clothes were singed or not 
there were precisely the sane indications of burning about Gallagher as about Purcell ; his arms and 
chest were severely bmmi'mt

'
so scm-crc that [ did not notice his hair ; 1 cannot speak as to his clothes ; the 

Helms were not burnt that I know of ; there was no appearance of burning that I saw about them ; them 
were no indications about time fuchs' bodies to show inc at once what had caused their death I have no 
permonal experience of the mppe:mraren of bodies of persons who die from carbon monoxide poisoning 
apart from my knoirlerige of ivlmat had taken place in the mine, there was nothing to show me what had 
caused their deaths ; Gillespie was in beul and was suffering from what appeared to me to be burns about 
the face, neck, and arms ; lie was not covered with coal-dust like time, others; I believe that Gillespie's 
burns were from flame ; that was all I found the meal ter with him ; I had no conversation with loin as to 
the cause of his burns I (liii not ask him, and lie mild not tell me; I saw Stone at his own house ; lie was 
suffering from burns of time face, arms, and leg ; I had no doubt that time burns were caused by flame ; he 
had a small wound on his forehead where the hair meets time skin ; I stitched that imp ; I did not ask him, 
and lie did not give inc any information lmomv he came by his injuries ; the wound on the forehead was a 
cut ; Stanley Richards was burnt on time arms, face, and chest very severely ; I do not think any of the 
men were burnt 0mm time back ; Rit'harde appeared to be burnt by flame except one place 
undem time arm which might have been burnt by his clothes burning ; lie did not tell me 
how he was burnt; I saw Hartley in his but ; lie had been put to bed, and I did not see his 
wounds, and cannot express any opimmion about them ; Purcell was burnt, his face and his arms up 
to time elbow I only dressed him on time face amid arms ; he was employed outside the mine, 
so I am told ; he also presented the appearance of having been burnt with flame ; lie has told me since 
that lie was burnt and not scalded ; he ears he was never in the steamam ; he said that he was standimag at 
liii engine and foummd that something had gone wrong and wouid not work, and he stepped on one side 
and the explosion, or whatever it was, carried away time engine, and lie slipped through time floor into 
ammother place, lie does not know where ; that was last Monday he told me that; I saw Ed. Gallagher in 
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the shed; I did not go into the mine; I saw some of the people who were rescued; they were Michael 
Gallagher; lie was in the shed unconscious; he was partially clothed I think he had a flannel shirt on; 
he showed symptoms of burning--that is to say, his hair was singed; I took it in my hand and it 
crumbled; if hair had been subjected to very severe heat, and then taken between the fingers, it would 
crumble, I think; I was satisfied that his hair had been burnt by a flame ; Woodruff was unconscious to 
a certain extent, but there were no marks of injury to account for that; he had pit clothes on ; I saw no 
indications of burning about him; I saw Jonathan, Isaac, and Nathaniel Peace ; Jonathan had no signs 
of burning about him; there was nothing about Isaac except unconsciousiess, nor was there anything 
more than that about Nathaniel ; there was nothing to guide me as to the cause of their condition ; Muir 
was absolutely unconscious, nothing more ;  It. Walker was unconscious, that is all ; those are all the 
people whom I saw at the mine that I can remember; I was satisfied that El. Gallagher was burnt after 
I had referred to a man there, who said, "Oh, yes, he is burnt"; I did not observe anything uncommon 
about the coal-dust on the skin I did not observe that the coal-dust had been driven into the skin. 

Gross-examined b,1 Mr. Lijsa,qlit I remember attending one of the Gallagher's about ten years 
ago; he was then suffering from burns; they were extensive burns ; the same kind of burns as those on 
the bodies in this case, as far as I can remember; I do not remember attending a man nmcd Jubb at 
Kembla more recently for burns; I do not know the name; I have been the doctor for the Kembla Lodge 
for about nineteen years; I cannot give you a rough estimate of the number of persons I have attended 
to at Kembla for burns similar to those I saw the other day; I cannot remember attending any men 
during the last nineteen years who have received burns intlie pit ; I have attended men who have received 
injuries in the pit ; I do not keep a record of any of these things in writing; I have never been called to 
attend men at Kembla who, apparently, were suffering from gas, before this disaster I have had no 
experience as to the effect of gas at all; none of the men who were burnt and living told me anything as 
to how they got the burns. 

Cross-examined by Air. Wade: I have heard that Gillespie. Stone, Bic}tarls, and Purcell were all 
working outside near the boiler; I have heard that the steam-pipes were broken ; I do not know it ; I 
did not look for the steam-pipes I should fancy that there would be a considerable volume of steam 
from a 7-inch pipe fed by three boilers; there were burns on the upper part of the chest in the cases of 
Gillespie, Stone, Richard, and Purcell ; I may have seen the clothes they were wearing, but I did not 
notice them ; Stone had had blisters on him, or, rather, the skin had been raised, and the skin was raw 
the appearances I saw were quite consistent with water blisters having been there before I saw him ; I 
should not like to say, with regard to those four (Gillespie, Stone, Richards, and Purcell), that the burns 
on the skin could not have been caused by steam; I saw signs of burning on Stone's and Purcell's hair; 
Purcell had a large moustache originally, but lie has next to none now ; Stone's was certainly burnt, very 
considerably siiged ; I am speaking of Purcell, the engine-man (Paddy) I forget whether Tom Purcell's 
moustache was singed or not I do not know that lie had a moustache ; lj inlged that his hair was singed 
by the feel of it I could see to a certain extent, his lTair was full of dust, that would give it a brittle 
feeling, but not to the same extent as it it had been burnt li seemed to have the orduia'y crop of hair 
on, but it was singed I do not remember what part of' his face had the skin off; most of the cit ad bodies 
that I saw had a very peaceful, quiet, expression ; when a person dies in convulsions you have the clenched 
fist.; the statement that the singeing of the hair might be due to great heat w itt:ou t flame milit also 
apply to Edward Gallagher I have heard of great heat existing in coal-mines, and no actual flame ; I 
have heard the same with regard to hay ricks I believe in the ease of liar ricks that the heat gets greater 
and greater till the hhy bursts into flame ; my lcno\velge of chemistry does not lead me as far as to say 
that you can get spontaneous combustion ; my kiioivle ge of chemistry is not recent, 

Tü Mr. Bruce Semitic: Some of the dead bodies appeared to me to have been burnt by flame; I 
am giving my opinion, that is all ; I am clearly of the opinion that the burns I have mentioned were 
ca-used by flame—that is, some of them ; I have attended men at Kembla for burns, but I cannot say where 
they were received ; Gillespie, Stone, Richards, and Purcell were cei'tain]y burnt with flame, although 
they may have been scalded. 

To the Roreman : If at any time I had been called in to attend any man who was suffering from 
the effects of gas, I should have been able to detect it, or at any rite I should have known that there tvas 
something extraordinary the matter with him ; I do not think that there are sufficient ambulances kept 
at the mine to meet the death of ninety men, there are sufficient for ordinary purposi s. 

To Air. Wade: I can only speak definitely as to the hair of Stone and Paddy Purcell. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, "p TIhIOTIIY W. LEE. 
this 27th day of August, 1002, before me,— 5 

CBAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by Renior-serqeantan1cs :—William Bi-ycaR'err, sworn, states: I am a legally-qualified 
medical practitioner at Wollongong; I am a Bachelor of Medicine and a Bachelor of Surgery, Glagow 
I arrived at Mount Kembla Mine on the 31st July last about 3 o'clock p.m. ; I saw some men come out; 
the first man was George Hartley; he was suffering from fracture of the skmdl ; lie had no other injury; 
I saw other men who walked or were assisted out of the mine; none of those appeared to be injured; 
some of them were delirious; I noticed the body of a young man lying in the blacksmith's shop ; I was 
told it was a body; it was covered up, and I did not see it ; later on I went into the mine; we went in 
the travelling-road down to No. 0 right rope road, to where James' heading rope road leaves the No. 6 
right rope road; I saw a number of bodies between where the No. 6 right rope road leaves the travelling-
road and James' heading rope road ; some were dead and some were living; 1 should think there were 
about a dozen alive; they were affected ; some appeared to be unconscious; I believe they were all 
unconscious; I saw no marks of injury on any of them; I saw all those that were alive removed from 
that portion in stretchers and skips; those that were dead did not appear to have suffered any violence; 
the bodies looked exceedimgl y peacefulsome; had assumed positions as if they had just sat down ; others 
appeared to have stretched themselves out as if asleep; one or two bodies had fallen, or were lying on 
their face; there were no signs of any struggle in any case ; there were about twenty dcxi there altogether; 
my attention was not draw-n to the two 3leurants; I could not say whether they were amongst the twenty 
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or not; I looked at all the dead bodies in that part with lit as we passed; after that we came out by 
a djfferent road than that by,  which I had entered; I saw ajout a dozen bodies that had been brought out 
in the engineer's shed; the air inside was good; I started to go in about half-past 3, and arrived there 
between 4 and 5. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith: I have no special knowledge upon the subject of explosions 
in mines ; I have had no occasion to make a special study of the symptoms of persons poisoned by 
carbon monoxide; I did not meet any men all along the travelling-road up to the point I have mentioned 
who appeared to have been burnt; [ went into the mine soon after the explosion, almost as soon as 
anybody; I did not examine all the bodies we met on the way; there may have been men with burns that 
I did not see; I examined all those bodies that were lying down after we left the main travelling road; 
I have seen four bodies in connection with this disaster who were burnt; they are Stone, Richard 
Gillespie, and Purcell in the hospital I believe they had been burned from flame; they may have been 
burned from steam ; the hair was singed I believe the cause of the hair being singed was flame; I felt 
the hair ; it was gritty ; it was like the end of a hair when put in a candle; it was not closely,  curled up 
I did not see signs of burning on any other than those bodies. 

C,-oss-examined by Air. Lysaqlit : The air which I say was good did not strike me as being 
particularly warm I did not feel cold ; I am not prepared to say that it was considerably warmer than 
the air outside the mine ; I notieed no white smoke nor black dust floating in the atmosphere I (lid not 
notice any coal-dust floating about; I remember seeing a horse near James' heading ; 1 did not examine 
that horse; I did not notice that the horse appeared to have been singed; I did not notice anything 
about the part of the mine that I was in to indicate that there had been a fire there. 

Cross-examined by Mr. iVade : The last time I saw bodies in the shed was on the night of the 
31st July. 

I\Iade and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WM. B. KERR. 
this27th day of August, n. 1002, before mne, 5 

Cuts. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

To Ala. Bruce Smith —John 2llorrison, recalled, states : I was one of the two firemen and deputies 
in the Mount Kembla Mine , I was the night deputy; there are four deputies and firemen ; a fireman 
has nothing to do with the tire in the shaft ; they are called firemen or deputies ; there are two night 
deputies and two day deputies; I am one of the night deputies, and 3leMurray was the other; Frank 
Dungey and Evans were the two day deputies ; I recognise, and always did, that my position was a 
mesponsible one I knew what was tIme object of my being compelled to report on the condition of the 
workings, and put my report in writing ; .1 knew that there was a great difference between saying to a 
number of men, "It's all right," and putting a thing dow-n in a book in writing, Which I might be 
c >nfronted with at any tiLne ; I know that I am required to record my renorts in a book ; during the 
seven weeks 1 have been deputy I have been in the habit of writing in one book only ; that is the book 
[Exhibit G] ; there may have been an'ther book before that ; I was deputy before the 24th June last; I 
would report in a book before the 24th June ; therefore, if the first entry in the book [Exhibit G] is on 
the 21th June, I must have made a report in a book before that I only had one book at a time ; I 
ir had any other book but one like that [Exhibit G] ; I used to tear the duplicate out and give it 
to the under-manager ; a duplicate iS kept of everything that is set out in the butts of that book ; that 
book was kept in the cabin outside the mine ; the book was carried in with us at night anl written in. 
the cabin inside ; the men could have looked at my report in that book before going in if they wished I 
do not think that a miner ever looked at the book during the seven weeks I was there I have sometimes 
given tokens before the report was completed; some of the men may have gone in and looked at the 
book, but a great many of them went to woik on the All right " assurance before the report was 
completed ; I always knew the rules, and did not make any extra study of them when I was appointed 
deputy; I knew the special rules and the general rules under the Act. 

Sworn and made, at the Court-house, Wollongong, JOHN MORRISON. 
this 27th day of August, 1902, before me,— 5 

Ciris. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned for the purpose of further evidence till the 28th day of August, 1902, at the 
Court-house, Wollongong, at 10 o'clock a.mn.—CUAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 
27th August, 1002. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 28th 
day of August, 1002, at 10 o'clock a.m.—Cuxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith :—Jolin Morrison, recalli d, states: I do not know anything about the two 
leaves which are missing from the front of the book [Exhibit G] I would not write a report for, say, the 
3ri1 of the month till 0 o'clock the next morning ; 1 did not write my report of 9 pm. on the 23rd till 

6 am. on the 24th ; no men would have gone in to work between 9 p.m. on the 23rd and 3 am. on the 
2-1 thm I produce the book previous to Exhibit G [Book put in and marked Exhibit I]; one of the rules 
relates to ventilation ; I believe you will find that the special rules in reference to my duties commence 
about Rule 6; I knew what you have just read from Rule 7, viz. : "lie shall report to the Manager, 
1Jndi'-211anagcr, or Overman any danger that may from time to time aris e from any cause, and in their 
absence lie shall take such steps as lie may think most desirable for the security of the workman and of 
the mine, and of removing the danger " ; I cannot recollect reporting to the Manager when I found the 
black-damp; I do not recollect reporting it to the under-manager; I did not take any steps that I would 
not have taken had I not found it, because it was not dangerous; I knew of the existence of Rule 8 ; I 
knew of Rule 10 as follows :-" lie shall at least once in every week examine, so far as is practicable, the 
state of the waste workings and mainair WayS, and make and sign a true report of the state thereof in a 
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book kept at the office for the purpQse" ; any report which I made with regard to the waste was put into 
the same book as that in which I put my daily reports; I examined waste workings on the rope roads once 
every night; my nightly examination of the waste workings was limited to the main roads ; there are 
seven goafs in my district ; about that, I think ; every night I went round the 35-acre and 15-acre goafs 
to examine the waste ; I did not go round any of the other goofs in my district every night I did not go 
round any of the other goafs once a week I did not report once a week my examination of the waste ; I 
reported once every month of my examination of the waste workings; in addition to going round 
the 35-acre and 15-acre goafe every night, I examined the left rope road side of the 4k-acre goof, 
and also the left side of portion of the 13-acre goof. and also the righthand side of the second right 
rope road of the 0-acre goof; no miner ever reported to me that he had seen gas in the mine; 
I know rule 4 under the Act which requires me to report in writing every day of my inspection 
of the places where the inca are going to work I know that it sas And such report shall be 
signed by and so far as the same does not consist of printed matter shall be in the handtvi'iting of 
the person who macic the inspection " ; the report on the 15th June last is in \[cMurray's writing 
signed by me ; there is another on the 17th June, written by McMurrav, and signed by me ; I do not 
doubt that there are more reports like that ; there is a report on the 18th June, not signed by me; it is 
in my writing I will not say that the watering of the roads was only done to get rid or the, water; to my 
knowledge we never put any water out on any of those roads except to get rid of the water where it was 
accumulating; we had an unlimited supply of water in that section; 1 could not say that it was in that 
section that we had one of the dustiest roads in the mine. I told Mr. Lvsay;ht that it was more inclined 
to be dusty than any other road in that section of the mine , that is so ; it is the fourth left rope road I 
cannot name any other road in the mine which had more dust on it than that ; I iTo not pay any attention 
to the roads in any other parts of the mine; the water was put out on the roads from iron square tanks 
they were the same tanks that Frost had to deal with; the tanks were filled with water and taken on to 
the road, and then the plug pulled out I did not know when shots were to be fired w lien I was on duty 
it was not part of the men's duty to tell me when they were going to fire shots , so far as 1 know shots 
were not being fired in No 4 left , [ never saw indications of shots having been fired near No 4 left; I 
cannot say whether shots were fired; to my knowledge shots were not fired from No. 1 right up to the 
second left ; to the best of my knowledge there was never a shot fired on the haulage road since I have 
been deputy ; I cannot say whether the stonemen did or did not fire shots since 1 have been deputy; it is 
only in very big stones that they put shots in since the disaster I have seen evidence of one shot having 
blown out; that was at No. 72 heading, where I have marked a N in blue pencil ; that is the only 
indication I have seen of a shot having blown out ; I cannot say when that shot was fired ; Jim heads was 
working there alone on the 31st ; be was found lying in StalYnrd's gannon herd, where I have marked a 
circle in blue ; be was dead ; Hunt and Son worked in 73, where there is a blue square marked ; they 
were found dead, I think, in Powell's Flat;; Egan Brothers worked in the next herd to that, where there 
is an oval in blue ; they are both dead ; I think they were-found in Powell's Flat too Dunning and Son 
worked at 60, where 1 have marked a circle with a stroke through the middle in blue ; Dunning was found 
at No 6 right at the shaft, I have formed an opinion as to the part of the mine where the disaster 
originated where I have drawn the circle in blue with the crots in it is where I think the disaster 
originated, in the 35-acre goof; that part of the goof had slightly fallen before, but now it is down 
altogether; I could not fix at what hour it fell , I bad not seen it for seven clays before the disaster ; I 
examined that place about two (lays after the cliastcr as near as I can remember ; my reason for 
connecting that place with the disaster was that. I knew there was going to he it fall there ; there are also 
indications of force from that point both ways from the fourth right inbve and the shunt outbye 
there are other facts concerning die indications of force bes:des what I told Mr'W'ade the 
other clay ; I gave Mr. Wade all the indications outbe, except the iron bars, which had 
originally been across the rope road sunk in one side and supported by a P0l)  on the other ; seme of 
them are in their place yet, but they are bent on to the outhve side of the shunt ; there is a wheel of a 
skip lying 170 yards from the fourth right inbye lying at an ane,le ; 16 yards further in there is a wheel 
and axle ; 10 yards further inbye there is skip standing up against the rib, bottom up ; the ship is empty 
now, and there are no wheels on it ; one pair of wheels is Ivieg underneath it ; 1 cannot say whether that 
thei- wheel and axle belong to that skip; that is the only skip that is there wit 1t the wheels off; the side 

is out of the skip, which is standing on its vail ; S or 10 yards further inbve than the pair of wheels there 
is a skip lying across the rails ; it is whole, except a piece broketi oil" one entl  of it ; that skip also is 
empty ; there is nothing to show whether they were blown full or empty I think they were blown empty 
3 yards further inside of that skip there is the side of a skip j  about '10 yards further on there are tour 
or five skips ; I am of opinion that they have been forced inbye from No. 4 tight ; betwceu there and where 
there is a horse there are other skips, some broken and some not I form the opinion that they also have 
been forced inbye from No. 4 right; full trucks were coming out of the heading from the places ; I do not 
believe that the empty trucks were up there I believe they wet-c blown there. 

To Mr JViofe : Whether the report was finished or not, w hen the men were going in in the 
morning I always gave them the word , none of them ever mache a complaint to me ; I made an examina-
tion of the places where the men were going, to work who went in at 9 o'clock ; after they had gone to 
work I had other work to iTo, which 1 finished about 2 o'clock in the mornin,_,  ; there is an enh-y in the 
book Exhibit J [Deputy's Report Book from 2nc1 June. 1:01, to 3rd September, 1001, put in,inarked 
Exhibit J] ; on the 20th July a joint report, signed by 1)ungey and MoM urray, of an examination 
of the intake return air_ways and waste workings of No. 1 rig ht, No. 5 right, No. 6 richit, No. 6 left, 
Nos. 1 and 2 left; the report says all these places were found in good order ;  the next entry in that book 
on waste workings is 17th August; the inspection of the waste workings in the book mat ked Exhibit K 
[Report Book from 3rd September, 11M1, to 6th December, 1901, put in, and marked Exhibit K] 
is reported, on 14th September, 12th Octuher, and Jth November ; inspections of waste workings in the 
book Exhibit IL [Report Book from 7th December, EI01,to 10th March, 1902 put in, and marked Exhibit L] 
are reported on the 7th December, 1901, 4th January, 1902, 1st February, and 1st March ; inspections 
of waste w-orkings are reported in the book [Exhibit I] on the 26th April, 24th Slay, 21st June, and 29th 
March ; the morning of the 31st July is the last time I was at the fence of the waste in No. 4 right; as 
far as I went then the waste was all right, free of gas, and everything. 

To 
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To Mr. .L,ysaqht: I remember when I lost my light with Mr. Atkinson; I would not have passed 
by if Mr. Atkinson had not told me to look up ; my light went out in the main tunnel on Saturday last 
I went on to the point of a stone and fell ; I do not say that my light went out on either occasion from 
gas ; when I was with Mr. Atkinson I slipped and fell on my knee; that was in 83 I do not think I had 
actually started work when Mr. Rogers told me to be sure and report gas if I found it; I believe he told 
me that in the colliery office ; he did not tell me to be particular at all about any special place in my-
section ; the canvas doors leak more or less, some of them; it was not reasonably practicable to examine 
the waste workings round the rope roads every week ; that is my opinion; I examined the waste workings 
round the rope roads to the fence every night ; 1 do not think it necessary to examine the waste workings 
every week ; I cannot say who fixed a montli as the time between which the waste workings were to be 
examined ; Mr. Nelson told me when to inspect ; I only inspected twice altogether ; Nelson was my 
superior officer, and if he had told inc to inspect at any time I would have done it ; if Nelson had told me 
to go and examine the waste workings any day, there was nothing to prevent inc doing it ; with all the 
work 1 had to do, I could not have examined the waste workings every week without some one being put 
on to do my other work; I had plenty of time to do my own work properly. 

To Aim', JJi1de The monthly inspection used to occupy seven hours ; it was always made in the day-
time ; I would not have time to do the waste workings and do my own work too at night, for in the day-
time I am suppcscd to be at home asleep. 

To i/me Foreman With reference to rule 1.3 of the special rules, I have never known a workman 
to go into the waste workings. 

To a Juror : The monthly inspection was always done on a pay Saturday ; the nightly inspection 
was done on time Sunday night for the men coining iii on theMonday morning as usual. 

To the coroner : I cannot tell you the date I was appointed deputy ; it was about time 7th or Sth 
June, but I could not say exactly ; I had seen the men working at the coal in the 35-acre goaf before 
they were withdrawn ; I cannot tell you the date the men were withdrawn ; it was about eight days 
before the disaster; the men were removed, and not allowed to go there, and a fence was put up ; I went 
there and had a look at the goaf the next night; I wa then expecting the roof to fall ; 1 did not receive 
any special instructions concerning anything that might happen following on that fall ; fails are some-
times connected with danger to the mine; it has never been so to my knowledge, but 1 believe if they 
were big enough they would ; there are falls every week at Mount Kembla like that which 1 expected at 
that time ; the practice at Mount Kemnbia is to draw the timbers, and leave it; there has never been any 
harm before ; the token is a square Iiece of zinc ; each tablet is numbered ; each man always gets the 
same number as long as he is in that place; when there is nobody inside, the token should be hanging on 
a board in the cabin ; the custom of the mine is that when that token is given to a man, that is a certificate 
that everything is safe ; I do not know whether my light went out from gas or the fall when I was with 
Mr. Atkinson ; at the mouth of the tunnel I noticed most wreckage ; when that goaf fell there was 
2- feet of roof Ibil; time top of the roof then would be 2 12  feet higher than the ordinary bodds ; if there is 
a discharge of lime-damp at any place it will take the highest place ; the cavity in the roof of the goof 
would not be the highest place in that district ; when I said that the "roof had fallen lightly," I meant 
that it had fallen about 2 feet or 2/ feet—that is, there was not a great quantity ; in my nightly 
inspections it was my duty to go to the fee .m ; on my monthly inspection I went into thee at the goat' goof 
and through the roadways in it; there are no sanilam'y arrangements in time pit that I am aware of for 
time mcmi ; the men go to the roadsides, I believe, when they want to alleviate the calls of nature ; they go 
to the m'oadside, and dig a hole, and bury it. 

To Mr. JVolc: The height of the roof outside the area of 2 chains in the 3.3-acre goaf where time 
pillars were was about 4 feet 8 inches ; there might be a fall of S or ft feet ai:d a fall of 4. feet ; on the 
24th, as far as I know, about 2 feet or 2- feet had fallen in time area of 2 chains; there were higher 
points inside time waste than that ; the systemmi that is in force at Moumit Kemnbla is the system that I hxv el 
always kmiomvn for working pillars ; it has been going on at Mount Kemnlmla fr about fifteell years. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith : After a first fall, then, the cavities in the roof would be hither than the 
roof of the adjoiniimg place—that is, if you start with a level roof ; and with a second fail there nmight be 
cavities extending 9 or 12 feet higher than the adjoining roof; if any gas escaped in the fall in the goaf 
area it would accumulate in the iop of these cavilies, and a further fall might drive that out; gas is never 
produced by a fall in Keumbla. 

To time Coromvr :-The nearest legitimate light to the 3-acre goaf would be on the main travellimmg 
road opposite No. 4 right, on the day of the disaster—that is, if any one were passing by. 
Made and sivorn, at time Court-house, Wollongong, 

JOIIN MORRISON this 2801 day of August, 1902, before me,— 5 , 
CuAs. C. Rnssaaa, Coroner. 

E,ramineml hy Se.nmor-serqesnt Banics :—David Beans, sworn, states : I am a deputy at the Mount 
Kemnbia i\Eine in time shaft district; I live at Mount Kemubla ; I have bean employed at Mount Kemnh1 
Colliery for sim/teen or seventeen years ; I have be( II imearly sixteen years a deputy at Mount Kemnbia ; I 
recollect the 31st July last, the day of the disaster ; I commenced duty that morning between S and 
half.past 8; I was the dam' deputy; time first thing I did was to go into the fireman's cabin ; I went in 
there to see if the front shift tokens had one off the hoard ; I found time tokens gone; seine of the back 
shift men were coming in ; Henry Meurant and Wmiliamn Meurant worked in the shaft section in 48 or 
49 bord in that shift; that day, between half-past 1 and 2, I was in the pillars on the left of No. 6 in the 
rope road—that is, up beside James' headlimmg, where I have mnarked on the plan Xl; about that time 
my attention was drawn to something by Samnmny Beck ; it was something that put his ligh t out; he said 
to me, l)id you see or heat' that, Davey " I snid, hear what P " he said, "omething that put out our 
lights " I did not feel or hear anything ; the next timing I heard was Mat. Frost shouting ; he was asking 
time men if I was there ; I went to him; I Imad a flare lamp ; I asked Frost what wa the matter ; he 
said, "Something wrong in No. 1 " I then made towards No. 1 as quick as I could; I reached the 
return coming from No. 1; I have marked on the map tile course I took from the time I met Frost till I 
got to time return airway in No. 1 ; when I got there I found emnoke coming away from No. 1 ; I returned 
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back completely then towards the ventilating shaft I reached the second doors of the ventilating shaft; 
I opened those doors; I met the same stuff there as I met in No. 1—that is, the smoke; that is the 
reason I opened them ; I then returned back and sat down for a while; I have now drawn on the 
map my course from the air-way to the doors of the ventilating shaft; I opened the doors for the PUPOSO 
of cutting off the smoke ; 1 sat down a good bit and gathered as many men as I could; I saw a number 
of miners there ; they were in a pretty good state ; they were coining straight from their places ; they 
were all right, but they were getting very excited they were in a great hurry to en ; I sat down inside the 
doors of the ventilating shaft and told them to sit down a bit ; the men were forcing me to go by saying, 

G-o, Davey, Go, Davey " I then left to go out; I have marked on the map about the course I took 
coming out ; there was a great number of men who came out with inc 1 believe some men remained 
behind at the shaft—I do not know ; after taking that lot of men out I went into the mine back to No. 6 
right just the same place as I was before ; I went back by the main travelling road; when I was going 
back to the shaft I saw a number of bodies in the main road on my way  back ; 1 think they were dead 
I did not see either of the Meurants -there; when 1. got 1--k to the ventilating shaft the second time I 
did not see any signs of smoke; the air was pretty good ; 1 went up as far as the top curl of No. 6 right 
I did not see any dead bodies there nor persons alive ; we were there a bit and then returned back to the 
shaft; Dr. Robertson and Daniel Robertson, Johnson, Clanning, Mat. Frost were with me; I could not 
tell what time it was then ; we then helped to carry some bodies which were lying between the shaft and 
old No. 4 ; I did not return to the mine that night; when I went out that time it was between I and 2 
o'clock in the morning; I went into the mine the next day ; P went into No. 1 section--that is, Morrison 
and Dungey's district; I then saw a number of bodies in that district dead; they were in different parts 
of that district I have been in that district since. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith I have got about fifty-two years' experience in mines—
that is, in South Wales and Mount Kembla ; Mount Kembla is the only mine I have been in in Australia 
I have not formed an opinion as to where this disaster originated; I cannot make it out; you can say in 
what district it was in by the direction of the blast; it occurred somewhere about the fourth right pillars 
I examined the rope road and all the things in it; I have formed the opinion that the disaster occurred 
within the area marked "A" circle; I do not think it had anything to do with the 0-acre goaf on the 
right of the second right rope road ; I can say that I think it occurred within the circle B; I do not 
think it had anything to do with the 15k-acre goaf, and I can say that I think it occurred within circle 
C. ; I say that if it took place in the 35-acre goaf, I think it was on the side marked B I think it 
took place within the area marked like an envelope marked E ; I say that because the blast seems to have 
blown outwards and inwards from that area ; the indicatious point to the force having come out of No. 4 
right, and having gone inbye and outbye on the road ; there are two cut-throughs right opposite the 
No. 4 right on the main level rope road, and the canvasses in those eut-throughs had been blown in 
different directions; the inbye one had been blown inbye, and the outbye one had been blown outbye 
you could also see sign s of the force in the coal, and the skips tumbled about ; some of the skips were 
full and some empty; the skips inside of No. 4 right had been blown inwards as far as I could see and 
outside outwards ; it looks as if the force had come out of No. 4 in a sort of funnel, and then branched 
along the road inbye and outbye; I noticed other things on the road which had been forced in the same 
direction as I have stated ; it was not my business to know of any previous fall in that district; I was 
not acquainted with that district at all ; I have never seen a disaster like this before; I am not a reader 
on mining ; I recognise that there had been some great force at work ; what that force was I cannot tell 
you; during my fifty years' experience I have never- noticed or heard of anything which would produce 
explosions but gas. 

Uross-examined by Mr. Lysaglit: I do not remember hearing any of the men saying that No. .1 was 
on fire ; we were making towards Powell's Flat, and as we got down there the smoke and stuff stopped. 
us; it was white smoke, not very white, but it was of a whitish colour; I smelt the after-damp ; there 
was no coal-dust flying about as I went down towards Powell's Flat ; I could not say whether I said 
"I'm satisfied" ; I do not remember a word that passed between me and Frost as we went along ; I smelt 
something which was not very nice, bht I cannot say that it was after-damp I do not want to say 
anything on the point as to whether I do or do not know the smell of after-damp—you cannot be sure 
of it; I think now that the smoke I saw came from some blast of some kind or another I do not think 
it was a blast of gunpowder; I do not know what kind of blast it n-as—I have no thought about it; it could 
not be a blow down the ventilation shaft ; it could not come from the outside—it came from the inside; 
I think the blast came from the area marked on the map like an envelope; I cannot say what it was in 
that area to cause the force; I was making for Powell's Flat to see the return, and try to see what was 
wrong in No. 1. 
Sworn and made, at the Court-house, Wollongong, DAVID EVANS. 

this 28th day of August, 1902, before 
CUAs. C. RtSSELL, Coroner. - 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, till the 29th day of August, 1002, at the Court-house, 
Wollongong, at 10 o'clock a.m.—CIIAs. C. RusssLL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 28th August, 
1002. 

Inquest resumed, in pursiance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 29th day 
of August, 1002, at it) o'clock a.m.—CuAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Cross-examined by AJh. Lijsaq/ut :—DaiiJ Evans, recalled, states Mv duties as a day deputy would 
not iuichude looking for gas ; Kembla Mine may have been full of gas and yet I not know it; it is not 
my duty to look for it; it is years and years ago since I was in Morrison's section before the disaster ; I 
knew nothing about it ; there was dust in my section ; I do not know that the No. 1 seeton was a good 
deal more dusty than irty section I do not know anything about it. 

Cross-examined by Mr. TVade : I saw a shirt wrapped round a prop in the main heading (the, 
back heading) not far from the face; say 20 or 30 yards from the face; it was inbye of the cut-through 
where Morris was working; there was a tea-bottle close by the prop with the shirt round it; there was a belt 
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hanging round a prop which was lying on the floor; there were dozens of props lying down; they were scattered 
about the prop with the shirt round it was standing up; I did not see Frank Dungey's hody; there were 
some patches on the road where the props were pretty thick, and at other parts there were none, they were 
scattered everywhere and seemed to have been blown about; the props are on the average about 8 inches in 
diameter ; they are about 6 feet in length ; I know No. 3 left ; I saw some timber there too I think ; it 
was down there just the same as in other places; it seemed to have been blown about; Hartley's working 
place on the 31st was on the left hand of the main tunnel, No. 20; I mark on the map the letter H, 
where hartley Brothers were working ;  Edward Gallagher was working in No. 10; he was working in 
some pillars; it was somewhere off the road 1eadng to the old long ;vallfhces; I know William Broadhead 
he did not report gas to me last quarter as stated by him on page 25 of the depositions ;  he did not tell 
inc that there was a good deal of gas in that part of the pit, and to keep the canvas forward as he states 
onpage 20 of the depositions ; it is not true, as he states on page 30 of the depositions, that I took a 
shovel and wrote on it the words ' Fire; do not go past this; put your light out; take your coat; go in 
and fan the place well out ; I never said such a thing to him as that ;  I remember Broadhead changing 
his place about four months ago; McMurray used to examine that place before Broadhead went to work; 
I have not examined any place for the last four or five years ; it is not true what Broadhead states on 
page 31, that I was the man who marked that place with the date; there was nothing dangerous about 
Broadhead's place at all; he was not shifted because it was dangerous ; it was because it was goihg down 
the hill, and it was a heavy pull for the horse up the hill; he did not ask to be shifted; I slnfted him on 
my own motion ; lie was working down the hill, and we had bords coming up the hill to meet him ; we 
stopped three bords that day altogether that were working down hill ;  we got the coal from the other end 
from the bords that were coming to meet them ; the two bords to the right of the one marked If 
and hartley's were the three bords I refer to ; the two to the right of Hartley have since met, but 
hartley's has not; I have marked the letter B on the plan where Broadhead was working; Broadhead did 
not report any place to me as being dangerous ; it is not true what he states on page 36 of the depositions 
that lie did I look at the book [Exhibit L]; I look at an entry on the 7th December, 1001; the report 
is signed by me; the 7th December, 1001, was a pay Saturday ; I look at a report in the same book on 
the 4th January ; we inspected the long wall on that date ;-'there was no one work-lug in the long wall 
that day, which was a pay Saturday ; the examination was made in the day-time; I never examined as an 
ordinary fireman, but I sometimes examined on pay Saturdays; I am positive sure that there has never 
been no report of gas, not this four or five years; I have come ac ross gas; that was eleven or twelve years 
ago, perhaps thirteen ; the furnace then was in the tunnel mouth ; they were then sinking the upcast 
shaft, but it was not in use , the stack of the old furnace is there now at the tunnel mouth ; the old 
furnace was not very big; there was no upcast shaft in those days, which were before the present Coal 
Mines Act caine into force I know now that we have to keep the brattiee well up to the face under the 
Act; I did not see Sammy l3eck's light out on the 31st ; it had been re-lit again ; he was at the pillars, 
near James' heading that is where he was vor1cin ; when I first saw the men in No. 6 right they had all 
got their lights; I found that my light burnt all right as I was going through the place; I always foul 
Mr. Roger,; a very strict boss ; lie always wanted its to he careful. 

To dIr. Bruce Sen/h I have not too good a memory ; it fails me sometimes; I never examined 
for the miners ; I examined on the pay Saturdays, when the fireman was not able to do it ; I never 
examined on a holiday; in the entries mentioned in the book [Exhibit L] the places referred to were the 
places where the shiftmen were going to work , I examined then for everything; I was on the look-out 
for gas, among other things ; I did not remember the pay Saturdays, and when I said just now that I 
had not made any examination for five years I forgot the pay Saturdays ; I look at the entries on the 7th 
and 0th June last in the book [Exhibit 1] I have no recollection about those examinations ;  I know that 
a place is safe by taking the fireman's report ; I wonld not know of my own knowledge that a place was 
safe unless I examined it ; I examined Broadhead's place every day; an examination twelve hours before 
the men went to work would be 110 use, because the gas might accumulate ; I never examined 
Broadhead's place for gas ; I think I am able to say that his place was safe, because I was there ; I will 
admit that it is not safe for a workman to work in a place unless it has been examined less than twelve 
hours before lie commences work ; when I said that Broadhead's place was not (lmingerolls, that was not 
because I had examined it for gas just before lie went in; it is about five years since I started on the day 
shift, and since then there has been no report of gas to me ; I have found gas in several places before the 
five years ; since the shaft was made we have not been troubled with gas in the shaft district—not much 
since; I cannot tell you how long ago it is since I knew of gas being in the mine ;  it is more than five 
years ago ; I cannot remember seeing any gas since the shaft was put down ;  Broadhead's statement is not 
true; there is not a word of truth in it ; I never wrote anything on a shovel. 

To Mr. Lmjseq/mt: I have known Broadhead since he has been at Kembla—that is, about nine or 
ten years ; as far as I know, he is a respectable man, of good character ;  I remember telling  you yesterday that I had never thought of what had caused the disaster ;  it is not a common thing to indicate,  when

- there is anything wrong, on a shovel or on the sides of the all ; it is common to put the date on the face 
to show the place is safe; when there is anything wrong, there is a signal put across the road to stop the 
men—a fence I have never known anything to be written on a shovel to indicate anything to a miner; 
if Broadhead did discover gas he should have reported to me; no person made any sort of complaint about 
the place where Broadhead was working four months ago ; the underground manager told inc to shift 
Broadhead ;  Leech was the underground manager ;  he came and looked at the place; I did not hear what 
Broadhead said to Leech; I did not know that Leech went to the place for a special purpose; he was 
going his rounds when he told me to shift Broacihead ;  the underground manager did not tell me that 
Broadhead had said that there was gas there; there were not then a number of places on a higher plane 
where the haulage was more difficult ; those places were all coming down the hill ;  when I found. the gas 
some years ago 1 reported it to Mr. Rogers, who was then underground manager ; I also reported it in a 
book ; at that time we kept at Mount Kembla a special report book for gas ; I see the fireman's report 
inimnediately he comes out, before I enter; I enter about half-past S in the morning ;  when the men go in at 6 O'CIOC]d the firemen then go home, but they have to see the underground manager first; I do not read 
the report every morning ; the report is there for inc to read every,  day, if I want to ; I read it on an 
average twice a week ; the overman is my immediate superior officer, and it is his duty to read the report 
of the firemen; I do not remember whether I lcoked at the report book for June or July of this year ; I 
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have looked over the report book many times during the year 1002, but not as an official ; I do not 
remember looking at any special report; it was not my duty to look at the fireman's report every 
morning; I would know that the places were safe, because the overman was there, and he would 
know ; I get my instructions from the overnian every morning, and if there is anything wrong, 
not only gas, but anything else, he will pick it out if there is any bad roof or anything; we lake 
everything for safety, only the place the fireman mentions anything wrong ; I would take the 
safety of the mine from the overman's word , I do not think I have seen the book in which I used to 
report gas for twelve years; it was futt of reports; it was some kind of diary book ; that book was kept 
to report any danger we would see; we generally had one of those books for every year; we gave up 
having those books when the present ones came out, we have books like them now for the diyman's daily 
report ; I mean books for the day deputies to make their reports in ; all the reports 1 have made 
concerning the Kembla Colliery for the past five years are in those day-books; those books are not printed 
with duplicates like the firemen's books; it is some kind of a diary book , the Looks I am speaking about 
are not those already marked as exhibits ; when I make those reports of mine in the books, the books are 
kept at the office; I sign each daily report ; Frank Dungey used to sign the report too; lie was the other 
day deputy; it is not a joint report; we have a book apiece ; I had my report book on the morning of the 
disaster;•  I left it in the fireman's cabin inside the mine I do not know where the report book betore the 
last one is; we generally  ge t them every year; I have looked in the cabin since the disaster and cannot 
find it ; I could not name the spot where Price's body was found, but it was somewhere about Powell's 
Flat, I think [Report book put in and marked Exhibit M], I look at the reports of the 31st July and 
the 1st August of this year in the book [Exhibit and say that the reason the reports appear on those 
days is that I turned over too many days in mistake ; I discovered that I had made the mistake after the 
reports were written ; it was in July 1 found it out , when I found it out I put the reports in the right 
place ; Nelson found the mistake out; I mark a blue X on the plan, the plece where I think Price's body 
was found; I am not sure that is the place ; the body was face downwards when we found it , missed 
shots are not very common at Kombla, but they happen sometimes ; there are many weeks without one 
I have seen the reports made by Dungey; I have seen them ; missed shot is one which has not fired at 
all, and a blown-out shot is one which has blown out and not had the effect it was intended to have ; I 
have not seen any blown-out shots for twelve months in Kembla. 

To ATe Wade: When I went to work in the morning, I would go in between S and half-past; if 
the fireman had reported all safe ; I would see the under-manacer, first of all ; if the fireman had reported 
that some place was unsafe, the overman would tell us, and then I would go there and see about it; I 
would go to Broadhead's place and see if the roof was all right, and if the road was all right, and if he 
was doing his work all right ; the fireman's inspaction is between 3 and 7 o'clock in the morning; the 
front shift is at work before 1 conic into the mine at all ; 1 go evry working place in my shift in my 
seetion and examine the place; 1 see if everything is right, and if there is anytlnng wrong, I make them 
put it right; there is an inspection by the firemen before the men begin work, and my inspection wh:lst 
they are at work; I do not remember there ever being any trouble about gas. 

To the Rureinan : The working place where llartley Brothers were working is not higher than 
any other part of the mine; it is lower than other places ; I have never had occasion to report about any 
of the men going to the waste workings ; I never heard of any of them going into the waste workings. 

To a Juror The more ventilating shafts you have the better. 
To a Juror: Another shaft would be a benifit, but I do not see it is actually. needed, as there is 

no gas. 
To a ,Turor: I do not know the stoppings of the 35-acre goaf in No. 1 section ; the stoppings in 

my district are from 4 to 5 feet thick ; sometimes we plaster the outside of the stopping with mortar, I 
found the stoppings out in some places in the main tunnel in both the shalt and No. 1 sections since the 
explosion. 

To the Coroner: If a man wants to obey a call of nature, he should use his own place; I never 
found them going into waste workings. 

To Mr. Bruce Suit/li : It is not a fact that I used to write up my reports three or four days 
ahead ; my last entry is under the date of the 7th of. August ; I never wrote two reports at once; if 1 
made an entry in the book helore the proper day, I did it by mistake ; after having entered upwhat I 
had done, I used some imes to have to scratch it out and write across it No work tha wording of the 
report is the same all through the book ; there is an entry, on the 25th July, which I had to cross out, 
andwrite over it " No work" ; I fount out I had made the mistake in Jul0 ; the entry which is in the 
book for the 7th August is meant for another day ; the book was kept in the company's office ; the 
underground manager examined, the book, and he found the mnistate when ding so ; when I reported on 
waste workings I entered them in my book Exhibit Mi ; I examined I I.e waste workings every day, 
but I did not put it in a book; the report of the 22nd June in this book [Exhibit J] de not refer to 
waste workings ; it refers to the roads and to the roof; the report of the 0th Jur.e in the book [Exhibit 1] 
does not refer to waste workings ; I have never reported on the waste workings in either of the books. 

To Mr. Wade: MeMurray and Dungey used to report on the waste workings some time ago, and 
recently McMnrray and Morrison. 

To the Coroner: I put the report of the 2Sth July in the book at night; that was the day past. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, ) DAVID EVANS. 

this 20th day of August, 1902, before 
Cuxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

The inquest is adjourned, for the purpose of further evidence, till the 1st day of September, 1002, 
rn., at the Court-house, Wollongong.—Ciixs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. at fifteen minutes past the hour of 11 a.  

Court-house, Wollongong, 29th August, 1902. 
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Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wbllongong, on the 1st day 
of September, 1002, at 1115 o'clock, a.m.—CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Eavzinined by Senior-sergeant Banks :—A1arn Frost, sworn, states: T reside at Mount Kenih]a; I am the overseer of wheelers in the No. 1 right district in the Mount Ketnhla Colliery 1 am in the 
employ of my father, who is a contractor for the company; I was at the mine at work on the 31st .July 
last; that day I met Nelson, the under-manager, and Bates, the Inspector of collieries ; Tmet them about 
half-past 1 or a quarter to 2, as near as I can say ;  I met them in the fifth right rope road ; they stayed 
for a fw minutes with me, and had some conversation ;  after they left me I went to the top of the second 
right Tommy JJodds ; there I met a wheeler and a clipper, Parsons and Hunt while T was talking to 
them I noticed something unusual ; there was a great blast of wind came up the second right while 
I was there ; it blew out my lights ; we lit the lamps again, and we tried to make our way to the 
main hauling road; I was not able to get to the main haulage road, for I met the smoke and dust 
about 200 yards from there ; the air was travelling  its proper course, but I found it a little hot I then 
returned to the Tommy IDodds ;  when I got back there 1 thund a number of men ; they came from the 
bords in the fifth right; Hunt and Parsons and 1 then took a number of men out at l'urcell's daylight 
heading ; we then went over to the main entrance of the mine; we then saw the wreckage, 
and knew that something serious had taken place ; when I got over to the main entrance it wa s  nearly 3 o'clock; I went into the mine into the shaft district then ; the first man I met 
was Hartley, ; I met him just a little in by the fireman's cabin up to that time I had not seen 
anybody down or injured in any way ; hartley was lying in the roadway ; he was unconscious : we tried 
to give him water, and two or three in the party stayed with him to try and get him outside I went on 
to the shaft; we met a good number of men on the way out between the fireman's cabin and the shaft; 
there was none injured among the men whom I met between the cabin and the shaft, except that some 
of them seemed a bit silly ; they had not got their proper senses a lot of them ; I met my,  brother 
Mathew at the shaft next the furnace; me and my brother and several others went back down No. 0 
right ; I saw a good number of men in the sixth right, and also some in the main road ; the most of them, 
from all appearances, were alive when we went there first ; later I saw a number of the same men dead 
I assisted to remove the men from that district; all the men were out of No. 6 right before I left the 
shaft; after those that were alive were brought out, I came out of the mine at the main tunnel; that 
was as near as I can say about S o'clock at night; some time after that the same night I went in with 
Mr. Crovther and Morrison and others to No. 1 right; T afterwards saw the biggest portion of the 
bodies that were brought out of that district that night ; there were some on Powells flat we did not see 
that night ; nearly all the bodies that we saw on the Thursday night were brought nut on the folio a ing day, Friday ; some were brough t out on Sturclay I did pot take par icular notice of the coi;ditioii of 
the bodies in the No. 1 district on the Thursday night ; I knew Henry Meui'ant and William i\lcurant 
1 saw them in No. U right on the Thursday night ; they were both alive when I saw them ; they were 
bath unconscious ; later on that night I saw them both dead ; they were dead in No. 6 right in the stime 
place as I had seen them alive ; I did not see elson in the mine after he and Bates left me ; tie 
watering of the roads in the No. 1 district is portion of my duty. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith When I water the roads I do it with a water-tank with a 
hole of 4 or 5 inches in the bottom ; the water used is that which accumulates in the mine, and which we 
want to get rid of ; we always have plenty to put on the road which has accumulated ; on several 
occasions we have put water on the road which has not accumulated ;  we have got water from Stafibrd's 
gannon bord ; that is a place in which the water accumulates ; the water is carried away from that place 
and emptied on to the road ; we have no hose ; the tank is a small iron malt tank ; it. is wheeled out on 
to the road and the plug taken out, and the water runs away on the road ; as soon as the water 
accumulates again the tank is taken back and filled ; that is not the only place. there are several other 
places that have to be baled, the water is taken away from them in the same way; there is one place 
which is the swallow between Stafford's and Powell's fiats ; there is another place, No. 1 wheels, that also 
has to be baled ; there is another place which has to be baled at old No. 5 ; seine of the bords gcing to 
the dip also make a drop of water ;  those are all the places ; if there is any place we see wants waterieg 
on the road, if it is twice as far to take it, we take it there; the plug is in the centre of the tank, and it 
runs out into the middle of the road, the water baler empties the tank ; if he wants the water all to run 
out in one place lie tatcs the plug out and stands there, if he does not he follows the horse along ; fifteen 
or twenty tanks a day accumulate in all the places we have to bale in my district, we have plenty of water 
in the mine, more than we want sometimes ; there is a great deal runs away ; it is continually rnning out 
of the mine i u 

n a good stream right through the summer, it runs by gravitation ; a tank takes about two or 
three minutes to empty if you plug the plug right out ;  if you do not pull the plug right out it takes 
longer; if we want it to run along a length of road it might be half an hour or all hour to go along 50 
yards of the road, that is to run along after it was out of the tank, if the plug is not pulled right out it 
might take five minutes ; during the past summer none of the tanks were emptied because the roads did 
not need it, we have three water-tanks in my district ; they never go out of my district, the shaft district 
has its own tanks, I do not know how many ; I have not been able to form any opinion as to the seat of 
the accident; not anything to be sure of; I have had eighteen years experience in mining; I have formed 
no opinion at all as to where it took place. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaqhit: I have thought a good deal as to where it might have happened. 
I do not think it happened in the shaft district, I have no idea myself as to where it did start; iNlien I 
said that the men I met looked a bit silly, I meant that they were silly from after-damp or something 
similar to that ; I got a touch of after-damp, or whatever it was in Powell's flat, that was about one or 
2 o'clock in the morning of Friday ; I did not get any when I went in about 3 o'clock on Thursday the air 
was travelling its proper course when I went in ; I have seen a similar plan to that now in Court before; 
I first saw it last Friday; I saw it for about two minutes on Friday ; it was shown to me by Senior-
sergeant Banks ;  I say that the tanks in my section have never been taken out to the shaft district by my 
brother to my knowledge ;  the tanks may have been taken out in my absence by my brother ; he has beeti 
in my section several times during the last six months; we water the roads where we see it is required 
watering was never badly required ; it may have been for a yard or two ; Gill's gannon bord required 
watering, and we tipped water there; there were very few places that required watering; I have told you 
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the place and that is the only one that required watering that I know of; we have tipped the water in a 
hundred places; there was no dusty place that wanted watering in my section except Gill's gannon bord; 
I do not say that in every other place, but Gill's gannon bord the plug was pulled right out and water 
let go; it depends where the dip is as to which way the water would run when the plug was pulled, some-
times it would run in: both directions ; from the fourth right inbye it is all a rise, up to the headings  ; I 
have drawn water up towards those headings whether it was wanted or not; it was never required there; I say 
that we have drawn water up there when it was not wanted ; I do not know that it would give us more 
labour to take it there than to take it to the place we used to tip it to run away ; Gill's was the gannon 
bord where the coal was brought out of, and that is where the dust was if there was any dust; the fourth 
left roads are not dusty; the second left is not dusty; the main hauling road in No. 1 is not dusty and never 
was; the water was run down as far as we liked to take it on that road; the travelling roads do not need 
watering; I have often heard of travelling roads being watered, but not at Kembla; we have no appliances 
for watering the sides or the roof; I cannot say why we have not got such appliances; the sides and roof do 
not require watering because they are not dusty; water comes in from the surface; I saw three or four men. 
who had been burnt; they were Kembla Stafford, Tommy Tost, and Ailcen and son; I do not remember a 
man named Gallagher being burnt at Kembla; I may have heard of it ; I do not remember having heard 
it; I have been at Kembla for about thirteen years ; although I have thought very carefully about it; I 
have no idea as to where the disaster started, or as to what caused it; I did not ask anyone where I was 
to water ; I watered on my own responsibility, it is a common thing for a fireman to chalk his directions 
where be wants the work done ; if the work was on broken props the chalk marks would be on the props, 
and if it was on bars across the roof it would be on the roof; if it was to clean places he would mark the 
stuff that wanted shifting ; if there was anything else be would write it on the black board at the 
firemen's cabin; I do not know anything about bratticing; if anything were written on the face it would 
be for the miner and not for us ; if the fireman saw something that wanted doing in his inspection be had 
no need to go back to the black board; he could see the men on the shift ; he would mark it on the place 
where the work imad to be done and tell the men ; it there were no place on which to mark it be would 
have to go and see the men ; he knows where the men are working; I have never known in my experience 
any sign from the fireman or the deputy as to any work to be done to be marked on a skip; the fireman 
would not mark danger on a shovel, he would sticic the danger board up ; some of the waste workings are 
sealed off, they have stoppings, not of bricks and mortar. 

Cross- exam in ed by Mr. Wade: I have never heard of a fireman finding gas and telling the workman 
to move the gas himself next morning; Dungey was the day-deputy in my district, and Morrison at 
night; instructions as to any place that wanted cleaning would come from the day-deputy ; the night 
shiftmnen who are with him do the work that the night-deputy wants done ; the blast of air was pretty 
strong that came on to us at the top of the second right on the 31st—it nearly,  blew us off our feet, 
anyway; we were at the angle where the two roads go round the big goof; I sup pose I went down 200 
yards before I got the smoke and dust, I have marked that place on the plan X 1 ; the smolce and dust 
were going back to the main road when I met it ; I was going with the air, not against it; the second 
right rope road took the air from the daylight heading; that was the nearest point I got to the jnnction 
of No. 2 right and No. 1 main rope road ; 2 o'clock would be a time when all the miners would be in the 
mine ; outside, the men and boys who were working at the tunnel mouth there were only the blacksmiths 
shop men, who were working near the tunnel mouth ; Mr. llogers was not at the mine at that time; I 
met Bates and Nelson just at the corner of the travelling road at the bottom of the fifth right rope road; 
they were going out towards the mouth when I last saw them ; I went up round the fifth right when I 
left them ; the surface water coming from the crop workings runs down sometimes on to the main road 
and the travelling road; I am speaking of No. 1 travelling road and No. 1 main rope road; the water 
comes through the old workings through the openings ; in time of rain, we got water all along the 
travelling road—that is, on the floor; the road dips from the telephone cabin, and from the fourth right 
it dips the other way; in wet weather, the water would run along the floor of the road ; I cannot say 
that the roof and sides were wet, but there was no dust on the roof and sides to speak of; I am speaking 
of the rope and travelling roads in No. 1 ; going parallel to the main rope road, the district to the left 
was on the rise, but going at right angles to the main rope road the district to the left was on the dip 
the coal from the first two bords to the left of the main rope road, and that from Mrris' bord, came 
down the main rope road and all the coal from all those bords to the left again went along the line 
marked with a blue arrow, and into Gill's gannon bord; there was no traffic in the area between Gill's 
gannon bord on the left, the fourth left rope road on the next side, No. 1 main rope road on the third 
side, and the cut-throughs next the faces on the fourth side—that is, coal traffic; there was a swallow in 
Gill's gannon bord and Stafford's gannon bord ; Stafford's gannon bord has been making water during 
the whole of the last six months, and longer than that ; that water comes in from the swallow ; we have 
to take that water away ; if there was any place that the under-manager saw wanted watering. and I had 
not seen it, he might tell us to tip water there ; when 1 say that the main rope road was, not a dusty road, 
I mean that there was no dust there to speak of; we always cleaned up any coal that might have fallen 
off the skips ; when we pull the plug out quick, the water covers all the heading ; if it s tipped in 
anything like a level place, it will spread before it can get away ; the biggest tank, I should say, holds 
200 gallons of water, the smallest 100 or 120 gallons ; the last time I saw Mr. Bates at the mine was 
with Mr. Leech, a month or five weeks before the disaster ; I saw him then in the fourth left rope road 
at that time; I never had any complaint from him at any time as to the place not being clean or dusty. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith : I say that the arrows on the plan are wrong so far as the air is concerned 
the air does not travel as shown on the plan I am speaking of the arrows in the second right rope road 
those are the only arrows that are wrong; the smoke and dust were going in the same direction as I was, 
and I overtook it; wreckage extended from No. 1 right up No. 2 right for 200 yards ; wreckage extended up 
the main road to the fifth right, nearly up to the end of the heading ; I did not form any conclusion from 

that. 
To the Coroner From the outside into the telephone cabin is the worst wreckage; the second 

worst wreckage is from the tele hone cabin round the left-hdnd branch rope road ; I saw the body of 
Dungey; as near as I can say, it was found about 60 yards inbye from the fifth right tommy dodds ; I 
saw the head ; I saw the arm ; the head and arm were ontbye and time body iubye ; I do not know 
whether the heal or the arm was nearer the hi )dv; I saw them about hmaif-pasb 10 or 11 o'clock the same 

night 
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night (Thursday) I do not think they had been moved; there are no gates at the tunnel and other 
mouths that I know of to keep people out, there is no gate at Purcell's daylight heading; that is the 
only one that I know of; any person who wished to do mischief there could go in at Purcell's daylight 
heading if he wished; none of the miners go in that way, but a good few come out that way; I have not 
seen gates at the pit mouth at night. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollougong, ) A. FROST. 
this 1st day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CIIAS, C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by Senior-serqeant Banks :—Willianz 1?oqers, sworn, states I reside at Mount Kembla; 
I am the manager of the Mount Kembla Colliery ; 1 have been at Mount Kembla mine for about thirteen 
years ; I was underground manager for about seven years, and have been manager for about six years; 
Henry and WTilliam  Meurant were employed at the colliery as miners; I knew them, but not by name 
William Nelson was the under-manager at the colliery ; on the 31st July last I was absent from the 
colliery in Wollongong ; the first thing I knew of anything having happened at the mine was that day, 
the 31st, about 2 o'clock pin.; I went to the mine at once ; when I arrived there I found everything 
outside a wreck; that evening I saw the body of Mr. Nelsan, the underground manager, lying in the 
engineer's shop I also saw the bodies of th6 Meurants there; I identified Nelson's body when it was 
viewed by the jury; I went into the mine on the night of the 31st July; I inspected the place generally. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lqsa5hz: I do not understand what you mean when you ask me whether I 
have passed any examination for my position as manager of Mount Kembla Colliery ; I obtained my 
certificate as manager of a colliery by service ; I was never examined by a Board of Examiners for my 
certificate of competency; I remember a man named Mjchael Gallagher being burnt at Mount Kembla; 
I do not know that be was burnt from an explosion of gas ; I do not kno how he was burnt; I did not 
hear how be was burnt; I know be was burnt, and that is all ; I was under-manager at the time; I did 
not inquire as to what caused his burns; for all I know, he may have been burnt with gas; I had no 
reason for not inquiring ; when a man was injured in the colliery when I was under-manager I sometimes 
inquired; when a man got burnt I did inquire as to what burnt him; I do not know of any one who has 
been burnt in Kembla Colliery except those who were burnt at the present disaster ; if men were burnt 
in Kembla since I have been manager I expect I would be sure to know it; 1 expect also that I would be 
sure to know it if as none were burnt during the time I was under-manager; I do not know that a man 
named Blackett was burnt at Kembla, and have never heard of it; I do not know that a man named 
It. Walker was burnt at Mount Kembla, and have never heard of it; I have never heard of a man named 
Jubb being burnt there; I never knew a man of that name to be wom-king at Kembla; I know that some 
of the victims of this disaster were burnt ; Tom Purcell was burnt a lirtle, and one of the Stafford boys, 
I do not know his name, John Clark, who was working outside the mine, a boy named Stone, and Stanley 
Richards, who were also working outside; I do not know that the two Aikens were burnt; I have not 
inquired as to who was burnt; I saw mill the bodies, I think ; Clark, Stone, and Richards were working 
outside, the others inside; I cannot say what burnt Purcell or Stafford I have no idea what burnt them; 
I have no idea what caused the disaster ; I have no theory; I have no suggestions to make; I have not 
thought as to what has been the cause of this disaster; I have no reasons for not thinking about it ; I 
have thought a good deal about it, but I cannot make up my mind about what caused it; I have no 
theory at all; the only thing I have thought about it is what we have heard a good deal about in the last 
fortnight, that is, that an area of waste fell in in the fourth right, causing a blast, and blowing everything 
upside down ; I cannot say what the blast was; I have no idea; it appears to me that the blast has come 
from the fourth right pillars; I (10 not suggest that it was a blast of gunpowder or of dynamite ; I do not 
know what it was I do not know how the men I have mentioned (Stafford and Purcell) were burnt; 
my idea is that when the blast came out it blew different ways, some iubye and some oulbye; I could 
not say whether it was ignited or not ; I have no idea whether that blast was ever ignited ; I have no 
impression about it I do not know that there was any after-damp in the pit after the disaster ; when I 
went in I may have got a little; I felt a smarting in the eyes and nose, but I do not know whether it 
was after-damp I do not know what after-damp is ; I do not know any of its constituents; I know fire-
damp when 1 see it in a lamp I do not know any of its constituents I do not know what light 
carburetted hydrogen is; I do not know what methane is; I have heard of light carburetted hydrogen, 
but I (10 not know its composition I have heard talk of people meeting with it in mines, but I do not 
know that I have met with it; I do nut know whether there are any means of discovering it in mines ; I 
have never tried to discover it; I have never read any scientific works upon it I do not know whether it 
is explosive or non-explosive; I do not know whether it is life-supporting or not ; I am a practical and 
not a theoretical man I do not know that while I was under-manager at Kembla fire-damp used to 
accumulate in the mine; I do not know that the ventilating shaft Ave have at the mine now was built as a 
result of a prosecution ; I know that the shaft was built to improve the ventilation I did not give 
evidence before the loyal Commission in 1SPO ; I have given evidence on no Royal Commission ; I do not 
know that gas is constaittle exuding from the coal in Kemnhla, even in small quantities ; I have not heard 
of gas of any kind at any time being in Kemubla mine; I myself have looked for gas in Kembla mine; 
that was many years ago—ten years ago I dd not find any gas when I looked for it at that time ; 1 
would have known it if I had found it; the firemen use the old Davy" lamp in their inspection, not the 

Marsaut" ; there are from nine to a dozen Davy'' lamps at Kembla ; the mine was examined every 
morning with them ; they would require a lamp each ; the others were in the store, in good order; I 
always kept them clean and tidy in the store I do not know that the rescue parties could not get any 
decent oil at the mine; we keep two or three diftereit kinds of oil at the mine ; I was in the mine about 
a week before the disaster I always inspect when I am in the mine ; I made an inspection of the part 
of the mine I was in on that nasio ; that was the shaft section, not No. 1 ; it was, perhaps, a fortnight 
before the disaster that I was iii No. 1 section ; I do not know what day of the week it was that I was 
there I made a rough note of having been in the mine, and what part I had been in, perhaps; the note 
was made in a dtary. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WM. ROGERS. 
this 1st day of September, 1002,. before me,— 

Ciras, C. RUSsELL, Coroner; 
- The 
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The inquest is adjourned for further evidence till the 2nd day of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock 
am., at the Court-house, Wollongong.—Cnis. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 1st 
September, 1902 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 2nd day of 
September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a,m.—CIIA5, C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaq7zt :—JViiliani Rogers, recalled, states: I produce the book I was 
speaking of last evening [Book put in, and marked Exhibit ] ; I made the last entry in that book on the 
30th Julr, I think; after I had made that entry,  I left the book in a drawer at the office; I next took the 
book out this morning ; the entries were made each day, in the afternoon or evening ; on no occasion have 
I allowed two or three dayi to pass and then entered the book up for those days; the entries on the 28th, 
29th, and 30th Julywere not written at the same time ; I did not do any writing last night or this 
morning; they were written on the days on which they appear to have been written; I blot every entry 
as I make it; I cannot say whether I entered in that book my visit to No. 1 section of the mine about a 
fortnight before the disaster; I often visit the mine and do not enter it in that hook; when I made an 
inspection of the mine there is no other book that I report it in ; the amount of ventilation in the mine 
is recorded in a book kept for the purpose; I have not got that book here; I am not certain when I last 
saw that book, but it was in the month of July; in my inspection about a fortnight before the 
disaster I had a flare-lamp; Nelson was with me on that occasion; no one else was with me for the purpose 
of inspecting ; nelson had a flare-lamp ; neither of us had a safety-lamp; we did not go into the 35-acre 
goat' at all; we went into the mine about 8 or half-past (about that), and came out about 2 o'clock 
perhaps, 11 do not remember hOw many hours I as in the mine; I see the entry in the diary on the 1st 
July, that is the inspection I have referred to; from then up to the time of the disaster I did not make 
any special inspection of the mine; I will not swear whether I did or not; there is no book anywhere to 
show a report of inspection by me, only the diary [Exhibit N] 7 I did not think it of importance to write 
down the result of my inspection; I have certainly made what may be fairly called, an inspection of the 
mine ; I have often made an inspection ; I took the report of the fireman as sufficient for me with my own 
examination; when I have made inspections during the last ten years I was not looking for gas only along 
with the other things; I was looking for everything, gas included; I did not look for gas on my inspection 
of the 1st July even amongst other things; I cannot tell when it was that even amongst other things I was 
looking for gas; the waste workings were inspected once a month; if I had thought there was any occasion 
for it, it would have been practicable to have the waste workings inspected once a week; I was aivare of 
rule 10 of the special rules before the disaster ; I read the rule like this : " Once a week, or as far as 
practicable" ; I am not now of opinion that there was some occasion to have the waste workings examined 
once a week; I do not know now that I wrongly interpreted that rule (rule 10 of the special rules) ; I 
could not inspect the underground workings every day because I had other duties to do ; there was 
nothing in the mine to prevent me inspecting them every day ; when the words "went into the mine this 
morning" appear in the diary it means that I inspected every part of the mine I went into I know that 
part of rule 2 of the special rules which you have just read to me; I never personally took the amount 
of ventilation passing in the mine at any time; I relied on the surveyor, Mr. Warburton to take the 
amount of ventilation ; Mr. Warburton had to take the air once a month; he had to take it at the 
beginning of each month; the volume of air going through a mine varies from day to day, one day more 
and another less ; a hot day outside would interfere with the natural ventilation, and a cold day 
would assist it—there is nothing else to my knowledge that 'svould vary the volume of air in a 
mine; I have never read any book to show what varies the volume of air in a mine; I do not want 
to change that answer; I know a little about mine surveying; I conclude that the blast came from 
the fourth pillars, because of the things I saw blown UI)  and down inbye and outbye; I have not 
heard that Dr. Robertson has an absolute theory; I cannot say how often within the meaning of rule 2 
of the special rules I inspected the underground workings ; I know the part of that rule which 
you have read relating to plans, the plans are regularly plotted every three months ; the last plotting 
was done by Mr. \Varburton ; I said yesterday that I never knew of the existence of any gas in Kembla; 
I am speaking of fire-clamp; I have seen some black-damp there; I saw some there a week ago last 
Stturday; bJore time disaster I remember seeing black-damp in Kembla ; that was four or -five months 
before the disaster ; there was a little of it in the fourth right ; I discovered it by the way the flare-lamp 
was burning ; it was in the fourth right pillars just at the edge of the waste; it did not put my light 
out; Nelson was with me, 1 believe, when I found it; I put canvasses across the road to turn, the air into 
it; I believe Nelson put the canvas up himself; having put up the canvas, I went on to another part of 
the mine I did not wait there till the canvas was put up, but it was put up, I know, for I saw it after-
wards;- I did not report the discovery of that black-damp in any book; Nelson might hate reported it in 
a book—I do not know; I did discover black-damp before that; I did not report it; that was six or seven 
years ago ; that was in No. 4 left, off the main tunnel, going to the shaft; from that time up till four or 
five months ago I did not find or know of any gas in the mine; those are the only two occasions I have 
known of gas to be in Kembla; I was in Court when David Evans gave his evidence; I did not hear him 
say that "he had often discovered gas, and had reported it to Mr. Rogers" ; I never remember Evans 
reporting gas to me ; I will not swear he did not report it to me ; it would be in a r?port book if he did—
in the deputy's report book; I do not remember gas being reported while I was uuder-manager; I 
cannot say as manager whether gas has been reported or not; everything dangerous 1 told them to 
report it and let me know; if gas were in the mine I would regard it as a matter of serious importance 
during the time I have been under-manager and the time 1 have been manager it has been my honest 
belief that there was no gas in the mine; I knew that gas was found in the mine years ago ; I knew that 
there was no gas there during the last ten years, because the deputies would have reported it if there had 
been, and I would have heard about it; I heard Morrison say that a week before the disaster he discovered 
black-damp and did not report; in my opinion, if the fireman thought black-damp, which he discovered, 
was dangerous, he should have reported it, and not otherwise; I do not say that Morrison was the sole 
judge ; I was at Kembla, while Mr. Ronaldson was manager, the whole time ; I was under-manager; 
when he left I became manager; I always thought that Mr. Ronaldson was a competent manager; I do 
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not know what evidence Mr. Ronaidson gave at the Royal Commission; I do not know of my own 
knowledge that there is fire-damp in Kembla mine; I will not admit that "in all sections in Kembla 
mine fire-damp was given off rarely"; I never heard of the Royal Commission in 1895 ; I never 
knew that my own manager, Mr. Ronaidson, attended that Commission and gave evidence ; I 
was manager before the Coal Mines Regulations Act, 1896, was passed I have no recollection of 
two men having been burnt in Kenibla mine from gas while Ronaldson was manager—I never 
heard of it ; I know William Green, who, I believe, was once manager of Kembla ; he was not 
manager in my time I do not know that I have ever read the report of the Bulli Disaster Royal 
Commission ; I was not in the Colony at that time 1 do not know whether we are working the 
Bulli seam ; I have heard that we are ; the words, "lii the main or Bulli seam," are on the plan of our 
colliery, but I do not know that we are working that seam, except from what 1 have heard , I do not 
know anything at all about Mr. Green's statement, that there was gas in Kembla when he was manager 
I was not in the Colony at that time I will swear that there has been no gas in Kembla to my knowledge 
during the last fire years, that is since we put in the air-shaft I go by the firemen's reports , I do not 
know anything about the composition of the Bulli seam so far as its gaseous nature is concerned I have 
never made any study of the gaseous propertes of that coal; 1 have no idea how long it wculd take for, 
say, 100 cubic fect, of gas to accumulate in the Bulli seam ; that is in the Kembla mine ; 1 cannot say 
whether, in eight hours, 1,000 cubic feet of gas could accumulate ; I am not prepared to dispute the 
statement male by Mr. Roaan, that 13,500 cubic feet of inflammable gas accumulated in the same scant 
that we ate w ericitig in eight hours undcr certain conditions in a mine (not Mount Kembla) in this 
district ; in view- of that statement I eotfsicler that I did my duty in trusting to the reports of Morrison 
I know that samples of the coal-dust at Kembla were taken for Mr. Atkinson the Chief Inspector to have 
analysed twelve months ago ; we collected the samples for Mr Atkinson ; the samples were supplied to 
find out tho gases in the coal; I did not make any inquiry as to the result of that analysis ; 1 hail no 
interest in know irig the result of the analysis ; I mean that I took no interest in knowing the result i I 
would like to have known the result of the analysis I believe a report of the result of the analysis was 
sent to inc ; I do not remember what the result was with regard to the samples sent from 1\Iount Kembla; 
I have not known the air-current in Kembla mine to be reversed by atmospheric condit.iolls ; the reversal 
of the aircurrent in Kembla depends upon the furnace heat ; two men put coal on the furnace fire to 
keep the heat up ; the deputies attend to that too ; the underground manager also looks after it I go 
and see it myself occasionally ; when I go into that district I never pass it I have given permission to 
some of the men to go into the mine, into No. 1 section, and remove some of their tools, on and off since 
the disaster; I have given them permission to go in two or three at a time ; the deputies have gone in 
with the men ; either David Evans, or Morrison and Ballantine ; it is only the tools that have been 
removed I (lid not think that the order of the Court included tools; I am not sure of the number of 
danger-boards that were in the mine on the day of the disaster there used to he two or three dozen ; I 
do not know how many are there tow it is two or three years since we had any danger-boards painted and 
i lien we had half a dozen (lone perhaps.; the danger-hoards were kept some outside and some inside; I do not 
know roug m hly how many were kept inside ; soe would be kept in the cabin and others lying about in places 
where the deputies would know where to get them ; if a deputy thought a place dangerous lie would go and 
get a danger-board and put it up ; he would have to walk to where he had left a board ; he would do that in 
his time of inspection ; he had plenty of time to do that during his examination ; it would take him, perhaps, 
five minutes to go and get a board and put it up ; the firemen had danger-boards lying ready all over the 
mine ; I have seen them lying about myself ;  1 saw clangerboards lying about the fourth left about two 
months ago; 1 cannot say I saw a dozen , the boards were just  lying idle, not marking off danger places 
11 do not remember seeing any boards lying between the fourth and fifth right ; if a deputy found a place 
dangerous, he would withdraw the nien'froin there, and put a board up after ; if a deputy found anything 
wrong with the roof of the travelling road lie would fence it off; the practice was not to indicate danger 
on the nr arest thing available ; during the whoje of my experience 1 have never known any indication of 
danger to be give]i by any chalk-marks ; several books were destroyed in the explosion ; I cannot give 
you a rough list of the books that were destroyed ; some of them cannot he found ; I remember Broadhead 
speaking to me about his working place being hard ; lie spoke to me several times ; I cannot say when he 
last spolce to me I cannot remember any occasion this year when Broadhead spoke to me about his 
working place ; lie might have ; about three or four months ago I spoke to Broadhead about sending money 
down to Sydney to his wife, and lie said that lie was not sending her very much, because the place was 
hard ; he said that if I would shift him into a place where lie could get the coal easier and earn more 
money, he would send more money to his wife; I never shifted him ; he might have been shifted without 
my knowledge; I think it was about that time that he was working in a place going down the hill, and he 
was shifted to suit our own purposes, not for his convenience ; Broadhead was shifted on our motion 
1 knew before the disaster that coal-dust lying about the reads and sides and roof was dangerous; I agree 
with what you read from Ilughes on coal- mining, page 396, beginning with the words "The importance 
of adopting," down to the words "exceed 2 per cent," ; the effectual means which we adoptedl at Kembla 
for dealing with dust was watering it and clearing it away where there was any ; the appliances which we 
had were water-tanks ; we filled water in skips as well as tanks sometimes ; I think we had eight tanks 
in the mine before the disaster ; I think there were four in the shalt district, and four in No. I section 
there were three for No. 1 section and three for the shaft section ; the biggest tank would hold about 
200 gallons, and the next biggest would hold 120 gallons, I think ; no body was employed actually for 
watering the dust ; the real reason for having the tammlcs there was to bale the water out and to water the 
roads; the tanks were made for both purposes; most of the places the roof does not need to be watered; 
I have not seen a place in Keinbla where the roof or sides needed watering ; we only watered the floor 
we never watered the sides or roof, because there was no need for it ; the water would not, as a rule, run 
in a straight iine when the plug was pulled out; ihebaler could regulate time way the water would run by 
shifting the plugin a certain way; I do not know the names of the men who watered the road, because 
they were employed by the contractor ; one of the men is named O'Donovan; the watering of the mine is 
not left to time contractor who - hauls the coal ; the men who do the watering are employed by the 
contrator, and paid by him ; the watering is done by any mann the contractor likes to send ; time company 
has control over the man O'Donovan I have mentioned, and can discharge him; the contract includes the 
haulage of coal, the water-baling, and the repairing of time mine as well; there is not a word in that 
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contrao-t about watering the roads to keep the dust down; the contractor gets an allowance for watering 
the roads ; he has to do that work under the same contract; there is no special charge for watering  the 
roads; I have given orders to the contractor to water some parts of the mine, but not in No. 1, to my 
knowledge. 

Crosr-ea'amined bq Air. Bruce Smif7s I have had about forty-five years' experience in mining; I 
think the disaster happened in the 35-acre goaf; I mean by the word 'blast," which I used yesterday, a 
blast of wind or air; I think a blast of air alone would kill men; I suppose some of the men in this 
disaster—those who died peacefully—died from after-damp ;  I cannot come to any other conclusion; I 
know that after-damp follows on fire; I think there has been an explo nn of some kind; the water 
trickles out of the skip that has the coal in sometimes when the men put water into the skip; you cannot 
help having some coal-dust about the place. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollorigong, WM. ROGERS. 
this 2nd day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CHAS. C RUSSELL, Coroner. 

The jury respectfully decline to bring in a verdict on the evidence before them.—JAMES KIRBY, 
Foreman. Court-house, Wollongong, 2nd September, 1902 

Inquest adjourned for further evidence till the 3rd day of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock am., at 
the Court-house, Wollongong.—CHAs. C. IRUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 2nd September, 
1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 3rd day 
of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—CHAs. C RUSSELL, Coroner 

Cross-exannned by .2iTr Wade .—TVillianz Roqere, recalled, states I have actually worked as a 
coal-miner; I worked getting coal as a coal-miner for about fifteen years; that was in North Wales; 
sometimes I worked with naked lights, and sometimes with safety-lamps I have had a good experience of 
working with safety_lamps ; there was fire-damp in the mines I was working in in North Wales ; it is 
about thirty-five years since I first began to work as a miner it is about thirty years since I first came 
across fire-damp; I left the Old Country about fifteen years ago ; I have occupied the position of under. 
ground manager; five years I was underground manager in Scotland, and for about ten years I was 
underground manager in North Wales; for about seven years where I was underground manager in 
North Wales we worked with safety-lamps; there are government inspectors of coal-mines in England 
and Scotland, as there are here, they used to come round and see the way I worked the mine; I got a 
second-class certificate while I was in Scotland, that was the under-manager's certificate; that was gained 
by service in accordance with the Coal Mines Regulation Act; when I came out here first I was at Greta 
Colliery, I was there about nineteen months as underground manager; Mr. Daniel Robertson, who is 
now the manager of llelensburgh, was then the manager of Greta ; he was also manager in Scotland and 
Wales, where I was; I came out here through communication with Mr. Robertson, and I went into his 
employment direct, as soon as I came out; when I was at Greta, the Government inspectors who used to 
visit there were Mr. Dickson and Mr. Bates; since I have been at Mount Kembla, the inspectors have 
been Mr. Rowan and Humble, and Mr. Bates and Mr. Atkinson; I have been round the mine with the 
Government inspectors frequently; when I was underground manager I always went; I have also been round 
with them when I have been manager; the underground manager always goes with the inspectors; the 
Government inspectors come frequently, somewhere about once a month; no one of the inspectors has at 
any time found fault with me as to the way the mine was managed; they might make suggestions, but they 
made no complaints; the Government inspectors examine the report-books when they come; they put their 
initials in the books; I look at the entry in the book [Exhibit G] on the 17th July, 1902 ; Mr. Bates' 
initials are on that page; the inspectors used to examine a number of pages; the book was always available 
for the inspectors; I do not know how much of the books they might look through and initial; the inspectors 
would take three days to do the whole of the mine; they could not do the whole of it in one day; they 
would not finish off the whole three days one after the other; they would come at intervals; I had no 
warning from the inspectors when they were coming; they used to come suddenly ; I consider myself a good 
practical man in coal-mining I know special rule 2 as to the employment of efficient officers ; Mr. Leech 
was my underground manager in the early part of this year; I appointed him ; he was at Kembla for 
about two years, and left there somewhere about last May; he was, as far as I know, a competent man 
for the position; he held a first-class certificate; Nelson took Leech's place as underground manager; 
Nelson had been with me at Kembla for about nine or ten years; first of all, lie was shiftniau, then 
fireman and deputy ; lie held the position of deputy for about six years; Nelson was a competent and 
efficient officer; he was selected by me as underground manager; so far as I know-, he carried out his 
duties properly; I have known John Morrison for over thirteen years; lie is a competent man ; I have 
known Dungey since 1 have been at Kembla, thirteen years; Duugey was a compecnt man, I look at 
the two books [marked Exhibit M] ; one is written by Dungey, and the other by Evans ; they were kept 
under my instructions; there is no rule or Act of Parliament that compels us to keep those books; I am 
not compelled to keep my own diary [Exhibit ] ; that is a private diary ; the tokens that the men get in 
time morning are not the same as those on the skips ; we were very anxious, and so were the inspectors, to find 
out when the men would be all out of the mine in the afternoon ; I suggested that when the man vent in in 
the morning the deputy should give him a token with a number on it, the same as that on his skips, and that 
suggestion was adopted; the front shiftmnan would give the token to the back shiftnian, a,d then the 
back shiftinan would bring it out with him and hang it up on the nail when he came out in the evening 
the day deputy would go to the board where the tokens were hanging about 5 or half-past, and if a token 
were missing he would go into that particular number the underground manager's duties were as 
follows—first thing in the morning he would see the night and day deputies, examine the report-books 
and initial them, and keep the duplicate report; most of the day, his duties would take him inside the 
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mine; I know section 3 of the Coal Mines Regulation Act as to the supervision to be exercised by the 
manager; I had duties outside the mine to attend to ; those duties would take me, at times, away from 
Mount Kembla—sometimes to Wollongong and sometimes to Sydney; I know special rule 3 as to the 
under-manager having charge of the mine in the manager's absence; I never went away from the mine 
without letting the underground manager know ; most of the fortnight before the disaster I had been in 
W'ollongong in connection with the arbitration case I missed one or two days, I think, that the 
Arbitration Court was sitting, from attending the Court; I did not see the underground manager or 
deputy every morning before I came in to Wollongong, but I used to telephone to him and ask the state 
of the workings, and tell him that I was going away; if I was not taken away from the mine by busness 
I would be about the mine and the property in the village; when I was at the mine, I would be inside 
it; it would take me three or four days to make a complete inspection; 1 would go into one place one 
day, and another place the next; I would go into pillars, or any place I thought I ought to go most; I 
used to examine the deputies' reports occasionally; sometimes I would put my initials on, and perhaps 
sometimes I would not ; I know special rule 2 as to ventilation ; I got the ventilation from Mr. 
Warburton, the surveyor; I produce the ventilation book [Book put in, and marked Exhibit 0]; I look 
at the July inspection (the 15th July) ; in different sections there was a current varying from 300 to 380 
cubic feet of air for each man, boy, and horse; we have been working pillars at Mount Kembla since I 
have been there, for thirteen years ; I see all the parts on the plan marked "goafs"; pillars have been 
taken out of all those places in working pillars, we take the 'bords up to the distance we want to take 
them, and then we start working back to the pillars; we take the pillar down in slices ; we take out the 
timber to the point where we have spht the pillar; we then go down to another place where we have split 
the pillar, and start taking out a slice ; the roof falls in in the places where we have drawn the pillars 
the first fall is from 18 inches to 2 feet thick ; that breaks up when it falls ; after that there is a second 
fall, which is sometimes very heavy sometimes you cannot get in on top of the fall to see what it is like, 
it fills it up so much ; that is the system that has been adopted ever sinoe I have been in Kembla; there 
has never been an accident like this disaster in my experience at Kembla; I have known that system of 
'working pillars elsewhere, that was in North Wales; I have never been asked by any Government 
Inspector to alter that system ; inspections are also made by the check inspectors who are appointed by 
the miners ; they inspect once in six months, perhaps ; they do not go very regular ; I produce a book 
kept by the check inspectors [Book put in and marked Exhibit P] ; there is a report in it of the 1st 1ay 
last; Mr. Bates suggested once that I should divert the water from No. 5 left down the travelling road 
leading to the shaft inbye, and I did so j  Mr. Rowan, the inspector, mentioned to me once that there was 
too much water on No. 1 right roads, be said that they should not be so muddy; 1 forgot about it, and on 
his next visit be mentioned it to me again; Dr. Robertson also told me about it; Ihave not gone round 
the mine myself with a safety-lamp in recent years; I used in years far back ; since the ventilation shaft 
has been put up we have had very good ventilation, and I never thought it necessary to take the safety-
lamp; when I said yesterday to Mr. Lysaght that " gas was found many years ago" 1 meant that it was 
about ten years ago that 1 saw fire-damp, that was before the present ventilation shaft was put in; I 
examined the Kembla mine on the night of the 31st July; I was up in the face of the workings; I had a 
safety-lamp, it was not a hydrogen lamp, the. brattice was knocked down in some places ; I examined for 
fire-damp in those places where the brattice was down I did not find any ; I was in the roadway of No. 4 
right the night of the disaster about half-past 10 or ii o'clock ; I examined the roadway in No. 4 right 
two days after, I got right up to the fall ; I examined for fire-damp I did not find any; I have examined 
since the same place; I have not found any; it there had been an explosion from gas, I would expect 
that gas to go on making after the explosion, and if the brattice were down I would expect it to increase 
I would be surprised if 13,500 cubic feet of gas accumulated in Kembla in eight hours ; it is about 150 
yards from No. 4 right to the fifth right turn ; from the same starting point right up to No. I main 
heading face is about 430 yards ; it is about 300 or 400 yards from No. 4 riit to the telephone cabin; 

'from the junction near the telephone cabin to the cross-cut heading where Adam Frost said lie was is 500 
or 000 yards ; I heard him say that his light was blown out bY air up there ; I would expect that the 
blast of air which I think came out of No. 4 right to blow out the lights ; I was in the travelling road both 
inbye and outbye of No. 4 right the night of the 31st July ; there was no sign of a man dead or alive in 
that travelling road anywhere near there ; there was no sign of a iCmp or a light lying about ; the 
inspection I made with Nelson on 1st July was in the daytime, the men were all at work then the proper 
remedy when you come across black-danp is to put brattice up so that the air is brought in and it is 
carried away ; the danger boards are kept in different parts of the mine ; they are put where the deputies 
think there is any danger of the roof falling to stop men going in ; I think there were about ninety-three 
or ninety-four men killed in this disaster, a large proportion of them were old hands ; Morrison lost two of 
his family in the explosion and his brother-in-law MeMurray ; the timber in No. 4 right was lying iii all 
directions, it looked as if it hal been blown from No. 4 right into the travelling road. 

Uro,ss-exanii,ie1 by Mr. Brue S1niIh The system of tokens was est abi i-lied about two or three 
months ago ; I received the letters which you have just read to we from Mr. Atkinson, Chief Inspector 
of Mines, dated 14th December, 1001, 15th January, 1002, and 25th February, 1002 ; we have the same 
kind of safety_lamp in the mine now, since the disaster, as t1hey have at llelensburgh and South Clifton 
before that for examining we had the old 1)avey lamp ; there were others in the store which I do not 
know the name of ; they had never been used ; they had been there two or three years ; 1 do not think 
they were bought in consequence of the letter you have just read to inc from Mr. Atkinson, the Chief 
Inspector, in May, 1898, which 1 believe I received ; Dr. Bohertson sent these lamps up unknown to me 
I had a.conversation with Mr. Atkinson about letting the men go into the mine to the face before a report 
was entered in the book I took steps to insist on that being discontinued; I got these report-books, 
which were taken into the mine every night I heard Morrison say that the men sometimes went in while 
McMurray was writing the report, on his saying "All right " ; we first began to have the night reports 
as well as the day a few years ago ; I had a conversation with Mr. Atkinson about having day and night 
reports, and at that time I do riot think we hadthem; before 1S9S we used to blast on the haulage roads; 
I believe my attention was called then to the danger of that practice on account of the dust ; I never wi'ot 
in answer to that that there was no dust in the mine; I do not think that I ever protested to 
Mr. Atkinson verbally that there was no dust on the roads ; I (10 not think I wrote to him to 
that effect either ; we supphie I samples of coal-dust; they were not out of the mine at all ; I had 
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painted on the tin "Sample of dust from the Mount Kembla Colliery"; that was true; that was 
collected from outside the mine at the tip, and was a fair sample of Mount Kembla coal-dust ; I got a 
letter dated 30th April, 1902, with reference to that coal-dust, which you have just read to me ; I received 
an enclosure which showed Mount Kembla dust to be 'violent explosion "; there are four classes—'- 

mild explosion," " explosion," "violent explosion," and "very violent" [copy of letter, copy of 
circular, copy of enclosure re coal-dust, put in and marked Exhibit Q] I heard Morrison say that the 
first fall in the 35-acre goaf was fairly light, about 2 or 2- feet; before the fall the opening to the roof 
would be from 5 to 6 feet; after the first fall there would be perhaps 2 feet cavity in the roof; that would 
be 2 feet higher than the road leading into the waste, and the roads all round (about that) ; if any 
gas accumulated in that waste it would go to the highest point anywhere in that waste ; it is four or 
five years since we began to work out the pillars in that waste ; if gas were to accumulate it would go to 
the cavities in the roof, and if there were a big  fall the gas might be forced out of the sides; since the 
shaft was put in I did not consider that there was any gas at all in the mine; I knew that it was a seam 
that produced gas I relied on there being no gas by reason of the superior ventilation and my not finding 
any gas at any time; I did not suppose that the character of the seam had changed; they would go as far 
into the goaf as they could go with safety ; they could. not go very far ; there could be no examination of the 
cavities in the middle of the goaf; there must have been cavities in that 35-acre waste on the day of the 
disaster; if gas were produced in the mine, and it found its way into the cavities in the 35-acre goaf, it could 
remain there in spite of the ventilation in the mine, which could not get at it; we always thought that it 
would fill itself up; in view of the possibility of there being gas in that 35-acre waste and its being forced 
out, I did not see the danger of using naked lights in the mine, as we had found no gas; I do not read the 
reports on different explosions which have taken place in England I do not read much of anything that 
happens at other mines I have seen explosions of coal-dust when I was 10 years o f age ; I saw a flame 
cause them; we had not that much coal-dust at Kembla that I thought it was dangerous; I never tried 
to find out how much coal-dust was dangerous, but I found out how much coal-dust there was in the 
mine; I knew that there had been instances where coal-dust had exploded without any gas at all ; I have 
heard of it; I have heard of flour-dust explosions in a flour-null ; I have heard that it is possible with 
only 112  per cent, of gas for an explosion to take place with a laipp-{iame I never expected such a thing 
would happen at Kembla; 1- per cent, of gas  is less than can be detcted with a safety-lamp; I am not 
sure of the percentage of gas; 1 have not read the passage which you have just read from " Abel on 
Accidents in Mines," page 53, beginning with the words "some varieties," and ending " iii suspension" 
I have not heard of Abel as an authority ; I have not i'eail the passage on page 52, beginning with the 
words, " It has been pointed out," down to the woids "2 per cent, of fire-damp," which you have just 
read ; but I do not dissent from it; there is no dust on the roof or sides, but there is a little on the floor 
there was very little dust on the roof and sides before the disaster, but there is much more now ; we have 
no apparatus at all for watering the roof, soles, and timbers, and we never have watered them; we have 
not fired shots in the roads for a considerable time; the nine or ten months, to the best of my memory, 
we have never watered in the immediate neighhourhooi of a shot ; we have no apparatus for doing that, 
and it has never been done; if all the dust were gathered up on the reads, I supp'se there would be a 
few ounces to every foot of the road I think that is as much its there would be; I do not think there is 
any except on the floor ; there may,  be a wry, very little on the roof and sides; I do not know what 
quantity of dust would be considered dangerous ; our mine is considered to be a damp mine ; the sides 
and the roof are damp ; I am not aware that 6 ounces of dust per foot of our roadway would 
be dangerous; I am not aware that 1 lb. of dust to 100 cubic feet is dangerous ; our road is 12 feet 
wide by 512  or 6 feet; I have heard Morrison say that No. 4 left was more duaty than any other part 
of the mine; Morrison inspected up to the fence at the very end of No. 1 right; no one would 
examine the two faces right up to the end of No. 1 right on the nIorninz of the 31st July; the fence 
is about 30 or 40 yards from the extreme face ; that 30 or 40 yards would not be inspected on 
the morning of the 31st July by anyone ; I do not say that that part of the mine is the highest in 
the mine; from No. 5 right up to the second cut-through would be a rise of about 1 in 25 ; the very 
end of No. iright would be 30 or 35 feet higher than the point at No. 5 right I believe that 
the highest point in the mine is bord 105 I think G-ill's ganuon bord is higher than the other two, that 
is, the face of it; those three places are the highost points in the mine, but I am not sure which is the 
highest; there was no reason for not inspecting the 30 or 40 yards beyond the fence at the top of No, 1 
right, except that there were no men working there; there were no shots fired on the main haulage read 
No. 1 right on the 31st July; I have not heard of any shots having been fired in that district on that 
day; I have not been able to connect the disaster with the firing of any shot so far as I know, there was 
no other source of ignition in that district on the 31st July, except naked lights ; I saw what appeared to 
me to be a blown out shot to the left of No. 1 right down the second left; I do not think that had 
anything to do with the disaster; I cannot mention any other cause for the explosion, except gas and 
coal-dust, or gas or coal-dust; I know that gas would cause such an explosion, or that dust would. 

To Mr. Lysaqlil: The book [Exhibit O] is the only book I have for recording the ventilation in 
I do not know whether there is any other book regai'ding ventilat ion ; I believe there was another book 
kept before that; when the Coal Mines Regulation Act was passed we got the book [Exhibit 0]; the 
ventilation may have been recorded sometimes on sheets of paper; I do not know where the reports are 
from 12th October, 1896, to 8th August, 1S99; those reports (10 n(t appear in the book [Exhibit 0]; I 
see an entry on 1st January, 1901 ; after that I see that there is a whole sheet left blank ; I cannot tell 
you why it was left blank, I cannot'tell you why there is no report for February at all; I looked at the
ventilation book every time after the ventilation was taken, 

To Mr Wade: I do riot believe that I answered the letters that Mr. Bruce Smith referred to this 
morning ; during the time that I received those letters from Mr Atkinson, the District Inspectors would 
visit the mine (Mr. Row-an and Mr. Bates), and I mentioned the matters referred to in the letters to 
them; I used to tell them that I had got the letters from Mr. Atkinson, and they used to ask me what I 
proposed to do, and I would tell them, and they would say: "Well, if you do that, I will be only too 
pleased to mention it to Mr. Atkinson"; I therefore took it for granted that as they said they would do 
that that I had no need to write; it was not done out of any disrespect; inflammable gas had not been 
found in Kembla for twelve months previous to 1898; I know general rule 4 respecting the inspection 
with loch-ed safety-lamps; the seam of the coal where the 35-acre goaf is now used to rise to the east; I 
know the patch of 2 chains that was finished about a fortnight before the disaster; the roof of that waste 
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all round that had faflen, and there would be cavities much higher up than the roof of the place where 
they were working; any gas that had accumulated would go to higher parts of the mine; it would take 
about a month or six weeks to work the area of 2 chains; the nearest point of the pillar in the area of 
2 chains was 20 or 30 yards from the travelling road; the stratum above the coal is sandstone; the 
upper part of the coal is called spar, that is-the upper layer between the coal and the andstorie; it is 
more coal than sandstone ; the first fall consists sometimes of blacks and sometimes of sandstone; blacks 
are the same as spar; there were foully places in the seam ten or twelve years ago, before we got the 
ventilation shaft ; we were then working in the pillars to the west of the lorigwall face; the fence at the 
top of No. 1 right was put there because there was no one working up there; the brattieing was up to 
the face of that place ; I saw it there myself some weeks before the disaster ; the air would go from 
where Morris was working up into the cut-through, and to the place where Purcell was working; No. 1 
heading had been standing for six or eight months, because it was far enough for the cut-throughs from 
Gill's gannon bord and Stafford's gannori bord to go into it. 

To the Coroner: I do not keep any record of the times that various things in the mine take to do; 
I cannot tell you when the pillars in the 35-acre goaf were taken out, but I could tell you from the 
measurement book and pay sheets; it depends what the wolicinea have been accustomed to whether they 
prefer to use safety-lamps or flare-lamps I have seen men who were accustomed to using safety-lamps say 
that they preferred safetylamps to flare-lamps; I think the men at Kembla would prefer flare-lamps, because 
they are accustomed to them ; it depends on what sort of lights they have as to which gives the better 
light; I do not think the employers care whili kind of lamps the men use;1here is a difference in the 
cost of a safety-lamp and a flare-lamp : a safety-limp would cost about lOs., and a flare-lamp is. ; I 
suppose if safety-lamps were used the expense would fall on the Company; the Company supplied the 
dozen or eighteen safety-lamps which we had before the disaster; they had not been used ; they were 
sent up by Dr. Robertson, and I was surprised to see them, because we did not require them; I could 
not say whether fire-damp comes from blacks; I would not like to say that there is no fire-damp in blacks 
I have never inquired whether blacks distil gas I have never been varned by any person in authority over 
me to look out for blacks or gas after a fall; sometimes as soon as the props are taken out the roof falls; 
sometimes it takes a week or ten days ; the second fall comes about a week after the first; if there was any 
gas in the goaf it would be more dangerous at the second fall than at the first; I do not know that there was 
a fall on the day of the disaster; I took steps to examine between the first fall of the roof in the goaf and 
the second fall whether there was any gas ; the steps were that Morrison went and examined; I do not know 
how far Morrison went into the waste to look ; Morrison took those steps as part of his duty, just to see how 
the place was, not under directions from me the check inspectors come when they like ; they are welcome 
whenever they come; I have seen them at the seine time with a safety-lamp and a flare-lamp going into the 
mine; I did not think it advisable to go in too far in No 4 right on the night of the 3 1st, because I felt 
a kind of a heat ; that was just at the mouth of the 35-acre goaf; I did not notice anything wrong with 
my lamp just there; the entrance to the mine is not protected in any way to keep people out; when Dr. 
Robertson spoke to me about the state of the roads (that they were muddy) he told me that Mr. Rowan, 
the inspector, had spoken to him about them. 

Made and sworn at the Court-house, Wollongong, WM. ROGERS. 
this 3rd day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CHAS. C. RLJssILL, Coroner. 

William Ewart Jones, sworn, states: I reside at Cross Roads, Wollongong: I am the Mining 
Surveyor for the Mount Keira Colliery; on the 31st July last I went to tlic Mount Kembla Colliery; I 
arrived there between 4 and 5 in the afternoon ; I went into the mine wish Mr. Warburton, the surveyor 
at the Mount Kembla Mine; we took a stretcher; we went into the travelling road to what they call No. 1 
right; we found the body of Mr. Nelson in the travelling road, opposite the 2-acre goaf; we put the 
body in a stretcher and took it out to the engine-shed. 

To Mr. Bruce Sen/h : The face of the body had a very composed look, and I saw no signs of 
burni I) g. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, W. E. JONES. 
on this 3rd day of September, 1902, before me,— 

CnAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned for further evidence till the 4th day of September, 1902, at the Court-house, 
Wollongong, at 10 o'clock a.m.—Cnis. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 3rd September, 
1902. 

Inquest resumnea, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 4th day of 
September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—Ciu.s. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

William Roqers, recalled, states (to the Coroner): The pillars at the mouth of the 35-acre goaf in 
No. 4 right were finished on the 20th July last, and on that date the men were withdrawn; I cannot say 
on what date the first fall took place; I did not hear of any rumbling of the earth previous to the fall, 
nor d'd I hear it; Dr. Robertson is my viewer; he is immediately over me; there is no fleuss apparatus 
at the mine; there was no difficulty to my knowledge on the day of the disaster of rescuers getting lamps; 
I heard of no delay being caused to anyone who wished to be a rescuer; I believe there was fleuss 
apparatus brought down by Mr. Atkinson, the Chief Inspector of Mines; I believe it was brought; I do 
not know whether any person attethpted to use it. 

To Mr. Bruce Smith: I can act at all times for the safety of the mine without consulting Dr. 
Robertson; I always consult Dr. Robertson before I purchase anything required at the mine; he makes 
suggestions to me as a viewer. 
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To Mr. Wade: I have always found Dr. Robertson perfectly willing to help me in anything for the, 
safety of the mine; on the day of the disaster a number of safety-lamps arrived at the mine from South 
Eulli; other people brought lamps there too, and there were a number of lamps there that evening; I 
saw that men of experience only were allowed into the mine—men we thought were capable men; at the 
time of the disaster I was in Wollongong, and it was at a part of the day when all the men would be in 
the mine. 

To J&. Lysaghi/: To the best of my memory the men withdrawn from the pillars on the 20th July 
were Henry Philby, Heffernan, Thomas Muir, and Michael Quinn; I believe Heffernan and Philby were 
the last two who were there ; all those men are alive; I cannot say of my own knowledge whether Dr. 
Robertson has personally inspected Mount Kembla Mine for gas, or not. 

To the Coroner: The viewer is my superior officer. 
To Mr. Lysaqht: I do not know who is the agent for the Mount Kembla Colliery; I believe there is an 

agent; I have never heard who the agent is; I have never inquired; if I wanted to know whether I could 
incur certain expenditure I would communicate first of all with Dr. Robertson, and then to the Directors; 
I do not know that any section of the Coal Mines Regulation Act defines what an agent is; Dr. Robertson 
is not my only superior officer at the mine; there are the Directors ;Dr. Robertson has attended at the 
mine on an average about once a month for the last five years; I say about that; sometimes he would go 
into the mine, not always; he would go into the mine perhaps once every six months; before the disaster 
I cannot say when it was that Dr. Robertson was last in the mine ; I think he was in No. 1 section once 
this year; I cannot tell you when that was ; Dr. Robertson has never given me directions to water the 
roads because they were dusty ; Dr. Robertson has never pointed out to me any danger from the dusty 
conditions of the mine; he has never referred to it in any way ; I never told Dr. Robertson of the result 
of the experiments with the sample of coal-dust; I do not remember having any conversation with Dr. 
Robertson after I knew the result. 

To a Juror Dr. Robertson is, I believe, Managing Director of the Company. 
To .2Wr Bruce Semi/li: I remember Mr. Lysaght pointing out certain omissions to me yesterday in 

the ventilation book [Exhibit 0]; those omissions are supplied in the book I now produce [Ventilation 
Book put in and marked Exhibit R] the reason that the omissions appear in the first book is that there 
was no room in it for certain particulars that were required, and I gave instructions that they were to ba 
supplied on certain forms, and then the old book [Eihibit 0] to be returned to ; the two books together 
make a complete record. 

To Jii-. Lysaght : I saw Mr. Warburton this morning; he did not furnish that explanation to me 
I thought of it myself. 

To the Goroner: Sometimes there are boys employed in a certain part of the mine who are at. 
other times employed in other parts of the mine. 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WM. ROGERS. 

on this 4th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 
CHAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Jonathan May, sworn, states. I reside at Wollongong; I am a mining engineer; at present my 
position is lecturer on mining and geology under the Education Department at Wollongong; on the 31st 
July last I went to the Mount Kembla Colliery; I got there about a quarter to four in the afternoon ; I 
went into the mine directly I got there (within five minutes) ; I went into the shaft section by the 
travelling road; Mr. Ritchie and several miners were with me ; we went to the intersection of the o 6 
right rope road, where there was a kerosene lamp burning; I have marked the place X 1 on the plan 
when passing the No. 1 right we found the air rather bad, but at the place where I have marked the air 
was passable—that is, passable after an explosion ; the roof of the travelling road towards the shaft was 
broken down in some places, and the timber was down (the props and cross trees) ; I saw nothing else 
particular—nothing which I would call extraordinary, just the usual conditions; where I have marked 
there were some fifteen men collected ; senior-sergeant Banks and several men were there, and they were 
putting the bodies in trucks to have them sent out of the mine; we passed that mark (X L) a distance of 
thirty or forty yards down No. 6 right, and there we met Adam Frost and Mat Frost and the deputy,-
Evans; while Mr. Ritchie was speaking to some of the miners I spoke to Adam Frost, junior, and The 
deputy to just give me an outline of the position; they told me something; having found that the after-
damp was too strong down the No. 6 right rope road, and realising that by going down that road we 
would very soon he facing the return air, I at once saw the force of their suggestion that we should 
go out of the mine over the mountain and in at the daylight tunnel, because the ventilation was very 
much better that way, and we could go in with the air; we went out of the mine and met Mr. MacCabe 
coming in; I told Mr. NacCabe that I had left Evans at the point marked on the plan, and had suggested 
to Evans not to allow any men to go down No. 13 right rope road, and to supervise getting the bodies 
out; we had some bodies with us in skips then and brought them out in the skips till we came to a fall, 
and then we went into the travelling road, carrying the bodies, and right out of the mine ; the following 
day I went to the mine, but I did not go in; I offered my services to Dr. Robertson, but I did not go in 

on the 9th of August I made an inspection of the mine with Mr. Ritchie, Mr. Bigger, Mr. Maguire, Mr. 
Morgan; we went in to inspect No. 1 right section ; we went in by the travelling road and followed that 
road to where I think there is a jigwheel I have drawn the course we toole on the plan; from there we 
went to the point which I have marked on the plan N 2; we had a look at that small goaf there; we did 
not find any fire-damp at that point ; I had no plan with me, and I realised it was no use inspecting with-
out one; after that we went down to the 15-acre goaf; we just examined the edge of that goaf; we 
found no gas; I would not call it a thorough examination; from that goaf we returned to the point 
marked N 2 on the plan; a man and his son had just started it pillar; I found a skip upset there ; it was 
just tipped over to one side, and was merely an evidence of force; from the point marked N 2 we went 
to the back heading at the top of No. i main level rope road; I think there was another heading up there: 
besides that shown on the plan; I may be wron go,  ; we found firedamp there; it was a very minute trace—
about one quarter per cent. ; I had a hydrogen lamp; from that point I think we had terminated our 
inspection, if it can be called an inspection; coming outbye we examined one of the goafs, I think the 
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$5-acre one, on the side next to No. 1 travelling road; it was one of the three goafs to the left of No. I 
right coming out ; we found some gas there; I do not know what sort of gas it was ; that was in the 
goaf; we went right up to the edge ; our lights were very nearly being extinguished by the gas, and we 
withdrew-; we walked straight along the travelling road to the surface; I regarded any examination with-
out a plan as very inefficient ; the condition of the travelling road was not so bad as that of the main 
haulage road; the main haulage road was very much broken up with falls ; we wit over the falls going 
in ; I arrived at the conclusion from my examination of the mine that the disaster had been caused by an 
explosion of fire-damp I thought from my examination that the conditions were such as to point to an 
explosion I would not attempt to fix any particular spot where it was likely to have eriginated ; all the 
conditions were at three or four places; for instance, the four goafs, more particularly the 35 and 15-acre 
goafs; another place where the conditions were was at the spot marked on the plan X 3 ; the conditions 
at that point were that bords were of extreme length without a cut-through I should say they were 
about a hundred yards in length ; conditions like that would be liable to lead to an explosion, for the 
following reasons: tlwt in the event of you cutting a blower at the face, a very small quantity of 
additional gas would lead to an explosion, because there could be 2 per cent. of fire-damp there, and 
that could not be detected by the method of examination; 1 per cent. of gas would be dangerous under 
those conditions, with a blown-out shot, considering that the bords were driven that distance without a 
cut-through; the ventilation of the mine would be very liable to fluctuations; its liability to fluctuation 
would be from the following reason: that having a furnace in the mountain at or about midday, from 
12 to 2 o'clock, the sun would be shining on the mouth of the tunnel (the adit) and on very warm days the 
quantity of air circulating would perhaps vary by thousands of feet; this particular condition is a very 
serious one; the conditions were serious at the 35-acre and 1 5-acre goafs. 

Cross-examined by J1Ii. Bruce Smi/h : I am an Englishman and have been out here for about 
fifteen years, principally in this colony; I have had about forty years of practical experience in mines; I 
have worked in a mine ; I have worked in a mine in Durham, England; I have worked in every 
official capacity in the mine I have worked in a mine as a miner, and got coal I worked as a miner 
for about three years; 1 was 17 years of age when I began; after being a miner three years I 
became a deputy or foreman; that was at the South Durham Eldon Colliery ; I was a deputy for 
abbut four years; then I became overman and surveyor and under-manager; I was overman simply 
for about four years; after the four years I did the surveys of the colliery and kept the plans of 
the colliery; I did that for about six years, and then caine out here; I began to work in a mine 
at the age of 10 years; from 17 to 20 I was getting coal, besides that I was apprenticed as a 
mining engineer; before I came out here I occupied the position of under-manager at the Woodland 
Colliery, Durham; when I came out here I was engaged as surveyor at the Brunner Mine, New 
Zealand ; I was there for six or seven months; after that I caine to the neighbourhood of Broken Hill 
I was sinking it shaft there as a miner; I had to dye months there at actual practical mining; I was 
working at the Eurieowrie Tin-mines; after that I took charge of the Mittagong Coal-mine, as manager; I 
occupied that position for about three years, when the mine was abandoned ; that brings me up to about 
ten years ago; no one took the position at the Mittago:ig Mine after I left—we abandoned it; I then went 
over to manage a mine in Victoria for the seine company ; I remained there for about seven months, and 
then 1 opened up a mine at Dapto ; then I became lecturer, and have been lecturer ever since ; with all 
that practical and theoretical experience that is the best explanation of the disaster I can give after two 
incomplete inspections; the first and most important thing to find out when there is a disaster is how the 
air travelled before the disaster; that is the first thing to ascertain where the disaster took place ; the 
direction of the air is frequently shown omi the map by arrows I look at the facre goaf on the plan 
from the south-east corner of that goaf the air goes south about 100 yards, west about 20 yards, 
north about 120 yards on to the edge of the goaf; from the edge of that goaf the air is taken to the 
face, and to the face of winning headings too, and you do not usually take air off the edge of a goaf 
on to naked lights; it is not good mining practice; that is just an illustration of what I mean 
that is one of the dangerous conditions; that docs not enable me to say where the disaster took place 
that does not enable one to determine what was the cause of the disaster ; it does not enable one to 
determine either what caused the disaster or where it took place ; driving the bords such a great distance 
with brattice all bears on ventilation ; after looking at the ventilation I would go and examine the 
condition of the goafs; I would want to know where every door in the pit was; I would want to know if 
there were any single doors in the current of air; I would want to know the usual condition of all the 
canvas doors before the accident; in addition I would require to know the conditions of the stoppings 
as they existed before the accident; I would want to know whether the stoppings were built of 
small coal ; then 1 would want the quantity of air in each split ; I would require the quantity of air 
not entering, but the quantity of air that was leaving the last man in that split ; all that is to find out the 
condition of the air before the explosion; I would want to know all about the condition of doors, single 
doors, ventilation, brattice, stoppings, brattice stoppings, and brick stoppings, and air-crossings ; I 
understand the plan of a mine ; if it is correctly recorded it will show all the things I have mentioned ; I 
should ascerlain what were the instructions to the deputy, and at what time he examined each place 
before the disaster; if the deputy did not examine within an hour before the men coming to work I 
should consider the examination useless; assuming the plan to be correct all the things I have mentioned 
are shown on it except the instructions to the deputy and the time he examined the places; I would also 
want to know whether there had been any sudden rise in the temperature outside the mine; I have only 
so far given what I would require as regards ventilation; if I were appointed a Royal Commission I would 
require to know every man's name who was in the mine where be was working, where he was found, and 
whether he was burnt or not, which of the men got out of the mine, and by what way they got 
out of the mine; I would call all the officials of the mine; I should require every w-orkinan who 
escaped, between No. 1 heading and No. 6 right ; I should require the assistance of a practical miner 
and a manager to help me with the Commission; unless all these conditions were complied with 
I would not be able to arrive at a conclusion which would be of any value; I have formed a conclusion 
as to the cause of this disaster; I have not formed a conclusion as to where it took place ; in 
forming my conclusion I have not obtained the whole of the data I have mentioned; I formed my con-
clusion after I had been in the mine; I saw a plan at the mine; apart from the map I do not know how. 
the ventilation goes in the mine ; the cause, in my opinion, of the disaster was an explosion of fire-damp; 
I found fire-damp at the top of No. 1 right at the back heading ; that is the only place I found fire-damp; 
Ifound it once in two visits; I have formed the conclusion that the disaster occurred between No. 1 
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right and No. G shaft heading; I think the disaster did not occur on any part of the map where I have 
marked red crosses; a blown-out shot with 1 per cent. of gas could produce an explosion; if I heard that 
there had been no blown-out shot on the day of the disaster I would say that it was not caused by a 
blown-out shot; the fire-damp which I think caused the disaster could be ignited with a naked light; a 
fall of very hard stone has been suspected of lighting gas before to-day ; it would not ignite dust alone; 
it would require 5 to13 per cent. of gas to produce the explosion; [will give you half a dozen authorities 
to show that a fall of very hard stone has been suspected of igniting gas, without the intervention of any 
light ; I do not at present commit myself to that view; Buddle is my authority; I will bring you the 
book " Budle" to-morrow ; I know Hughes on coal-mining; the difference between fire-damp and black-
damp is that fire-damp extinguishes your light and black-damp puts it out; with fire-damp you lose your 
light, with black-damp it goes out; in one case you have not a light ; I can tell the direction in which 
the skip I have mentioned was blown ; the skip was blown in the direction of the arrow marked on the 
plan ; I observed the direction in which things had been blown in No. 1 right; I would probably take it 

fortnight to mention all the things I saw. 
Urosr-examined by Mr. Wade: I have seen a plan like that now in the Court—a copy of it; I saw 

it in Mr. Lysaght's office; that was a week ago; twice, I think—no, once; within the last ten days I 
have not been at Mr. Lysaght's office more than twice ; my errand there was to inquire when I was 
to be called, and the plan was lying on the table; I did not discuss the question with Mr. Lysaglit as to 
the cause of the disaster ; I did not believe I was going to be called; I did not tell Mr. Lysight the 
conclusions I had come to about the matter, never in my life; I never told Mr. Ritchie the conclusions I 
had arrived at over the matter, nor Silcox, or Maguire, or Bigger; I never told anybody of the party who 
went into the mine with me on the 9th August; I say that solemnly; 1 did not discuss the question 
with them in any shape or form, that is the solemn truth ; none of those men discussed with me the 
cause of this disaster at any time; Mr. Ritchie asked me to go into the mine I did not know I was to 
go in and try to ascertain the cause of this disaster ; all I know was that I was invited to go into the 
mine; I did not know, on August the 9th, when I arrived at the mine that I was wanted to go into the 
mine and try and discover the cause of the disaster; I do not know now why Ritchie asked me to go to 
the mine; I was very glad to go into the mine to see the results of an explosion and the effects ; I meant 
myself to try and ascertain the cause; I am a man of very large experience; I do not admit that this case 
baffled me ; I cannot go much nearer to the locality of the disaster than that it was in the mine ; there 
are half a dozen places where it may have started; there are twenty places wheze it may have taken 
place in the area of the mine, a thousand acres; I examined for fire-damp on the 9th; 1 examined in 
places where I thought it likely that fire-damp might accumulate; I had a hydrogen flame; a hvdrigen 
lamp will find a quarter per cent. of gas, that is ten times better than, the ordinary lamp itred for 
inspections; I did not see fire-damp found anywhere except in the one place ; the brattice was not down 
up there; 1 took the lamp in with me to show me in and out; that was an ordinary safety-lamp; I did 
not discuss the question of the disaster with the party on the day I was in ; we talked not about the 
disaster ; the men did not discuss the cause of the disaster with me at all; I would not talk about it with 
then-i ; we were all together; I do not think we went and examined the various things together ; I do 
not remember at present what the other men were there for; I do not remember whether they were there 
to discover the cause or not; I attribute my ineffective examination to the want of a plan and the 
want of time; the plan I saw was the colliery plan; I was not cut short in my examination of the 
ilan; I had a long examination of the plan on the night of the 31st; I had a long inspection of 

o. 1 section on the plan; I could not see the direction of the ventilation in two minutes; I 
had not time to look at the doors; when I got to the mine on the 9th I did not know all about the 
doors; I heard that there was a travelling road and a rope road; I went into the mine on the 91h 
about half-past 10 and came out about half-past 4; I think it was 11 o'clock when we reached 
the mine when I come to think of it; it struck me that there had been force coming down No. 1 main 
rope road and going up No. 1 main rope road; I could not tell you where the force diverted; I found 
evidence of force in different directions in more places than one; I took no notes of what I saw; 
I can give you no idea in how many places I saw evidence of force in different directions; 
that is one of the very first tests that we apply ; I did not take any note of it, although I knew that was 
one of the most crucial tests to apply after an explosion; I do not know the Coal Mines Act very well 
I know its principal provisions; it is against the spirit of the Coal Mines Regulation Act to have a bord. 
over 100 yards in length without a cut-through; I say that it is against the spirit of the Act to drive it 
lord for more than 35 yards, even with bratticing-up, without a cut-through ; it was against the spirit of 
the od Act, but not against the words; it is a dangerous thing to have brattice for 70 or SO yards with 
only an apology of a door at the end; it was against the spirit of the Act, although the words are 
expressly in favour of it; the long bords I speak of had been worked before the cut-through had been 
put in ; those three bords that I have mentioned over 100 yards long had been idle for about three 
mnvnths, I should think I would expect to find naked lights in a bord that had not been worked for over 
three months; I could not say that I would expect to find any men there in those three bords on the 
31st July I did not see any signs of explosion in those three bords ; I mentioned those three bords 
because the conditions under which those three bords were driven are now in existence at the mine; I 
have been at Mount Kembla Mine twice—on the 31st July and 9th August; the sun shining on the 
dr;ft-mouth would tend to equalise the temperature at that point with the temperature at the upcast 
shaft; there are numbers of mines which are worked by means of a tunnel; if there were a long gallery 
put up in front of the tunnel that would not affect the dangerous conditions I have mentioned; there 
are mechanical means of obviating the danger while the shaft remains there; if you abolish the furnace 
and put on a fan, then you will remove The danger; I cannot say positively whether the brattice-up at 
the heading at the top of No. I was up or deranged on the 9th, when we were there; I think one of the 
men mentioned something about the brattice ; 1 know that whether the brattice is up or down is most 
important after an explosion; I would be sure to look at it, and if it had been deranged I would have 
noticed it; the brattice was up, but it might have been slightly deranged at the bottom at one corner; 
you might say that brattice was continuous. - 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, JON. MAY. 

this 4th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 
CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

The 
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The inquest is adjourned, for further evidence, till the 5th day of September, 1902, at the Court-
house, Wollongong, at 10 o'clock a.tn.—Cmis. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Woliougong, 4th 
September, 1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 5th day 
of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Thomas Fowler Wade, recalled, states (to Mr. Bruce Smith) : I have scen Purcell's body since my 
last examination; from what I have seen of him I wish now to say that the injuries which he received 
were due to burning by flame, and not by steam; I was not sure the other day, but I am now. 

To Mr. Wade: I am speaking of all Purcell's injuries ; he had extensive blistering, and those 
blisters were due to burns ; his hair was very much burnt ; it is possible to take all the hair off a man's 
head with a flame; I should think that it was a severe flame that caused the injuries to his body; a flame 
that would take all the hair off would probably burn the scalp ; as a matter of fact his scalp was burnt; 
his hair was not burnt right off. 

To the Coroner: I examined the bodies of the Meurants and Nelson sufficiently to say that poisoning 
by carbon monoxide was the cause of death. 

Made and sworn, at the Court.housc, Wollongong, T F. WADE. 
on the 5th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

Cnis. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

William Roqers, recalled, states (to the Coroner) : I say now that the pillars were taken out of the 
35-acre goaf and the men withdrawn, and the place fenced on the 18th July last. 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WM. ROGERS. 

on the 5th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 
CnAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Silvesfer henry IVarbur ton, sworn, states: I reside at Mount Kembia; I am a mining surveyor. 
To the Coroner: It is one of my duties as mining surveyor to take the ventilation of the 

mine; I take the ventilation every month regularly somewhere about the same day I take that 
ventilation scientifically and accurately, and in compliance with the Act; I record the result of my 
examination in a book which is kept at the mine for that purpose; the Act says that 100 cubic feet of air 
must be supplied for each man, boy, and horse ; the books- [Exhibits 0 and R] are the books in which I 
make the records; the figures on the back of the page in the book [Exhibit 01 are the details of the 
amount of air; the system of recording is different in the two books [Embibits 0 and 111 ; in some cases 
in the book [Exhibit 0] I put the men and boys together, but the Inspector desired that the boys should 
be separated from the men and I did as be,wished; that explains the difference in the entries; the first 
report made by me in the book [Exhibit 0] is the 8th August, 1899; there may be blank pages in the 
book [Exhibit 0] but the reason was that when the book was made the ruling did not suit the method we 
had of recording the ventilation, and I fixed the book up so that it would suit, and we can trace the 
ventilation month by month. 

To the Foreman : I did not leave the book [Exhibit 0] from the time I commenced it and make 
entries in the book [Exhibit H] ; the last date in the book [Exhibit R] is 7th July, 1899, and the first 
entry in the book [Exhibit 0] is 8th August, 1899. 

To a Juror: A very hot day outside would make a little difference, but not much ; the temperature 
in the airway leading to the furnace does not vary very much; it is always about 6.5; I always found the 
air in excess of the 100 cubic feet for each man, boy, and horse ; I have tried the ventilation in between 
the monthly examinations, and never found it vary very much, and there was always the excess. 

To Mr. Wade: I have been round with the Government Inspector; I have seen Mr. Rowan 
measure the air; I have compared his readings with mine; be could always get more air than I could—
perhaps because he had a more up-to-date anemometer; I have seen Mr. Humble, I think, put his 
initials in the book [Exhibit II]; Mr. IRowan's initials are also in that book ; the ineasnrements in the 
book had been taken before the inspectors looked at the book; the inspectors made mncasiirenments on 
their own account; as the mouth of the tunnel is now, there is just the bare wall ; before the disaster, 
we had a roof built over the mouth of the tunnel ; the effect of that was to shut off the sun from the 
mouth of the tunnel; the roof etendecl for a distance of about 30 yards; I know whore the screens are 
now; I know where the tipper is ; the roof is also over the tip ; the total length of the roof is about 
40 yards. 

To the Foreman: The inspectors initialled time book merely to show they had seen it. 
To a .Juror: The shed is meant as a protection to the engine as well as to cool the air about the 

mouth of the tunnel; I have never gone into the question as to whether the heat from the boiler would 
or would not produce as much heat about the tunnel mouth as the roof was intended to prevent; the 
boilers are outside the line of the tunnel. 

To a Juror: I have only  been once in with Mr. Bates; I never saw him take the air; I cannot 
say whether be has taken the air or not. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, S. II. WARBURTON. 
this 5th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CIIAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

To Mr. Wade :—Jonafha,m May, recalled, states: Since August the 9th 1 have been to- Mr. 
Lysagh t.'s office either once or twice; those are the only occasions on which I have spoken to him; be 
has not been to my house; most certainly I had no discussion with Mr. Lysaght between the 31st July 
and the 9th August; between those dates I spoke to him, but not about the disaster; be made some 
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reference about the disaster to me between those dates; I cannot tell you what he said ; the only idea 
that I had that I would be called was that I saw in the papers that you said you would call me; that was 
the only idea I had; I was in Court when the inquest started; that was at least a week before the report 
I refer to was published I heard then, when I was in Court, the Coroner say that I would be called as a 
witness ; I then asked Senior-sergeant Banks on what side I would be called; I said, " Which side is 
going to call me?"; the senior-sergeant replied that there were no sides in the matter; so far as I knew, 
Mr. Lysaght had nothing to do with it; I went to the Coroner's office, and then went direct to Mr. 
Lysaght's office, to see if I was to be called as a witness; to my recollection, I have not had a conversation 
with Mr. Ritchie as to giving evidence at this inquest; I will not say I have not; I never had a 
conversation with Mr. Ritchie about being required as a witness on the Royal Commission; I will not 
swear that I had no conversation with Mr. hitchie about a Royal Commission; I do not remember; I 
had seen in the papers a reference to the appointment of a lawyer as a Royal Commission, and this 
I always regarded as absurd ; it was just a passing reference; I cannot remember whether I made any 
other remark to Ritchie ; I did not write a letter to the papers about the Royal Commission; I said to a 
reporter that they might as well appoint a layman to compile statutes as to appoint a lawyer as a Royal 
Commission; that was on the day following the explosion; that is the only conversation I had with 
reference to the Royal Commission; I never knew from Mr. Ritchie that I would be required as a witness 
on this matter; there was not a word about my being on the commission myself, not a word; Mr. Ritchie 
never told me verbally, or in writing that I would be required as a witness; I have no idea what it was 
that moved Ritchie to send me a telegram to attend; I knew it was the directors and the company that 
owned the mine; it did not strike me as being strange for Mr. Ritchie to ask me to go to someone else's 
mine ; it neveroccurreci to me to ask Mr. Ritchie why it was that he had asked me to go to Mount 
Kembla mine ; I am a scientific man and a practical man ; as a scientific man I collect information as to 
explosions in mines ; I take care that the information I collect is as correct as possible ; it is very 
important to discover the exact condition of everything one sees in the mine; I would trust very largely 
to memory at a preliminary visit; I did not make any note on any paper, or in a book, or on my shirt 
cuff that day ; I made certain notes when I got home; I think those notes were destroyed or lost; I have 
the information now in my head; I said yesterday that I could not speak positively as to any derangement 
of the brattice; I made the notes I have mentioned on the following Sunday about church time; I could 
not find the notes and they must have been destroyed, must have got into the waste paper basket ; all I 
can say is that I lost them; I do not mean to say that I put down in the notes I have mentioned enough 
that would take me a fortnight to reproduce I made the notes I have mentioned on a rough sketch of 
the Mount Kembla mine printed in one of the newspapers; I did not mean to keep those notes, or to 
reproduce them at any tune ; I get reports of explosions and make notes in the margins; sometimes I 
keep flewspaper reports which are fairly good I did not think the plan on which I made the notes in 
this instance was valuable; I mentioned Buddell on mining yesterday; I had not looked up the matter 
before yesterday; I have looked up Dunn and Abel since the disaster; I looked them up this morning; 
I did not see my way clear to explain the cause or the spot of the disaster after my visit to the mine on 
the 9th of August, not the exact cause; there were so many contributory causes; I did not consult any 
text books, but left my mind in the same state. 

To Air. Bruce Sinitlm : When I said Buddell" yesterday I should have said "Dunn"; I have 
Dunn here this morning ; I know the literature on explosions fairly well ; that is not -the only authority 
I can give you that a fall of stone has been suspected of producing an explosion of gas; there is "Abel" 
also; there are other authorities; I cannot at present tell you the name of any other authority; hooked 
up Abel this morning ; I have not looked at Buddell since yesterday; I have some detached writings of 
his, I believe; I looked up two books which I did not mention yesterday and omitted to look up Buddell, 
which I did mention ; I had not time to look up Buddell; "Dunn" was published in 1852 ; the part of 
"Dunn" which you have just read to me from page 151 is one of the authorities I have been referring to 
in support of my  statement that a fall of stone has been suspected of producing explosions of gas; the 
other authority I have is from "Abel," page 142, which you have just read, which is part of a discussion, 
and is an opinion by Sir Wrarrington  Smythe; I know "Hughes' Text Book" which you mentioned to me 
yesterday I know Bulmar; 1 know Lupton ; I know Galloway; I have these books here in Wollongong 
I knowkno the '.' Federated N ining Transactions " but have no copies of them; I know the Home O4lice 
Reports ; I get some of the important ones ; I know of two or three •ollieries in which it has been 
alleged that there have been explosions of coal-dust ; Seahamn, Thornley, West Stanley, Trindon Grange, 
Albion are some of those I refer to; they are from the reports of the honie office; there are probably twenty 
more, but that is all I can recollect at present; I do not accept the possibility of explosions of coal-dust 
except very rarely ; I did write a letter to the papers about the dismissal of a deputy ; I signed that letter 
with my own name "Jno. May " ; that letter was published in the .Abwcastie Herald and other papers 
about four days before the disaster at Kembla; I do not know the date ; I have published no other letters 
on that subject to my recollection; I published another letter over the title "Common Sense " ; that 
letter is on a mining subject; I do not remember writing any other letters to the papers under any other 
names, at present. 

To a Juror: From the face of No. 1 heading towards the tunnel mouth I observed the position of 
the timbers; theywere blown in different directions; that is sometimes the indication of force pointed in over 
and sometimes outbye ; I cannot indicate the force between No. 5 rope road and No. 3 left, because I had 
not a plan ; as we travelled inbye, some of the stoppings had been blO'n from the 35-acre goaf; I did not 
observe any stoppings bloyn into No. 1 from the 15-acre goaf; I cannot say they were intact; I did not 
examine them; from the telephone cabin to the junction of the No.1 right with the main tunnel I noticed 
the same conditions as to the timber, some blown inbye and some outbye, and they were some large falls; 
the larger falls were outbye of No. 4 right I did not observe the stoppings in the 9-acre goaf; I only 
observed the usual condition of an explosion about the 35-acre goaf. 

To the Coroner: Fire-damp is a mixture of mithane and air; mithane is a mixture of carbon and 
hydrogen; I call fire-damp CH 4 and air; if you have one part of fire-damp to three and a half of air 
you will have' a feebly explosive compound ; one part of CH 4 to nine and a half of air is the most 
violent explosive; if there is more than that it becomes more feeble; the point at which it ceases to 
become explosive and extinguishes naked lights is one part of CH 4 to sixteen or seventeen of air 
fire-damp comes from the decomposition of vegetable matter; it is possible that fire-damp may accumulate 
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in little pockets behind the face; it is possible that with a pick or a bore you may come on such a pocket; 
that is very unusual; it is quite possible that a mine which hitherto has had a good name for being f. e 
from gas may be ruined by so coining on a chance pocket of gas like that ; the bet precaution to prevent 
that is ventilation, to have the ventilation up to date, and to see that the ventilating current shall not 
fluctuate ; the stratum over the seam in the goafs may be of sandstone I believe it is sandstone at 
Kembla, mixed with shale ; spar is quartz principally, a large percentage of quartz ; fire-damp does not 
come off spar ; there is no coal or coal-dust in the goaf; if the roof of the góaf were to fall in there 
would be no dust coining out of the goaf in any quantity; all dust (carbonaceous dust) is nore or less 
inflammable; the dust coming out of a goaf with a stone or ipar roof would not be inflammable ;  having 
regard to the safety of the men, the preferable way is to keep the air circulating ; 1 had not an opportunity 
of forming an opinion whether the Kembla mine is a wet or a dry mine ; I would not venture to say that 
coal-dust is inflammable with a naked light without any gas; one per cent, of gas in a dry and dusty mine 
is enough to make the conditions dangerous, but not with a naked light; a disturbed atmosphere would 
increase the liability to explosion with a mixture of fire-damp and coal-dust, but not with a naked light 
a disturbed condition of the atmosphere with coal-dust and any percentage of fire-damp will not ignite 
with a naked lamp ; a naked light would be extinguished by a rush of air and coal-dust ; with a still 
atmosphere 9. per cent, of fire-damp and a shot tamped under the most dangerouna conditions—that 
would produce an explosion ; the minimum amount of fire-damp under those conditions which would 
produce an explosion is one per cent. with coal-dust ; a blown-out shot pure and simple is where a shot 
simply blows the stemming or tamping out and, comes out like a shot from a gun-barrel; there is not the 
same danger in firing a shot which does its duty, although there is often danger; supposing that the 
disaster occurred at some point at No, 4 right, it could do a lot of the damage that was done in the mine 
without having been increased in any way in any other part of the mine; if I saw a burnt body near a 
certain point which I would take as the point of origin, and a nmnber of bodies not far away not burnt, 
and then another body burnt at 'another point at a distance from the point of origin, 1 would suspect 
fire-damp at other portions of the mine than that at which the explosion started ; the temperature at 
which fire-damp explodes is about 1200, perhaps; a mixture of CII 4 and air in the proportion of Di  to 1 
would explode at that temperature ; if the combustion is perfect you would have CO 2, nitrogen and 
steam, then the steam would condense, leaving CO 2 and nitrogen ; if the combustion is imperfect yeil 
have carbon monoxide ; '05 is the minimum known quantity of carbon monoxide to be painful in half-an-
hour; 1 will kill in half-an-hour ; it is a very strong poison ; black-clamp is a mixture of CO 2 and 
nitrogen—SO per cent, of nitrogen and 14 per cent. of CO 2; about 15 per cent, of that black-damp will 
extinguish lights; coal in the open air exudes certain gases; those gases are COCO 2, Cii 4; of course it 
exudes those gases in very small quantities; the conditions in a mine may be good to-day and very 
dangerous to-morrow; conditions might arise which a man would not anticipate ; in all mines one 
anticipates fire-damp, more or less ; in all mines you anticipate that miners may cuter all bld goat; the 
furnace is very defective for keeping up a continuous current of air, and especially under conditions likd 
those at Kembla ; I say Kembla because the quantity of air circulating in the mine depends upon the 
difference of temperature between the upcast shaft and the atmospheric temperature outside; any sudden 
increase of atmospheric temperature would reduce the quantity of air circulating. 

To Mr. Wade: I will qualify the statement "that fire-danip should be anticipated in every mine"; 
I have known of mines in England which have been worked for hundreds of years in which fire-damp has 
never been found. 

To the Coroner: What I said to Mr. Tiysaglit when lie made the reference to the disaster wa, 
not to mention the disaster because l\Jr. Wade had said he intended to place me in the witness box and 

he would be sure to ask me what had taken place''; carbon monoxide follows on an explosion of fire-damp; 
carbon monoxide also follows on an explosion of coal-dust; so that in this disaster it does not matter 
whether the carbon monoxide, of which the doctors have spoken, was produced by an explosion of fire-damp 
or an explosion of coal-dust. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, JON. MAY. 
this 5th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CIIAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

William .Moran, sworn, states: I am a miner; I reside at Kembla Heights; I have been employed 
at the Kembla mine with the exception of eight or nine months for about sixteen years, up to the time 
of the disaster ; I was there when Mr. Ronaldson was inaiiager Mr. Eogers, who is now manager, was 
then the under-manager ;  when Mr. Ronaldson was manager there, and while I was working in the cinder 
heading with James Purcell as a mate, I can fix no date whatever,  , I went in to work as usual on the 
front shift ;  I had a flare-light on my cap ; when I walked in just close on the face the flare vent away, it 
took onfire, it must have been gas; there was a flame rolled out and rolled round and round between 
iS and 20 yards out of the headin auci then back again ; I dropped down to Cave myself from gettiu 
burnt; the flame went out of itself ;  after that I left my place and went and told the fireman, David 
Evans; 1 met David Evans on the road, close to the shaft ; I told Evans what had happened and went 
back with Evans to the place I had been working at; Evans examined the place; when 1 told him, he said 
that he had examined the place that morning and it \'a.a all right; when I went back with him he examined 
the place and told me to go home and the place would be bratticed up ; I returned to work again the 
following morning; I went to the same place I found the place was bratticed up then; I continued to 
work on in that place for a cortain time ; I have continuad to work on in the mine since then ; the cinder 
heading referred to by me was close to whera the shaft flat had been (to the left of it); that fiat is not 
there now ; it is altogether different to what it was then ; there was no endless rope then; since then 1 
have not seen anything like what I saw on that occasion. 

Cm'oss-examzned by Mr. Wade: I have no idea as to the date whatever; it is it long while ago; Mr.
Ronailson must have been gone close on seven or eimht years ; I could not say ; I have hears of the new 
Coal Mines Act; in the days I am speaking of the b;'attice was not kept up close. 1 know that has to be 
done now; at the time I have mentioned I was working at two headings in the cinder coal; I cannot tell 
you how far the place was bratticed up before it was shifted further up. The coal was all faults through 
the cinder heading. To 
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To the Coroner: It was after the erection of the present ventilating shaft. 
To the Foreman: I have worked in No. I section, but not for two or three years; it is a long while 

ago, but I cannot say when it was; when I was working in No. 1 section I never saw any fire-damp to 
speak of; you would perhaps meet a blower at times; I have not worked in the fourth right that 1 am 
aware of. 

To Mr. Wade : At times the part of No. 1 right where I saw blowers there would be some water 
the water would come out of the face; I goby the noise I heard when I say it was blowers; 1 have said 
to the deputy that there was a bit of gas; that has not occurred within the last twelve months ; it is over 
two years ago; I never had any lighting-up like I had on the occasion I have mentioned. I would not be 
sure of the name of the deputy I told about the blowers I haf heard in No. 1 ; I am certain I told him 
I think it was William Nelson. 

To Mr Bruce Smith . It did not go off in a flame in No. 1 section; it just burnt like a candle; in 
the big one I got my hair burnt a bit ; after 1 was singed on that occasion safety-lamps were not used ; 1 
went on the same way. 

To the Foreman I have not heard of anyone having been burnt in the last two years at Mount 
Kembla; I am quite sure of that. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WILLIAM MOR&N. 
this 5th day of September, 1902, before 

Cuxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

The inquest is adjourned till the 8th day of September, 1932, at a quarter to 9 o'clock am., at the 
Court-house, \Vollongong.—Cuxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 5th September, 1002. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, on the 8th day of September, 1902, at a quarter to 
9 o'clock a.m., at the Court-house, Wollongong.—CnAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, till the 9th day of September, 10I2, at 1130 o'clock am., 
at the Court-house, \Vohlon -on g.—Cnxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, Sili September, 
1002. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 9th day 
of September, 1932, at 1130 o'clock a.m.—Ciaxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

To Mr. lVue :—fonathan Mag, recalled, s'ates : I produce the telegram [telgram 1ut in ai 
mu'hed Exhibit S], which I received from Mr. Ritchie; I inae no inquiries on receiving that wire. 

Sworn and made, at the Court-house, \Vollongong, this ') JON. MAY. 
9th day of eptember, 1b02, before me,— 

Cuxs. C. RUaSELL, Coroner. 

Ilarrie Stuart Banks, sworn, states: I am a senior-sergeant of police, stationed at Wollongong 
on the 31st July last, in company with Messrs. Sellars, Cook, and Johnson, I proceeded to the Mount 
K_eLnbla. Colliery, and arrived there about 315 p.m. ; on arrival I saw the body of a youth, named Jacob 
Nelson, h ing in the blacksmith's forge, to where it had been removed ; the machinery and engines outside 
the pit were wrecked; amongst the debris I found the right leg of a boy ; it was torn off at the knee, and 
was subsequenily identilie I as that of a boy named Alexander Morrison; I afterwards, with several 
others, proeceled into the mine ; we went into the shaft district ; in the No. 6 right rope road Nfe found 
a number of men lying dead, amcngst which were the two Meurants, Henry and William ; there were also 
several miners there in an unconscious condition ; with others who were in there at the time, I assisted in 
remOing those who were alive to the o-itside of the mine, and afterwards, with two men named Bunn and 
Ilcifermnan, we clearel the trucks off the Nc. 6 right rope road, and took three trucks in that road ; we 
guhered up fifteen bodies in all into the three trucks ; 1 found the bodies of Henry and William Meurant 
lying oai the righthand side of the road side by side ; we brought the bodies up to Mat's Flat, and then 
with Mr MaeUabe, and J. C. Jones and others, I proceeded along the Engine-road; at Mat's Flat we 
found two more bodies, and on the way up the main hauling road, near No. 5, we found the bodies of 
Il!aekett and Edward Gallagher; we put those into the trucks with the others, and on arriving at No. 4, 
I sent out for stretcher parties ; the whole of the bodies were then carried out into the main travelling 
road, and thence out of the mine ; Mr. J. C. Jones and myself carried the last one out ; all the bodies 
were taken to the carpenter's shop, which was used as a morgue, and there Meurants' bodies were viewed 
on the fiillowing day by the jury. 

To the coroner: There was a fire in the Corrimal Colliery on the 14th July, 1901 ; there was 
a'so a fire in the South Bulli Colliery on the 7th June this year; the fire in the Corrimnal Colliery was 
about three-quarters of a mile in the mine, at a working place at the face; it was within a foot or 18 
inches of the face; that is a most unusual place to light a fire; the fire had been on the top of a lot of 
coal timit had just been hewn down; I did not fini out how that fire originated; the fire in the South 
Bulli Cohiiery was in a lamp cabin about 150 yards from the entrance, inside the mine; it was between 
1 and 2 o'clock in the day, just after the men had knocked off work; in that case there was an inquest 
lied and an open verdict returned. 

To Mr. Bit chic : None of the bodies—there were nineteen—which I brought out of No. 6 right 
shc wed signs of being burnt; I saw some bodies brought out to the morgue by others, and noticed their 
condition; some of them appeared to me to have been burnt or singed; I judge that by the hair; I did 
not notice Jacob Nelson's hair; I cannot say anything about him ; Aitken and son were burnt, I judged 
that by their hair being singed; Sileox was burnt; he was a boy; Test's hair was singed; Thomas Purcell's 
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hair was singed; Walter and Thomas Morris (father and son) appeared to be singed also; Kembla 
Stafford was another one, his hair appeared to be singed; the skin was peeled off Purcell's neck and 
arms; that is all I can remember the names of; I cannot say the number of men that were singed; there 
may have been a few others than those I have mentioned ; I do not know myself where the men were 
picked up; the subpmna I served on you was issued in blank by the Coroner, and filled up at the instigation 
of Mr. Barry. 

To .Me. Wade: I filled up subpmnas in the same way for other witnesses; I issued five at the 
request of Mr. Lysaght ; ]I saw several men whose skin appeared to be peeled on the parts of the body 
that were bare; Silcox had no clothes at all on with the exception of one boot on the right foot when he 
was brought into the morgue; I did not notice any man with just a belt and a piece of clothing under 
the belt. 

To the Foreman: I saw no indications in the mine, outside the singeing of the bodies that I have 
spoken of on the night of the 31st July, that would lead me to believe there had been a finue in the mine; 
yesterday, in the mine, Inspector Watson pointed out to me a place which he said had been burned ; he had 
an electric light, and he turned it on to the rib at this place, and drew the attention of the jury to it, and 
said he had no doubt that it was burned with a flame; that was the only place which I observed any 
indication of flame; I do not know that I could locate the spot pointed out by Mr. Watson on a plan; I 
saw no timber charred. 

To a Juror: I was at the mine when Walter Morris and his son were brought out; their hair 
appeared to be singed, and the skin peeled from their necks. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on RABBlE S. BANKS. 
the 9th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CHAs. C. RIISSELL, Coroner. 

David Rife/Lie, sworn, states : I reside at Bulli; I am Miners' General Secretary; I have had off 
and on about twenty-five years' experience in milling ; I went to the Mount Kemubla Colliery o n the 31st 
July last ; we got there rather before 4 o'clock in the afternoon ; on arrival there, on discovering what 
had happened, I changed my clothes and got a safety-lamp as quick as possible and, in company with Mr. 
Daniel Robertson, Nanager of the Metropolitan Mine, Mr. Johnson, Manager of Bulli Mine, and several 
others, made up a party and went into the mine at once through the travelling road ; we went into the 
No. 1 district by the No. 1 travelling road ; we were the first who had gone down that district after the 
disaster ; in going down No, 1 travelling road we met William Broadhead ; he was coming from his 
working face, making towards the outside; after inquiring where he had come from we asked him had he 
seen any other men on the way ; he said, Yes, there are two men lying in the road there apiece" ; Mr. 
Robertson and myself then got away from the others in order to reach those people at the earliest 
moment ; the first we met was William Nelson ; he was alive then ; he was lying with his head towards 
the outside, up against the right hand rib. on the road up ; whilst endeavouring to keep him alive by 
keeping his lungs open the other members of the party came up, and Nelson, I believe, died in our 
hands ; his limbs and his body were quhe stiff when we got to him first ; after he died his limis got quite 
limp; we left the other members of the party with him, and Mr. Robertson and myself again went ahead and 
came across Mr. Bates ; he was evidently in the caine state of collapse as Mr. Nelson was when we found 
him ; he was about 10 or 12 yards on the inbve side of Nelson, with his head lying inbye ; we used 
the same efforts on him as we had used on Mr. Nelson, in order to endeavour to keep him alive; he also 
was lying with his arms stiff and his teeth firmly clenched ; in the fall his false teeth had evidently fallen 
back into his throat, and I picked them out with a knife; in consequence of the ventilation getting 
somewhat thick and hot about that part we got Mr. Bates carried out towards the tunnel mouth for 
about 0 yards and then sent out for a stretcher party, which afterwards came in and took him out ; at 
that time the lamps of the party were burning very bad in consequence of the unsuitable oil and bad 
wicks ; they were safety-lamps, and were not in very good order ; the primary cause of the lamps burning 
badly was the oil and the wicks, which were unsuitable ; the atmosphere may have had something to do 
with it also ; after going in some distance further, and the lamps still failing us, we went out; after 
having the lamps attended to I, in company with a number of others, went into the shaft district ; where 
I was told there was a number of men in need of assistance; we arrived on the shaft flat, and found that 
a number of bodies had been collected there, and in company with a number of' others I did what was 
possible to have the bodies taken out ; sufficient parties had been down in that district to assist the living 
people before I got down there; I injured my leg when I went in first, and retired about 12 o'clock that 
night ; I did what was possible to assist the people in lime mine, but I made no inspection that night ; all 
the live people had been got out hours before I retired ; on the 9th August (Saturday) I was one of a 
party who made an inspection of the mine; the members of the party were Jonathan May, James 
Maguire, Thomas Morgan, Charles Biggers, James Silcox, and myself. Inspector Watson, John Morrison, 
Adam Frost, junior, and William I-lay accompanied us into the mine; we made an inspection of No. 1 
district only ; we went right down the main hauling road in that section; our inspection was limited 
practically to the route which I have indicated on the plan by a blue line. 

Cross-examined by dir. Bruce Smith : What we saw to begin with was evidence of very great force 
iii the main haulage road outbve I might- Fav that I did not arrive at any definite conclusion as to where 
the force originated ; all evidence of force from the telephone cabin appeared to be outwards ; the 
indications of force inbye of the telephone cabin ap1emred to be more mixed ;  I am aware of the theory 
that when an explosion of coal-dust takes place it is followed by a series of explosions of dust; such a 
state of things would cause confusion in arriving at a conclusion as to the direction of the force; a series 
of explosions from any cause would have the like effect ; there might possibly be a series of explosions of 
gas ; it would he possible for gas to be driven from different directions by some force and so produce a 
series of explosions ; I found things in front of the 35-acre goaf in such a state that I could not form a 
conclusion as to the origin of the force ; there was evidence of force having gone in an outward direction 
from the very top of the heading; there was force also at right angles to No. 1 right along the hauling 
road where the Aiken's were working (that is the uppermost hauling road) ; that is about two bords 
from the main heading; we found there evidence of flame on the timbers, there were charred timbers; I 
minutely examined the timber, and to the best of my belief it had been caused through flame in the 
mine, and recently; the charring could not be detected on the whole of the props because of the dust 
that had been blown, against them, but the charring was not confined to one prop ; the timber had a 
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charred appearance showing through the dust that had accumulated about it; the dust appeared to have 
been thrown against the props with very great force ; the dust was on one side; that is the east side of 
the posts in the rope load, leading into the main heading; two skips which had evidently been filled from 
the pillar which Aiken and son were said to have worked were driven from the end of the main heading 
west with great force; I say that from the position of the skips, one was tipped over on its side and the 
other was driven apparently with great force into it; we traversed No. 4 left more than once ; there 
appeared to be a fairly large accumulation of dust about the fourth left section ; judging by the appear-
ance of the dust it had evidently gained very littlO from the force of the explosion; I could tell that from 
impressions in the dust which were evidently of long standing, I mean indentations; there was dust on 
the walls, but in no very great quantity as far as I could say; I did take notes of the inspection, but as 
I did not know I was to be called. I have not got them here; I should say, as a matter of opinion, that 
there would be nearer 6 lb. than 6 oz. of dust to the foot of the road; that was the dustiest part I saw; 
Inspector Watson made a test with a hydrogen lamp, and found a trace of gas in the small goaf near 
Aiken's pillar; in coming back outwards again in No. 1, a test was made in No. 1 at one of the goafs, and 
the gas was so thick that it put out the hydrogen lamp; I think it was black-damp; I took notes of the 
directions of force; I have not got them here; I think I can get them; my inspection was not as complete 
on that day as I desired it should be in order to enable me to connect the facts which I gathered on that 
occasion; the want of a plan was one of the serious drawbacks that I suffered from, and, not having had 
the plan, I determined to make application to the Department for a copy of the plan; I had seen a plan 
before that, but only for a few seconds; that copy of the plan which I asked for was not supplied; I have 
not formed any conclusion as to the seat of the explosion; I am of opinion that the seat of the explosion 
is within the area which I have enclosed with a blue line, with the 35-acre waste added; I am satisfied 
that it was an explosion of coal-gas in the first instance, added to by an explosion of coal-dust; my 
impression is that it was due to a combination of coal-gas and coal-dust; I think that it occurred by coal-
gas coming in contact with a light, and that it exploded and caused coal-dust to rise, when there were 
further explosions. 

Cross-ezanthsed by Mr. Wade: I told Mr. Lysaght that I was summoned here; I told him that this 
morning; I saw him in the main street of \Vollongong; I have not discussed with Mr. Lysaght the 
matter of the disaster; I have not discussed with him the facts either; I did not tell him what I had seen 
in the mine on the 9th; I do not think Mr. Lysaght asked me what I had seen on the 9th; I have no 
recollection of his asking me; to the best of my belief he did not as], me; the two Meurants were 
members of the Union, and Mr. Lysaght has been appearing for them ; I have been appearing for the 
employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery; I have not discussed in any shape or form with Mr. Lysaght 
the cause of the disaster; Mr. Lysaght has never asked me anything about the cause of the disaster; I 
have never discussed the cause of the disaster with. Mr. May; I do not think I have had a discussion 
with any of them on the matter—certainly not with Mr. May; no one of the party who were in the 
mine with me on the 9th discussed'the cause of the disaster with me; I did not discuss in the mine 
that day the locality of the explosion ; I have never' asked any of that party their opinion as to the 
locality of the explosion; I went there to make an inspection of the colliery I had been reading in 
the daily press from day to day, and the reports in the daily press set forth that Dr. Robertson was 
taking in parties of managers to make official inspections ; in one of those reports I saw that Dr. 
Robertson had given a definite opinion as to the cause of the disaster; knowing, from my experience, 
that. Dr. Robertson could generally get mine managers to say what be liked, I made the application 
to take in six practical men, in order that if the parties who had been inspecting on behalf of 
Dr. Robertson gave evidence which was not in accordance with facts, we should be able to have this party 
of practical men to give evidence how they found the state of the mine after the disaster; we went in to 
try and discover the cause of the explosion; we also wanted to ascertain the starting-point of the 
explosion; we had the six practical men to help on that point; I was unable to fix the locality (that is, the 
exact spot) where it started; I have no idea whether the other men have formed an idea as to the seat of 
the disaster; Maguire was one of the party; be is the president of my association ; and another was 
Morgan, the treasurer; I do not remember saying in the mine, on the 9th, to Mr. May, that the disaster 
took place near the threequarter acre goaf; I did not say that to Mr. May; it may have started there 
I cannot possibly go any nearer than the area I have stated; that is the area marked with blue and the 
35-acre goaf ; I do not believe that coal-dust alone would cause an explosion; I do not believe in the 
coal-dust theory to the extent that coal-dust coming in contact with the ordinary lights that are used 
in a mine would cause an explosion; I do not think that a coal-dust explosion could have been caused in. 
Mount Kembla by a shot, because I believe that in all those explosions you require a certain percentage 
of gas; I do not believe that any coal-dust explosion would take place without some gas ; I was in No. 4 
left; I do not know that I did see any evidence of flame there; I have no recollection of having done so; 
the parts I went through I only saw traces of flame in a very few places ; I was in No. 4 left rope road 
twice during the visit; I was looking for signs of flame, but not minutely, in all parts, because time did 
not permit it; you might see traces of flame if it were over the whole of the props if you happened to be 
looking at those props ; the indication of flame on the props near Aiken's was on the whole length of the 
exposed part of the prop; on the other side of the road I think there were props that were free of 
indications of flame; they would be several yards from the props that had signs of flame on them; I have 
no recollection of seeing signs of flame nearer Stafford's gannon bord; I mean by flame actual charring 
of the wood; I saw coal-dust on the props near Aiken's pillar; it was pretty well all round the props, 
but it appeared to be thicker on the eastern side; I concluded from that that the dust had been deposited 
as the dust had been blown from east to west; the flame was going from east to west in the locality of 
Aiken's pillars ; from the cabin inbye to the face the indications of force were in different .directions; I 
had time to see that there had been force in two different directions I had not time to see if 
it had been in three different directions ; I cannot tell you what direction the force was 
between No. 4 right and the telephone cabin, nor between No. 4 right and No. 5, nor of the indication up 
towards the face, but I believe that there the indications were inwards; the hill began to rise just 
inbye of No. 5 right; as far as my knowledge goes, the force of an explosion increases as it gets farther 
away from the point of starting ; I cannot say whether there were greater evidences of force in the 
timber and skips in the district to the left of No. 1 main rope road or in No. 1 main rope road; we all 
bad safety-lamps; Inspector Watson took the hydrogen lamp in; Mr. May used it once or twice; my 
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impression is that the explosion took place as a result of coal-gas meeting a naked light; if that happened 
in the main road it would go outwards, I think I believe that this explosion made for the outside, but 
all explosions do not do that; if the explosion took place at the junction of the main rope road and 
No. 4 right I would expect to see evidence of a greater force going in an outward direction; it would be 
quite possible for the flame of the explosion to course round inbye and lick up any gas in that locality; 
I do not think you would find much evidence of force inbye, unless there were some gas; 1 would expect 
to find evidence of the explosion going inbye; there might have been gas in the main rope road, between 
No. 4 right and No. 5 right, on the 31st July; under normal conditions it would be unlikely; I noticed 
the conditions of several of the stoppings in the main rope road, between the travelling road and the rope 
road, they appeared to have been blown into the travelling road; I saw several skips and a horse near 
the jig ; if the front skip nearest the tunnel mouth had been turned at right angles to the others, it would 
show that the force had been inwards, although it would be possible to get the same state with the force 
behind the skips ; the indentations I have spoken of in the dust were hollows caused by footsteps or 
throwing any heavy article on top of the dust; I have seen a plan like that on the board almost every 
day since I have been at the Court. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaght: I should think that to make a complete examination of No. 1 
section you would require at least three days considering the state of the roads; I think we were in the 
mine about seven hours on the 0th August; if I had been permitted to inspect yesterday I think I could 
have gone very much nearer to locating the spot where the disaster originated ; I cannot tell exactly 
what the quantity of black-damp was that we discovered; the quantity of fire-damp was only a trace 
on the night of the 31st I saw quite a number of bodies wlucli appeared to have been burnt; the first 
body that I saw that was burnt was the body of the boy Jacob Nelson that had been pirlced up shortly 
before I got there ; Aiken and son were also burnt; Tost, T. Purcell, Morris and son, the boy Kembla 
Stafford, and I think John Purcell were slightly burnt, although I am not quite clear ; there were more 
bodies that I saw burnt, but just now I do not remember the names ; I think I must have seen at least 
a dozen bodies that were burnt; that, I think, would be up till 12 o'clock on the night of the 31st—no, 
I think that would include those that I saw next day and the day after also I had a very decided opinion 
that they had been burnt by flame ; most of those I have named had their hair singed ; I found the 
safety-lamps on the 31st to be in a very bad state, practically not fit for use, the few that were there 
the oil was the ordinary China oil, and very hitci quality at that; the wicicing that Nye had to use was the 
ordinary wicking used in flare-lamps, and was quite unsuitable for safety-lamps ; 1 feel quite sure that if 
we had had proper safety-lamps and oil and things on the spot the lives of more men would have been saved 
when I took the persons I have named in, I said to them to use the whole of their opportunities in 
observing keenly everything that was to be seen as the result of the disaster ; I further told them that 
they were not to express their opinion to any person, and that they were to keep absolutely their own 
counsel, unless they were called upon to give evidence either before this inquiry or before the Royal 
Commission; I further said that I should inalce application to the Mines Department for a copy of the 
plan, and if it was supplied I should make application for a further inspection in order to complete our 
inquiries; the names of the party were submitted to Dr. Robertson before they were taken in ; I was 
check.weighinan at Mount Kembla for five years and a half within the last eight years ; during the time 
I was chcck-weighman the miners on many occasions mentioned to me that they had found gas ; I 
frequently put the question to them, "Did you report it "; they always said they had reported it. 

To it Jcror: I did not handle Mr. Watson's lamp. 
To a Juror: If Mr. Watson said yesterday that he did not let his hydrogen lamp out of his hand 

on the 0th that would be absolutely untrue. 
To the Foreman : I noticed a wooden door near the fifth right ; I took notice then which way it 

was blown ; but I cannot say now from memory which way that was; the canvas near Aiken's had been 
blown in a westerly direction; the door at the fifth right was enclosed in a box case; I am not sure from 
memory which way the door operated. 

To a Juror: I did not ask any of the party to write any impression of what they saw, but I told 
them not to give their opinion to anyone. 

To Mr. Wade : I worked as a miner on the coal somewhere about seventeen years; I told the men 
that I wanted an inspection made by them on behalf of the miners; I believe I told them that, but I may 
possibly have omitted to tell some of them that; I told them that I wanted them to ascertain the cause of 
the disaster. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, B. RITCHIE. 
this 0th day of September, 1002, before mc,— 5 

Cuvs. C, RL'SSELL, Coroner. 

Examined by iSenior-serqeant Banks :—Michael Quinn, sworn, states :. I reside at Mount 
Kembla; I mu a miner ; up to the 31st July last I was in the employ of the Mount Kembla Company 
1 have been working in the Mount Kembla colliery for about thirteen years; one day, about eight years 
ago, when Mr. Rogers was under-manager, when I was working in a heading in No. 1 district, Mr. Rogers 
came into my working place; I lit a jet of gas in front of him, and he spoke to me and told me not to do 
that, and he put the jet out with his foot; it was burning in the centre of the coal; when I lit it, Mr. 
Rogers said, "Do not do that again" I told Mr. Rogers that it was better for it to burn there than to go 
away with the air; Mr. Rogers said, "Well, don't set fire to it 'while I'm here again"; when he left I 
set fire to it again, and it burned away for a considerable time ; it burnt itself out; on several occasions 
I have lit the gas on my own (when I was by myself) ; the last time I lit the gas in Mount Kembla Mine 
was about ten months ago I drew Mr. Nelson's attention to the gas on these occasions ; he was the 
deputy I told Mr. Nelson that there was gas in the place, and that the place was very hot, and that we 
wanted more air; he had canvas put up then to talce the air into the face; that was a place on Powell's 
flat, and I think it was in the seventies; the fact of the matter is, you could see gas in any bord ; I saw 
gas oozing out of the face of the coal into the bord in the fifth right, about seven or eight mouths ago ; I 
set fire to gas in that bord on several occasions; I drew iJungey's attention to that, and told him we 
wanted a cut-through I could find gas there at any time after a shot, where there was a crack along the 
face, and where the shot had not brought the coal clown; you could find it with a naked light; that is the 

last 



	
	

	

52 

last time I saw gas in the mine; I always adopted the practice of lighting the gas, because I thought it 
was safer than letting it go into the air; I was working in the mine on the 31st July; I was working in 
the second right in the No. 1 district; I did not meet any gas at all where I was working that day ; I did 
not light any that day; I know the fourth right pillars in that district; I was working in them before 
going into the second right; in fact, I was one of those who drew the last props out of there; I did not 
go in with a party to inspect the mine since the disaster; there was black-damp in the pillars when we 
drew the props in No. 4 right; sometimes I used to hear the gas, and sometimes I used to see it when 
looking to see what the shot had done. 

Gross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smitls : When I thought it was dangerous I used to report it and not 
otherwise ; the last place I was working in, in the fourth right, the black-damp was so bad that I had to 
send for the fireman, and I did not get in for three days; that was about three weeks before the disaster; 
I discovered the black-damp, because I could not get my light anywhere near the floor; I could only get 
it within 2 feet of the floor I had to go out every now and then to get some fresh air; after the three 
days I was brought further out, where it was better to work, but it was bad enough there; Dungey was 
the fireman I sent for. 

Gross-examined by Mr. Wade: I was working in the fourth right pillars about three weeks before 
the disaster; I had been in the fourth right pillars on other occasions before the last cavil; I had been 
there on one occasion I do not know how often I hai been there, because I do not want to ; I am not 
paid for it; Thomas Muir was my mate in the fourth right pillars in the last cavil ; I had never worked 
in the fourth right pillars before the last cavil with Muir. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, this Al. QUINN. 
9th day of September, 1902, before me, 5 

CuAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, till the 10th day of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock am.,, 
at the Court-house, Wollongong.—Cuas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner, Court-house, Woilongong, 9th September, 
1902. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 10th day 
of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—Cllas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Gross-examined by .2lZi. Trade :—Micliael Quinn, recalled, states : I am sure that it was not within 
the last three months that I found gas in No, 1 ; it was last quarter, not this ; it was three months or over; 
I told you ycterday that it was seven months ago in one place; I am going according to the cavil ; it was 
two cavils ago; I spoke to Dungev and also to Nelson ;  I spoke to them, not on the same day, at different 
times ; Dungey was on duty when I spoke to him : Nelson was on duty, too I spoke to Dungey in the 
morning, between 6 and 7 o'clock, before I went to work I did not speak to anybody about it the day I 
found the gas in the fifth right I do not know what time of the day it was that I discovered the gas 
that '1 know of, I did not make a report to anybody about it that day ; I offered to the sergeant to give 
evidence here about gas; I was talking to everybody about the gas, it was such a common thing; it was 
common talk in Mount Kembla; it has been common talk in Mount Kembla for about nine years; a 
friend of mine was burnt there about ihat time ; his name was Michael Gallagher; it might be over nine 
years that Gallagher was burnt I will not swear that it is not twelve years since he was burnt; I did not 
come to the sergeant, the sergeant caine to me; I had spoken to several people about the gas I did not 
send Brownleigh to say I would give evidence about gas; I do not know that he brought a message in 
from me; I had a discussion with Browuleigh about gas amongst other things I do not know when it 
was I had the talk with Brosvnleigh ; it was over a week, but I have no idea of the date; I did not consider 
it was wrong to set fire to gas, like I said I did yesterday ; it would be wrong if there was a large quantity 
there; I heard Mr. Rogers tell me not to do it again, 'and. I lit it as soon as he had gone, and would do it 
again under the same conditions; 1 paid no attention to the under-manager's orders. 

To a Juror: The under-manager took the necesniry precautions when I reported the gas; be put 
canvas up, except in the case of black-damp. 

To Mr. Lysay1s: Nothing was done to prevent the black-damp ; it was not looked after by 
ventilation. 

To a ,Jaror: I do not think it was a very dangerous thing to do to light the gas as I did ; it was 
safe; if there had been any,  gas in the roof it would have been dangerous to light it, and I would not have 
lit it ; my experience of twenty-four years led me to know that there could not be a large quantity of gas 
behind the face, because we were driving in solid coal, and there was no place for it to accumulate. 

To a Juror: In working in a solid face I have never come across a cavity. 
To time Coroner: I never heard of a spew in a coal-mine; I never heard the word used; I have 

never heard of a stream of mud earning out of the face in coal-mines; I have been working at Mount 
Kembla for about thirteen years; I have not heard of a spew at Helen sburgh; I never knew of liquid 
coming through coal; there are two things which I wish to bring before the Court: one is that only 
miners who know the mine be allowed to take charge of rescue parties, and the other is that safety-lamps 
be kept in readiness at all mines; therewere many there who would light the gas under similar circum-
stances to that in which I lit it; I never saw any other man do it, but 1 expect they would do as I did; 
I cannot say of my own knowledge that there is another man in the mine who would do' as I did; I am 
only speaking on my opinion; I have never seen men do it in other mines ; setting fire to it is an idea of 
my own. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on M. QUINN. 
this 10th day of September, 1002, before me,— 

CIIAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 
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Ada'n StaJJbrd, sworn, states: I live at Mount Kembla; I am a miner; I was employed by the 
Mount Kembla Company up to the time of the disaster; I have been working in the Mount Kembla Colliery 
for three years on the coal as a miner; on the 31st July I was working in the No. 1 district, just off Powell's 
flat, on the right-hand side; I was working with James i'sIcDill ; I was working in 71; we were working on 
a pillar ; we were just finishing the last skip between 1 and 2 o'clock, and McDill was about to leave me, 
and I suddenly became deaf; I felt no shock, and I heard no noise at all ; I said to McDill, " Come on, 
Jimmy, she has one up"; I saw a big NvliitQ cloud of smoke with a red streak through the middle toming 
down right thronh us ; it was coming straight through from where Price had been working ; it came from 
the direction of Price's flat; I felt deaf, and then I saw the cloud coming towards inc ; when I said to 
Mcl)ill, Jimmy, she has gone up,'' he said What do you mean ?" I said, "1 think she has exploded 
1\lcDiIl said, ' Conic on," and we both started away, and we were both knocked up against the rib ; we 
ran straight away from the cloud towards Powell's flat to get away from it and out ; we were knocked 
against the rib on our left sides ; I was not hurt ; all I felt was my thigh a bit sore, but I took no notice 
of it; I got up, and so did MeDill, and we got out on to Powell's flat ;  Tom Purcell, James Purcell, Torn 
Kemirick, and Dick Bellas came running there, too, from their bords ; Mc Dill reached Powell's flat with 
me also ; I could just hear Mdiii speak, but the deafness had not quite left inc ; Purcell and the others 
were standing U) talking, and there did not seem niuch the matter with them; McDill and I started to 
go out, and Me Dill's light went out; I went back in d gave him a light, and then he told me to go straight 
on, and I went on, straight on, to old No. 5, and I did not look back I did not lock back to see if IIcDill 
was following not till I got to No. S door ; I missed MeDill there, and found that lie had not followed 
me I did not go back ; I was in the dark then, 1 came along with my hands on the rib I do not know 

hat put my light out, there was only just a red ash on the lamp, no flame at all; I made straght out on to 
the shaft travelling road then I caught up to Dan Egan just in the shaft travelling road near all old stone 
(lyke ; Egarm had a light, awl I got a light from him ; he is alive now; when I got the light from Egan I 
went on in front ofEgan ; I left young Frank Purcell with Egan ; I went right out of the mine; that was the 
third cavil I had worked iii that district at different times ; I was working in the fourth right pillars, and 
before Powell's flat a a made I was working there; MeDill was my mate at the pillars ; I found black-
(lam1) in the fourth right pillars, we never found any other gas but black-damp in any place ; I have 
worked down iii the shaft where the long wall is now I worked there for one quarter ; I worked in the 
pillars behind the furnace for a quarter, we were also in a bord behind the furpace ; Jimmy Ballantine 
was may mate on those occasions, we never had any trouble there with the ventilation ; during the three 
years I have been the: e I have not found any gas but black-damp in any part of the mine. 

Cr,ss-e.ramineml bAir. Bruce Smith : Whenever I met with black-damp it used to put my light 
right out; I never met anything that put a blue cap on the lamp ; I never had a safety_lamp ; I was 
working wl:emi I felt the dc:tfness come on wlmemm we were working we were looking in the direction of 
the tunnel, the direction in which we would go out I felt the deafness come over me beore I saw 
anything ; I did not say " She's gone up ' when I felt deaf, I said that when I saw the cloud ; I looked 
across to time ivast workings just on our left where we had taken off two lifts (two slices), and we were 
on the third ; it had not fallen ; I samv the cloud to our left ; I saw the cloud some distance from us 
eomning towards its ; 1 dii not feel anytlmimig except that we were knocked against the rib ; I felt no dust 
and no heat I felt heat when I got to Powell's flat I felt mmo flame ; I did not hide my face at all, we 
were close to the skips when we were knocked agaimmst the rib, I do not know whether we nan or fell past 
them, the skips were not knocked against the ribs, they were not touched at all, the skips were full, with 
the ( xceptiomm if the last, a Imich was nearly full, we were knocked clean off our legs, we were forced on to 
the side, the flamne was U or 8 inches thick, it was coming broadside on, the flame did not come right up to 
us ; I did not fiirmn ammy opinion as to what the cloud was, the flame was just about in the centre of the 
cicmmd between the floor amid the roof; that was the only way we could get out, the way we came, I was making 
straight for the way I came in ; I did not know whero she had gone up, so that I did not chose the way 
out ; I just made for the way I imad come in I do not know where McDill fell ; I did, not form any olminion 
as to what put my light out, the light was put out when we got on to Powell's flat, the banging against 
the rib did not put the light out ; at Powell's flat when the light went out I felt hot, and the calves of my 
legs had' gomme, and I was strmmgghing alommg all I knew. 

Cross-e.vammmined by Air. J1'wle The smoke was not far behind us w hemi McDili and I were knocked 
agaimmst the rib; when we got it;) I smmp;ose the smoke was fullowimig us up; we ran to get away from it; 
the snmuke did not catch mis mmp till we got to Powell's flat, but when we got there we met it coming down 
in a diffem'emtt di:'cetion, from the rope road from out of Frost's flat; the rope road goes fromn Powell's 
flat past the telephone cabin ; after leaving Powell's flat on nmv way to old 'No. 5 aigh, I tr.mvcllcd 200 
yards o.m the senmmmd left rope road and passed through smoke; the smoke was going on pretty quick I felt 
it coming str:miglit meeting me; I did not fuel air, I felt smnoke, it was coining straight Ia me ; the vinml 
tl at was coming on Powell's flat was not very strong ;  it was not strong at all on Powell's flat ; I had 
moved about U or 7 yards from the ti mne I first saw the smoke till I fell down ; 1 fell omi my lcft side. 

G'ross-e.ranmimied bq illr. Ritchie All the smoke was hot after leavimig Powell's flat. 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, ADAM STAFFORD. 

this 10th day of September, 1002, before me,— 5 
CIIAs. C. RtSSELL, Coroner. 

Georqe Roinsey, sworn, states: 1 live' at Mount Kemnbia; I am a miner; I am now employed by 
the Southern Coal Company at present; on the 31st July last 1 was employed by the Mount Kembla 
Company; I have worked in Mount Kembla Colliery for six or sevemm years, working on coal as a miner; 
on the 31st July I was working with Jack Peace on the back rope heading in the section known as Jimmy 
Russell's limit, in the shaft district; about a quarter to 2 I put my cicthes on and came away; I came up 
the seventh right hammd rope road ; the blue line on the map indicates the way I went in that morning, 
and where I was working ; when I was coming out I had got about tive mimmutes on my way when I felt 
the air change ; the air got stronger there and I could Imardly keep my light in ; I fancied the air came 
the opposite direction for a few minutes, and then returned again on its own course ; I thought it was a 
fall in somne old workings and took no notice of it and went on ; I met some smoke and dust down about 
400 yards inbye of Mat's flat, at the place where I have marked on the plan XI; there seemed to be dust 
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mixed up with the smoke coming along; I journeyed on then through a door into the travelling road to a 
place where the right hand travelling road comes and connects with the main travelling road; from there 
I went to the furnace; I have flrawn a line to indicate the course I took; there was about twenty 
sitting round there at the door, and we heard that the furnace man had left, and three of us went on to 
the furnace—me, Michael 1\fcDunn, and Mark Green—to see if we could be of any assistance there; when 
we got there the furnace was burning fairly well ; we stopped there for eight or ten minutes, and kept on 
poking the fire up I then returned about twenty yards from the furnace and sat down to light my lamp, 
an ordinary flare-lamp ; I had all my clothes on then, and I remember nothing more till I found myself 
half way home with only my shirt and pants on I do not know how I got out of the mine ; Peace, my 
mate, got out all right; I have bden working on and off ever since I went to Kembla in the shaft section 
on one occasion the deputy, David Evans, stopped me from going into my place ; that was on the left 
hand of the shaft, between four and five years ago ; Evans said the reason why I was not to go in was 
because there was gas there ; I never met with any gas in tht district I have worked in the No. 1 
district ; I have worked in No. 1 off and on since I started to work at Kembla; about twelve months ago 
I saw some gas in the fourth left; I was working then with Edward O'Sullivan; I had been working the 
place with powder, but for a couple of days it seemed to work without powder and I started to do some 
cutting in the right-hand corner of the bord, and I went back to have my dinner, and afterwards when I 
went to work I held up my lamp and there was some gas burnt and came out for about a yard from the 
liice and then went out; I continued working there till the deputy came round ; William Nelson was the 

deputy ; I told him what had happened; I do not remember whatI said to Nelson or what he said to me 
the place was dangerous as to the roof, and we had reported every day for about a month and they took 
no notice of it ; we reported to the deputy, Nelson ; after I saw the gas I worked on in that place for 
about three days and was then shifted to another place; the brattice was well up there at any time except 
when the roof would fall and knock it down ; the roof used to fall there once or twice a week ; the 
brattice was put up after being knocked down like that; I never found gas in any other place in the mine; 
I have been speaking of fire-damp when I speak of gas. 

Cross-examined by M'. Bruce Smilir : I was working up near 0-ill's gannon bord on the occasion I 
found the gas at the place marked on the plan X2; I had had my dinner and had just gone hack to work; 
I thought I had met a greyback; I told Nelson I had seen gas and. that I had lighted. it; I do not 
remember what he said; he seemed to just treat it like as if it was unimportant; Edward O'Sullivan was 
my mate at that time; he is alive now; Nelson could see where the roof had fallen in the place I have 
mentioned; it used to come down in pieces; I always managed to get out of the way; the time I have 
mentioned is the only time I met with gas; I have not worked in other mines. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaqhl: On the day of the disaster the air I met was not hot; it seemed 
just the same as air rushing away after a big fall; I have seen something the same happen after a fall in 
the waste workings ; the smoke and dust about 400 yards down the road felt a bit warm, nothing hot to 
speak o; I thought that there had been a fire, from the smoke; I had no other reason for thinking there 
had been a fire in the pit ; Evans went with inc and got my-tools; when he would not let inc go in he told 
me to leave my lamp behind and took his safety-lamp. 

Cross-examined by Mr.Wade: For the whole month before I was shifted, I was not content to 
work in the place; I thought it was dangerous, on account of the roof; there were pieces of stone that 
used to fall down and knock the brattice; some of them might be over 1 cwt. ; it used to fall and 
break up sometimes, and at others it would not break I did not exactly ask for a move, but I asked him 
to let us drive another cut-through, so that we could get out if it started to work without going under it; 
I did not asic to be taken away from that place; when I asked him to let us drive the cut-through, he 
did not allow me ; we went on working, and then he shifted us, and put two men on to drive the cut-
through ; I thought Nelson was not doing his duty by leaving us there; I understood that I had to 
report all dangers to Nelson, and therefore did not report to anyone else; I knew that I was allowed to 
complain to the under-manager and to the manager; Mr. Leitch was the under-manager at the time; I 
did not see him nearly every day; I saw him occasionally ; he used to come into my working-place, 

sometimes ; I remember seeing him in the place where I thought it was dangerous once or twice ; he 
used to come in and have a look at the place, and go out again; he used to just ask us how *e were 
getting on; I knew what lie meant by that; I thought he just meant how the skips were, and how we 
was doing ; I told. Nelson of the danger of the place, in the presence of Leitch, once or twice, and he 
(Leitch) did not say anything ; I did not trouble complaining to Mr. Rogers, because when I growled 
once to Nelson about some other timber he told me that lie was the representative of the manager, and 
that any complaints I had were to be made to him ; I knew I could complain to Mr. Rogers; after I 
found the gas, I thought the place was dangerous for those three days; at the end of those three days, 
Nelson told inc to go into another place; I had seen no more gas during those three days ; the flame of 

the gas w-as a pale blue ; when the pit was not working, I used to go and help my father with a bit of 
bnshwork, and since the disaster I have been working as a fettler on the Southern Coal Company's line; 
that is the only way I earn my living. 

To a Juror: A flare-lamp was safe enough in Kembla, as far as I know; of course, I am not an 
old, experienced miner, and 1 would not like to form an opinion. - 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, GEORGE RAMSEY. 

this 10th day of September, 1902, before me,— 
Cns. C. RUssELL, Coroner. 

'rnest Staford, sworn, states: I live at Mount Kembla; I am a miner; I was working at Mount 
Kembla Colliery up to the 31st July last; between 2 and 3 o'clock on that day I was working in a pillar, 
No. 55, behind the furnace in the shaft district I did not notice anything till about 2 o'clock, when I 
noticed a draft of wind ; it was a great brveze; it came from No. 1 ; I was working where the cross is 
[Nfl on the plan; I had been working there for two months ; you could hear the rush of w-ind coming; 
Patsey McIntyre, the wheeler, asked me what it was; I said. I did not know, but it was something I had 
not heard before, and that we had better run; I had thought that was the best thing to do ; I had never 
heard anything like it before; Mat Poplin—some name like that—asked me which way the air was 
travelling; I had lit my lamp then, which had been blown out, and I looked and found the air was 
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travelling the opposite way; when we found that the air was going in the opposite way Mat Poplin said 
We had better run "; we ran; we travelled UI) to the No. 6 right rope road, and down that road to 

Mat's flat; we crossed from Mat's flat on to the travelling road; we got to two doors at the shaft, and 
sat down there for awhile ; there were some men there that were very much excited ; George MeKiunon 
and Jim Drysdale and Sandy White were the men ; they startedgoing away, and I left, too, at the finish, 
and got up into an old working where the bords were stopped ; I remember seeing Jim Fitzgerald and son 
up there ; I went to the left and got into a stopping against the main air-course ; I started to get some of 
the air through ; I got my hand through the top and got some fresh air; the others had left by that time 
I came back through a couple of cut-throughs I do not know how far ; it was in the waste workings; 
we came back by the road we went; there were a lot of men there; we sat down on some stones, and 
then Davey Evans came up and asked what we were doing there; we said we were trying to find our way 
out ; he said, Come this way "; we went with him and were brought out safely; we came out round the 
Iongwall by old No. 2; I have worked in the No. 1 district; I worked in the third right, and the fourth 
right, and the fourth left; my brother Albert was working with me in the third right; while we were 
working there we met with something unusual ; that is three years and a half ago ; it was at night, and 
I went to have my lunch at the turn, and when we were going into the face it lit ; I do not know what 
it was, you could not see anything ; it must have been gas ; it lit from our lamps which we had on our 
heads ; it lit when we were within about 3 yards of the face; when it lit I dropped down on to the floor, 
when I got up again I could just see a little blue light waving on the face ; 1 said to my mate, We had 
better get back to the tunnel," and on the way we met Dungey, the fireman, and we told him what had 
happened, he came in and had a look and said, Oh, there is nothing to be afraid of, whenever you are 
out for awhile you ought to take your shirts and brush the place out "; we did what he said ; when we 
went in we took our shirts and gave the place a brush out; we worked on that night ; on the following 
night we went to work there again, and then we worked on there for about a week ; I saw no more gas 
there during that week : at the end of that week we left the third right ; in the fourth right I worked 
with my brother Albert ; we worked in the fourth right for about twelve months in the pillars; I never 
found gas in any portion of the minn except that which I have mentioned in the third right. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Lysaqht: Tha gas travelled when we lit it about O yards, Ithink, just to the 
turn ; the gas seemed to taper from a foot to an inch ; I never saw any black-damp in there; I never saw 
any black-damp in the fourth right; I never saw any black-damp in the mine. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade : There was no brattice there in the third right; we were working out 
the pillars; we were 6 yards from the turn--5 or 6 yards ; there was no slip or joint in the roof there 
that I noticed ; the fireman told us to hold the lamp low when were brushing it out, and we did ; they do 
not carry brattice up to the face now, not where I have worked in pillars. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on E. STAFFORD. 
this 10th day of September, 1902, before me,— 5 

CHAS. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Willians Hopkins, sworn, states : I live at Keira; I am a miner ; I am employed as a furnacemnan 
at Keira; I have been nearly fifty years a miner; I worked once in the Mount Kembla Colliery ; it is 
somewhere about nine months ago since he left there ; I knew a in named William Broadhead 
at Mount Kembla; I was working with him (Broadhead) in the colliery; we were working down the 
shaft road in the shaft district; I do not remember the number of the bord; I did not know Duugey, the 
fireman; I never heard Broadhead make a complaint to Dungev, or any other fireman, about gas being in 
the mine; I never saw the sign of gas while I was working in the shaft district with Broadhead. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith: I worked with Broadhead; I did not work in any other place 
but the shaft district; I never saw a sign of gas in Kembla Colliery; I only worked there altogether for 
three mouths. 

Gross-examined by Mr. Lysaght: I was working both on a pillar and a bord while I was at Kembla; 
I was working with Broadhead on the bord, not on the pillar ;  I never worked on any pillar with 
Broadhead; no one told me that I had better say I did not want to answer any questions; I did not tell 
any person that I could give this evidence; I never spoke to anyone about Mount Kembla Mine since this 
inquest started, unless I met a mate and had a yarn with him; 1 was not subpmnaed to give evidence here; 
I wanted to clear myself, because my name was in the paper I heard that my name was in the paper a few 
weeks ago; I heard that Broadhead had said that we had fired shots that exploded; some of the chaps up 
the mine told me that he had said that; Mr. J. C. Jones did not tell me that ; I came here on my own 
nobody asked me what evidence I could give; I never saw the sergeant at all till now; I never spoke to 
Mr. Barry about it; I never spoke to Mr. Rogers or to Mr. Wade ; Mr. Barry did not speak to me, nor 
did I speak to him about the evidence I could give in this matter. 

Cross-examined by 2JIr. Wade: I remember going down to " Galviu's Hotel" last week; I saw you 
on the verandah at Galviu's last week ; I saw a gentlenian at the office, lie wrote something down; I 
worked six weeks in a bord in No. 1, that was bord 78 ; 1 never worked with Broadhead at all in No. 1; 

put a mark to the parer in the office. 
his 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, WILLIAM x TIPKINS. 
this 10th day of September, 1902, after being ( mark. 
read to deponent, and he appearing to understand Witness to mark,— 
same, before me,— ) CHARLES NOBLE, Senior-constable. 

Cii.&s. C. RUSSELL. Coroner. 

Alfred Ashley A/kinson, sworn, states : I live at Randwick, I am time Chief Inspector of Coal 
Mines for the State of New South Wales ;  I have occmpici that position for five years ; previous to that 
I was manager of the Barrow collieries in South Yorkshire I have had about twenty-seven and a half 
years' experience in coal -mines ; I have made it my business to familiarise myself from time to time with 
all the literature available on coal-mines ; I am familiar with all the reports issued from the Home Office 
in recent years on explosions in coal-mines ; I was at Newcastle on the 31st July last, and left there by 
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the ten past 3 train and learnt of the accident at Kembla on my arrival at Redfern; I had a conversation 
with the Premier and took the first train to Wollongong at half past 3 am. on the 1st of August; I 
arrived at Wollongong about 0 o'clock and got out to the mine about 8 ; I there saw Dr. Robertson and 
had a look at the plan, and arranged to go into the mine; I was accompanied into the mine by David 
Evans; we went in by the north or daylight tunnel some distance from the main tunnel; we went into 
the workings on the left-hand side of No. 1 rigit, along towards Aiken's place; I met a party of 
rescuers consisting of Mr. Thomas Cook, manager of Hourit Pleasant Colliery, Mr. Johnson, Bulli Colliery, 
1\lir. Adam Frost, senior, Mr. Adam Frost, junior, and several others; the blue line indicates the way I went 
in ; I met that party on the left-hand side of No. 1; there were some men removing the body of John 
Purcell from bord 105, which is the first. bord on the left-hand side of the No. 1 main level ; Thomas 
Purcell, I understood, had gone out earlier, and had been found on the travelling-way near No. 2 right 
the place on the plan marked Xl is the place where the likens were working; the place marked X2 is 
the position where the fire was reported the dv be'bre, after the explosion ; 1 went with Mr. Johnson to 
the position where he said he had seen smoke the day before, and some distance up the bord, and found 
that, although there was a smell as though there had been a fire, there was then no smoke, and the fire 
had evidently been extinguished; several of the party were pretty well exhausted, as they had been 
working all night ; there was a want of more stretchers and fresh hands, so it was decided to go out and 
get some fresh men; we went out; in the afternoon I went down with Mr. Robertson, of the Metropolitan 
Colliery, down the No. 1 travelling road; we went in about 3 o'clock by the road which I have indicated 
on the plan by the line ; we went right up No. 1 travelling road, past the telephone cabin, past the 
35-acre goaf, and down No. 4 left, to Price's flat; we went through all the working in Price's flat and 
in Powell's flat, nn.1 during that time the bodies of sixteen or seventeen men were found and were 
located ; all those men, I think, had died from aft er-damp; I had been making observations all the time, 
although I did not make many notes; on the 211d August I made a single line-tracing for my own use 
from the colliery plan ; we went into the mine about 3 in the afternoon ; the bodies of the two men Nees 
and Stafford had not been locate!, and we went in particularly to ascertain where they were; we found 
the bodies of Nees and WI'. Stafford ; they were about 95 yards apart, in the back or return heading of 
Stafford's going bord ; the point marked on the plan NB is where Nees' body was; Nees was found lying 
on his back dressed ; Stafford was found lying on his stomach, also dressed, and xvith his head inbye ; they 
both appeared to have been retiring from the after-damp, from which they had, died ; they had been 
retiring towards the face. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on ) A. A. ATKINSON. 
the 10th day of September, 1902, before me,— 

CnAs. C. flt'ssEar., Coroner. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house, Wollongong, on the 11th day 
of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—CnAs. C. liusseLa, Coroner. 

Alfred Ashley Alithison, recalled, states: In my inspection, I had an ordinary safety-lamp; Mr. 
1\lcGeikic, who accompanied me, was carrying a h3 drogen lamp ; generally speaking, with an ordinary 
safety-lamp, you cannot detect less than 2 per cent. of fire-damp ; with a hydrogen lamp you can detect 
as low as 41  per cent. ; McG-cikie and I looked at the results ; in the place where Nees and WI'. Stafford 
had worked, there was 1 per cent, of fire-damp ; in the next place to that a per cent., and in the next, 
Sf) heading, 1 per cent. I made my next inspection on the 4th August; I was then accompanied by 
Messrs. Rogers, manager of Kembla, Humble, Inspector of Collieries in the Newcastle district, Mr. Barr, 
marmacer of the Co-operative Company, Mr. McGekie, manager of Wres t Wallscnd Colliery, Mr. 
Littlejohn, whe at one time was under-manager of Mou:. Remnbla ; we went down the travelling road to 
the shaft district and up No. 5 right (old No. 5) up near to Forsythe's working place I have indicated 
the route we took by a hue ; there is a door between the intake and the return No. 5;ive found the door 
undisturbed,notjuing was disturbed, buCthe old No.5 return ; near Forsythe's working place there was a dead 
horse ; Forsythe had, I believed, NvoikeJ alone, and he had got out alone ; I maik the place where Forsythe 
was working X5; we went along time rope road to Price's flat ; there were several empty tubs on the flat 
they showed distinct evidences of force inbye towards the west ; I have marked an arrow on the plan 
indicating the direction of the force ; we went into 72, and there found the remains of a blown-out shot; 
that shot had been put into the coal 3 feet ; the coal was not thrown I think the shot had been fired 
probably on the morning of the 31st July, but I think it had nothing to do with the disaster ; there was 
a full tub at the en.l of the rails ; the disturbance in the westerly direction had not affected that tub ; I 
tested for -as there with the ordinary safety-lamp, and found nothing; I did not test there with the 
hydrogen ; we came back from 72 to Price's flat, and then up Stafford's going bord into No. 52 working-
place, in the pillar workings ; it was a cut-through which was being driven through a pillar ; Best and 
Russell were engaged there; we tested there for gas nith the hydrogen lamp, and found - per cent.; we 
did not use the hydrogen lamp at 72, because we had only a limited supply, and had to conserve it; we 
examin'd the goaf edge several feet above the top of the seam in anaongstthe fallen stone ; w-e found i per 
cent, of gas in those cavities with the hydrogen lamp ; about 6 feet above the top of the seam I tried for gas 
with the ordinary safety-lamp and found no -as ; our finding none there with the ordinary safety-lamp is 
corn patibe wiLh finding l-  per cent. with the hydrogen lamp; we crawled up the fall some feet into the cavity 
in the goaf ; we returned down Stafford's going bord and tested the edge of the 15-acre. goaf on the low 
sde of No. 4 lefr rope road ; we found no gas there with the ordinary lamp; we then went on to Stafford's 
flat at Stafford's flat the tubs showed indications of force towards the west; I noticed the dust 
lm:irtieularly on the outbye end of No. 4 left rope ral ; there was some quantity of dust, on the floor 
more particularly I think that part of the dust I saw had been blown there, but I cannot say what 
propotion I took a sample of that dust and ha I it examined microscopically to see if it had been 
coime I ; the Mineralogist of the Mines Department reported to me that there were no signs of coking ; I 
took that dust from the floor; from there we went to wmtimin about 4 or 5 yards of the last cut-through in No. 1 
main level; there is a jig wheel there which fences the main level off ; there is somewhere about 90 yards 
from the jig wheel to the face ; we went beyond time jig wheel ; it was not fèned off beyond the jig wheel, 
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I)etweeft the jig wee1 and the face, when I was there; at a point about 4 or 5 yards on the outbye side of 
the last cut-through we tested for gas with an ordinary safety-lamp; the two levels are driven about 12 
yards beyond the last cut-through ; they usually fence off such a place as the back level near to the last 

ca working-place, which in this se was that of the two Morris' ; where we tried for gas there with the 
ordinary safety-lamp we found gas ; the percentage was not recorded, but there was sufficient to be 
explosive ; we went then on to Morris' place, No. Si) ; we tried there for gas with the hydrogen flame and 
found it- per cent. ; there was a slight deposit of coke-dust on the inbye side of the props near to where 
the two Morris' had been found in the heading, opposite the last cut-through but one; the jig wheel I 
mentioned just now was not disturbed at all ; the dust I last mentioned was sent to the Department and 
was proiaounced to be coked; the jig wheel was fixed by heavy timbers, and it would be no test as to 
whether had been force up there ; I might also say that there was sonic of the canvas that was burnt near 
to the place the Morris' were found in the heading ; we then went into some of the places on the left-hand 
side looking inbye of the No. 1 main level and then went to the place where the fire had been which we 
had seen before; that is l)ard 87 there was canvas, paper, and the bark of props, and the bottom of a 
prop, all of which had been burnt ; all these things were all pretty well within a radius of 2 or 3 yards 
I have no doubt there had been fire there; a few yards below where that fire had been there was what 
appeat-ed to be a close fall, that is, a fall of the roof which you cannot travel over; I think that would 
contribute to deadening the fire; we went into 87 bord and tested for gas, but found it clear, we 
tested there with the ordinary safety-lamp; the door between the No. 1 main level and the back level on the 
No. 5 right rope road was open, and 1 understand had been left open by some of the rescue parties, in 
order to short circuit the air with a view to the more speedy recovery of some of the bodies; that 
completed my inspection for that clay I did not go in again till the 6th August, and I was then accom-
panied by Mr. Humble, Mr. Watson, John Morrison, and Adam Frost, junior; we went in by the daylight 
tunnel, and measured the air near the tunnel month, and found 36,000 cubic feet per minute ; we then 
went into the No. 2 right; I understand that all the men in that part of the mine had got out all right 
there was nothing unusual to note there; that part had only been working ten days, and the men had 
come there from the No. 4 right pillars ; along the cross-cut heading Mr. humble tested the goaf edge 
of the 35-acre goat both with the ordinary and hydrogen flame, and found no gas ; at the second epening 
down the No. 5 right rope road we tested for fire-damp but found none ; we tested there with the 
hydrogen lamp ; in the third opening of the same road Mr. humble tested with the ordinary safety-lamp 
5 or 6 feet above the level of the top of the seam and found no fire-damp ; we then went into the twelve 
working-places I have marked on the plan on the right-hand side of the No. 5 rope road; we found no 
disturbance there at all and no fire-damp; all the men who had been w-orking in those places got out 
alive, and, with one exception, by the daylight tunnel ; between the two levels on the No. 5 right rope 
road there is a door built in stone ; the stones had been forced east from the No. 1 main level towards 
the back level, where they stood facing north and south ; the door I refer to is the middle one of the 
three shown on the plan; the door on time back level was set in building stone ; that was disturbed and 
blown in the direction of the No. 5 right  rope road that would indicate that the force had come from 
time face of the back level. but I cannot draw any hard-amid-fast conclusion from that as to the force 
having originated in the face of the back heading ; we then went up the back level and noticed the 
stopuligs ; the first and second stoppings were blown with some force towards the main heading ; the 
third one the force was considerably less, and it appeared to have been disturbed only near the top ; the 
stopp:ngs had been there in order to convey the air to the face of the worlcings ; the force wasin the 
direction  cf the main level going west ; in the back heading, j ust on the inbve side of Morris' place, we 
found a piece of canvas wrapped round the bottom of a prop, showing a sign of inbye force, the opposite 
direction to that in which time stonew-orlc of time door had been blown ; Adam Frost, junior, said that on the 
(liv of the cxidosion he left Frank Dungey, the deputy, in charge of the district in Gill's going bord 
ahomut 1 o'clock, and the rope had just started after dinner; it was explained that Dungey would go into 
time working-places Nos. 85 and 86, and from there along the line of cut_throughs towards the No. 1 
main level ; he would probably have got there it'lie had taken that course about 2 o'clock ; on the 
i ibyc side of the last cut-through, we examined portion of a canvas that had been put up for ventilating 
the place ; it was blown apparently slightly inbvc ; that day we went right up to the face; from all I 
could ascertain, Aikens and Tost and Purcell had had very little time to move from their working-places 
also Thomas and Robert Jones, who were found dead in their own bord (No. 87) ; Aiken and son were 
found at the top of the bord, and about 13 yards from where they were working ;  the fimet that the men 
were found dead so close to their work leads me to the conclusion that they had not time to get away 
1 observec the tubs in Aiken's place, and saw an indication of force in the direction of the cut-throughs 
towards the west; in 83 the indications of force were towards the north inbye ; there was a dead horse 
and some tubs there; we then got down to the bottom of Gill's going bord, and noticed, either then or 
later on, that a three-eights chain, which had been used for lowering skips, had been stretched out, 
apparentl d. y by the force, and laid round the corner of a pillar in the No. 4 left travelling road, one en 
being right round the corner of the pillar; we then went along the No. 4 left travelling road, and examined 
the door opposite, which is fixed between the two headings, and that door show-ed most distinct force 
towards the east; there was a dnifv of coal-dust next the rib of the travelling road opposite to the door, 
which unheated a force in an easterly direction ; that was the end of my inspection on the 6th August; 1 
went in again on the 7th, with 1-Iumble, Watson, Morrison, McGeikie, and A. Frost, junior; we went into 
time main tunnel, and down the No. 1 main haulage road; Nye found that it had fallen from the tunnel mouth 
UI) to time .Iunction  of No. i with time main tunnel ; that had been cleared away before the jury went out; 
we continued down the No, 1 right main road ; there was a very large fall opposite to the headings leading 
from the old furnace-shaft ; the falls only indicate great concussion; all the principal indications of force 
mm the outbye side of No. 2 right were outbye; the stoppings were blown right and left of the main road 

there was an old i-au-girder, used as a support for the roof, which was bent 12 inches in the centre outbye; 
it was an ordinary 50 or (hO lb. rail ; another rail, which was about the same length, was broken, and 
showed similar signs of force outbye; J. Walker, a clipper, had been round 12 yards on the outbye side 
of time No. 2 right empty road, about 25 yards, so I understand, outbye of his usual clipping place; a 
door below the No. 2 right rope road and in the No. 1 travelling road, shoived signs off, ree outbye; the 
building stones at the side being forced in that direction ; we then went on to No. 3 left ; there there 
\vmls a large heap of coal—about 5 or 6 toims probably; I cannot account for that; there were four tubs 
16825 29-11 about 



about 38 yards further inbye, but they were full; there bad been a wooden chock near to the No. 3 
left rope end; it was down, and the timbers had been forced about 5 yards outbye; we found four full 
tubs on the rope road on the inbye side of No. 3 left; the second one was standing on its end; the 
wheels facing outbye; the force indicated was outbye; we examined at No. 4 right and found a little 
black-damp; there had been a canvas door there, but it had been blown out; we found a piece of canvas 
under the four full tubs mentioned, that is outbye of where the canvas door had been; there was also a 
piece of canvas found about 17 feet on the inbye side of the No. 4 right road end; both the pieces of 
canvas were unburnt; the rollers which are used for the ropes to run on inbye of No. 4 contained small 
collections of stones and rubbish on the outbye ends of the rollers, indicating a force inbye or north from 
there; No. 4 right appears to be the point at which the forces diverge, one up the other down; if a great 
rush of air had come out of the goaf at No. 4 right and struck against the rib opposite, that would 
perhaps account for such indications of force as I saw; if such a rush of air came out at No. 4 right there 
might, having regard to the lay of the road, be a little greater tendency for the force to go outbye; from 
a point three chains below No. 4 right to 6 chains below No. 4 right there was a little water on the floor; 
this showed that it was near the basin, or the lowest point, or perhaps that some of the water sumps had 
been running over; the right hand stoppings at that point were blown towards the travelling road from 
the No. 1 main level; that showed that the force which was in the main level was towards the travelling 
road ; at a point 174 yards below No. 4 right there was a broken tub wheel ; IS yards further inbye there 
was a wheel and an axle, which completed the pair, and 7 yards further inbye was the body and frame of 
the tub with a pair of wheels underneath; about 40 yards along the No. 4 left rope road was a rail girder 
supported by a prop at one end, the other prop was blown out inbye, and the unattached end of the girder 
had been forced 6 feet inbye from its original position; that all showed force inbye ; we went on then to 
Stafford's and Price's flat; the force as shown by the tubs in No, 4 left at the bottom of Gill's going bord and 
Stafford's going bord was inbye or towards the west; the force seemed to die out between Price's and Powell's 
flats on the rope road; I then visited the remaining places in No. 1 and found nothing unusual; in Moon and 
Prior's place there was a shot prepared, but not fired; the number of that place is 58; I have marked the 
place X 6; that ends the inspection on the 7th; on the 8th 1 went in again with Messrs. Humble, D. A.W. 
Bobertson, James Watson, McG-eikie, and John Morrkon; we went the No. 1 travelling road to No. 2 right 
rope road; there were indications of force in about thirty empty tubs in a north-easterly direction; we 
went on then to No. 4 right; there was a large stone about 3 ft. x 3 ft. Sin, lying in No. 4 right road on the 
inbye side, or between the travelling road and the goaf; I could not place where that stone had come from 
I could not trace any cavity near there into which it would fit, and I could not form a conclusion as to 
where it had come from; the stone appeared to me to have been there either before the explosion or 
simultaneously with the explosion; I think it had not been there very long as it would have interfered 
with the traffic; probably it came there as a result of the explosion ; there was a prop between the 
travelling road and the goaf which showed a force in the direction of the goaf; we examined for gas there; 
we did not find any; we examined there with the hydrogen; I examined the stones at the edge of the 
goaf and found them quite clean, or not blackened with coal-dust, iudieatiug to me that at least some part 
of the fall had taken place subsequent to the explosion; that ended the inspection on that day; on the 
12th August I went in again with Messrs. Watson and Adam Frost, junior; we went in by No. 1 
travelling road; the air crossing below No. 2 right was blown out and indicated a force right and left; 
we then went into No. 3 right and went 36 yards from the travelling road; we examined the stones at 
the goaf edge, and in that case they were quite black with coal-dust; we tested for fire-damp there and 
found none; then we went up to the face of No. 1 right, up to the end; I noticed some more coking on 
the props on the inbye side; there was none or very little coking on the outbve side of the props; there 
was also a little of that coking on the rib side; we tried for gas with the ordinary lamp and found none; 
we listened for singing, or gas issuing from the face, and heard none; I noticed the brattice cloth 
14 yards from the back heading, and it was not burned; there was nothing particular about the roof stone 
in the back heading; the canvas in the front heading was not burned; at the bottom end of the working 
place No. 105 there is a prop with a slab of timber on it; the prop at the other end of the slab was blown 
out; the unattached end of the slab had been forced inbye, or to the west, about 4 feet out of its original 
position; attached to the slab was a small piece of canvas for driving the air up the bord; we went on 
near to Aiken's place, and there was a very little sign of coke-dust there; that was the whole of that 
visit; On the 3rd of September I went in again with Messrs. Humble and Watson, and went down the No. 1 
travelling road; there was a little water on the floor in two or three places; down near the No. 4 right, 
opposite to the shunt and in the travelling road, we found a canvas door and frame next to the coal rib; 
if that canvas and frame occupied the position of it door in the shunt it indicates to me the presence of a 
force from No. 1 main level towards the travelling road or goaf; there was an old door frame in the 
travelling road on the inbye side of No. 4 right, and building stones at the side showed a force inbye or 
towards the north; at the No. 4 left rope road end is an empty tub turned at right angles to the road; 
I was not able to form a conclusion as to which way the force had driven it ;  further in there were three 
empty tubs turned on their sides; on the tub furthest in the telephone wire was wrapped round the 
drawbar, and the same wire was underneath one of the boards forming the tub side; I have not been able 
to form any conclusion of which way the tubs had gone; beyond the empty tubs were two full tubs; the 
coal from the first one appeared to have been moved inbye; there is very little timber below No. 4 right UI) 

to the face which affords any indication of force; in the left-hand cut-through the first on the inbye side of 
No.5 right the canvas door had been forced to the west, or inbye; that practically completes the data from 
which my conclusions have been drawn; I am in doubt, as between two points, as to the locality of the 
disaster; one is that a fall may have taken place in the No. .1 right, at the edge of the 35-acre goat, forcing 
out air possibly mixed with a small percentage of fire-damp, and this would travel along the main road, 
possibly raising some coal-dust, which would become ignited at the nearest naked light, and from that point 
the explosion would radiate; the other is near the face of the back heading, where I have put the blue X; 
with reference to the No, 4 right, from the appearance of the stone at the goaf edge being quite clean it 
affords proof that the fall had certainly not finished until after the explosion had taken place; the 
principal difficulty which I have in deciding as between the two points is the contradictory evidences of 
force on the No. 1. main level between No. 4 right and the face ; the other theory is that one of the 
Morris' ignited a small quantity of fire-damp near the face of the back heading, and this has raised some 
coal-dust, which has been the means of carrying the explosion along; there does not appear to me to be 
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any sufficient reason for the Morris' leaving their working-place and going up this heading, as there were 
no rails to be got up there, and I understand that the place had been fenced ; the position in which their 
bodies was found has proved, however, that they had left their working-place and gone up the back 
heading either before or after the explosion ; the inspection on the 4th of August showed, that these 
places do give off some fire-damp—that is, the headings do--although it may,  be explained that the 
ventilation had been shut off when we were there for some three days, in consequence of the door having 
been left open in the No. 5 right rope road ; the indications about the stoppings are quite consistent 
with the view that the explosion started in the back heading—that is, the three stoppings between the 
two headings on the inbye side of No. 5 right rope road ; I have heard it said frequently, during the 
course of this inquest, that there has never been fire-damp found in Kembla; there is the case of the 
Camerton mine, England, which had been worked, for about 100 years ; fire-damp had never been seen 
in it, and an explosion occurred which hilled several men, and the cause was attributed to a shot on a 
haulage road igniting coal-dust ; tests were made, after the explosion, with the hydrogen lamp, and no 
fire-damp was found I have the report of that, issued by the Home Department; the report was made 
by one of her Najesty's Inspectors of Mines--Joseph Martin; the following sentence appears 
in that report—" Fire-damp is absolutely unknown, as a fact or by rumour, in any of the eight 
seams forming the Radstock series in any part of the coal-field ; it is consequently unnecessary 
to say that there has never been any seen in this colliery  either before or since this explosion 
I know also of a case at the Bi-ancepeth pit, where an explosion of coal-dust took place 
in a hopper ; that is quoted in the Report of the T%oval Commission on Coal-dust in 1891, 
of which Mr. Joseph Chamberlain was chairman ; it is universally acknowledged that a very 
small percentage of gas will be sufficient to cause an explosion in a cloud of coal-dust; Abel 
says V per cent, of gas with an open light will be sufficient, and Galloway 1 per cent. ; explosions have 
been known in mills from the flour-dust frequently ; an ordinary safety lamp is not sufficient test of the 
quantity of gas which is sufficient to cause an explosion of coal-dust , it is not sufficiently delicate; that 
is referred to in Abel; Galloway says that 111). of coal-dust to 160 cubic feet of air forms an explosive 
composition with 1 per cent. of fire-damp ; about 72' nzs. of coal-dust per lineal foot of the roads at 
Kembla would be sufficient to be dangerous in the presence of 1 per cent, of fire-damp, if raised in a cloud 
in the presence of a naked light ; with a cloud of coal-dust, explosions have resulted from a shot, without 
the presence of any gas; Camerton Colliery is one case; Altoft'.s Colliery, in Yorkshire, is another; and 
there are several others in which juries have found that; the contradictory nature of the evidences of 
force which I saw at Kembla is very characteristic of coal-dust explosions ; from the centre of an explosive 
area the forces radiate in all directions, and with a repetition of those explosive areas you may have 
contradictory evidences of force over the same ground ; - if there were only one big explosion of gas in a 
mine, all the evidences of force would radiate from the one common centre; gas is frequently given off 
from the strata above coal seams ; gas is fi'equentlyfound in strata lying over coal seams, more particularly 
in shales, but sometimes in sandstone, and where the pressure of the gas iii some cases tends to break 
down the roof it has been necessary to put bore-holes in the roof to relieve the pressure. 

Gross-examined by Mr. Lysaqht : When I was making the testswith the hydrogen lamp I discovered 
the percentage of gas in a particular place some of the places were on the goat' edge, and others were in 
the coal faces ; having regard to the law of the diffusion of gases, it is probable that a somewhat similar 
atmosphere would prevail in the immediate vicinity of where the test was made; the tests were generally 
near the roof, and in some cases when we were testing the edge of the goaf above the top of the seam 
the gas which I found in an explosive quantity with the safety-lamp was about 1 foot or IS inches from 
the roof ; 1 had some idea as to how far the face was from the point where we found it; the face was 
about 20 yards from where we found the gas I concluded that a mixture of air and gas in some proportion 
extended right on to the face; the area is about 4 yards wide and about 2 yards high ; there were 160 
cubic yards in that roadway ; assuming that there was 2 per cent. of gas from the point where I made 
the test to the face, there would be an accumulation of 3 , cubic yards of fire-damp in that area; I recollect 
that Morrison said that place was fenced off; I remember he said that it was not inspected on the 
morning of the 31st, and I renmemnber someone saying that the place had not worked for some months 
the seam there is in a part of the mine which is on a rice, and per1aps it may be said that if gas is made, 
it is a likely place for gas to accumulate ; you cannot hear gas issuing from the face there ; I know where 
the bodies of the Morris' were found ; I was told they were found between 70 and 80 yards from the 
face I should say that it is improbable that gas extended 80 ards from the face to the place where 
their bodies were found ; it is not a fair conclusion to say that 'the gas ignited where their bodies were 
found, for there are cases in which men have got some distance after being burnt; the nearest body of the 
Morris' to the fourth right was over 500 yards from it, and the bodies of Nixon and Morrison were 
about 230 yards from the fourth right ; assuming that there was a fall in the fourth right, I should think 
that coal-dust could be carried 200 or 300 yards by  a big w ave of air or gas; I could only see the edge of 
the goaf at No. 4 right, and that gives inc no idea of the extent of the fall beyond the edge of the goaf; 
I think that if the fall took place in No. 4 right, and raised a cloud of dust, that the atmosphere was 
probably impregnated with a small percentage of fire-damp when it ignited ; I do not know whether, if 
some of the stones were removed at the edge of the goaf, it would be possible to ascertain whether time 
fall took place before the explosion ; it (the fall) might have taken place simultaneously with the 
explosion ; but the evidence is that it was completed afterwards; if the disaster took place in the back 
heading, I think that it was a small explosion of gas and air I should say that the explosion, after 
initiation, wherever it has been, has been carried along entirely by coal-dust ; I have heard that Kembla 
Stafford was burnt macar Stafford's gannon hoed ; f. I think it very improbable that there would be fire-damp 
all along the road towards the place where Kembla Stafford was found ; there was no evidence of the 
explosion having travelled far up Stafford's going board I think that it would be improbable that the 
flame that Adamn Stafford saw was gas I have seen an official record of the burning of Gallagher by gas 
having found gas imi the way I have stated, 1 should say that if time trouble comnuienced at No. 4 right, I 
think that the explosion originated from a combination of coal-dust and fire-damp and a naked light ; if 
it started in Morris' place, the initial explosion was fire-damp and air, ignited at a naked light I have 
no decided preference for one theory or the other, and I think that no future examination would enable 
me to decide; the No. 4 right had been a haulage road for those pillars, and there was a certain quantity 
of dust, although not an abnorumally large quantity, in the vicinity of the fourth right ; if a shot were 
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fired into it, it might be dangerous, but not under normal conditions ; that was not a place where shots 
were likely to be fired; supposing that the explosion started anywhere there, I think it probable that 
there was a sufficient quantity of coal-dust in No. 4 right to have carried it some considerable distance; 
I think that the fourth left rope road was about as dusty a piece of the road as I saw, and once the 
explosion was initiated, there was, I think, sufficient dust to carry the explosion along for a considerable 
distance; I think that the proof of the explosion is the best evidence as to whether such conditions were 
dangerous once an explosion was started; I think that the explosion has been carried on by coal-dust 
after it was initiated. 

Cross-examined by Mi'. Wade: We examined, the places in the back heading about ninety to ninety-
six hours after the disaster; that particular spot is almost the highest point in the mine ; the ventilation 
for the whole of No. 1 section had been deranged for the whole of those four days. 

Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wollon gong, A. A. ATKINSON. 
this 11th day of September, 1902, before ine, 5 

Cuxs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest resumed, in pursuance of adjournment, at the Court-house Wollongong, on the twelfth 
day of September, 1902, at 10 o'clock a.m.—CaAs. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

A/fred Ashley Atkinson, recalled, states: The effect of the door at No. 5 right being open would 
not be to prevent the air going up to the face of the back heading ; the usual course of the air was down 
No. 1 main level and through the cut-through on the outbye side of Morris' place, and the mere fact of 
the door alone being open would not prevent the air taking that course ; but the explosion deranged the 
ventilation in other respects, which prevented the air going up to the face of the main headings ; I dd 
not take a note of the distance the rubbish could be traced that was heaped against the rollers; I can say 
that it commenced at No. 4 right and went inbye, but I cannot say the exact distance; there would be a 
canvas door on the outbye side of the cut-through opposite to Morris' place; I do not remember tracing 
that door ; the contradictory evidences of force in No. 1 level were the contradictory statements with 
reference to the relative positions ii which the body, arm, and head of IDungey had been found, the 
entanglement of the telephone wire amongst three empty tubs, it being attached to the in-end of one of 
these tubs, round the dravbar, and threaded underneath one of the boards of the same tub at the out-end, 
and, generally speaking, the dmfficulty in ascertaining the direction of force amongst all those tubs between 
-No. 4 left to a point a little beyond No. 5 right, and the general absence of timber supports between No. 
1 right and the face to assist in indicating the direction of force I think that Dungey's head and arm 
being off could have been caused by flying timber; stones being driven might also do it ; if he were in the 
centre of an explosion that would be a very likely cause of his arm and head being off; I do not think there 
was much evidence of disturbance just at the point where Dungey's body was found ; there were very 
distinct evidences lost a short distance on the outbye side and also on the inbye side of where the body 
was found I do not think that it would necessarily be that if he were the centre of an explosion the 
body would be fcund in it; in such a case I would expect to find evidences of flame about the body; I 
think that after the head was detached from the body it would go the greater distance, for it would be 
lighter than the rest of the body; if the weights of the two bodies were proportionate to their respective 
surfaces, I should expect the body with the larger surface to be blown farther; the telephone wire was 
wrapped round the draw-bar of the tub at the end nearest to the face; the wire was embedded into the 
wood at the out end of the tub; the entangled tub was about 13 yards on the inbye side of No.4 left; the 
tubs were off the rails; I think the telephone wire was detached from inbye, but I could not swear to 
that; the four or five full tubs between the fourth left and fifth right were inbye of the 
entangled tub ; the outbye skip of those skips was turned at right angles to the road; the note 
I made at the time is as follows :-" At 35 yards, dead horse; at 38 yards, full tub on 
side cross road ; coal thrown inward; swingle tree and tail chain lying on tub but not attached ; " the 
distances mnentoned are from No. 4 left I do not remember which way the wheels of the skip that was 
lying at right angles were facing, that indicated to me that the force at that particular point had been 
inbye; in No. 4 right a number of props were lying which I understood had been some distance nearer 
the goaf, but it is very dillicult to say what position that timber occupied before the explosion ; had it been 
timber in position blown out it would have afforded clearer evidence ; there were forces in both directions 
both coming in and going out to No. 4 right ; althiouh I was unable to discover the position that the 
stone I mentioned yesterday had occupied before the explosion, I think it is more likely that it was on 
the outbye side of the travelling road rather than the inbye side ; there was also a prop near to the goaf 
on the right side which showed a force towards the goaf; the stone, as near as I can remecaber, was 
28 or 29 yards from the goaf edge, in No. 4 right; I could not say that that stone had the appearance of 
a stone coming from the upper strata above the goaf, this particular stone was dirty I think, the stones at 
the goaf edge were clean ; the brattice at the back iseadiug was deranged, but I could not swear that it 
was actually torn; if everything was regular the air current would be going up the back heading and then 
back into No. 105 bord; if Morris went through a fence that would be in violation of the rules; I could 
not understand any reason quite apart from the rules for his going in there; I think it unlikely from 
what I saw that the gas was explosive at Morris' cut-through, because Morris' place was the first one on 
the air current ; if there was gas there I do not think it would be more likely that there would be an 
explosion in No. 105 bord, because the air in No. 105 bord would be increased by any scale which would 
pass through the canvas door in the No. 1 main level between the cut-through opposite to Norris' place, 
and the one on the outbve side of it; a considerable quantity of air gets through canvas doors usually, 
the air from the main intake at that point would be a good many hundred times more than the scale; if 
a place had been idle for eight months I would not expect all the gas to have drained out; but it would, 
I think, be getting less as the issue of gas would probably be getting less ; I think that if a naked light 
had caine in contact with the gas, if there was gas there, there would have been an explosion; I cannot 
say that if there had been gas given off from the right headings, and the air current working, that I would 
have expected an explosion from a naked light before the 31st July; I visited Aiken's place; I made no 
note of there being paper about there which was unburnt, but there may have been; the nearest prop 
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which was coked to No. 4 right was on the inbyc side of the cut-through where Morris and son were found; 
so far as I remember that was the nearest indication of coke-dust to No. 4 right; I collected the coke-dust 
from near the top of the prop, but I could not say whether it went right down to the bottom or not; I 
noticed that near the goaf in No. 4 right it was warmer than on the main haulage road; I noticed 
moisture on the roof in No. 4 right ; I think the warmth is peculiar to pillar workings, 
especially in such a place as that unless the current of air is directed right on to the goaf edge; if the 
warmth were due to a sudden and great concussion of air I do not think that it would have remained so 
long after; I think that. a flame has passed either in or out of No. 4 by the evidence of the sample of dust 
which was collected in No. 4 right., and has been examined under a microscope ;  the dust was collected 
about 20 yards on the inbye side of the travelling road in the direction of the goaf; that dust was 
examined by .Mr. Mingaye, the Mineralogist of the Department of Mines ;  I do not remember any signs 
of flame on the canvas doors at No. 4 right; I did not find any signs of flame at the junction of the main 
haulage road; I do not suggest that there had been a naked light between the travelling road and the 
edge of the goaf at No. 4; I do not suggest that there had been an initiation of the explosion by a naked 
light between the travelling and the main rope road having regard to the positions in which bodies were 
found after the explosion ; if Morrison were at his usual place of work about 9 chains from No. 4 right 
inbyc, it would probably be the nearest point at which a naked ligh t would be reached by gas, air, and 
coal-dust coming out of No. 1 right ; the conditions that I saw at the goaf edge of No. 4 right suggest 
that there has been a big fall in the roof; if the roof fell in one solid piece near the edge of the goaf it 
would drive the air down No. 4 right with some considerable force I should think, but some of the force 
would be expended in its passage through the travelling road ; Ii could not say that the damage I saw to 
the chock at No. 3 left was caused by the air blast and nothing else; the force of an explosion would 
account for the damage to the chock I think that some force has passed along the main road (passed to 
No. 3 left) I do not say that it commenced there; as far as the evidence goes the nearest man with a 
light was near the telephone cabin on the outbye side of No. 4 right I think that what caused the 
damage to the chock was an explosion of coal-dust ; you do not necessarily want a blown-out shot to 
cause an explosion of coal-dust ; an explosion of coal-dust may be caused after an explosion has been 
initiated by a mixture of coal-dust, air, and gas at a naked light, or by an explosion initiated by means of 
fire_damp and air at a naked light, or by an explosion of' coal-dust with, or without, gas caused by a shot 
I think that the force that displaced the chock at No. 3 l€fL came from inhve, probably inbye of No. 4 
right. I think the explosion did not originate either by a naked light, or a blown-out shot in No. 4 right, 
that is in the case of gas being forced out of No. 4 right I have no idea of the rate at which air would 
be forced down No. 4 right if there were a very large fall of roof in the goal there I have never seen 
calculations to guide me in deciding the effects of a large fall forcing air down a gallery 35 feet in length 
by 4 yards by 2 yards ; generally speaking the roof laPs in small pieces not covering very large areas ; I 
believe that Broadhead said that he saw a red flame whenever be fired a shot ; the red flame is indicative 
of the pomvder flame from the firing of the shot and not of gas I would not, generally speaking, 
expect to find dust close to the roof in Kembla. ; if there is a. shot fired close to the floor in a working 
place, and it explodes gas, that would indicate that there is an enormous quantity of gas ; if coal-dust 
were present, and it were conveyed to other parts, there would probably be a tremendous explosion, but 
if gas only were present there would be a local explosion of considerable force ; coal-dust would require 
to be raised in a cloud to be dangerous with 1 per cent, of fire-damp ; some authorities argue that the 
cloud would have to be so thick that a man could scarcely live in it, but I do not quite agree with that 
it, however, assumes a condition that does not ordinarily exist in a mine. 

To a Juror The inspectors send me a report after each inspection of the mines ; in those reports 
for the last six or twelve months gas has not been reported at Keinbia. 

To a Juror: It is a breach of the rule to try for gas with a naked light., and it is certainly bad 
discipline to light gas, and it would be dangerous if there were gas there in any quantity, or if it were 
left burning ; it is quite impossible to say what quantity of gas is behind the face when gas is exuding 
from the thee. 

To a Juror: You must have combustion of carburetted hydrogen before the carbon monoxide can 
be produced ; with complete combustion of fire-damp, or CII 4 and air, the results are free nitrogen, 
carbonic acid, or CO 2, and steam; in that case there is no carbon monoxide ; it is only when the 
combustion is incomplete that the carbon monoxide is fom'mned, and in colliery explosions the combustion 
.qppears alwaa-s to be incomplete; with 10 per cent. of air to 1 of Iim'c-danip you get complete combustion, 
and in that case there would be no CO formed; CO 2 is the result of complete combustion, but there 
may also be some CO, in addition to the CO 2, with incomplete combustion. 

To the Foreman : l[aving regard to what has happened, I do not consider the naked light to be a 
safe one to be used at Kemabla ; the official reports have not disclosed the presence of any fire-damp at 
Kemnbia for some years, nor had I detected any fire-damp in nmy own inspections prior to the explosion, 
and, therefore, .1 did not feel justified in suggesting the use of safety-lamps ; I think it would be prudent, 
having regard to the safety of the workmen, to use safety_lamps at Kcmnbla ; I think that if there had 
been no naked lights this explosion would not have happened. 

To a Juror: A safety-lamp does not afford quite so much light, but statistics in the old country go 
to show that the nminers can produce as much coal with the safety-lamp as with the naked light, and there 
is no increase of accidents due to falls of roof where safety-lamps are used ; there is also a more general 
feeling of security in mines where gas is occasionally given off. 

To a Juror: When I tested for gas previous to the explosion, I tested with a safety-lamp I think 
that the combustion of coal-dust in this disaster was incomplete. 

To a Juror: The ordinary coal-gas which is distilled from coal largely consists of CII 4, but there 
are a number of hydro-carbons produced from coal. 

To a Juror ; I think that the ventilation at Kembla is sufficient if directed to where it is required 
there are two or three inlets for air which is of considerable advantage ; it is not desirable to leave old 
workings unventilated ; it. is desirable to pass a current of air along the edge of them. 

To 3Ji, Bruce iS'mjf/t : The Coal-dust Commission of 1891 arrived at the conclusion as follows 
"There appears to be no probability that a dangerous explosion of coal-dust alone could ever be produced 
in a mine by a naked light or ordinary flame "; I mentioned that in my evidence yesterday when I referred 
to the Commission (page 209 of the Depositions), but it was omitted. 

To 
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To the Foreman : it is no part of an inspector's duty to sign the books kept at the mine, but they 
initial the books to show that they have been there and have seen the book; it does not indicate that the 
inspector has checked the ventilation in the book; they take the ventilation when they are there, and 
report to me. 

To Mr. Lysaglil: I think I inspected Kembla myself in March last before the disaster; on that 
occasion I was three or four hours inspecting; I say that the reports of my inspectors before the disaster 
at Kembla are not incorrect. 

To the Coroner: I think that the fire I mentioned yesterday at the position X2 on the plan had been 
caused by the explosion; there had been the actual combustion of some things there on the floor; one 
was a prop; that was about 10 chains from where Morris and son had been working; fires are sometimes 
caused by explosions at considerable distances from the source of the explosion, in some cases over a mile, 
and therefore the evidence of this fire could not lead one to fix the seat of the explosion with any 
certainty; the 35-acre goaf has a good number of exits; if a force took place in that goaf near the edge 
most of the force would come out of the openings at that side; I do not think there would be a great part 
of the force lost in the cavity or through the other openings in a goaf of that sire (35 acres) I did not 
see any evidence of force issuing from No. 3 right; that would in no way,  tend, to discredit the goaf as 
being the origin from whence the force proceeded; I think that a large flame would have more opportunity 
of doing damage than as you suggest the flame of a match; I think that, if a large quantity of inflammatory 
gas were blown out (say of No. 4 right), that if it came against a naked light (say a match), that although 
the match might be put out, yet the inflammation would take place simultaneously; the presence of black-
damp does not afford any indication of the presence of fire-damp ; fire-damp diffuses more readily than 
black-damp; I do not think there is any sharp line of demarcation either between the fire-damp and the air, 
or between the black-damp and the air; next the roof it would be mostly fire-damp and next the floor it would 
be mostly black-damp, but there would be an admixture of the three throughout; I do not altogether 
agree with the passage which you have just read from the report of Dr. Ilaldane (page 12) on the subject 
of the line of demarcation of the line of fire-damp; fire-damp burns a pale blue colour I should 
consider that the red light which Adam Stafford states he saw would be due to the combustion of coal-
(lust; I cannot understand that it was not somewhat hot in the circumstances which Adam Stafford has 
stated; in explosions which have been attributed to coal-dust., you may have long lengths of ground over 
which the explosion has passed, with no evidences of flame I think that some coal-dusts under some 
experimental conditions have been ignited at a temperature between 300 and 400 degrees F., which 
is less than white heat; I think that the cloud, as described by Adam Stafford, with the flame, would be 
capable of setting up another explosion of coal-dust under favourable conditions; what Adam Stafford 
states he saw only points to the fact that the evidences of force were towards the west at that point., and 
only agrees with all the evidences of force I saw at that particular place; I do not feel inclined to differ 
from the conclusion of the royal commission referred to to-day I think that it is unlikely that a mixture 
of coal-dust and air would be ignited at the light of Morrison, because the conditions existing there are 
different, to those mentioned in the case of the Hopper at Brancespeth ; in the later case dust was being 
shovelled from a considerable height, and was coming into contact with a naked light. 
Made and sworn, at the Court-house, Wohlongong, this) A. A. ATKINSON. 

12th day of September, 1902, before me,— 
CIIA5. C. RUSSELL, Coroner. 

Inquest adjourned, for the purpose of further evidence, till the 11th day of September, 1002, at 
10 o'clock a.m.—CHA5. C. RUSSELL, Coroner, Court-house, Wollongong, 10th September, 1902. 

Inquest adjourned, for further evidence, till the 12th day of September, 1902, al 10 o'clock am., 
at the Court-house, Wollongong.—Cna.s, C. RUSSELL, Coroner. Court-house, Wollongong, 11th 
September, 1902. 
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Exhibit D. 

ailed I this hxhihit as the Special Rules of the Mount Kenilda. Colliery, pro tern, on the undertaking of Mr. Barry to 
replace it by a eertiliol copy from Mr. Bates, when that gentleman has recovered, or give other proof of their 
g iiuineness.—Cuas. C. RUSSELL, Coroner, 20th August, lOOP.] 

Sl'JcItL RULES for the conduct and guidance of the persons acting in the management of the Mount Kembla 
Coiliciy, and all persons engaged in and around the mines; and abstract of the Coal Mines Regulation 
Act, 1596. 

MOUNT KEMBLA COLLIERY, MOUNT KEMBLA. 

0 wners—Monnt Kembla Coal and Oil Company, Limited ; Manager—William Rogers; Inspector—Thomas L. Bates, Coal. 
fields Office, Wohlongong. 

The uudermeutioned Special Rules, to be observed at the Mount Kembla Colliery, in the Illawarra district, are now 
published in conformity with time provisions of the Coal Mines Regulatien Act, 1896, 60 Victoria No. 12 

Srcrac Ruocs for the guidance of the iecrons  acting in time management of the Mount Tccmbla Colliery, and of all persons 
engaged in or about the said colliery, whether employed by the Manager or by contractors under his supervision. 

Every employee, on obtaining work at the colliery, shall apply for a copy of these Rules and an abstract of the 
Act, for which he shall give a receipt. 

Colliery Manager. 
The Colliery Manager sleeP have full charge and control of all persons employed, and of all operations in, at, or 

about the mine, and shall regulate the work thereof. He shall in all respects comply with the requirements of the Coal 
Mines Regulation Act, and shall enforce its observance by all employees. He shall, to the best of his ability, employ only 
efficient officers for positions of responsibility, and competent workmen for carrying on the work of the mine. He shall, 
as often a practicable, inspect the underground irorkings, and shall periodically ascertain personally or by deputy the 
amount of ventilation passing in the mine, and cause time same to be recorded in a book kept at the colliery for the purpose, 
and signed by the person making the record. Ho shall see that the colliery plans are regularly plotted, and that they 
show the salient features of the mine. He shall, when necessary, order locked safety-lamps to be used throughout the 
mine or any district thereof, or by any individuals therein, and shall appoint a competent person to examine them, who 
shall in every respect comply with the provisions of the Coal Mines Regulation Act applying thereto. He shall inspect, 
or appoint some competent party to inspect the machinery, erections, boilers, appliances at, in, or about the mine, and 
to have the rceult of such inspection recorded in a book to be kept at the mine. 

Under-Manager and Overman. 
. In the absence of the Manager, the Under-Manager or Overman shall have full control and charge of the mine, 

and of all persons employed in, at, or about the colliery. He shall personally, or by his assistants, give all necessary 
instructions to the men and boys in the mine respecting their work, and shall be rdsponeible for the due observance of the 
Rules and Regulations of the colliery and the provisions of the Coal Mines Regulation Act. He shall suspend any person 
infringing such Rules, Regulations, or provisions, and report to the Manager. He shall see that the air crossings, courses, 
and stoppings are in good repair, and that an adequate amount of ventilation is constantly supplied ; and should it be 
ascertained that any discharge or accumulation of inflammable or other noxious gas has taken place in any part of the 
mine to a dangerous extent, lie or his subordinate officer shall see that the workmen and horses be withdrawn from such 
part, and shall adopt such measures as may seem most advisable for the immediate removal of the gas. He shall also 
cause to be put up on all entrances to such part or parts of the mine a danger signal as far back from the said danger as 
practicable beyond which no person shall pass without the distinct caution of the Manager, Under-Manager, Overman or 
Fireman, and then only with a locked safety-lamp. He shall as soon as possible report all occurrences to the Manager 

He shall see that the air furnaces and all ventilating appliances are kept in good repair, and are carefully 
attended to. He shall examine daily, or as often as practicable, the state of the refuge holes, the roof in the main roads 
and working places, and he shall cause any defects to be repaired at once, He shall also see that an adequate supply of 
timber is sent to the appointed stations within the mine, and that all working places are properly and securely timbered. 
If, from any cause, the condition of time roof in any place is foonil dangerous, unless the same can be immediately remedied, 
the men shall be withdrawn, and lie shall cause a danger signal to he placed across the road, beyond which no uuauthorised 
workman must pass, without permission from the Manager, Under-Manager, or Fireman. 

If at any time it is found necessary to work any boid, stall, heading, or district in the mine with locked safety-
lamps, no shot firing shall be allowed before the places are examined by the Under-Manager, Overman, Deputy, or 
Fireman, or any other person specially appointed by the Manager to do so ; and if the place contains inflammable gas in 
such quantities as to show a blue cap on the safety lamp, no shots shall be fired while the ordinary miners are within the 
mine, and then only if the gas has been removed. He shall, under direction of the Manager, cause safety-lamps to be 
used and naked lights to be excluded where required by the Act. In any place worked with safety- lanips the sleots shall 
be prepared and fired in the manner directed by the Manager or Under-Manager only, who will strictly conforne to the 
Regulations laid clown in General Rides Nos. 10, 11, and 12. He shall immediately report to the Manager any breach of 
time provisions of the Coal Mines Regulation Act, or of the Special Rules, by employees, or any accident, danger, or defect 
in the working places or appliances, and shall record the result of his daily inspection in a book provided for this purpose. 

The Night Overman shall receive his instructions from the Manager or Uieder-Mauager, and lie shall so far as 
practicable observe the same Rules and Regulations as time Under-Manager and Overman, and he shall have during his slnft, 
or in the absence of the Under-Manager, full control over all persons employed and working in the mine. 

Dcpmmty amid Fircmnam,. 
A Deputy, where employed, shall be at all times sulmjcct to the Under-Manager and Overman, from whom he 

shall receive his instructions. He shall see that time inca are provided with, sufficient timber, and that the wheelers, 
trappers, and others carl-y out their duties and strictly obey his lawful instructions, and in time absence of the Under-
Manager and Overman he shall have full control over all persons employed in his particular district, and see that the 
provisions of the Act and Special Rules are complied with. He shall also report to the Manager, Under-Manager, or 
Overman, any danger that niay from time to time arise from any cause, and in their absence lie shall take such steps as he 
may think most desirable for the security of the workmen and of the mine, and of removing the danger. He shall also 
without fail report any disobedience or violation of iiemhe, and shah, subject to time instructions of time Under-Manager and. 
Overman, have full and sole control over time neeme under his supervision. He shall place danger signals or fence off 
dangerous parts of the mine. He shall in time absence of a special officer appointed for the purpose examine all safety-
lamps, and shall have full control over time same, and shall see that the General Rules applying to lamps and shot firing 
are at all times strictly observed. 

The Fireman shall, within four hours immediately before the comneencement of each shift, carefully examine with, 
a safety-lamp the whole of the workings, faces, and travelling roads. He shall cause to be written with chalk the dmete in 
every working face so examined, and if in his opinion any danger is apparent, he shall cause a danger signal to be put up, 
beyond which no unauthorised person shall on any meceouut pass until the said danger is reported to the Overman, Under-
Manager, or Manager, and removed. 

He shall also make a true report of, and enter and sigme daily, in a book kept at the appointed office for the 
purpose, time state of the mine roads, doors, stopuimmgs, bratt.ice, faces, and ventilating appliances. He shall instantly 
suspend any workimean who passes the appointed station without his permission, and if lie discovers any danger lie shall at 
once take whmatever means ho deems necessary to ensure the safety of the workmen, andshall instantly report to the 

Overman, 
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Overman, Under-Manager, or Manager. He shall fix danger signals when and where necessary, and shall continually 
during his shift inspect the working faces, roads, doors, brattice, and ventilating appliances. He shall immediately reyoi t 
to his superior officer any breach of the Act or Special Rules, and of any regulations that may be issued by the Manager. 
He shall in respect to shot firing, take his orders from the Manager or Under-Manager, but he must in all cases carefu;ly 
observe the whole of the provisions of the Act dealing with this, and under no circumstances moat he fire a shot if he 
considers it unsafe to do so. 

He shall at least once in every week examine, so far as is practicable, the state of the waste workings and main 
airways, and make and sign a true report of the state thereof in a book kept at the office for the purpose. 

In the Under-Manager's absence, he is empowered to act on his behalf, and shall report any important occurrence, 
disobedience, or violation of Roles on the part of any employee to the Manager or Overman. In the absence of a Lamp. 
keeper, he shall see to the condition of any safety-lamp that may be in use in special cases, and in this he shall carry out 
the instructions of the Manager or Under- Ni anager. 

Surface Men. 
All the workmen employed on the surface shall be under the direct supervision and control of the Manager or 

Engineer, or any Fireman that may be appointed, and they shall at all times implicitly conform to all the orders and Roles 
at the time for the regulation of their work. 

Colliers and Workmen. 
No workman shall on any pretext pass the station appointed for his district until aut.liorised by the Fireman, 

and any person failing to observe this Rule will be dismissed. 
No workman shall take any boy into the mine without the consent of the Manager, and having him registered 

in a book kept for the purpose. 
No workman shall enter his working place or any other part of the mine if the same be barred with a fence or 

cross timbers or a danger signal, unless authorised to do so by the officer in charge. On first entering his working place, 
he shall satisfy himself that it has been examined and found safe. If he does not observe the Fireman's mark on the face 
he will on no account commence his work, but shall at once return to the station and report the circumstance to the 
Fireman, Overman, Under-Manager, or Manager, and await instructions before returning to his working place. in addition 
to the examination by the Fireman or other officials, nsiners and others are required to satisfy themselves as to the 
condition of the working places, and if they consider there is any danger, or if they discover any defect, they shall at once 
discontinue work, and report the danger. No workman, except those in charge of a train, shall under any pretext ride on 
a skip, c on any incline above or below ground. Every miner must satisfy himself before beginning work that his working 
place is safe, and at intervals during his shift shall examine the working place, and in case of any danger being observed, 
shall at once report to the Manager or Under-Manager. 

Every collier or other person employed in, at, or about the mine shall, in all matters relating to the working of 
the mine or safety of the workmen, strictly obey the orders of the Manager, Under-Manager, Deputy, or Fireman, or any 
other person for the time being in charge of the mine or part of the mine. Every collier shall, wleeis leaving his place of 
work, take care that no candle, lamp, or matches be left in his own place or in any of the workings he may pass through 
or by, unless it he under the care of some. person ; nor shall he leave any gunpowder loose or unsecured, or under any 
pretext enter any part of the mine other than the working jdic where lie is immediately employed, withoat having first 
obtained distinct permission to do so from the Manager, Under-Manager, or the Overman. 

Every collier shall securely uphold the coal whilst holing, and shall prop up and secure the roof and sides of the 
bord, stall, or heading in wlsich lie may be employed, and if lie should not be provided with sufficient quantity of timber, 
he shall cease working and report the deficiency to the Manager, Under-Manager, Overman, or person in charge. It shall 
be the duty of every workman employed in any part of the mine to inform the person in charge of the workings of the 
existence of any choke-damp or fire-damp, or of any insecurity of roof, side-shaft, or any other part of the mine., or of 
any air-door being damaged or left open, immediately on it-, being observed by him. No miner or workman must incur 
any risk or danger, but shall instantly withdraw until the def, et be remedied. 

IS. No workman shall injnre any air-course, cm-osairig brattice, or stopping, or leave open wholly or partly any door 
whereby the ventilation of the mine may be affected, or do any other act whereby the lives of the men or the property of 
the owners may be endangered. Should a miner tap old workings or waste, lie shall at once close the opening and inform 
the Manager or Under-Manager. - 

The seam of coal or other mineral shall at all times be worked strictly in accordance with the directions issued 
by the Manager or Under-Manager. 

'NVhiere safety-lamps are required, they shell be ludeerl, and every person using them must, fully satisfy himself 
that they are so, and are in good order and condition, and del instantly report any defect, aud obtain another lamp from 
the official in charge of the earns. No unauthoi'isod pers'w shall open any lamp, and any person having in his possession, 
when using safety-lamps, any matche', tebacro, cigar, cigarettc, pipes, or any contrivance whatever by which lie could 
open his safety-lamp, shall be instantly dismissed, and his offence shall he reported to the Crown authorities for punish-
ment. At any time when the safety-laps require to he relighted, they shall be brought to the nearest lamp station for 
this purpose. if at any time a lamp is found to hi defective, lie shall immediately extinguish it by withdrawing the wick, 
and return with it to the laerp station, where alone the defect shall be remedied, or another be obtained in its place. Safety-
lamps must not he placed within 2 feet of the swing of a pick, and the greatest care must be taken to prevent these lamps 
from being injured. 

All workmen using safety-lamps will be responsible for their condition, and shall be required to give to the 
lampnean a. satisfactory explanation as to the cause of any defect that may be found, and in default he shall he deemed 
guilty of uecligeuce, and will be liable to dismissal, and will be aeported to the (government Inspector of Collieries. 

No shot that has neisseil tire shall on any account lie nntaniperl, and no fresh hole shall be bored w-mthin 6 inches 
of it, and no person shall approach any working-place avhiore a shot has missed fire until a period of at least eight hours has 
elapsed from the time it was lighted. 

No person shall on any account he permitted to take or interfere with the tools of another, and everyone shall 
refrain from quarrelling, fighting, using o''seene or profane language, inciting men or boys to disobedience, impeding work, 
using any words, or doing any act whereby a breach of the peace may he occasioned. No person shall enter the mine 
intoxicated, or bring intoxicating drinks to the work, or interfere with the work or discipline of the collier,', or disobey 
the orders issued by the Manager, Under-Manager, or Overman. 

Any person interfering in any way with the orders issued by the Manigem-, Under-Manager, or any other person 
for the the time being duly in charge of the mine, shall he lable to instant dlismnissal. 

Wleeel ers. 
The wheelers shall diligently attend to the requirements of the colliers, and carefully attend to their horses, and 

shall report if the harness he not kept in a good state of repair, and will be answerable for any damage they may cause by 
their wilful act or negirgence to horses or harness whilst under their charge. They shall also prohibit trappers from leaving 
their doors, and prevent anyone ridhing upon the skips, and shall immediately report any insecurity of roof or road, or any 
damage that may have been accidentally caused, or that they may observe to any air crossing, door, or brattice, to the 
Under-Manager, or person in charge. They shall at once report any appearance of gas in the roadways or working places. 
They shall not take their horses into any self -acting or engine plane while the machinery is in motion. 

Trappers. 
The trappers shall constantly remain at their respective doors, and see that they are carefully opened and closed 

as occasion requires. They shall on no account ride upon the skips, leave their posts, or follow the wheelers ; they shall 
report immediately any defects in the doors to the Under-Manager, Overman, or person in charge. 

Set Rider. 
The Set Rider shall carefully attach the ropes to the set, and iiespect the connections, &c.; and if any defect is 

discovered, he shall at once report the sauce to the Under-Manager, Overman, or person in charge. He shall permit no 
person to ride on the full or empty sets ; and upon any person refusing to comply with his orders in this respect, or in any 
way violating this Rule, hasliall immediately report the circumstance to the Manager, Under-Manager, or Overman. 

Furnaceman. 
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Furnaceman. 
Any person in charge of a furnace shall see that the fires are always kept in vigorous operation during working 

hours, and that the bars are cleaned between shifts. He shall not allow any hot ashes to accumulate, and if any stoppage 
should occur in the ventilation, he shall at once report the circumstance to the Manager, Under-Manager, or Overman, 
He shall not leave his duties without permission of the Manager. 

Engineer. 
The Engineer, or other person appointed for the purpose, shall at least once in every twenty-four hours, carefuly 

examine all machinery, ropes, drums, pulleys, boilers, indicators, siguallisag apparatus, and all appliances or erections, and 
see that they are maintained in a state of efficiency, and shall make a true report, stating the condition thereof daily iii a 
book which must be signed by him, and kept in the office of the mine for that purpose. If lie discovers any flaw or 
derangement he shall at once cause the Same to be remedied, and shall personally superintend all alterations or repairs. 

He shall see that the boilers are regularly blown off, cleaned, and iispccted, and that all connections, purnps 
safety valves, gauges, &c., are kept in good working order. He shall have control (subject to the Manager) of all the men 
in his department, who must strictly obey his instructions. He shall see that the indicator he correctly marked, and that 
a point indicating 20 feet from the pit top be clearly marked thereon, as per General Rule 27. He shall be responsible 
to the Manager for the due observance of General Rules 26 to 33, or any of them, and that all the requiremeuts are 
observed. 

Enqisensas. 
The Engineman (subject to the Engineer) shall have the sole control of the engine entrusted to his care. He 

shall have control of the stoker, and shall see that steam is constantly kept up, and in adequate supply of water is 
constantly maintained in the boiler. He shall also inspect daily the engines and boilers, drums, ropes, connections, 
pulleys, and all machinery under his care, and shall immediately report any defect to the Manager or Engineer, lie shall 
be in constant attendance at his engine during his shifts, and on no account slThdl he permit any unauthorised person to 
enter the engine-house, or to touch any part of the machinery. He shall see that all refuse or used waste be daily 
removed from the engine.laouse, and that all lamps and oil are kept safe and secure. He shall on no account raise or,  lower 
any workmen unless the opposite cage is free and contains no timber, coal ships, or other material. This Rule shall also 
be obeyed by the Banksman and Onsetter. lie shall at all times pay strict attention to the various signals from the mine, 
and to the proper lubrication of all machinery under his charge. He shall implicitly obey the orders of the Manager or 
Engineer in respect to lifting, winding, hauling, or landing the load, and see that the uieo be raised at a speed not 
exceeding three (3) miles per hour when and after the cage has reached a point 20 feet from the top of the shaft, as 
requ red by General Rule 27, and such point shall be marked on the indicator. He shall not alter any valve, gauges, or 
parts without the consent of the Manager or Engineer. 

The Danksnsan. 
The Banksman shall be subject to the direction of the Manager, Under-Manager, or Engineer, and shall, first 

thing every morning, examine the ropes as they pass slowly from the engine, together with the shackles, chains, belts, and 
gauges, and he shall not permit anyone to descend until the cages have, for this purpose, been run o nce up and down the 
shalt ; and shall generally observe these during the day ; if any defects are discovered, lie shall instantly report them to 
the Engineer or Manager. He shall not allow any intoxicated person, or any strangers, or persons not ctnp?ovel below 
ground (unless authorised by the Msnager( to descend, nor allow any intoxicant to he taken down the pit. lie shall not 
allow any man to take his tools down with him in the cage, but they shall be sent down separately in 'a skip. lie shall 
regulate the number of men in the cage, and shall obey the insti netions of the Manager as tu the number to descend in the 
cage at one time. He shall report any violation of the Special Rules by any of the nsea. He shall on no ac ousit permit 
men to be raised or lowered with any rope showing any material defect. He shall have a clear understaudiag ii ish the 
Engineman as to the signals. He shall keep the pit-top safe and free from loose coal, stone, or refuse. Any wom-kmau 
refusing to leave the cage when ordered to do so by the Banksman shall b isnsnediatcly reported to the Manager or Under. 
Manager, who will deal with the offence. 

Onsetter. 

The Onsetter shall, subject to the direction of the Manager or Under-Manager, have sole control over the pit. 
bottom and rapper and of signals, and he alone shall signal to the surface. Heshall report at once any defect in the 
appliances he may observe, and shall, as in the case of the hiankssnau, regulate the number of men to ascend in each cage. 
He shall remain on duty until the whole of the shift of men ascend. Any work man refusing to l-ave the cage svlien 
required by the Onsetter shall be immediately reported to the Manager or Under-Manager, who will deal with the offence. 

tignas for Ordinary Eresvday Work. 
One (1) rap from the bottom when the cage is on the bottom signifies ''all clear," or "go on." 

Two (2) raps after the" all clear" signal has been givesi is to let the cage stand. 
One (I) rap when the engine is in motion is to 'stop" ; two (2) raps, ''lower the cage when in shaft"; four (4) raps, 

"lower the cage slowly"; five (5) raps, "raise the cage slowly." 
Three (3) raps from bottom, " men to ascend.' Before men are allowed to enter the cage, the Onsetter must receive 

one (I) rap from the Engine-driver, which will mean ''all clear,' and in no casewill the men he allowed to enter the cage 
until told to do so by the Banksman or Onscttc r. 

When the cage is on the buttons,two (2) raps from the Engine-driver signifies ''send away the empty cage"; and
two (2) raps from the Engine-driver while the cage is in motion signifies also " send away the empty cage." 

No naan shall be raised, eseept in case of accident, or upon reasonable cauco being shown while the work of the 
Colliery is proceed lag, and only hen anthoriscd by (lie Onecttcr to do so. 

Four (4) raps means cmpy cage" 
Should the Onsettr heas- any unusual r.oi-e in the sIns it si-lien the cages are in motion, lie shall at once rap two (2) 

for ' ' stop,",  and the liingi ncmn an shall at or cc 9,01) his eli Ui e. '1- lie En gi isrinan shall also stop his engine at once without 
any sigl al if lie sees or hears the slightest niovenient of the l5CC or.  svishing rope of a suspicious nature, or if he feels any 
i inpeci tn rut to winding when this occss s's lie shall ssst,i n thy report the ci rs'nnls tasice to the Engineer or Manager. 

Es sginemen , Bali is amen, and 0 setters a i-c espi'c s 1 ly reqe it's d to make t liens selves thor, ugh ly acquainted with these 
signals, and to have a perfect understanding ih cisk another widi rssgect to any other signals that may be adopted for 
minoi- purposes. 

Erakesesan. - 
33. It shall be the duty of the Brakesman, where employed, to see that the drums and all the machinery connected 

with the incline and lower ing gear are kept in good conditon. Be shall daily examine the ropes, and should he discos-er 
any defects in either ropes or machinery, he shall issimnediats-ly report the rrcusnstance to the Manager or Engineer, with 
a view to the defect being remedied. I-Ic shall not permit any uiianthoriscd person to ride in the waggous or skips up or 
down the incline. 

Lecaiuotire Driver, 

The Rules applicable to the Engineman shall also apply to the Locomotive Di iver. He shall not leave his enine, 
or delegate his duty to another, or allow any unauthorised person to travel on the engine or train. 

Rules for all Persons. 
Employees are prohibited from eqtering any part of the mine or wos-ks other than that in which they are 

immediately employed, without the distinct order of the Manager, I.Jnrler-Manaeer, or Overman. 
No unauthorised person shall in any way interfere with any door, brattice, or stopping, or do anything to check 

the ventilating current. 
Employees shall travel to and from theim- work only by the roads prescribed by the Manager, Under.lmlanager, 

or Overman. 
No person shall open any door which should he kept eliot, isiviers it is lie cessary for him to pass through it (and 

then lie shall immediately close it after bins (, or by any wilful act or neglect injure any door, bs-attice, air-course or 
crossing, stopping, danger signal, caution isaarhs or fence ; nor shall lie cut or fill any coal from any pillar, nor remove any 

16825 29-1 timbers 
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timbers which are left for the support of the roof and sides, nor put coals, rubbish, or any obstruction in any roadway, 
air-course, manhole, or place of refuge, nor break, injure, or put out of repair, order, or gear, any signal wire, machinery, 
or structure ; nor do any other act whereby loss, damage, or inconvenience may be caused to his employers, or the work of 
the mine impeded, or whereby the lives or safety of the persons at the mine may be imperilled, or the mine be rendered 
unsafe, or any machinery or structure be made dangerous, defective, or out of order. 

All employees must report to the Manager or official in charge any defect they may discover in the machinej y 
or appliances, or any appearance of fire-damp, choke-damp, or other noxious gas, or any defect in the roof or sides of the 
mine, or any other indication of danger from any other cause. 

No person shall on any account try for fire-damp with a naked light ; neither shall he leave an open light or 
lamp in any part of the mine when quitting his work. 

No person shall handle explosives, or charge a hole for blasting, with a naked light attached to his cap. 
A safety-lamp must be frequently examined, and if the lamp shows a cap, the person using it must carefully 

draw down the wick, leave the place, and report. 
In all cases safety-lamps should be hung well clear of the swing of the pick. 
Where safety-lamps are used, no person shall take to his work any naked light, lucifer matches, candles, 

tobacco, cigar, cigarette, or pipe. 
No naked light shall he taken beyond any danger signal where gas exists. 
In the case of a missed shot, the workman shall place a danger signal at the entrance to his working-place, and 

report. 
Workmen must, before beginning their work, and throughout their shift, examine their working-place and satisfy 

themselves as to its security. Should they discover any defect or insecurity they must at once cease work and report. 
No person shall in any way impede or interfere with the ventilating currents. 
The Horse-keeper shall see that his horses are in a fit state for work. Each person in charge of a horse sisall 

be responsible for its condition, and shall at once report to the Horse-keeper or Under-Manager any injury that it may 
have received. - 

Horses shall not he taken on to inclines or engine planes while tile machinery is in motion. 
No person acting in a place of trust shall depute anyone else to perform his duties. 
No person shall absent lnniself from work without previously having obtained permission from the Manager, 

except in cases of sickness or upon reasonable cause being shown. 
Every person employed at the mine shall make himself thoroughly acquainted with the provisions of the Coal 

Mines Regulation Act and these Special Rules, so far as they relate to his employment and duty, and shall strictly observe 
the same. 

All persons employed in, at, or about the mine shall comply with and observe these Rules, and shall in default 
he subject to the penalties prescribed by the Coal Sliues Regulation Act, iSIS. They shall, as far as possible, enforce 
their observance on others. 

Any person employed in or about the mine who shall violate or infringe any of the foregoing Rules shall be liable 
to instant disnnssal. 

ADSTRACT OT THE COAL MIaEs REGULATION ACT, 1S06. (CO VIcTorLs, No. 12.) 

Applicaton of Act. 

Section 1. (it) The Act applies to-1. Mines of coal. 2. Mines of shale. 

Managers and Uidc-Msnagrs. 
Section 2. (1) Every mine in which more than twenty persons are empioyd insist be under a manager, who shall 

be responsible for the control, management, and direction of the mine. 
(is) The manager must be the reentered hobler of a diet-class certificate of c mnpetency or of service. 
(iv) In case of a mine in which not more than twenty persons are einployrd, it shall Ic snilicient for a manager to 

hold a permit from an inspector. 
Section 3 In evern' mine under the control of a certiliented manager, daily personal supervision shall be exerciseil 

either by a mnanagei- or under-nsamiager, miomiiinatei in writing i,v  the owner, agent, or mamag.-r of the mine. but the 
nomination of an snider-manager shall not affect the personal responsioility of the manager under this Act. The under- 
manager must be the holder of a 1st or 2nd class certificate. 

Section 4. No contractor in any mine, or person employed by such contractor, is eligible for the post of manager 
or under- mana-ter. 

Section 10. The Minister, on the representation of an inspector or otherwise that any certificated manager or 
under-rnanaer is by reason of ineornpstency or gi- 

a
oss negligence unfit to discharge his duties, or has been convicted of an 

offence under the Act, may, if he tiii,ks fit, cause n inquiry to be issade into the conduct of such manager, or under-
manager, by a District Court Judge, Stipemidiary .tslogistrate, or l'olice Magistrate, and on the report of the Court cancel 
or suspend the certificate. The Minister has power to renew or restore such certificate. 

Inspcctors. 
Section 17. The Minister may appoint inspectors (under whatever title he may from time to time fix) of mines, 

and assign them their duties. Inspectors must be the holdei-s of first-class certificates of competency of service. 
Section 18. Aim inspector may not himnself he, or practise, or be the partsser of one who is or who practices as land 

agent or mining engineer, or as a manager, viewer, agent, or valuer of mines, or as arbitrator in mining cases, and may 
not be otherwise employed in or about any mine, or be a nsiner's agent, or a mine-owner (whether such mine is one to 
which the Act applies or not), nor may he be a partner or have any interest, direct or indirect, in any mine in the distrsct 
under his charge. 

Section 19. An inspector has power- 
To make such examination and inquiry as may be necessary to ascertain wlsether the provisions of this Act relating 

to matters above or below gi-ound are comphcd with. 
To examine into and make inquiry respecting the state and condition of a mine or any part thereof, and the ventila-

tion of the mine, and the sufficiency of the Special Rules for the time being in force in the mine, and all matters 
and things connected with or relating to the safety of the persons employed in or about the mine, or any mine 
contiguous thereto, or the care and treatment of the horses and other animals used in the mine. 

B. To enter, inspect, and examine any mine, and every part thereof, at all reasonable times by day and by night, but 
so as not to impede or obstruct time working of the mine. 

4. And to exercise such other powers as may be necessary,  for carrying the Act into effect. 

Every person who wilfully obstructs any inspector in the execution of his duty, and every owner, agent, and 
manager of a mine who refuses or neglects to furnish the inspector with the necessary means for making an entry, 
inspection, examination, or inquiry under this Act, in relation to the mine, is guilty of an offence against the Act. 

Section 21. Each inspector has to f urDish anAnnual Report, to be laid before both Houses of Parliament. 
Sections 22, 21. Whei-e an explosion or accident has caused loss of life or personal injury, a special report must be 

made by an inspector if the Minister so directs, and the M btister may publish the sanie when made. 
Sections 23, 24. The Minister may direct a formal investigation of an explosion or accident, and of its cause and 

circumstances, to he hell, and may appoint a competent person and any person or persons possessing legal or special 
kmiowlede, to act as assessor or assessors, to hull snh iavestigation. Such person or persons to constitute a Court of 
1nuiry, and to report to the Minister, who may cause the report to be published. 
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As to Dangerous Practices not Expressly Prohibited. 
Section 20. If in any respect (which is not expressly forbidden by the terms of the Act or by Special Rules) a mine, 

or any part thereof, or any matter, tiung, or practice, is nevertheless found by the inspector to be dangerous or defective, 
so as in his opinion to threaten or tend to the bodily injury of any person, whether such matter, thing, or practice be in or 
in connection with the mine or with the control, management, or direction thereof by the manager, the inspectoe may 
require the matter to be reneedied, and the requisition must be complied with, or the matter referred to arbitration. 

Arbitration. 
Section 25. The provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1892, are made applicable to arbitrations under this Act where 

they are not inconsistent with this Act. It also provides for the qualification, appointment, and remuneration of arbitrators 
and umpires, for the regulation of proceedings where arbitrator fails or refuses to act, for the enforcement of award, &c. 

Coroners' laquests. 
Section 26. In the event of a fatal accident occurring at a mine, and an inquest being held, no person who is 

employed in that mine, or is concerned in its management, or has a personal interest in that mine, is qualified to serve on 
the jury. But any relative of any person whose death may have been caused by the explosion or accident with respect 
to which the inquost is being held, and the owner, agent, or manager of the mine, and any person appointed by the order 
in writing of the majority of the workmen eniployeT at the mine, may attend and examine itny witness, either in person 
or by his counsel, attorney, or agent, subject to the order of the Coroner. 

Loss of Life or Serious Personal Jisjury. 
Section 29. (ci) Where loss of life or serious personal injury has immediately resulted from an explosion or accident, 

the place where the explosion or accident occurrcd shall be left as it was immediately after the explosion or accident, 
until the expiration of at least three days after the sending of such notice as aforesaid of such explosion or accident, or 
until the visit of the place by an inspector, whichever first happens, unless compliance with this enactment would tend to 
increase or continue a (hanger, or would impede the working of the mine. 

Fencing Ahansloneci Mines. 

Section 31. (1) Where any mine is abandoned or the working thereof discontinued (at whatever time such abandon. 
ment or discontinuance occurred) the top of the shaft and every side-entrauce from the surface must be kept securely fenced 
by the owner of the mine or the persons interested in the minerals thereof. 

Employment of Boys and Females. 

Section 75. Boy means a male under the age of 16 years. 

Restrictions as to Employment. 

Section 31. No boy under the age of 14 years and no female shall be employed in or about a mine. 
No boys between the ages of 14 years and 18 years shall be employed in or allowed to be for the purposes of employ-

ment in any mine below ground for more than nine hours on Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, and six 
hours on one Saturday, and eight hours on the next Sate rdumy. 

Subject to the following regulations ---An interval of twelve hours must be allowed between each period of employ. 
ment ; each such period must be exclusive of one hour for meals. * 

Section 34. (icr) The immediate employer of any boy is not to take him below ground until he has reported hi 
intention so to do to the manager, or to some one appointed by the manager. 

Temporary Saving. 
Section 35. Boys under 14 who were lawfully employed above or below ground before the commencement of the 

Act, may continue to be so employed. 
Competent male persojcs over 18 years of age who, before the commencement of this Act, were lawfully employed 

in working the machinery used for lowering or raising persons in a mine, may continue to be so employed. 

it egister. 
Section 31. (ii) The owner, agent, or manager must keep in the office at the mine a register containing particulars 

of the name, age, resi,lence, and date of first employment of all boys under iS years of age employed in the mine below 
ground, or about the mine above ground. 

wages. 
Section 37. Public house--Wages are not to be paid. on any premises used for the sale of intoxicating liquor, or in 

any place contiguous to such premises. 
Weighing. 

Section 38. The standard-weight system is abolished. In any mine, unless expressly exempted (see below, section 
38, iv), where the amount of wages depends on the amount of mineral gotten, the wages are to e paid according to the 
actual weight gotten of the mineral contracted to be gotten. 

Deductions—The owner, agent, or manager is not precluded ''from agreeing with the persons employed in the 
mine that deductions shall be made in respect of stones or substances other than the mineral contracted to be gotton, 
which shall be sent out of the mine with the mineral contracted to be gotten ; or in respect of any tubs being improperly 
filled in those cases where they are filled by the getter of the mineral or his drawer, or by the person immediately 
employed by him." 

Such deductions may be determined in such special mode as may be agreed upon, or by some person appointed by 
the owner, agent, or manager, or by such person and the check-weigher (if there is one), or in the event of clifihrence by a 
third person who is to be mutually agreed upon, or in default of agreement to be appointed by a chairman of a Court of 
General cr Qnarter Sessions within the jurisdiction of which any shaft of the mine is situated. 

The mineral must be weighed at a place as near to the pit mouth as is reasonably practicable. 
Section 38 (iv). Exemption—The Minister may grant an exemption from the weighing provisions in the case of 

any mine or class of mine employing not more than twenty persons nsadergronnd where it is proved to his satisfaction that 
the persons employed therein should be paid by some other method. This power can only be exercised upon the joint 
representation of employers and employed. 

Section 39. Summons for \Tages.  —Upon a complaint being made that a stain not exceeding £50 is due on account 
of any kind of labour parformccl at a ceal mine in charge of an owner or agent, a justice or clerkof petty sessions may 
summons the owner or agent to appear before two justices at the nearest petty sessions, who may make an order for the 

-nymnent by such owner or agent of any suits not exceeding £50, together with costs incurred and damage sustained by the 
complainant. The justices may, on the refusal or non-paymeut of the sum ordered, issue a warrant to levy the saute by 
distress and sale. - 

Section 40. (vu) If in puromeance of any such order of exemption the persons employed in a mine are paid by the 
measure or gauge of the material gotten by them, the provisions of this Act are to apply in like manner as if the term 

weighing" included measuring and ganging. 
Section 42. The weighing apparatus used for determining the wages payable according to the weight of the mineral 

gotten are subject to the Weights and Measures Act (lb Tic-. Xe. 34), and any Act relating to weights and measures, and 
unmet be esainined once at least in every six mouths by an inspector under Act 16 Vie. No. 34. - 

Checlu-secigher. 
Section 40. The persons employed in any mine, as ho are paid according to the weight of mineral gotten by thorn, 

in-ny appoint, at their own cost, and station a cheek-weigher at each place appointed for the weighing of the mineral, and 
a each place appointed for determining the deductions. Succ- u  check-weigher is entitled to have every facility afforded 
him for taking a correct account of the weighing, or dctcrminiig correctly the deductions, as the case may be ; and for 

testing 

* Section 61.—Misrepresentation by parent or guardian as to age of boy is an offence under the Act. 
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tetin the weighing
' 

-machines, and checking  the tareing of tubs and trams where necessary. If the person appointed on 
h bif of the owner to woih the material impedes or interrupts the check-weigher in the proper discharge of his duties. 

or improperly interferes with or alters the weighing-machines or the tare, in order to prevent a correct account of the 
weighing or tareing, he will be liable to punishment. 

Section 40. (ass) The check-weigher, so long as he does not interrupt or impede the working of the mine, may give 
to any workman an account of the mineral gotten by him, or informatiou with respect to the weighing or the weighing_ 
machine, the tareing of the tubs or trams, the determinations of the deductions, or any matter within the scope of his. 
duties as a check-weigher. 

(sic) In the absence of the check-weigher, the weighing or the determination of the deductions may be carried on 
without him, but only by the person appointed for the purpose by the owner, agent, or manager, and not if the check-
weigher had reasonable grounds to suppose that it would not be proceeded with. 

(xv) The check-weigher is liable to be removed by the nearest Court of Petty Sessions if he has- 

Impeded or interrupted the working of the mine ; or 
Interfered with the weighing, or with any of the workmen, or the management of the mine ; or 
Has at the mine, to the detriment of the owner, agent, or manager, done anything beyond taking an account of the 

weight or deductions, or giving information described in Section 40 (xis). 

(v) Upon the removal of a check-weigher, another may be stationed in his place. 
- Section 41. Where a check-weigher has been appointed by the majority, ascertained by ballot, of the persons 

employed in a mine, who are paid according to the weight of the mineral gotten by them, and has acted as such, he may 
rec ver from any person for the time being employed in such mine such proportion of his wages as may be due from such 
person, notwithstanding that any of the persons by whom the check-weigher was appointed may have subsequently left 
and others have entered the mine ; and the owner or manager may retain for the check-weigher the agreed contribution 
fo,n the u-ages of the persons so employed. 

Prohibition of Sng1s Shafts. 
Section 43.— 

(a) Every mine must have two shafts or outlets in communication with every seam at work, and capable of afibrdng 
separate means of ingress and egress to the persons employed in every such seam. 

- (1) Such shafts or outlets must not at any point he nearer to one another than fifty yards, and there shall be betwrn 
such two shafts or outlets a communication not less than 4 feet wide and 6 feet high. 

(c) Proper apparatus for raising and lowering persons at each such shaft or outlet shall be kept on the works belonging 
to the mine in actual use or constantly available for use. 

Exceptions. 

45 The foregoing provisions of this Act with respect to shafts or outlets shall not apply— 

Exception 1.—In the case of a new mine being opened— 
(a) To any working for the purpose of making a communication between two or more shafts; 
(1,) To any working for the purpose of searcluug for or proving minerals 

so long as not more than twenty persons are employed below ground at any one time in the whole of the different seams in 
connection with a single shaft or outlet ; nor 

Exception 2.—To any proved mine, so long as it is exempted by order of the Minister, on the ground either— 
That the quantity of mineral proved is not sufficient to repay the outlay which would be occasioned by sinking or 
making a second shaft or outlet, or by establishing communication with a second shaft or outlet, in any case 
where such communication existed and has become unavailable ; or 

That the workings in any seam of the mine have reached the boundary of the property or the extremity of the 
mineral field of which that seam is a part, and that it is expedient to work away the pillars already formed in 
course of the ordinary working, notwithstanding that one of the shafts or outlets may be cut off by so working 
away the pillars of that seam 

and so long as not more than twenty persons are employed below ground at any one time ill the whole of the different 
seams in connection with a single shaft or outlet ; nor 

Exception 3--To any mine— 
(a) While a shaft is being sunk, or an outlet being made ; or 
(/) One of the shafts or outlets of which has become, by reason of some accident, unavailable for the ese of the persons 

employed in the mine 

so long as the mine is exempted by order of the Minister, and as the conditions (if any) annexed to the oraer of exemption 
are duly observed. 

Section 45. The Minister may exempt from the provisions regulating the dimensions of such communications—
(a) any mine or class of mines by reason of the thinness of the seams or other exigencies 
(b) a mine so exempted may be only worked subject to the conditions specified in the exemption. 

GensrI holes. 
Section 47. The Act prescribes general rules (set forth at length hereunder) which are to be observed so far as is 

reasonably p-actieable in every mine. 
Special llues. 

Section 49. (i) In addition to the general rules, but not at variance with them, each mine must have its own set of 
special rules framed to meet the special circumstances of the mine. 

Object—The object of time special rules is- 
1. To prevent dangerous accidents. 
2 To provide for the safe-, convenience, and proper discipline of those employed in or about the mine. 

At What Time to be Made. 
Section 50. (s) In mines having special rules in operation on the 1st October, 1896, proper steps must be taken 

bcfre the first January, 1897, to submit a new set of special rules to the inspector. In the meantime, the existing special 
rules will continue in force. In than case of a new mine being opened, or the working of an old mine being renewed, the 
Act allows three months within which new rules may be submitted. 

(it) how made. Special rules shall be framed in the first instance by the owner, agent, or manager, and are, 
together with a notice, to he posted up' daring not less than two weeks in some conspicuous place at or near the mine 
the notice must be printed, and be to the effect that any objection to the rules on the ground of anything contained therein 
or omitted therefrom may be sent by any of the persons employed in the mine to the inspector, at his address, stated in 
the notice. On the expiration of the fortnight, two copies of the rules are to be signed by the owner, agent, or manager, 
and transmitted to the inspector, together with a eem-tificate that the rules and the notice have been posted up as aforesaid. 

Section 51. The Minister may, within forty days after their receipt by the inspector, object to the special rules if 
they are insufficient or unreasonable, and require them to be modified. The owner, agent, or manager may, within twenty 
days after the proposed modifications are received by him, object (in wmiting) to them if he do so, the matter must then 
be referred to am bitration. 

Section 52. (s) After special rules have been established under this Act in a mine, the owner, agent, or manager 
may propose any amendment of the rules or any new special rules; the provisions of the Act with respect to the 
establishment of the original special rules being applicable, as nearly as may he, to such amendments and new rules. 

(it) The Minister may also propose any new special rules, or any amendment of the special rules ; and the provisions 
of the Act with respect to a proposal of the Minister for modifying the special rules transmitted by the owner, agent, or 
manager of a mine shall apply to all such new special rules and amendments in like manner, as nearly as may be, as they 
apply to the proposal. ,e Publication 

* Section iS—Any person who pulls clown, injures, or defaces any proposed special rules when posted up in pursuance of the provisions of 
this Act is guilty of an egence against the Act. 



	

Publication of Special Rues and Abstract of Act. 
Section 57. A correct copy of the special rules when made, with the name of the mine and the name and address of 

the inspector of the district, and the name of the owner or agent and of the manager appended thereto, together with a 
copy of an abstract of this Act, must he kept posted up in some conspicuous place at or near the mine, where they may he 
conveniently read by the persons employed. A printed copy of the abstract and special rules must ba supplied gratis to 
each person employed in or about the mine on application. Every copy of the special rules shall be kept distinct from any 
rules which depend only on the contract between the employers and employed. Special rules are enforceable in the same 
manner as general rules. 

Section 55. Any person who pulls down, injures, or defaces the documenti so posted up is liable to punishment. 

penalty for offences against Act. 
Section 59. (i) Everyone employed at a mine who is guilty of an act or omission, which in the case of an owner, 

agent, or manager would be an offence against the Act, will be deemed guilty of such an offence. 
(as) Every person guilty of an offence against the Act, for which a penalty is not expressly prescribed, is 

liable to a fine not exceeding, if an owner, agent, manager, or under-manager, £20; if any other person, £2 for each offence. 
If the inspector has given written notice of the offence, a further fine of £5 for every day after notice that the 

offence continues to be committed may be inflicted. 

Wilful neglect endangering life or limb. 
Section 60. Where The Court is of opinion that a fine will not meet the circumstances of the case, imprisonment, 

with or without hard labour, for a period not exceeding three months, may be given. 

Summary proceedings for offences, fines, &c. 
Section 61. (a) All offences under this Act not declared to be misdemeanours, and all fines under this Act, and all 

moneys and costs by this Act directed to be recovered as fines, may be prosecuted and recovered before a Stipendiary or 
l'olice Magistrate or any two Justices of the Peace in Petty Sessions. 

(ii) Proceedings for the removal of a check-weigher shall be deemed to be a matter on which Justices in 
Petty Sessions have authority by law to make an order; and summary orders under this Act may be made on complaint 
before Justices in Petty Sessions. 

General provisions as to summary proceedings. 
Section 62. In every part of the Colony the following provisions shall have effect 

(a) Any complaint or information made or laid in pursuance of this Act shall (save as otherwise expressly prvided by 
this Act) be made or laid within three months from the time when the matter of the complaint or information arose. 

(ii) Any person charged with any offence under this Act may, if he thinks fit, be sworn and examined as an ordinary 
witness in the case. 

(ass) The Court shall, if required by either party, cause minutes of the evidence to be taken and preserved. 

Appeal to Quarter Sessions. 
Section 63. If any person feels aggrieved by any conviction made by Justices in Petty Sessions on determining any 

information saucIer this Act by which conviction, imprisonment, or a fine amounting to or exceeding one-half the maximum 
fine is adjudged, he may appeal therefrom to a Court of Quarter Sessions in manner provided by section three of the Act 
of Council fifth \Villiamn the Fourth, number twenty-two. 

Section 61. Misrepresentation by parent or guardian as to age of boy, and misrepresentation by a person as to his 
experience or previous employment in coal-getting are made offences under the Act. 

Section 65. The owner, agent, manager, or under-manager, for an offence under the Act, may only be prosecuted by 
an inspector, or with the consent in writing of the Minister, where the offence was not committed personally. 

Section 66. The result of proceedings against any person employed in or about a mine, by an owner, agent, or 
manager, must be reported within twenty-one days to the inspector of the district. 

Saving for proceedings under other Acts. 
Section 67. (i) Nothing in this Act shall prevent any person from being indicted or liable under any other Act, or 

otherwise to any other or higher penalty or punishment than is provided for any offence by this Act, so, however, that no 
person be punished twice for the same offence. 

(as) If the Justices before whom a person is charged with an offence under this Act think that proceedings 
ought to be taken against such person for such offence under any other Act or otherwise, they may adjourn the case to 
enable such proceedings to be taken. 

Section OS. 1)ehiars owner of mine and certain others from acting as a Justice, or adjudicating in respect of any 
offence under the Act. 

Section 69. The penalties imposed for neglecting to send notice of any explosion or accident, or for any offence 
against the Act which occasioned loss of life or personal injury, may be direetci by the Minister to he paid to the sufferers, 
or to the relatives of deceased sufferens, or to some of them, but not to any person who has contributed to the neglect or 
offence. 

Section 72. Sin,hlmp Rule8.—The special sinking rules which, at the commencement of this Act, are in force, shall 
continue to be in force until superseded by rules established under this Act. 

- Orders made before. 
Section 75. All orders made by the Minister which are in force immediately before the commencement of the Act, 

continue to be in force under the Act. 

General Rules. 

Section 47. The following are the general rules which are to be observed as far as is reasonably practicable in every 
mine 

Ventilation of Mine. 
Rule I. An adequate amount of ventilation shall be constantly produced in every mine, to dilute and, render harmless 

noxious gases to such an extent that the working places of the shifts, levels, stables, and workings of the mine, and the 
travelling roads to and from those working places shall be in a fit state for working and passing therein. The ventilation 
so grouluced shall be the supply of pure air in quantity not less than one hundred cubic feet per minute for each man, boy, 
and horse employed in the mine, which air (in that proportion, but with as much more as the inspector shall direct) shall 
sweep along the airways and be forced as far as the face of and into each and every working place where man, boy, or 
hQrse is engaged or passing, niain return airways only excepted. 

Every mine, except such as are worked on the long-wall system, shall be divided into districts or splits of not more 
than seventy men in each ; and each district shall be supplied with a separate current of fresh air. The intake air shall 
travel free from all stagnant water, stables, and old workings. In the 'ass of mines required by this Act to be under the 
control of a certificated manager, the quantity of air in the respective splits or currents shall at least once in every month 
be measured and eiftered in a book to be kept for the purpose at the mine. 

Rule 2. Where a fire is used for ventilation in any mine newly opened after the commencement of this Act, the 
return air, unless it be so diluted as not to be inflammable, shall be carried off clear of the fire by means of a diumb drift or 
airway. 

Rule 3. Where a mechanical contrivance for ventilation is introduced into any mine after the commencement of 
this Act, it shall be in such position and placed under such conditions ap will tend to insure its being uninjured by an 
explosion. 

Stations 
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Stations and Inspection of Condition as to Ventilation, lea 

Rule 4. A station or stations shall be appointed at the entrance to the mine, or to different parts of the mine, as the 
case may require, and the following provisions shall have effect 

(s) As to inspection before commencing work 
A competent person or competent persons appointed by the owner, agent, or manager for the purpose, net being 

contractors for getting minerals in the mine, shall within such time immediately before the commencement of each 
shift as shall be fixed by special rules made nuder this Act, inspect every part of the mine situate beyond the 
station or each of the stations, and in which workmen are to work or pass during that shift, an,d shall ascertain 
the condition thereof so far as the presence of gas, ventilation, roof, and sides, and general safety are concerned. 

No workmen shall pass beyond any such station until the part of the mine beyond that station has been so examined 
and stated by such competent person to be safe. 

The inspection shall be made with a locked safety-lamp, except in the case of any mine in which inflammable gas has 
not been found within the preceding twelve months. 

A report specifying where noxious or inflammable gas, if any, was found present, the condition of the ventilation, and 
what defects, if any, in roofs or sides, and what if any other source of danger were or was observed, shall be 
recorded without delay in a book to be kept at the mine for the purpose, and accessible to the workmen, and such 
report shall be signed by, and so far as the same does not consist of printed matter, shall be in the handwriting of 
the person who made the inspection. - 

For the purpose of the foregoing provisions of this rule two or more shifts succeeding one another without any interval 
are to be deemed to be one shift. 

(n) As to inspection during shifts 
A similar inspection shall be made in the course of each shift of all parts of the mine in which workmen are to work 

or pass during that shift, but it shall not be necessary to record a report of the same in a book : Provided that in 
the case of a mine worked continuously throughout the twenty-four hours by a succession of shifts, the report of 
one of such inspections shall be recorded in manner above required. 

Inspection of Machinery, &c., above and below Grennif. 

Rule 5. A competent person or competent persons, appointed by the owner, agent, or manager for the purpose, 
shall once at least in every twenty-four hours examine the state of the external part of the machinery, the state of the 
guides and conductors in the shafts, and the state of the head gear, ropes, chains, and other similar appliances of the mine 
which are in actual use both above ground and below ground, and shall once at least in every week examine the state of 
the shafts by which persons ascend or descend ; and shall make a true report of the result of such examination ; and every 
such report shall be recorded without delay in a book to be kept at the mine for the purpose, and shall be signed by the 
person who made the inspection. 

Fencing of Entrances. 
Rule 6. Every entrance to any place which is not in actual use or course of working and extension shall be properly 

fenced across the whole width of the entrance, so as to prevent persons inadvertently entering the same. 

Withdrawal of Workmen in case of Damager. 
Rule 7. If at any time it is found by the person for the time being in charge of the mine, or any part thereof, that 

by reason of inflammable gases prevailing in the mine or that part thereof, or of any cause whatever, the mine or that part 
is dangercos, every workman shall be withdrawn from the mine or part so found dangerous, and a competent person 
appointed for the purpose shall inspect the mine or part so found dangerous, and if the danger arises from inflammable 
gas, shall inspect the mine or part with a locked safety-lamp ; and in every case shall make a true report of the condition 
of the mine or part ; and a workman shall not, except in so far as is necessasy for inquiring into the cause of danger or for 
the renioval thereof, or for exploration be re-admitted into the mine, or part so found dangerous, until the same is stated 
by the person appointed as aforesaid not to be dangerous. Every such report shall be recorded in a book which shall be 
kept at the mine for the purpose, and shall be signed by the person who made the inspection. 

Use of Safety-lamps in certain places. 
Rule 8. No lamp or light other than a locked safety-lamp shall be allowed or used,— 

In any place in a mine in which there is likely to be any such quantity of inflammable gas as to render the use of 
naked lights dangerous or 

In any working approaching near a place in which there is likely to be an accumulation of inflammable gas. 
And when it is necessary to work the coal in any part of a ventilating district with safety-lamps, it shall, not be allowable 
to work the coal with naked lights in another part of the same ventilating district situated between the place where such 
lamps are being used and the return airway. 

Construction of Safety-lamps. 
Rule 9. Wherever safety-lamps are used, they shall be so constructed that they may be safely cam-ned against the 

air current ordinarily prevailing in that part of the mine in which the lamps are for the time being in use, even though 
such current should be inflammable. 

Examination of Safety-lamps. 
Rule 10. In any mine or part of a mine in which safety-lamps are required by this Act, or by the special rules made 

in pursuance of this Act to be used,— 
(t) A competent person appointed by the owner, agent, or manager for the purpose shall, either at the surface, or at 

the appointed lamp station, examine every safety-lamp immediately before it is taken into the workings for use, 
and ascmtain it to be in safe working order and securely locked ; and such lamps shall not be used until they 
have been so examined and found in safe working order and securely locked. 

(n) A safety-lamp shall not be unlocked except either at the appointed lamp station or for the purpose of firing a shot, 
in conformity with the provisions hereinaltcr contained. 

(cam) A person, unless he has been appointed either for the pui-pose of examining safety-lamps, or for the purpose of 
firing shots, shall not have in his possession any contrivance for opening the lock of any safety-lamp. 

(iv) A person shall not have in his possession any lucifer naatch or apparatus of any kind for striking a light except 
within a completely.closed chamber attached to the fuse of the shot. 

Lamp Sla'i. 
Rule 11. Where safety-lamps are required to be used, the position of the lamp stations for lighting or re-lighting 

the lamps shall not be in the return air. 
Use of Explosives below ground. 

Rule 12. Any explosive substance shall only be used in the mine below ground, as follows 

It shall not be stored in the mine. 
It shall not be taken into the mine, except in cartridges in a secure case or canister containing not more than five 
pounds : Provided that on the application of the owner, agent, or manager of any mine, the Minister may, by 
order, exempt such mine from so munch of this rule as forbids taking an explosive substance into the mine except 
in cartridges. 

A workman shall not have in use at one time in any one place more than one of such cases or canisters. 
In the process of charging or stemming  for blasting, a person shall not use or have in his possession any iron or 
steel pricker, scraper, charger, tamping rod, or stemmner ; nor in any mine or part of a mine in which safety-
lamps are required by this Act to be used shall dry coal or coal-dust be used for tamping. 
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No explosive shall be forcibly pressed into a hole of insufficient size, and when a hole has been charged the 
explosive shall not be unranimed ; and no hole shall be bored for a charge at a distance of less than six incises 
from any hole where the charge has missed fire Provided that in cases where a fuse is used no person shall return 
to a place where such charge has missed fire until a period of eight hours has elapsed from the lighting of the fuse 
attached to such charge. 
In any place in which the use of a locked safety-lamp is for the time being required by or in pursuance of this 
Act, or which is dry and dusty, no shot shall be fired, except by, or under the direction of, a competent person 
appointed by the owner, agent or manager of the mine ; and such person shall not fire the shot or allow it to be 
fired until he has examined both the place itself where the eliot is to be fired and all contiguous accessible places 
of the same seam within a radius of twenty yards, and has found such place safe for firing. 

(p) If in any mine, at either of the inspections under rule four recorded last before a shot is to be fired, inflammable gas 
has been reported to be present in the ventilating district in which the shot is to be fired, the shot shall not be 
fired,— 
(i) Unless a competent person, appointed as aforesaid, has examined the place where gas has been so reported to 

be present, and has found that such gas has been cleared away, and that there is not at or near such place 
sufficient gas issuing or accumulated to render it unsafe to fire the shot or 

(is) Unless the explosive employed in firing the shot is so used with water or other contrivance as to prevent it 
from inflaming gas, or is of such a nature that it cannot inflame gas. 

(lr) If the place where a shot is to be fired is dry and dusty, then the shot shall not be fired, unless one of the following 
conditions is observed, that is to say :- 
(r) Unless the place of firing and all contiguous accessible places within a radius of twenty yards therefrom are 

at the time of firing in a wet state from thorough watering or other treatment equivalent to watering, in all 
parts where dust is lodged, whether roof, 1los- or sides ; or 

(it) In the case of places in wiucli watering would injure the roof or floor, unless the explosive is so used with 
water or other contrivance as to prevent it from irrilanriug gas or dust, or is of such a nature that it cannot 
inflame gas or dust. 

(i If such dry and dusty place is part of a main haulage road, or is a place contiguous thereto, and showing dust 
adhering to the roof and sides, no shot shall be fired there unless,— 
(r) Both the conditions mentioned in sub-head (/r) have been observed ; or 
(is) Unless such one of the conditions mentioned in stub-head (In) as may be apphirabic to the particular case has 

been observed,and moreover, all workmen have heen removed from the seam in which the shot is to be fired, 
and from all seams communicating with the shaft, on the snore level, except the muon engaged in firing the 
shot, and such other persons, not exceeding ten, as are mreceasarily employed in attending to the ventilating 
fur naces, steam-boilers, engines, nrachinery, winlirrg apparatus signals, orhorses, or in inspecting the mine, 

(k) In this Act 'ventilating district' means such part of a semi as has an independent intake commencing from a main 
intake air-course, and all independent return air-way terminating at a main return air-course ; and ' main haulage 
road' means a road which has been, or for the time-being is, in use for moving trains by steam or other mechanical 
powem.. 

(1) Where a seam of a mine is not divided into separate ventilating districts, the provisions in this Act relating to 
ventilating districts shall be read as though the word 'seanr' were substituted for the words 'ventilating district.' 

Water and Bore-halt-a. 
Rule 13. Where a place is likely to contain a dangerous accumulation of water, the working appm'oaching that place 

shall not, at any point within forty yards of tirrut place, exceed eight feet in avidthr, and there shall be constantly kept at a 
sufficient distance, not being less than five yards in advance, at least one bore -hole near the centre of the working, and 
sufficient flank bore-holes on each side. 

Sig,rallinmg and Maim-holes for Traveling Itmlrnmes worked by Maelnirrsiy. 
Rule 14. Every underground plane on which persons travel, ivldch is self-acting or worked by all engine, windlass, 

or gin, shall be provided (if exceeding thirty yards in length) Nvith some proper means of comnuinnicatimig distinct and
definite signals between the stopping-places and the ends of tire plane, and shall be providedin every case with sufficient 
man-holes for places of refuge, at intervals of not more than twenty yards, and of not less than six feet high, three feet 
wide, and four- feet deep, or if there is not room for a psi-soil to stand l,,etrvecrr the side of a tub and the side of a plane, 
then (unless the tubs are moved by an endless chain or rope) at intervals of not more than ten yards. 

Man-holes for other Tm'avellirr0- P,oarls. 
Rule 15. Every road on which persons travel underground,where the load is (1 'awn by a horse or other animal, shall 

be provided, at intervals of not more than fifty yards, with srnlheient nnrri-holes, or with places of refuge, and every such 
place of refuge shall be of sufficient length, and at least three feet in width between tire waggoras running on the road and 
the side of such road. There shall be at-least two proper travelling ways into every steani-erugine room and boiler gallery. 

Maui-holes to be knr1it clear. - 
Rule 16. Every man-hole and every place of refuge shiallbe constantly kept clear, and no person shall place -anything 

in any such man-hole or place of refuge. 

Dirmieirsiens of Tu'ar'clling Roads, 

Rule 17. Every travelling road on which a horse or other draught animal is used underground shall be of sufficient 
dimensions to allow the horse or other animal to pass without rubbing against the roof or timbering. 

- Ferre-inrg of Shafts. 
Rule 18. The tbp of every shaft which for the time being is out of use, or used only as an air-shaft, shall be, and 

shall be kept, securely fenced. 

Troll, over Pit Mouth. 
Rule 19. Every shaft in course of sinrking shall he provided with a trohly to run over the pit's mouth and receive 

the load when brought to the surface. Such trolly to be large eliough to cover the opening at the pit top. 

Fencing of Errtr-amnoos to Shafta. 
Rule 20. The top and all entrances between the top and bottom, including the snnrp, if any, of every working, 

ventilating, or pumping shaft shall be properly fenced, but this sirahl not be taken to forbid the tenrporary removal of tire 
fence for the purpose of repair's or other operations if proper precautions are used. 

Securing of Shafts—Sinking Pit to be cleared of Gas. 
Rule 21. Where the natural strata are not safe, every working or punopinig shaft shall be securely cased, lined, or 

otirerwise made secure. Every shaft in course of sinking shall be kept clear of all noxious gases by a fan or some other 
appliance. 

Securing of Roofs and Sides. 
Rule 22. The roof and sides of every travelling road and working place shall be made secure, and a person shall not, 

unless appointed for tire purr-pose of exploring or repairing, travel or work in any such travelling road or working place 
which is not made so secure1 

lmbar1mg 
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Timbering, 

Rule 23. 'Where the timbering of the working places is clone by the workmen employed therein, suitable timber 
shall be provided at the working place, gate end, pass bye, siding, or other similar place in the mine convenient to the 
workmen ; and the distance between the sprags or holing props, where they are required, shall not exceed six feet, or such 
less distance as may be ordered by the owner, agent, or manager. 

Option of using Doa neast St .ft. 
Rule 24. WThere there is a downcast an:ifurnacs shaft to the same seam, and both such shafts are provided with 

apparatus in use for raising and lo.vcring persons, every person employed in the mine shall, on giving reasonable notice, 
have the option of using the downcast shaft. 

Attendance of Engineman. 
Ruc 25. In any mine which is usuady entered by means of machinery, a compc'ent male person not less than 

22 carS of age shall be appointed for the purpose of working the machinery which is employed in lowering and raising 
raons therein, and shall aatend for that purpose during the whole time that any person is below ground in the mine. 

When amy shaft, plane,. or level is used for the purpose of cemmuniention fm-ni one part to another part of the mine 
and 1e'i-ss .rc taken up or down or along such shaft, pane, or level by rn-ens of an engine, windlass, or gin driven or 
worked by steam or any mechanical 150  air, or by an anirnol. or by manual labonr, the person in charge of such engine, 
windliss, or ,in, or any part of the machinery, ropes, chains, or tackle connected thierecrith, must be a competent male 
lie. son n .t les than IS years of age. 

\\'hero the machinery is wwked by an animal, the person uri,lcr wlioe direction the driver of the animal acts shall 
for the purpose of this rule be deemed to I.e the person in charge of the machinery. 

il.scns of Signalling for Working Shafts. 
Rule 21. Every working shaft used for the purpose of drawing minerals, or for the lowering or raising of persons 

shall, if exeeding 50 yards in dept'c, and not cxemtecl in \vritmg by the inspector of the district, be provided with 
guides and some proper mains of eomcclumcic'ating distinct and definite signals from the bottom of the shaft, and from every
entrance for the time being in ne between I lie surface and the bottom of the shaft to the surface, and from the surface to 
the bottom of the shaft, and to every entranec for the time being in use between the surface and the bottom of the shaft. 

Overwindieg. 

Rule 27. If in any mine the winding apparatus is not provided with some automatic contrivance to prevent 
overivicehing, then the cage \vhlell men are being raised shall not be wound up at a speed esceecling three nuics an hour 
after the cage line reached a point in the shaft to be fixed by the Special Rules. 

Cover Overtead. 
Rules 2. A sufficient cover overhead shal be used for every cage or tub empi cyed in lowering or raising persons 

in any suorhing shatr, except where the cage or tub is worked by a wimmd'aso, or where persons are employed at work in 
toe shaft, or where a irlittea exemptmon is given by the inspector of the district. 

C ha mu s. 
Pole 29. A single hiked chain shal not be used for lowering or raising persons in any working shaft or plane, 

e::cept f, r time sho. t c muling chain attached to the cage or tub. 

Prevention of Rope Slipping on Drum. 
Rule 31). There sla'l be on the drum of every machine used for lowering or raising persons, such flanges or horns, 

and al o, if the drum is conical, such other applIances as may be sufficient to prencnt the rope from slipping. 

Drake and Iadmcatcr, 
Rule 31. Th"ro shall be attached to every machine worked by steam, water, or mechanic 1 power, and used for 

lowering or raising  persons, an adequate brake or brakes and a proper indicator (in addition to any mark on the rope), 
showing to the person who works the machine the position of the cage or tub in the shaft. If the drum is not on the 
crank shaft there sha 1 be an adequate brake on the drum shaft. 

Feneinc Mschinsry. 
Rule 32. Every fly wheel and all exposed and dangerous parts of the machinery used in or about the mine shall be 

kept securely fenced. 

Safety vaves and Gauges for Boilers. 
Rule 39. Each steam boiler, whether separate or one of a range, shall have attached to it a proper safety-valve and 

al o a proper steam-gauge and water-gauge to show rcspcetively the pressure of steam and the height of water in each 
boiler. 

Barometer, &c. 

Rule 34. A barometer and thermometer shall be pIccd above ground in a conspicuous position near the entrance 
t the mine. - 

S',rctehers, 
Rile .95. Where pers ins are employed nndergrenncl, ambulances or stretchers, with splints and bandages, shall be 

kept at the mine ready for immediate use in case of accident. 

Wilful Damage. 
Rule 30. No person shall wilfully damage, or without proper authority remove or render useless, any fence, fencing, 

noanhiole, place of refuge, casing, lining, guide, means of signalling, signal, cover, chain, flange, horn, brake, indicator, 
steam-gauge, water-gauge, safety-valve, or other appliance or thing provided in any mine in compliance with this Act. 

Otservamace of Directions. 

Rule 37. Every person shall observe such directions with respect to working as may be given to him with a view to 
comply with this Act or the special rules in force in the mine. 

Boots and Copcs thereof. 

Rule 3S, The books mentioned in these rules shall be provided by the owner, agent, or manager, and the books, or 
a correct copy thereof, shall be kept at the office of the mine, and any inspector under this Act, and any person employed 
in the mine may, at all reasonable times, inspect and take copies of and extracts from any such books ; but nothing in
these rules shall be construed to impose the obligation of keeping any such book or a copy thereof for more than twelve 
months after the book had ceased to be used for entries therein under this Act. Any report by this Act required to be 
recorded in a book may be partly in print (including lithograph) and partly in writing. 

Periodical Inspection on behalf of Workmen. 
Rule 39. The persons employed in a mine may from time to time appoint two of their number or any two persons 

not being mining engineers, who are practical working miners, to inspect the name at their own cost. ; and the persons so 
appointed shall be allowed once at least in every month, accompanied, if the owner, agent, or manager of the mine thinks 

fit, 

Soetion ii. (HI) Competent male persons abevo the age of 18 who were lawfully employed for this purpose before October 1, 13, 
may continue to be so cmpIoyd. 



	

	

fit, by himself or one or more officers of the mine, to go to every part of the mine, and to inspect the shafts, levels, planes, 
working places, return airways, ventilating apparatus, 01(1 workings, and machinery. Every facility shall be afforded by 
the owner, agent, and manager, and all persons in the mine, for the purpose of inspection, and the persons appointed shall 
forthwith make a true report of the result of the inspection, and that report shall be recorded in a book to be kept at the 
mine for the purpose, and shall be signed by the persons who made the inspection ; and if the report states the existence, 
or apprehended existence, of any danger, the owner, agent, or manager shall forthwith cause a true copy of the report to 
be seut to the inspector of the district. 

Person not to be Employed in Coal-getting without Experience. 
Rule 40. No person not now employed as a coal-getter shall be allowed to work alone as a coal-getter in the face of 

the workings until he has had two years' experience of such work under the supervision of skilled workmen, or unless he 
shall have been previously employed for two years in or about the face of the workings of a mine.* 

Penalty for Interference with Office of Check-inspector or Check-weigher. 
Rule 41. If the owner, agent, or manager of any mine, or any persons employed by or acting under the instructions 

of any such owner, agent, or manager, interferes with the appointment of a check-inspector or check-weigher, or refuses to 
afford proper facilities for the holding of any meeting for the purpose of making such appointment, or attempts, whether 
by threats, bribes, promises, notice of dismissal, or otherwise howsoever, to exercise improper influence in respect of such 
appointment, or to induce the persons entitled to appoint a clreck-inspector or a check-weigher, or any of them, not to 
reappoint any particular person, or to vote for or against any particular person, in the appointment of a check-inspector or 
check-weigher, such owner, agent, or manager shall be guilty of an offence against this Act. 

Wollongong, 7 August, 1902. 
WE, Thomas Harold Meurant and John Ryall, being relatives of William Meurant and Henry Meurant, deceased, 
hereby appoint David Ritchie and Andrew Augustus Lysagirt to attend and examine any witness at the inquest on the 
bodies of the above deceased, to be holden by the Coroner on the 11th instant and subsequent days. 

THOMAS HARROLD MEURANT, Brother. 
JOHN RYALL, Uncle. 

Wollongong, 7 August, 1902. 
WE, being a majority of the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery, and a majority of the workmen employed at the 
said mine, hereby appoint David Ritchie and Andrew Augustus Lysaght to attend and examine any witness at the inquest 
on the bodies and cause of deaths of Nelson, Meurant, and MacCabe, to be holden by the Coroner on the 11th instant and 
subsequent days. 

For and on behalf of the Mount Kembla Branch of the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association, being a majority 
of the employees of Mount Kembla Colliery,— 

JOHN WADDOW, Chairman. 
FRANK MOON, Secretary. 

Exhibit H. 
REPORT. 

WE have the honor to report as follows :- 
About 545 p.m. on the 31st of July we received verbal instructi.,ns from Sir John See to proceed at once to the 

scene of a colliery explosion at Mount Kembla, and there, on behalf of the Government of New South Wales, render 
professional assistance to the injured and supply them with medical appliances and comforts. 

Provided with three ambulance chests, we left Redfern Railway Station about 630 p.m. We reached Wollongong 
two hours later; here we ar-ranged for the conveyance of the ambulance material to the mine, and went by coach to our 
destination, whore we arrived between 10 and 11 p.m. 

We reported our presence to Dr. Robertson, the Managing Director, and informed him that we were sent by the 
Government to be of assistance, and that we were at his disposal to perform any duties he may direct. He at once 
decided that each of us was to accompany a party into the mine. When the parties were about to leave the surface, he 
directed us to remain at the pit top and there await a message from him or his return from below. Upon making inquiries 
we learned that all injured men who had been brought alive from the mine after the explosion had been attended to either 
in their homes or at the Wollongong Hospital by the medical men of the district. 

In a corrugated iron building at the north end of the pit top we examined twenty-eight bodies. Rigor rnortis was 
present in each ; this indicated that they had been dead for some hours. 

At the house of Mr. Rogers, the Manager of the mine, we saw Mr. Bates, the Mining Inspector. He was in a 
dazed condition, and he was sutléring from severe shock. 

During the ear-ly morning of the 1st August we saw many bodies brought by bearers to the iron building before 
referred to. As each arrived we made an examination. Amongst the number were those of Major MacCabe and Mr. 
McMurray. 

A number of men belonging to the search parties came from the mine during the night. Some of them were suffering 
from over exertion, and some probably from the inhalation of noxious gases. They were treated with material obtained 
from the ambulance chests. 

We remained on duty at the pit-head throughout the daytime of the 1st of August. We continued to examine the 
various bodies as they were brought in. At 11-30 p.m. we had seen and examined sixty. 

The causes of death were as follows - 
The majority of the bodies looked as if asleep, the features hardly disturbed, arms slightly bent across the chest, legs 

somewhat flexed, and feet everted; skin black with coal dust ; rigor mortis well marked; colour, beneath conjunctive of 
eyeballs, on the mucous surface of the lips, and beneath the nails, of a more or less distinct red, giving an appearance 
unlike that seen in bodies dead from ordinary causes. Where the blood was oozing from wounds it was of a cherry-red 
colour, and in those cases where the skin was peeled from the palms the exposed surface was of a bright pink. The cause 
of death was evidently the inhalation of carbon monoxide, one of the gaseous constituents of the after-damp. Death must 
have been painless. 

In two cases the post-mortem appearances were of a different kind. The faces were pale; the eyes, lips, and 
beneath the finger- nails, blue. In one the tongue protruded and was bitten ; the hands were tightly clenched. In the 
second there was copious frothing from the mouth Death probably resulted from inhalation of after-damp. 

Two men had been killed by injuries their bodies were much slrattered. 
Some of the bodies were burned ; the hair was singed, and the superficial skin peeled from the exposed parts to a 

variable extent ; the peeling epidermis was peppered with partly burned coal-dust. Anrongst these we noticed the two 
smallest. The clothes had been almost completely burned away, and the superficial skin from parts of the limbs and body 
was charred and peeled. The blood showing in the deep skin was red. The immediate cause of death was inhalation of 
carbon monoxide. The extent of the burns would probably have brought about early death, but not so rapidly as did 
happen. 

The sixtieth body was brought to the iron building about 11 -30 on the night of the 1st of August. Dr. Robertson 
ordered that when this had been done work was to be stopped for the night. As no search parties were in the mine we 
eft the pit top. On 

* Section 64. Misrepresentation as to experience or previous enuploymeirt in coal-getting is made an offence under the Act 
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On .the morning of the 2nd of August we consulted Dr. Robertson as to the necessity for remaining longer. It was 
agreed that the mine was now free from noxious gases, that the majority of bodies had been found, that the local medical 
gentlemen would be able to meet all requirements, and that we could safely leave for Sydney. 

We visited Mr. Bates and a lad named Stanley Richards. The former showed signs of improvement ; the latter we 
directed should be romovnd to the hospital. 

We telegraphed to Dr. Lee, the Medical Officer attached to the colliery, advising him the time of our departure, 
requesting that he should make arrangements to have any bodies brought from the mine examined, and telling him that 
the Government would defray expenses of any medical comforts it may be found necessary to order. 

In concluding this report we have to state that every possible assistance was given to us in the performance of our 
duties by Mr. Vickery, jun., Dr. Robertson, Mr. Rogers, the mine officials, and the local medical gentlemen. The 
hospitality extended to us by the manager and Mrs. Rogers contributed in a marked manner to our comfort. 

JOHN B. NASH, M.D. 
ROBT. T. PATON, M.D. 

Exhibit Q. 
Sir, 13 May, 1898. 

Referring to my visit to the Mount Kembla Colliery on the 11th instant, and our conversation on severa 
matters, amongst which were :- 

Old Davy lamps now used by deputies being considered as out of date and ihlega.1 under General Rule 9 should 
be replaced by another type of safety-lamp. 

General Rule 4. As to reports being made at the "station" and before each shift commences, whether day or 
night. 

General Rule 12. Blasting on haulage roads in presence of dust, and necessity for strict observance of the above 
rule. 

I shall be pleased to hear from you on these matters. 
I have, &c., 

Wm. Rogers, Manager, Mount Kembla Colliery. 
A. A. ATKINSON,

Chief Inspector of Coal Mines. 

Exhibit S. 

TELEOIAM from Bulli Railway station to Josi. May, Teacher of Mining. 

PARTY six inspect Kembla to-morrow ; will you make one? Reply immediately. 

D. RITCHIE, 
Miners' General Secretary. 

Coal Fields Office, Department of Mines and Agriculture, 
Sir, Sydney, 30 April, 1902. 

By direction of the Secretary for Mines, I have pleasure in enclosing herewith for your information copy of a 
Report by the authorities at the Woolwich Testing Station, England, with reference to the explosibility of certain coal-
dusts collected in this State during last year, which were sent Home for testing purposes. 

From this Report you will see that under the conditions specified, in all cases was an explosion produced, the 
intenstv only varyinc. 

Having regard therefore to the fact that large colliery explosions are sometimes produced by blasting, and propagated 
by means of. coal-dust alone, it is necessary in the event of blasting taking place in your colliery in dry and dusty places, 
that the rec1uirements of General Rule 12, section 47, Coal Mines Regulation Act, should be strictly complied with, and 
the vicinity of the shot thoroughly watered, as required by that rule. 

I have, &c., 

A. A. ATKINSON, 
'the Manager, Colliery. Chief Inspector of Coal Niue. 

Experiments carried out at. the Home Office Testing Station at Woolwich during the months of August and November, 
1901, to ascertain whether various samples of coal-dust from collieries in New South Wales were capable of causing an 
explosion when raised by the firing of a charge of blasting powder. 

The mel/sod of feeling. 

A cannon of 2-in, calibre and with length of bore of 30 in. was placed with its axis vertical. A charge of two Pellets 
of Curtis's and Harvey's blasting powder (145 granomes in weight) was macs-ted, and white pottery clay was well rammed 
on top of the charge to give a length of 9 in. of stemming. This clay is used for the various official tests at the Testing 
Station, and has been selected for the purpose on account of its purity, freedom from saud, and uniform character. It is 
obtmned from the pottery works of Messrs. Douiton and Company under the following specification :-" The clay to lose 
not less than 7 per cent, and not more than 9 per cent, of its weight by gentle ignition, and to be of such grain that not 
more than 94 per cent. and not less than 90 per cent, pass through a sieve of ten meshes to the inch, and not more than 
22 per cent, and not less than 20 per cent, pass through a sieve of twenty meshes to the inch." 

The remainder of the bore was then filled with coal-dust and a heap of dust 6 inches in height placed on the muzzle., 
The charge was fired with a low tension electric fuze. 

The tests. 

Iwo shots of blasting powder were fired with each sample of coal-dust, and in every case an i0nition of the dust 
took place, though with a varying degree of violence. 

The ignitions appeared as a rule to commence about 6 ft. above the muzzle of the gun, but as the experiments were 
carried out in daylight, it was not possible to gauge the exact height. In some cases the flames appeared to be about 30 ft 
in length and of about 4 ft. in diameter, and in other cases not more than about 10 ft. in length and of about a diameter 
equal to the length. There seems to be no satisfactory explanation of the variations. I have classified the explosions as 
mild explosion, explosion, and violent explosion. In the first ease there was not complete combustion of all the dust, and 
the flame was somewhat obscured by the unburnt dust. Under the heading of explosion, I have included those cases in, 
which, the bulk of the nlnst was ignited ; and under the beading of violent explosion, I have placed these ignitions in which 
the volume of flame was greater than in the two first cases. It is quite impossible to draw any hard-and-fast line between the 
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three degrees, and, after all, the main point to he noted is that with all the samples of (lust an explosion was obtained. 
In some samples there was a considerable amount of comparatively large grains of coal, and these grains fell to the ground 
in a shower after the finer dust had been exploded. On the whole, the dust seems to he of the same quality as that 
obtained in English coal-mines as regards its sensitiveness to ignition under the coniliGons of the test. 

I may add that this test is of a somewhat more severe nature than that originally instituted (but now abandoned) of 
firing a charge into an atmosphere of suspended dust. 

A. DESBOROUGH, Capt., 
;42/ol. Officer-in.Chare, Home Office Testing Station. 

No. of Colliery. Result. Colliery. Result. 
Shot. 

Mount Pleasant ............... 

South Bulli ..................... 

South Clifton ................. 

Coal Cliff ........................ 

Metropolitan ................. 

Osborne Walisend ............ 

ZigZag........................... 

Oakey Park .................... 

Bufli ............................. 

Corrimal ...................... 

Mount Kenibla.................. 

Bellambi ........................ 

Duckenfield ..................... 

Bloomlicld....................... 

Ehbw Vale (New Lambton). 

Wickham ancf Bullock Island 

New Winning ................. 

Explosion. 35 New Park ........................Explosion. 
More violent explosion. 36 ,, 
Violent explosion. 37 Pacific ...........................Mild explosion. 

38 ,, 
Explosion. 39 Stockton .......................Explosion. 

40 ,, 
Mild explosion. 41 Hetton ............ ...............  

11 42 
Explosion. 43 Co-operative ........ ........... Very violent explosion. 

44 ,, ........ ... ... ...... haplosi(n. 
45 Lambton ........................ 
46 ,, 
47 West \Vallsend ................,, 

Mild explosion. 
48 
49 

,, 
Newcastle Company's A Pit 

50 ,, Violent explosion. 
Explosion. 51 Seaham ...........................Mild explosion. 

52 , .......................Explosion. 
53 Greta .............................I 

54 
Violent explosion. 55 \Vallscnd .....................Violent explosion. 

11 
56 , , .....................Explosion. 

Mild explosion. 57 Burwocd .......................,, 
Explosion. 58 ,, 

59 East Greta .. ........... ..... .I 

GO ,, 
61 Timllry .. ... ..... ............ ..... .Violent explosion. 
62 

Mild explosion. 63 Centenary ........................Explosion. 
Explosion. 64 ,, 

65 Waratah ....................... 
66 ,, 
67 Brown's Colliery ............... 
68 ,, 

AD., 5/1201. 
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ROYAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY RESPECTING THE MOUNT KEMBLA 
COLLIERY DISASTER. 

MINUTES OF EVIDENCE. 

TUESDAY, 6 JATUARY, 1903, 1130 cm. 

[The Commission met at the Court House, Wollongong.] 

rrcnt : - 
C. E. I. MURRAY, IESQ., D.C.J. (PltiisIDFNT). 

D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., Co1irssroNEu. I D. RITCHIE, Es., COMMISSIONEa, 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by the Crown Solicitor, appeared on behalf of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &.c. (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Ke:nbia Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) ; and 

(a) the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Ti'. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Keinbia Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was prent to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
pro cc cdiii gs.) 

Ills honor.] Is there any other person who wishes to be represented or to appear personally? (There 
was no answer.) 

Ills Honor.] I think-, Mr. Bruce Smith, you wish to make some su: gestion 9 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. I would like to make a suggestion to the Court with regard to the procedure. 

Of course the Court will settle its own procedure ; but I am quite sure it will be open to suggestions from 
Counsel, especially in view of the fact that the questions to be examined by the Court have been already 
gone somewhat fully into before the Coroner and Coroner's Jury. The Court does not necessarily 
require to have any issues before it; but I take it that the Court would like to have some definite 
propositions to which the evidence can be applied and it seemed to me from whit I saw of the inquiry 
before the Coroner and the Coroner's Jury that the investigation shaped itself into three different points 
of view. The Crown, of course, is merely here to see that the investigation is a full one, and to see that 
any light that can be thrown from any direction on the subject of the inquiry which is omitted, either on 
the part of the employees or on the part of the Company, should be supplemented from the Crown's 
point of view. Now, the course adopted before the Coroner's Jury was this The police brought forward 
all the evidence that they had with regard to the deaths of the men who were in the mine at the time of the 
accident. They brought forward a number of witnesses who were rescued from the mine, a number of 
witnesses who had gone into the mine for the purpose of rescuing: and had seen the epndition of things 
immediately after the explosion or accident: then, having had that evidence before the Coroner, the 
interests which were represented by Mr. Lysaght put forward a number of witnesses to give their version 
as practical men, of what they had seen, the data upon which they formed their conclusions. They put 
forward conclusions, practical conclusions, for what they were worth, as to the cause of this disaster. 
Then the Manager was put into the box, and he gave his view of the matter without presenting to the 
Coroner or the Jury any very clear propositions as to how the thing took place: and one or two other 
witnesses werd called on the theoretical view of the question; and the case was finished. Now, I was 
going to propose to the Court that the Commission,11 suppose, will first of all call such evidence as was 
previously called by the police. 

His Honor.i The Commission does not intend to recall that evidence. The Commission views that as 
evidence already given. 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] I mean to say that that part of the evidence will be really brought before the 
Commission by the Commission itself. I was going to propose then that Mr. Lysaght should bring 
whatever evidence he has—it is all of a practical character,—and that the Department should then give 
what evidence it can offer with regard to the cause and the locality of this accident: and then that 
Mr. Wade, on behalf of the Company, should be allowed to call his witnesses last, on condition that both 
Mr. Lysaght, as representing the men, and I, as representing the Department, should be allowed to 
answer any fresh evidence or any new theory, other than that which has already been formulated which 
may be brought forward by the witnesses called by Mr. Wade. So that, according to my suggestion, the 
order would be 1st, those witnesses who have already been before the Coroner, then, 2nd, any further 
evidence that Mr. Lysaght chooses to call ; 3rd, Mr. Atkinson, the Chief Inspector, and any other 
witnesses of that character that the Department chooses to call through mc ; and, 4th, Mr. Wade's 
witnesses, with the right on both Mr. Lvsaght's Part and my own, to answer them. I think the Court 
would find that that would exhaust all the evidence that it wishes to have before it. 



C. us Hester.] Yes, allowing a fair amount of latitude of course in the way of answering issues that 
may crop up accidentally in the course of the inquiry, and calling witnesses out of their order who may 
be discovered during the time that the inquiry is being held. That seems to u, and seems to us general' 
I think, to be a very fair suggestion. Mr. Lvsaght, I suppose you fall in with it? 
7. Mr. Lysaqlit.] Yes, Your Honor. I indicated that in a letter sent to the Commission some days ago. 
S. ills Honor.] And Mr. Wade? 
0. Mr. Wade.] Yes, Your Honor. 

Ills Honor.] Of course the Commllsion may call witnesses at any stage of the proceedings. Fresh 
light being thrown on the matter from day to day, the Commission may see that it is necessary to call 
witnesses de note : but, if any of those witnesses should by their evidence require answering from any 
side, an answer will be allowed at any stage of the case. Your suggestion is only as to the general 
course? 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] Yes. 
ills Honor.] And that course is not a hard and fast one. 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] I take it that the Court will not be bound by any hard and fast rules. 
[[is ilonor.1 That is to be understood with regard to every phase of the matter. What the Commission 

wants to do is to try and End out the truth as to the past and what should be recommended as to the 
future—not in the interests of any particular person or party, but in the interests of the State generally. 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] Might. I suggest that that part of the Commission in which the Court is directed 
to inquire should be read in Court, so that Ave may take it that there is a series of channels of inquiry to 
which our attention may be directed. 

Iris Iioncrj I think it would be as well if the enacting or directory part of the Commission were 
read now openly in Court, so that any one now present may hear what the actual terms are, Mr. Garlick 
will read it to you. 

Mr. Garljch then read from the Commission as under :— 
KNOW YE that we . . . do ... authorise and appi jut von or any two of you . . . to make a diligent 

and full inquiry into the eanses of the explosion that recently occurred at the Mount Kenjijia Colliery, in the District of 
Illawarra, in Our State of New South Vales, whereby many valuable lives were sacriflccd ; and also to investigate all the 
surrounding circumstances, in order to ascertain whether 1laioe attaches to any person or persons, and, if so, to report the 
person or persofls to whom, in your opinion, the blame attaches ; and, further, to make any recommendation affecting the 
general management, especially the ventilation, of collieries and to offer any suggestions which you may deem advisable 
for the amendment of the law relatin.g to the working of coal mines, especially with regard to the treatment of coal-dust, 
the preent.ion of the accuninlation of dangerous gases, and the use of safety-lamps and explosives 

Mi', Wade.] Your Honor, I wish to mention one matter—a matter, I confess, of a somewhat delicate 
nature : and it really involves a request to a member of the Commission for his consideration as to the 
position be occupies in this inquiry and I do it with every sense of the difficulty of the position I am in, 
and in no way desiring for a moment to criticise the method of appointment adopted by the Executive: 
because I assume.—and I am pem'fectly justified in assuming this,—that the Executive, when they made 
the appointment of this Commission, did so with all the information before them and with a full desire 
to represent, as they thought, fairly, all interests upon this Royal Commission. 

But there are, matters which Your Honor and Mr. Ritchie will notice which are such that I think, 
if I put them before him now and, make the appeal to him, I may look w-ith some confidence to his taking 
no part in this inquiry. I felt a little difficulty about this matter until a few minutes ago I heard the 
terms of this Commission read, because I thought it might render the whole terms of this Commission 
abortive ; but it appears from the Commission itself that any two Members of the Commission may take part 
and have jurisdiction on the questions submitted to them, and there would be no wrong  done, there would. 
be  no abortive results of the inquiry here, and it would relieve those whom I may call the defendants of what 
they feel is a very unhappy position that they at present stand in. The application I am at present going 
to make--and I do it with every courtesy— is that, under the circumstances that have taken place in this 
case before, Mr. Ritchie would see his way not to sit in this inquiry. Now, it is not without precedent 
that I make this application, because, as Your Honor will know, it is not an uncommon thing  in civil and 
criminal jurisdictions in the State that, if there is any suggestion made by the party before the Court 
that the tribunal which is to try his matter is in any way prejudiced, cr has preconceived opinions, or has 
prejudged the ease, it is considered wiser in the interests of justice, generally speaking, that some other 
tribunal should be appointed to hear the case: and, as a matter of fact, the Judges have as a rule fallen 
in with any suggestion of that kind. The veriest criminal before the Court has the right, if be thinks 
fit, to say that be objects to this juryman or that juryman on the ground that be has prejudged the 
matter in some way or other. Now the most imnportant matter in the scope of the Commission evidently 
is to ascertain if any person or persont are to blame in connection with this disaster, which took place 
at Mount Tiembla in July last ; and there is a perfect and full scope and jurisdiction given to the 
Commission to, first of all, pronounce a finding which may involve the Company in a liability for damages 
and, secondly, which niay involve the Company in a prosecution under the Coal Mines Act; and, last, 
which may involve the Manager, or other high officals at the mine, in prosecutions for manslaughter: 
and, under those conditions, it is absolutely essential, at all events for the feeling of security and sense 
of fairplay on the part of the defendants, (the Company) before the Court here, that they should be able 
to say that their case comes before a tribunal which has not formed any opinion in any way adverse or 
prejudicial to their case before the inquiry. 

I want to refer very shortly to two tlnngs, and to put it as coua'teously as I can to Mr. Ritchie, 
and to ask him if those remarks that are put forward do not make a difllculty in his way in sitting here 
and acting in this case, in an absolutely impartial and unbiassed manner. Of course if be can say in the 
face of this statement that he can do that the defendlants will be relieved. 

Mr. Ritchie condo certain statements in his cross-examination before the Coroner. He stated that 
be had made the inspection of the Mount Kembla Colliery because lie had seen in the papers that Dr. 
Robertson was talding in parties of Managers to make official inspections ; and he says : - 

''In one of those reports leaw that Dr. Robertson had give n a definite opinion as to the cause of the disaster; 
knowing, from my experience, that Dr. Robertson coul,l geacrally get Mine Managers to say what he likedi, I made the 
application to take in six practical men, in order that, if the parties who had been inspecting on behalf of Dr. Robertson 
gave evidence which was not in accordance with facts, we should be able to have this party of practical men to give 
evidence how they found the state of I he mine after the, disaster, 

Well, 
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Well, the implication conveyed by that statement to the mind of Dr. Robertson-1 speak now under 
instruction—and to the minds of the Mine Managers referred to there, is that Dr. Robertson is capable 
of influencing men improperly in regar(t to their evefeuce ; and that the Managers themselves were so 
craven as to stoop to be influenced by l)r. Robertson in that improper way ; and what they feel is that 
to come before the tribunal as now constituted, one member of which has made that statement, and that 
statement being uncontradicted, unqualified and unaffected, they feel that the Commission, cannot take 
that calni and judicial view of their evidence which they are entitled to in a Court of judicial inquiry. 
I understand that some if not all of these gentlemen asked Mr. Ritehie some time ago if that could be 
withdrawn ;  and his repfv was, I am lnstrLtcted, that lie had not time to attend to the question then : and 
I take it that, this statement being made sincerely and solemnly under oath in the Coroner's Court, Mr. 
Ritchie cannot very well withdraw from it now. If lie can withdraw from it, then I say that the difficulty 
of the Mount Ketnbia Company is very niuch reduced ; and their position in this inquiry is materially 
altered if Mr. Ritchie can say now that he does not in that statement impute any dishonesty to Dr. 
Robertson or to the 1\iine Managers acting in conlunction with him but if these statements remain 
unaltered the Company feel the very great difficulty they are in that one member of the tribunal should 
sit here, lie having formed that opinion as to their credibility before they come into the box at all. 

Then again, with regard to the cause of this disaster, Mr. Ritchie himself expressed the opinion 
I am satisfied it was caused by an explosion of coal-gas." Now, as was foreshadowed at the Coroner's 

inquest, although the evidence was not called on the part of the Company, the case of the Company will 
be that this trouble was not caused initially by an explosion of coal-gas at all. They have evidence to 
put before the Court that coal-gas did not play a part in the initial disturbance that caused the death of 
those men on that day. This puts Mr. Ritchie in an awkward position : but, quite apart from that, the 
Company feel that if their case is successful they have to overcome an expressed opinion of Mr. Ritchie's 
which lie caine to before this inquiry began; and under those circumstances they feel that they have not 
that security which they have a right to expect from any tribunal if they come before this Court to give 
their evidence with those statements unqualified and unretracted by Mr. Ritchie. I feel in a very 
difficult position in dealing with the matter at all, that I am instructed to mention this—not to find fault 
with the action of the Executive : this is no place to complain of that—but because there are certain facts 
unknown to the Executive, but known to Mr. Ritchie himself, which, we feel )  if put quietly and calmly 
before Mr. Ritchie, will influence him to see the difficulty be is in and we are in in coming before this 
Commission on this inquiry : and we appeal to the sense of fairplay which animates every man ; and 
when be realises the difficulty we feel in coming before this tribunal to give evidence in regard to this 
inquiry under these circumstances we hope he will see Iiii way, without any loss of dignity to himself, 
to withdraw from the inquiry, and allow the inquiry to be conducted by the other two members of the 
Commission. We feel it as a duty to ourselves partly, and out of respect to the tribunal itself, that we 
ought to appear here and be represented on this inquiry ;  but, as to the other matters, we feel it our 
duty to bring these matters before Mr. Ilitehie and appeal to his sense of farplay, which I am sure animates 
him, and ask him whether lie cannot qualify this statement which affects the witnesses to be brought 
before the Commission, or to retire altogether. If lie can retract it in any way a very great load will be 
lifted from the minds of the Company and from the minds of those persons who are to be called by the 
Company. \Ve are preptred to appear here and to go on; but we ask first of all that this question shall 
be considered by Mr. Ritchie. I can only say that an appeal of this kind has never been unsuccessful, 
and I only hope that Mr. Ritchie will see his vay to reconsider the position ; and lie will not set a 
precedent which will be fraught with danger to the administration of justice. 
19. Ills ffonoi..j This is a matter which, as Chairman of the Commission, I may say is in a sense entirely 
personal between Mr. Ritchic and the Company: but, as Chairman, I fbcl bound to speak on the matter 
whether Mr. Ritchie does or does not wish to say anything. 

First of all, as to whether this Commission can be constituted without Mr. Ritchie as a constituent 
member of it, I certainly Ihi nk, and Mr. Robertson agrees w hi inc that in the intention of the Com-
mission it certainly cannot be said to be constituted by the sole action of two of the Commission ; and 
I should certaiuly refuse to go on with the work of the Commission if Mr. Ritchie thought fit not to 
continue to act as a member of it. It may be, of course, that it is within the terms of the Commission 
that the conclusions arrived at by two of the C'omniaissioners will be treated as the conclusions of the 
Commission ; but the action throughout, the consideration, must ct rtainiy be the action and consideration 
of the three Commissioners : and this would be entirely a lopsided matter if it were so constituted—I 
mean it would be, not in fket, at all, but in the opinion of the public, a lopsided Commission if it did 
consist only of myself, absolutely independent of all inclinations or tendencies or bias, and known to be 
so, and of a gentleman who is just as absolutely free from all bias as I am, but whose occupation puts 
him in the position of appearing to the public generally as if be might possibly have an inclination 
towards one side. But, apart altogether from that question, the question as to whether this Commission 
could possibly be said to be properly constituted if Mr. Ritchie were to retire from it, I might mention—
and I think my colleagues will certainly sanction my mentioning this fact—that I have had occasion, 
because of a letter written to the Commission publicly by the Company, to very carefully consider this 
very question of whether or not in the face of what has happened and in the face of what I have myself 
observed Mr. Ritchie is or is not an absolutely flair and uimbiassed member of a Court which has to deal 
with the rights of every one equally without prndice or favour of any kind ; and I may say that, having 
looked into time matter and very carefully considered it, I have come to the conclusion that it cannot 
possibly be suggested for a moment that Mr. liitchie is in fact not such an absolutely fair constituent of 
the Court as that be should not remain a member of time Court. I will not go into all the particulars of 
my consideration of the matter, but I will simply say that very carefully considering everything, looking 
into the fact that Mr. Ritchie was compelled to give evidence and did give evidence, looking into the fact 
that be holds a certain position in relation to time miners, looking into all the circumstances of time case, 
I have concluded arid have satisfied mnysell that Mr. Ritcliie is a perfectly fair, independent, unbiassed, 
unprejudiced, and honorable nmemnber of this Court ; amid, even if lie did happen to form sonic opinion in 
the course of time investigation Nvhieb lie had to make in the past, I have come to the conclusion that be, 
if lie should hear evidence which would fairly satisfy himii that that conclusion is not correct, will be 
perfectly ready to form what on the face of the evidence would appear to a reasonable man to be a proper 
conclusion. Under these circumstances I must say that I do not consider that, as Chairman of this 

Commission, 



	

 

Commission, I am bound even to ask Mr. Ritchie to pistify himself on this matter. I only say that, if 
Mr. Ritchie wishes to say anything or wishes to take any course, or to adopt any line of conduct, that is 
entirely a matter for himself ; but I do not put him in an invidious and unpleasant position by, as 
Chairman of this Commission, even suggesting to him that he should express any intention or any 
opinion. As far-as I am concerned, and as far as Mr. Robertson is concerned, we are perfectly content 
to go on with this inquiry with the tribunal which the Executive has thought fit to constitute, feeling sure 
that every juitice will be done by every member of the trbunaI towards every person and every set of 
persons whose future action or whose past conduct may be affected by,  the conelusibn to which the Com- 

mission will ultimately arrii e. - 
20. Mr. Ritchie.] I do not wish to take up the time of the Court by any,  lengthy reply; but I just wish 
to state that all this matter which has been brought before the Court by Mr. Wade has been brought 
under my notice before and also under the notice of the Executive. I have carefully considered the 
matter; and I presume the Executive has also done so; and alter careful consideration 1 have come 
to the conclusion that I can sit on this investigation with a perfectly fair and open mind. I shall be 
quite prepared to make the recommendations which I may think fit to make, based entirely on the 
evidence which is placed before this Commission for their consideration, apart altogether from any 
opinion which I may hold or may have formed ; and in view of those facts I have determined that I 
shall sit. 
21. Mr. Wade.] May I state, only in fairness to the Court itself, that after the expression of opinion by 
Your Honor and Mr. Ritchie the Company feel greatly relieved with regard to their position before this 
Court. Of course they had not had the opportunity of hearing your expression of opinion before this 
occasion ; and now they have had it I may say they are perfectly willing to put their case before this 
Commission. 
22. His Honor.] I am very pleased to hear you express that final opinion as the COnC1USIOII to which 
you and your clients, the Company, have arrived. 

Now the evidence will be called. Mr. Lysaght, there are certain witnesses whom you asked to 
have subpwnaed. They have been subpmnaed, and I presume some of those subpmnaed for to-day are 
now present. The usual order will be made for the exclusion of all witnesses. 
23. (All witnesses present were ordered out of the Court.) 
24. .ilr. Lysaglit..] It occurred to me, Your Honor, this morning that it might facilitate the conduct of 
the Commission if I mentioned at this stage certain recommendations which the Union instructed mc to 
respectfully make to the Court in order that Mr. Wade and Mr. Bruce Smith might consider them as the 
inquiry proceeded: and also some general recommendations from the employees of the Mount Kcmbia 
Colliery. If they were heard now on a general statement from me it might not be necessary to call 
witnesses to support some of them. They might be agrecd to. Your Honor will have no objection 
to that? 
25. His Honor.] No, certainly not. 
26. Mr. Lysaght.] I would like Your Honor to differentiate the recommtndations that are made by the union 
as a body from some particular recommendations that are sent to inc by the Kembla Lodge, representing 
the employees of Mount Kenibia Colliery. 
The recommendations as from the Union are these 

That the Coal Mines Begulation Act lould be amended to provide that all Managers, under- 
managers, deputies, and skot-fircrs, should hold certiricates of competency gained by examination 
before they be cntith d to occupy any ot those I espective positions. 

Suppemental to that, our TIor.or 
That they should also have five veirs' practical exl:crienco, in adithn to their certificate by 

examination. 
That the Inspectors should be vested with an absolute power to order the use of safety-lamps 

wherever they may deem them necessary. 
That all collieries be ventilated by means of fans, and that vantilation bymeans of a furnace be 

absolutely prohibited. 
That all waste workings should be absolutely sealed off; and in case of any emissions from the 

wastes such wastes should be surrounded by return airways to catch those emissions. 
27. His Honor.] I understand you to mean not 11 in case of" but "for fear of." 

23. Mr. Lysaglmt.] For fear of. We ask for an absolute sealing off. 
.His Honor.] Of course it reads grammatically, or according to the interpretation of the language, 

it would read as if you had to wait until there had been a blowing out of a stopping: but you mean for 
fear of the blowing out of a stopping. 

ills'. Lysa,qht.] Yes, so that the emissions, if there should be any, shall not come in contact with 
any intake. 

His Honor.] Just read that again, the last part. 
Mr. Lysaqlit.] That the wastes be surrounded by return air-ways, to carry off any such 

emissions—(Interrup(ci). 
His Honor.] It comes to this, that all waste workings be absolutely sealed off, and be also surrounded 

by return airways? 
Mr. Lysaqht.] Yes, Your Honor, and that the return airway shall not in any case come in contact 

with an intake, that is to say, not to pass over it, but to interfere with the free intake. 
His Honor.] It is rather difficult to say what that means. You see a return and an intake cannot 

be mixed up in any case ; but you may have a return which is riskily near an intake. 
Mr. Lysag lit.] Perhaps I might mention that there appears to be some evidence that in Kembla 

Mine the return airway did actually come in contact with the intake. 
Mr. Wade.] Do you mean the nudercast or the overcast P 
Mr. Lysaglit.] No, that the return airway actually intercepted the intake airway before it reached the 

shaft. 
IRs Honor.] WThat you mean really is that the separation between return and intake should be, as 

it always ought to be in all cases, a thoroughly sericeab1e and good one. Of course any kind of 
separation between them may be blown out. That cannot be prevented. It may in some cases be blown 
out by an explosion; but it should be of a substantial nature, von mean? 
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40. Mr. Lysaght.] Yes: that it should be so strict that there cannot be any except a very remote 
possibility of the return coining into contact with the intake. 
41. ills Honor.] In point of fact it might be taken to mean that intake and return airways should 
always be substantially separated. 
42. Hr. Lysaq/it.j I think that would do, Your Honor. Ofcourse, the whole thing  is subsidiary to the 
chief proposition for the sealing off. 
43. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I take it that these are only a general indication of what Mr. Lysaght is going to 
suggest by-and-bye ; and that they will be subject to modification after his evidence has been given I 
was going to suggest that Mr. Lysaght might hand his recommendations to the Secretary, who might have 
them typed for us. 
44. his hlonoi.] When Mr. Lysaght has -one through them in a general way very likely the other two 
representative advocates will be able to see whether in a general way they agree or disagree with the 
suggestions. 
45. Mr. Lysaght.] Yes. 
46. Mr. Bruce Smith.] We will be able to judge how far they are supported by the evidence that is 
brought by Mr. Lysaght. 
47. Mr. Lqsaq/it.i 

That with the exception of prospecting drives all places be provided with cut-tbroughs not more 
than 30 yards apart. 

That an extra supply of safety-lamps and requisites equal to one-third of the number of persons 
employed below ground be kept constantly in good order and ready for use. 

48. Ills Honor.] That is to sin-, for the number of iersons employed there should be one and one-third 
safety-lamps available? 
49. Mr. Lysaght.] Yes, as a surplus supply to meet emergencies. 
50. Ifis Honor.] That is where safety-lamps are used in the mine. 
51. AL... Lysaght.] Yes, safety-lamps, or general safety appliances. Your Honor will sce that there is 
provision for stretchers and things like that. It is general. The most improved safety appliances - 
(Interrupted.) 
52. Ills honor.] I thought you meant at first-perhaps Mr. Robertson may have thought so, and Mr. 
Ritchie might think so-that you spoke of safety-lamps and appliances relating to safety-lamps : but 
you speak of appliances generally of all kinds ? 
53. Mr. Lqsaqlit.] Yes, conducive to the safbty of the pit. 
54. His Ifonoi..] Perhaps you might express that better P 
55. dir. iysaqht.] I can supplement that with the evidence of the miners. 
56. Kis honor.] But you can easily see that a rule of that kind havin g  relation to safety-lamps differs so 
much from a rule of that kind having relation to other things-stretchers for instanee-that it is not 
expedient to mix the two up together. For example, you would not ant one and one-third number of 
stretchers-that would be urelcss ; but it might well be that you would want one and one-third number 
of safety-lamps. 
57. Mr. Lysaght.] I quite see that. Your Honor will see that it is open to alteration by the Commission. 
It is a mere suggestion which was handed to me this morning in a very rough form. Now, those practi-
cally exhaust the recommendations sent to me iii writing from the Delegate Board. Wliat I am going to 
give now about watering is from the Union, but not from the executive officers of the Delegate Board. 

S. Regarding the watering of the roads, that the travelling roads as well as the haulage roads should 
be properly watered. - 

Now, the next recommendations come specifically from the Mount Kembla L dge through their 
President :- 

9. That the certificate of the Manager, Mr. Rogers, should be cancelled, in view of the evidence 
given at the inquest and of' other matters to be brought before the Commission. 

10. That Managers should be compelled to give more personal time and attention to the management 
of the colliery. 

SB. Ills Honor.] There you have a comparative without the positive, Mr. Lysaght, so we do not exact]y 
know what that means. 
59. AIr. Lysaght.] Well, the Commission might see their way to frame a clause providing that at least 
two or three times a week the Mauager should inspect the inner workings of the colliery as far as his 
general business will allow, instead of, as I understand in some cases happens, perhaps, being absent for 
a week or two and leaving it to the under-men. 

11. An amendment of General Rule 4, vhicli provides for inspections, Your Honor, but makes an 
exception that the ins pection need not be with the locked safety-lamp, except when gas has been 
discovered there within the preceding twelve months. We ask that the inspection with the 
locked safety-lamp should be in all cases-cutting out that exception from the General Rule 4. 

12. That there should be a monthly examination by the deputies and the District Inspector with 
the hydrogen flame, and a special report made in a book to be specially kept for the purpose. 

13. That all miners and all employees of the colliery be fully instructed from time to time in all 
possible mdans of escape in case of any disaster. 

His honor.] That is boat drill. We can leave that at present an open question in mines : but it is 
certainly not an open question at sea. 

.Mr. Lysaght.] We know of one ease of a person who could have been saved if lie had known the 
way out. I-Ic took a wrong turning when he was within a very short distance of safety. 

Regarding ventilation specifically, we ask for an amendment of Rule 1 to sect ion 47, which reads 
that 100 cubic feet of air should be forced through for every man, boy, and horse, and- 

14. That the words " 500 cubic feet of air" should be inserted for every horse. The rule would then 
read that 100 cubic feet should be provided for every man and boy, and COO cubic feet for every 
horse. 

15. That all doors should be be so constructed and erected as to close of their own motion. 
16. That there should be erected double doors on the (hrivcs between the main intakes and returns, 

and on the main headings where skips are passing. 
16825 29 -J Your 
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Your Honor will see that it frequently haopens in a pit that one door is open while trucks are passing 
through and a considerable quantity of air escapes until the trucks have passed and the door is closed. 
62. His honor.] It is what may be called the lock system P 
62-. ilIr. Lysag/il.] Yes. 

17. That instruments shall be placed at the upcast to determine the variations of heat and air 
pressure. 

iS. That a weekly measurement of the air should be taken in each section, and a report sent to the 
in Spector. 

It is only provided now that there be a monthly taking of the air. His Honor will permit me to read 
from page 240 of Abel the terms in which we ask that the recommedations might be made. 

That the Manager or under-manager shall measure the ventilation at least once a week, at the 
inlet and outlet, and also at or near the face of all the entries ; and the measurement of the air 
so made shall be noted on blanks furnished by the Mine Inspector." 

That is, reading from one of the Mining Laws of Colorado. 
19. That the size of the manholes should be enlarged. I understand they are now 3 feet x 4 feet 

deep ; but they should be enlarged to such a size as the Commission may consider necessary. 
63. Mr. Wade.] \Vhat height would you like them? 
GE Mr. Lijsaght.i The height is specified—U feet. 

20. That the Coal-mines Act should contain a clause forbidding a black-list being kept of employees: 
and penalising the improper prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment. 

If Your Honor will permit me, I will read on that the Act for the protection of discharged employees. 
Mining Laws of Iowa, passed in 1888. 

Section 1. That if any person, agent, company, or corporation, after having  discharged any 
employee from his or its service, shall prevent or attempt to prevent by word or writing of any 
kind such discharged employee from obtaining employment with any other person, company, or 
corporation, except by Eurnislung in writing, on request, a truthful statement as to the cause of 
his discharge, such person, agent, or corporatica shall be guilty of a misdemeanour, and shall be 
punished by a fine not exceeding fire hundred dollars nor less than one hundred dollars ; and 
such person, agent, company, or corporation shall be liable in penal damages to such discharged 
person, to be recovered by civil action ; but this section shall not be construed as prohibiting 
any person or agent of any company or corporation from informing, in wrting, any other person, 
company, or corporation, setting forth a truthful statement of the reasons for such discharge. 

"Section 2. If any railway company,, any other company or parinership or corporation, in this State 
shall authorise or allow- any of its or their egents to black-list any discharged employees, or 
attempt by word or writing or any other means whatever to prevent such discharged employee, 
or any employee who may have voluntarily left said company's service, from obtaining employ-
ment with any other person or company, except as provided for in section 1 hereof, such 
company or co-partnership shall be liable in treble damages to sue-li employees so prevented 
from obtaining employment, to be recovered by him by civil action." 

I propose to support that recommendation by evidence immediately, Your Honor. 
Those I think are all the recommendations, except one matter that I have been asked specially to 

mention this morning. I understand, Your Honor, from the President of the Mount Kembla Union that 
the practice is now in the No. 1 District for the safety-lamp to be unlocked to light the fuse to fire a 
shot. It is quite clear that so long as that is permitted the men are under a continual danger; and perhaps, 
that matter being known now, some steps might be taken to prevent it, as the men feel, that while that is 
permitted, the whole object of the safet-lanip is defeated, instead of using a wire to light the fuse, they 
open the safety_lamp to light it. I mu instructed that that was done by the deputy. 

That practic,ilIv sumrnarises the suggestions, Your Honor. 
.hLp. Bruce Smith ] 1 take it that my friend is going to support all those propositions by evidence, or 

endeavour to do so. I think it would be fairer to the Department and to the Company, speaking for 
both, if lie would formulate those somewhat in the nature of a series of propositions ; because they would 
be rather diffusive as they appear in the notes. 

His llonor.] H they were crystalliscd into as clear and as concise a form as possible, and typed, and a 
copy given to Mr. Bruce Smith and Mr. Wade, it would be better. The Commnissiomi could have them 
typed if you have a clear copy in manuscript. 

Mr.  Bruce Smith ] It may be that the Department may fall in with some of the suggestions : it may 
be that we wish to offer slight or ]arge modifications of them; but unless we have them specifically before 
us it is impossible to know what Mr. Lysaght is contending for. 

ills Honor.] Some of them it would seem that the Government would fall in with, and others that 
the Company would fall in with, but there are others certainly that the Company would not fall in with. 

Mr. .Lysaqlet.] I understand that the evidence taken is to be typewritten, and that a copy will be 
ready for us next morning. 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] But in that form it is too diffuse. 
his Honor.] Some of them on the face of them want bringing dow-n to a narrow compass and making 

much clearer. You have evidently not had much time, Mr. Lysaght. 
Mr. Lysaqhit.] Some of them only reached me this morning, Your Honor. 
His Honor.] Perhaps during the adjournment you could get them into as clear and concise a form 

as possible. 
Mr. Bruce San/li.] By to-morrow morning. 
AIr. Lqsag lit.] By to-morrow- morning. 
His Honor.] But in the meantime their not being absolutely received or rejected would not prevent 

you from calling your witnesses P 
Mr. Li/sag/it.] Jut so. lighit I asic that I be supplied with a plan of the mine? 
Mr. linac Smith.] I would like to state that before the Coroner and Jury Mr. Atkinson had a 

number of lithographs prepared so that each witness who was called could deal with one lithograph, which 
was marked with his name and put away as the diagram of his evidence. 

i1,s Honor.] Those are all here. 
SO. .hfr. Bruce Smith.] We shall have a number of blank plans here as well. 

81. 
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Mr. Wade] The difficulty in the way of the Company is this, that they do not want information 
about the workings of their maine to got about broadcast. They are perfectly willing to let Mr. Lvsaght 
have a plan of the mine for the purpose of the inquiry ; and that was done in the Coroner's Inquiry. 
We asked him there to return it to the Company or the Department after the inquiry, so that it should 
not get away to the public. 

Mr. Lysaglif.] But, Your honor, I will be making a number of notes on the plan which I do not 
wish to become known to the proprietary. 

his Honor.] A plan which you asked to be considered private would be considered absolutely 
privileged when returned to the Commission and if you wished that it should be destroyed it might be 
destroyed. 
81. Mr. Lysa,qht.] Very well. With regard to the plan which I had at the inquest the sergeant of police 
informs moe that he has it and he will return it to me with your permission. 
85. His honor.] Yes. 
8 . Mr. Lysaqlst.1 Might I also ask that I might be furnished Nvith a prmted copy of the depositions 
taken at the inquest? 

his lToizor.] Yes. [The plan and evidence were handid to ]JIr. Lysaqht] 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] Do I understand that the Commission take the whole of this evidence as having 

been given? 
us honor.] Yes. That is taken as having been given. Anyone can recall any of those witnesses 

for the purpose of further evidence, for time purpose of cross-examinaton, for any purpose ; and the 
Commission will cause him to be summoned if lie (,:in be obtained. 
03. AIr. Brace Smith.] Even for the purpose of re-examination ? 
01. lIfe hloaor.1 Yes. 
92. lIfe. Bruce Smith.] I desire to reexamine Mr. Atkinson. This (the (leposmtions) is a very summarised 
statement of evidence and with in important witness like that I should ask to re-examine him even if 
he went over some of the same ground : so that I take it that there will be power to recall any witness 
for any purpose, subject to the ruling of the Court. 

MR. THOMAS RICHARD MORGAN was sworn, and examined :- 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaglit :- 

9;). (7. Your name is Thomas Morgan P A. Thomas Richard Morgan. 
91.. (7. You reside at Woonona? A. Yes. 
95. Q. And you are a miner? A. Yes. 
Od. Q. Employed where? A. At the Bellambi Colliery. 

Q. You are also the Treasurer of the Illaivarra District Union, the illawarra Colliery Employees' 
Association P A. Yes. 

Q. Do you remember the date of the disaster at Mount Kembla,-31st July? A. Yes. 
Q. Did you visit Kembla pit on that evening ? I. Yes. 
(7. On time 31st July at what time did you reach Kemnbla Colliery? A. As near as I recollect, about 

4 o'clock. 
Q. And  who accompanied you inside P A. I could not give you the names of the first party I went 

in with. We received instructions from Major MacCabe. He seemc'cl to have control of affairs outside. 
We received instructions from Major MacCabe to go down to what they call time old rapper and get on 
time travelling road and get on to the main tunnel at this old rapper, and travel outwards again to time 
tunnel mouth, to see if we could fiud any bodies of boys that were supposed to be in the tunnel mouth. 

Ills honor.] Q. Where is the old rapper? A. I think it is, as near as I can say, about a quarter of 
a mile in from time tunnel mouth, It was further in than No. 1. 
103, Q. But still on time main tunnel ? l . On the main tunnel. 
101. Mr Robertson.] Q. Would you be able to recognise it from the plan P A. - o, but it was on the 
inbyc side of that overhead bridge in the travelling road to the No. 1 section, because in coining back 
over we met Mr. Sellors and Mr. Cater. 
105. Q. Was it far on the inbye side ? A. I think about 150 yards. 
100. Ifis honor.] Q. Is that No. 2 Right P Do you know whether it was known as No. 2 Right P 

Mv. Bruce Smith.] I do not think there is anytiming of importance in that. 
his Ifonor.] But we want to understand the evidence. 
iIIr. .Lysaght.] (7. TJp to that tune you did not notice anything that you regarded as of any moment. P 

A. No. We came out and reported to Major MacCabe that we could not find any bodies from that old 
rapper to the tunnel mouth and then a report was made that there were a lot of muon ly ing in on what 
was called Mat's Flat, or Mae's Flat, who badly required assistance to get them out alive. I went in with 
a man named Alfred Weeks : that was in the shaft section : we went down time travelling road and got 
on to this Mat's Flat. There were a lot of mcmi there lying about unconscious, and one or two of tlmemn 
were dead. We brought out between us a man named Isaac Peace and rctui'ned again shortly 
afterwards and found that all that were ]eft then were dead. We brought out time body of William 
Bray. I did not go in any more that night: in fact I did not go in any more until about eight or nine 
days after the explosion. 

Q. Can you fix about the time that you first reached Mat's Flat P A. I think it would be about 
ti o'clock. I know it was just dusk as we came out of the tunnel mouth with Peace. 

Q. And about how many men were then living who afterwards were dead? A. Well, I noticed two 
bodies lying in the same position-they were alive when I was in the first time and dead the second : but 
time others that were alive I think had mostly been brought out. \Vlmen we were going in we passed some 
of them (time rcscvmers) bringing themmi out. 

0. \Vhat were time names of the two who were dead P.1. I do not know the names. One was 
lying on a skip and another one was lying up against the rib side. 
ii:i. Q. Did You olmservc whether any (if those iemss  foumid in that locality had been at all burnt or 
si nge(1 ?i.No: I 1mev all a ppeam'ed to mime to have been simtYring li'onm time effects of after-damn p. 
111. Q. \V lien was the next occasion on which you went in P.1. As soon as we took Peace out we went 

straight 
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straight back again. That was when they were dead. I did not go in again until about nine days after 
the explosion. 

Q. And who accompanied you then? A. Mr. Maguire, Mr. Ritchie, a man named Hay, in the 
Colliery, and Morrison, Adam Frost, and one or two others whose names I do not remember at present. 

Mr. Wade.] Q. Was Jonathan May one? A. Yes, he was one. 
Mr. Lqsaght.] Q. Which direction did you take on that occasion? A. In the No. 1 section. 

Q. Now, can you tell me what you observed on that occasion-anything that would throw any light 
on the cause of the disaster? A. We travelled up the main section -- (Interrupted.) 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. This is when you went in when? A. About nine days afterwards. 
Mr. Lysaght.] Q. You went to make an inspection? A. Yes, we went to make an inspection. 

Q. Tell us everything that you observed? A. We travelled up the main intake to No. 1 section, 
right up to the end of the No. 1 level. For a considerable distance up there were some very heavy falls, 
especially on the outbye side of, I think, this 35-acre waste or goaf. 

ALe. Bruce Smith.] Q. The outbye side? A. Yes. 
Witness (continuinq his replq to Mr. Iysaqlit) : We went into some of the working places-that is 

Morris', Aitken's, and 'Post's. \V e visited a fair number of place-. About Aitken's place there was 
evidence of fire : the props were charred, and there was also cindered dust on the roof. We were in some 
considerable time; and we travelled back down the travelling road. 

Mr. Lyeght.] Q. Can you tell us of any other places besides Aitken's where there were evidences of 
fire or flame having passed? A. In the back heading : in the main back heading, just about Morris' 
place, the dust seemed to be charred on the rib side. 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] It would be desirable if the witness could mark these things, if there is anything 
important depending on them. He could mark it with a pencil on the plan. 

Mr. Lysaqht.] This is only confirmatory evidence of what already appears on the depositions as 
evidence of force and flame. Of course, Your Honor, in the absence of any direction from the Commission 
as to the extent or the scope of the evidence I should offer, I should have to go on offering evidence until 
Your Honor stops me. 

His Honor.] We have a great deal of evidence both of the particular signs of charring and coking 
and of force in all this part of the mine. 
12l. Mr. L1.'saqht.] -It seemed to me that the evidence given by the Chief Inspector seemed to detail the 
evidences of force and charring more than any evidence I could bring ; and in the absence of ahy negative 
evidence I do not know whether I should be justified in taking up the time of the Commission in 
amphfving it. 

ALe. Bruce Smith.] If Mr. Lysaght were going to give evidence of any important facts it would be 
better to have it marked on the pla1s. 

His Honor.1 Any important detail of fact. 
]Lli'. Bruce Smith.] Yes. 
His Honor.] Mr. Lysaght, if there is any particular fact which you wish to bring forward the witness 

might mark the particular spot. 

(At 1 o'clock the Commission adjourned until 2 o'clock.) 

A FTERNOON. 

On resuming after lunch Mr. W. H. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
pro cped in gs. 

His Honor (addressinq ATe. Wade).] Do you intend to dispute or answer, or do you disagree 
with what Mr. Atkinson says with regard to force? 

Mr. Wade.] With most of Mr. Atkinson's evidence we agree, but perhaps there are four or five 
instances which Mr. Atkinson has not noticed. You find in the course of the evidence for instance that 
there is mention made of tubs being intertwined with telephone wires. There was also evidence as to the 
evidences of force being conflicting. I think our evidence will be more decided on some of these points. 
With rega.rd to what was seen in No. 4 Right our evidence will be more specific on that point. 

His Honor.] Is it your intention to attempt to fix the original centre of force. It might help us if 
you would mention what your contention is, if you have no objection. 
13S. Mr. Wade.] I have no objection. Our contention is that the original force came from the 4th Right, 
and that there was no evidence of gas or of any flame. That force could be accounted for by a large area 
of the roof falling down and forcing the air out. 
139. His Iionoi..] You mean that the force originated on the 4th Right, and not because of any 
explosion. 
110. Mr. Wade.] The cause may have been contact with a naked light. 

His Honor.] That mixes up the question of force generally coupled with all the surroundings. It 
is hardly possible to say you admit so much as to make it unnecessary to go into this question of the 
direction and the lines of force, because they are coupled and are associated with the question of heat. 

Mr. Wade.] The limit, extent, and the cause of this must depend upon the analysis by the Commission 
of all the evidence as to force. 

His honor.] As Mr. Lysaght is calling evidence as to the cause, extent, and the lines of that force, 
it is hardly expedient to stop him. 

T. R. MORGAN, previously sworn, was further examined as under 

Examination in chief by Mr. Lysaght continued :- 

Q. You may continue your evidence with regard to force? A. Right up to the main No. 1 level the 
whole of the force appeared to have gone over that portion, and it must have been very great. In the 
4th Right opposite the 35-acre goaf (Interrupted.) 
115. His Honor.] Q. Where do you mean? A. It is near the 35-acre goaf. 

146. 
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Q. That is a point south, just opposite No. 3 Left and No. 4 Right? A. Yes. (The witness here 
narIced the map with a blue p(ncil.) [Exhibit 1V. 1.] 

Jfr. Bruce Siu/h.] Q. You say the force came out from No. 3 Right? A. The great centre of 
force was just at about that part. -it appears to me to have shot out in dfferent directions. 
ifS. Ills Honor.] Q. It split there apparently? J. Yes. 
14 • - Q. Wliat else dd you see P A. At the hack end of No. 1 level there was great evidence 
of force ; but along to the left, off No. 1, near Aitken's place, I noticed two skips which had apparently 
been turned over. 

.hLp. Bruce Smith.] What is the number of Aitken's P 
i/is ilonor.] No. SO. 

1.52. Witness.] Along to the left I noticed two skips that apparently had been driven end over. 
Ills Jloaoi.] Q. To\rards the west? A. It would be towards that direction. (Witness marked the 

snap ni/h an arrow.) There appeared to have been a return force in the opposite direction coming back 
towards No. 1 level. It was in the goal near Aitken's place that I noticed a strong trace of fire-that is, the 
props were singed-one or two appeared to be singed by fire, and also the roof. I think that is most of 
the force that I noticed. We travelled backwards and forwards to Aitken's place two or three times. We 
travelled to the left of No. 1 level mul out at a heading not marked on the plan. But the force to the 
left seemed to be going out past Aitken's plae on to No.1 level and out over. The force seemed to go in 
this particular direction. Frein GiIl' going Lord the force seemed to have one out and on to No. 1 level 
and therm out over. 

liii ilonor.] Q. Do you mean that there appeared to have been a second force alter the force that 
first went towards the west? A. Yes ; there appeared to have been a return force. I think that is all I 
can say about the force. 

Q. What were the signs of the force that you say caine from the west towards the east-towards 
No. 1 P A. The props were driven in that direction, the bark on the timber that was standing had 
apparently been blown in that direction also. 
150. Air. Li1saglit.] 9. Were there any indications of fire rear that Leading-near Morris' working 
place? A. No ; it seemed to be fairly clear about that spot, there was not such a lot of timber there. 

Q. From the top of No. 1 to the 5th Right were there any indications? A. There was a horse 
and some skips that had been driven outbye by it. 

Q. From the top of Morris' healing down to the 5th Right, were there any indications of fire in 
the Back Heading? A. That is the travelling-road? 

Q. Yes. A. There were one or two bars which had been driven out over the road. 
Mr. Bruce Smi/h.] Q. Is tLat between No. 1 and No. 5 road? A. Yes. 

101. Jfi. Lqsoqhf.] 9. You say the bars were driven out P A. Yes. 
1132. Q. Anything else? A. Seine timber was driven in the same direction. I do not recollect any other 
evidence of force. 
1133. Q. Where was this horse that you mentioned-what was its position as regards the 5th Right? 
it. It was on the inbye side, if I remember correctly, of the 5th Right. 
lOt. In the main level or on the t avelling-road P A. Yes; in No. 1 main level. 

9. And were there any skips near that horse? A. 1 think there were, but I am not quite positive. 
Q.  \V hicli way was the horse facing? A. Its head was facing outwards. 
Q. Do you remember on which side of the horse the skips were? A. I think on the inbye side of 

it. I did not stop very long where the horse was, to be particular. It was not too pleasant. 
his Honor.] Q. The horse was very dead PA. Yes. 
Mr. Lysaqht.] 9. Were there any other indications of force in the vicinity of the 5th Right that 

you remember P A. No, I do not think so. 
Q. Coming clown from the 5th Right towards the 4th Right, what were the indications of force 

on No. 1 main level ? A. •For a certain distance on the inbye side, No. 1 Right, the force seemed to have In 

gone in for a certain distance and out over as well. 
Q. What did you see? A. Some of the bars had, evidently been driven over. 
ills honor.] Q. You mean the railway irons used as girders? A. Yes. 
Mr. Lyso,q/it.] Q. How many of these did you notice? A. I think two. They seemed to have been 

driven in over. 
Q. Was there anything else between the 5th Right and the 4th Right P A. Nothing else that 

I remember now. 
Q. Coming from the 4th Right towards the telephone cabin, what were the directions of force 

there? 
his ilcnor.] This is evidently it perfectly straightforward and intelligent witness, but is it not 

unnecessary to continue his evidence in this way ? Mr. Atkinson has dealt with the matter. 
AIr. Lilsaght.] Mr. Wade has given some evidence of force ; and I thought I would supplement it. 

I purpose asking the witness to say what conclusions be arrivd at; and I will hold in reserve the reasons 
that led him to that decision. 

Q. Are you able to give any evidence as to where the explosion was? 
Mr. Wade.] AsIc him first if there was an explosion. 
His Honor.] You can ask if the force was something in the nature of an explosion. After all an 

explosion is only the driving of air in various directions with very great violence. 
.21/i-. Lysaqht.] Q. Will you tell us if you came to any conclusion ? A. I am rather in doubt. I 

think the explosion occurred somewhere about Morris' place, at the end of No. 1. section. 
Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Did you go further up than Morris' P A. Either Morris' or the top heading of 

No. 1 level. It travelled west towards Aitken's place. The first explosion may have caused a large fail 
in the 35-acre goaf, which forced a lot of matter out and created a bigger fall somewhere about No. 4 
Right. It forced out the matter - (Interrupted.) 

AIr. .Lysaqht.] Q. What do you meami by matter? A. Dust and gas-a great amount of dust came 
out from that big waste ; and that would give it a big help. 

9. That is one conclusion ;-what is your other PA. The other is that it may have originated 
about No. 4 Right, driving out the just to some naked lights, and spread from there all over that 
section. 

ilL. T4saqht.1 I do not think J can carry this vit ness any further on a matter like this. 
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His Honor.] I always think it is more simple to put to your own witness as few general questions 
as you can, and to let the other party cross-examine him afterwards. 

Mr. Lysag/it.] Now, taking the first of these recommendation s-that all Managers, and under-
managers, should pass examinations? 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] Does Your Honor think it right that Mr. Lysaght should read out these recoin-
mendations to the witness, and then examine him on them P 

His Honor.] 1 suppose the witness knows them already. 
Mr. LysaghEj Yes, he is one of the Executive. 
Q. Now, what is your answer? A. I think it is only proper for every person, Manager, overman, 

deputy, or fireman, to pass an examination. Deputies never do undergo an examination ; and they hold 
a responsible position in a colliery. In fact 1 take it that the lives of the miners depend more on the 
rigilance of the deputy than on the Manager. The deputy is continually in the colliery. He has to 
make an examination in the morning before the miners start work ; and he should be a very practical 
man. He should understand the nature of everything connected with his duty. 

Q. As regards the Managers, why should they be certificated by examination? A. It would be 
upon the same lines as the deputy--to see that they are qualified for the position they hold. Unless 
they pass an examination you do not know their qualification. They want a practical and theoretical 
knowledge. 

Q. The same reasons apply to the nndermanagers? A. Yes. 
191. Q. What about the shot-firer? A. The shot-firer is on the same lines with the deputy. He should 
thoroughly examine the place, and see that it is free from gas before be fires a shot, and unless be has a 
know]edge of that class of work, there would be danger attached to his position-and a lot of danger too. 
195. Q. Do you mean all oral examination or a written examination'? A. I think both. 
193. Q. Are there any other reasons you advance for that request? A. No, 
197. Q. Another recommendation is that Inspectors be vested with absolute power to order the use of 
safety-lamps wherever necessary P A. I take it that that is a fair recommendation. We have instances 
of where Inspectors sometimes think that safety-lamps should be used, and they come into conflict with 
the management over the matter. The management do not always put them in when the Inspector 
recommends them, although I have never heard of any disaster occurriug because of that; but it is better 
to take precautions before a disaster does occur. 
193. Q. have you heard of any instances where the Inspector was desirous of ordering safety-lamps but 
had not the poweiP A. I .have heard ; but it is only reported to tue that they did recommend safety-
lamps to be used in a Colliery. 
190. Mr. Wade.] Q. Give us the name P . South Bulb. 

Mr. Brace Smith.] Q. Can you mention any other Colliery P A . Bulli also. 
Mr. Lysaght] Q. What was the result? A. It was some time before they were put in. 
Q. The next recommendation is that all collieries be ventilated by means of fans? A. Fans are 

certainly a more modern system of ventilating a mine. They are not affected so much by the weather as 
a furnace would be, especially in this locality. A heavy westerly gale affects the working of a furnace 
very uiateriallv. 

Q. \\Tliat  other reasons are there? A. A fan would be more constant and more to be depended 
upon. 

Q. Now as regards safety in case of a dismtster? A. A fan would certainly be the safest in time of 
disaster; because a large body of black-damp would put a furnace out, but would not affect a fan. 

Q. In connection with the disaster what are the other objections to a furnace? A. One objection 
is that all the foul matter conies to the furnace, and that affects the working of the furnace; and it is 
some little time before you can get the furnace in full blast. 

I suppose that people in every part of the mine might be suffocated P A. Yes. 
With regard to time waste workings, do you consider that essential P A. Yes. 
How would you have them sealed off? A. By brick stoppings preferably. In a lot of the waste 

workings where you have the intake passing the old working the foul air is carried over the mine. 
2,9. Q. Into the mine also P A. Yes; into the mine also. 

Q. What precaution would you take in case of anything happening to these stoppings P Al. If the 
air did escape it would not be so bad if it went towards the return, not the intake. 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. That is if your suggestion is followed P A. Yes. 
21.2. AIr. Lijsaglit.] Taling the 35-acre goaf, if that had been properly sealed off do you think that would 
have affected in a great measure this disaster? A. I would not care about being quite sure. A fall in a 
place like that would blow out any stopping. A more modern systemn would be to work the coal out as 
you came back. here you are driving ahead and leaving the old workings as you go in. 

Q. It is recommended tha, with the exception of prospecting drives, all places be provided with 
cut-throughs at every 30 yards? A. I do not believe in driving long distances and carrying the air along 
with brattice. 

Q. What is the objection? A. The brattice requires a lot of attention ; and it is not always tight. 
In the event of its being 50 or 100 yards ahead, if the fall occurred on the outbye side of you it would 
cut off the supply. 

Mr. Bruce Smith ] What is the distance P 
Air. Lysaqht.] Every 30 yards. 
Q. Would the provision of cnt.throughs afford much better ventilation? A. Of course it would, 

much better. 
Q. What about the extra supply of safety-lamps and requisites? A. 1 think that is necessary. 

We have only to take the Mount Kembla disaster for an illustration. When we arrived there we found 
a number of lamps which were out of order and were not kept in proper repair, and there were not the 
necessary requisites there. There was an interior quality of oil and wick. We had to make our own 
lamps ready ourselves. I -at three lamps ready; and they were taken out of my hand : the other lamp 
I stuck to myself. H there had been a full supply of working lamps there there would, have been more 
rescuers in the pit, and more lives saved. It was only a question of getting the men out who were 
suffering from after-damp, to save their lives. 

Q. Do you know how many lamps were supplied to Kembla P A. I should say thirty or forty- 
forty at the very outside. 220. 
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how many of these were ready for immediate use? A. I did not see any ready. 
Q. In addition to the three which you got ready did you observe anyone else getting lamps ready? 

A. Yes. The whole of the delega tes who went from Wollongong got their lamps ready; and some of 
them got lamps ready for other people. 
222. JJis honor.] (,). What people P A. The miners' delegates. They were witnesses there. 

Mc. Lysaqht.] Q. What are the other requisites that you think should be kept there? A. Requisites 
in connection with safety-lamps. You could not keep a supply of stretchers; they keep an ample number 
of stretchers for ordinary accidents ;  but lamps are necessary over and above everything else. 

Q. You mean wicks and oil? A. Yes. 
223. Q. What are the necessary precautions you desire to take with regard to watering? A. I think 
that the main travelling road should be watered to keep down the (lust. 

Q. Have you observed a dangerous accumulation of dust on the main haulage roads? A. Oh, yes; 
some of them are very dusty. I think the dust I have seen lying about would be dangerous. It would 
be a great assistance to the force of an explosion. 

Q. Now, regarding the personal attention of the Manager? A. I think the Manager should give 
more personal attention to a colliery than Mapagers are in the habit of doing. 

Q. how often have you seen your Manager looking over the internal works? A. There is a new Manager now. 
Q. Well, the last Manager P A. I should say once in six weeks or thereabouts. 
.Li[r. Bruce Smith.] Q. You are speaking of your own mine? A. Yes. But that would not apply 

to all Managers. I have been in a colliery where the Manager went down more often-two or three times 
a week. At other places I have not seen a Manager go down for six months. 
211. Mr. Lqsoghf.] Q. With regard to the inspection, and the locking of safety-lamps, do you think the 
latter part of the rule should be wiped out? A Yes; it is in practice now, and I think the latter part 
of the rule should be left out. 

Q. With regard to the monthly inspection by the Inspectors with a hydrogen lamp, do you think 
such a. lalnJ) would be better for the discovery of gas P A. WTe know that the ordinary safety-lamp will not discover gas so readily as a hydrogen lamp will. I think some collieries are already getting hydrogen 
lamps. 

Q. Now, with reference to instructing the men with regard to the exits from the mine? A. I think 
the deputies should show the men the exits from the mine upon different occasions, and then in the 
event of a disaster the men would know which way to gon ., and if one exit was blocked against them they 
could go by another. The ordinary style is that a man travels one road from the time of his birth to his 
death, and does not know any other. 
234. 9. When do you suggest that the men should be so instructed P A. At least once a week. 9. With regard to the amendment of Eule No. 1 and the allowance of 500 cubic feet of air to a 
horse, in addition to 100 feet for each man and boy, what do you say to that? A. I think that it is 
necessary. A horse uses up much more air than a man ; and it means that someone is to get less air 
because the herse uses up more air. 

Q. how much air do you think a horse would use? A. I cannot say. 
9. iloughily? A. I should say that he would use about four times as much as a man. 
9. Are you aware that in mines in Colorado they pm'ovide 500 cubic feet of air for each horse and 

ionIc in addition to the men? A. Yes. 
230. Q. Are you also aware that the laws of Illinois provide 600 cubic feet? A. Yes. .iJfr. Wiide.] Give us some English law. A. The Yankees are more advanced. 
241. Mr. Ljsoght.] Q. As to two doors in a mine, do you think that a wise thing? A. Yes. 212. Q. Do you know that it frequently happens that the doors are left standing open? A. Yes. I have seen them standing open. 
243. Q. And the result has been V- ? A. I may say that in the Bulli Colliery one door was left standing 
open. It was a door between two headings ;  and in one of those headings the explosion was supposcd to 
have occurred. It would cause a great accumulation of gas. 
211. Q. In addition to diverting the air? A. Yes. 
243. 9. Could the self-closing of the door be easily done?. A. Oh, yes. By means of a spring. 216. Q. As to double doors ? A. \Vhere there is one door between two headings, if it were left open the 
whole of the air would be diverted, but in the event of there being two doors the second door would 
prevent the diversion of the air. 

Q. Is that a cheap and easily-effected reform? A. Oh, yes. There is not much expense in providing two doors. 
Q. Now, regarding the supply of instruments at the upcast for the determination of the variation of 

heat and pressure, do you think those are desirable? A. Yes, I do. 249. Q. With regard to the measurement of the air-do you think a monthly measurement is sufficient, 
or do you think there ought to be a weekly inspection? A. I think there ought to be a weekly inspection. 

Q. In what part of the mine? A. In the various splits, and in the return section. As a matter of 
fact, the taking of the air near the intake gives no evidence of the kind of air circulating in the remote 
parts of the mine, because there may be leakages. 

Q. Now with regard to the enlargement of the size of the manholes-they are now 3 feet by 4 feet 
-what size would you suggest ? A. I think they should be wider. 

Q. What do you say to 4 feetby 4 feet? A. Yes, I think 4 feet by 6 feet. Q. Could that be cheaply effected ? A. Yes. 
JUr. Wade.] Q. i s  that to hold a family? A. I have seen six men in one manhole; and you have 

tins, and picks, and one ihing and another, there, and you do not feel very comfortable. 
235. diTr. Lysi9lit.] 9. We have certain instructions as to safety-lamps being opened and the fuse 
ignited by the safety-lamp -is that dangerous? A. It is very dangerous. It is as bad as using naked 
lights. A miner mmghmt examine a mine to see if there were any gas in that particular part, but I think 
the practice itself is dangerous. 
236, Q. Now, with regard to this suggestion as to dismissed employees, do you know of your own 
knowledge a case where a miner was prevented from getting work in one Colony or where a letter was 
sent? A. I know an instance of that kind. 

257. 
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Mr. Wade.] I think it would be better to have some precise evidence on this matter. 
His Honor.] Is this what you know of hearsay, or do you know it of your own knowledge? A. I 

was dismissed from a coUiery myself. 
His Honor.] Then you know it of your own knowledge very well ? 
Mi, Wade.] I would ask whether this matter comes under the scope of the presetit Commission. It 

is a matter which can be ventilated before an Arbitration Court. 'l'liere was an Arbitration Court dealing 
with this case ; but we heard nothing about it. The Commission is to offer suggestions for making the 
working of mines more satisfactory but the question of a black list between employer and employed 
cannot carry out that object. 

Ris Ronor.] It is doubtful whether this question does come under the scope of the Commission; 
but it is possible that it may. There is fair argument that it may come within the scope of the Commission, 
and we will not exclude it. At the same time Counsel is entitled to draw the line as fine as possible, 
because we do not wish to stretch this inquiry into the matters that other Courts have to deal with. 

Mv. .Lysaqlif.] The point is that men are afraid to roport to the mine authorities, because if they 
do they are dismissed and cannot get employment in the same district. 

His Honor.] You mean that the men who make reports are not in favour with the authorities. 
.2ITr. Lysaq/it.] Q. You may tell us what happened in your own case P A. I was dismissed from a 

coal mine. 
Mv. Wade.] Q. Tell us the na:ne. A. The Bellambi. 

260. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. What were you dismissed for? A. It was over the question of the payment of 
the wheelers. They wanted inc to come out and wheel by the score ; and I would not. 1 went the same 
afternoon and got a job at the North Illawarra liiao. I started work the next day ; and the overman, 
who was named McKinnon, told me, about the third or fourth day after I started, that I was very lucky 
that I got a start theta. I said, "How is that? " He said, "The day after you started, the Manager 
got a letter asking him not to start you." 

Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. 1-low many years ago was that? A. About nine years ago. Occurrences like 
that do not come to inc every day. 

Q. Were you dismissed? A. Apparently I got in ahead of the note. 
Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Do you know that in many cases men are afraid to report small defects in the 

management of a mine for the fear of getting dismissed P 
Mr. Wade.] I object to that question. It is only something the witness may have been told. 
His Honor.] Such a thing may happen anywhere, it is only human nature such thugs have 

happened ever since the beginning of tiuie, and wiil remain so long as human nature is human nature. If 
a man is a little inclined to enthusia:m, and is in the liait of pointing out defects-we need not say in 
mine, but say in the hoisting gear of a building in Sydney-he may get sent away. I do not think it is 
necessary to go into the evidence of truth of such a thing as that. 

Mr. Wade ] They are bringing forward specific instances of what is taking place. They will be used 
as arguments for the making of provisions to prevent these things taking place in the future. We should 
have something to act upon, so that we could contradict these statements or qualify them. In the first 
place, there is a difficulty in finding out the men referred to. It is a complaint made against the Managers 
and, if true, it is not very creditable to them. 

His Honor.] I will suggest that Mr. L7saght should not go into such matters as these., because it is 
only evidence of self-evident possibilities. If it can be shown that in other parts of the world it has ben 
found expedient to legislate to get away from diffieuliies of this kind, that will be better evidence. 

AIr. .Lysaglmt.] Q. Are you aware that one of the Minng Laws of Iowa, upon page 271 of "Abel," 
is as follows 

An Act for the protection of discharged employees, and to prevent black-listing. Approved April 16th, 1888. 
Sec. I. That if any person, agent, Company, or Corporation, after having discharged any employee from his or its service, 
shall prevent or attempt to prevent by word or writing of any kind such discharged. employee from obtaining employment 
with any other person, company, or corporation, except by furnishing in writing, on rcqucst, a Lruthfnl statement as to 
the cause of his discharge, such person, agent, or corporation, shall be guilty of a misdemeanour, and shall be punished by 
a fine not exceeding 8500 nor less than $100 : and such person, agent, company, or corporation, shall be hablc in penal 
damages to such discharged person, to be recovered by civil action ; but this section shall not be construed as prohibiting 
any person, or agent of any company or corporation, from informing, in writing, any other person, company, or corporation, 
setting forth a true statement of the reason of such (lischlarge. 

Section 2. If any railway company, any other company, or psrtnerslnp, or corporation, in this State shall authorise 
or allow any of its or their agents to black.list any discharged employee, or attempt, by word or writing or any other 
means whatever, to prevent such discharged employee or any employee who may have voluntarily left said company's 
service, from obtaining employment with any other person or Company, except as provided for in section 1 hereof, such 
company or co-partnership shall be liable to treble damages to such employee so prevented from obtaining employment, to 
be recovered by him by penal action. 

Now, do you think that we ought to have an equitable provision of that kind in any new Coal Mining 
Act? A. Yes, I think the provision is a very fair one. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Wade 

Q. On the day of this disaster-31st of July--nearly every man was in the mine? A. Yes, I believe so. 
Q. And all the officials were engaged at the Court down here? A. Yes. 
Q. And something like two hours elapsed, before anything in the way of assistance could be given to 

the men ;-is that so ? A. Yes ; that was owing to the distance away. 
Q. The first party to give assistance were the men who went from the Arbitration Court? A. Yes; 

I believe they were. 
Q. And people were naturally very upset at the time? A. It did give them a bit of a shock. 
Q. And when the main rescuers got to work, every man did his best to save life, did lie not? A. I 

would not say that. 
Q. Tell me one name who did not? A. I cannot say names. There were no prospecting parties 

every one seems to have gone to work (Interrupted.) 
Q. What do you mean by work? A. I mean to carry out either the living or the dead. 
Q. I suppose that without going into the mine you could not tell where the bulk of the men would 

be ; and, therefore, you were not able to rescue them? A. No ; we could not. 
Q. It took up time finding that out? A. Yes. 
Q. Now, with regard to the safety-lamps you speak of which were out of order, as far as you know, 

except 
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except the lamps used by the deputies for inspection ;-well, safety-lamps were not heard of at Mount; 
Kembla for many years, at all events P A. They had not been used as far as I know. 
280. Q. Since you have been in the district-say, nine or ten years? A. Pretty well thirty years, I think. 

Q. And I suppose you know that there has been no report of gas for more than twelve months 
before the disaster? A. I do not know when the last report was made with regard to Kembla. 

Q. Did you not hear the record read out at the Coroner's Court? A. No. 
280. Q. And is it not a fact that the last thing anyone thought of was an explosion at Mount Kembla ? 
A. It would not be the last thing that I would think of with regard to any Colliery. 

Q. Did you ever think of it as being likely? A. I would think an explosion as likely to occur at 
any Colliery. 

Q. Do you mean likely or possible? A. Possible. 
Q. An explosion at Mount Kembla-it would not be probable? A. I would not say probable; I 

would say possible. 
.21&. Lysaqizi.] Q. I do not know whether this is evidence with regard to the work at Mount 

Kembla-did you ever work there? ii. No. 
His Honor.] Q. Were you here at the time of the inquest? A. Only the last day. I was called, 

but did not give evidence. 
.Mi'. Wade.] Q. Were you here before that? A. I only remember being here on the one day. 

290. .Mr. Ritchie.] Q. Were you inside the Court before you came to give evidence? A. No, I do not 
think I was. I was not anxious to give evidence, or to come the day I did come. 

3fr. Wade.] Q. You spoke about the safety-lamps being opened to fire shots as being a dangerous 
thing. Do you know that the Act provides that whore safety.lamps are used the shots are only to be 
fired by some specially appointed person? A. Yes. 

Q. A miner is not allowed to fire them? A. No. 
Q. The ground has to be cleared, the dust swept off, and, if necessary, the place has to be watered? 

A. It should be. 
Q. And every precaution has to be taken to remove any gas and to remove the dust? A. Yes. 
Q. Do you know Rule 10, subsection 10? A. Yes. 
Q. That safety-lamps shall not be unlocked excepting at the lamp station, or for firing a shot, in 

accordance with provisions hereafter detailed ;-do you know that General Rule? A. Yes. 
Q. Now, vith regard to the manholes you spoke about;-as a rule, is there not room to stand 

between a passing skip and the rib P A. I do not think that is a general rule. 
Q. Are not the manholes as close as 10 or 15 yards to each other? A. I should think So: where 

there is no room to stand between the skip, and the rib, they should be each 10 yards. 
Q. That is what the Act says. If there was room for standing between the skip and the side of the 

pit it is each 20 yaris. What is your reason for asking for the manholes to be larger? A. Because when 
there are a lot of men together you cannot crowd into one place, and if they were larger there would be 
better room. 
300. Q. Do you know of any accident that has ever happened in the South because of this? A. Yes, 
but it is a long time ago. I know that I once rode over a man. 

Q. Were there manholes at that time? A. 1 do not know that there were. 
Q. Were they compulsory? A. 1 think they were compulsory. 
Q. It was only one man, and not several men crowding into one manhole? A. No. 
Q. Ihere was no room between the tub and rib? A. No. 
Q. And there was no manhole? A. No. 
Q. With regard to having instruments at the top of the upcast, do not you know that they keep 

instruments to record the temperature and the pressure at the foot of the upcast? A. I have not seen 
them. 

0. Nothing at all A. I think I saw a water-gauge. 
(2. What does that tell you? A. Thb pressure. 
(2. If you have not got a furnace you would not need an instrument for the temperature? A. In 

the event of the furnace being abolished I do not think they would be absolutely necessary. 
Q. What are you asking for now, that you have not got at present? A. We are asking for these 

instruments. 
0. You only refer to collieries that have furnaces? A. Yes. 
Q. There is a thermometer kept at the colliery? A. Yes; at the pit top. 
0. What do you mean by the pit top? A. The pit top is the surface. 
Q. Is there nothing kept at the foot, at the bottom of the upcast shaft? A. I do not know. If 

they are already there then this provision is unnecessary. 
Q. Is it not a fact that the mouth of the upcast shaft at Mount Kembla is at the top of the 

mountain, and would take a long time to get to? A. I think they are at the bottom. 
Q. I am talking about the tunnels? A. They are kept at the tunnel. 
Q. Are not these instruments kept at Mount Kembla and Mount Pleasant? A. If so, they are 

acting up to what we desire. 
Q. Now, as to the door being left open at Bulhi-do you say you saw the door left open? A. Yes. 
(2. Did you do anything? A. Yes, I closed it. 
(2. That could not have caused an explosion? A. No. - 
Q. And you restored the ventilation current? A. Yes. One theory for the cause of that accident 

was that a door leading into the Western district -(Tnterrupted). 
0. The door you saw open was closed and the ventilation restored? A. Yes; and the deputy 

complained that it had been left open by the night shift, lie came in the morning and found it open also. 
Q. how many years ago was this? il. A few days before the explosion in 1887, I think. 
Q. You ask for 500 cubic feet of air for each horse per minute? A. Yes. 
(2.  When was this discussed first? A. Two or three weeks ago. 
Q. Do you now know that the whole matter was gone into by the Royal Commission before the 

Coal Mines Act was passed? A. I do not know. 
Q. Do not you know that the whole thing was discussed? A. Yes. 
Q. Did not the Commission recommend what is in the Act now? A. Yes. It is probable that if I 

had given evidence I should have said then what I am saying now. 
16825 29-M 335. 
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835. Q. Do you know of any instance where the provision of 100 cubic feet of air per minute to each 
man, boy, and horse has led to any danger to man, boy, or horse? A. I am not aware of any instance; 
but, still, there would be a shortage in the supply where the men are if a horse was there. 
330. Q. Would not increasing the supply of air to the mine considerably increase the cost of the 
ventilation? A. I do not think so. I think that at the big collieries-take the Metropolitan-they get 
a big supply now. 

Q. Do they not get 100 cubic feet only? A. Or as much more as the Inspector may desire. 

Q. Would it not mean an increase in the plant and also larger fans? A. I do not know of any 
colliery that would have to go to the expense of that. 

Q. Now, talking about the Manager going down the mine, does not the deputy represent the 
Manager? A. Yes, in the absence of the overman. 

Q. And the night deputy represents the Manager? A. Yes. 

Q. In the daytime you have the day deputy at your place at least twice a day, do you not? A. He 

visits at least twice in a shift. 
Q. He often visits it more, does he not? A. No; and he might miss one shift. 

Q. That deputy can direct the miner as to where he can work the coal? A. He does it. 
341. Q. He directs the miner as to keeping the place safe ? A. Yes; that is part of his duty. 
845. Q. Does he do it? A. Yes. 

Q. In addition to the day deputy, is the underground-manager there? A. Yes. 

Q. Is he not in the mine underground for the purpose of direction? A. Yes; and being there, he 
would direct you how to work the place. 
31S. Q. Has not the deputy the same power as the unclergrounct-manager? A. I think the under-
ground-manager has the power 
319. Q. Has not the deputy that power? A. Only in the absence of the overman. If the overman 
comes round you take your instructions from him ; if he does not come you take them from the 
deputy. 

Q. Do you know that the Manager has to attend to all surface work? A. He has men in charge of 
the surface. 

Q. But be has to supervise the work? A. Yes. 
:352. Q. Does he not supervise the office work ? A. No, be has clerks. 
853. Q. I ask you does he not supervise it? A. Yes. 

Q. Is not the Manager frequently away fro:n his office on business A. Perhaps once a week. 

Q. Were not all the Managers waiting about the Arbitration Court recently? 
His Honor.] I do not think this witness knows very much about this question of management. 
.li[r. Whde.] He knows as much as any other miner can. 
His Honor.] From the position which he is in I do not think that he can know very much about 

the matter which you are now examining him about. 
A[r. Wade.] Very well, Your Honor. 
Q. Now with regard to the watering of the road: you suggest that the travelling-road should be 

watered-is that in every case or only if they are dusty ? A. Only if they are dusty. 

Q. No coal goes down the travelling-road, does it? i. Of course in some places the travelling-road 
is the haulage-road as well. 

Q. Where there is a travelling-road-is it not simply for the men and horses to go in and come out 
by ? A. That is correct. 

Q. Under these conditions, where there is no coal taken along it, is it necessary to water it? 
A. Yes, if it is dusty. 

Q. What makes it dusty? A. Constant wear and tear. 
Q. Is that the same kind of dust that you get in the haulage-road? A. It is finer if anything. 

3136. Q. Is it of the same character-small coal dust? A. Yes. It is ground up very fine. It is finer 
than the road stuff. 

Q. Now in the course of your experience did you ever hear of an explosion going down the 
travelling-road? A. It is quite possible that an explosion could travel down the travelling-road. 

Q. As to the waste workings. Do you say that the roadway from No. 4 Right in to No. 1 main 
travelling-road was a source of danger. I mean the road that passes through the travelling-read and into 
the main level? A. Yes, I say I think so. 

Q. Do you know that the 35-acre goaf had not fallen in? A. I do not know. 

Q. You would not seal off a waste until the roof had fallen in, would you? A. Yes, as soon as the 
place was finished. 

Q. When is it finished? A. When it is worked out. 
Q. How long is it that the roof falls after it is worked out? A. Sometimes directly afterwards; it 

all depends upon the depth of the strata above. 
Q. There is air all round this goaf is there not? A. At least on No. 1 portion. 
From No. 5 Right down to No. 2 Right does the returning air go round there? A. Yes, it does. 
Q. At the top of the north side of the 35-acre goaf has it not been sealed off? A. It is not shown 

on the plans. 
Q. Do you see any opening in No. 4 Bight? A. They are apparently working up to the goaf on 

that side. 
Q. Do you see anything wrong in this system-that is driving a bord right up to the extreme end 

of the 35-acre goaf towards the face? A. I do not understand you. 
Q. SupposIng the bords are driven and drives made up to the face and then they work the pillars 

going back to the tunnel mouth-is there any oblection to that system? A. No ; but then they are not 
doing it. 

Q. Taking the 35-acre goaf and climbing the bord first of all to the face arid then going back towards 
the tunnel mouth? A. There is nothing wrong about it, if they do not go back again 
3S0. Q. Show me any connection between the workings and the 35-acre goaf ? A. There is nothing to 
show ; they are not working. 

Q. The only opening is in No. 4 Right? A. I see there is an openin. 
21L. JYbde.] Q . You are taking one place aol I am taking nnotlier,t is no ool going on. You 

do 
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do not know how the 35-acre goaf was worked out, of your own knowledge? A. No. I only know that 
they are working round it at the present time. As far as I know' it may not be worked out at all. 
383. Q. Is it not a desirable thing that after a place has become a waste you should be able to examine at 
at different outlets around that waste? A. That is, if you have the whole of the working ventilated, and 
have a good current of air going throughout. I think it would be desirable then. 
381. Q. What would you have P You say you would have them sealed off. What system do you prefer? 
A. I would like the old workings to be thoroughly v'iitilateI and the air to go to the return. 
385. Q. You do not adhere to the statement that the workings should be sealed off P A. Either system 
would do for me. Unless there is a proper system of ventilation I think it would be better to seal them 
off altogether. Of course, in a waste like that of the 35 acres, it would be inpossible to examine that. 
3% Q. When the roof falls does not the material get squeezed up to the roof? A. Not always. There 
is always ,in opening above it. 

Q. Is it not a tendency of a mine to go on filling up until it gets filled altogether? A. I have been 
over several for myself, but never saw them filled up yet. 

Q. You do not know that? A. No, it is not lily experience. 
Q. Are there not several falls which take place-the first, the second, and even a third? A. I do 

not know that. 
Q. Do you know there are two falls? A. There may even be a dozen falls. 
Q. Do you know that there is one fall? A. It depends whether the whole thing gives way in a 

body. If it does then there is only one fall. 
Q. Now, as to your examination nine days after the disaster. How long did you spend in that area 

to the left of No. 1 main level-the area in which Aitken's place is? A. A couple of hours. 
Q. Did you go thoroughly over it? A. Yes. 
Q. Did you go up to the edge? A. Some of the party did. 
Q. Do you know where the 4th Right is? A. Some of the party did but they were driven 

back by the black-damp. 
390. Q. Did you go over to the edge of the waste P A. I was about 20 yards off it. 

Q. Did you see it big timber chock lying on the road? A. I believe I did see something of that. 
Q. Was that not on the outbye side of No. 4 Right-was it not over by No. 3 Left? A. I do not 

know the locality of it. 
Q. Was it not on the outbye side of No. 4 Right? A. I think it was. 
Q. Did not that appear to be blown outbye? A. It was pretty well scattered about in all 

directions. 
Q. Was it not used to support a place in the roof there? A. Yes. 
Q. Now it would require great force to blow that down? A. It all depends how tight it was 

put in. 
Q. Is not the whole work of putting a chock in to put it up tight? A. You do not want to jamb 

it up quite tight. 
401. Q. Are they not put in to support the roof? A. Yes, to take the weight off the roof. 

Q. What size are they? A. I cannot tell you the size. 
Q. Would it take great force to blow them down? A. It all depends how they were put in. 
Q. Would it take great force in any case? A. Oh, no ; a practical man never puts in timber roofing 

too tigh t. If you put them in  too tight, then with the least weight they snap off. 
Q. Would it require great force to blow thein down, the ordinary way they are put in? A. It 

would require a fair amount of force-not great force, I should say. 
Q. Where do you think that force came from that blew that chock down ? A. I think it would 

come down No. 4Right. 
Q. Were not all the indications of force in No. 5 Right, in the main road, going into No. 4 

Right? A. It would go at it lair distance, and then the force would back out again. 
Q. Tell me how far it would go up No, 1 Right? A. I should say about 100 yards. 
Q. Was Ihe force going inbye No. 4 Left, nearly opposite No. 5 Right? A. No, I think 

that would go out. 
Q. I am speaking of between No. 4 Right and the point where No. 1 Right meet. Was 

the force going up ? A. Not all the way. 
Q. Between No. .1 Right and where No. 1 joins No. 4 Left you saw timber blown outwards? 

A. Yes. 
Q. What kind of timber? A. Chocks, sleepers, or something of that kind. 

416 Q. Were there any props used there P A. in some parts. 
Q. Were they used there? A. I cannot say. 
(7. Why do you say they were blown outwards? A. Because of the way they were lying. 
(7. Was one end towards the tunnel and one end towards the face? A. Yes, 
(7. Can you say that props were used to support the roof there? A. Yes-I would not be 

positive, but I did see one or two. 
Q. Were not iron bars blown inwards between No. 4 Right and No. 4 Left? A. I noticed to bars 

blown in right enough. There were sonic of them very much in doubt. 
Q. Were any of these bars bent? A. Yes. 
Q. Were they bent inwards P A. One was bent inwards. 

424.. Q. 1-low far was that bar from No. 4 Left? A. I do not know the distance between the places. 
I would take it to be 50 yards, anyhow. Probably more than that. 

Q. You say that you saw some tabs between the 5th Right and the 4th Left-two tubs, I 
think ? A. That was in Aitkeai's place. 

Q. I3etween the 5th Right and the 4th Left P A It was above No. 5 Right. 
Q. On the inbye side? A. Yes, 1 think the horse and the skip were with them. 
(7. Was not that at the foot of the incline P A. Partly down the jig. 
(7. At the foot? A. Not at tl.e foot. 
(7. Were they on the road or off it P A. 011 it. 
Q. There was a dead horse, and 3 yards further off there o is a tub ae'l'ors the road. Is that 

correct? A. I think so. 
Q. Is this correct-tho coal was thrown inwards? A. No. 133. 
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Q. Were a swmgle-tree and chain lying on the tub? A. I did not nutice them. I got past them 
very quick, I could not get past quick enough. 

Q. Now, you spoke of props being singed, and of signs of flame? A. We did see a number of 
them charred-I mean the splinters. 

Q. How far did this extend? A. One or two props appeared to be burned. 
430. Q. Where were they? A. Near the heading on the inbye of Aitken's place. 

Q. How many props did you see in No. 1 main right road- did you see any at all? A. No. 
Q. In the travelling road No. 1. main heading? A. No. 
Q. In Morriss' place? A. No; I saw the dust on the side had apparently been singed. 
Q. For over how large an area? A. Very little. 

41. Q. Would the space be covered by your hand? A. Just a few particles here and there. 
Q. Were there any further indications? A. There were indications ; but they were over a fir-

sized area. 
Q. It was not continuous? A. It was continuous; but not too much in one place. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

Q. Were you not in the mine twice-once immediately after the accident and once nine days 
afterwards? A. I was in three times. 

Q. You went in immediately after the accident? A. Yes. 
440. Q. And nine days afterwards? A. Yes. 

Q. When did you go again? A. I was in three times on the occasion of the accident. 
Q. On those occasions did you make any observations at all? A. I simply went in to save life as 

quickly as possible. - 
Q. I take it that your observations as to the cause and as to locality were limited to the visit nine 

days after the accident? A. That is correct. 
Q. How long were you in, roughly speaking? A. Four hours. 
Q. You went in with a party of inspection ? A. Yes. 
Q. That was your purpose? A. Yes. That was my purpose. 
Q. Your sole purpose? A. Yes. 
Q. In order that you might collect data to form an opinion upon as to the extent, locality, and where 

the explosion originated? A. Yes. 
Q. How many of you went in? A. About nine. 
Q. You all went in for that purpose? A. Yes. 
Q. Did you take a single note on paper of what you saw? A. No. 
Q. You have trusted entirely to your recollection now as indicating the direction of force? A. That 

is correct. 
Q. You would not have remembered some things unless Mr. Lysaght had suggested them? A. I 

would recollect them. 
Q. Would you recollect all, or only something about them? A. I think I would have recollected 

them. 
401. (2. You took the suggestions? A. A suggestion is very handy sometimes. 

Q. It was of use to you? A. Yes. 
Q. Have you formed an opinion at all which you think worth regarding as to the d.rcetnn in which 

this force, or these forces, operated P A. I have given you my opinion. 
Q. Do you think much of it yourself? A. 1 think it is fairly good. 

405. Q. In what direction did you say it was ? You see the map with the north and south indications 
at the bottom of it. No. 1 Thght runs as nearly as possible north. In what direction, north, south, 
east, or west, did the force preponderate? A. More towards the south. 

Q. You found indications going east? A. Yes. 
Q. You found them going west? A. Yes. 
Q. You found them going south? A. Yes. 

460. Q. So that they really went in every direction of the compass? A. The forces seemed to have 
spread. 

Q. Did you not find some indications going west, and again some going east? A. What do you 
mean? 

Q. You found some forces going west westerly of some going east? A. I do not understand you. 
Q. Can you put your hands on the spot and say that they all went from one centre? A. No. 

473, Q. You found some in a westerly direction? A. Yes. 
Q. And some in an easterly direction? A. Yes. 
Q. And some east of those going west? A. Yes, it appeared as if some of the forces went and 

returned again. 
Q. Did you find any indications of force going north? A. Yes. 
Q. And you found indications of force going south? A. Yes. 
Q. And did not you to the south of that find indications of force going north again? A. Yes. 
Q. And of the force coming south again? A. Yes. 
Q. Did you not find indications of several centres of force? A. Yes. 
Q. Does not that suggest to you a series of explosions ? A. Yes, at least two. 
Q. And of explosions having taken place one after the other? A. Yes. 
Q. If there had only been one explosion you would have found everything spread in one direction? 

A. Yes. 
4S4. Q. You have no doubt from what you saw that there were indication of more explosions than one? 
A. I take it there were at least two. 

Q. Will you not undertake to say there were more than two? A. I would not; but I am strongly 
of opinion that there were two. 

Q. Two at least? A. Two at least. 
Q. Did you not think it worth your while to take any note of these things? A. No, I trust to 

my memory pretty well always. 
Q. You have told the Commission that you would advocate having cut-thiroughs much more 

irequentivP A. Yes. . 489. 
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Q. You know that in some cases now they are 100 3 aids apart? A. I do not know the distance; 
I think they are. 

Q You advocate having them every 30 yards? A. Yes. 
Q. You have told the Coiiiniisioners that it is objectionable to have leaks P A. I did not say so. 
Q. Do not doors cause leaks? A. Single doors do. 
Q. Do not cut-throughs have to be stopped sometimes? A. Yes. 

491. Q. If you have more cut-throughs you would have more leakage of air? A. Not a great amount. 
Q. Every cut-through would be a leakage, would it not? A. Improved ventilation would lower 

that leakage. 
Q. You trust to memory ? A. I trust to practical experience. 
Q. What amount of dust do you think would be dangerous in a mine per foot of the roadway. 

Would it requile a hundred weight or a pound P A. I should say about 7 ounces. 
918. Q. how do you get that? Do you not know that is the amount stated by Abd? A. 1 do not know. 

Q. You heard Mr. Atkinson's evidence? A. No. 
Q. Do you tell the Commissioners that you made a guess at 7 ounces? A. Yes. I guessed pretty 

near it too. 
Q. have you ever taken the trouble to consider what all these alterations you desire will involve in 

regard to the cost of getting coal P A. Very little, I think. 
Q. You have considered it P A. Yes. 
Q. You thought it worth considering? A. Yes. 
Q. Have you made a calculation as to what it would cost per ton to get coal if all.your suggestions 

were carried out? A. I could go pretty near to the mark. 
zn 

Q. What are the reforms you mean? A. I have not suggested any expensive reforms. 
500. Q. I want you to calculate? A. I have not suggested any expensive reforms; they are a mere nothing. 

Q. Do you tell the Commission that you have considered the cost, and that it would be a mere 
nothing? A. I say that some of these reforms are no expense at all. 

Q. Taking the whole of them altogether, you have gone into that aspect of the case, and you say it 
would not add appreciably to the cost of getting the coal P A. No, not to a great extent. 

Q. Now, referring to the practice of opening safety-lamps, do you know of any cases which have 
occurred? A. Not of many. 

Q. Can you give me anyone's name ? A. I will furnish you with a name. 
AIr. Lysaqht.] I will produce one to-morrow morning. 
AIr. Bruce Smith] Q. Now, with regard to thu q uestiin of dismissing men for reporting gas and 

other things, can you tell me of any other cases that you know of? A. No, only my own, and. I have 
read of the Bailey case. 

Mr. Wade. The Bailey case was the opposite. 

Re-examined by Mr. Lvsaglit 
Q. In addition to what you have heard of the Bailey case, have you heard anything from the men? 
Mr. WbJe.] I object to that question. [Tic qzuezon it-as Iisciliowed.] 

Re C'ross-examined by Mr. WTade  : 
510. Q. You Fay that you funcl reveral centres of force, can you mark on the plan where you found 
them P A. No. Four Right is one and I think there is one over Aitheo's ihice.  I see that the note I put 
on the map earlier in may em idnce was toe far south. 

AIr. Bruce Smith.] Which was the next centre? (Ko ensllr.) 
AIr. I'Vadej Q. Can you tell us of any more P A. These are the only two I know of. 

Be Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 
Q. On this 7 ounces of coal-dust can you tell me whether it is required for every lineal foot or for 

every square foot ? A. I take it for every square foot. 

Examined by Mr. Robertson :- 
Q. Is it not a fact that Managers and uuder-inanagers are required to pass examinations? Yes, 

since 1896. 
Q. Can you tell me how deputies or shot-firers are appointed ? A. As far as my own particular 

colliery is concerned, they have to be pretty well qualified. At other collieries they appoint anyone. 
Q. Would not the Manager for his own protection appoint the most competent men? A. Not in 

every case. 
Q. Would the Manager appoint incompetent men ? A. They have done so, in my opinion. 
Q. Are there any such men in the district P A. There are men whom, if I were Manager, I would 

not appoint ; but I know their qualifications far better than the Nanager does. 
Q. Do you not think that a Manager having a knowledge of a man's work would be more competent 

to appoint a deputy or to pass a certificate as to his compel eney tl:an an Exarninat ion Board, who may not 
possibly know the man's personal qualities? A. I take it that even if a man did pass a good examina-
tion it would rest with the Manager to appoint him. 
520. Q. Yes, a great many people get certificates who are not competent ? A. No doubt about that. 

Q. Would not the Manager be better qualified to speak as to a joan's efficiency than an Examination 
Board, because it is not only efficiency to fire a shot, because efficiency may depend more on judgment 
than on scientific knowledge P A. I do not think it should. 

Q. Do you prefer a man with scientific knowledge to a practical one ? A. I should prefer a man 
who had both. 

Q. We do not always get them associated together ? A. 1 think it is possible to do it. 
Q. You spoke in your evidence about an Inspector wanting safety-lanips put in a mine ; and you 

said that lie caine in conflict with the Manager P A. I said the lamps were put in. 
Q. I think you said that the Inspector came in comilket with the Manager ? 1. 1 do not think I 

said " conflict." 
Mr. Bruce Semi//n] I will read our note on the matter. The witness said, I have known instances 

where Inspectors have suggested lamps, and they have come into conflict wbh the manager ct the matter." 
Mr. .L?obcrt.son.j Q. Have they not also come in conflict with the miners? A. Yes. 
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Q. Have not the miners objected as well? A. Yes, I have heard of instances where the Manager 
and the miners objected. Of course, miners do not care for safety-lamps at any time. 

Q. I think you favour the idea of sealing off waste workings? A. That is, where they could not 
be pro perly ventilated. If they could be properly ventilated I would leave them open. 

Q. Is it not better to leave them open than to bottle up dangerous gases? A. I think it would be 
better to leave the waste open if the air went into the return. 

Q. You say that you want cut-throughs not more than 30 yards apart. Do you know that it is 
absolutely necessary that the pillars should be sufficient to support the roof? A. it is necessary. 

Q. Would not the effect of 30-yard pillars be to bring on a crush? A. I do not think so. You 
would have to make the pillars larger. 

Q. You ask us to make 30-yard cut-throughs, and that would mean 30-yard pillars? A. I do not 
see that a narrow cut-through would weaken it: if you have 100 yards of coal, and drive three cut-
throughs through it, it will not take 9 yards off, instead of 100 yards you have 109 yards. 

Q. If adequate ventilation is secured by a brattice cloth, or by, a cut-through, is not that all you 
want? A. No; I do not think so. 

Q. As the depth of the strata or the cover increases, you must have larger pillars? A. I do not 
know. I do not think you want larger pillars : I do not think a cut-through will make the difference 
which you maintain it will. 

Q. What object have you in view in connection with the watering of the roads? A. To keep down 
the dust. 

Q. What is the immediate object; is it comfort or safety? A. Both. 
511. Q. There are other places than the roads and the haulage ways in which dust accumulates? A. In 
the waste workings, I suppose, you mean? 

Q. And all explosion might occur there just as well? A. I suppose so. 
Q. Would it not be necessary to water all places in a mine? A. It would not be possible, I think, 

but where water can be used it should be used. If you thoroughly water the hauling roads and the 
travelling roads you lessen the danger of explosion. 

Q. Did you observe No. 1 Right? A. Yes. 
Q. Is it not damaged? A. Yes. 

519. Q. And yet the explosion travelled over wet places? Yes, certainly it did. 
Q. Would not that tell us that unless the watering is thorough and systematic it may,  as well not 

be done ? A. I take it that wet places would need no watering; you need only water the dusty places 
of the mine. 

Q. As to the instruction of the men by the Deputy as to the exits from the mine, in whose time 
would it be done ? A. In the men's time, going in or out of the mine. 

Q. In the men's time? A. Yes. 
Q. And in a very extensive mine, where there are scores of miles of roadway, and many exits, and 

the men are ehauging districts every quarter, would that be of much service? A. I think so. 
Q. Where there are six or seven outlets, and, perhaps, three or four intakes? A. Yes; I think it 

would be a great advantage. 
Q. It would take a lot of time? A. I do not think so. 
Q. Are you not thinking of mines where there are only one or two outlets-where there is only one 

travelling way in or out? A. No. I would take Mount Kembla, for instance, where there are more ways 
out than one. 

Q. I do not think that you recognise that there are extensive mines where the miners are shifted 
every quarter, and if it were possible that they could be instructed as to the inlets through their own 
districts, they would probably forget all the other places? A. If they were shown them once a week, I 
do not think they would foret. i think it is a necessary thing. 

Q. With regard to the ventilation you are esking about for horses, do you know of any colliery 
where, under the present rule, there is not a sufficient supply, even for the horses, according to your own 
scale ? A. Not lately. I have not heard of any. 

Q. Then there is adequate ventilation provided ? A. As far as I know. 
560: (2. In a mine with 50 horses and 500 cubic feet of air per minute for each, that would mean 25,000 
cubic feet of air and that would be a considerable addition to the ventilation? A. It would be a large 
mine which would employ 50 horses. 

Q. Some of them do? A. Yes, some of them, but not many on this coast. 
Q. As to self-closing doors, do you think that the best practice? A. Yes. 
Q. Do you not think a man had better close the door himself? A. It would not prevent a man 

closing the door; lie would close it unless lie were careless. 
561. Q. There are a good many careless men about? A. Perhaps, at I-Iclensburgb. 
505. Q. You know that doors in a mine are not like doors in this rooui; they,  are sometimes in fair order, 
but sometimes they are twisted out of place P A. Sometimes. 

Q. If it was the business of a man to close the door, would be not take care to move any obstacle 
out of the way ? A. It would be the sime with a self-closing door. 

If you heard that no trouble had been experienced in a mine with very complicated ventilation, and 
a lot of gas going oW, would not that satisfy you that self-closing doors were not necessary ? A. It would 
satisfy me that a very good state of things existed at that colliery. 

Q. In the case you mentioned at Bulli there was only one door ? A. Yes. 
Q. If there had been two doors no air would have escaped? A. No. 
Q. What sort of instruments do you want kept, a thermometer and a barometer? A. I think both, 
Q. And you want them, where ? A. At the bottom of the upcast. 
Q. What good do you want to effect by having them at the bottom of the upcast ? A. I think it 

would be advisable to instruct the person in charge. 
Q. What sort of information would it give to the person in charge? A. He would have a knowledge 

of the pressure and of the weather conditions. 
Q. Do you not think the ventilation of a mine ought to be independent of weather conditions? A. 

Yes. 
Q. in most collieries are not several travelling w-ays provided for the men? A. I think in most 

collieries there are. 570. 
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Q. In nearly all? A. I would not like to say that. 
Q. Mr. Lysaght said something about the Mining Laws in America with reference to " black-

listing." Do you know whether they have an Arbitration Act there? A. They do most of their business 
at the point of the revolver. 

Q. Do you think it necessary to have provisions in a Mining Act which are dealt with in the Arbitra-
tion Act? A. I think it ought to be in the Mining Act. 

Q. Why have duplicate legislation? A. We are quite satisfied to have it in one Act. 
Q. You have arbitration here? A. No doubt, 
Q. You object to the mode of working at Mount Kembla? A. I do not approve of it. I do not 

object to it altogether. It is not what I consider an ideal system. 
Q. You would come to the back end of the property, and then fetch the pillars back? A. Yes. 
Q. Do you know the mine is some thousands of acres in extent? A. It might be. 
Q. It might take thirty years to get to the back end? A. Yes. 
Q. Or, say, twenty years? A. Yes. 
Q. And in the meantime all the other places would be left in the shape of old working for the gas to 

accumulate in? A. Yes, I suppose so. 
Q. Is it not better to take the roof out and allow the roof to cave in? A. I would rather work a 

mine out as you go into it. 
588.Q . Would you rather have a gasometer? A. That is a gasometer; there is no doubt of spaces of 
that kind being a place for gas. 
589. Q. If the roof is squeezc3. in, where is there any place for gas ? A. There would be any amount of 
space in various parts of it. 

Examiued by Mr. Ritcliie :- 

5.00. Q. With regard to the watering question. You want the haulage roads and the travelling roads 
watered? A. Yes. 

Q. Would that make the conditions safer? A. It we old. 
Q. Although there may be dust in other parts of the mine, is it your object to minimise it? A. Yes. 
Q. You would bring it down as low as possible ? 

SOt. Q. You believe it would be practicable to have these parts watered? A. Yes. 
595. Q. You do not put it forward as making the conditions absolutely safe from dust, but to minimise 
the danger P A. Yes. 
593. With regard to putting cut-throughs not more than 30 yards apart, would you put a cut-through 
and leave it open or seal it off? A. It would be sealed off. 

Q. Would it be possible to seal off each stopping not necessary for use, so as to make it air-proof? 
A. I do not know that it could be made absolutely air-proof, but very near it. 

Q. Is that the practice adopted in well managed mines P A. Yes. 
509. Q. All cut-throughs not required. would be sealed off? A. Sealed off at once. 

Q. Do I understand that the way you advocate cut-throughs at regular distances is for additional 
security in the way of safety? A. Yes. 

Q. Do you think there is considerable danger of the canvas being put out of order and also the air 
current put out of order? A. Yes, there is ('olisiderable danger. 

Q.Y on advocate this in order to minimise the danger of miners being overcome by foul gases? A. 
Yes. 

Q. Do I understand that your general opinion is, that safety ought to be the first consideration, apart 
from the question of expense? A. Yes. 
004. Q. That no matter of expense should stand in the way of making a mine absolutely safe as far as 
work is concerned? A. Yes. 

Q. You believe that the whole of these suggestions are quite practicable P A. Yes, and at small 
expense. 

Q. You understand the nature of a deputy's work quite well? A. Yes. 
Q. The examining deputies are relied upon to see that the mine is safe? A. Yes, that is their 

main business. 
Q. Your proposal is that these persons sha]l obtain a certificate? A. Yes-a man's life depends on 

the skill and ability of the deputy. 
Q. As far as the examination is concerned it would be one limited to a knowledge of gases, and the 

best means of discovering them P A. Yes. 
61.(). Q. Do you know any persons who have been appointed to responsible positions whom you believe 
have no knowledge of gas? A. Yes, I have known such persons to be appointed. 

Q. Is the reason that you advanc.,e for Managers being certificated in the same way because of the 
same defect? A. Yes. That is correct. A Manager should go through a proper examination. He may be 
a very practical man and well up in theory ; but we do not know that until a disaster occurs ; and then 
you find out that the Manager you thought all right is altogether wrong. 

Q. in other words, you find out that the person you had been depending on, for keeping the mine 
safe, has no knowledge as to whether it is safe or not? A. Yes. 
61.3. Q. And you think lie should be qualified by examination? A. Yes. 

Q. Do you know of any Managers who would not know gas by sight? A. I could not go that far: I 
can hardly say that. 

Q. Would you regard a Manager who said that he did not know anything about gas to be qualified? 
A. I should think him very much unqualified. 

Q. Would you think a man qualified if lie did not know the cnstituents of gas? A. No, I do not 
think a company would employ a man of that kind if they considered the safety of their employees. 
01.7. Q. Do you think a Manager should be more constantly below ground? A. Yes. 
618. Q. You think that lie should bring his personal knowledge to bear on matters below the ground? 
A. Yes. That is his work ; and I think lie should attend to it. 
019. Q. Do the Government Inspectors attend very often P J. 1 cannot say very,  often. 
620. 2. Do you think they ought to attend more regitlat'ly P A. I think so. 
(121. 9. Do you know anything about the extent of their examination when they do appear? A. Well, 
soumetimes .1 think it is more of a visit than anything e].se 1 do not think von could call it an inspection. 
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621*. Q. How oFten have you seen an Inspector at your mine? A. Once in about every six weeks; but 
he may have come oftener and I not have seen him. 

21Ir. Lysaght 1 Can I ask a question arising out of Mr. Robertson's examination? 
Bus Honor.] It is rather irregular. 

62. Mr. Lysaqltt.] I was going to ask him with regard to the Mining Laws at Colorado. 
625. His Honor ruled that it would be better to lay before the Commission any books or documents 
containing such laws. 
626. His honor, in answer to Mr. Bruce Smith, said that he intended the Commission should meet on 
Tuesday, Wednesday and Thursday, next week ; that all local witnesses should be taken at Wollongong, 
and, that afterwards a visit should be paid to Newcastle, or other places if necessary, and that witnesses 
from Newcastle should be examined in Sydney if thought desirable. 
627. (At 51.5 p.m. the Commission adjourned until the following day.) 

JVEDITESDAY, 7 JA1VUARY, 1903, 10 a.m. 

[The Commission met at the Court-house, Wollongony.] 

C. F. R. MURRAY, IESQ., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, ESQ., CounlssloxEis. I D. RITCHIE, E5Q., CoxuIssIoNEn. 

Mr. Bruce Smith, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal-mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, kc. (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, dcc.) ; and 
the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' LTnion). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kembla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Kembla Mine). 

(Mr. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings.) 

628. His Honor.] It was mentioned yesterday that the evidence taken befdre the Coroner's Court was 
being used by this Court as evidence in the case of this inquiry ; but it was not actually formally made 
part of the evidence in this case by its being put in. The Court now considers that, perhaps, it is best to 
say that it is considered as evidence in the case, and that the various documents which were put in as 
annexures to that evidence are also to he taken as put in with that evidence on this hearing. Some of 
those documents, Mr. Wade, are in the possession of the Company actually now. 
629. ifr. Wade.] Those would be the report books? 
630. His Honor.] Yes. You might get those books produced. 
631. Mr. Wade.] If Mr. Garlick will give me a list, I will get them. I am under the inpression that the 
colliery plan was put in as evidence. It would be a great inconvenience if that were taken away from the 
colliery for any length of time ; and we have copies here. 
632. 1/is Honor.] Were not these copies lithographed from that plan I 
633. Mr. Wade.] Yes. 
634. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Will your Honor understand that each witness marked a separate lithograph which 
was marked with his name. 
63.5. His Honor.] Yes ; we have those here. It is not necessary, Mr. Wade, that that particular plan 
should remain out of the possession of the Company because it happened to be put in. The Company may 
have that. 

Mr. Wade.] Before the evidence begins this morning, I wish to refer to No. 17 of the suggestions 

made by Mr. Lysaght on the list supplied this morning. It simply says, "Cancellation of Certificate of 
William Rogers, Manager." I think I might fairly ask at this stage that Mr. Lysaght should state the 
grounds on which he asks for the cancellation of Mr. Rogers' certificate. 

His Honor.] As that is a suggestion directly affecting the Company in relation to one of its officers, I 
think the suggestion made by Mr. Wade is a fair one. 

Mr. Lysaght.] I have no objection. The recommendation is made, in a great measure, on account of 
the evidence given by Mr. Rogers at the inquest; when, amongst other things, he stated this "I took the 
report of the fireman as sufficient for me, with my own examination. I never personally took the amount 
of ventilation passing in the mine at any time. I have seen some black-damp. I saw some there a week 
ago last Saturday, and before the disaster I remember seeing black-damp in Kembla. That was four or 
five months before the disaster. I did not report the discovery of that black-damp in any book ; and I did 
discover black-damp before that, and I did not report it. I never remember Evans reporting gas to 
me. I will not swear he did not report it to me. I knew that gas was found in the mine years ago. In 
my opinion, if the fireman thought the black-damp which he discovered was dangerous, he should have 
reported it, and not otherwise. I never heard of the Royal Commission of 1895. I never knew that my own 
Manager attended and gave evidence. I do not know that I have ever read the report of the Bulli Disaster 
Royal Commission. I do not know whether we are working the Bulli seam." 

Mr. Wade.] You have missed out the very next word that makes the whole of the difference, " I 
have been told that it is." I asked for a specific charge or charges. I do not care how many there are if 
Mr. Lvsaght will make the charges. Mv friend is now merely reading out the allegations in the evidence 
of Mr. Rogers. 
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640. his Honor.] Mr. Lysaght is now giving his reasons for making the suggestion, the general reason being 
that certain things appear on the evidence given by Mr. Rogers : but that is hardly a compliance with 
what Mr. Wade asked for. Mr. Wade's request is that some specific charge be made against Mr. Rogers, 
instead of merely a reqitest that Mr. Rogers' certificate be cancelled. The certificate could not be cancelled 
in any proceeding except upon some specific grounds. Mr. Wade has asked what those specific grounds 
are, and not what the foundation of the grounds is. 
611. Mr. Lysaght.] Perhaps I can shortly answer -the incompetency of the Manager as shown by his 
admissions at the inquest. 
642. Mr. Wade.] That is equally vague. I am no further ahead at all. Surely my friend can put it in 
some concise form 1 
643. Mr. Lysaght.] I say it is general incompetency, as evidenced by his evidence at the inquest. 
644. his Honor.] As Mr. Lysaght has put it in that way, I do not think we can go any further in the 
matter in compelling him to analyse the incompetency. 
645. Mr. Wade.] No, Your Honor; but surely he could give the specific instances which indicate the 
incompetency. 
646. His honor.] Then Mr. Lysaght says : "I call attention to the evidence which Mr. Rogers himself 
gave ; and I say that that explains, on the face of it, the nature of the incompetency which I charge." 
647. Mr. Lysaght.] Yes, Your Honor. 
648. Mr. Wade.] In that case I would ask him to read anything else he relies upon. 
649. Mr. Lysaght.] That is what I was about to do when I was stopped. "I do not know that we are 
working that seam, except from what I have heard. I do not know anything at all about Mr. Green's state-
ment that there was gas in Kembla when he was Manager. I (10 not know anything about the composition 
of the Bulli seam so far as its gaseous nature is concerned. I have never made any study of the gaseous 
properties of that coal. I am not prepared to dispute the statement of Mr. Rowan that 13,500 cubic feet 
of inflammable -as accumulated in the same seam that we are working in eight hours under certain 
conditions in a mine (not Mount Kembla) in this district. 
650. Mr. Bruce Sniit/i.] Does it not appear to Your Honor that this is evidence in support of one of the 
propositions. 
651. His Honor.] I think it would be quite enough for Mr. Lysaght to say now--and I have allowed him 
to say that :-" I ask the Court to gather from this evidence, given on cross-examination by Mr. Rogers, 
that he is not c3mpetent for the work as a Manager which he has undertaken." I think that is quite 
enough now. It is easy to sea the kind of argument that Mr. Lysaght will found upon that, whether it 
is good or bad. 
652. Mr. Lysaght.] Might I add also to that that I may be able to call evidence that since the disaster he 
has permitted practices which are dangerous 1 
653. (At this stage the map used during the evidence of Mr. Thomas Richard Morgan, and marked by 
him, was put in, and marked '' Exhibit No. 1.") 
654. Mc. Lysaght.] I have prepared for Your Honor this morning this digest of the recommendations. 
They number now twenty. I do not know whether Your Honor desires any fur ther amendment of them. 
655. Mr. Lysaght then handed in the list of recommendations, which is copied hereunder. 

Recommemidations made by Mr. Lysaght. 

Managers, under-managers, deputies, and shot-firers, to hold Certificates of Competency by 
examination, and to have liai five years' piactieni mining experience, before being eligible for respective 
positions. 

Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order use of safety-lamps. 
Ventilation by furnace prohibited ; and fans substituted. 
Waste workings to be absolutely sealed off, and surrounded by return air-ways (for fear of 

enmissions) ; such return airways not to come in contact with intake. 
All places, except prospecting drives, to have cut-throughs not more than 30 yards apart. 
Inspection with locked safety-lam1> in all cases. 
Monthly examination and report by Deputies and District Inspector with hydrogen flame. 
Minimum of 500 cubic feet of air per minute to be provided for every horse, instead of 100 as at 

present. 
All doors erected so as to close and remain closed of own motion. 
Double doors on drives between main intakes and returns, and main headings. 
Weekly measurement of air in each section, and report thereof sent to Inspector. 
Extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites, equal to one-third of number of persons 

employed below ground, to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use. 
Travelling and haulage roads, and other places necessary, to be properly watered. 
Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention to management of colliery. 
Instruments to be placed at bottom of upcast to determine variations of heat and air-pressure. 
Size of man-holes enlarged. 
Cancellation of certificate of Win. Rogers, Manager. 

IS. Instruction to employees regularly on means of escape. 
Coal-mines Act to forbid a black-list of employees being kept, and penalising improper prevention 

of discharged persons obtaining employment. 
Safety-laraps not to be unlocked for shot-firing. 

656. (The order for the exclusion of witnesses was repeated by His Honor). 

Mr. EDWIN BIGGERS was sworn, and examined, as under 
Lxamination-in-elucf by Mr. Lysaght 

657. Q. What is your name I A. Edwin Biggers. 
658. Q. What are you I A. A miner. 
659. Q. Where do you work? A. Mount kenibla. 
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Q. How long have you been working as a miner there? A. I should say about nine years as a miner-
as near as possible nine years, 

Q. Were you working in the Kembla Colliery last Wednesday? A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Who was the shot-firer for your district? A. Mr. Forsythe. - 
Q. Was any shot fired by him in your working-place last Wednesday 1 A. Yes. There was a shot 

fired there last Wednesday. 
Q. At the time, or shortly before firing the shot, had any part of your working-place or the vicinity of 

it been watered? A. I could not say that. I did not take any notice. 
66. Q. Did you see any part of it watered? A. It might have been watered but I did not see it. I could 
not say. I did not see it. 

(7. Can you give the number, or can you show on a plan the place, where you were working? A. Well, 
I have not been working in that district, I suppose, for a couple of years. I could not guarantee to give 
exactly a plan of the place. 

Q. Can you state where it is 1 A. It seems to be to the right of No. 1. I believe I am in the main 
heading. I have only been there a short time. 
66. his honor.] If you saw a plan of the mine, do you think you could pick it out? [Witnes& did 7Wt 
answer.] 

dIr. Lysagli.] Q. How was the fuse to fire that shot ignited 
dir. Wade objected to Mr. Lysaght's line of examination. He objected to Mr. Lysaght's examning 

the witness with regard to any alleged breaches of the Regulations since the date of the disaster. 
611. Mr. Bruce Smith stated that he took the same view as Mr. Wade. 
62. Mr. Lysaght said that he tendered this evidence in support of recommendation No. 20, which was 
that safety-lamps should not be unlocked for shot-firing ; and also in support of the proposition that Mr. 
Rogers is not a competent Manager, and that his certificate should be cancelled. 

His Honor consulted his colleagues. 
His honor.] We are all of opinion that this matter ought to be brought up to the time of the accident, 

and not since. Whatever Mr. Rogers may have done, or may have failed to do, since the date of the 
accident, he can be called upon under section 10 of the Coal-mines Regulation Act in relation to that it it 
is thought proper to do so : but it is not a question for us of what he has done since Cr what he has failed 
to do since, and I do not think we ought to go into that as a test of evidence to show what he might have 
done before the crucial (late. Up to that time we can inquire as to what happened; and from all that 
evidence as to what happened up to that date we can come to a conclusion, as we are asked, as to the cause 
of the accident, and can make upon all the evidence that Ave hear any recommendation that we think fit 
for the future ; but as to the conduct of officials since that date I think we have absolutely no jurisdiction; 
and I think, also, if we attempted to go into that question we should  iaiid this Commission in a most 
interminable inquiry. Therefore, we uphold the objection made by Mr. \\ade; and we decline to hear evidence 
of these facts which have occurred since the accident, apparently directed towards, principally, the question 
of whether or not some officer has acted improperly, or whether or not some improper course of conduct has 
been pursued in the mine in relation to blasting or otherwise. 

dir. £mjseqh'.] I take it that your Honor's ruling would exclude me from giving evi2ence of a 
dangerous practice for which we ask for a reeomniendat:on to amend ? 

His honor.] A dangerous practice upon which a recommendation should be made is a generally 
existing dangerous practice, or what might be a dangerous practice if it were adopted. It is quite 
immaterial whether, as a matter of fact, it is or is not adopted now. It is quite easy to show by general 
evidence that it is a dangerous practice. But, if an accident had happened- if it were a question whether 
a practice was or was not dangerous, and if, for the purpose of proving that it is dangerous, it could be 
proved that some accident happened in consequence of its being adopted, then, though that accident 
happened since the disaster, such evidence might be given but to show that there is a taking advantage of 
a loop-hole which is clearly existent in the law is quite useless and immaterial as far as I can see. I 
ctain1y do not see that it ought to be given; and my colleagues agree with me in that. 

Mr. Lysay/Ct.] Then I have no further cjuestions to ask the witness, Biggers. 

Cross-eamination by Mr. Wade :- 
Q. Were you with the party with which were Mr. Ritchie, Mr. May, Mr. Maguirc, and Mr. Morgan? 

A. No sir, I was not. 
Q. Was that your brother? A. A brother of mine. 

[ Witness retired.] 

Mr. JAMES MAGUIRE was sworn, and examined, as under :- 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 

Q. What is your name? A. James Maguire. 
Q. Where do you work? A. South Clifton. 
Q. What are you? A. A miner. 
Q. You are the President of the Illawarra Colliery Employees' Association? A. I am. 
Q. Did you visit the Mount Kembla Mine at the time of the disaster? A. Yes, I did. 
Q. What day were you there? A. I was there upon the day of the explosion-on the day the 

disaster occurred. 
Q. Will you tell the Commission what part of the mine you went into. A. I went into a part of the 

mine called the Shaft Section-I think that is the name. I went in there on that occasion for the purpose 
of doing what I could towards rescue. I assisted, I think it was, two men they were alive at the time. 
I forget their names. I assisted to bring those two men out. I did not go in any more on that occasicn. 

(7. Were you in the No. 1 Right District at all on that occasion? A. No. 
Q. Did you go in the mine on a subsequent occasion? A. Yes, I went in on an inspection. 
Q. On what date? A. I could not give you the exact date. I think it would be -_----[Interruptecl]. 
(7. The 9th August, with Mr. Morgan? A. About five or six weeks after_-something like that-I 

could not give you the exact date. 
Q. With Mr. Morgan and Mr. Ritchie, and a party of six I A. Yes, there was a party. 692. 
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Q. Well now, I do not want to go right through all you observed—will you kindly tell us what con-
clusion you arrived at, if any, from your inspection on that occasion? A. After the inspection the only 
conclusion or theory that I could arrive at was this, that an explosion of gas must have occurred, forced 
out from the oil workings, and that it caine on to the naked lights and caused the disaster. That is the 
only conclusion that I could come to. 

Q. Could you indicate on the plan what old workings you refer to? A. Yes,—wefl, some portion of 
this 35 acres, I should imagine, would be where it would come from, and be forced on to these working 
places [irulialing on map]. 

His honor.] Q. Through what opening should you say that the forcing of the gas took place? A. I 
thought at the time that it caine out at a place worked by a man named Aitken. I remember that name 
more particularly. 

Mr. Wade.] Q. You thought what? A. That the gas had come out into this place that was worked by 
the men Aitken. 

(By direction of His Honor the Secretary pointed out on the plan to the witness the position of 
Aitken and son's working place.) 

JVilness.] I think that was the name. It was a pillar, at all events. 
69, Mr. .LJsaçj/tt.] Q. Do you mean that the explosion originated in Aitken's place, or started from gas 
you think had accumulated in Aitken's place? A. Somewhere near to it from the evidences of force that 
were there, and the charred props. There were evidences of great force just at that place : skips driven 
into each other, and charred plops, and charred roof. 

Q. You see by the plan that Aitken's place was some distance from that 35-acre goaf. Was there 
more than one explosion 1 A. Well, perimps I may have mistaken that about the 35-acre goaf, and I 
may have taken it as the goaf near by. I see by the plan now that there is a small goaf near Aitken's 
working place. 

Q. Do we understand now that it is the small goaf you refer to near Aitken's place? A. Yes; I 
suppose it was, now. I understood that this 35-acre goaf was there; but I see by the plan that it was some 
distance away. 

Q. Do you mean that there was only one explosion, or a series of explosions? A. I could not 
form an opinion on that as to whether there was or was not. 

Q. Do you think that coal (lust played1 any part in the explosion, or in aceelerating it? A. I have no 
doubt it would assist, once it started. I think there would be no question in my mind that it would assist. 

Mr. Wade.] Q. Did you say '' would " or " did " ? A. I have no doubt it would. 
701. Mr Lysaglif.] Q. In your opinion did it in. this case? A. Oh, I would think so. Yes, I think it would. 

Q. Beyond that can you give the Commission any information to lead to a conclusion as to the cause? 
A. No, I do not think I can. 

Q. How long were you examining? A. We were, I think, about five hours, roughly; something like 
that. 

Q. Did you observe any indications of burning or singeing or charring in any other place besides 
Aitken's ? A. No. I do not ieinenihcr seeing anything, excepting th it place. I ienienihei that place more 
particularly. I do not think there was any other place. There may have been a place. I ant not exactly 
sure, but t T do not lel item her it. 

Q. You are aware of the first iecoinnieiidation of the tiTiiion -'' Managers, under-managers, deputies, 
and shot-firers, to hold certificates of competency by cxannnation, and to have had live years' practical 
milling experience before l)cing eligible for respective positions."  What do you say in support of that 
rccomnmneiidation 1 A. Well, I think it is only right that men who are in responsible positions should have 
these qualifications : they are very responsible positions ; and I think they should liolil certificates. 

Q. Can you go into that more fully, particularly as regards the deputies and shot-firers? A. I do not 
know that I can. I look at it this way, that these men practically have the whole of the people under 
their charge, and that they should show a qualification for thlfit according to the position they hold. 

Regarding Reconimendation No. 2—" Inspectors to be vested with absolute powers to order use of 
safety lamps,"—do you think that would be a arise provision? A. Yes, I think that would be a wise provision. 
I think they are the propel' persons, or should be the propel persons, to know whether these lamps are 
required or not and it is just as well to have the absolute power in their hands ; and then Ave know who 
has the power. 

Q. What do you say in support of No. 3—" Yentilalion by furnace prohibited, and fans substituted "1 
A. Oh, I think fans are less liable to go out of order. The furnace seems out of date. The fan would be 
superior in my opinion. 

Q. And in what other way is the furnace a danger? Is it dangerous in case of a disaster? A. It. is 
more liable to go wrong and in case of a disaster the fan would be superior, I think, of the two. It would 
be less liaiSe to aceident. 

Q. Is not there the danger that if the furnace [Inte?.1.upted.] 
(,Mr. Wade ohected to Mr. Lvsaglit's putting leading questions). 
Mr. JyRag1It.] Q. Assunnng that there was a disaster near the furnace, and anything happened to the 

furnace, would not that have the elliot of shutting off the air front nearly every other pti it of the mine 
A. Yes, of course it would. 
71 (1. Begarding No. 4—'' Waste world 11gM to be absolutely sealed off and surrounded by i'eturn airaVays 
(for fear of emission)—such return airways not to come in contact with intake." I think you desire to 
say something on that recommendation, as President? A. I would prefer myself to see them, if possible, 
ventilated. If it was practicable at all, I would prefer to see them ventilated rather than to shut them off; 
but if that could not be done, then I think that the next best thing would be to close them up. 
717. Q. Looking at that plan there, that 35-acre goaf, do you think it would be at all practicable to 
ventilate that—that big goaf there ? A. T do not know whether it would or not. 
71 . Q. Have you ever hietii'd of large goaves being ventilated ? A. Well, T cannot. say I have. 
719. (i. Now, No. 5--" All places except prospecting drives to have citt-tltroughs not more than 30 yards 
apot —avlta.t do you say to that? A. T think that is a matter that could easily be done. T (10 not see any 
(lillietill v in the tvti.v of doing that. ft would be letter than edurving the brattice up and depending on 
l)illttie(. I think .1(1 vtlr(la would be a iaan,,iahle distance. 
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Q. Do you think that the driving of these cut-throughs would have any effect upon the support of the 
roof? A. No, I do not think so. I cannot see that it would. 

Q. What size would you propose to have the cut-throughs? A. Oh, about 3 yards. 
Q. Wide? A. Yes. 
Q. And in what way would the cut-throughs be an additional precaution, an additional safeguard-the 

extra cut-throughs? A. Well, the air would be brought up better, and we would not be relying upon the 
brattice so much-the brattice gets sagged down, and the air gets lost. There would be precaution in 
that way. 

Q. After the place had been driven up to where there should be a second cut-through, would you have 
the first cut-through sealed off? A. Oh yes; when the first one was through, and they got the second one, I 
would brick the first one off. 

Q. And regarding No. 6-" Inspection with locked safety-lamp in all cases" ;-you consider it a wise 
precaution to abolish that section of the Act which allows an inspection--[Interruptecl]. 

His Honor.] Do I understand, Mr. Wade, that you dispute the expediency of that amendment? 
Mr. Wade.] I cannot say I dispute it; but I cannot absolutely admit it. I say this, that, as a matter 

of fact, for the greater protection of the miners, I think nearly every colliery nowadays does use the safety-
lamp for the purpose of inspection. 

His Honor.] A locked safety-lamp? 
Mr Wade.] Yes. 
His Honor.] There seems to be no valid reason for the exception. It seems to be hardly worth 

arguing. 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] I understand it is not so in the West. The conditions are different there. 
Mr. Wade.] But I am speaking of the South Coast. 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] But these recommendations appear to apply to the whole State. 
Mr. Wade.] So far as we are concerned in Mount Kembla, I cannot say more than that we have, in 

spite of the fact that the report-book shows for years and years no gas, made the inspection with a locked 
safety-lamp. 

His Honor.] You went on the assumption that this is a particularly safe mine ; and yet you have 
adopted that plan. That is very strong evidence to show that that precau(ion is taken even in cases 
where it is least necessary. 

Mr. Wade.] I do not want to do anything that will bind anybody else outside my own clients. 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] I do not want it to be supposed that the Department takes any exception to the 

proposal to make it universal ; but of course care has to be taken, when witnesses go into the box who 
are familiar with the mines in only one part of the State, and they express univer al opinions, as to what 
should be clone with respect to the conditions elsewhere. 

His Honor.] I only made the suggestion. 
Mr. Lysaght.] I think I might adopt your Honor's suggestion. 
His Honor.] It is hardly worth while labouring the matter. 
Mr. Lysaght.] It would not be imposing any hardship upon them even in the West. 
Mr. Bruce Smith.] One Inspector, who will give evidence before the Commission, has had a great 

deal of experience in the West; and we may ask him some questions as to the practice. 
His Honor.] There was one gentleman who gave evidence before the Coroner who certainly 

expressed the matter very simply, and in a very common-sense way. He said that if you were 
inspecting for gas with an open light, and if you found the gas, possibly you would not be in a condition 
to report it. 

Mr. Lysaght.] Your Honor will remember that Morrison stated that he went to.inspect with a 
naked lamp. 

Mr. JVade.] That was a very unfair question. It was put deliberately to make the man say "yes " or 
"no" to it ; and now it is made use of. 

Mr. Lysac'hf.] Q. Now, No. 7-" Monthly examination and report by deputies and District Inspector 
with hydrogen flame." Do you think that is an essential precaution to take in the mines? A. Yes, I think 
it would be a good thing, and would give additional security. 

Q. For the reason that the safety-lamp cannot detect below 2 per cent. ? A. Yes. 
Q. Do you think that would cause any great inconvenience or any material expense? A. I do not see 

it. I do not see that it would be a great matter to do once a month. 
Q. No. 8--" Minimum of 500 cubic feet of air per minute to be provided for every horse, instead of 100 

as at present," you might say how much more air in your opinion does a horse require than a man in a 
mine? A. I could not say exactly but I could only say that it takes more ; that is all. 

Q. In your opinion, is 500 cubic feet a reasonable allowance for each horse? A. \Vell, it is only a 
matter of guess-work with me as to how much a horse would requite; but I think it ought to have that at 
least. 

Q. The minimum of 100 is in your opinion totally insufficient? A. You are asking me about the 
amount for the horse? 

Q. Yes? A. Yes, I think the 500 added to the other would be an improvement. 
Q. In your opinion 100 cubic feet of air per minute is not sufficient for a horse? A. I do not think 

it is. 
Q. No. 9-" All doors erected so as to close and remain closed of own motion." Do you think that is a 

necessary precaution to take? A. Yes. If they closed of their own motion that would do away with any 
carelessness on the part of anyone not closing them. If it closed on its own account there would be no 
necessity for a person to close it. 

Q. Do you think it would add to the negligence of anyone who might come across one that was 
accidentally open? A. No ; the rule would be there still that they would have to close them. If any 
accident happened or anything blocked it from closing they would still have to close it. 

Q. And that would not entail any material expense on the Company? A. 1(10 not, see that it would 
entail any. 

Q. And that is a reform that could be very easily and quickly fixed up? A. Yes a very simple 
reform, that;. 
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Q. Now, "Double doors on drives between main intakes and returns and main heading," No. 10. 
What do you say to that? A. Oh, I think that is a reasonable thing to ask for. One door is closed while 
the other one is open, preventing escapes while skips are going through, sets, or anything like that-one 
door is closed and the other is open. 

Q. That is, one door should be closed and the other open? A. Yes, should be. 
Q. As a matter of fact in some of the collieries do you know that they have double doors? A. Oh, 

yes ; they have got double doors at some of them. 
Q. No. 11-" Weekly measurement of air in each section, and report thereof sent to Inspector." As you 

know, the measurement is now once a month; do you think it would be an additional safety if it were 
once a week? A. Yes. It would mean increased safety. They would know oftener how things were 
standing by doing it once a week. 

Q. Would that entail any extra expense on the proprietaries? A. I suppose it would-a certain 
amount. There would be the time of a man going round to do it: that would be all. 

Q. Where would you have the air measured? In what parts of the mine? In each district? A. If it 
is to be done, I should say do it thoroughly. 

Q. What would you call "doing it thoroughly"? A. Well, in the whole of the splits. 
Q. Is the measurement of the air at the main intake any evidence at all of the air circulating in every 

part of the mine? A. No: only evidence of what air is circulating in that particular place. 
Q. No. 12, " Extra supply of safety-lamps and their requisites equal to one-tinrd of number of persons 

employed below ground to be kept constantly in good order and ready for use." Do you think that a wise 
precaution ? A. Yes. I think that in case of anything happening those lamps will be there, and they may 
be the means of saving life. 

Q. What was your experience at Kembla regarding lamps at the time of the disaster? A. There was 
not a sufficient quantity; and they were very short--very few-I do not know how many, but they were 
insufficient at all events. 

Q. What was the condition of the wicks? Were they out of order, too, in addition to the lamp 
generally ? A. Yes. I say there was an insufficiency of lamps ; and the lamps that were there were not 
ready for use. They were not ready to go straight in. They had to be got ready. 

Q. In your opinion, if there had been an adequate supply of lamps in readiness, could a number of 
more lives have been saved? A. I think it is very probable that there would have been. 

Q. No. 13, "Travelling and haulage roads and other places necessary to be properly watered." In 
addition to the watering of the haulage road, do you think it absolutely necessary that the travelling road 
should be watered? A. Oh, yes. 

Mr. Bruce Smith.) I do not know whether your Honor thinks it best, in getting  expert evidence, for 
the questioner to put the evidence in his own way. It does not come with any weight at all. 

his honor.] The reporter here, who is a very careful and accurate reporter, is taking (lown questions 
and answers ; and when questions appear on the report of the evidence which almost necessarily imply 
a certain answer, and that answer follows, any person reading that evidence will feel how very much the 
weight of the evidence is taken off by the question. The injury is more to the examiner than to the other 
side. 

Mr. Lysaght.] Q. What (10 you say as to the necessity for the watering of the travelling roads? 
A. What I think about watering is that, although it is a great inconvenience if there is watering all over 
the mine, a certain amount of watering would be bctter-the air would be cooler passing over it ; and the 
dust would be laid-not only on the haulage roads, but the travelling roads. It makes it cooler, reduces 
the dust, and keeps the dust laid. That is all the object I see in watering-the laying of the dust. 

Q. No. 14-" Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention to management of 
colliery"? A. Yes I think he ought to give the fullest possible time that he can, work as much as he 
possibly can, being the head of the work. 

Q. What has been your OWfl experience as to Managers attending, watching the inside workings of 
the pit? Your general experience? A. Well, I see the Managers occasionally. I should say two or three 
times in a month, perhaps. That is about it roughly. Some months, perhaps, more, you know; and, 
perhaps, others not quite so many, but something like two or three times in a month. 

Q. No. 15-" Instruments to be placed at bottom of upcast to determine variations of heat and air 
pressure"? A. Well, if the continuance of a furnace was to be, you might put an instrument there; but, as 
far as the upcast shaft is concerfied I cannot see much use for it there. 

Q. That is, if the furnaces are discontinued? A. If the furnaces are discontinued I do not see much 
in it myself. 

Q. And the size of the manholes enlarged (No. 16)? A. Yes, I think that would be a benefit. When 
they are making them they may as well make them a little bigger, and give the people a chance. There 
may he two or three trying to get into a manhole at the one time ; and it is rather small. 

Q. No. 17-" Cancellation of certificate of William Rogers." That is not a matter upon which you are 
giving evidence. No. 18, " Instruction of employees regularly on means of escape." 

1/is honor.] What is the number of the rule providing for manholes? 
Mr. Lysaght.] They are to be 3 feet wide, and 4 feet deep, and 6 feet high. 
Mr. JVade.] But it is only in special cases-General Rule 14. 
Mr. Lysaght.] The Consolidated Act, General Rule 14. 
Q. "Instruction to employees regularly on means of escape" I A. I think that is a necessary thing. I 

think that where there are was out of the mine a man should be instructed in those ways, so that he can get 
out as quickly as possible. It may he that he might lose his way, and lose his life through losing his way. 

Q. Would that interfere at all with the general easy management of the colliery, or could it be easily 
effected ? A. Oh, I think that could be very easily done-no expense, no trouble, or anything-and very 
necessary too, I think. 

Q. No. 19-" Coal-mines Act to forbid a black list of employees being kept ; and penalsing improper 
prevention of discharged persons obtaining employment." What do 'you say on that matl'i' generally 
A. Well, generally, I think if anything like that was done it would give more security in cases. A man 
might be loth to come forward to repeat anything or to give evidence; and, if there was something like 
that, it might encourage him a little to come forward either to report iiiatters or to give evidence in cases. 
It nay he so. He would lone tliataniount of security, at all events. 787. 
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Q. "Safety-lamps not to be unlocked for shot-fiting' (No. 20). What do you say to that? You 
know of that provision where the safety-lamp can be unlocked if gas has not been discovered? A. Yes. 
I think it would be better if. it could be avoided and the shots fired in other ways, either by electricity 
or by the wire. I think it would be better not to open the lamp, at all events. 

Q. Is there anything else you desire to say before the Commission? A. No; I have nothing that I 
can think of. 

Cross-examination by Mr. Wade :- 

Q. With regard to the question of safety-lamps not being unibeked for shot-firing--supposing that a 
particular place has been examined in the niornim, before work commences and has been found free of gas 
and supposing it has been examined just before the shot is fired, and is found clear of gas ; and supposing 
it is free of dust do you see any objection, in the, way of danger, to the lamp being unlocked under those 
circumstances ? A. Well, there may not be ; but still I__--[fnterrupted.] 

Q. Do you see any l A. No, I do not; under all those suppositions, I would not : but it seems to 
me to be supposing too much. 

Q. What is supposing too much? A. Supposing there is no dust, and supposing there was no gas just 
before, and none in the mormng; things might occur in such a short time. 

Q. The dust would not change? A. The dust might not.. 
That is all right? A. Yes. 
Q. And if it has been examined before you begin work, and just before the shot is fired, and it is 

found free of dust on both occasions, do you see any possible risk in firing the shot with the unlocked 
safety-lamp ? A. Not if all those conditions are carried out. 
79.5. Q. And the Act absolutely says, under all those conditions, you may unlock the lamp? Q. Yes, I 
know it does. 

Q. Now, with regard to claim 18, " Instructions to employees regularly on means of escape"-is it not 
the practice now for a man's mate, if he does not know the way, to explain to him the road to his place ? 
A. A man's mate? 

Q. There are two men- one man knows the road in, or there may be two roads to the place; and the 
mate is a new hand-does not the other man explain the way to the place ? A. He will explain the way 
that he knows himself. 

Q. The man who knows the way will tell his mate anything he knows himself? A. He will tell him 
what he knows himself. - 

Q. He will help him all he can? A. He will. 
500. Q. And does not every reasonable miner try and find out the different ways to or from his working 
place? A. He generally follows the general one of the mine. There may be ways that a good many of the 
men do not know anything about, where there are two or three ways. 

(7. You have been a miner for many years? A. That is it. 

(7. And cannot you say this, that every reasonable miner, for his own safety, tries to ascertain the 
different means of getting to or from his working place ? A. Oh, I think they only generally go the one way. 

(7. It is not a question of going the one way it is a question of trying to find out the different 
ways I A. I cannot say that they do try to find it out. 

Q. Take yourself : have not you, for your own safety ? A. No. I have just simply gone ; and I have 
gone the way that the body of the men go; and there may be other ways out that I would know 
nothing at all about. 

(7. You mean to say that you have never bothered to inquire? A. Oh, yes, I may have inquired. 

(7. Have you not A. Well, I might explain it. Suppose I went to a colliery to-morrow, to a place I 
had not been to before. On the first morning I went I would inquire the way to the place I was going to; and 
I would go with men that knew the way to that place and within a week or two I might inquire, " Is 
there any other way out of this place," and I might get the answer, " Yes, so-and-so " ; but, unless I have 
got anybody with me to show me the way out, I cannot find my way out of that place that way. 

(7. You, as a reasonable man, having found the ordinary way to your place, would inquire whether 
there were any other ways ? A. Oh, I would inquire myself. 

Q. And I suppose you would admit that any reasonable miner would do that ? A. A man might not 
think of that sort of thing. I would want to know if there were more ways than one. 

Q. There is nothing in the rules of the colliery that would prevent your coming out the different ways 
if you can get anyone to show you? A. Not if I can get anyone to show them. I do not know anything 
that would prevent me if there is a clear way out. 

Q. Well, what would you suggest for this periodical instruction-that each miner should be taken all 
round the mine ? A. No. I will tell you what I would suggest. If there were two or more travelling ways 
out, I would suegest two things to be done. In the first, I would have a sort of rough plan of these ways 
giving the local names of the headings and places, so that the men would know them better; and that would 
be posted? outside ; and the men would say, "Well, we will go from so-and-so heading and come here 
and they would know partly from that ; and then at stated intcrvals let the deputy take the whole of the 
men out this way as they are going out, and show them, peihaps, once in a month or two months, or perhaps 
once in three niontlis. 

(7. Once a quarter? A. Yes. 
(7. Then why should you not leave this to be done by one of the miners who happens to know the whole 

of the way ? Why do you want to drag the deputy in? A. Well, he is a responsible man. 
113. Q. There is nothing responsible in walking out by a different read? A. I do not know. I do not know 
how you are to arrive at one of the miners unless he was appointed by some special appointment to do this. 
I should think that the deputy would know the roads better than the. miner and he would take them 
round and show the way out. 

(7. Suppose you were working in Main No. I Kembla? A. Yes. 

(7. Now, we have 1)00n. told that there are two ways to get to the face there-along time main travelling 
rieml aimd imi rig the daylight tunnel. Now, irhiat lithiculty woull there he in those muon who knew the 
daylight tunnel taking out their mate",  any ore 1ev in the qna.l ter along there and shioiving them ? A. 1. do 
not suppose there would he ammv (hilliNlltv in taking themii but I thmimk if it was left to imicli individual 
like that it would be uobodly's business, and it would never he done hut if it were put on uric man to do 
it would he done. 816. 
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Q. If it is left to the miners to look after their safety they would probably not do it? A. Some would, 
and soiiu' would not. 

Q. And you want a duty imposed on the Company to make the miners look after their safety 1 That 
is what it comes to? A. Well, it is partly that ; it is so that it would be clone. Your idea, if I understand 
you aright, is to leave it to each individual man to find out for himself. Mine is to take one particular 
man and say to luni -[Interrupted]. 
81$. Q. Exactly. If the Company give the men permission to know the different roads, you think it is not 
sufficient, is they would not bother to go? A. I think it would be a failure that way. 

Q. But what you want is a duty imposed upon the Company to make the men find these escapes for 
their own safety? A. Yes, to show them ; and then, if they did not take it afterwards, well, it could not be 
helped. 

Q. Well, would you have a penalty imposed upon the men who did not go? Have them fined? Have 
that added to the special rules? A. Fined. 

Q. For not going? A. I do not think I would. I would simply put it there; and I think the men 
would be only too glad to do it. 

Q. Supposing the men do not go even then with the deputy, would you propose that they should be 
fined 1 A. No, I would not. 

Q. You would still leave it to their own choice? A. I would leave it then. If a man after that being put 
in his way would not do it, I would let him rip and let him put up with the consequences : but I do not think 
he would. 

Q. Then you are not much further advanced under your proposal than you are now? A. Oh, I think so. 
895. Q. What is the difference? A. I think it would be a great difference if it were put into practice. 

Q. But you would not force the men to go 1 A. Because I do not think they would need forcing. 
Q. But supposing some men did to make sure of their doing it would you advocate a penalty? A. No. 

I would not punish them at all. I do not think they would need it. 
82$. Q. And you would not by any penalty force the men to disevoer means for their own safety? A. No. I 
think they would do it without forcing. 
899. Q. But you would force the company to utilise one of their ofileials to try and make them do it?. 
A. Oh, yes, I would do that. 

I/is honor.] That would appear as I understand it, Mr. Wade, to he the only practicable and satisfactory 
way of giving the men an opportunity of finding a roundabout course out from their working places: because 
I understand it is not the practice for the Mine Manager to allow tIie men to go anywhere about the mine 
they like,or to go out by any exit if they happen to have a fancy to explore. This suggestion is that they 
should have that opportunity, under the control of the management itself, of properly informing them-
elves of how they might get out in case their regular travelling road was not, under the circumstances, a 

safe one. 
Mr. JVwIe.] But the question has not arisen in that concrete form yet. What I put to him is this 

Supposing the management allow you on certain clays to go out in a body without you taking the deputy 
with you, would the miners go then 1 

Ills hIono.] But that would be a less satisfactory way of doing it. This recommendations puts the 
men under the control of the management: The suggestion is as much in the interests of the mine as in 
the interests of time men. 
833 .Jlr. lrace Smith.] Your Honor will note that Mr. Maguire says he will force the Company to lead 
the men out, but he would not force the men to follow. 
831. his ho nor.] But lie merely says that if the men are such fools as not to take advantage of this 
opportunity they must take thp consequences. It might be better to make it compulsory on the men at 
certain regular intervals to accept this offer. 

Jfr. iVw/e.] Q. Supposing you are working at the face of the No. 1 in Kembla-that is getting on for 
a mile and three-quarters in-nearly 2 miles? A. I suppose it would be something like that. 

Q. Well, if the men are taken-supposing they had been used to the davhght tunnel-would you take 
them round the No. 1 main tunnel only, or would you take them round all the exits throughout the miBe 
A. I would take them all the different exits in rotation. One time I would take them round one way, and 
another time I would take them round another, until all the men learned all time ways. 

Q. We see on this plan that there are two ordinary exits-down the main travelling way and down-
the daylight tunnel? A. Yes. 

Q. What you would have is that they should learn to get out by going round the 4th Left at the 
hack of the furnace and coming down the shaft tunnel 1 A. Yes. Whatever means there are I would do 
that until I got the men acquainted with them. 

Q. Sonic of those tracks would take a very long time to travel ? A. Yes. 
Q. I want to know, do you propose that that should come out of the time the miner is supposed to 

give to the Company, or should he do that after the working hours are finished? A. I suppose there 
would be some arrangen ment. 

Q. What do you propose? A. When the deputy has finished his shift, and the men have finished their 
shift, lie has got to conic out and they have got to come out ; and all the difference I see is the difference in 
the length of one travelling road and the other. - 

Q. Would you have that done so as to give the Company the full time of the men at the face, as 
they have now ;'or would you take it out of the Company's time 1 A. I would take it at the conclusion 
of the shift, when the men are coming out. 

Q. When they have finished their work 1 A. When they have finished when they are coming out. 
I would bring them out that way. 
841. (7. Now, I want to ask about these manholes-the miners are paid for cutting these manholes ? A. Yes. 

(7. At what rate are they paid for this, 6 x 3 x 4, at present 1 A. Well, usually manholes are done by 
day work. I do not know of any that have been done by the yard or the ton ; but usually they are done 
by the shift men. 

Q. Always? A. Not always. I said not always. 
Q. Do the miners do this work ? A. Sometimes the miners. 

948. Q. Well, do they get paid the ordinary tonnage rate, or something extra, for cutting these manholes 
A. I  I could not say; I never did any of them. 849 
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Q. You have no idea what the rate is? A. I cannot say whether they get paid extra or whether they 
get the usual rate or not; I have never clone any of them. 

Q. What size do you propose they should be? A. 6 feet high, and 6 feet in, and 5 feet wide. 

Q. Then you have no idea whether there is a special rate for cutting manholes at present, or not? A. I 
could not say. All that I know is that in the great majority of cases they have been cut by day work. 

Q. Now, with regard to the cut-throughs, could you give us any idea as to how much they would be 
increased in number by your proposal? You propose to have them every 30 yards? A. Yes. 

Q. And the bords run now very often over 100 yards, do they not? A. Oh, yes, I daresay they do; 
100 yards or over. 

Q. Would it be a fair thing to say that it would mean having four times as many cut-throughs as 
there are now, speaking on an average? A. Oh, I suppose in a 100-yards bord there would be four; but 
I do not know whether it would be four times as many. 

Q. How long do you drive now without a cut-through--from your own experience? A. I think it 
runs about 35 yards ; but it is the regular thing : it is supposed to be the regular thing : but sometimes 
they go a good deal further. 

Q. You said they go to 100 yards very often? A. The bords 

Q. Before they drive a cut-through? A. 100 yards? 

Q. You said so a moment ago? A. I do not know that I did. 
Q. I ask you what increase in the number of cut-throughs it would mean? A. I cannot say. 
Q. Well, you see in that 4th Left off No. 1 travelling road there are bords that are a good deal 

more than 100 yards without a cut-through. I think Mr. May told us there were some of 200 yards? 
A. With no cut-through? 

Q. Yes. Well, if you put in four in that space, supposing it was only 100 yards, it would just about 
multiply the number of cut-throughs by four? A. Oh, yes, if they drive them that distance without 
a cut-through. 

Q. You are paid for that a special yardage rate in addition to the hewing rate? A. Yes. 
Q. And the miners have received an increase in their yardage rate froin the Arbitration Court 

lately, have they not? A. Yes. 
Q. Do you not know that? A. Yes, 2s. 3d. a yard. 
Q. And it used to be what-is. 9d.? A. is. 9cl., I think. 

Q. You get first of all your tonnage, do you not? A. Yes. 
Q. For cutting these cut-throughs? A. You get your tonnage. 

Q. That is is. 9?d. now? A. Yes. 
Q. And in addition to that you get what is called a yardage rate; and it has been hitherto is. 9d., 

but has now been raised to 2s. 3d. a yard 1 A. Yes. 
Q. So that that would be an increase of cost to the mine-owners for these cut-throughs? A. Yes., 
Q. And a gaul to the miner too? A. Well, I suppose it would be. 
Q. When did you formulate this claim for cut-throughs every 30 yards? How long ago? Was it last 

week? A. Yes. It was a recommendation from the Delegate Board. 
Q. When? A. Last week. 

874 Q. And this increase to 2s. 3d. had been given before that A. Yes. 

Q. Before you made the recommendation? A. Yes. 

Q. Now, while we are on these cut-throughs, supposing you had a great pressure overhead, you would 
want big pillars, would you not? A. Yes, I suppose you want a good pillar, the greater the pressure. 

Q. The bigger the cover, the bigger the pillar you want? A. Yes. 

Q. The bigger the solid pillar? A. Yes. 
Q. And that means solid coal 1 A. Yes. 
Q. And do you not think cutting it up into these bits every 30 yards would weaken it? A. No, I do 

not think that driving it in would weaken it. I cannot see that it would. I do not think it would make 
any difference. 

Q. Would you be prepared to put your own opinion against that of an experienced Mine Manager on 
that point? A. No. It is only my opinion : that is all. I just give it as an opinion. I do not think it 
would make a great difference in the pressure. 

Q. Do you think it would make some difference? A. I do not know whether it would or not. I do 
not think it would. The taking out of a small piece like that would not make any difference to the 
pressure. 

Q. If you were doing that every 30 yards, all over the mine, do you not think it would make any 
difference? A. No. I do not think it would make any difference. 

Q. But you say you would not put your opinion against that of a Mine Manager? A. No. I do not 
put my opinions against anyone's. 

Q. Do I understand that you do not rely upon bratticing? You do not trust it? A. Oh, yes. I trust 
the bratticing; but I think it would be better to have these cut-throughs as well. It would be a double 
precaution. 

Q. You said that one of the objections is that the brattice might sag, and so interfere with the 
ventilation? A. Yes, it does do so. 

Q. Now, if it has sagged and interferes with the ventilation, the miner would soon discover that? 
A. Oh, yes. 

Q. Very quickly? A. Oh, yes. 
Q. And it could very soon be remedied? A. Oh, yes, all things can be remedied. 

Q. Can you tell me of any danger there is from working with these bords in lengths of more than 30 
yards, with brattice up to the face? A. No. I do not know that I can point to anything particularly. All 
I can say is that I think the cut-throughs would be additional safety. I do not prefer to rely on brattice 
for that length of distance. 

Q. Now, supposing you are going to drive ahead, say, 150 yards under your plan you put .a cut-
through in the first 30 yards? A. Yes. 

Q. What do you do after you have passed that ;-seal it up? A. No; you leave that until you come 
another 30 yards, and put that one open, and then seal that other one up, and have the other cut-through 
through, and keep the air going within 30 yards of the face. 893. 
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803. Q. And you have still the chance of the brattice in that 30 yards sagging? you run that risk still 
A. Yes. 
891. Q. And what would you do while the cut-throughs were being driven ;-would you get the miner 
to drive that cut-through? A. Yes, the man that is working in the place would drive that cut-
through. 

Q. Just show me on a piece of paper how you work this. Show me what you mean ;-how would 
you work your cut-throughi in the bord 1 A. I do not think I can draw a plan. I do not think I can 
do it. 

Q. Do you know that this provision about 30-yard cut-throughs was in the old Act I A cut-through 
every 30 yards? A. I cannot say. It may or may not have been. I do not remember. 
8964 Q. And that it has been left out of the present Act ? I suppose you know that? It is not in the 
present act ? A. No. 

Q. Now, with regard to claim 15-" Instruments at the bottom of the upcast" ;-what instruments 
would you have at the bottom of the upcast? A. I do not think I said I would have any there. 

Q. Supposing you had a furnace? A. Well, if we had a furnace I suppose I would have a barometer 
and a thermometer. 

Q. The barometer would show what? The pressure of the air 1 A. The pressure. 

Q. Do they have water-gauges now, do you know? A. Well, I suppose they have. I do not know 
much about those things. 

Q. Do you know what they show? A. No. I do not know what they show. 

Q. You do not know what they are there for? A. No. 
Q. What do you expect to get out of having these things that you ask for? A. Well, it would be a 

guidance for the man that was there if there was anything occurred-if there was any change. 
Q. Change of what? A. Change in the air. 
Q. What do you mean by change in the air? A. Well, I understand that a barometer shows you any 

change in the conditions of the air. 
Q. The pressure of the air? A. Yes. 
Q. What would that indicate do you think? A. That is all I can say about it. 
Q. What does that mean ? What does that indicate? A. I am not able to answer that question. I 

cannot answer you. 
Q. But you have agreed to the proposal? A. Yes. I agreed to it on the broad principle that a man 

would be there understanding these things-that instruments of that kind would be necessary for him, to 
show him these changes that may occur. 

Q. What do you expect when the changes are shown to him? A. Well, I expect that if that change 
showed hini that there was any danger lie would take steps accordingly. 

Q. How would they show danger ? A. I do not know much about it. 
Q. You see what you know about it. You have framed these claims ? A. I do not know much about it. 

91:3. Q. What is the width of your roads at South Clifton where you work-your haulage roads? A. About 
12 feet. 
911. Q. And what is the space between the skip-side and the rib-side? Is there room for a man to 
stand? A. I daresay there is. We do not travel on it there. 

Q. You do not want it on the South Clifton then? A. No. We (10 not travel on it there. 
Q. As a matter of fact is not there room to stand against the rib-side while the skip goes by, even on 

the haulage road ? A. Yes. 
Q. And room for a dozen men to stand, if necessary side by side against the rib 1 A. Yes, in the 

maJority of places I daresay there would be room for the men to stand. I have not been in there for a 
very long time. 

Q. And is it not a fact that manholes are very seldom used there? A. They are very seldom used 
there. - 

Q. At Clifton? A. Yes. 
Q. Now, claim 14--" Managers compelled to give more personal time and attention to management of 

colliery." You only refer by that to his going underground? A. Yes, to visits underground. 
Q. Then if you saw him about three times in a month at South Clifton-that is where you are 

speaking of? A. Yes. 
Q. Then ani I to understand that lie would probably be round the whole of the pit three times every 

month? A. Oh, no lie might be in portions of the mine where I would not see him. 
A. Of course you would not see him? A. What I understand by your question is that he might go 

(lown the mine and I not see him? 
Q. No. I suppose lie takes it in rotation, and pays a visit to each part of the mine in turn? A. Oh, 

yes; I suppose lie. does. 
Q. He cannot do it all in one day? A. I suppose lie might. 
Q. But it would be a big order? A. Yes. 
Q. Then if you see him three times in a month, the probability is that lie goes round the whole mine 

three times in a month in rotation? A. Oh, yes ; possibly it might be more than that. 
Q. And, besides your ordinary surface works at South Clifton, you have coke works? A. Yes. 
Q. And there is the railway traffic ; that comes right up to the pit head? A. Yes. 
Q. Now, you say you would have the whole of the mine watered under claim 13, every road? A. The 

main road and the travelling road. 
Q. Only those two? A. Yes. 
Q. In every part? A. No. I only said that I thought if there was water in the other parts it would 

be all the better that is all. 
Q. But you would not make it compulsory ? A. No. 
Q. And do you refer to the floor of the roads only ;-would that be sufficient 1 A. Well, unless there 

was something exceptional, I think that if the floor was well watered it would do. 
Q. It would make it cooler I A. It would lay the (lust and make it a lot cooler. 
Q. Is that the ground on which you recommend this watering of the roads I A. Yes I think it would 

lay the dust and would cool the air that passes over. 

16825 29-0 937, 
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937, Q. Now, with regard to the lamps under claim 13 : what you say in regard to Mount Kembla i 
that. oil July 31st the lamps were not ready for use A. Yes. 

Q. The oil was not in them? A. No. 
Q. And the wicks were not trimmed A. No. 

910. Q. But otherwise the lamps were in order were they not? A. Otherwise, from that. 
Q. Yes? A. Oh, yes. The lamps were there, but they had neither oil nor wick in them. 
Q. Once you put the oil and the wicks into the lamps you were able to use them? A. Well, we did 

use them anyhow. 
Q. You were able to use them? A. Yes. 
Q. Now, what is your reason for making this claim about doors-that the doors should be self-acting? 

A. Well, I think it would be extra security. Belying upon a man to close these doors, of course, he may 
not. He may think they are closed. 

Q. It takes the responsibility ofl'the miners' shoulders? A. No, it does not. If he did not hear that 
door close he would have to go and see. There migho bea piece of coal, or stone, or wood. He would have 
to go and see that it was closed. The responsibility would be still there; but it would make it doubly sure 
that it did close. 

Q. You have a special rule at your colliery? A. Yes. 
Q. Have you a special rule that every man that passes through a door must close it after him? 

A. Yes. 
Q. And, if the door is sclf-actin:, of course, you would still have the rule? A. Yes, I would still leave 

it there ; because, although the door is self-closing, there might be still some little thing happen to stop it. 
919. Q. So that, although they are self-acting, you would still make the men see that they are closed in 
each case? A. Yes. 

Q. That is not much use, is it? A. Yes; because it makes it doubly secure. We all naturally listen 
for the door closing ; and, if we do not hear it close, then we want to know why it did not close. Why, 
even with a self-acting door, there might be some little thing occur once in a way ; and he would be there 
to see why it did not close. The bang of the door would let him know whether it closed or not. 

Q. The time the door is open is very brief -it might he a few seconds I A. Yes. 
Q. You just push it open for the horse or the skip to go through? A. Or a man ; or it may be a 

string of them. it is not a very long time. 
Q. You do not lose much air by the operation? A. I do not know how much they lose-according to 

the length of time, I suppose. 
Q. Under ordinary conditions, a man just going through ? A. If it were one man it would be seconds. 
Q. if there were, a string of men going I A, It would be so many more seconds. I do not know how 

many that would be. 
Q. Take your own colliery; do you get strings of men going through at a time I A. Yes; very 

often we might have six, or eight, or twelve men coming out at one time, or going in through these doors; 
and the door would be open. 

Q. While the six men went through l A. While the men went through. It might he only one man 
but still it might be six or eight. 

Q. Now, in regard to these double doors, claim 10. That is only for the purpose of preventing the 
escape of air? A. That is it. 

Q. That is not for any further security in case of explosion I A. One door would be closed while they 
were working with the other open. - 

Q. It would not be any further security in case of explosion? A. No; only for the regulation of the 
air. 

Q. Now, the measurements of air are taken at present_is it monthly with you? A. I could not say. 
I do not know of my own knowledge how often they take them. They may take them oftener. I suppose 
they do have it at all events monthly ; but as I do not see them of course I cannot say. 

Q. Are they recorded in a book? A. Yes, I suppose they are. 
Q And if the air became deficient you could very soon tell it in your working place if you get short? 

A. Oh, yes; if it fell oil' to any great extent we would be able to tell it. 
961. Q. Now, with regard to your minimum for horses, 500 feet, have you any figures at all as to what a 
horse actually gets now-say in your own colliery ? A. No. I could not tell you in figures. 

Q. As far as you know (loss he get sufficient? A. Yes. I think they do get sufficient air at that 
particular colliery. They are very little ones ; they are not much bigger than men. 

Q. Have you got any waste workings at Clifton (claim 4)? A. Yes. There are waste-workings there 
Q. Of any extent? A. I could not say the extent. I do not know. 

96$. Q. Do Veil knew how the\ are dealt witl ? A. No. I do not even know that. I have not been 
near them. 

Q. Have you had any experience of working with a furnace for ventilation? A. Experience with a 
furnace ? 

Q. Working at a mine where they use a furnace instead of a fan? A. Yes. I worked at Bulhi. 
Q. How many years ago was that? A. A good many years ago. 
(9. How many-fifteen? A. Something like that, peihaps fourteen. 
(9. That is the only place 1 A. That is all the furnace,,, . 

971. (9. Now, how long have you been at South Clifton yourself I A. Oh, about twelve or thirteen years. 
Something like that. 
915. (7. Have you got shot-firers there b A. Yes. They have shot-firers there now. 

(9. How long is that 1 A. It is only a few months ; that is all. 
(7. Then one man is picked out for the purpose of firing the shots? A. Yes. 
(7. Can you say that the man you have at South Clifton is not competent? A. No, I cannot. 
Q. Can you say he is competent, as far as you know- I A. As far asi know. le is. I do not know, 

ill see. 
960. Q. How long has he been in the mine? A. I think there are two or three of them. I think one of 
them has been there about two years or eighteen months ; another one perhaps a little more-about that 
soiiiething between eightoon months and two years. 
91. Q. Now, these deputies at times have churge of the mine I A. Yes. 982. 
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(7. And can control the men and order them about ? A. Yes, control the men in their district. 
(7. And a good deal of the smooth working of the mine depends upon the way the deputies handle the 

men? A. Yes. 
Q. A good deal depends on their personal character and tact and judgment? A. Yes. 
(7. And those are things that the Manager could ascertain by observing the men from day to day? 

A. Yes. He would have his observation to guide him. 
Q. And those you admit are very important elements in chosing a deputy? A. Yes; all these things 

go to make a good one. 
Q. I say they are important elements. Are not they? A. Yes. 
Q. I do not ask the question in an oflénsive way at all ; but I do not suppose you have made a study 

of the chemistry of gases, have you? A. No. 
Q. But you know perfectly well when you come across fire-damp? A. Oh, yes. If I came across that 

I would know that much. 
Q. That is from your long experience? A. Yes. 

991, Q. And you know what black-damj) is ? A. Yes. 
(7. And you know when a roof is dangerous? A. Yes. 
(7. And you gather all these things from practical experience 1 A. Yes, that is all. 
Q. And I suppose you would not care to face an examination with a man before you with pen and 

ink ? A. I would not attempt it. I have not self-confidence enough for that. 
Q. But you feel yourself perfectly competent as a practical man to deal with the ordinary events of 

a day in a mine 1 A. Just the events as they pmeent themselves to me, that is all. 
Q. Now, just one word about your examination on August 9th-do I understand that, whatever it 

may be, you believe this explosion began at Aitken's place 1 A. Yes, 1 think it commenced in the vicinity 
of that, as far as I could tell. 

Q. That was a place pointed out to you I A. We all went along and looked and that is a place that 
struck inc with signs of force. 

Q. Was that the place with a smaller pillar working close by? A. That was a place where Aitken had 
just commenced a pillar he could not have worked many days at it. 

Q. Were you all there-all the party? A. Yes, I think so. 
1000. (7. All together? A. Within a few ya..ds of each other. 
1001. (7. You examined this place? A. Yes. We were never very far away from each other going round. 
1002. Q. And I suppose you discussed these things when you saw these signs of burning and charring 
there I A. I do not say there was any discussion. 
1003. Q. I suppose you expressed your opinion there that this was the place I A. I do not remember that 
we dii. I do not remember anything pai'tieular being said at all. 
1004. Q. I (lid not say anything particular. But you fixed that place in your own mind as being the place 
of the origin of the explosion 1 A. Yes. That struck mime as being the most likely place that I saw. 
1005. Q. You were there to find out the origin of this explesion I A. Yes. 
1006. Q. Did not you mention this to some of the party? A. I do not think I did. I do not think I had 
much to say to anyone. 
1007. Mr. Lysaylu.] I submit, Your Honor, he has answered three or four times. 
1008. JJi.s Honor.] There is nothing in the witness's manner or style to suggest that he is not telling 
everything that he has in his mind as exactly correctly as he possibly can. Judging from the mariner of 
the witness all through, 1 should take him to be a remarkably reliable wituess. 
1009. AIr. JlTade.]  I do not suggest any imputahon against him for a moment. 
1010. his Honor.] He cannot know more than lie clues. He earniot remember more than lie knows ; but 
if vou cm suggest something lie might remember it. You might recall sunething to his memory. 
1011. JVitne8s ] If I had spoken to any one of the party about Aitken's place I think I would remember it; 
but I do not remember it. 
1012. AIr. lVwle.] Q. Was this mattem' mentioned by you or by anybody 1 A. No. I do not think it was. 
1013. Q. Either at the place, or have you (hseusseii it with any of the parties since? A. No. I have had 
little or nothing at all to say to anyone about it. 
1014. Q. Do you mean that you have told no one about it at all? A. No. I do not think I have told 
anyone at all. 
1015. (7 You have not told one of the party? A. Not one of them. 
1016. Q. And this party went in as a party of miners, did they not I A. Yes. 
1017. Q. To ascertain the cause of the explosion, the cause of the disaster 1 A. Yes. 
1018. (7. And whei'e it began 1 A. Yes, if 1)Ossibie, of course. 
1019. (7. And you say you have never mentioned this fact to a single soul since? A. No. I do not 
remember mentioning it to anyone. 
1020. Q. Was there any reason for not mentioning it? A. o reason whatever. I would just'- as soon 
have spo1'n about it if it had come into my head ; but I do not SUUS it did. 
1021. Q. Did you trace the course of the explosion-in what direction it went after Aitken's place I A. No, 
I do not think I (lid. I could not say the direction it went. 
1022. Q. When you were present, there has been no discussion among the miners, either the officials or the 
mimiers, as to where this began or what the cause was 1 A. There has been none, so far as I am concerned. 
I have not discussed it. 
1023. Q. It has not been mentioned in your presence? A. No. 

Crosscxamination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

1024. Q. What is your experience as to mining I Have you ever been out of this (listrlct 1 A. No. 
1025. Q. You have not been to Newcastle or the Western District? A. Z[ have never worked in a colliery 
in any other place than this district. 
1026. Q. 1 [ave you ever worked in England ? A. Yes I have worked in the North of England. 
1027. Q. For how many years? A. I have been twenty-five years out here-oh, I suppose, about fifteen or 
I ixteen years at home. 
e028. Q. In what locality 1 A. All in Durimam. 
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1029. Q. And have you always been a miner-always worked at coal-getting? A. Yes, with the exception of 
some slight breaks. 
1030. Q. I do not mean as to the continuous character of your employment: but you have never worked in 
any other capacity but that of a miner? A. No. 
1031. Q. You have never been in any responsible position as Manager, or under-manager, or deputy? A. No, 
nothing of that. I had to get coal all the time. 
1032. Q. Now, when you went in, I think you said six weeks, but it was about nine days after the accident- 
but that does not matter-you only went in once afterwards? A. That is all. 
1033. Q. Who led you in on that occasion? A. There was a man of the name of Morrison there. 
1034. Q. John Morrison? A. Morrison. A deputy he is now, I think. 
1035. Q. How came you to go up to Aitken's place, to that particular part of the mine? A. Well, this 
was a place we came across in the usual course as we went along. We did not go specially to this Aitken's 
place. 
1036. Q. What determined you as to whether you should go up to the Shaft District or up No. 1 Right I 
A. I think it was understood that we should visit that part, No. 1 District, that was all. 
1037. Q. You went up there, of course, with the intention, as Mr. Wade has put it to you, of ascertaining 
the cause and the locality? A. Yes. 
1038. Q. Did you take any notes at all ? A. No, I did not. 
1039. Q. Did anybody else take any notes? You had Mr. May with you? A. Yes. 
1040. Q. Did he take any notes? A. Well, I believe lie did take some little notes: but I am not exactly 
sure; but I think he did : but, still, I am not too certain of it. 
1041. Q. Do you know of anybody else who took any notes that you saw? A. No, I did not see. I fancy 
that Mr. May took some notes; but I would not be sure. 
1042. Q. Did you ever see any notes that were taken afterwards? A. No, never, not a shadow of one. 
1043. Q. There were half a dozen of you? A. Yes. 
1044. Q. Did you ever meet together afterwards to discuss tb& cause of the accident? A. No; we never 
met afterwards. We just came away and [fnter.upted.] 
1045. Q. And you did not discuss it in the mine? A. Well, we talked. Now and then we had bits of 
spells ; but I do not know whether there was any discussion-just looking and examining about. 
1046. Q. I take it you all went in and formed your individual opinions, and came out again? A. So far as I 
know, they did. That is all I did, anyhow. 
1047. Q. And you never put your heads together afterwards to compare notes? A. No. 
1048. Q. And you do not know their opinions? A. I do not know what their opinions may be. 
1049. Q. Did you never report to anybody what conclusion you had come to? A. No; I did not. 
1050. Q. I do not mean individually, but the body? A. No. 
1051. Q. Were you appointed to go in? A. We were appointed to go in, yes; and we simply reported that 
we had gone in. 
1052. Q. Who appointed you to go in as a body? A. I received my instructions to attend from the General 
Secretary, Mr. Ritchie. 
1053. Q. That is all you know? A. That is all I know. 
1054. Q. You were told that you were one of a party appointed to go in and investigate? A. Yes. 
1055. Q. And yet you never reported? A. No. 
1056. Q. And never compared notes ? A. No; I did not, anyhow. 
1057. Q. Then, as far as you are concerned, you never really responded to the delegation: you never 
reported what,you saw, or what opinion you formed? A. No. I never reported anything. 
1058. Q. Now, you did form an opinion, you tell us? A. Yes. 
1059. Q. But of a very vague character? A. Well, that may be. 
1060. Q. I mean the only conclusion you appear to have come to is that it originated near Aitken's working 
place? A. Yes. 
1061. Q. You do not know what goaf that is near? A. No, I do not. 
1062. Q. And, in expressing your opinion, you cannot say whether the goaf you believe it Caine from was 
this littlegoaf 17 perches in area, or the 35-acre goaf l A. No, I really could not say. 
1063. Q. And you know the distance from one to the other? A. I do not know the exact distance. 
1064. Q. Something like 10 or 15 chains apart-you cannot go any nearer than that? A. I could not say. 
1065. Q. Do you consider your opinion is of any value as to the locality? A. Well, I just put it forward - 
[Interrupted.] 
1066. Q. I mean do you put it forward as of any value? A. No; but it was the best idea I could come to 
on it. That is all. 
1067. Q. That is the best you could do? A. Yes. I do not put it forward with any great deal of confidence. 
1068. Q. You said to Mr. Wade that your reason for concluding that it originated there was that you saw 
signs of force? A. Yes. 
1069. Q. Did not you see signs of force in a great many places I A. Yes. 
1070. Q. Did not you see signs of force down No. 1 ? A. I saw it on the main road and in various places 
there were signs of force. 
1071. Q. So that the presence of signs of force is not your reason for saying that the explosion originated 
where you saw the signs of force? A. Well, yes. I think I would say that the signs of force in that 
particular place led me to believe that that was the place where it originated. 
1072. Q. You saw signs of force down here at the beginning of that 35-acre goaf? A. Yes, I saw signs 
of force all the war down here [indicating on the Plon]. 
1073. Q. You saw signs of force in many places 20 chains apart? A. Yes. 
1074. Q. Did you observe signs of force going in different directions-opposite directions? A. Yes. It 
seemed very peculiar to me that there should he signs of force perhaps here, as one may say, and then a 
comparatively calm place, and then signs of force again in different directions : only I cannot describe the 
exact positions of those froni memory. 
1075. Q. And did you see that kind of thing-evidence of opposite forces-in several places? A. Yes. I saw 
them in three or four places. 
1076. Q. Signs of opposite forces, with calm places, in some cases in between? Q. Calm places in hetweer 
1077. Q. Now, with regard to these suggestions, I only want to find out to what extent you are making 
them on experience of your owu. Did you frame these yourself? A. No, I did not. 1078. 
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1078.. Q. Did you take part in framing them? A. Yes. I was there when they were brought forward that 
was all. I was simply preseiit when the recommendation& were brought forward. 
1079. (7. That is when they were completed 1 A. Yes. 
1080. (7. But did you take part in framing them? A. No. 
1081. Q. Then the first time you knew anything about these twenty suggestions was when they were 
submitted to you? A. That is it. 
1082. Q. Were you asked to support them? A. Yes. They were placed before me. 
1083. Q. Do you profess to have enough experience to support the whole twenty, apart from your being 
asked to do so? A. Well, after I heard them read and discussed, and so on, and looked into them, I did. 
J084. Q. The whole twenty? A. Yes. 
1085. Q. Unconditionally? A. Yes, the whole twenty of them, just as you have heard me speak to-day, 
1086. Q. Now, take first of all this No. 1--do you know to what extent certificates are now required by 
Managers? A. To what extent 
1087. Q. Do you know whether certificates are or are not required by Managers now? I only want to see 
the extent of your knowledge? A. Yes. 
108$. Q. Do you know whether Managers require to be certificated now I A. Yes 
1089. (7. This recommends that that should he required 1 A. Yes. 
1090. (7. You know that it is being done, do you not? A. Yes. 
1091. (7. Do you know that under-managers require to be certificated? A. Yes. 
1092. Q. Then you are recommending that something should be done that is done? A. Yes ; but men may 
come in on service certificates. 
1093. Q. But that is not expressed here. Do you mean to say that men come in on service now without 
certificates ? you mean that, when certificates were established, men who had served a certain time were 
allowed to practise as Managers without certificates? A. Yes, without examination. I mean that they 
should pass an examination. 
1094. Q. Have you read this, " Managers, under-managers, deputies, and shot-fliers, to hold certificates of 
competency by examination, and to have had five years' practical mining experience, before being eligible 
for respective positions "1 A. Yes, they all have to hold a certificate. 
1095. (7. You are recommending this for the future? A. Yes. 
1096. Q. So that this does not really convey what you mean ? A. Well, I went in for it more on account 
of the deputy and the shot-firer, because I was not aware that they had any certificate; and I thought that 
would bring them in: and that is the reason why I approved of it. 
1097. Q. I tell you candid'y I am trying to test your knowledge and experience of the things that you 
are undertaking to indorse. Now, what is your opinion as to the qualifications that are most requisite 
in a shot-firer? I want to see to what extent your opinion is of value to the Commission 1 A. I do not 
think he would want to know anything more than to know something of gases. 
1098. 0. How do you mean to know.something of gases? A. That he would be able to test for it. 
1099. Q. That he should be able to tell the presence of gas 1 A. Yes, and whether there was a sufficient 
quantity of it to know whether the place was dangerous or not. 
1100. (7. That is practical experience, is it not? A. Yes, a sort of practical experience. 
1101. (7. Well, it is the sort of practical experience that a deputy gets? A. Yes. 
1102. (7. Where do you get this practical experience? A. The deputies' practical experience? 
1103. Q. No, the practical experience that is necessary for a. shot-firer? A. If it was practical experience, 
he would get it by doing it. 
1104. Q. In the mine? A. In the mine. 
1105. (7. What examination are you recommending the Commission to require from such a man 1 What 
sort of examination? In what? A. I would like him to show that he could recognise the danger when he 
saw it, and know what to do. 
1106. Q. What do you propose that he should be examined in? I want to see the extent to which you 
understand the propositions you support here 1 What are the subjects you propose lie should be examined 
in? A. I would examine him about the methods of discovering gas in the place. 
1107. Q. You could discover gas, could you not I A. Yes ; but there may be men put in the position of 
shot-firer that could not. 
1108. (7. You could hold up a safety-lamp? A. I suppose so. 
1109. Q. And you could hold up a hydrogen flame lamp? A. I suppose I could. 
1110. Q. You know the effect upon a hydrogen lamp of the presence of a minute proportion of gas I 
A. Yes. 
1111. (7. Do you think you are competent to fire a shot? A. Well, there may be other things. 
1112. Q. That is what I want to get at. What would you examine such a man in? A. Well, that is 
pretty well what I would do. I would see that he could recognise the presence of gas, and know what to 
do if there was a quantity there to get rid of it before lie fired the shot. 
1113. Q. Does it not boil down to this, that you would require a man to be able to hold up a hydrogen 
lamp and test the presence of an infinitesinial portion of gas? A. Yes, lie would certainly have to do that. 
1114. Q. And you would pass that yourself? A. I suppose I would. 
1115. Q. Who do you propose should examine the man in that? Do you mean men of Mr. May's stamp? 
A. I do not know Mr. May. 
1116. Q. Is that the sort of man you would leave this examination to? A. There are a Board of Examiners. 
1117. (7. At any rate this is the kind of examination you propose for a shot-firer? A. Yes. 
1118. (7. Now, do you think any Manager would appoint a man as a shot-firer who did not know how to 
hold up a hydrogen lamp 1 A. I would not think so, but lie might. 
1119. Q. Do you tell the Commission that there is a danger of the Manager of it mine appointing somebody 
in the mine as a shot-firer who did not know how to test for gas with it hydrogen lamp 1 A. It is quite 
possible for a Manager to be deceived in a man. The man might give an exaggerated account of his own 
mthihitis. He might say he could do it; and when he got there lie could not do it. 
1120. Q. With regard to these waste workings, have you compared notes N,.- itli any of the othei' people who 
are recommending these things I A. No. I have not compared notes with anybody. 
1121. Q. I understand you do not approve of sealing off the wastes? A. Not if it is practicable to ventilate 
hem. 1122. 
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1122. Q. You would leave them open so that any accumulations of gas could escape? A. So that the air 
would carry it off. 
1123. Q You think that is the best way? A. I think that would be best if it could be done. 
1124. Q. And that is the practice adopted now in most mines? A. Yes, I suppose it is. 
1125. Q. Then you have nothing new to suggest in regard to waste workings? A. Well, where it could not 
be done perhaps the best thing would be to seal it off. 
1126. Q. You have no fault to find with regard to the practice of carrying it off? A. So long as it is taken 
off I would prefer that it should be taken off instead of being made a magazine of. 
1127. Q. Well, if the mine is ventilated it will be taken off? A. Yes. 
1128. Q. Now take No. 6, "inspection in all cases with locked safety lamps" : I do not think I need examine 
you with regard to that. With regard to No. 7: how often are examinations made now? A. I could not 
tell you. 
1129. Q. You do not know? A. I do not know. - 
1130. Q. So that you have not any alterations to suggest 1 A. No. 
1131. Q. Now with regard to No. 8, do you know of your own knowledge, either by reading or observation, 
what is the consumption of air per minute by a man? A. No. I could not tell you that. 
1132. Q. Do you know whether it is 25 cubic feet? A. No. I could not say. 
1133. Q. Do you know whether it is 10 cubic feet? A. No. 
1134. Q. But you undertake to come here and recommend that more than an average of 100 cubic feet 
should be allowed per man and horse? A. Yes. 
1135. Q. Do you know how much a horse consumes a minute? A. No. 
1136. Q. Do you know whether he consumes 25 feet a minute? A. The only thing I know about that is 
that a horse must naturally consume more than a man. 
1137. Q. You do not know how much a man consumes? A. No. 
1138. Q. Do you know what 2.5 cubic feet of air means? Do you know what a cubic foot of air means 
A. Not in that respect, I do not. 
1139. Q. Do you know how you would measure a cubic foot of air? A. No. 
1140. Q. I do not mean by what apparatus, but what it would have to measure? A. No. 
1141. Q. So that you do not know anything about that, do you? A. No. I do not know anything about 
that. 
1112. Q. Now, No. 11. You have undertaken to endorse the suggestion that weekly measurements of the 
air be taken in each section. You know, do you not, that the men have permission to make what they 
call a check-inspection 1 A. Yes. 
1143. Q. And they are permitted to make that how often? A. Oh, I suppose pretty well any time they 
like. - 
1144. Q. How often do the men as a precaution for their own safety make a check-inspection of the 
ventilation? Now, I am going to test by the mcii's own judgment as to how often it is necessary, in 
order to insure their own safety? A. Oh, that is not done very often. 
1145. Q. Is not it a fact that they sometimes allow three months to elapse without a check inspection I 
A. Yes. 
1146. Q. Did you ever make a check-inspection of your own mine ? A. Oh yes, it has been done. 
1147. Q. Do you personally? A. Oh no-personally, no. 
1148. Q. Have you personally had the right to make a check-inspection of your own mine I A. Yes. 
1149. Q. Well, who initiates it: who determines when it shall be done by the men? A. The men 
themselves, if they think it is necessary, call upon the check-inspectors. 
1150. Q. If the men think it is necessary they call upon the check-inspectors ? A. That is it. 
1151. Q. And you admit that they do not think it is necessary sometimes for a whole quarter?- A. Yes. 
1152. Q. You are recommending that it should be done every week by somebody else? A. Yes. 
1153. Q. With regard to the extra supply of safety lamps, are you making that suggestion upon the 
assumption that safety-lamps are required to be used by miners throughout these mines in the future? 
A. No. I thought that they might be. Of course there is always the possibility that they might be 
called for. 
1154. Q. You suggest that there should be a safety-lamp for every miner, and one-third of the total number 
s-er; that is to say if there were 300 miners I understand you to suggest that there should be 400 safety-

lamps all in going order? A. Yes. 
11.55. Q. Is that suggestion made upon the assumption that for the future every miner will have to use a 
safety-lamp -? It makes a great deal of difference. Supposing things are left as they are, and that in 
consequence of there not being a discovery of gas within twelve months it is optional whether the miners 
use safety-lamps or not. Would you then require 400 safety-lamps to be kept all in going order in a mine 
where there are 300 miners? A. No. Looking at it from the danger point of view, if a mine had the naked 
lights in, and they were being used, and they had these 300 men [Jiite-iruptcl.] 
1156. Q. You are in the position here of making a recommendation to these three gentlemen which they may 
or may not attach great weight to and you practically say to them "if there are 300 miners working 
in any mine I recommend that 400 safety-lamps shall be bought and kept in working order." Now, do 
you mean to recommend that, whether the miners are required to work by safety-lanips or not? A. No. I 
was going to explain that. In the event of a colliery having, say, 300 men in it, if they were working 
with the naked light, then these lamps would be necessary only in case of a sudden dlisasteI' and I would 
expect 100 lamps then, equal to one-third of the men so that the lamps would be there ready for men to 
go in and render assistance if necessary. 
1157. Q. If there are 300 men in the mine, alt-bough they do not use safety-lamps when they are working, 
you recommend that 100 lamps should be kept there in-readiness? A. Yes. 
11 5& Q. Even if they are not compelled to use safety-lamps for their ordinary working? A. Even if they 
are not compelled. 
1159. Q. Now, this watering question : have you read much about watering? A. No. 
1160. Q. Do you know the extent to which it is practised at Home? A. No. 
1161. Q. Have you any ideas as to how it should be clone? A. No, I cannot even say that. I have not 
Eeen i arried into operation. 

1162, 
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1162. Q. You do not profess to know very much about it? A. Not a great deaL I recommend it just 
on the grounds that I say ; that it would lay the dust and make the air cooler. 
1163. Q. You cannot suggest the methods I A. No. I would leave that to the people who do it to discover 
themselves the best method and the most economical. 
1164. Q. now, with regard to No. 14-" Managers compelled to give more of their personal time and 
attention to management of colliery," More than what, do you mean 1 A. Well, I think that three or four 
inspections in a month [Interrupted]. 
1165. Q. You have not said that, you see; you are in South Clifton; how often does the Manager go through 
your mine I A. I think I said that, personally, I thought that I had seen him, perhaps, three or four times 
a lnonth ; perhaps, sometimes he might he in oftener; perhaps, other times not so often. 
1166. Q. Then, personally, you are satisfied with what goes on in your own mine 1 A. Yes. 
1167. Q. And you have heard that it is not so in other niines? A. Yes. 
1168. Q. Then you say he should go through how often? A. Once a week. 
1169. Q. The Manager or under-manager? A. The Manager. 
1170. Q. That is your own personal opinion I A. Yes. 
1171. Q. That is in addition to the visits of the under_manager? A. That is it. 
1172. Q. I think you told Mr. Wade you really (10 not know what would be the purpose of these 
instruments at the bottom of the shaft I A. No. I do not know anything about that. 
1173. Q. Is this once a week for every colliery; or does it depend upon the size of the colliery? A. 
Well, 1 think in a smaller colliery he might perhaps get down oftener. 
1174. Q. I am not speaking of how often he could get round, but of how often in your opinion is it 
necessary for the safety of the mine that an Inspector should go round a small mine 1 A. Oh, I think at 
least once a week in any mine. 
1175. Q. And you would have the same time for all of them, large or small I A. Oh, yes. I would leave 
it to their own judgments whether they went oftener or not, in a small mine ; but I would have them to 
go round one(,  a week at all events. 
1176. Q. With regard to No. 19, can you tell me of any cases that have come under your experience in 
which a black list has been sent from mine to mine I A. No. I never knew of it myself. 
1177. Q. You are suggesting a cure for a disease which you have never seen? A. I have never seen it. I 
have simply heard of it, though. 
1178. Q. And with regard to No. 20, can you bring before the Commission any instance in which the 
practice that you piovide against there has existed 1 A. What is that? 
1179. Q. Safety-lamps not to be unlocked for shot firing. Have you ever known a case? A. No, I cannot 
say that I have. 
1180. Q. In all your experience A. I cannot remember any particular case. 
1181. Q. Have you had any case brought under your notice? A. No. 

Re-examination by Mr. Lysaght :- 

1182. 9. Regarding this inspection on the 9th August, is it a fact that you were directed [Interrupted]. 
1183. (if". Wade objected to the form of the question. His Honor upheld the objection.) 
1184. Mr. Lysay/it.] Q. Was any direction given before you entered the mine as to the observations 
which you were to make personally? A. Any directions given 1 
1185. Q. Yes, from any person, as to any conclusions you might form I A. No. I do not remember 
anyone giving any directions. No one spoke. about such a thing. 
1186. 9. You know that by these special rules of each colliery there is a prohibition against miners leaving 
their working places I A. Yes. 
1187. 9. Do you know that it is specially prohil:itecl by the rules I A. Yes. 
1188. Air. Wade.] Q. \Vithout leave'? A. Yes. He gets permissioll of course. 
1189. Air. Lysag/it.] Q. From whom has that permission to be obtained 1 A. I should take it as from the 
Manager. 
1190. Q. Is there more than one exit from your colliery at South Clifton I A. No. There is only the one 
there that I know of. 
1191. Q. May there be some others that you do not know of 1 A. There might be. I only know the one 
way. 
1192. Q. How long have you been working there? A. Twelve or thirteen years. 
1193. Q. If the showing of the miners out was left to a miner, would it be easy or difficult to find a miner 
who would know each road in your mine? A. Oh, he would have to be a very 01(1 hand; and even then he 
might not know. 
1194. Q. And would there be any danger of his leading the men, perhaps into a dangerous part of the mine 
unconsciously? A. Oh, there is always that danger. 1-Ic might think he knew it, and might make a 
mistake. 
1195. Q. Regarding Mr. Wade's supposition that a miner hemg invited to go and see the way out and not 
turning up [Interrupted]. 
1196. Mr. Wade ] It was a question I asked. 
1197. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. A question or suggestion------in your opinion would there be any man in the district 
who would do such a thing 1 
119$. (iii. Wade objected. 1/is ilonoi' said lie (lid not think it worth while to have that evidence one 
way or the other). 
1199. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. With regard to these questions asked by Mr. Smith as to these recommendations, 
were these recommendations made at the first Delegate Board Meeting 1 
1200. (Mr. Bade objected.) 
1201. Q. When were the)- macic? A. At the last Delegate Board Meeting. 
1202. Q. 1-low ninny Delegate Board Meetings llOv(' there been since the (lominission was appointed I A. I 
ii,, ii, t think there have ls('n any. 
120:1. Q. \Vitli the eveeptimi of this one? A. I do not remeniher aiI. 
1 201. 9. What office did yuu hold at the Delegate Board Meeting 1 A. I was chairman. 
1205.   (7. Were the ies dii to me discussed at that meeting 1 A. Yes. 
1206. (7. In [tuIl A. lii dvUtil. 1707. 
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1207. Q. What is tho average size or the average distance for these cut .throughs now as a general rule 
1208. MrWade.] I suppose you mean at South Clifton? 
1209. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Well, as far as you know in any other mine, what is the average distance of these 
cut-throughs? A. I am not sure on that point. I could not say for other collieries, but I think about 35 yards. 
1210. Q. If the bratticing gets disarranged, say 30 or 40 yards from where the miner is working, has he any 
means of knowing that it is the brattice that is disarranged, and cuts off all air, unless he goes back and looks? 
A. No. There is nothing to tell him, until he goes back to see what is wrong, and then he will find out. 
1211. Q. Now, regarding the watering, if the conditions were dusty would it be sufficient, in your opinion, 
to water the floor? A. Oh, if they were exceptionally dusty they would want the roof and sides doing too. 
If they were extra dusty. 
1212. Q. Did you ever have a hydrogen flame in your hand to examine? A. No. I never had one of them 
in my hand. 
1213. Mr. Wade.] You mean a lamp, do you not? 
1214. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. A hydrogen lamp. 
1215. Q. Do you consider yourself competent for the position of a deputy? A. No. 
1216. Q. Would you consider yourself competent now to be a shot-firer? A. Well, I do not know. I would 
have to see the conditions, I suppose, that I would have to go through. 
1217. Q. I think you answered Mr. Wade that you considered you were competent to deal with the 
ordinary events cf the mine. Would you, with all your experience, consider yourself competent to deal as 
a deputy or shot-firer with the extraordinary events ? A. No. I would not like to take the responsibility. 

Examination by Mr. Robertson 

12 18. You said you would give the Inspectors absolute power to order safety-lamps? Yes. 
1219. Is that a general power applying to all mines? A. Yes. My meaning would be that, wherever the 
inspector thought it was absolutely necessary to put these lamps in, I would give him the power of saying 
whether they should or should not go in. 
1220. Q. Would not that apply to gassy mines only? A. Well, a mine might in the opinion of some be 
considered not gassy ; and the Inspector might consider it to be so. 
1221. Q. So there might be a difference of opinion? A. Yes. 
1222. Q. If there was a difference of opinion, the Inspector might be wrong? A. Certainly he might. 
1223. Q. Do you not think it would be justice to give the Manager or the owners an opportunity of proving 
that there was no gas and no necessity for safety-lamps ? A. In my opinion you have to give somebody 
the say. You cannot leave it to too many. And I think the Inspector is the likelier man of the two to 
be the judge of it. I mean you would naturally look to him from his position. 
1224. Q. But you know that, under the Act, in ease of any defects that are not provided for by the Act 
the Inspector may, if the management refuse to remedy them, take it to arbitration ? A. Yes, 
1225. Q. Are you aware that, with reference to these safety-lamps, he has no such power, it having been 
already provided for in the Act? A. I could not say. It may be so. 
1226. Q. Would it not meet the case if the Inspector had the power to refer the question of safety-lamps to 
arbitration? Would it not be fair to both parties? A. I do not know. In my opinion it is a fair thing. 
I do not think he would use it arbitrarily. I still think the Inspector should have that amount of power 
at all events. 
1227. Q. No doubt; but he is only human? A. Certainly. 
1228. Q. And he may be mistaken? A. Yes. Anyone is likely to do that-Managers too. He may make 
a mistake; but I think it all points the other way, and that he would be very careful and would not (10 
so ; and that he would not order them without some reasonable grounds that they should be introduced. 
1229. Q. May be. I quite admit that. But an absolute power such as you suggest is ahnost too much 
to place in the hands of any human being? A. I prefer to put that power in his hands to leaving it 
to two parties. That is only my view, of course. That is all. I may be wrong, of course, in my opinion 
but it is my view of it. 
1230. Q. You have asked among other things for a monthly inspection by deputies and District Inspectors 1 
A. What number is that? Would you read it? 
1231. (Mr. Lysaght read No. 7.) 
1232. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Are you aware that the tendency of legislation has been to impose the responsi- 
bility on the Manager alone? A. No. I do not know that I am. 
1233. Q. Cannot you see that the whole tenor of the Act is to throw the responsibility on the Manager? A. 
Well, I suppose if I understand it rightly the responsibility even under this would still be on him in this 
part, to see that this was done. 
1234. Q. Do not you think that under this proposal the responsibility would be divided? A. The monthly 
examination would be made by the deputies; but the Managers would still have to see that this was 
carried out, 
1235. Q. But you ask for the deputies to inspect along with the District Inspector. Do not you think 
that is a very unwise thing, and totally opposed to the whole tenor of the Coal-mines Regulations and 
legislation? A. I do not see it. 
1236. Mr. Lysaght.] I think Mr. Robertson misunderstands. It is a monthly examination by deputies, 
and a monthly examination by District Inspectors; but not at the same time. 
1237. Mr. Robertson.] It does not say so. 
1238. Mr. Lysaght.] I will state that now. It would mean that one fortnight an examination would be 
made by the deputy, and the following fortnight an examination would be made by the District Inspector. 
So that it would really be a fortnightly examination. 
1239. His honor.] It looks as if it were intended to be one inspection made once a month in the presence 
of both the deputy and the District Inspector. 
1240. Mr Robertson.] Q. What sort of an examination do you mean? The usual inspection? A. Yes, the 
usual examinations. 
1241. Q. Only with the hydrogen flame? A. Yes. 
1242. Q. Into the old workings, and so forth? A. Yes, and any part-a thorough examination-to go 
over the whole of the workings. 

1243. 
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1213. Q. Do you know how this hydrogen gas is obtained? A. No. 
1244, Q. You do not know that it is ratherdiffleult and expensive to get? A. No. 
1245. Q. You do not know how many tests can be niade? A. No I only know by hearsay about these things. 
1246. Q. And yet you recommend a fortnightly inspection, a complete inspection with the hydrogen flame? 
A. Yes. 
1247. Q. Do you know that taking an observation with the hydrogen flame is a very tedious process? 
A. Well, I suppose it would be. It may take a certain amount of time 
1248. Q. And if it takes a clay for the ordinary inspection with the ordinary lamp it would take about a 
week with the hydrogen lamp ? A. Well, I do not know. A week would seem to me to be an extraordinary 
time to take to examine. 
1249. Q. But you do not know? A. No. I am not in a position to say the exact time. 
1250. Q. Then as an example, if it took the District Inspector three days to inspect a mine that could be 
done in the ordinary way in one day ; and the District Inspectors should have to make an inspection every 
fortnight, necessarily that would involve the appointment of a large number of additional Inspectors I 
A. Oh, if that were so. I do not know whether it is so or not. But if it took the time that you say it 
would take many more Inspectors. 
1251. his honor.] It is suggested here that the District Inspector should examine once a month, and the 
deputy once a month. 
1252. Mr. Robertson.] Q. Well, once a month. You can clearly see that a large number of additional 
Inspectors would be required, even supposing it took the same time? A. Oh, I do not know that it would 
require many additional men. 
1253. Q. I will put it to you in this way : I know of one colliery where a complete inspection would take 
at least a week. Now, could the Inspectors go round the whole district and visit all the mines under three 
months ? A. Visit the whole of the mines in the district? 
1254. Q. Yes. Take the Inspectors in this district? A. Oh, yes, I think they could. 
1255. Q. In addition to their own duties, clerical work, and attending at Court, and so on ? A. Yes ; I think 
they could (10 it under that. It seems a long time. 
1256. Q. Now, as to the watering of the mine, you only ask for travelling roads and haulage-ways to be 
watered l A. That is all. 
1257. Q. Is that a sanitary matter, or a matter of comfort, or is it to prevent any danger from explosion 
extending? A. It would answer all those things you have mentioned, I think, more or less-every one of them. 
1258. Q. But, to be of any use, do you not think the watering should be thorough? A. Well, as I said 
before, if there was water in the mine, a little of it, it would be all the better all over ; but I could not 
see that it was practicable. I thought, if we had the main roads and the travelling roads watered, that 
would be sonic assistance. 
1259. Q. Supposing the main roaJs and travelLng roads were watered in a mine where there would be 
20 miles of them, that would be rather a big order, would it not? A. Yes, it would. 
1260. Q. Especially if the temperature were very high ? A. Of course, the more travelling roads there are, 
the more work there would be in doing it. 
1261. Q. And the higher the temperature the more water would be required? A. Yes. I suppose the 
more (lust the more water it would require to lay it, and so forth. 
1262. Q. And have you any idea of the effect of watering roadways in a mine with a high temperature? 
A. No. 
1263. Q. Are you aware that it is injurious to the health of the workmen? A. No, I am not aware of that. 
I never studied that part of it. I never heard of it before. 
1264. Q. Have you ever heard the name of Hall, an Inspector in the Old Country? A. No. 
1265. Q. In connection with the experiments with coal-dust? A. I do not remember the name. I have 
'eard lots of names mentioned. It is a common name too ; but I (10 not remember it. 
1266. Q. I thought every mining man knew who Mr. Hall was? A. I do not remember the name. 
t267. Q. He is the Inspector of the Liverpool and North \Vales District? A. That might account for my 
aot hearing of him, because I never took any interest in that part of the country. 
1268. Q. Are you aware that he has reported that the attempt to systematically water the mines in his 
jistrict has failed? A. No. I never heard of it. 
1269. Q. With respect to the instructions to miners as to the means of exit and so on, you would not 
mpose any penalty on a miner for refusing to follow the deputy? A. No. 

1270. Q. Would you impose any penalty on the owner if it was proved that a miner had not been shown? 
A. No. The question has never entered my head, on either side, because I thought it was such a necessary 
thing; and I thought that both parties would be only too glad to agree to it. I never thought of a 
penalty. It seemed to me a law that neither man nor Manager would try to break ; and the penalty has 
never crossed my mind on either side. 
1271. Q. in the case of a mine where there are a large number of long roadways ; supposing that you 
commenced at one end of the pit to show the men different means of exit, and supposing there are half 
a dozen roads 2 miles long, it would take some time, would it not? A. It would. But surely there is no 
place with that many. 
1272. Q. Is there not ;--there are some places with a good many more. A. Six ways out and 2 miles 
each ; it seems a big place. 
1273. Q. But in a very extensive mine it would take a long time for a miner to be instructed as to all the 
means of exit? A. Yes. Still it would be just the same trouble to show a dozen men as to show thirty or forty. 
1274. Q. As to self-closing doors, if a self-closing door was found open, or partially open, say by an 
Inspector, would not the Manager be liable to prosecution? A. I suppose he would ; whether it was a self-
closer or was not, it would be just the same in either case. 
1275. Q. Although lie provided a self-closing door, and tlmrough something-a stone, or anything you like----
it was found open, he would be liable to prosecution ? A. Yes, [ suppose he would, just the same as if 
there were 110 self-closer on it. 
1276. Q. But in time other case where there is no self-closino door, and the obligation is on the men to close 
time door, the Manager would not be responsible, would lie? A. I would leave the responsibility just the 
same, but it would work more surely. 

16825 29-P 1277. 
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1277. Q. But if, through some cause over which the Manager had no control, such as a workman kicking 
a piece of slack or a piece of wood against the door, it was kepb open, do you not think it would be rather 
hard that the Manager should he responsible? A. I do not think so. 
1278. Q. He having used all the means at his disposal, having complied with the Act? A. He does that 
under the present conditions, and that is a help to the management, I consider, and makes the door more 
sure to close, 
1279. (The Commission then adjourned until 2 p.m.) 

AFTERNOON. 

(On resuming after lunch Mr. W. R. Pratt attended to take shorthand notes of the evidence and proceedings.) 
Mr. JAMES MAGUIRE, previously sworn, was further examined as under :—

Examination by Mr. Robertson 
1282. Q. You want to abolish furnaces, and to have fans used instead? A. Yes, I think it is better. 
1283. Q. If a company has gone to considerable expenditure to put tip a furnace, would it not be a hardship 
to call upon them to erect a fan? A. Well, I suppose all this means expense ; but I am looking at it from 
the point of view of which is best. I did not study expense. 
1284. Q. In the case of a small colliery employing ten men, it would be rather a serious matter for proprietors 
to erect a fan ? A. Yes, that would be a very unusual circumstance. 
125. Q. You know there are lots of little collieries? A. Ten men would be a very small affair. 
1286. Q. Say twenty men? A. Twenty men would be a small number too. It would be much more 
serious if a large number of men were employed. 
127. Q. Would it not be sufficient to meet the case, if an Inspector thought it necessary that a fan should 
be erected, to give notice to the company, and if the company objected to have the matter referred to 
arbitration ? A. I would not mind doing the s ime with fans as with the lamps, giving any Inspector full 
power. I think the power should be placed in the Inspector's hands, and I think the fan is preferable. 
1288. Q. But I am afraid that the Inspector would have no alternative but to go for the fan, or for the 
lamps he would not accept the responsibility of not ordering them? A. If he thought it was best and 
safest he would probably order them. 

Examined by Mr. Ritchie : 

1289. Q. Do you know of any colliery -,vhich has recently introduced safety-lamps, where any part of the 
mine is worked by safety-lamps, and the other parts by flare_lights, and where the men themselves requested 
the management to use safety-lamps throughout ? A. Yes. At the South Clifton Mine. 
1290. Q. Did the management comply with the request of the men? A. No. 
1291. Q. Although they regarded the lamps as being necessary ? A. The lamps were introduced into one 
part of the mine, and the men thought it would be better to use them all over the mine. They asked the 
Manager, but he did not do it. He kept time lamps on one side uiitil he took them out altogether for 
a time. 
1292. Q. Have they been out ever since? A. They have been put in again, but have been put over all the 
mine now, with the exception of one of the main drives, where they have the naked lights. The wheelers 
and the shift-men have the lamps. 
1293. Q. With regard to safety-lamps Do you consider that if an Inspector had had the power to order 
them he would have done so? A. I think that he would. I think that if he bad had power to order the 
lamps they would have put them in sooner. 
1294. Q. Under the present law, if an Inspector were to order them to be put in a mine, the Manager could 
refuse to put them in? A. Yes. 
1295. Q. As to the monthly examination. Do you consider that monthly examinations with a hydrogen flame 
are necessary from a safety point of view? A. 1 think that more frequent examinations would tend to safety. 
1296. Q. Do you consider that the method of testing for gas now is sufhcient? A. I think that we ought 
to keep up to date. Any improvements that there are ought to be brought in. 
1297. Q. With regard to the recommendation that waste workings should be examined by the hydrogen 
flame. Do you agree with that ? A. Yes. 
1298. Q. You think that it would Imnimise the danger of gas causing an explosion? A. I think it is 
desirable that waste workings should be examined as far as they can be. 
1299. Q. Is that the reason you advocate ventilation by fan? A. I think the fans are an improvement 
1300. Q. You do not regard them as giving absolute security, but the intention is to minimise the 
danger in a practical way ? A. Of the two systems I prefer ventilation by fan. I think it is the safest 
and the best. 
1301. Q. As to the inspection on the 9th of August, which you speak of. Do you recollect any dlircctiOns 
being given by any person as to the expression of opinion 1 A. The understanding was /nieri'upted.] 
1302. Q. Was there any understanding ? A. Yes ; the uiiderstaiiding amongst ourselves Was that we were 
to keep our own counsel each one was to form his opinion, but not to speak about it to anyone. It was 
intended to have a meeting later on to discuss it. We did not have a meeting ; and I for one have held 
my tongue about what I have seen. 
1303. Q. According to the understanding arrived at? A. Yes. 
1304. Q. Did you take any notes? A. No, I took no notes at all. 
1305. Q. Did anyone take notes? A. I think I saw Mr. May taking notes. I relied upon you yourself 
taking notes. I thought you would be there to take them, and that that would be sufficient. 

Further cross-examination by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 

1306. Q. You told Mr. Ritchie just now of a case in which one-half of a mine was worked by s4fety-1amps, 
and where the men requested that tile other h.alf should h worked m the same way. Was that before the 
decision of the Arbitration Court that no extra money should be allowed to the men for working by safety-
lamps?, I. Oh, vcs:it as before that. 
1d07. Q. And at that time the mcii were asking for I?,d. extra for n-orking winere th lamps were use 1 
A. Yes, they were asking. for that. 1308 
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Mr. EDWARD O'SULLIVAN was sworn and examined as under : 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght 
I .308. Q. What is your name 1 A. Edward O'Sullivan. 
1309. Q. Where do your reside? A. At Sydney. 
1310. Q. During the two years 1900-1 were you working in the Kembla Colliery? A. Yes. 
1311. Q. For how long? A. Five anda half years altogether. 
1312. Q. How long were you getting coal ? A. For two years. 
1313. Q. Do you remember working with anyone in 1900-1 1 A. Yes ; with George Ramsay. 
1314. Q. Where were you working with Ramsay I A. At the 4th Left in No. 1. 
1315. Q. Can you fix the quarter of the year that you were at work? A. November or December, I think, 
1900. 
1316. Q. Do you remember anything taking place when you were working with Ramsay ? A. I remember 
the place being bad ; and there was a little gas there one day-when we wen.t in, about 11 o'clock. 
1317. Q. Will you tell us what happened concerning the gas? A. We were cutting the bottom out of the coal; 
we cut about 19 inches. Ramsay was looking at the face, and put his light up to it; and the gas took light. 
1318. Q. How far dii the gas burn ? A. About 3 yards ; that is the nearest I can say to it. 
1319. His Honor.] Q. Did it flash out? A. He had his lamp in his hand ; and the gas burned. 
1320. Q.-  Did it flash out? A. It flashed out, but only lasted for a few seconds. 
1321. Mi. Lysaqht.] Q. Was it a naked light that was used ? A. Yes. 
1322. Q. How long did it burn? A. Five or six seconds. 
1323. Q. Was anything done by you or Ramsay? A. Ramsay reported it to Ni'. Nelson. 
1324. Mr. JVade.] Q. Were you there? A. Yes. 
1325. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. What did Mr. Nelson do? A. Mr. Nelson put the brattice closer up to the face 
of the mine. 
1326. Q. Was anything else done then? A. We were sent into a cut-through about a week afterwards. 
1327. Q. Now, at the time the gas lit, what was the condition of the bratticing ? A. The bratticing was 
4 or 5 yards from the face, at the most. 
1328. Q. Were you ever a wheeler in Kembla? A. Yes ; I was a wheeler for three years. 
1329. Q. Did you observe anything? A. I have seen men after firing a shot put up a light to the face; 
and I have seen it burn for a few seconds. 
1330. Q. Can you fix the place where you were wheeling ? A. It was in a place in No. 5. 
1331. Air. Robertson.] Q. When were you wheeling? A. I cannot say the (late. 
1332. Q. Was it before that? A. Yes. 
1333. his honor.] Q. Up to the time that you started mining were you wheeling? A. Yes. 
1334. Q. What did you say just now? A. I said that after men had flied I have seen them put a light up 
to the coal, and it has taken light and has burnt for a few seconds. 
1335. Air. I3raca SinWi.] Q. Do you mean the new face ? A. Yes. After the shot had been fired. 
1336. Q. Where was it ? A. In the shaft district and in No. 5 drive. 
1337. Mr. tysii,ht.] Q. Would it last long? A. It would be four or five seconds, or perhaps six. You 
would just see it ; that is all. 
1338. Q. How often altogether have you seen that happen? A. Only two or three times. 
1339. Q. Did any of the men in your presence ever mike a report of any such thin(,  to any official? A. 
Ramssy is the only nnn who ever made a report, to my knowledge. 

Cross-examined by Mr. \Vade :- 
13 10. Q. Whit are you doing n )W ? A. I hive been working at pulling (Iowa halding.s unler Mr. Foley. 
1311. Q. Ae you any relation to the great O'Sullivan ? A. Yes: I  am nephew. 
1342. Q. When did you leave Mount l(emhla 1 A. Nine months ago. 
13 13. Q. Where were you last August or Sepeeruber? A. I think I was in Sydney. 
13 11. Q. Do you know how you 'ierc working the coil at the time you mention ? A. We were pulling it 
down with a pick. 
1315. Q. Were you shooting it? A. No, not at all; we had done little shooting in that quarter at all. We 
used to put a shot in the left-hand corner to break it up. We might fire one or two shots altogether. 
1346. Q. You say you had been taking down some coal, and that Ramsay was looking along the face of it? 
A. .Just after the coal had fallen down he was looking along the face of it to see what kind of coal had fallen. 
The gas flashed out ; and there was a light. 
1347. Q. You say it flashed out for about 3 yards ? A. Yes. 
1318. Q. Might you not be mistaken about that ? A. I do not think so. 
1349. Q. Might it not be 3 feet? A. No. 
1350. Q. Then it would not be correct to say it was 3 feet only? A. No. 
1351. Q. Whereabouts was this? A. In the 40 Left. 
1352. Q Whereabouts? A. In about the middle of the loord. It was an S-yard bord. 
1353. Q. Did you report anything else to Mr. Nelson except that? A. Yes. We had been working at 
the place about a month, and had been complaining all the time. 
1354. Q. Did you complain to Mr. Leitch, the under-manager? A. Yes about a couple of times. 
1355. Q. Who is supposed to be the man to attend to the brattice on the face? A. I think it is the deputy. 
1356. Q. Did not you know what your duty was ? A. To report to the deputy. 
1357. Q. Did you report about the brattice ? A. I thought it was high enough. 
1358. Q. Is that 5 yards from the face rather a long distance? A. I do.not know that. 
1359. Q. You know that you ought to move it if there was a small cluantity of gas? A. I cannot say that. 
1360. Q. Do you know that the idea is to keep the brattice up to the face and let it carry off any gas that 
may come off? A. Yes. 
1361. Q. About the men going up to the face after firing a shot;-do they go up directly after the shot 
has cleared off? A. Yes, shortly after the shot has been flred. 
1362. Q. The first thing is that they put a light to the face? A. Yes. 
1363. Q. At that time there would be an entirely new face? A. The broken coal would be there after 
the shot. 1364. 
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1364. Q. Did you notice where the light was held ;-was it near the hole itself? A. It would be hard to 
tell where the hole would be after the coal was fired. 
1365. Q. Who were the men? A. It was a long time ago; and I cannot remember them. I saw them 
do it; that was all. 
1366. Q. What parts were they working in? A. No. 1 and No. 5. 
1367. Q. What part of No. 1? A. The 4th Left. 
1368. Q. Can you tell me what time of the day it was that the gas lit when you were with Ramsay? 
A. About 11 o'clock. 
1369. Q. How long were you working in that place altogether with Ramsayl A. I think two months and 
a half. I think I left before the quarter was out. 
1370. Q. That was the only time you saw the gas? A. Yes. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith :- 
1371. Q. How long after this display of gas did you report to Mr. Nelson, and also to Mr. Leitch? A. It 
was about a bad roof that we reported to Leitch; that was before we saw the gas. 
1372. Q. Did you ever report about the gas to anyone else besides Mr. Nelson ? A. Only to Mr. Nelson, 
the Deputy. 

Mr. MICHAEL QUINN was sworn and examined as under: 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght :- 
1373. Q. What is your name? A. Michael Quinn. 
1374. Q. What are you? A. A miner at Mount Kembla Colliery. 
1375. Q. For how long? A. About fourteen years. I have not been all the time there; but it is about 
that time since I went there first. 
1376. Q. Have you been getting coal all that time? A. Yes. 
1377. Q. Before you came to Kembla did you have experience in any other parts of the world? A. Yes, 
in England, and also in New Zealand. 
1378. Q. 'What experience have you had? A. I was at Maudesley, in England, in the county of Durham, 
where I was with the shift overman for a good while, about two years ; he looks after the return air. 
1379. Q. How long where you in New Zealand, and where? A. I was at Cammell; and I was also in 
Victoria for twelve months. I was at Newcastle for about two years, and at New Lambton; and also at 
Lithgow. 
1380. Q. What has been your total experience as a miner? A. About twenty-five years. 
1381. Q. Now, in any of the Collieries you have worked in, in the country, were these Collieries known to 
give off gas? A. Yes. 
1382. Q. Have you had any experience with regard to gas in Collieries, by working in them? A. At 
Maudesley it was an important job I had. I was only a youth at the time, but the person I was with was 
looking after the airways. He is termed a shift overman. I went with him for company. 
1383. Q. How many year's experience have you had working in Collieries where there was gas? A. Twelve 
months in New Zealand, all the time I have been at Kembla, and in the Old Country. 
1384. Q. Were you working at Kembla at the time of the disaster? A. Yes; I was ivoi'kiiig in the 2nd 
Right. 
1385. Q. Can you give the number of the bord or the pillar? A. It was a heading. 
1386. Q. Can you point out on the plan where it was-was it near the telephone cabin ? A. It was near 
the north daylight heading. 
1387. Q. Did you notice anything on the day of the disaster? A. No ; not before the disaster. 
1388. Q. When did you first know of the disaster? A. I was at the working place, and my mate was just 
going to go home when a boy came up and told me that the pit had knocked off. I thought he was jesting 
at the time. I thought they were waiting for skips. I said, "You are only having a bit of fun." He 
said, "Look how white I ani." I went into the back heading and met some men going out. We did not 
know what had happened at the time. Nobody could give you any information, or say what was the 
matter. Presently a man came along and said that the heat was terrible about the main tunnel, and that 
he could not get through. I said that they must have struck a blower in the heading. 
1389. Q. Did you afterwards go into the mine? A. Yes. I went to the store to try and get a safety-lamp. 
1390. Q. What was the condition of the lamps A. I had a terrible job to fix one up. 
1391. His honor.] Q. I suppose you came out at the daylight heading, and went round? A. Yes; I went 
round outside. 
1392. Mr. Lysagltt.] Q. What about the wicks for the lamps? A. I asked a boy, and he said there were 
some a few months ago. 
1393. Q. Were the lamps fit for use? A. No; they were not. 
1394. Q. If there had been lamps ready for use would it have made any difference as to the saving of life? 
A. I think so. 
1395. Q. What difference l A. In my opinion we were stopped from going in to save life; and it was very 
late when the main body of men got in with stretchers. If we could have got in at first I think that 
many men would have been saved. 
1396. Q. Did you afterwards make any inspection of the mine? A. No. 
1397. Q. From anything you observed before, and during the whole of your working there, or from any 
thing you know of, have you formed any conclusion as to the cause of the disaster? A. I told some of the 
party that I went in with that I thought it came from No. 1. That was the party with whom MacCabe 
perished. 
1398. Q. What is your opinion as to the disaster? A. In my opinion it happened either in the main 
tunnel, or froin there to Aitken's place. 
1399. Q. What happened? A. An explosion of gas which caught light in one of those places. 
1400. His honor.] Q. Do you mean No. 1, or the main tunnel? A. No. 1. 
1401. Mr. Lysag/tt.] Q. What do you mean by places? A. In places from the main tunnel and on to 
Aitken's place. ' 1402. 
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1402. Q. Do you think there was one explosion, or more? A. 1 think that the gas was near the roof, and 
that it caught light by contact with a naked light, and that it kept floundering about in the places and 
then came back to the main heading. 
1 403. Q. Can you support that theory with any other facts ? A. One of the men who had been working 
night-work at Mt. Kembla [Intc'i'e j ter/.] 
1104. Mr. JVacle.] T oh;ect to this evidence. 
1403. his honor.] 1 think it is going too far. 
1406. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. Leaving the explosion for a moment, have you on any occasion in Kembla known 
of the presence of gas? A. Yes. 
1407. Mv. Bruce Smith.] He gave a good deal of evidence on this matter at the inquest. 
1408. His honor.] That is already before us as evidence. 
1409. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Have you read the evidence of Mr. Atkinson as to his theory, and as to the force 
observed after the disaster? A. Yes, I saw some of his opinions. 
1410. Q. As a practical miner can you give any opinion from your own observations in the past? A. It is 
hard to form a hard and fast line as to which direction gas will come and go. I have seen it before to-day 
come out twice from the face, and go back a third time to the face. I have seen it strike the face and 
come out again. What occurred at one time with gas might not occur at another time. 
1411. Q. Have you observed anything in Mount Kembla? A. I was working in the 5th Left; there was 
gas lit on the back heading. I was working in front. A man was driving the heading at the time and 
the gas came up to where he was sitting. It went to the face, came back, struck a prop and went out. 
That man got his heard singed at the time. 
1412. Q. Who was he? A. It was Robinson. 
1413. Q. When was that? A. Eleven years ago. 
1414. Q. Was that subsequent to the erection of the furnace? A. The furnace was up then, it was 
subsequent to the erection of the furnace. 
1415. Q. I think you have already given evidence of gas having lit and having been reported to Mr. 
Rogers, can you tell me how many times you have macic reports to officials of the presence of gas in the 
mine? A. I made them only to deputies. 
1416. Q. Deputies are officials? A. Yes. 
1417. Q. How many times have you reported to deputies? A. Twice. 
1418. Q. Who were the deputies? A. I gave evidence of that before. 
1419. Q. Is there anything else you desire to say about the presence of gas in the Kembla mine? A. No. 
1420. Q. You occupy some office in the Mount Kembla Lodge? A. Yes. I am President. 
1421. Q.Now, what do you say as to these recomniedations. 1. That Managers, deputies, and shot-
firers should hold certificates of competency? A. I think it is proper that they should hold certificates. 
They have the lives of the miners in their hands ; and it is nothing but right that they should know these 
things. They ought to know all about gases. 
1422. Q. What do you mean? A. They should know what gases would cause an explosion, and all about 
the air in the place, and they should have a practical and a theoretical knowledge as well. 
1423. Q. Can you say whether there are any persons at Kembla who, in your opinion, are not competent 
to be officials? 
1424. Mr. Wade.] Is this material ? It is all very well if the witness was an expert; and the issue is not 
before the Commission as to time competency of certain men. We have no concern with that now ; and 
we are not concerned to know whether there are men in the mine who are competent or incompetent. It 
means that if this witness can give evidence as to whether Brown or Jones was competent or incompetent 
we should have to call a dozen witnesses to prove all about the officials' antecedents. 
1425. Mr. Lysag/it.] Where the deputies and shot-firers do not undergo an exannnation, men may 
be employed who are incompetent, danger might be avoided if these men had a theoretical knowledge. 
1426. His honor.] I think it is hardly right to go into the particular ability of particular men in a mine. 
I think you might ask whether in the witness' experience generally he has observed anything as to the 
general competence of time men who have this particular work to do. 
1427. Mr. Lysag/tt.] Q. Can you give any evidence of particular facts to show that these men are 
incompetent-say things that have been done in Mount Kembla. A. I have been asked by special request 
by some of the miners to bring this case before the Commission. We do not want to force any hardship 
on the Company or upon the men employed ; we think that these men ought to be qualified; and the 
Company could get plenty of men from Helensburgh to do the work, if necessary. 
1428. His Honor.] Q. Then you firmly believe in time expression of opinion involved in this particular 
recommendation? A. That is so. 
1429. Mr Lysaght.j Q. Can you give any incidents relating to things which happened before the disaster 
showing that persons who had not passed any examinations were incompetent. A. I am of opinion, so 
far as I am concerned, that no man should hold such positions as these. 
1430. Mr. Wade.] This is a very vague question. 
1431. his Honey.] It is vague but I think it is admissible. 
1432. Mr. Wade.] If an inquiry like this is opened up, it will mean that we shall have to bring witnesses 
here to answer these assertions. 
1433. His honor.] I do not think it is right to give evidence as to the competency of any particular man; 
it is general evidence that is wanted., 
1434. Mr. Lyaag/ct.] I will now ask that the next recommendation be considercd. It is, that Inspectors 
ought to be vested with absolute powers to order the use of safety-lamps. Q. Is that a proper and wise 
provision ? A. That recommendation ought to be passed. We should leave the decision with then]. 
1435. Q. Do you think that ventilation by furnace should be prohibited, and fans substituted? A. I think 
that is most important-the most important thing of the lot. 
1436. Q. Why? A. Until we have first-class ventilation we shall always be liable to accidents. The 
Only hope to save our lives is by good ventilation. 
1437. Q. Does any danger arise from the furnace ? A. If an explosion strikes a furnace, I suppose it 
would be all over with all of us. 
1438. Q. Why? A. If the explosion had occurred at the shaft instead of No. 1, it is likely that there 
would have been nobody here to-day to trouble you. 1439. 
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1439. Q. Why would that have been so? A. It would have stopped the ventilation. 
1440. Q. You mean in other parts of the mine? A. Yes. 
1441. Q. What do you say about waste workings being absolutely sealed off and being surrounded by 
return airways ? A. I think that is a reasonable request as far as my opinion is concerned. 
1442. Q. It is recommended that all places, except prospecting drives, should have cut-throughs not more 
than 30 yards apart? A. I think that is desirable. 
1443. Q. What about any details? A. Because the canvas very often gets knocked down by the wheelers, 
who are very careless; and this may cause gas to accumulate in various places. 
1444. Q. Would there be any additional protection afforded by cut-throughs? A. You would not want so 
much canvas. The canvas can never be tacked close to the roof. There is always room for the air to come. 
1445. Q. In the majority of the collieries which you have worked in, what has been the average distance of 
the cut-throughs from each other? A. Well, they differ. Thirty-five yards is the limit in England. I 
think they differ very much in this country. 
1446. Q. What about Newcastle? A. At Newcastle they were about 35 yards apart. 
1447. Q. What is the average distance in Kembla? A. They have a lot of difference. In some places they 
were 30 or 40 yards, and in some places 25 yards; and then they were hardly ever across through to the 
working places. There was one pillar left untouched. 
1448. Q. By having cut-throughs every 30 yards, would there be any greater danger of the roof falling? 
A. I do not think there would. 
1449. Q. That is your opinion as a practical man ? A. Yes. 
1450. Q. What about inspection with a locked safety-lamp in all cases? A. The inspection should be with 
a locked safety-lamp always-that is the morning inspection. 
1451. Q. What about the inspection each month with a hydrogen flame? A. I support that recommendation. 
The matter ought to be decided by scientific men who understand the nature of these gases. They ought 
to know what percentage of gas there is in the mine. We have no knowledge of it by simply working in 
the mine. Until there is some hard and fast rule laid down in the matter, and carried out, we shall always 
have danger. 
1452. Q. It is recommended that a minimum of 500 cubic feet of air should be provided for every horse, 
instead of 100 feet as at present. A. Well, the more air the better. 
1453. Q. Well, in your opinion, is 100 feet of air sufficient for a horse? A. Well, as 100 feet is only 
sufficient for a man, it would not be sufficient for a horse. 
1454. Q. What has been the general rule as to the condition of air in Mount Kembla? A. It differs very 
much. At times you get first-class air in parts, and at times unbearable air in other parts. 
1455. Q. Within the last two years have you had any unbearable air? A. Yes, in one particular place. I 
stated this in my  evidence before. It is in the 4th Righ t. 
1456. Q. In any other place? A. Not to that extent. I had to draw the deputy's attention to it. It was 
so hot. 
1457. Q. Another recommendation is that all doors shall be erected so as to close and remain closed of 
their own motion? A. Yes, think that is needful in a mine. 
1458. Q. Do you think it would take away any obligation on the part of any person to shut a door? Or is 
this recommendation to be regarded as being an extra precaution? A. No; any person who opens a door 
should shut it, or if they discover it open they should shut it. 
1459. Q. Do you think double doors on drives, between main intake and return, and main headings, are 
necessary? A. I think so, because if a skip is coming through one door then the other door is shut. 
1460. Q. When the skip comes through, does the air escape? A. Yes. 
1461. Q. How long does a skip occupy to get through? A. Well, an accident might occur and it might 
take fire minutes or more. A truck might get off the road. 
1462. Q. What about weekly measurements of the air in each section? A. I think the present method of 
measurement is a farce. It is measured at the tunnel mouth ; and the air can go where it likes afterwards. 
That is of no benefit to us. It should be measured at different places. You can measure the air at the 
tunnel mouth after that. 
1463. Q. Is the measurement of the air at the tunnel mouth any indication as to the amount of air 
circulating in other parts of the mine? A. No, not under present conditions. 
1464. Q. Would the recommendation for the weekly measurements of air entail any special expense ? A. 
It would be a farce to measure the air in Mount Kembla unless they had proper stoppings put up. They 
will h.are to get stoppings put up to get the air carried round to the faces. 
1465 Q. Wherabouts? A. In the cut-throughs. 
1466. Q. What about the cut-throughs now? A. The stoppings now are return airways; they must alter 
that. 
1467. Q. Is that a dangerous condition? A. Yes. 
1468. Q. You mean places that should be stoppings? A. Yes, they were intended for stoppings; but they 
leak. 
1469. Aft. Bruce SinitiL.] Q. They leak; and the air gets through on the top? A. Yes. 
1470. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. Were they bricked off? A. They were filled up with slack and stone; and after a 
time they fell down at the top. 
1471. Q. How many of them are there? A. There was one that I was working by the side of last quarter, 
it was supposed to be a stopping ; but it turned out to be a return airway. 
1472. Q. How many more are there? A. That is the only one that I took notice of; and I took particular 
notice of that. I give you my opinion here that this ought to be remedied for our sake alone. It is not a 
great expense, I think ; and it is necessary for the protection of the miners and of property. 
1473. Q. What about the extra supply of safety-lamps and requisites equal to one-third of the nunther of 
persons employed below ground, to be kept in good order and ready for use? A. I think that is necessary. 
1474. Q. And then it is recommended that travelling and haulage roads and other places necessary should 
be properly watered? A. If the Inspectors say that there is danger of dust causing an explosion, then it 
is necessary. If not, it is no good. 
1475. Q. In whose discretion should the watering be? A. The Inspector should be the man to have the 
authority. 

14746, 
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1476. Q. It is recommended that Managers should be compelled to give more time and attention to the 
management of a colliery ? A. I think that is a most unportant question. 
1477. Q. What has been your experience at Mount Kembla -has Mr. Rogers given care and attention? 
A. When he was under-manager he was careful in going round ; but after he was made full Manager he (lid 
not go round so often. 
1478. Q. How often does he attend to the internal work. A. I can give you no information at all. 
1479. Q. Did he attend sufficiently to know what was going on in the colliery I 
1480. [AIr. Wade objected to this question ; and it was not pressed.] 
1481. Q. Now, with regard to the instruments which it is suggested should be placed at the bottom of the 
upcast to record the variations of heat and air pressure l A. That is what they have in England. 
1482. Q. What is the object? A. I suppose itis to tell the changes of heat in a mine. 
1483. Q. Would that he necessary if the furnace were abolished ? A. I think so. 
1484. Q. Now, with regard to the recommendation that the size of the manholes should be enlarged. They 
are now about 4 feet deep by 6 feet high? A. That is not so important to us as the air. 
1485. Q. Would it be an extra precaution for safety? A. Not a great lot. 
1486. Q. It is proposed to ask for the cancellation of the certificate of William Rogers, the Manager I 
1487. Mr. Wade.] I be,, to call your honor's attention to this point. 
1488. (His hone? said that he held that the Commission had nothing to do with the cancellation of 
certificates, and it would only be for the Commission to find out what Mr. Rogers' conduct in relation to 
the accident had been ; but it was not intended that the Commission should deal with the question of the 
suspension of the certificate, and he thought that this point ought to be omitted from the list of suggestions.) 
1489. Mr. Lysaght.] I would like to be quite clear. You rule that I am not to bring forward any 
evidence to show that Mr. Rogers was an incompetent Manager. 
1490. his Honor.] You can bring any evidence to show that his incompetency may have led up to the 
accident. 
1491. Mr. Lysaght.] Then I must confine the evidence to the disaster. 
1492. his hio'imor.] That is certainly the prcper thing to do, 
1493. Mr. Lysay/tt.] Q. Are there any facts in your mind which in your opinion contributed to the disaster 
to which blame was attachable to Mr. Rogers ? 
1494. Mr. JVade.] I object to that. 
1495. his Honor .] The question is rather complicated. 
1496. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Do you know of any matter, or anything which Mr. Rogers could have avoided, 
which probably contributed to the accident -[interrupted. I 
1197. AIr. Wade.] The witness has not given the cause of the accident beyond saying that there was an 
explosion of gas because of contact with a naked light. 
1498. his Honor.] The witness can form a theory the same as anyone else. He may be asked, "Do you 
in any way connect Mr. Rogers with the happening of what you believe to be the cause of the accident"? 
The witness is supposed to be an expert. 
1499. Mr. Wade.] I say that he is not an expert. 
1500. hhi honor.] If he can say how Mr. Rogers contributed t the accident, he may say what he thinks. 
1501. Mr. Bruce Smith.] I think it is for the Court to decide whether a man who comes here is an expert. 
1502. his honor.] In a sense, a miner coming from a mine where he has been working all his life must 
be treated as an expert. 
1503. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Would he be an expert in judging of the qualifications of a Manager. 
1504. his Honor.] It is only a question of degree. The further you stretch the matter the weaker it 
becomes to some extent. 
1505. Mr. Lysagh.] If Mr. Rogers noticed the presence of gas on this occasion, it would be his duty not 
to allow men to work with naked lights at all. 
1506. His Honor.] If that is your hidden meaning, you can put it more plsimily to the witness. I will 
allow the question to be put in a general way. 
1507. Mr. Lysagltt.] Q. Were there any facts known to Mr. Rogers which, had he taken proper steps, 
would have affected the disaster? A. If my opinion is going to do no good_if my opinion is worth 
nothing -[Interrupted.] 
1508. his Honor.] I did not say that your opinion was not -worth anything. 
1509. JVitness.] And if my answer would endanger my position, and very probably my bread and 
butter, and if it is no benefit at all, I think I had better keep it to myself. 
1510. Mr. Wade.] If that is the ground, I hope the witness will answer. 
1511. Mr. Lysag/mt.] I take it that your Honor rules that this is not the place to inquire into the cancelling 
of a certificate or into the question of general competency. 
1512. his Honor.] Only so far as it afihcts the accident itself. 
1513. Air. Lysaght.] Then I will go on to deal with the suggestion that instructions should be given to 
employees regularly on the means of escape. Q. Will you answer that question? A. I think it is a reasonable 
request. It is not expensive; and if an accident happened the men would know the roads how to get out. 
1514. 9. How many exits are there from the Kembla Mine I A. Four that I know of. 
1515. 9. How long have you known of them? A. For some years. 
1516. 9. When would you propose to have the instructions given to the employees, and by whom? A. By 
the deputy, when they are leaving work ; so that it would not be any loss to the company, and it would 
be a benefit to the men. 
1517. Q. I see there is a recommendation forbidding any black-list to be kept? A. That is very good; but 
how are you going to get at it? 
1518. Q. Can you give any instance where persons have been prevented from getting employment, or where 
an attenipt has been made to prevent then? ? it. Yes but it was not successful. 
1511). Q. It was tried ? A. Yes. 
1520. 9. With whiemm 1 A. With m'. 
1521. Q. Whemi ? A. I)iiming th strike at Mmunt Kmiiihla I went to $outh Kemimbla, and 1 was informed 
that a mmote caine to Mi. Pringle from the management at Mount Kembla ; but they did not take any 
fl it ice mm! it. 
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1522, Q. What were the contents of the note A. That I had taken an active part in trying to get the 

men out of the mine. 
1523. Q. What was the request? A. He did not tell me the request. 
1524. Q. Do you know any other case where efforts have been made to stop persons getting employment, 
or where persons have been afterwards dismissed? 
1525. Mr. JJ'ade.] Produce the persons; and then we can see into the matter. We cannot dt al with 
hearsay evidence. 
1526. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Do you know Ramsay? A. Yes. 
1527. Q. Were you present when be was discharged? Do you know that Ramsay was present at the 
inquest? A. Yes; and I asked a man who knew a lot about the case, and be told me something. 
1528. His honor.] We might have the man here. 
1529. Mr. Lysaght.] This particular man is afraid to give evidence, for fear of being dismissed. 
1530. His Honor.] It is not necessary to go into particular cases. 
1531. Mr. Lysaght.] I think you will appreciate the difficulty of bringing evidence of this kind before the 
Commission. The men are afraid to report gas in the mine. 
1532. Mr. Wade.] Call the men themselves on this point. 
1533. Mr. Lysaght.] If the employees could feel a sense of security, a good deal of evidence would be 
available to this Commission. 
1534. Mr. Wade.J Give the names and they will be subpcenaed. 
1535. His honor.] The law cannot be altered at once for the protection of these men: but a recommendation 
may be made to protect men in the future. 
1536. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Have they not got the protection laid down by the Arbitration Court-" The 
last to come the first to go 
1537. Mr. Wade.] If dismissed, the Arbitration Court would reinstate them. 
1538. Mr. Lysaght.] It may be that they are discharged without giving any reasons. 
1539. his honor.] It seems to me that the furthest you can go is this: You may ask a witness whether he 
knows of his own knowledge of the existence of men whcse history makes it clear to his mind that they 
have some valuable information to give, and yet refuse to give it apparently from fear of consequences. I 
think you can put that generally. Then it is a question for the other side to cross-examine on that or leave 
the matter alone. 
1540. AIr. Lysaght.] Q. Do you know of any persons who, by reason of their past employment in the mine, 
and many other causes, you believe could give material evidence before the Commission, but yet are afraid 
to do so, because of the fear of consequences? A. I do not know of what value their evidence may be. 

1541. Q. Do you think it would assist the Commission? A. I cannot form any opinion on that. 

1542. Q. Have you heard that they could give evidence? A. Only what I have told you. 

1543. Mr. Lysaght.] You told me, but you have not told the Court. 
1544. His honor.] Q. Do you know that men are holding back from giving evidence, because of the 
fear of consequences -dismissal or something analogous to it? A. I will give you the words of the man -- 

[interrupted.] 
1545. Q. I only wanted you to say whether you do or do not? A. I know one man who would not give a 

decided answer about his evidences  because, he told me, it might injure him hereafter. I do not know 

what his evidence was. 
1546. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. Was that statement made recently? A. Yes, about a week ago. 

1547. His honor.] A man may be timid, or have an idea in his mind not founded upon a solid 

foundation. 
1548. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. There is a recommendation that lamps should not be unlocked for shot-firing? 

A. Some of the miners are very alarmed at Mount Kembla about that. I am myself. 
1549. Q. Is it the practice at Mount Kembla now to fire shots in this manner [fnterrapted.] 

1550. Hishonor,] It is permitted by the Act. 
1551. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. It is permitted under the Act: but we say it is not satisfactory? A. No; I think 

it is a very dangerous practice. 
Cross-examination by Mr. Wade 

1552. Q. Why do you think it is dangerous? Is it on account of the gas? A. Yes. 

1553. Q. Do you fear that the gas may tome in contact with the naked light? A. Yes; and cause an 

explosion. 
1554. Q. You can never tell when an explosion may take place? A. No. 
1555. Q. Is there always a risk in putting a light to any gas? A. Yes, when that payt of the mine is 

dangerous. 
1556. Q. 

Do you say that it is dangerous because there is a chance of gas coming into contact with a 
naked light? A. Yes. But I want to make a statement. 
1557. Q. I want your answer, yes or no? 
1558. IRs hlonor.1 I presume that the witness desires to give an explanation. 
1559. Witness.] Mr. Wade is trying to get around a different matter altogether, about evidence I gave 
before the Coroner's Court about lighting gas. 
1560. Mr. Wade.] Q. Do you consider it dangerous to put a naked light where you may expect to find gas? 

A. Under present conditions it would be. 
1561. Q. What are the present conditions? A. The mine being dangerous. 

1562. Q. Is it more dangerous now than it was six months ago? A. No. 

1563. Q. Is it more dangerous now than it was before the disaster? A. It is as dangerous now as it was 

before the disaster. 
1564. Q. Is there any danger now in putting a naked light to gas ? A. It depends on the time and the place. 

1565. Q. Is there some danger now? A. It depends on the conditions. 

1566. Q. Is it safe now to put a naked light where you may expect gas? A. If you expect gas now you 

are not allowed to put a light to the coal. 
1567. Q. Do you consider it dangerous at present to put a naked light where you expect to find gas? 

A. It all depends on the quantity of air that there is. 
1563. Q. 110w can you tell that? A. It is for the man who opens the lamp to tell. 
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1569. Q. if there is too little air at the time it is too late afterwards, and the damage is done A. Yes. 
1570. Q. You cannot tell the quantity of gas compared with the air in it i.e.rticular  place ? A. I do not 
want to. 
1571. Q. Is there not alwa a danger in putting a naked light near where you think there is gas? A. Not 
at all. 
1572. Q. Then why do you want this provision? A. The air courses may have been neglected in this part 
and the man has not macli knowledge as to the quantity of air there. if the men think it not a fair 
thing to light the fuse with the open lamp, and if it is not a loss to the company, why not stop the 
practice? 
1573. Q. When can you fire a shot and it will not be dangerous? A. When you have a perfect knowledge 
of the air and the gas. 
1574. Q. That is what no man can get? A. There may be some clever men who can tell. 
1575. Q. Can air ordinary miller tell? A. No, lie cannot tell. 
1576. 9. Did you learn of this danger in Englami 1 A. Yes ; but we never used naked lights there. 
1577. 9. And you were told by Mr. Rogers never to light gas in your place? A. I knew you were coming 
to that. It is all iiiaonsliine. 
1578. Q. Were you told not to light gas in your place 1 A. Not whilst lie was there. 
1579. Q. Do you tell the Court lie said You must not light gas in my presence ; but do it when I am 
away "1 A. Yes, I always thought that lie meant that. 
1580. 9. You could not do it inhis presence ; but you could in his absence 1 A. Those are his own words. 
1581. Q. Did lie say, " Do not (10 it again "1 A. Not in my 
1582. 9. You knew it was dangerous ? A. Not under the conditions in that heading. 
1583. 9. What conditions 1 A. There were three or four naked lights there. 
1584. 9. Three or four chances to one? A. It was much better to light the gas there and burn it away. 
1585. 9. 1 want you to answer my questions 1 A. I am going to answer them in a different manner. I 
have already given that evidence. 
1586. his honor.] Mr. Wade can exanune you further upon it. 
1587. Mr. 1Vacl.] Q. Do you think there was any danger *in lighting that gas? A. Not at the time. 
1588. 9. Do you think so now ? A. Yes. 
1589. 9. Why do you think it is dangerous now 1 A. I think it is dangerous, after the explosion. 
1590. Q. After all your experience in England and New Zealand you did not think it was dangerous at 
the time'? A. No. 
1591. Q. What do you think was the reason of Mr. Rogers' saying, Do not light the gas before me "1 
A. T-Ie did not want to know there was gas there. 
1592. 9. That is your view of what Mr. Rogers said ? A. Yes. 
1593. 9. Now, how often have you left Mount Kembla ? A. I left it on three different occasions. I 
believe I left it on four occasions. 
1594. 9. Have you worked anywhere else since you first went to Mount Kembla ? A. Yes ; at South 
Keinbla for it few months. 
1595. 9. You have been it witness against the Company in several actions in i$ydney ? A. Yes. 
1596. 9. On two different occasions? A. Yes. 
1597. 9. Was the first uceasion about fourteen months ago? A. About that length of time ago. 
1598. 9. Did you give evidence against the Company suggesting neglect on their part in connection with a 
ptrticultr waste 1 A. I gave my own evidence. 
1599. Q. Did that suggest neglect on the part of the Company ? Did you not say that a certain waste 
had not fallen in and was da4gerous, where a man named Bro\vnlee was working 1 A. I dii not say it had 
not fallen. 
1600. Q. Did you give evidence? A. '\Vait for a moment. 
1601. his honor.] 1 suppose you are examinmg the witness Quinn to show that, although be has given 
evidence objectionable m to the Copany, the Company has not attempted to remove him. I think a reason 
for your not continuing this evidence is that there is no evidence to the contrary. 
1602. Mr. JVade.] The witness has said that there is someone else who, he believes, is afraid to give 
evidence, and I want to show what the relations are between the Manager and the men. 
1603. his ilonor.] I think it is hardly necessary to go into this matter moore fully. 
1601. Jl'itness.] 1. want to make myself clear and I do not wish to be made to say things that I have 
never said before. I do not visli to come here to injure the Manager or anyone belonging to him. I would 
riot come here to Per,i ire myself for all the property in the State. 
1605. Mr. Wwled Q. Let us go back to the day of the disaster. Is it not it fact that, after you had the 
lamps, you could not get into the mine because you had not sufficient stretchers? A. No, it is not a fact. 
1606. Q. Is it not a fact that all the meu had to be carried out on stretchers ? A. No, it is not it fact. 
You could not get the stretchers in to them. 
1607. Q. Did not all these men who were overcome with after-damp have to be brought out of the mine 1 
Did any of them walk out that you know of ? A. No. 
1608. 9. And was not nearly every man carried out on it stretcher ? A. Yes. 
1609. 9. Was not the difficulty in getting them out that,there were not sufficient stretchers to bring them 
out ? A. That was partly so but we could not get into the mine to the men. 
1610. Q. Did not those who were rescuing have to wait to get stretchers 1 A. They were blocked at the 
tunnel mouth by either the Manager or the police. 
1611. Q. Were iu t only Dick, Tom, and Harry '' blocked, and only autlwrised persons allowed to enter I 
1. There was no authorismg about it. 

1612. Q. When you had the safety lamps, did you not have to wait until the stretchers were made ? A. They 
had al sam t half it dozen there. 
1613. 9. Could they not get into the mine with them ? A. They could not g w et in i?ii the stretchers. 
1614. 9. You say that when they had safety lamps they could not get the stmetehei's ? J. And they were 
not permitted to go III with a naked light, and there were not safety lanips there. No one was in until 
two or three hours after the explosion. 
1615. Q. Do you say that until two or three hours after the explosion there was 110 one in the mine with it 
safety lamp 1 A. Ytell, I went in one of the first., 
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1616. Q. Do you know that Government inspections are macic at Mount Kembla frequently? A. They 
may have been before that. The last man I saw there for twelve months or over was on the clay of the 
explosion. They (lid not come to me. 
1617. Q. No, I suppose you might blow them up with your gas. Now, would you keep a man there at 
present who lights blowers of gas ? A. No, I would not allow a naked light there now. We will have to 
get more air there before we do that. 
1618. Q. When you found the air intolerable, was it because the brattice was short? A. There was no 
brattice at all. 
1619. Q. When you complained and asked for brattice, did you get it? A. In two places I got it; but in 
two places I did not get it. 
1620. Q. What happened? A. We had finished the place. 
1621. Q. Was it a practice to put brattice there? A. Yes. 
1622. Q. Do you say that the system of measurement now adopted in the mine is a farce? A. Yes, under 
the conditions. 
1623. Q. Do you say that the air is only measured at the tunnel mouth? A. That is all I have seen 
them do. 
1624. Q. Are you prepared to say that that is all they do? A. All the time that I have been there it has 
only been done at the tunnel mouth. 
1625. Q. Do you not know they measure at other places? A. I do not know. 
1626. Q. Did you say the ventilation was bad during the twelve months before the disaster ? A. In 
particular parts. 
1627. Q. In how many parts, do you think? A. In No. 4 Right (meaning the 4th Right) the air was bad. 
1628. Q. Was that from black-damp? A. Yes. 
1629. Q. That is one occasion you speak of? A. Yes. 
1630. Q. How often in 'No. 4 Right (meaning the 41h Right) was the air bad? A. During the last quarter 
I was in there. During all the time I was there. 
1631. his honor.] (7. What quarter was that? A. Before the disaster. Three or four weeks before the 
disaster. 
1632. i[r. Had".] Q. Were ycu working in the pillars up to three weeks of the disaster? A. Yes. 
1633. You and a man named Muir? A. Yes. 
1634. (7. Was that the last piece of coal taken out? A. Yes; I drew the last timber out of No. 4 Right, 
(meaning the 4th Right) No. 1 Section. 
1635. Q. Is Muir alive? A. Yes he is at Mount Kembla. 
1636. Q. Who else was with you ? A. There were two other men, Filey and Helthingham. They are not 
at Mount Kembla now. I think one of them is working on the coast ; but I do not know where. 
1637. Q. Do you know that the miners have the right, under the Coal Mines Act, of examining a mine as 
to whether it is safe ? A. I do not know-. 
1638. (7. By the Check Examiners --your own men? A. That is simply a farce. It is no good to us. 
1639. (7. Who is a Check Examiner, is he a miner? A. We have none. 
1640. Q. When you did have one was be a miner? A. Yes. 
1641. Q. Do not you know that the Act gives the miners power to appoint one of their number as Check 
Inspector? A. Yes ; but what good is it? 
1642. Q. You know that they have the right to go and examine a mine? A. Yes : it is time that right 
was done away with. 
1643. Q. They have the opportunity to point out any defects? A. If they have they do not carry it out. 
1644. (7. Do you complain of the Mine-Manager because of that? A. I do not blame him for the acts of 
others. Why should I 
1645. Q. Do you blame him for their neglect? A. No. 
1646. Q. If the Check Inspectors are not capable you can replace them? A. I cia not know whether they 
are capable men or not. 
1647. Q. Do you see reports? A. I never see the reports. I have no idea what becomes of them. 
1648. Q. Does not the Lodge get them? A. Not that I know of. 
1649. Q. Can you show me any single recommendation by the Check Inspectors as to In  at the Colliery? 
A. I do not know about the report. Before the explosion I was at work at Powell's Flat, and that was 
the first time I had to draw the attention of the Check Inspector to anything. When Mr. Nelson was 
deputy he was appointed under-manager ; and the road through Powell's Flat was No. .5 travelling road. 
That road ias condemned by the Check Inspector ; and the roof looked so rotten that I vent up No. 1 
road. -Mr. Ne?son waited until I came hack, and said, "You are breaking the rules by going that road." 
I said that I had heard that No. 5 road was condemned. He said, " Who condemned it 1" I said, "The 
Check Inspector recommended that it be condemned." He said, " They ordered some timber." I said, 

At the first meeting I go to I will do my duty and bring this up." I examined the timber as I went 
past ; and it was really in a dreadful state. That is all I know about it. 
1650. Q. Is your objection to a furnace that if an explosion strikes it it will destroy the ventilation ? 
A. Yes. I have other objections as well. 
1651. Q. Is it not a fact that in every explosion the ventilation becomes deranged? A. Yes. 
1652. Q. And after-damp travels all over the mine? A. Yes. 
1653. (7. Would not the same risk be attached to a fan as well as to a furnace? A. A fan could be more 
easily erected. 
1654. Q. Would not they have to replace the furnace? A. I suppose so. 
1 65.5. Q. You have also to replace the brattice after an eplosion? A. Yes. 

Cross-examined by Mr. Bruce Smith 

1656. Q. Can you tell me who appointed Check Inspectors in the past? A. I believe they were appointed 
at the Miners' Lodge; but I have never been there at the time. 
1657. Q. Are they appointed by the Lodge of which you are President? A. Yes. 
1658. 0. Is it the Lodge that makes recommendations? A. Yes. 
1659. Q. When the Lodge appoints the Check Inspectors, how often do they go over the mine to check 
the ventilation? A, Ido not know; I did not take anyinterest in the affair. 
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1660. Did not you form some opinion s to what the object of the Check Inspectors was? A. I was not a 
proimnent nieinbcr of the Lodge then. 
1661. Q. Do you know the way the Check Inspectors are appoiited A. Yes. 
1662. And in whose interests are they appointed 1 A. In the miners' interests, to measure the air. 
1663. Q. And to check for themselves the statement as to the air current A. Yes. 
1664. Q. Now, you are recommending that the examinations should be made every week? A. By practical 
men, not by miners. We want Government men free from the management of the mine altogether. 
1665. Q. Is it not better to have men to look at the matter from the point of view of the miner? A. No. 
It may endanger their position if they make a report that is not satisfactory to the Manager. 
1666. Q. Then it is a farce, because the miners are afraid? A. Because the miners are afraid to report as 
to the true condition of the mine. 
1667. Q. Have you seen the hooks of the Check Inspector? A. No. 
1668. Q. Do you know of a single case in which the Check Inspectors claim that they are afraid to report 
to the Lodge when they find the ventilation is insufficient, because they are afraid to report it in the 
Check Inspector's book? A. I was never at a Lodge at which the matter was reported. 
1669. Q. Do you not know that there is a provision in the Act that no promise shall be made or bribe given 
to a Check Inspector, under a penalty_I refer to Rule 41, section 47? A. I did not know that. I was 
never at any miners' meeting at which any report by the Check Examiners was given. 
1670. Q. Therm you never took any interest in it? A. I look upon it as a farce. 
1671. Q. Why? A. Very often they are men not qualified for the position. There may be a road that is 
reported on that will cost a lot of money to put in order; and that may, perhaps, make them disagreeable to 
the Manager. 
1672. Q. Is not the Lodge capable of determining what men are capable of checking the ventilation of a 
mine I A. Mmers are simply working men. 
1673. Q. Do they get anything for the work? A. They get paid. 
1674. Q. Now, do you know whether they are paid or not? A. I do not know. 
1675. Q. Do you say that the members of a Lodge are unfit to choose the men to check the ventilation? 
A. Yes, because the fliCfl are not amongst us. We are not able to examine and report on gases and 
so oii. 
1676. Q. As a practical man of twenty-five years' experience, you say that in your opinion you are not 
intellectually fit to see about the ventilation of a mine ? A. Yes ; I may pick one man and you may pick 
another. 
1677. Q. There was a ballot? A. Yes; but we differ in opinion. The salary is too small ; and there is a 
lot of liability attached to it-a lot of liability attached to the position. 
1678. Q. That is why the examiners take so little interest in it, because they are not paid to examine a 
mine? A. No, they think it should be in the hands of Government. It should be free from getting the 
miners into trouble with the management. 
1679. Q. Now you told Mr. Lysaght that you had formed some opinion as to the cause of the accident. 
Did you form that opinion before you \vent to the end of No. 1 Right ;-you have riot been up there 1 A. 
No ; not since the explosion. 
1680. Q. What did you form your opinion upon? A. That there was gas lying in these places ; they being 
so far back from the furnace. 
1681. Q. In what places? A. In the main tunnel No. 1 (meaning No. 1 Right Main Level). 
1682. Q. Tell the Commission how the explosion came about? A. When we light gas we see it going 
back we rds and forwards. 
1683. Q. Was that what you meant by "floundering about "1 A. Yes. 
1681. Q. You mean that some gas got lighted? A. In main tunnel No. 1 (Io. 1 Right Main Level) or in 
Aitken's place. 
168.5. Q. You formed that opinion without seeing the place? A. Yes. 
1686. Q. Do you think the opinion is of any value? A. You may not think so. 
1687. Q. Is that all you have to say about the explosion? A. Yes. 
1688. Q. Is that all you know about it? A. Yes. 
1689. Q. I suppose you know nothing about watering mines, excepting what information you have picked 
up yourself; you never read anything on the subject? A. No. We leave the question of watering to more 
scientific men than we are. We ask the Commission to suggest certain laws which would be best for our 
pu tection. 
1690. Q. You have lately changed your opinion about the danger of lighting gas-I mean since the 
explosion 1 A. Yes. 
1691. Q. Since you made a joke of it? A. It was ajoke then, but it is no joke now. What we suggest is 
not much more expense, that is to light the fuse with a wire and not with a lamp. 
1692. Q. Did you go with any party to examine the place? A. No. 
1693. Q. Did you appoint them or take any part in their appointment? A. No. 

Reexamined by Mr. Lysaght :- 
1694. Q. Mr. Bruce Smith asked you why you fix upon the top of the heading as the place of the explosion, 
and you said it was furthest away from the air ;-is there any other reason 1 A. I think it ii higher than 
the other parts of the mine. 
1695. Q. Is there any other reason, from anytlnng you were told beforehand? A. No. 
1696. 9. Do you know a man named Heron? A. Yes. 
1697. 9. Do you know whether lie worked in the top heading? A. I do not know whether lie worked 
there or no. 
1698. Q. Is there anything that you heard from him that would assist you in coming to a conclusion? 
A. He told me (Interrupted.) 
1699. Mr. Wade.] You can call Heron ; I object to the evidence. 
1700. His I/armor.] It is only sonic question as to the state of the witness' mind. 
1701 .AIr. Lyseght.] There may be a difficulty in calling Heron, because lie has left the district. 
1702. Q. \\lmat  was it Heron said as to the top lmeading that led you to come to any conclusion 7 A. 
Heron told me that the Deputy Dungey told him that if he had gone over the main heading before lie 
would have got his head blown off. 1703. 
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Examined by Mr. Robertson :- 

1703. Q. I think you said that the check by the workmen is a farce, one reason being fear of dismissal? 
A. Yes. 
1704. Q. Are you nw-are that prior to 1896, when the Act of Parliament was passed, miners had not the 
power to appoint persons for this duty employed at other mines. The miners grumbled because they could 
not employ miners at Mount Pleasant, say, to inspect other collieries I A. I am not aware of that. 
1 70.5. Q. It is a fact that that was considered a grievance, and as a consequence an alteration was made by 
which power was given as follows Persons employed at a mine may appoint from time to time two of 
their number, or any two persons, not being mining agents, who are practical working miners, to inspect 
the mine." You see the choice is not limited. So that if these men are not employed at the mine, or any 
other mine, how can they be in fear of dismissal? A. If they are independent men it would be satisfactory 
to all concerned. 
1706. Q. You said something about a Check Inspector not being competent ;—is not Mr. Ritchie 
competent ? A. But I did not know that he was appointed. 
1707. Q. Or Mr. Wynn? A. I did not know about him either. 
1708. Q. I think you are ignorant about what is going on, considering you are the President of the Lodge? 
A. I have not been President very long. I thought it was a farce. 
1709. Q. Tt need not be a farce so far as dismissal of Inspectors is concerned? A. I am giving you in 
opinion as to why independent men should be appointed. 
1710. Q. Have von not power to appoint independent men? You can appoint any men who can exercise 
that power A. I (lid not understand that. We want the whole thing to be done by Government. 

[The Commission, at 430 p.m., adjourned until 930 the following day.] 

ThURSDAY, S JAZ'TUARY, 1903, 930 a.m. 
[The Commission met at time Cozsrt-im acre, Woilongong.] 

3rcocnt 

C. F. R. MURRAY, ESQ., D.C.J. (PRESIDENT). 
D. A. W. ROBERTSON, IESQ, CoarellssloxEim, I D. RITCHIE, ESQ., CounIssIoNER. 

Mr. Bruc Smith, Barristerat-Law, instructed by Mr. Wood, Crown Solicitor's Office, appeared on behalf 
of the Crown. 

Mr. A. A. Atkinson, Chief Inspector of Coal.mines, assisted Mr. Bruce Smith. 

Mr. A. A. Lysaght, Solicitor, appeared on behalf of— 
the representatives of deceased miners, wheelers, &e. (victims of the explosion) 
the employees of the Mount Kembla Colliery (miners, wheelers, &c.) and 

(a) the illawarra Colliery Employees' Association (the Southern Miners' Union). 

Mr. C. G. Wade, Barrister-at-Law, instructed by Mr. F. Curtiss, appeared on behalf of the Mount Kenibla 
Coal and Oil Company (Proprietors of Mount Kembla Nine). 

Mr. W. Rogers, Manager Mount Kembla Colliery, was also present. 

([r. J. Garlick, Secretary to the Commission, was present to take shorthand notes of the evidence and 
proceedings ) 

Mr. CHARLES SMITH was sworn, and examined as under 

Examination-in-chief by Mr. Lysaght 

1711. Q. What is your name? A. Charles Smith. 
1712. Q. What are you? A. Miner. 
1713. Q. Where are you employed? A. Mount Kembla. 
1714. Q. How long have you been employed at Mount Kembla? A. I have been there about two years 
and eight months this time. 
1715. Q. And before then? A. I was working there about nine years ago, and worked about nine 
months that time. 
1716. Q. Have you had any other mining experience? A. Ohm, yes. 
1717, Q. Where? A. In the North of England. 
1718. Q. What Colliery ? A. Dudley Colliery, Northumberland. 
1719. Q. How long? A. 1 was five years there. 
1720. Q. You might state your general mining experience? A. I was five years at Dudley Colliery. I 
went there in 1870, and I left there and went to the North Riding of Yorkshire, Ironstone Mines, for five 
years. Then I caine to Queensland after. 
1721. Q. What mine in Queensland? A. I was working in several coal mines about there, and I was 
working in the gold mines, too, in Queensland. 
1722. Q. Cniine yourself to the cod mines—where else P A. I left there and the next coal mine I 
vork(d in was here at Moui,t Kembla and then I left 1\Iouut Kembla and went to New Zealand, and 

worked sixteen months in Denison Hill, New Zealand, on the coal there. And I came back here on the 
coal mines and worked here two years and eight months this time. 
1723. Q. And what is the total number of years' experience you have had as a practical miner? A. Well, 
I will say thirty years. I have been thirty-two years altogether or a little more, but I will say thirty 
years practically. 
1724. Q. Now', were you working in Kembla at time time of the disaster? A. Yes. 
172.5. Q. What part of the maine were you working in? A. In the Sib Right. 
1720. Q. Do you remember the number of the pillar, the bard? A. The bord, Yes-94. 
1727. Q. Could you indicate that on the plan ? A. No. I do not know anything about the plan. 
1728. Q. Look, that is the main travelling road there (indicating). A. No. 1. 
1729. Q. Yes. Here is the 5th Right rope road. What number did you say ? A. 91 bond. 

1730. 
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1730. Q. Smith and. Gardener ? A. Yes, that is the place. 
1731. (. It is that one, there (indica!inq its position on the 00ies' Plan). What time did you leave 
work that day, the clay of the disaster ? A. \\rell, I left it a bit in a hurry as soon as the explosion 
occurred. 
1732. Q. Now, von might tell us what von observed concerning the explosion you speak of, and at what 
time? A. As near as I can tell the time, 1 had a little clock there, and it stopped about a quarter to 2. 
1733, Q. Wtiat was it you observed about that time P A. A cleahiess in the head. I could not hear myself 
speak. I was trying to speak to my mate, and I could speak to him ; but I could not hear myself speaking, 
not for a white, not for a minute. 
1731. Q. What happened after that P A. Icoull speak to my mate then ; and I told him there must be 
an explosion. lie said, " No, it must be a big fall '' ; and 1 said, ' No, it cannot be a big fall I will find 
out what it is." Tha first thing we found was Jack Laidlaw and a wheeler. 
1735). Q. Where was Laidlaw? A. Just at his bord, the first bard from the healing, No. 00. 
1736. Q. Was Laidlaw standing or sitting P A. lie says to me, " Charlie, 1. do not know what is up 
there is something wrong. 'l'herc is your wheeler blown to blazes." lie maut drifted along the road. 
Those are the words he said. 
1737. Q. Meaning lifted along the road? A. Yes. 
1738. Q. What was the name of the wheeler? J. ClifF. Ilanimon. 
1739. Q. Did Laidlaiv say anything else to you then? A. Yes. lie said, " What cia you think it is P 

Oh," I said, "an explosion right enough we must get out of this." He says, '\Vhich way must we 
go P " I said, Out to the daylight tunnel, where we are getting our fresh air in." " Well," he says, 

ITow are we going to find that? " I says, " My nose will find the way out to the fresh air any time." 
So 1 ran up then the other three bords and fetched the inca out, going back towards my place to the No. 
91. I was at No. 00 then, and I went back, ani FaI1 up three places and fetched my mate out of my 
place. He was holding the drill of the boring machine ; and 1 went right up to the place to bring him 
out. And I went to the next bord, where a man, Skilion, and his son, were working. That was the last 
place that I could get to handy. 1 went out then. 
1740. Q. You led that party out? A. Yes. There were two wheelers, }I:irry Kelly, and a pony, went 
out with us. 
1741. Q. Where did you get the pony P A. About half way between my place and the wheelers'. 
1742. Q. With the exception of yourself, do you know whether any of the other men knew the road out? 
A. I do not think there was any of the men knew the way out. 'l'hey knew which way it went; but they 
could not tell direct where to go. 
1743. Q. You knew from things they said and did that they did not know the way out by the daylight 
tunnel? A. Yes. - 
1744. Q. Now, can you tell me in which direction this whe&er had been blown? A. He was blown into 
the 90 bord from the flat : fom the First Flat in the 5th light into 90 bord. 
1745. Q. Inbve? A. Inbye. Up the bord. '1 hat is where I fell in with him, just by the bratticing. 
1746. ho on know whether l-iamnmon was in charge of a horse P A. Yes, lie was wheeler to me. 
1747. Q. Do you know what became of his horse? A. Yes. It was blown down on ti its side and left 
there kicking. lie wanted to go back for it. 
1748. Mr. Brace Sm/t/i.1 Q. Did you see it ; or did lie say it was blown? A. I did not see it. I did 
not go back for that. 
1749. Mr. .Lysaqlit.j Q. You did not actually see the horse ? A. He told me his horse was blown down. 
I said " Never mind the horse." 
1750. Mr. Lysoqht.] Perhaps I might suggest to the Commission that Ilammon might be called. I did 
not call loin, but it occurs to inc lie might be able to give evidence. 
1751. his honor.] It would appear that he might be able to give some useful evidence. 
1752. Mr. Lysaqht.] Q. Did he get out with you P A. Yes. He was all black with dust. That was all 
that was the matter with him, He was terribly black he was sick for a week. 
1753. Q. Tie told you some things concerning his horse ? A. lie told me his horse and himself were 
blown up the bord. 
1751. Q. Now, is thereny1hing else you desire to tell us concerning the disaster-what you observed before 
you left the pit P Did you observe any smoke ? A. Oh yes, there was smoke all the way. I had to go 
from my bord, 94 bord, down the old byrd like. 
1755. Q. When did you first come across smoke? A. As soon as ever I found this Laidlaw and the wheeler. 
As soon as I got to thatbrattice it was coming against the air. I had good air until I met this smoke 
coming against the air. 
1756. Mr. Brace Smith.] Q. Good air do you mean in going up to 90 or in coming out? A. Going 
out from 90. 

757. Mr. Robertson ] Q. 'Where did you find Laidlaw and the wheeler? A. At 90 bord. 
1758. Q. What part of it? A. 1 did not go up to hi face; but 1 should say 100 yards from the flat. 
1759. Q. it is not very much more to the face? A. 1 could not tell you exactly. I do not know what 
distance they run the borcls up. This is the second heading like off the 90 bord where I left them. 
1760. Q. It is not much more than 100 yards from the fiat to the face? A. But this is between, well up 
towards the face, where I was, in this last cross-heading cut off this. 
1761. Mc. Wade.] Q. Where is the flat? 
1702. Mr. Ro!ei'tson.] In the 5th Right. 
1763. Mr. Bruce Smith.] It is about ISO yards-I have measured it-from the face down to the flat. 
IA'Ot. Mr. Lyso'qlmt.] I think, Mr. Robertson, the witness said he got to the second cut_through. 
1765. Q. Is that so P A. The second inbye cut-through. That is the last cut-through up towards 
the face. 
1766. lfi'. Roi'rt son ] Q. I ain rather iWen sted to lsnnw ; because, as a matter of fact, I found the very 
same horse alive? A. I could not tell to a yard or two e lint it was, you know. 1 know it is not far up. 
1 know I drive the Lords about 70 verde up ; and this is the sccond one. 
1767. .dll'. Lsuaq./it.] Q. Now, I wait von to tell us whether, as ihr as you know, any smoke or anything 
die extrao"dinary caine doismi towards your working place beyond hO, pmit 01, 92, and 93? A. Yes. 
Just after I could talk I found a terrible dust coming against the air. I met the dust like coming against 
the air. . 1768. 
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1768. Q. Where did you meet that? A. Just going down to my bord. 
1769. Q. Was that before you went to Laidlaw, or aft r P A. When I was going to Laidlaw. 
1770. Q. Then do I uudersand the first thing you met was dust P A. Yes a very light dust, though. 
1771. Q. And that was cowiiiu, I think you said, aaiust the air? A. Yes. 
1772. Q. How long after meeting that dust was it that you met the smoke P A. Well, about a minute 
or so, I sufpose ; just as I had time to get down to the hO bord. 
1773. Q. Did you observe anything else besides the dust and the smeke ? A. No, nothing else. 
1774 Q. Did you at any time see any indication cf a flame? A. Not at that time; but I had done so 
before that. 
1775. Q. At present I mean concerning the disaster? A. No: I never saw any flame. 
1776. Q. Did you after coming out go into the pit again as a rescuer? A. Yes. I did not go far in. 
I went until I was knocked up. I want three times into the old tunnel. 
177. Q. What is that ? A. The travelling road the old travelling road where we all go in. 
1778. Q. Do you mean in the No. 1 Right district or the shaft district? A. It is the entrance for both, 
where I mean. 
1779. Q. How far did you get into the mine P A. The first time I suppose it was 200 or 300 yards. 
I met a couple of men and fetched them out. I fethed out a mars called Prior the next time. 
1780. Q. Did you go in after that? A. I went once more until I was done and could not stand any more. 
1781. Q. Did you afterwards go into the mine to inspect? A. No. I went into the mine to fetch my 
tools. 
17S2. Q. When? A. It was on a Tuesday, I rememb r. I could not say the day of the month. 
1783. Q. How long after the disaster ?A. Some eight or nine days, I think. 
1784. Q. Which road did you take on that occasion? A. We went down the shaft road to old No. 5, 
as we termed it : and then we went round to No. 1 District. 
1785. Q. Did you go through Powell's Flat? A. No. We had not to touch Powell's Flat there - 
oh, yes, after we came through No. 5 we came through Powell's Flat. 
1786. Q. And down the 4th Left travelling road P A. Yes. 
1787. Q. And into your own place across the main No. 1 Rlglit? A. The main heading, yes. 
1788. Q. Now, can von tell us anything that you observed an ywhere on that occasion as regards ti e 
effects of the disaster P A nythirig that you observed anywhere along any of the roads you travelled P 
A. Well, at l'owell's Flat I thund a few dead horses and that like ; but there was nothing disturbed much 
else along there. I went into Powell's Flat in one place to fetch a machine out and tools for a man-I 
think it was 72 or 73. 
179. Q. Did you observe anything there? A. No : nothing e xtra there. Nothing disturbed much 
about there that I saw. 
1790. Q. I want you to toll us any indications you saw either on the props or the brattice or the 
rib-sides of flame having passed in any particular 1a on this occasion when you went in for your tools P 
A. I went along from what we call the Si heading-that is, from Powell's Flat up towards 80. (ITo.  80 
is Hrisne and Hewlett's wor1 inq p7ace as maciced on tie plan.) 
1791. Q. Was that in goin g  in? A. Yes. We were not allowed to to any place until the Deputy took 
us in. I was following the Deputy in. 
1792. Q. Do you mean their working place (liume end hewlett's) ? A. It is a main road driven up to 
where they were going to put a rope road some time afterwards. 
1703. Mr. Bruce Smith.l Q. Is it not a i;iiiar? A. There is a pillar on the side of it. 
1794. Mr. LysaL/litj Q. Do you mean Stafford's going bord? A. Perhaps they might call it the ganrion 
bord. 
1795. Q. Do you remember passing Stafford's flat? A. That is the end of it. Yes, that is Staffords 
Flat at the end of this heading as 1 term it. I worked in the same bord two years ago myself ; aol know 
it very well. I put it up on the jrtmp. 
1796. Q. You say that Stafford's Flat is on the end of what you did call a hiadiug? A. Yes; only 
we did not o to Stafford's Fiat; we cut across. 
1797. Q. What was it you observed going up there? Where was it? A. I nticed a terrible lot of a 
sort of sooty stuff knocking about. 
1708. Q. Knocking about where? A. On the flaor, and the rib side, and everywhere. 
1799. Q. 1 want you to be particular about "everywhere." What about the props? A. Oh, yes. They 
were all sort of blackened, on one side of t[em cspeeialii-. 
1800. Q. Which side ? Just think carefully? A. Well, I was meeting the clean side as I was going 
towards thei\o. 1 heading. 
1801. Q. How far up that going bord did you observe these sooty conditions ? A. I did not go up there 
very far. I was crossing that, I mean, to go on towards the No. I. heading. I kept going on across On 
the travelling road. 
1802. Mr. Wade.] Q. Do you mean you just saw this as you wrc Igoing across the bord ? A. Going 
across all the Lords ; and I termed this one P0 because I knew it was 80. 
1803. 9. You really crossed more than etc boid P A. On this travelling road I noticed- (Interrupted.) 
.1804. Ills Honor.] Mr. Tysaght, just get tins course clearly from bin-as to whether he went along 
Stafford's Lord or just crossed it in one place. 
1805. Witness.] 1 crossed it in one place. 
1806. Mr. Lqsaglt: Q. WLcn you crossed it, did you get outside Stafford's Flat up the going hoid? 
A. N o. We kept on the travelling road. 
1807. Q. Then you were ncvci up that bord at all ? A. No. We k pt en the travelling road from tiieie. 
1 just crossed .he SO. 
1808. Q. I want you to think carefully now whether you (lid go up this going lord before you cr.ice 
along  the Ii aveilrng road? A. No. We came along from lowell's I' fat right to this heading; and then 
we crossed this SO heading to go away towards where toy tools Nvere. 
1809. Q. So that these indications of soot were only in crossing that flat P A. Yes. I met it from 
there further on. 
1810. Q. How far further on P A. Eight away to the No, 1 main lwrding. 
1811. Q. Then do I understand that all O.e way along the 4th Left Travelling Read you met thre ccii-
ditions of soot on the floor, the rib-sides, and the props? A. Yes. I went into a Load tbcie. I had to 
get some tools. 1812. 
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1812 Q. One minute now: up to the main heading, the No. 1 I3ight main heading, you say? All the 
way? A. Yes. 
1813. Q. Now, were the sooty conditions on only one side of the props ? A. Further up I noticed it on 
both sides. 
1814. Q. Where? A. I could not tell you. I went into a mm cailed Bunn's place to fetch his tools 
out-no, Tost it was, 
1815. Q. Did you go right up to the face P l. Yes. 
1816. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Q. Is that where you found it was black on both sides? A. Yes, just round 
there. 
1817. Mr. Wade.] Q. The props? A. Yes. 
1818. Mr. Lqsagltt.] Q. Now, where did you turn in to go up to Tost's and Bunn's place? Where did 
you turn off the 4th Left travelling road? A. I could not tell you exactly which bord, because I was 
not working up that way. 
1819. Q. Just look here. here is Stafford's Flat, where you have come from, along here. That is the 
4th Left travelling road. here is the main No. 1 Right. Now', up here is Tost's and Tlunn's working 
place. 1 want to know where it was off here that you turned in to go UI)  there? A. I think it was two 
bords before we could get to Bunn's place ; because there was a fall there in between. So we had to come 
along there until we could come to a cut-through. We could not get through for a little bit of a fall. 
1820. Q. What was the fall P A. Just a little ht of a fall of the roof, about a couple of feet thick. 
1821. Mr. Bruce Smith.] Did he go straight "p No. 88? 
1822. ATr. Lysaqht.] No. lIe said he turned off about two bords before 88. 
1823. Witness.] I could not say whether it was one or two. I could not recollect the exact spot. 
1S24. Mr. Ljjsaght.] Q. Could you tell me whether, up to this fall that you met, all the indications of 
the soot were on the side that you were meeting, or on the side facing the other way P A. It seemed to 
me to be about all alike just there. 
1S25. Q. Now, up to there, on which side was the soot on the top P A. At first, in that bord where I 
got those tools, it seemed all black together there. 
1826). Mr. Wade.] Q. That is the first time you saw it all black P A. 'Yes. 
1827. Mr. Lysaght.] Q. As you veut up to that brd to get to Tost and Bunn's place, did you see 
anything up those bords P A. Well, I saw a little bit of roof bent down here and t::erc ; a little bit 
lad-look jg. 
182$. Q. Did you see any signs of burning up there, any burnt brattice P A. No. 
1829. Q. Did you see any dust on the props there P A. Oh, yes in that place where we got the tools. 
1830. You might tell us exactly what you 55w tera P A. I saw a lot of greyish-looking sort of dust. It 
looked as if it had been burnt a couple of times, to inc. 
1831. Q. Where was this dust ? A. On the floor and on the tools. That is how I noticed it so much. 
It was on the tools. 
18:32. A[i, Bruce Smith.] Q. Up at the end P A. Up to the face some of these tools were, and some 
further back. 
1833. Mr. Lysag/tt.] Q. Were the tools lying on the floor? A. Some were standing against the rib; and 
some were lying about. 
1131. Q. 1)o I understand that this grey dust was all over the tools? A. Ye. 
1835. Q. Was that grey dust all over the bords to,) PA. Yes. We were looking about for the tools 
and it was kicking about wherever we touched. 
18:31;. Q. Could you give any indication whiera that greJ dust lial come from? Was it from a fall, or 
where P A. No. What I thought \vas that after the explosion like it settled there. That is the opinion 
I formed myself. 
1837. Q. What do you mean by after the explosion? A. I know when -,in edosion occurs the dust has 
to settle somewhere afterwards. 
1838. 9. You mean the burnt dint? A. Yes. 
1839. 9. Did you notice whether there was a greater quantity there iii that particular place than in any 
other place? A. I saw more there than any place, because I did not go into any further places at all. 
I came round then into my place. r1h,,it is where I av the mcii. 
1840. Q. In addition to the (lust VOU saw, was there any other indication of flame having been in that 
place, as regards the props or brattice, or the roof sides P A. I did not notice anything, only the dust, 
and the brattice lying about. 
1811. Q. Did you no: ice whether any of the brattice there was burnt? A. No, I did not. 
1812. Q. Did von notice whether any of it was singed P A. I dii not notice that. 'l'here were three of 
us with two lights ; and we had bad lights. 
181.3. Q. Leaving Tost and Bunn's place, where dii you go to after that P A. I canne down then what 
we call the back heading, and crossil the main liea'iiniy, down to the :5th Right, towards my tools then. 
1811.. Q. Do you know oliere hiorris had been working, in No. Sl) P A. I know the spot, but I was 
nover there. I know where it is well. 
181. Q. Did you go into that ?.l.No, I did net go iii. 
1816. 9. As you came down the back healing, did you observe anything at all P A. Little bits of falls 
of roof about a foot thick in places. 
1817. Q. Auythng else? A. That is all I noticed, be..idev a bit of dust, as usual, coming along. 
1848. 9. (3-rey dust or black dust? A. It was bl:ickei' conni ig out that way. 
18-19. Q. When you left the back heading where dii YOU go? Into your own place P A. I went round, 
yes, into that first flat, 
1850. Q. And then where? A. Up to the 00 heading. And th,-u we had to wait while the deputy went 
up to 93 bord to fetch Laidlaw's tools. 
1851. Q. Did ycu notice anything in 90? A. Only a little light duet there-not so much dust lb re. 
852. 9. Did you notice any of the brattice there P A. 'I here is no brattice, not about there, much. 

18o3. 9. Did you notice any signs of bnrning or charring of the Ptm'°P5  P A. No. 
1851. 9. From there where did yo u go P .A . Along to mm' bord then, 94 bord. 
1855. Q. And from there P A. We caine back aganli to the flat with our tools. 
1836. 9. Was there anything extr.mordinarv in your own b on, N. 94 P '1 . There was' nothing 

extraordinary; 
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extraordinary; but what I expected-I had a very bad roof there; and I expected to see it hanging 

badly. 
1857. Q. You came back to the Flat; then where did you go? A. Round the roje road out to the 

daylight tunnel. 
1858, Q. Then straight out? A. Straight out. 
1459. Q. Is that all you can tell us concerning ifl(iieatiOflS of either force or burning after the disaster? 

A. Yes, that is all I noticed. That was the only time I wa in that war. 
1830. Q. You do not wish to say anything ahoat any particular thing that you saw? A. No. That is all 

I have to say about it. 
1861. Q. Did you form any conclusion from what you observed, or from what you knew beforehand, as to 
the cause of this disaster ? A. What do you mean ? 
1862. Q. What was the cause, iii your opinion, of the explosion? A. Gas. That is what I formed. 

1863. Q. Could you assist the Commission to fix the place where it probably originated? A. I think I 

could find very near. 
hOt. Q. What would you say? A. I could not tell exactly. 

1865. Q. What is your impression ? A. It is somewhere on the left-hand side of the No. 1 main 
heading, not far off there, according to what I saw as I was travelling round. I was only round that 
once. 
1866. Q. What do you mean by the left-hand side of the main heading? A. That is round where I 
came from that herd. 
H67. His 11mor.1 Q. The left-hand side as you come out? A. I am speaking of looking in now. 
1868. Q. The left-hand side as you go up the main heading? A. Yes. I am looking inbyc now. 

1509. Mi. Lqsaglit.] Q. Do you mean towards Aitken's place, or towards Tost and Bunn's? 

[k[r. Lysaght explained the position of the various places to the witness on the colliery i1''  and 
the witness indicated the locality in which he thooght the explosion originated. This locality Mr. Lysaght 
described as " between No. 1 main level and two or three bards to the left."] 

1870. Witness.] I could not say exactly. I noticed it looking black all over the place. 
1871.. liLy. Bruce Smith ] Q. Does he mean near Tost and Bunn's, where he svent for the fools ? 

A. Somewhere near there, yes. 
1872. Mr. Lysaglit.] Q. You said then that you noticed it getting particularly thick about there P 

A. Yes. 
1873. Q. 

What do you mean? What is it ' 24 I mean it looaed more dusty all over the place all 
round there. 
1874. Q. Do you think that there was one big explosion, or more than one explosion? A. I think there 
was only one. I was very frightened of the second one myself; but it did not happen. 
1875. Q. Do you think that there was one big explosion, or that there were a series of small explosions 
after the first had started P A. I think there was only one explosion, and when it started it went one 
way and another. 
1876. His honor.] lie says that the first thing that happened was that lie felt limsrlf deaf but I want 
to find out whether just before that, instantaneously, he did or did not hear any round ; and, if be did, 
what sort of sound. 
1877. 2lL. Li1s7qht.] Q. Before you felt the deafness was there any sound? A. No sound before that. 

1878. his Honor.] Q. You felt yourself deaf ; but lust before you felt yourself deaf was there some-
thing that seemed to explain to you why yell became deaf? A. Yes. 

1479. Q. What was that something? A. Well, I do not know how I can explain it myself. 

1880. Q. Put it in the best language you can? A. It was like a concussion or something come to my 
ears : that is all that I noticed. 
1881. Q. You felt it rather than heard it? A. Yes. 
1S82. 11Cr. Lysaght.] Q. At that time which way were you facing P Were you towards the face or 
towards the outbyc A. I believe I was standing talking to my mate at the time. I svould be facing 
about half inbye looking across my mate. 
1883. Q. Can you go any nearer than what you have already said as to the position where you think it 
origivaed? A. No. Thiit is the only place that I noticed. I only C stne round that way once; and 

that was my opinion of it. 
1881. Q. I-fare you ever been in all explosion besides this one P A. Yes, in two small ones. 
1885. Q. Where? A. In England. The Dudley Colliery, Northumberland. 

1S86. Q. What year. or when ? A. I think it would be in about 1S93. 
1847. Q. Did cou observe couditions similar in Ketubla to the conditions you oberved there ? A. Yes. 
That is what made me know what it was when I felt it. 
1888. Q. And do you know what the Dudley explosion svao? A. Yes. 
1839. Q. What? A. A gas explosion ; because my mate lit it up, so I know how it was caused. It was 
only a small one. It took my shirt off my back. 
1SPO. Q. What was the other explosion ? A. It was another similar one like, in the same colliery, only 
on the other seam. 
lS9l. Q. 

When ? A. About a year after, I suppose ; only small; little ones, you know. Two or three 
men got burnt and died. 
1892. Q. And was that a gas explosion? A. Yes. 
1893. . Now, leaving the disaster, I want you to come to the time you were wrking in the shaft 
section. When was that? A. I think about two quarters before the explosion like. 
1894. Q. Where were you working? A. lit No. 41. 
1.50.3. Q. Who was your mate? A. Aif Prior. 
1s96. Q. Where is be now? A. I saw hun yesterday morning, lIe is wo,-king at Mount Kembla. I saw 
him going to work. 
lS97. Q. I want you to tell what it was you observed while working there, if anything, exactly in your 
own words, fully. A. One day after we fired a shot my mate went back; and there was a bit of gas lit 
up, just a little bit, you know, after firing the shot. 
1898. Q. 1 want you to give the details of how the gas lit up? Tell us exactly what took place in detail? 

A. 
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